
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING/ 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

Monday, May 24, 2021 

Regular Meeting ‐ 4:00 P.M. 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department 
of the State of California, the Alameda County March 31, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, 
and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday, May 24, 2021, Regular 
Board Meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be 
teleconferencing into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining 
transparency and public access, members of the public can observe the meeting by 
following the steps listed below to listen to the Board Meeting, and may provide public 
comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at 
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 before          
3:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting.  Comments will then be read into the record, with a 
maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Board President’s 
discretion.   All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to 
approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. If a comment is received after the agenda item is heard 
but before the close of the meeting, the comment will still be included as a part of the record of 
the meeting but will not be read into the record. 

Any member of the public who needs accommodations should email or call the Board Clerk who 
will use their best efforts to provide reasonable accommodations to provide as much accessibility 
as possible while also maintaining public safety in accordance with the Union Sanitary District 
procedure for resolving reasonable accommodation requests.  

To listen to this Regular Board Meeting: 

Call:  1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247 

Meeting ID:  822 1959 6486 # 

Participant ID:  # 

Click the Zoom link below to watch and listen: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82219596486 

1 of 401



1. Call to Order.   
 

 

2.  Salute to the Flag. (This item has been suspended due to the COVID‐19 pandemic.) 
   

 

3.  Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion  4.  Approve Minutes of the Union Sanitary District Board Meeting of May 10, 2021. 
 

 

Motion  5.  Approve  Minutes  of  the  Union  Sanitary  District  Special  Board  Meeting  of                 
May 11, 2021. 
 

 

Information  6.  Operations Report: 
a) April 2021 Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

and Legal/Community Affairs Committees). 
b) Fiscal Year 2021 3rd Quarter Managed Investment Portfolio Report (to be reviewed 

by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

 

7.  Written Communications. 
 

 

8.  Public Comment. 
  Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item 
is considered.  Speaker cards will be available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed 
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

Public Hearing  9.  Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 35.23 Updating 
Capacity Charges for Connection to the Main Sewers of Union Sanitary District (to be 
reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

 

Motion  10.  Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Tax 
Roll for Fiscal Year 2022 (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion  11.  Consider Authorizing the Purchase of a Second Robotic Cutter for Collection System 
Repairs (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

 

Motion  12.  Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 3 with Brown and Caldwell 
for the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering 
and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion  13.  Election of Officers for the Board of Directors.  
 

 

Direction  14.  Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 (to be reviewed by the Budget 
& Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information  15.  Status of Priority 1 Capital  Improvement Program Projects  (to be  reviewed by  the 
Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Information  16.  Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2021 (to 
be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

2 of 401



Information  17.  Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority Meeting of April 15, 2021. 
 

 

Information  18.  COVID‐19 Update.  
 

 

Information  19.  Check Register. 
 

 

Information         20.  Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Thursday, May 20, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. 

 Director Toy and Director Fernandez 

b. Budget & Finance Committee – Friday, May 21, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. 

 Director Kite and Director Toy 

c. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Friday, May 21, 2021, at 11:00 a.m. 

 Director Lathi and Director Handley 

d. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 

e. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information         21.    General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

      22.     Other Business: 
a.  Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are 

welcome to request information from staff. 
b.  Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

      23.  Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting to be held 
virtually on Monday, June 14, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 
 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

3 of 401



 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Toy and Director Fernandez 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, May 20, 2021 

1:00 P.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the 
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 24, 2021: 
 April 2021 Monthly Operations Report – Odor and Work Group Reports 
 Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Tax Roll 

for Fiscal Year 2022 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

4 of 401



 

 

 

 
 

 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, May 21, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 24, 2021: 

 April 2021 Monthly Operations Report – Financial Reports 

 Fiscal Year 2021 3rd Quarter Managed Investment Portfolio Report 

 Conduct a Public Hearing and Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 35.23 Updating 
Capacity Charges for Connection to the Main Sewers of Union Sanitary District 

 Consider Authorizing the Purchase of a Second Robotic Cutter for Collection System 
Repairs 

 Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

5 of 401



 

 

 

 
 

 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Lathi and Director Handley 
 

AGENDA 

Friday, May 21, 2021 

11:00 A.M. 
 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, 
the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, 

this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via 
conference call.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 

meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by sending 
comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 up 

to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of May 24, 2021: 

 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 3 with Brown and Caldwell for 
the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 

 Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Program Projects 

 Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2021 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

6 of 401



 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT/UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 
May 10, 2021 

 
Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive 

Department of the State of California, the Alameda County March 16, 2020 Shelter in 
Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday,          

May 10, 2021, Regular Board Meeting was not physically open to the public and all Board 
Members teleconferenced into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still 

maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public were able to listen to 
the Board Meeting, and provide public comment by sending comments to the  

Board Clerk. 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Handley called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  The regular meeting time was 
modified due to the COVID-19 emergency. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Tom Handley, President 

Anjali Lathi, Secretary  
Manny Fernandez, Director 

  Jennifer Toy, Director 
 
ABSENT: Pat Kite, Vice President (arrived at 4:35 p.m.) 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Mark Carlson, Business Services Manager/CFO 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication Construction and Maintenance Manager 
Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager 
Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Team Coach 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING OF 

APRIL 26, 2021 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Approve the Minutes of 
the Board Meeting of April 26, 2021.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 

7 of 401



 

AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
CONSIDER ADOPTION OF PROPOSED NEW POLICY – PENSION AND OTHER 
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) FUNDING POLICY 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services 
Manager/CFO Carlson stated it is the policy of Union Sanitary District to manage the 
resources and obligations of the District to achieve the most fiscally prudent and 
responsible results for our ratepayers.  The proposed new policy will provide direction to 
District staff in the managing of its Pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) 
unfunded liabilities.  During the Board Workshop held February 24, 2021, the Board 
directed staff to develop a policy that would work toward achieving the funding percentage 
goal of between 90% and 100% for the District’s Pension and OPEB while giving the 
Board flexibility on the amount that would be contributed annually and establishing a 115 
Trust for the Pension.  Staff recommended the Board adopt the new policy, Pension and 
OPEB Funding Policy No. 2095. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Approve Pension and 
OPEB Funding Policy No. 2095.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None  
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION FOR THE ENHANCED TREATMENT AND SITE UPGRADE (ETSU) 
PHASE 1 PROGRAM AND APPROVE THE ETSU PHASE 1 PROGRAM 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
ETSU Program Manager Pipkin stated the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
requires the District complete an environmental review for the Enhanced Treatment and 
Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase 1 Program.  Hazen and Sawyer (Hazen), the designer for 
the ETSU Phase 1 Program, and their subconsultant Scheidegger and Associates 
conducted the environmental review and prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) for the ETSU Phase 1 Program.  Staff prepared an IS/MND to 
satisfy the requirements of CEQA which includes mitigation measures to be included in 

8 of 401



 

the Program to mitigate any identified impacts to the environment.  Consultants and staff 
prepared the IS/MND for the entire ETSU Phase 1 Program and the specific Phase 1A – 
Aeration Basin Improvements Project; however, staff will analyze the need for further 
environmental review as design is finalized for Phase 1B, 1C, and the Campus project.  
The IS/MND was circulated to local and state agencies for review for the period from 
March 9, 2021 through April 8, 2021, and the Board held a public hearing to accept public 
comments on March 22, 2021.  The “Notice of Document Availability and Intent to Adopt 
a Mitigated Negative Declaration” was published in the Tri-City Voice on March 9, 2021 
and in The Argus on March 12, 2021.  Comments received during the review period were 
summarized in the Board meeting packet.    Staff recommended the Board adopt a 
resolution adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Enhanced Treatment and 
Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program and approve the Project for the purpose of filing the Notice 
of Determination. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2923, Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Plan for the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program and 
Approving the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Phase 1 Program.  Motion carried 
with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OF THE EMERGENCY OUTFALL 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT TO GARNEY PACIFIC, INC. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Project was advertised for bids on 
March 30, 2021.  The five bids received were opened on April 27, 2021 and the results 
were included in the Board meeting packet.  The Engineer’s Estimate for the Project’s 
Total Contract Price was $1,250,000; the bids received ranged from 12% to 28% above 
the Engineer’s Estimate.  The Total Contract Price includes one bid alternate; Bid 
Alternate A will provide for “Acts of God” insurance that indemnifies against loss or 
damage to the concrete outlet structure during construction under specific conditions.  
The contractor will have 210 calendar days to complete project construction with an 
estimated substantial completion in December 2021.  Staff recommended the Board 
award the construction contract, including Bid Alternate A, for the Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project to Garney Pacific, Inc. in the amount of $1,399,700. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Award the Construction 
Contract, Including Bid Alternate A, for the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project to 
Garney Pacific, Inc. in the Amount of $1,399,700.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 

9 of 401



 

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT CHANGE 
ORDER NO. 1 WITH WESTERN WATER CONSTRUCTORS, INC. FOR THE 
AERATION BLOWER NO. 11 PROJECT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated Contract Change Order (CCO) No. 1 
includes modifications to the ventilation system at the East Aeration Blower Building 
where Blower No. 11 will be installed.  While the estimate for the work was $80,000, the 
quote received from Western Water Constructors was for $118,834.  Staff negotiated the 
change order to lower the quote to $101,145.  The contract change order includes a time-
extension request for substantial completion from September 19, 2021 to December 5, 
2021, due to the long fabrication schedule for the new equipment added in the change 
order.  Staff recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Contract 
Change Order No. 1 with Western Water Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $101,145 for 
the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 1 with Western Water Constructors, Inc. 
in the Amount of $101,145 for the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project.  Motion carried with 
the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH 
V&A CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. FOR THE CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the purpose of the Task Order is to 
authorize engineering services during construction of the Cathodic Protection System 
Improvements Project (Project).  The scope of services and fees for Task Order No. 2 
was summarized in the Board meeting packet.  The construction contract for the Project 
was awarded to Corrpro Companies, Inc. at the Board meeting held April 26, 2021.  Staff 
expects to issue the Notice to Proceed in May 2021 and construction to be completed by 
December 2021.  Staff recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to 
Execute Task Order No. 2 with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $30,854 
to provide engineering services during construction of the Cathodic Protection System 
Improvements Project.  
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. in 
the Amount of $30,854 to Provide Engineering Services During Construction of the 
Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Lathi, Toy 

10 of 401



 

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Kite 
 
BOARD DIRECTION REGARDING NEW CAMPUS BOARDROOM FOLLOWING 
ENHANCED TREATMENT AND SITE UPGRADE (ETSU) PHASE 1 UPDATE BOARD 
WORKSHOP 
 
General Manager Eldredge stated the Campus design team and staff held a workshop 
with the Board to review the new Campus building schematic design package on 
February 9, 2021.  A summary of Board feedback received during the workshop was 
included in the Board meeting packet.  The Board provided additional feedback during 
the March 8, 2021, Board meeting, and directed staff to research the potential for the 
Boardroom ceiling height to be increased beyond the proposed height which varies 
between 11’8” to 13’.  The discussion included the exploration of separating the 
Boardroom from the proposed building footprint to increase the Boardroom ceiling height.  
Conceptual sketches showing an alternate building footprint were included in the Board 
meeting packet.  If the Boardroom were to be separated from the currently proposed 
footprint, preliminary estimates for the increased cost to the Campus building project 
would be $2.3 to $2.9 million dollars.  Staff recommended the Board provide direction 
regarding the footprint of the Campus building and the Boardroom ceiling height. 
 
The Board directed staff to continue to develop the Campus building design without 
separating the Boardroom from the building footprint. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Environmental 
Compliance Team Coach Dunning stated the Certificates of Merit presentation is an 
annual event held to recognize industries that have exceeded the requirements of their 
wastewater discharge permits during the prior calendar year.  Due to ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic restrictions, the District will mail the Certificate of Merit awards to the 26 
Significant Industrial Users with Class I Wastewater Discharge Permits. 
 
The District’s advertisement honoring award recipients will be printed in the May 11, 2021, 
issue of the Tri-City Voice and the May 14, 2021, issue of The Argus newspapers. 
 
COVID-19 Update 
General Manager Eldredge provided an update regarding COVID-19 impacts on District 
operations and coordination efforts.  
 
Check Register 
There were no questions regarding the check register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Budget & Finance, Engineering and Information Technology, and Legal/Community 
Affairs Committees met.   

11 of 401



 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
General Manager Eldredge stated the following: 
 

 General Manager Eldredge thanked the Board for supporting the new OPEB Policy 
and the ETSU Mitigated Negative Declaration earlier in the meeting; both items 
were important milestones and will enable staff to continue making progress on 
District initiatives. 

 The Board Budget Workshop will be held virtually at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday,            
May 11, 2021. 

 The District’s applications for federal funds for infrastructure projects were not 
successful with Congressman Swalwell nor Congressman Khanna’s offices.  
District staff also submitted applications seeking funding for infrastructure projects 
through Senator Feinstein and Senator Padilla.  While staff remain hopeful these 
applications will be successful, it is important to get the information to our elected 
officials for potential future consideration. 

 The election of Board officers will be presented at the May 24, 2021, Board 
meeting. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
There was no other business 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m. to the Board Budget Workshop to be held 
virtually at 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, May 11, 2021. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
PRESIDENT    

 
 

Adopted this 24th day of May 2021 

12 of 401



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

May 11, 2021 
 

Consistent with Executive Order No. N-25-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California and the Alameda County Public Health Department’s March 16, 2020 Shelter in 
Place Order, the District’s May 11, 2021, Special Meeting was not physically open to the 

public.  In order to maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency, members of 
the public were able to attend the meeting telephonically and electronically. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Handley called the special meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Tom Handley, President 
  Pat Kite, Vice President 
  Anjali Lathi, Secretary 
  Manny Fernandez, Director 
  Jennifer Toy, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Mark Carlson, Business Services Manager/CFO 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication Maintenance and Construction Manager 
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
  Ric Pipkin, Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program Manager 
  Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
BOARD WORKSHOP  
 
General Manager Eldredge and Business Services Manager/CFO Carlson presented the Fiscal Year 2022 
Operating Budget. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The special meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:03 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, May 24, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:      ATTEST: 

 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 

 
__________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
PRESIDENT     

Adopted this 24th day of May, 2021 

13 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 6.a 

TITLE:  Monthly Operations Report for April 2021 (This is an Information Item)

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Previous Board Action 

None 

Background 

Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for April 2021.  Staff is available to answer questions 
regarding information contained in the report. 

Work Group Managers 

General Manager/Administration    Paul Eldredge    GM   
Business Services/CFO  Mark Carlson    BS 
Collection Services  James Schofield  CS
Technical Support  Sami Ghossain   TS
Treatment and Disposal Services    Armando Lopez   T&D   
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction   Robert Simonich  FMC 

ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
During the month of April 2021, there was one odor complaint received by the District.  Details 
of the odor complaint can be found in the April 2021 Odor Report in the Board meeting packet. 

14 of 401



STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments Resulting in Promotions: 

 IT Administrator – replacement for Todd Jacob – retirement in August 2021.  Trieu 
Nguyen promoted effective 5/3/21. 

 
Continuing Recruitments: 

 Assistant Engineer – Limited Duration – new position for ETSU recruitment resumed  in 
April 2021. 

 
 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of April, the General Manager was involved in the following: 
 

 Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) JPA Commission Meeting 

 Attended the EBDA Manager’s Advisory Committee Meeting 

 Coordinated District response to COVID‐19 Pandemic 

 Attended the Bay Area Clean Water Agencies (BACWA) Managers Roundtable Meeting 
 

Attachments:  Odor Report and Map 
  Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 

15 of 401



1. No odor found

!

#

#

#

^

#

!

#

#

#

#
#

#

#

#

#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
May 2020 to April 2021 .0 1 2 3 4 50.5

Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: April 2021

Odor Complaints: May 2020 to Mar. 2021
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (2)
Odor found, USD resolved (1)

No odor found (13)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

1. No odor found

16 of 401



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 
 April 2021 

 
 During the recording period from April 01, 2021 through April 30, 2021, there was one odor related  
 service request received by the District. 
 
 
 City:  Union City 

 
 1. 
   Complaint Details: 
  Date:  4/26/21 Time:    4:51 pm 
  Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: 
  Wind (from): North East Wind Speed:  8.8 mph 
   Temperature:  58 F          Weather: Sunny/Windy 
 
 Response and Follow-up:  
 Customer reported an odor at their residence. They indicated the treatment plant as the source  
 of the odor. USD staff was dispatched to location. Odor was not detected at location. An on-site  
 investigation was conducted and no odor was detected at the Plant. Odor control system is  
 working properly. 

17 of 401



NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 

     Paid Admin., AWHIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has

     no discretion.

(5) Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) - Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) and 

Paid Expanded Family Medical Leave Act (Paid EFMLA)

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 25, 2020 through April 28, 2021

Weeks to Date: 44 out of 52 (84.62%)

20.5 26.5 

43.9 40.5 
30.0 

85.3 

47.0 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

34.6 36.7 
32.1 

36.2 36.0 34.8 35.1 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

18 of 401



Regular                       

(1)

Overtime               

(2)

Discretionary 

(3)

Short 

Term 

Disability

Workers 

Comp 

Sick                     

(4)

FFCRA Paid 

Leave

(5)

Average 

Number of 

Employees

At-Work 

Hours Per 

Week Per 

Employee

Annual 

Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 3,036.25         0.75              34.6 442.75          -            -           41.00       -               20.5 2 34.9 35.9

BS 17 27,020.75       366.25          36.7 2,678.77       74.13       95.25       426.18     24.92           26.5 17 36.6 36.8

FMC 27 37,886.25       160.58          32.1 6,265.23       406.82     1,020.50  796.89     388.03         43.9 28 34.2 33.0

TD 29 45,489.90       599.06          36.2 4,789.93       29.87       -           792.19     382.11         40.5 27 35.4 48.8

TS 32 50,402.27       127.81          36.0 4,806.07       153.08     -           834.37     124.21         30.0 33 35.0 48.5

CS 32 46,852.00       2,029.75       34.8 6,450.50       356.12     -           2,334.84  394.04         85.3 31 33.9 91.2

All Groups 139 210,687.42    3,284.20      35.1 25,433.25    1,020.02  1,115.75  5,225.47  1,313.31     47.0 138 35.1 50.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47

The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., AWHIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

(5) Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) - Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) and Paid Expanded Family Medical Leave Act (Paid EFMLA)

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY20

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 25, 2020 through April 28, 2021

Weeks to Date: 44 out of 52 (84.62%)

Average Annual 

Sick Leave Used 

Per Employee To 

Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 

Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 

Number of 

Employees

19 of 401



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2021       Year-to-date as of 4/30/21 83% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/20

  Capacity Fees 5,712,200$            5,018,994$               88% 14,179,464$           
  Sewer Service Charges 60,500,000            59,093,905               98% 60,216,148             
  Operating (Includes work groups and fund 85) 1,293,500              1,028,756                 80% 1,285,438               
  Interest 1,150,000              1,265,615                 110% 3,167,480               
  Misc. (Annex fees, forfeited deposits) 75,000                   15,599                      21% 174,673                  
 Subtotal Revenues 68,730,700$          66,422,869               97% 79,023,203$           

  Bond Proceeds -                         -                            0.0% 73,508,248             

Total Revenues + Bond Proceeds 68,730,700$          66,422,869$             97% 152,531,451$         

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. 22,630,500$          15,923,862$             70% 7,378,703$             
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 20,052,000            6,740,628                 34% 5,317,131               
  Operating (includes fund 85) 45,075,355            34,135,455               76% 45,675,462             
  Special Projects 2,723,000              542,722                    20% 1,288,761               
  Retiree Medical (ADC) 1,208,354              900,064                    74% 9,636-                      
  Vehicle & Equipment 77,868                   129,432                    166% 42,258                    
  Information Systems 960,800                 702,124                    73% 412,483                  
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 400,000                 4,155                        1% 244,669                  
  Emerg. Fund -                         -                            0%
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 111,000                 111,142                    100% 109,988                  
  Debt Servicing:

SRF Loans -                         -                            39,670,259             
Bonds  4,684,773              4,684,772                 100% 1,226,335               
WIFIA Fees -                         100,000                    0%

Total Expenses 97,923,650$          63,974,356$             65% 101,356,412$         

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses (29,192,950)$        2,448,513$               51,175,039             

Audited
Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year

Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals
Board of Directors 180,354$               110,264$                  61% 145,485$                
General Manager/Admin. 1,066,753              805,492                    76% 1,028,600               
Business Services 4,169,231              3,098,694                 74% 4,195,435               
Collection Services 7,623,414              5,782,448                 76% 8,109,845               
Technical Services 6,815,278              5,511,004                 81% 7,716,365               
Treatment & Disposal Services 15,187,206            11,251,705               74% 14,048,718             
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 9,050,619              7,007,167                 77% 9,720,443               
Non-Departmental 982,500                 568,680                    58% 710,571                  

Total 45,075,355$          34,135,455$             76% 45,675,462$           

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) 30,366,922$          24,216,851$             80% 32,823,440$           
Repairs & Maintenance 2,416,400              1,575,268                 65% 2,520,319               
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 3,457,020              2,282,386                 66% 3,197,282               
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 8,517,513              5,970,440                 70% 6,934,999               
Fixed Assets 317,500                 90,509                      29% 199,422                  

Total 45,075,355$          34,135,455$             76% 45,675,462$           

20 of 401



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 4/30/21

5,712,200

60,500,000 

1,293,500 1,150,000 75,000 -
5,018,994

59,093,905 

1,028,756 1,265,615 15,599 -
 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Includes
work groups and

fund 85)

  Interest   Misc. (Annex fees,
forfeited deposits)

  Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues
 Budget  Actual

22,630,500

20,052,000 

45,075,355 

2,723,000 

1,208,354 
77,868 

960,800 400,000 
-

111,000 
-

4,684,773 

-

15,923,862 

6,740,628 

34,135,455 

542,722 

900,064 129,432 702,124 4,155 
- 111,142 

-
4,684,772 

100,000 
 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

 $50,000,000

       Capacity
Proj. Renewal &

Repl. Proj.

  Operating
(includes
fund 85)

  Special
Projects

  Retiree
Medical

(ADC)

  Vehicle &
Equipment Information

Systems

  Plant &
Pump Stat.

R&R

  Emerg.
Fund

  Cty Fee for
SSC Admin.

SRF Loans Bonds WIFIA Fees

Total Expenses
 Budget  Actual

21 of 401



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 4/30/21

180,354
1,066,753

4,169,231

7,623,414
6,815,278

15,187,206

9,050,619

982,500

110,264
805,492

3,098,694

5,782,448 5,511,004

11,251,705

7,007,167

568,680

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

Operating Expenses by Work Group
 Budget  Actual

30,366,922

2,416,400
3,457,020

8,517,513

317,500

24,216,851

1,575,268 2,282,386 

5,970,440 

90,509 
 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services
(utilities, biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type
 Budget  Actual

22 of 401



 
 

 
 
 

 
• Completed Interim Audit with no findings. 
 

 
Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    

 
 

 
 
 
 

 Dec'20 Jan’21 Feb’21 Mar’21 Apr’21 

LAIF 0.54% 0.46% 0.41% 0.36% 0.34% 

2 Year Treasury 0.13% 0.11% 0.14% 0.16% 0.16% 

USD Yield 0.73% 0.68% 0.67% 0.66% 0.57% 

CAMP 0.12% 0.12% 0.10% 0.08% 0.06% 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

1.25%

1.50%

1.75%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 2 Year Treasury USD Yield CAMP

Business Services Group  
April 2021 

23 of 401



 

 

24 of 401



Union Sanitary District
Portfolio Holdings
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 4/30/2021

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement

Date
Face

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon

Rate Market Value
YTM @

Cost
Next Call

Date
Maturity

Date
% of

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 0.23 6/9/2022 3133ELH64 S&P-AA+ 6/9/2020 1,635,000.00 1,631,730.00 0.230 1,634,509.50 0.330 6/9/2022 0.87

FFCB 0.25 9/21/2023-22 3133EMAM4 S&P-AA+ 10/9/2020 1,625,000.00 1,622,237.50 0.250 1,625,000.00 0.308 9/21/2022 9/21/2023 0.86

FHLB 0.5 4/14/2025 3130AJHU6 None 4/16/2020 560,000.00 557,222.40 0.500 557,424.00 0.601 4/14/2025 0.30

FHLB 1.375 2/17/2023 3130AJ7E3 None 2/21/2020 775,000.00 773,574.00 1.375 791,577.25 1.438 2/17/2023 0.41

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 1,009,380.00 2.000 10/26/2021 0.53

FHLMC 0.25 12/4/2023 3137EAFA2 S&P-AA+ 12/4/2020 470,000.00 469,534.70 0.250 469,750.90 0.283 12/4/2023 0.25

FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 None 6/26/2020 780,000.00 777,722.40 0.250 780,499.20 0.348 6/26/2023 0.41

FHLMC 0.25 8/24/2023 3137EAEV7 None 8/21/2020 520,000.00 519,469.60 0.250 520,109.20 0.284 8/24/2023 0.28

FHLMC 0.375 5/5/2023 3137EAER6 S&P-AA 5/29/2020 220,000.00 220,305.80 0.375 220,770.00 0.327 5/5/2023 0.12

FHLMC 0.375 7/21/2025 3137EAEU9 None 7/23/2020 525,000.00 522,385.50 0.375 518,017.50 0.476 7/21/2025 0.28

FHLMC 0.375 9/23/2025 3137EAEX3 None 9/25/2020 795,000.00 792,607.05 0.375 782,351.55 0.436 9/23/2025 0.42

FHLMC 1.5 2/12/2025 3137EAEP0 None 2/14/2020 1,035,000.00 1,034,203.05 1.500 1,071,028.35 1.516 2/12/2025 0.55

FNMA 0.25 5/22/2023 3135G04Q3 None 5/22/2020 865,000.00 862,396.35 0.250 866,141.80 0.351 5/22/2023 0.46

FNMA 0.25 7/10/2023 3135G05G4 None 7/10/2020 795,000.00 793,290.75 0.250 795,604.20 0.322 7/10/2023 0.42

FNMA 0.31 1/26/2024-22 3136G46V0 S&P-AA+ 10/26/2020 259,000.00 258,896.40 0.310 258,362.86 0.322 10/26/2022 1/26/2024 0.14

FNMA 0.375 8/25/2025 3135G05X7 None 8/27/2020 555,000.00 552,402.60 0.375 547,457.55 0.470 8/25/2025 0.29

FNMA 0.375 8/25/2025 3135G05X7 None 10/22/2020 415,000.00 412,754.85 0.375 409,360.15 0.488 8/25/2025 0.22

FNMA 0.5 11/7/2025 3135G06G3 None 11/12/2020 520,000.00 518,138.40 0.500 513,921.20 0.573 11/7/2025 0.28

FNMA 0.5 6/17/2025 3135G04Z3 None 6/19/2020 865,000.00 863,209.45 0.500 858,296.25 0.542 6/17/2025 0.46

FNMA 0.5 6/17/2025 3135G04Z3 None 10/28/2020 1,010,000.00 1,011,494.80 0.500 1,002,172.50 0.468 6/17/2025 0.54

FNMA 0.5 8/14/2025-23 3135G05S8 S&P-AA+ 8/24/2020 1,000,000.00 998,400.00 0.500 990,930.00 0.533 8/14/2023 8/14/2025 0.53

FNMA 0.625 4/22/2025 3135G03U5 None 4/24/2020 455,000.00 454,062.70 0.625 454,622.35 0.667 4/22/2025 0.24

FNMA 0.625 4/22/2025 3135G03U5 None 4/28/2020 125,000.00 124,763.75 0.625 124,896.25 0.664 4/22/2025 0.07

FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 S&P-AA+ 3/16/2020 970,000.00 993,619.50 1.875 986,102.00 0.678 4/5/2022 0.53

Sub Total / Average
Agencies 17,774,000.00 17,764,421.55 0.646 17,788,284.56 0.631 9.43

Asset-Backed Security

Carmax Auto Owner Trust
0.34 12/15/2025-25 14316NAC3 S&P-AAA 1/27/2021 90,000.00 89,982.22 0.340 89,862.35 0.344 2/15/2025 12/15/2025 0.05

1 of 4

25 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Credit Rating 1')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Cost Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Market Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Next Call Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Maturity Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','%25 of Portfolio')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3133ELH64&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3133ELH64
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3133EMAM4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3133EMAM4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3130AJHU6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3130AJHU6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3130AJ7E3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3130AJ7E3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3130AB3D6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3130AB3D6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAFA2&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAFA2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAES4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAES4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAEV7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAEV7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAER6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAER6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAEU9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAEU9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAEX3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAEX3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAEP0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAEP0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G04Q3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G04Q3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05G4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05G4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3136G46V0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3136G46V0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05X7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05X7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05X7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05X7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G06G3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G06G3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G04Z3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G04Z3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G04Z3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G04Z3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05S8&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05S8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G03U5&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G03U5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G03U5&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G03U5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G0T45&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G0T45
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14316NAC3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14316NAC3


Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement

Date
Face

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon

Rate Market Value
YTM @

Cost
Next Call

Date
Maturity

Date
% of

Portfolio

Carmax Auto Owner Trust
0.52 2/17/2026-25 14314QAC8 S&P-AAA 4/21/2021 180,000.00 179,961.21 0.520 180,047.09 0.525 3/15/2025 2/17/2026 0.10

Carmax Auto Owner Trust
1.89 12/16/2024 14315XAC2 S&P-AAA 1/22/2020 185,000.00 184,963.70 1.890 189,283.77 1.895 12/16/2024 0.10

Honda Auto Receivables
2020-1 1.61 4/22/2024-23 43813RAC1 None 2/26/2020 305,000.00 304,940.22 1.610 309,760.56 1.615 5/21/2023 4/22/2024 0.16

Honda Auto Receivables
2021-1 A3 0.27 4/21/2025-24 43813GAC5 None 2/24/2021 150,000.00 149,997.26 0.270 149,838.75 0.270 5/21/2024 4/21/2025 0.08

Hyundai Auto Receivables
Trust 2021-A A3 0.38 9/15 44933LAC7 S&P-AAA 4/28/2021 120,000.00 119,987.38 0.380 120,002.62 0.382 5/15/2025 9/15/2025 0.06

Toyota Auto Receivables
2020-A A3 1.66 5/15/2024-2 89232HAC9 None 2/12/2020 415,000.00 414,970.04 1.660 421,633.32 1.662 10/15/2023 5/15/2024 0.22

Sub Total / Average Asset-
Backed Security 1,445,000.00 1,444,802.03 1.204 1,460,428.46 1.207 0.77

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 55,553,523.37 55,553,523.37 0.060 55,553,523.37 0.060 N/A N/A 29.50

Sub Total / Average CAMP 55,553,523.37 55,553,523.37 0.060 55,553,523.37 0.060 29.50

Cash in Banks

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK None 12/31/2016 5,271,227.15 5,271,227.15 0.010 5,271,227.15 0.010 N/A N/A 2.80

Sub Total / Average Cash in
Banks 5,271,227.15 5,271,227.15 0.010 5,271,227.15 0.010 2.80

Certificates of Deposit

American Expr Centurion 2.45
4/5/2022 02587DN38 None 4/5/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.450 252,096.52 2.450 4/5/2022 0.13

Belmont Savings Bank 2.15
3/22/2022 080515BV0 None 3/20/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.150 252,268.75 2.150 3/22/2022 0.13

BMW Bank 2.15 3/10/2022 05580AGR9 None 3/10/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.150 251,107.71 2.150 3/10/2022 0.13

Credit Suisse 0.59 3/17/2023 22552G3C2 None 3/23/2021 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.590 437,550.40 0.590 3/17/2023 0.23

Discover Bank 2.25
12/29/2021 254672Y36 None 12/29/2016 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 250,413.49 2.250 12/29/2021 0.13

DNB Nor Bank ASA 2.04
12/2/2022 23341VZT1 NR 12/6/2019 430,000.00 430,000.00 2.040 442,170.16 2.040 12/2/2022 0.23

Ponce De Leon Federal Bank
1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.850 249,336.95 1.850 5/28/2021 0.13

Societe Generale NY 1.8
2/14/2022 83369XDL9 None 2/19/2020 570,000.00 570,000.00 1.800 577,243.56 1.800 2/14/2022 0.30

State Bank of India 2.25
1/26/2022 8562846A7 None 1/26/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 250,787.67 2.250 1/26/2022 0.13

Sumitomo Mitsui Bank NY 0.7
7/8/2022 86565CKU2 None 7/14/2020 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.700 437,191.66 0.700 7/8/2022 0.23

Synchrony Bank 2.3
2/24/2022 87165ELT2 None 2/28/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.300 251,274.63 2.300 2/24/2022 0.13

Sub Total / Average
Certificates of Deposit 3,602,000.00 3,602,000.00 1.742 3,651,441.50 1.742 1.91

2 of 4

26 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Credit Rating 1')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Cost Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Market Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Next Call Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Maturity Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','%25 of Portfolio')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14314QAC8&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14314QAC8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14315XAC2&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14315XAC2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=43813RAC1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=43813RAC1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=43813GAC5&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=43813GAC5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=44933LAC7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=44933LAC7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=89232HAC9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=89232HAC9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP4000&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIPUNIONBANK&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIPUNIONBANK
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=02587DN38&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=02587DN38
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=080515BV0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=080515BV0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=05580AGR9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=05580AGR9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=22552G3C2&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=22552G3C2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=254672Y36&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=254672Y36
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=23341VZT1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=23341VZT1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=732333AJ8&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=732333AJ8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=83369XDL9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=83369XDL9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=8562846A7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=8562846A7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=86565CKU2&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=86565CKU2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=87165ELT2&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=87165ELT2


Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement

Date
Face

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon

Rate Market Value
YTM @

Cost
Next Call

Date
Maturity

Date
% of

Portfolio

Commercial Paper

MUFG Bank LTD/NY 0
11/19/2021 62479LYK5 S&P-A1 2/22/2021 1,000,000.00 998,725.00 0.000 999,054.50 0.170 11/19/2021 0.53

Sub Total / Average
Commercial Paper 1,000,000.00 998,725.00 0.000 999,054.50 0.170 0.53

Corporate Issues

Amazon.com Inc. 2.4
2/22/2023 023135AW6 Fitch-A+ 4/15/2019 675,000.00 668,499.75 2.400 699,988.50 2.664 2/22/2023 0.35

American Express Credit 2.7
3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 Moodys-A2 5/15/2017 1,000,000.00 1,013,279.67 2.700 1,018,590.00 2.406 3/3/2022 0.54

American Honda Finance
1.95 5/10/2023 02665WDH1 None 1/10/2020 415,000.00 414,846.45 1.950 427,686.55 1.962 5/10/2023 0.22

Apple Inc 0.75 5/11/2023 037833DV9 S&P-AA+ 5/11/2020 325,000.00 324,116.00 0.750 328,162.25 0.842 5/11/2023 0.17

Bank of America Corp 4.1
7/24/2023 06053FAA7 Fitch-A 3/22/2019 500,000.00 520,405.00 4.100 540,075.00 3.087 7/24/2023 0.28

BB&T Corporation 3.05
6/20/2022-22 05531FBG7 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 525,714.00 3.050 540,361.50 3.006 5/20/2022 6/20/2022 0.28

Bristol-Myers Squibb Co
3.875 8/15/2025-25 110122DC9 S&P-A+ 9/30/2020 177,000.00 202,254.36 3.875 197,569.17 0.879 5/15/2025 8/15/2025 0.11

Chevron Corp 2.1 5/16/2021 166764BG4 Moodys-
Aa2 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 2.100 1,000,610.00 2.113 5/16/2021 0.53

Exxon Mobil Corporation
2.726 3/1/2023 30231GAR3 Moodys-

Aaa 6/14/2019 985,000.00 1,001,400.25 2.726 1,024,518.20 2.256 3/1/2023 0.53

Goldman Sachs Group Inc
3.75 5/22/2025-25 38148LAE6 S&P-BBB+ 2/17/2021 380,000.00 424,528.40 3.750 416,749.80 0.940 2/22/2025 5/22/2025 0.23

JP Morgan Chase & Co 0.653
9/16/2024-23 46647PBS4 None 9/16/2020 110,000.00 110,000.00 0.653 110,163.90 0.653 9/16/2023 9/16/2024 0.06

JPMorgan Chase & Co 2.7
5/18/2023-23 46625HRL6 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 517,970.25 2.700 547,722.00 3.045 3/18/2023 5/18/2023 0.28

Morgan Stanley 0.731
4/5/2024-23 61772BAA1 None 4/22/2021 70,000.00 70,000.00 0.731 70,162.40 0.731 4/5/2023 4/5/2024 0.04

Morgan Stanley 0.731
4/5/2024-23 61772BAA1 None 4/22/2021 205,000.00 205,258.30 0.731 205,475.60 0.688 4/5/2023 4/5/2024 0.11

Paccar Financial Corp 2.65
5/10/2022 69371RP83 None 5/10/2019 580,000.00 579,686.80 2.650 594,308.60 2.669 5/10/2022 0.31

State Street Corp 1.95
5/19/2021 857477AV5 Fitch-AA- 3/22/2019 530,000.00 520,566.00 1.950 530,402.80 2.805 5/19/2021 0.28

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 1.8
2/13/2025 89236TGT6 S&P-AA- 5/26/2020 250,000.00 252,442.50 1.800 258,595.00 1.584 2/13/2025 0.13

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 1.8
2/13/2025 89236TGT6 S&P-AA- 5/26/2020 180,000.00 181,758.60 1.800 186,188.40 1.584 2/13/2025 0.10

Wal-Mart Stores Inc 2.55
4/11/2023-23 931142DH3 S&P-AA 5/26/2020 965,000.00 1,015,701.10 2.550 1,002,866.60 0.701 1/11/2023 4/11/2023 0.54

Sub Total / Average
Corporate Issues 9,397,000.00 9,547,927.43 2.506 9,700,196.27 2.062 5.07

LAIF

3 of 4

27 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Credit Rating 1')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Cost Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Market Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Next Call Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Maturity Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','%25 of Portfolio')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=62479LYK5&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=62479LYK5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=023135AW6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=023135AW6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=0258M0EG0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=0258M0EG0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=02665WDH1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=02665WDH1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=037833DV9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=037833DV9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=06053FAA7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=06053FAA7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=05531FBG7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=05531FBG7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=110122DC9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=110122DC9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=166764BG4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=166764BG4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=30231GAR3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=30231GAR3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=38148LAE6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=38148LAE6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=46647PBS4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=46647PBS4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=46625HRL6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=46625HRL6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=61772BAA1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=61772BAA1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=69371RP83&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=69371RP83
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=857477AV5&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=857477AV5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=89236TGT6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=89236TGT6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=89236TGT6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=89236TGT6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=931142DH3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=931142DH3


Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement

Date
Face

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon

Rate Market Value
YTM @

Cost
Next Call

Date
Maturity

Date
% of

Portfolio

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 72,193,921.99 72,193,921.99 0.339 72,193,921.99 0.339 N/A N/A 38.33

Sub Total / Average LAIF 72,193,921.99 72,193,921.99 0.339 72,193,921.99 0.339 38.33

Municipal

City of Riverside CA 2.125
6/1/2021 769036BA1 S&P-AA- 6/1/2017 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125 500,685.00 2.125 6/1/2021 0.27

State of California 2.152
4/1/2022 13063DAD0 Moodys-

Aa3 4/27/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,000.00 2.152 1,020,410.00 1.938 4/1/2022 0.54

Victor Valley College General
Obligation Bond 2.35 92603PER9 Moodys-

Aa2 12/28/2016 500,000.00 490,150.00 2.350 502,040.00 2.811 8/1/2021 0.26

Sub Total / Average
Municipal 2,000,000.00 2,000,150.00 2.194 2,023,135.00 2.199 1.06

Treasury

T-Bill 0 6/17/2021 9127963H0 S&P-A1+ 6/24/2020 80,000.00 79,860.78 0.000 79,999.20 0.178 6/17/2021 0.04

T-Note 0.375 12/31/2025 91282CBC4 S&P-AA+ 1/25/2021 755,000.00 752,847.07 0.375 740,753.15 0.434 12/31/2025 0.40

T-Note 0.375 12/31/2025 91282CBC4 S&P-AA+ 4/7/2021 535,000.00 522,314.65 0.375 524,904.55 0.888 12/31/2025 0.28

T-Note 0.5 2/28/2026 91282CBQ3 S&P-AA+ 3/5/2021 1,260,000.00 1,242,970.31 0.500 1,240,608.60 0.777 2/28/2026 0.66

T-Note 1.25 7/31/2023 912828S92 Fitch-AAA 4/2/2019 1,035,000.00 990,365.62 1.250 1,059,177.60 2.302 7/31/2023 0.53

T-Note 1.375 6/30/2023 912828S35 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 1,385,000.00 1,325,867.00 1.375 1,420,109.75 2.431 6/30/2023 0.70

T-Note 1.375 9/30/2023 912828T26 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 1,545,000.00 1,475,112.89 1.375 1,587,425.70 2.436 9/30/2023 0.78

T-Note 1.5 10/31/2024 912828YM6 S&P-AA+ 1/12/2021 1,005,000.00 1,049,479.10 1.500 1,040,566.95 0.327 10/31/2024 0.56

T-Note 1.5 3/31/2023 912828Q29 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 175,000.00 168,799.81 1.500 179,471.25 2.428 3/31/2023 0.09

T-Note 1.75 11/30/2021 912828U65 S&P-AA+ 6/16/2020 550,000.00 562,396.49 1.750 555,412.00 0.199 11/30/2021 0.30

T-Note 1.75 7/15/2022 9128287C8 Fitch-AAA 7/31/2019 1,000,000.00 998,789.06 1.750 1,019,920.00 1.792 7/15/2022 0.53

T-Note 1.75 9/30/2022 912828L57 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 835,000.00 816,016.80 1.750 854,313.55 2.426 9/30/2022 0.43

T-Note 1.875 2/28/2022 912828W55 Fitch-AAA 4/2/2019 485,000.00 479,259.57 1.875 492,255.60 2.298 2/28/2022 0.25

T-Note 2 4/30/2024 912828X70 Fitch-AAA 6/7/2019 590,000.00 592,996.09 2.000 619,063.40 1.891 4/30/2024 0.31

T-Note 2 6/30/2024 912828XX3 Fitch-AAA 7/3/2019 470,000.00 474,846.88 2.000 493,866.60 1.783 6/30/2024 0.25

T-Note 2.125 12/31/2022 912828N30 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 1,170,000.00 1,157,340.24 2.125 1,208,481.30 2.426 12/31/2022 0.61

T-Note 2.125 2/29/2024 912828W48 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,970,625.00 2.125 2,102,420.00 2.442 2/29/2024 1.05

T-Note 2.125 3/31/2024 912828W71 S&P-AA+ 3/2/2020 730,000.00 767,412.50 2.125 767,981.90 0.844 3/31/2024 0.41

T-Note 2.125 6/30/2022 912828XG0 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 710,000.00 703,454.69 2.125 726,748.90 2.418 6/30/2022 0.37

T-Note 2.25 12/31/2023 912828V23 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,982,968.75 2.250 2,104,460.00 2.439 12/31/2023 1.05

T-Note 2.625 1/31/2026 9128286A3 S&P-AA+ 2/4/2021 715,000.00 791,164.26 2.625 775,996.65 0.463 1/31/2026 0.42

T-Note 2.75 8/15/2021 9128284W7 Fitch-AAA 10/28/2019 1,045,000.00 1,064,757.03 2.750 1,053,109.20 1.678 8/15/2021 0.57

Sub Total / Average
Treasury 20,075,000.00 19,969,644.59 1.725 20,647,045.85 1.779 10.60

Total / Average 188,311,672.51 188,346,343.11 0.585 189,288,258.65 0.567 100

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District’s Investment Policy. The District will meet its expenditure obligations for 
the next six months. Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements. Broker/Dealers utilized per USD Investment Policy and at the discretion of 
investment portfolio advisor.
Reviewer:
Approver:

4 of 4

28 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Credit Rating 1')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Cost Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Market Value')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Next Call Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Maturity Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','%25 of Portfolio')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP1002&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP1002
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=769036BA1&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=769036BA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=13063DAD0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=13063DAD0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=92603PER9&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=92603PER9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=9127963H0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=9127963H0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=91282CBC4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=91282CBC4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=91282CBC4&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=91282CBC4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=91282CBQ3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=91282CBQ3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828S92&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828S92
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828S35&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828S35
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828T26&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828T26
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828YM6&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828YM6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828Q29&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828Q29
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828U65&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828U65
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=9128287C8&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=9128287C8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828L57&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828L57
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828W55&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828W55
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828X70&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828X70
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828XX3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828XX3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828N30&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828N30
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828W48&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828W48
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828W71&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828W71
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828XG0&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828XG0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828V23&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828V23
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=9128286A3&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=9128286A3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=9128284W7&dt=4/30/2021&po=
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=9128284W7


Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
Begin Date: 03/31/2021, End Date: 04/30/2021

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

Buy

Carmax Auto Owner Trust 0.52 2/17/2026-25 14314QAC8 180,000.00 179,961.21 0.00 0.520 0.525 4/21/2021 179,961.21

Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A A3 0.38
9/15 44933LAC7 120,000.00 119,987.38 0.00 0.380 0.382 4/28/2021 119,987.38

Morgan Stanley 0.731 4/5/2024-23 61772BAA1 70,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 0.731 0.731 4/22/2021 70,000.00

Morgan Stanley 0.731 4/5/2024-23 61772BAA1 205,000.00 205,258.30 0.00 0.731 0.688 4/22/2021 205,258.30

T-Note 0.375 12/31/2025 91282CBC4 535,000.00 522,314.65 537.59 0.375 0.888 4/7/2021 522,852.24

Sub Total / Average Buy 1,110,000.00 1,097,521.54 537.59 1,098,059.13

Deposit

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 1,929.01 1,929.01 0.00 N/A 0.000 4/30/2021 1,929.01

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 4/16/2021 25,000,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 78,784.83 78,784.83 0.00 N/A 0.000 4/15/2021 78,784.83

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 5,271,227.15 5,271,227.15 0.00 N/A 0.000 4/30/2021 5,271,227.15

Sub Total / Average Deposit 30,351,940.99 30,351,940.99 0.00 30,351,940.99

Interest

American Expr Centurion 2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 0.00 0.00 3,017.46 2.450 0.000 4/5/2021 3,017.46

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 1,929.01 N/A 0.000 4/30/2021 1,929.01

Carmax Auto Owner Trust 0.34 12/15/2025-25 14316NAC3 0.00 0.00 25.50 0.340 0.000 4/15/2021 25.50

Carmax Auto Owner Trust 1.89 12/16/2024 14315XAC2 0.00 0.00 291.38 1.890 0.000 4/15/2021 291.38

Credit Agricole CIB NY 2.83 4/2/2021 22535CDU2 0.00 0.00 16,317.70 2.830 0.000 4/2/2021 16,317.70

FHLB 0.5 4/14/2025 3130AJHU6 0.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.500 0.000 4/14/2021 1,400.00

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 2.000 0.000 4/26/2021 10,000.00

FNMA 0.625 4/22/2025 3135G03U5 0.00 0.00 1,812.50 0.625 0.000 4/22/2021 1,812.50

FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 0.00 0.00 9,093.75 1.875 0.000 4/5/2021 9,093.75

Honda Auto Receivables 2020-1 1.61 4/22/2024-
23 43813RAC1 0.00 0.00 409.21 1.610 0.000 4/21/2021 409.21

Honda Auto Receivables 2021-1 A3 0.27
4/21/2025-24 43813GAC5 0.00 0.00 33.75 0.270 0.000 4/21/2021 33.75

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 0.00 0.00 78,784.83 N/A 0.000 4/15/2021 78,784.83

Ponce De Leon Federal Bank 1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 0.00 0.00 378.62 1.850 0.000 4/30/2021 378.62

State of California 2.152 4/1/2022 13063DAD0 0.00 0.00 11,835.00 2.152 0.000 4/1/2021 11,835.00

T-Note 1.5 10/31/2024 912828YM6 0.00 0.00 7,537.50 1.500 0.000 4/30/2021 7,537.50

T-Note 2 4/30/2024 912828X70 0.00 0.00 5,900.00 2.000 0.000 4/30/2021 5,900.00

1 of 2

29 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Principal')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Interest/Dividends')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Total')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14314QAC8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14314QAC8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=44933LAC7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=44933LAC7
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=61772BAA1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=91282CBC4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=91282CBC4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP1002
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP1002
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIPUNIONBANK
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIPUNIONBANK
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=02587DN38
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=02587DN38
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP4000
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14316NAC3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14316NAC3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=14315XAC2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=14315XAC2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=22535CDU2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=22535CDU2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3130AJHU6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3130AJHU6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3130AB3D6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3130AB3D6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G03U5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G03U5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G0T45
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G0T45
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=43813RAC1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=43813RAC1
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=43813GAC5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=43813GAC5
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIP1002
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIP1002
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=732333AJ8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=732333AJ8
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=13063DAD0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=13063DAD0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828YM6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828YM6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=912828X70
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=912828X70


Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

Toyota Auto Receivables 2020-A A3 1.66
5/15/2024-2 89232HAC9 0.00 0.00 574.08 1.660 0.000 4/15/2021 574.08

Wal-Mart Stores Inc 2.55 4/11/2023-23 931142DH3 0.00 0.00 12,303.75 2.550 0.000 4/12/2021 12,303.75

Sub Total / Average Interest 0.00 0.00 161,644.04 161,644.04

Matured

Credit Agricole CIB NY 2.83 4/2/2021 22535CDU2 575,000.00 575,000.00 0.00 2.830 0.000 4/2/2021 575,000.00

Sub Total / Average Matured 575,000.00 575,000.00 0.00 575,000.00

Sell

FHLMC 0.375 5/5/2023 3137EAER6 275,000.00 276,138.50 478.39 0.375 0.000 4/22/2021 276,616.89

FNMA 0.25 7/10/2023 3135G05G4 120,000.00 120,111.60 90.00 0.250 0.000 4/28/2021 120,201.60

FNMA 0.25 7/10/2023 3135G05G4 180,000.00 180,138.60 126.25 0.250 0.000 4/21/2021 180,264.85

T-Bill 0 6/17/2021 9127963H0 523,000.00 522,990.10 0.00 0.000 0.000 4/7/2021 522,990.10

Sub Total / Average Sell 1,098,000.00 1,099,378.80 694.64 1,100,073.44

Withdraw

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 5,355,302.87 5,355,302.87 0.00 N/A 0.000 4/29/2021 5,355,302.87

Sub Total / Average Withdraw 5,355,302.87 5,355,302.87 0.00 5,355,302.87

2 of 2

30 of 401

javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Description')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','CUSIP/Ticker')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Face Amount/Shares')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Principal')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Interest/Dividends')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Coupon Rate')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','YTM @ Cost')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Settlement Date')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$gvReport','Total')
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=89232HAC9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=89232HAC9
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=931142DH3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=931142DH3
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=22535CDU2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=22535CDU2
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3137EAER6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3137EAER6
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05G4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05G4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=3135G05G4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=3135G05G4
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=9127963H0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=9127963H0
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityDescription.aspx?cu=LGIPUNIONBANK
https://v4.tracker.us.com/Forms/Security/SecurityCusip.aspx?cg=64cd030e-9b07-42cc-832c-a07c67a5e80b&cu=LGIPUNIONBANK


   
 

   
 

 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH APR 2021 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project – Contractor has mobilized some storage containers and equipment onsite.  
 
Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Installation of Pump 5, VFD 5 and Switchboard 5; 
coating removal in the wet well in progress.  New dry well exhaust fan was placed into operation. 
 
Centrifuge Building Improvements Project - Submittals were submitted and reviewed. Conveyors have been 
ordered. 
 
FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining Project -  Construction work is in progress.  One additional liner is yet to be done. 
 
Headworks Screens Replacement Project –Replacement of the 3/8” racks and rakes with 1/4” racks and rakes on 
Mechanical Screen No. 3 is expected to be scheduled in June. 
 
Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project – The 5-day process/commissioning testing of Primary Digester No. 
2 and Heating and Mixing Building No. 1 was completed on April 7th. Commissioning of the new digester gas 
flowmeter was completed on April 16th. Contractor is working on close-out activities. 
 
Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Construction of the dome for Digester 7 is complete.  Installation of draft tubes 
and interior piping is underway.  Filling of the digester with water for a leak test is scheduled for mid-May.  
Functional and operational testing of Boiler 7 has been completed. 
 
Wet Weather Flow Management – Calcium Thiosulfate Chemical Feed System -  Installation of underground 
utilities has been completed. Fabrication of overhead utility crossing structure in progress with installation above 
ground equipment/utilities to begin next month.  The re-submittal  of the chemical pump  system continues to 
be critical path for project completion. 

 
 

31 of 401



   
 

   
 

Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours:  
 

Month Fremont Newark Union City Total 
April-21 9 1 0 10 

March-21 5 2 0 7 
February-21 5 3 2 10 
January-21 7 3 5 15 

December-20 6 1 0 7 
November-20 10 1 0 11 

          
April-20 6 1 0 7 

          
      6-Month Total 60 

         
Sewer Permits Issued 
 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
April-21 18 0 48 0 0

March-21 31 5 72 1 3
February-21 26 2 128 0 1

New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

February-21 March-21 April-21

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 

0
5

10
15

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

32 of 401



   
 

   
 

Communication 
• Social Media Posts 

o FOG message 
o What Is That? USD’s Surge Tower 
o Earth Day – City of Union City Park Cleanup 
o Earth Day – City of Fremont Activities 
o Earth Day – Environmentally friendly gardening information 
o Keep coffee grounds out of drains 

• Website Updates: 
o Updated Capacity Fees page information  
o Added link to April 2021 Capacity Fee Study 

• Outreach to Chambers of Commerce re: Capacity Fees 
• Union City Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors meetings 

 
Environmental Compliance 
 

Pollution Prevention/Stormwater Programs 
 

USD’s Environmental Compliance (EC) team conducts pollution prevention inspections at restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  Over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections are conducted every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
During the past month, the EC team conducted 89 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 44 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections.  During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 14 Stormwater and 11 FOG enforcement actions. 
Eight (8) of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $350 for each 
violation.  There were no administrative fines issued for illicit discharge violations. 
 
Urban Runoff (UR) Inspections and Enforcements 

April  
2021 

Number of 
UR 

Inspection VW WL NOV AF LA 

 
 

NOD Total Enforcements  
No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 0 

89 2 0 4 8 0 0 14  % Enforcement 16% 
 

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Inspections and Enforcements 

April    
2021 

Number of 
FOG 

Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

 
 

NOD Total Enforcements  % Enforcement 25% 
44 8 0 0 0 0 3 11    

 
Enforcements 
VW –Verbal Warning, WL – Warning Letter, NOV – Notices of Violation  
AF – Administrative Fine, LA – Legal Action, NOD – Notice of Deficiency  
AO – Administrative Order, C&D – Cease & Desist Order, SNC – Significant Non-Compliance    
 

Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events  # of Plant Tours 

None 2 None 

33 of 401



   
 

   
 

Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors are working 
with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
    Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
Facebook Commissary Phillips 66 RMR #1637 (1500 Mowry Ave) 

Membrane Technology Research  
Bionova  
Sonova  

Estuary LLC  
Tenaya Therapeutics, Inc.  

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name Date Permit Issued 
C1C-0005 Rigetti Computing April 13, 2021 

 
    Industrial Permit Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
None  

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
None  

 
Enforcement Action 

Industrial User Name 
& Nature of Business 

Comments City  Parameter 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 

(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated(mg/L) 

Enforce- 
ment 

 

Kerry Ingredients & 
Flavours – Food 
Manufacturer 

N21-004 Union 
City 

Total Oil & 
Grease 
Animal/ 

Vegetable 
(AV) 

670  300 NOV 

 
A/V- Animal/Vegetable, TTL- Total, O&G- Oil & Grease 

 
(1) WL   – Warning Letter,  NOV – Notices of Violation,  AO – Administrative Order 

 C&D – Cease and Desist Order,  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance,  EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 
Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 

Activity Date of Event Organization & Attendees 
CWEA - CASA Covid-19 Wastewater Monitoring 

April Update Webinar 
4/21/2021 Edda Marasigan 

CWEA Webinar: Implementing Food  
Waste Co-digestion at Wastewater Treatment 
Plants: Planning and Operations PART 1 

4/27/2021 Marian Gonzalez 

34 of 401



   
 

   
 

Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 8 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
April 2021 Activities 

1.  Aeration Blower No. 11 
Project - Derek 

$1,652 10/21 20% 56% Contractor has mobilized storage 
containers and equipment onsite. 

2.  Alvarado Influent Pump 
Station Improvements 
Project – Thomas 

$8,890 10/21 40% 75% Installation of Pump 5, VFD 5 and 
Switchboard 5; coating removal in 
the wet well in progress.  New dry 
well exhaust fan was placed into 
operation. 

3.  Centrifuge Building 
Improvements Project – 
Somporn 

$688 10/21 20% 40% Submittals were received and 
reviewed.  Conveyors have been 
ordered. 

4.  FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 
Project – Andrew 

$307 3/21 95% 100% Construction work in progress.  
One additional liner is yet to be 
done. 

5.  Headworks Screens 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$1,822 7/21 98% 88% Replacement of the 3/8” racks 
and rakes with 1/4” racks and 
rakes on Mechanical Screen No. 3 
is expected to be scheduled in 
June. 

6.  Primary Digester No. 2 
Rehabilitation Project – 
Derek 

$3,058 10/20 100% 100% Process/commissioning of Primary 
Digester No. 2 and Heating and 
Mixing Building No. 1 completed 
on April 7th. Commissioning of 
new digester gas flowmeter 
completed on April 16th  Close-out 
activities in progress. 

7.  Primary Digester No. 7 
Project – Curtis 

$23,519 12/21 78% 72% Construction of the dome for 
Digester 7 completed.  Installation 
of draft tubes and interior piping 
is underway.   

8.  Wet Weather Flow 
Management – Calcium 
Thiosulfate Chemical Feed 
System – Kevin/Blake 

$624 06/21 18% 75% Contractor scheduled to 
remobilize in mid-May to begin 
aboveground utility installation.   

35 of 401



   
 

   
 

Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 13 
 Design/Study Projects Capital 

($1000) 
Scheduled 

Completion 
Completed 

Scope 
Completed 

Time 
Comments for 

April 2021 Activities 
1.  Cathodic Protection System 

Improvements Project - 
Thomas 

$87 07/20 100% 100% Construction contract was 
awarded on the April 
26th Board meeting.  

2.  Cherry Street Pump Station 
Improvements Project – 
Derek 

$72 06/21 90% 76% 90% design submittal was 
completed. Application 
with PG&E for a new 
service line is in progress. 

3.  Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project – 
Andrew  

$398 08/20 100% 100% Bids opened on April 27th.   

4.  Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/22 60% 79% Pipe testing planned to 
take place during Force 
Main Relocation Project. 

5.  Force Main Corrosion Repairs 
Project Phase 3 – Andrew 

$60 12/21 75% 78% Project construction is 
pending the completion of 
Force Main relocation 
project. 

6.  Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation / 
Replacement Project – Phase 
VII – Andrew 

$176 1/21 100% 100% Construction contract was 
awarded at the April 26th 
Board Meeting. 

7.  Irvington Basin Masterplan 
Update - Andrew 

$378 11/21 72% 66% Flow monitoring data 
imported into the model, 
begun model calibration 

8.  Irvington Basin Reinforced 
Concrete Pipe Rehabilitation 
Project - Andrew 

$271 10/21 8% 22% 50% design submittal in 
progress. 

9.  Odor Control Alternatives 
Study – Kevin 

$465 12/20 99% 100% Report will be finalized 
after the pilot testing 
project is completed.   

10.  Odor Control Pilot Study - 
Somporn 

$99 12/21 80% 100% Odor Pilot data collection 
completed for Primary 
Clarifier Odor testing. 
Workshop scheduled for 
June 2nd.  

11.  Pump Stations Chemical 
System Improvements Project 
- Thomas 

$738 10/21 10% 29% 50% design submittal in 
progress. 

36 of 401



   
 

   
 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
April 2021 Activities 

12.  Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project – 
Kevin 

$2,281 01/21 85% 85% Design revised to 
incorporate alternative 
point of connection of 
generator system to new 
service entrance 
switchgear.  Coordination 
with designer and 
Cummins in progress. 

13.  WAS Thickener Replacement 
Project – Derek 

$807 06/21 80% 90% 90% design submittal in 
progress. 

 

37 of 401



     
COLLECTION SERVICES  

ACTIVITIES REPORT 
APRIL 2021 

 

    
Progress/Accomplishments   

• 2 stoppages, 1 SSO (Category 3) in April 
• Completed 24.38 miles of sewer main cleaning in April 
• Completed 13.86 miles of sewer main inspection in April 
• Responded to 10 service request calls in April 
• Completed a total of 18 sewer main repairs in April 
 
Trainings/Significant Events 
• Respirator Fit Test 

 
Reported Bay Area Spills 

April 30, 2020 to April 30, 2021 
 
 

 
 
 

 
   

  

Category 1 = Any SSO to surace 
w ater or drainage channel 
regardless of size
Category 2 = >1,000 gallons that 
do not reach surface w ater or 
drainage channel
Category 3 = <1,000 gallons that 
do not reach surface w ater or 
drainage channel

MAP LEGEND

38 of 401



April 30, 2020 to April 30, 2021 Spills Per 100 Miles of Pipe 
Union Sanitary District, State & Regional Average 

 

 

39 of 401



Performance Measures 

 
 

Cleaning Actual Footages/Costs
FY21 Q1 FY21 Q2 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 FY21 Q3 Apr-21 FY21 YTD FY20 FY21 % Cmpl

Description Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footages Footage Footage YE Goal to Plan

84 Month Hydro-Jet Clean 146,210 98,368 58,987 57,112 62,242 178,341 79,182 502,101 601,992 516,751 97.2%

Selective Line Cleaning 40,442 40,504 34,124 1,300 29,466 64,890 15,635 161,471 193,383 125,737 128.4%

Special Condition Clean (NIC in Total) 4,454 9,386 0 1,569 2,530 4,099 1,673 19,612 14,274 23,315 84.1%

Root Control/Chemical Cln 65,017 105,954 20,998 24,908 14,220 60,126 31,801 262,898 294,525 274,707 95.7%

Cast Iron Project  0 4,306 263 0 98 361 0 4,667 3,014 3,839 121.6%

Other Special Projects (NIC in Total) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Spills/Stoppages (NIC in Total) 1,348 270 0 765 0 765 430 2,813 0 0 0.0%
            
Totals 251,669 249,132 114,372 83,320 106,026 303,718 126,618 931,137 1,107,188 921,034 101.1%

Televising Actual Footages/Costs
FY21 Q1 FY21 Q2 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 FY21 Q3 Apr-21 FY21 YTD FY20 FY21 % Cmpl

Description Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footages Footage Footage YE Goal to Plan

84 Month TV Inspection 95,130 103,184 48,260 60,217 46,086 154,563 72,651 425,528 437,518 444,728 95.7%

84 Month Manhole Inspection Count 0 0 97 115 121 333 160 493 - - -

Visual/Condition, Pre/Post Cnst TV (NIC in total) 836 0 0 0 219 219 0 1,055 11,988 20,320 5.2%

Visual Manhole Inspection Count 87 61 29 11 61 101 47 296 - - -

New Development, CIP, Misc. (NIC in total) 5,100 4,317 3,621 11,472 208 15,301 514 25,232 25,504 36,120 69.9%

QA/QC Line Condition 0 11,800 0 0 7,401 7,401 0 19,201 27,829 18,861 101.8%

QA/QC Root Control 20,797 1,473 0 0 0 0 0 22,270 13,830 23,219 95.9%

Totals 115,927 116,457 48,260 60,217 53,487 161,964 72,651 466,999 516,669 486,808 95.9%

FY21 PLAN

FY21 PLAN

April-21 Clean Cost/Ft = $1.10

April-21 TV Cost/Ft = $1.64

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY21 Cumulative Cleaning

FY21 Cum Pln

FY21 Cum Act

FY20 Cum Pln

FY20 Cum ActFe
et

 In
Th

ou
sa

nd
s

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY21 Cumulative Televising

FY21 Cum Pln

FY21 Cum Act

FY20 Cum Pln

FY20 Cum Act

Fe
et

 In
Th

ou
sa

nd
s

40 of 401



 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 
C/S  
 

 
 
Maintenance Status: 
 

 41 of 401



l

l

l Coating of CS men's and women's locker rooms
l Cogen 2 2K service
l Primary Clarifier 4 annual
l Installation of new 1W supply line at NPS

Future Planning
l Install new Rosemount digital temp in and out sensor for Digesters 4 & 5 
l Install new flow meter for Digester 2 in HM 1
l Overhaul Primary Clarifier 3 drive gear assembly
l Centrifuge 2 8K service
l Change sprockets and chain on both Effluent Screens

Performance Measurements

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction
Activities Report

April 2021

Progress/Accomplishments
Completed 98.87% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of April
Completed 99 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of April

0

5

10

15

20

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

142 of 401



0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

N
o.

  o
f  

W
O

s
Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated

Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

243 of 401



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Future Planning
l

l

l

l

l

Other
l Cogeneration system produced 72% of power consumed for the month of April

Continue to dose Anti-Foaming chemical to primary digesters and work them back into normal 
operation
Conduct a hydraulic and electric plant shutdown to accommodate corrosion assessments of the 
American Eagle Protective Services (AEPS) East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) line and electrical 
work related to Digester 7
Conduct a quarterly management review of the Laboratory program for compliance with new The 
National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Conference (NELAC) Institute (TNI) requirements
Submit information requested by Environmental and Public Health Engineering Inc. (EOA) for the 
renewal of the EBDA NPDES Permit application
Conduct organics testing as necessary to support the ETSU BAAQMD application process

Commissioned Primary Digester 2 and put it in full service

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

April 2021

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 96% preventive maintenance activities for the month of April

Maintained 100% compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permits

Researched and procured Anti-Foaming chemical, pumps, and supplies. Installed them and began 
dosing the digesters to work on current primary digester foaming issues

Attended a meeting with BAAQMD to discuss changes to the new diesel Best Available Control 
Technology (BACT) requirements to understand why they changed retroactively without 
notification to the wastewater sector

Certified the District's cogeneration system for continued applicability to purchase natural gas for 
electrical generation
Attended the Bay Area Clean Water Agency (BACWA) Nutrient Strategy Team meeting to discuss 
positioning for Watershed Permit No. 3

Reviewed Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) comments on the Enhanced 
Treatment Site Upgrade (ETSU) Phase I permit application

Attended BACWA Air and Lab committee meetings

44 of 401



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G
D

m
g
/l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

55%

74%
65%

73%
64%

23%
0% 0% 0%

50%

74% 72% 72%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh /10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21
Copper, µg/l 78 5.7 5.9 8.6

Mercury, µg/l 0.066 0.0020 0.0021 0.0019

Cyanide, µg/l 42 < 1 < 1 < 1
Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 40.3 - 42.1 36.3 - 46.5 44 - 47.5
Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

• 5-Day Geometric Mean 500 31 - 42 35 - 41 34 - 43
• 11-Sample 90th Percentile 1100 60 54 - 60 55 - 60 

Enterococci
• Monthly Geometric Mean 240 22.4 19.5 15.1

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 
concentration.

45 of 401



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 24, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 6b 

 
TITLE: Fiscal Year 2021 Third Quarter Managed Investment Portfolio Report (This is 

an Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Mark Carlson, Business Services Work Group Manager, CFO 
  
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
Discussion 
The attached report from PFM shows the District’s positions for the 3rd  Quarter of Fiscal Year 
2021 (ending March 31, 2021) 
 
This reporting format is intended to supplement the existing Monthly Operations Report 
provided by Staff for the months of January, February and March of 2021 and includes the 
following sections, which will be presented in detail: 
 

• Market Update 
• Investment Performance Review 
• Portfolio Transactions and Holdings 
• Disclosures 
• Glossary 
 

Representatives from PFM and Staff will be available to answer questions. 
 
Background 
In October of 2018, the Board authorized the General Manager to sign the Portfolio 
Management Services Contract with PFM Asset Management LLC (PFM) for investment 
management services. The strategy behind this decision was to maximize investment returns to 

46 of 401



the extent practicable, while maintaining compliance with all policy, legal and regulatory 
requirements for government agency investments. The provision of comprehensive portfolio 
reporting and current economic analyses were both deliverables in the contract negotiated 
with PFM. 
 
Previous Board Action 
None 
 
Attachment: 
Investment Performance Review for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021. 

47 of 401



Investment Performance Review

Client Management Team

44 Montgomery Street, 3rd Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104

415-982-5544

PFM Asset Management LLC

213 Market Street    

Harrisburg, PA 17101-2141

717-232-2723

Monique Spyke, Managing Director 

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

48 of 401



PFM Asset Management LLC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Executive Summary

 The U.S. Treasury yield curve steepened significantly in March. While Fed policy continues to anchor short-
term yields near zero, longer-term rates continued to move higher. The yield on the 3-month Treasury bill fell 2 
basis points (bps) to 0.02%, while the yield on the benchmark 10-year Treasury note rose 34 basis points 
during March to end at 1.74%. As a result, short-term U.S. Treasury index returns were only slightly positive 

for the quarter, whereas longer-duration indices were notably negative.  

 As markets start to see some positive signs amid a lower COVID-19 caseload, increased vaccine distribution, 
and additional stimulus measures, PFM continues to prioritize the safety and liquidity of the District’s portfolio 
above all else.

• During the quarter, we increased overall exposure to Treasuries and Asset-Backed Securities.

• We modestly reduced allocations to Federal Agencies as yield spreads tightened.

 While economic conditions appear to be improving, we remain vigilant in our conservative investment process. 
We will continue to monitor and evaluate market conditions for opportunities to add value; however, our current 
view is to exercise caution with regards to any non-government purchases until market conditions stabilize.

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Review

1
49 of 401



Market Update

50 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Market Update

Federal Reserve Anticipates Near-Zero Rates Through 2023

PFM Asset Management LLC

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%
Fed Participants’ Assessments of “Appropriate” Monetary Policy

Mar-21 FOMC Projections
Mar-21  Median

2021 Longer Term2022 2023

Source: Federal Reserve and Bloomberg. Individual dots represent each Fed members’ judgement of the midpoint of the appropriate target range for the federal funds rate at each year end. Fed funds futures 
as of March 18, 2021.

2
51 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Market Update

Treasury Yield Curve Steepened on Economic Optimism

PFM Asset Management LLC

0.02%

0.94%

1.74%

2.41%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3
M

1
Y

2
Y

3
Y

4
Y

5
Y

10
Y

30
Y

Yi
el

d

Maturity

U.S. Treasury Yield Curve

March 31, 2021
December 31, 2020

Long-term rates 
lifted by rising economic optimism 
and inflation expectations buoyed by 
fiscal stimulus measures

short-term rates 
anchored by 
accommodative 
Fed policy

Source: Bloomberg, as of March 31, 2021.
. 

3
52 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Market Update

Agency and MBS Yield Spreads Tighten, but Corporates and ABS Widen 

PFM Asset Management LLC

0.00%

0.05%

0.10%

0.15%

0.20%
Federal Agency Yield Spreads

-0.25%

0.25%

0.75%

1.25%

Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS)
Yield Spreads

Agency MBS AAA CMBS Index

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%
Asset-Backed Securities (ABS)

Yield Spreads

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%

0.60%
Corporate Notes A-AAA Yield Spreads

Source: ICE BofAML 1–5 year Indices via Bloomberg, MarketAxess and PFM as of March 31, 2021. Spreads on ABS and MBS are option-adjusted spreads of 0-5 year indices based on weighted average life; 
spreads on agencies are relative to comparable-maturity Treasuries. CMBS is Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities. 

4
53 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Market Update

First Quarter Returns Hurt by Rising Rates; Credit Underperforms

PFM Asset Management LLC

-0.52% -0.44%

-0.03%

-0.61%
-0.45%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

U.
S. 

Tre
as

ury

Ag
en

cy

AB
S

Co
rp 

A-
AA

A

Co
rp 

BB
B

1Q 2021

4.25%

3.35% 3.22%

5.41%

6.00%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

U.
S. 

Tre
as

ury

Ag
en

cy

AB
S

Co
rp 

A-
AA

A

Co
rp 

BB
B

Full Year 2020

1-5 Year Indices

Source: ICE BofAML Indices. ABS indices are 0-5 year, based on weighted average life. As of March 31, 2021. 

5
54 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Market Update

PFM Asset Management LLC

Important Disclosures

PFM is the marketing name for a group of affiliated companies providing a range of services. All services are provided 
through separate agreements with each company. This material is for general information purposes only and is not 
intended to provide specific advice or a specific recommendation. Investment advisory services are provided by PFM 
Asset Management LLC which is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940. Financial advisory services are provided by PFM Financial Advisors LLC and Public Financial 
Management, Inc. Both are registered municipal advisors with the SEC and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(MSRB) under the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010. Swap advisory services are provided by PFM Swap Advisors LLC which is 
registered as a municipal advisor with both the MSRB and SEC under the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010, and as a commodity 
trading advisor with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission. Additional applicable regulatory information is available 
upon request. Consulting services are provided through PFM Group Consulting LLC. Institutional purchasing card 
services are provided through PFM Financial Services LLC. PFM’s financial modeling platform for strategic forecasting is 
provided through PFM Solutions LLC. For more information regarding PFM’s services or entities, please visit 
www.pfm.com.
The views expressed within this material constitute the perspective and judgment of PFM at the time of distribution and 
are subject to change. Any forecast, projection, or prediction of the market, the economy, economic trends, and equity or 
fixed-income markets are based upon current opinion as of the date of issue and are also subject to change. Opinions 
and data presented are not necessarily indicative of future events or expected performance. Information contained herein 
is based on data obtained from recognized statistical services, issuer reports or communications, or other sources, 
believed to be reliable. No representation is made as to its accuracy or completeness.

6
55 of 401



Investment Performance Review

56 of 401



PFM Asset Management LLC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021 

Portfolio Compliance

 The portfolio is in compliance with the District’s Investment Policy and California Government Code.

Sector Allocation & Compliance

Market values, excluding accrued interest. Detail may not add to total due to rounding. 

Security Type Market Value % of 
Portfolio

Permitted by 
Policy In Compliance

U.S. Treasury $20,649,685 36.3% 100% 

Federal Agency $18,342,147 32.3% 100% 

Municipal Obligations $2,025,545 3.6% 100% 

Negotiable CDs $4,228,162 7.4% 30% 

Commercial Paper $998,729 1.7% 25% 

Corporate Notes $9,419,884 16.6% 30% 

Asset-Backed Securities $1,160,920 2.0% 20% 

Securities Sub-Total $56,825,071 100.0%

Accrued Interest $200,417

Total Investments $57,025,488 100.0%

7
57 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Snapshot

Portfolio Statistics

As of March 31, 2021

$55,856,000 

$57,025,488 

$56,825,072 

$200,417 

 - 

   Accrued Interest:

Cash:

Par Value:

Total Market Value:

   Security Market Value:

$55,954,721 

 0.43%

 1.45%

AAAverage Credit: *

Yield at Cost:

Amortized Cost:

Yield at Market:

Effective Duration: 2.11 Years

Average Maturity: 2.30 Years

1.7%

A

5.6%

A-

2.9%

A+

3.8%

A-1

1.1%

A-1+

2.6%

AA

8.3%

AA-

68.1%

AA+

1.2%

AAA

0.7%

BBB+

3.9%

Not Rated

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

20%

24%

28%

32%

0 - 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years > 5 Years

19.2%

22.6%

30.3%

9.6%

18.2%

0.0%

Maturity Distribution

2.0%

Asset-Backed

7.4%

Certificate

of Deposit

1.8%

Commercial

Paper

16.6%

Corporate

32.3%

Federal

Agency/GSE

3.6%

Municipal

36.3%

U.S.

Treasury

 PFM Asset Management LLC

* An average of each security’s credit rating assigned a numeric value and adjusted for its relative weighting in the portfolio.
**Securities held in the District's portfolio are in compliance with California Government Code and the District's Investment Policy.

Credit Quality (S&P Ratings)** Sector Allocation

8
58 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Performance

Portfolio Performance (Total Return)

12/31/20 06/30/2003/31/21 09/30/20

Quarter Ended Annualized Return

5 Year1 Year 3 YearPortfolio/Benchmark

Effective

Duration

1.27% - -0.16% 0.25% 1.20%-0.34%2.11

1.18% - -0.14% 0.23% 1.18%-0.36%-

-0.04% - -0.02% 0.11% 0.23%

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

 Net of Fees*

ICE BofAML 0-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index**
-0.39%2.12

1.31% 0.05% - -0.14% 0.14% 0.97%Difference (Gross)

Difference (Net)  0.03% 0.12% 0.12% 0.95% 1.22% - -

-0.4%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

 03/31/21  12/31/20  09/30/20  06/30/20  1 Year  3 Year  5 Year

-0.34%

0.16%
0.25%

1.20%
1.27%

-0.39%

0.02%
0.11%

0.23%

-0.04%

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
tu

rn

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT ICE BofAML 0-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index**

 PFM Asset Management LLC

Portfolio performance is gross of fees unless otherwise indicated. 
*Fees were calculated based on average assets during the period at the contractual rate. 
**Intercontinental Exchange Bank of America Merrill Lynch 0-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index.

9
59 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Performance

Portfolio Earnings

Quarter-Ended March 31, 2021

Market Value Basis Accrual (Amortized Cost) Basis

Net Purchases/Sales

Change in Value

Interest Earned

$57,445,058.26 

($220,359.94)

($399,626.82)

$205,339.09 

($194,287.73)

$56,825,071.50 

$56,123,387.20 

($220,359.94)

$51,693.80 

$205,339.09 

$257,032.89 

$55,954,721.06 

Portfolio Earnings

Beginning Value (12/31/2020)

Ending Value (03/31/2021)

 PFM Asset Management LLC 10
60 of 401



PFM Asset Management LLC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021 

Portfolio Compliance

Periodic Performance

Periodic Performance

Current Quarter Q4 2020 Q3 2020 Since Inception 
3/31/2019

Net Accrual Earnings $205,339 $212,403 $238,551 $2,027,541

Change in Market Value -$399,627 -$120,207 -$96,353 $3,268,955

Total Dollar Return -$194,288 $92,196 $142,198 $3,544,499

Fees $12,183 $12,435 $12,423 $101,957

Fees in Basis Points* 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.13%

Net Dollar Return -$206,471 $79,761 $129,775 $3,442,542

Net of Fees Return -0.36% 0.14% 0.23% 3.09%

11
61 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Composition

Sector/Issuer Distribution

As of March 31, 2021

 % of SectorSector / Issuer Market Value ($) % of Total Portfolio

Asset-Backed

CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST  0.5% 24.0% 278,842 

HONDA AUTO RECEIVABLES  0.8% 39.6% 459,985 

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP  0.7% 36.4% 422,093 

 100.0%  2.0% 1,160,920 Sector Total

Certificate of Deposit

AMERICAN EXPRESS CO  0.4% 6.0% 252,731 

BELMONT SAVINGS BANK  0.4% 6.0% 252,822 

BMW FINANCIAL SERVICES NA LLC  0.4% 6.0% 251,678 

CREDIT AGRICOLE SA  1.0% 13.6% 575,087 

CREDIT SUISSE GROUP RK  0.8% 10.3% 434,930 

DISCOVER FINANCIAL SERVICES  0.4% 5.9% 250,970 

DNB ASA  0.8% 10.5% 442,882 

PONCE DE LEON FEDERAL BK  0.4% 5.9% 249,717 

SOCIETE GENERALE  1.0% 13.6% 576,675 

STATE BANK OF INDIA  0.4% 5.9% 251,371 

SUMITOMO MITSUI FINANCIAL GROUP INC  0.8% 10.3% 437,426 

SYNCHRONY BANK  0.4% 6.0% 251,874 

 100.0%  7.4% 4,228,162 Sector Total

 PFM Asset Management LLC 12
62 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Composition

 % of SectorSector / Issuer Market Value ($) % of Total Portfolio

Commercial Paper

MITSUBISHI UFJ FINANCIAL GROUP INC  1.8% 100.0% 998,729 

 100.0%  1.8% 998,729 Sector Total

Corporate

AMAZON.COM INC  1.2% 7.4% 700,351 

AMERICAN EXPRESS CO  1.8% 10.8% 1,020,172 

AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE  0.8% 4.5% 427,224 

APPLE INC  0.6% 3.5% 328,544 

BANK OF AMERICA CO  0.9% 5.7% 539,059 

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO  0.3% 2.1% 195,941 

CHEVRON CORPORATION  1.8% 10.6% 1,001,246 

EXXON MOBIL CORP  1.8% 10.9% 1,025,174 

GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC  0.7% 4.4% 413,961 

JP MORGAN CHASE & CO  1.2% 7.0% 658,021 

PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP  1.0% 6.3% 594,324 

STATE STREET CORPORATION  0.9% 5.6% 531,026 

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP  0.8% 4.7% 440,830 

TRUIST FIN CORP  1.0% 5.7% 541,251 

WAL-MART STORES INC  1.8% 10.6% 1,002,760 

 100.0%  16.6% 9,419,884 Sector Total

Federal Agency/GSE

FANNIE MAE  14.2% 44.1% 8,092,393 

 PFM Asset Management LLC 13
63 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Composition

 % of SectorSector / Issuer Market Value ($) % of Total Portfolio

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS  5.7% 17.8% 3,257,744 

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS  4.2% 12.9% 2,359,492 

FREDDIE MAC  8.2% 25.3% 4,632,518 

 100.0%  32.3% 18,342,147 Sector Total

Municipal

CITY OF RIVERSIDE  0.9% 24.7% 501,170 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  1.8% 50.4% 1,021,790 

VICTOR VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT  0.9% 24.8% 502,585 

 100.0%  3.6% 2,025,545 Sector Total

U.S. Treasury

UNITED STATES TREASURY  36.3% 100.0% 20,649,685 

 100.0%  36.3% 20,649,685 Sector Total

 100.0% 56,825,072 Portfolio Total 100.0%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 14
64 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Outlook

PFM Asset Management LLC

Investment Strategy Outlook

 The vaccine rollout, accommodative monetary policy, and the new $1.9 trillion of fiscal stimulus all point to continued 
improvement in U.S. economic fundamentals. GDP projections for 2021 have been revised up several times, with current 
forecasts pointing to growth of 6% or more this year. That optimism, however, has also translated into increased inflation 
expectations, particularly in the near term, which is likely to continue to put upward pressure on longer term rates. 

 Our outlook for major investment-grade sectors includes the following:
• Treasuries: Current allocations provide opportunities to move into other sectors should spreads widen.
• Agencies: There is limited room for further spread tightening from current levels. With spreads likely to remain near zero

over the coming quarter, the sector offers very little pickup compared to Treasuries. We will likely continue reducing
allocations in favor of other opportunities.

• Corporates: Continued economic recovery, supportive monetary policy, lower expected supply, and strong global
demand for U.S. credit will serve as support for the corporate sector. Credit spreads have widened from their extremely
tight levels, providing some yield pickup, but spreads remain well below long-term averages. As a result, we will
continue to be selective in seeking new additions to the sector.

• Asset-Backed Securities (ABS): New issue activity has been elevated to start 2021; however, investor appetite remains
robust and yield spreads remain near their recent floor. Collateral performance in consumer sectors has been stronger
than expected and the strengthening of the economic expansion should continue to be a favorable tailwind. We will look
to maintain holdings in the sector but will evaluate new issues to offset paydowns.

• Taxable Municipals: Although new issuance and secondary levels have become more expensive recently, we will likely
maintain current allocations as the sector has been a boon for portfolio performance. Tax season may influence some
spread widening in the sector, but this has yet to materialize into any significant spread movement at this time.

15
65 of 401



Portfolio Transactions and Holdings

66 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade 

Date

Settle

 Date

Maturity

DatePar ($) CUSIP Security Description

Transact

Amt ($)

Yield

at Market

   Realized 

    G/L  (BV)Coupon

BUY

1/11/21 1/12/21  1,005,000 912828YM6 US TREASURY NOTES 10/31/24  1,052,519.09  0.33%1.50%

1/20/21 1/27/21  90,000 14316NAC3 CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/25  89,982.22  0.34%0.34%

1/22/21 1/25/21  755,000 91282CBC4 US TREASURY NOTES 12/31/25  753,042.60  0.43%0.37%

1/22/21 1/25/21  793,000 9127963W7 US TREASURY BILL 2/4/21  792,987.33  0.06%0.00%

2/4/21 2/4/21  715,000 9128286A3 US TREASURY NOTES 1/31/26  791,371.65  0.46%2.62%

2/12/21 2/17/21  380,000 38148LAE6 GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC CORPORATE NOTES 5/22/25  427,892.98  0.94%3.75%

2/17/21 2/24/21  150,000 43813GAC5 HAROT 2021-1 A3 4/21/25  149,997.26  0.27%0.27%

2/22/21 2/22/21  1,000,000 62479LYK5 MUFG BANK LTD/NY COMM PAPER 11/19/21  998,725.00  0.17%0.00%

3/4/21 3/5/21  1,260,000 91282CBQ3 US TREASURY NOTES 2/28/26  1,243,055.91  0.78%0.50%

3/19/21 3/23/21  435,000 22552G3C2 CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK CERT DEPOS 3/17/23  435,000.00  0.59%0.59%

 6,583,000  6,734,574.04Total  BUY

INTEREST

1/8/21 1/8/21  435,000 86565CKU2 SUMITOMO MITSUI BANK NY CERT DEPOS 7/8/22  1,505.58 0.70%

1/10/21 1/10/21  1,095,000 3135G05G4 FANNIE MAE NOTES 7/10/23  1,368.75 0.25%

1/15/21 1/15/21  185,000 14315XAC2 CARMX 2020-1 A3 12/16/24  291.38 1.89%

1/15/21 1/15/21  415,000 89232HAC9 TAOT 2020-A A3 5/15/24  574.08 1.66%

1/15/21 1/15/21  1,000,000 9128287C8 US TREASURY NOTES 7/15/22  8,750.00 1.75%

1/21/21 1/21/21  305,000 43813RAC1 HAROT 2020-1 A3 4/22/24  409.21 1.61%

1/21/21 1/21/21  525,000 3137EAEU9 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 7/21/25  973.44 0.37%

1/24/21 1/24/21  500,000 06053FAA7 BANK OF AMERICA CORP NOTES 7/24/23  10,250.00 4.10%

1/26/21 1/26/21  247,000 8562846A7 STATE BANK OF INDIA CD 1/26/22  2,801.59 2.25%

1/26/21 1/26/21  259,000 3136G46V0 FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE) 1/26/24  200.73 0.31%

1/30/21 1/30/21  249,000 732333AJ8 PONCE DE LEON FEDERAL BK CD 5/28/21  391.24 1.85%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 16
67 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Trade 

Date

Settle

 Date

Maturity

DatePar ($) CUSIP Security Description

Transact

Amt ($)

Yield

at Market

   Realized 

    G/L  (BV)Coupon

1/31/21 1/31/21  1,035,000 912828S92 US TREASURY NOTES 7/31/23  6,468.75 1.25%

2/1/21 2/1/21  500,000 92603PER9 VICTOR VALLEY CCD, CA TXBL GO BONDS 8/1/21  4,740.00 1.89%

2/12/21 2/12/21  1,035,000 3137EAEP0 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 2/12/25  7,762.50 1.50%

2/13/21 2/13/21  430,000 89236TGT6 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP CORP NOTES 2/13/25  3,870.00 1.80%

2/14/21 2/14/21  1,000,000 3135G05S8 FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE) 8/14/25  2,500.00 0.50%

2/14/21 2/16/21  570,000 83369XDL9 SOCIETE GENERALE NY CERT DEPOS 2/14/22  5,187.00 1.80%

2/15/21 2/15/21  375,000 110122DC9 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO CORPORATE NOTES 8/15/25  7,265.63 3.87%

2/15/21 2/15/21  90,000 14316NAC3 CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/25  15.30 0.34%

2/15/21 2/15/21  185,000 14315XAC2 CARMX 2020-1 A3 12/16/24  291.38 1.89%

2/15/21 2/15/21  1,045,000 9128284W7 US TREASURY NOTES 8/15/21  14,368.75 2.75%

2/15/21 2/15/21  415,000 89232HAC9 TAOT 2020-A A3 5/15/24  574.08 1.66%

2/17/21 2/17/21  775,000 3130AJ7E3 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTES 2/17/23  5,328.13 1.37%

2/21/21 2/21/21  305,000 43813RAC1 HAROT 2020-1 A3 4/22/24  409.21 1.61%

2/22/21 2/22/21  675,000 023135AW6 AMAZON.COM INC BONDS 2/22/23  8,100.00 2.40%

2/24/21 2/24/21  247,000 87165ELT2 SYNCHRONY BANK CD 2/24/22  2,863.85 2.30%

2/24/21 2/24/21  520,000 3137EAEV7 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 8/24/23  660.83 0.25%

2/25/21 2/25/21  970,000 3135G05X7 FANNIE MAE NOTES 8/25/25  1,798.54 0.37%

2/28/21 2/28/21  485,000 912828W55 US TREASURY NOTES 2/28/22  4,546.88 1.87%

2/28/21 2/28/21  2,000,000 912828W48 US TREASURY NOTES 2/29/24  21,250.00 2.12%

2/28/21 2/28/21  249,000 732333AJ8 PONCE DE LEON FEDERAL BK CD 5/28/21  353.38 1.85%

3/1/21 3/1/21  985,000 30231GAR3 EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION CORP NOTES 3/1/23  13,425.55 2.72%

3/1/21 3/1/21  0 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND  0.06 

3/3/21 3/3/21  1,000,000 0258M0EG0 AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT (CALLABLE) NOTES 3/3/22  13,500.00 2.70%

3/10/21 3/10/21  247,000 05580AGR9 BMW BANK NORTH AMERICA CD 3/10/22  2,633.43 2.15%

3/15/21 3/15/21  90,000 14316NAC3 CARMX 2021-1 A3 12/15/25  25.50 0.34%

3/15/21 3/15/21  415,000 89232HAC9 TAOT 2020-A A3 5/15/24  574.08 1.66%

3/15/21 3/15/21  185,000 14315XAC2 CARMX 2020-1 A3 12/16/24  291.38 1.89%

3/16/21 3/16/21  110,000 46647PBS4 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO CORPORATE NOTES 9/16/24  359.15 0.65%

3/21/21 3/21/21  150,000 43813GAC5 HAROT 2021-1 A3 4/21/25  30.38 0.27%

3/21/21 3/21/21  1,625,000 3133EMAM4 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK (CALLABLE) 9/21/23  2,031.25 0.25%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 17
68 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Trade 

Date

Settle

 Date

Maturity

DatePar ($) CUSIP Security Description

Transact

Amt ($)

Yield

at Market

   Realized 

    G/L  (BV)Coupon

3/21/21 3/21/21  248,000 080515BV0 BELMONT SAVINGS BANK CD 3/21/22  2,644.09 2.15%

3/21/21 3/21/21  305,000 43813RAC1 HAROT 2020-1 A3 4/22/24  409.21 1.61%

3/23/21 3/23/21  795,000 3137EAEX3 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 9/23/25  1,474.06 0.37%

3/30/21 3/30/21  249,000 732333AJ8 PONCE DE LEON FEDERAL BK CD 5/28/21  391.24 1.85%

3/31/21 3/31/21  175,000 912828Q29 US TREASURY NOTES 3/31/23  1,312.50 1.50%

3/31/21 3/31/21  730,000 912828W71 US TREASURY NOTES 3/31/24  7,756.25 2.12%

3/31/21 3/31/21  1,545,000 912828T26 US TREASURY NOTES 9/30/23  10,621.88 1.37%

3/31/21 3/31/21  835,000 912828L57 US TREASURY NOTES 9/30/22  7,306.25 1.75%

 27,810,000  190,656.47Total  INTEREST

MATURITY

2/4/21 2/4/21  793,000 9127963W7 US TREASURY BILL 2/4/21  793,000.00  0.00 0.00%

2/22/21 2/22/21  1,000,000 62479LPN9 MUFG BANK LTD/NY COMM PAPER 2/22/21  1,000,000.00  0.00 0.00%

 1,793,000  1,793,000.00  0.00Total  MATURITY

SELL

1/11/21 1/12/21  1,000,000 3135G0W66 FANNIE MAE NOTES 10/15/24  1,053,777.08  51,493.94 1.62%

1/22/21 1/27/21  90,000 912828B58 US TREASURY NOTES 1/31/21  90,960.07  20.34 2.12%

1/22/21 1/25/21  785,000 912828B58 US TREASURY NOTES 1/31/21  793,375.29  250.77 2.12%

1/22/21 1/25/21  750,000 912828B58 US TREASURY NOTES 1/31/21  758,001.87  239.59 2.12%

2/16/21 2/17/21  420,000 3135G03U5 FANNIE MAE NOTES 4/22/25  423,753.34  3,638.17 0.62%

2/18/21 2/23/21  198,000 110122DC9 BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO CORPORATE NOTES 8/15/25  224,102.56  124.90 3.87%

2/19/21 2/24/21  147,000 9127963H0 US TREASURY BILL 6/17/21  146,983.85  64.60 0.00%

3/4/21 3/5/21  1,250,000 9127963H0 US TREASURY BILL 6/17/21  1,249,866.39  498.34 0.00%

3/19/21 3/23/21  435,000 22549L6F7 CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK CERT DEPOS 2/1/22  437,302.17  869.57 0.52%

 PFM Asset Management LLC 18
69 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

Trade 

Date

Settle

 Date

Maturity

DatePar ($) CUSIP Security Description

Transact

Amt ($)

Yield

at Market

   Realized 

    G/L  (BV)Coupon

 5,075,000  5,178,122.62  57,200.22Total  SELL

 PFM Asset Management LLC 19
70 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 10/25/2019 10/28/2019  1,064,757.03  3,572.34  1,049,089.74  1,055,613.231.68US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/15/2018 2.750% 08/15/2021

9128284W7  1,045,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/15/2020 6/16/2020  562,396.49  3,225.96  555,662.31  556,187.500.20US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2016 1.750% 11/30/2021

912828U65  550,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/1/2019 4/2/2019  479,259.57  790.76  483,201.73  492,881.252.30US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/28/2017 1.875% 02/28/2022

912828W55  485,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  703,454.69  3,792.71  707,514.09  727,860.902.42US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2015 2.125% 06/30/2022

912828XG0  710,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/31/2019 7/31/2019  998,789.06  3,674.03  999,473.02  1,021,093.801.79US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 07/15/2019 1.750% 07/15/2022

9128287C8  1,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  816,016.80  39.92  826,950.53  855,222.702.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2015 1.750% 09/30/2022

912828L57  835,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  1,157,340.24  6,249.97  1,164,146.46  1,210,218.752.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2015 2.125% 12/31/2022

912828N30  1,170,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  168,799.81  7.17  171,929.39  179,648.442.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2016 1.500% 03/31/2023

912828Q29  175,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  1,325,866.99  4,787.24  1,353,976.92  1,421,356.252.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2016 1.375% 06/30/2023

912828S35  1,385,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/1/2019 4/2/2019  990,365.62  2,144.34  1,010,974.79  1,059,904.692.30US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 08/01/2016 1.250% 07/31/2023

912828S92  1,035,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  1,475,112.89  58.04  1,506,488.19  1,588,935.942.44US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 09/30/2016 1.375% 09/30/2023

912828T26  1,545,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  1,982,968.75  11,312.15  1,990,212.15  2,106,875.002.44US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/03/2017 2.250% 12/31/2023

912828V23  2,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/19/2019 3/20/2019  1,970,625.00  3,695.65  1,982,703.38  2,103,750.002.44US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/28/2017 2.125% 02/29/2024

912828W48  2,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/2/2020 3/2/2020  767,412.50  42.38  757,494.42  768,439.030.84US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/31/2017 2.125% 03/31/2024

912828W71  730,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/3/2019 6/7/2019  592,996.09  4,954.70  591,884.07  619,315.631.89US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 05/01/2017 2.000% 04/30/2024

912828X70  590,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 20
71 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

U.S. Treasury Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 7/1/2019 7/3/2019  474,846.87  2,362.98  473,151.53  493,793.751.78US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/30/2017 2.000% 06/30/2024

912828XX3  470,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/11/2021 1/12/2021  1,049,479.10  6,329.83  1,046,947.51  1,039,232.810.33US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 10/31/2019 1.500% 10/31/2024

912828YM6  1,005,000.00

AA+ Aaa 1/22/2021 1/25/2021  752,847.07  711.72  752,925.97  737,304.690.43US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2020 0.375% 12/31/2025

91282CBC4  755,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/4/2021 2/4/2021  791,164.26  3,110.84  788,823.32  773,875.820.46US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 01/31/2019 2.625% 01/31/2026

9128286A3  715,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/4/2021 3/5/2021  1,242,970.31  547.83  1,243,222.81  1,235,193.750.78US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/28/2021 0.500% 02/28/2026

91282CBQ3  1,260,000.00

 1.83  20,046,703.93 19,456,772.33 61,410.56 19,460,000.00  19,367,469.14Security Type Sub-Total

U.S. Treasury Bill

A-1+ P-1 6/23/2020 6/24/2020  601,950.61  0.00  602,774.29  602,980.640.18US TREASURY BILL

      --      0.000% 06/17/2021

9127963H0  603,000.00

 0.18  602,980.64 602,774.29 0.00 603,000.00  601,950.61Security Type Sub-Total

Municipal Bond / Note

AA NR 6/1/2017 6/1/2017  500,000.00  3,541.67  500,000.00  501,170.002.13RIVERSIDE, CA TXBL PO BONDS

DTD 05/31/2017 2.125% 06/01/2021

769036BA1  500,000.00

AA- Aa3 12/28/2016 12/28/2016  490,150.00  1,580.00  499,283.42  502,585.002.35VICTOR VALLEY CCD, CA TXBL GO 

BONDS

DTD 05/05/2016 1.896% 08/01/2021

92603PER9  500,000.00

AA- Aa2 4/27/2017 4/27/2017  1,010,000.00  11,835.00  1,002,027.78  1,021,790.002.15CA ST TXBL GO BONDS

DTD 04/27/2017 2.367% 04/01/2022

13063DAD0  1,000,000.00

 2.19  2,025,545.00 2,001,311.20 16,956.67 2,000,000.00  2,000,150.00Security Type Sub-Total

Federal Agency Bond / Note

 PFM Asset Management LLC 21
72 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Federal Agency Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 4/26/2017 4/26/2017  1,000,000.00  8,611.11  1,000,000.00  1,011,083.002.00FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTES

DTD 04/26/2017 2.000% 10/26/2021

3130AB3D6  1,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 3/13/2020 3/16/2020  993,619.50  8,891.67  981,620.79  987,332.930.68FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/10/2017 1.875% 04/05/2022

3135G0T45  970,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/8/2020 6/9/2020  1,631,730.00  1,169.93  1,633,055.92  1,635,477.420.33FEDERAL FARM CREDIT NOTES 

(CALLABLE)

DTD 06/09/2020 0.230% 06/09/2022

3133ELH64  1,635,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/20/2020 2/21/2020  773,574.00  1,302.43  774,102.87  792,406.501.44FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS NOTES

DTD 02/21/2020 1.375% 02/17/2023

3130AJ7E3  775,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/29/2020 5/29/2020  495,688.05  752.81  495,490.82  496,847.340.33FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 05/07/2020 0.375% 05/05/2023

3137EAER6  495,000.00

AA+ Aaa 5/20/2020 5/22/2020  862,396.35  774.90  863,142.97  865,991.290.35FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 05/22/2020 0.250% 05/22/2023

3135G04Q3  865,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/24/2020 6/26/2020  777,722.40  514.58  778,302.72  780,758.940.35FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 06/26/2020 0.250% 06/26/2023

3137EAES4  780,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/8/2020 7/10/2020  1,092,645.75  615.94  1,093,215.50  1,095,236.520.32FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 07/10/2020 0.250% 07/10/2023

3135G05G4  1,095,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/19/2020 8/21/2020  519,469.60  133.61  519,577.32  519,994.280.28FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 08/21/2020 0.250% 08/24/2023

3137EAEV7  520,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/7/2020 10/9/2020  1,622,237.50  112.85  1,622,683.81  1,622,266.750.31FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 

(CALLABLE)

DTD 09/21/2020 0.250% 09/21/2023

3133EMAM4  1,625,000.00

AA+ Aaa 12/2/2020 12/4/2020  469,534.70  381.88  469,584.84  469,493.810.28FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 12/04/2020 0.250% 12/04/2023

3137EAFA2  470,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/23/2020 10/26/2020  258,896.40  144.97  258,910.10  258,338.000.32FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 10/26/2020 0.310% 01/26/2024

3136G46V0  259,000.00

AA+ Aaa 2/13/2020 2/14/2020  1,034,203.05  2,113.13  1,034,382.96  1,068,528.831.52FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 02/14/2020 1.500% 02/12/2025

3137EAEP0  1,035,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/15/2020 4/16/2020  557,222.40  1,298.89  557,755.38  556,002.160.60FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK NOTES

DTD 04/16/2020 0.500% 04/14/2025

3130AJHU6  560,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 22
73 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Federal Agency Bond / Note

AA+ Aaa 4/28/2020 4/28/2020  124,763.75  345.05  124,807.63  124,777.120.66FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/24/2020 0.625% 04/22/2025

3135G03U5  125,000.00

AA+ Aaa 4/22/2020 4/24/2020  454,062.70  1,255.99  454,238.44  454,188.740.67FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 04/24/2020 0.625% 04/22/2025

3135G03U5  455,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/26/2020 10/28/2020  1,011,494.80  1,458.89  1,011,357.95  999,983.830.47FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  1,010,000.00

AA+ Aaa 6/17/2020 6/19/2020  863,209.45  1,249.44  863,490.21  856,421.800.54FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 06/19/2020 0.500% 06/17/2025

3135G04Z3  865,000.00

AA+ Aaa 7/21/2020 7/23/2020  522,385.50  382.81  522,746.71  516,023.030.48FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 07/23/2020 0.375% 07/21/2025

3137EAEU9  525,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/24/2020 8/24/2020  998,400.00  652.78  998,593.83  985,068.000.53FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 08/14/2020 0.500% 08/14/2025

3135G05S8  1,000,000.00

AA+ Aaa 8/25/2020 8/27/2020  552,402.60  208.12  552,711.61  545,542.800.47FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 08/27/2020 0.375% 08/25/2025

3135G05X7  555,000.00

AA+ Aaa 10/21/2020 10/22/2020  412,754.85  155.63  412,959.30  407,928.400.49FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 08/27/2020 0.375% 08/25/2025

3135G05X7  415,000.00

AA+ Aaa 9/23/2020 9/25/2020  792,607.05  66.25  792,853.69  780,872.060.44FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 09/25/2020 0.375% 09/23/2025

3137EAEX3  795,000.00

AA+ Aaa 11/9/2020 11/12/2020  518,138.40  1,003.89  518,281.52  511,583.280.57FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 11/12/2020 0.500% 11/07/2025

3135G06G3  520,000.00

 0.62  18,342,146.83 18,333,866.89 33,597.55 18,349,000.00  18,339,158.80Security Type Sub-Total

Corporate Note

AA- Aa2 5/10/2017 5/10/2017  999,500.00  7,875.00  999,963.04  1,001,246.002.11CHEVRON CORP (CALLABLE) NOTES

DTD 05/16/2016 2.100% 05/16/2021

166764BG4  1,000,000.00

A A1 3/20/2019 3/22/2019  520,566.00  3,789.50  529,426.07  531,025.552.81STATE STREET CORP NOTES

DTD 05/19/2016 1.950% 05/19/2021

857477AV5  530,000.00

A- A2 5/15/2017 5/15/2017  1,013,279.67  2,100.00  1,002,352.09  1,020,172.002.41AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT 

(CALLABLE) NOTES

DTD 03/03/2017 2.700% 03/03/2022

0258M0EG0  1,000,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 23
74 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Corporate Note

A+ A1 5/3/2019 5/10/2019  579,686.80  6,019.92  579,884.55  594,323.682.67PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 05/10/2019 2.650% 05/10/2022

69371RP83  580,000.00

A- A3 3/20/2019 3/22/2019  525,714.00  4,492.40  525,255.93  541,250.853.01BRANCH BANKING & TRUST 

(CALLABLE) CORP N

DTD 03/18/2019 3.050% 06/20/2022

05531FBG7  525,000.00

AA- A2 4/11/2019 4/15/2019  668,499.75  1,755.00  671,807.54  700,350.982.66AMAZON.COM INC BONDS

DTD 06/06/2018 2.400% 02/22/2023

023135AW6  675,000.00

AA- Aa2 6/13/2019 6/14/2019  1,001,400.25  2,237.59  993,454.11  1,025,174.212.26EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION CORP 

NOTES

DTD 03/03/2016 2.726% 03/01/2023

30231GAR3  985,000.00

AA Aa2 5/21/2020 5/26/2020  1,015,701.10  11,620.21  999,328.87  1,002,760.450.70WAL MART STORES INC GLOBAL NT 

(CALLABLE)

DTD 04/11/2013 2.550% 04/11/2023

931142DH3  965,000.00

A- A3 1/7/2020 1/10/2020  414,846.45  3,169.56  414,902.89  427,224.241.96AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE

DTD 01/10/2020 1.950% 05/10/2023

02665WDH1  415,000.00

AA+ Aa1 5/4/2020 5/11/2020  324,116.00  947.92  324,378.37  328,544.450.84APPLE INC CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 05/11/2020 0.750% 05/11/2023

037833DV9  325,000.00

A- A2 3/20/2019 3/22/2019  517,970.25  5,236.88  521,401.77  547,957.203.04JPMORGAN CHASE & CO (CALLABLE) 

CORP NOTE

DTD 05/18/2016 2.700% 05/18/2023

46625HRL6  525,000.00

A- A2 3/20/2019 3/22/2019  520,405.00  3,815.28  510,865.50  539,059.003.09BANK OF AMERICA CORP NOTES

DTD 07/23/2013 4.100% 07/24/2023

06053FAA7  500,000.00

A- A2 9/9/2020 9/16/2020  110,000.00  29.93  110,000.00  110,064.240.65JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 09/16/2020 0.653% 09/16/2024

46647PBS4  110,000.00

A+ A1 5/20/2020 5/26/2020  252,442.50  600.00  252,003.30  256,296.501.58TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 02/13/2020 1.800% 02/13/2025

89236TGT6  250,000.00

A+ A1 5/20/2020 5/26/2020  181,758.60  432.00  181,442.38  184,533.481.58TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP CORP 

NOTES

DTD 02/13/2020 1.800% 02/13/2025

89236TGT6  180,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 24
75 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

Corporate Note

BBB+ A2 2/12/2021 2/17/2021  424,528.40  5,106.25  423,222.31  413,960.600.94GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 05/22/2015 3.750% 05/22/2025

38148LAE6  380,000.00

A+ A2 9/29/2020 9/30/2020  202,254.36  876.40  199,516.48  195,940.770.88BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 07/15/2020 3.875% 08/15/2025

110122DC9  177,000.00

 2.12  9,419,884.20 9,239,205.20 60,103.84 9,122,000.00  9,272,669.13Security Type Sub-Total

Commercial Paper

A-1 P-1 2/22/2021 2/22/2021  998,725.00  0.00  998,904.44  998,729.000.17MUFG BANK LTD/NY COMM PAPER

DTD 02/22/2021 0.000% 11/19/2021

62479LYK5  1,000,000.00

 0.17  998,729.00 998,904.44 0.00 1,000,000.00  998,725.00Security Type Sub-Total

Certificate of Deposit - FDIC Insured

NR NR 5/31/2017 5/31/2017  249,000.00  25.24  249,000.00  249,717.371.85PONCE DE LEON FEDERAL BK CD

DTD 05/31/2017 1.850% 05/28/2021

732333AJ8  249,000.00

NR NR 12/29/2016 12/29/2016  247,000.00  1,416.02  247,000.00  250,969.542.25DISCOVER BANK CD

DTD 12/29/2016 2.250% 12/29/2021

254672Y36  247,000.00

NR NR 1/26/2017 1/26/2017  247,000.00  989.69  247,000.00  251,370.912.25STATE BANK OF INDIA CD

DTD 01/26/2017 2.250% 01/26/2022

8562846A7  247,000.00

NR NR 2/28/2017 2/28/2017  247,000.00  560.32  247,000.00  251,873.562.30SYNCHRONY BANK CD

DTD 02/24/2017 2.300% 02/24/2022

87165ELT2  247,000.00

NR NR 3/10/2017 3/10/2017  247,000.00  320.08  247,000.00  251,677.692.15BMW BANK NORTH AMERICA CD

DTD 03/10/2017 2.150% 03/10/2022

05580AGR9  247,000.00

NR NR 3/20/2017 3/20/2017  248,000.00  160.69  248,000.00  252,822.112.15BELMONT SAVINGS BANK CD

DTD 03/20/2017 2.150% 03/21/2022

080515BV0  248,000.00

NR NR 4/5/2017 4/5/2017  247,000.00  2,951.14  247,000.00  252,731.142.45AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT CD

DTD 04/05/2017 2.450% 04/05/2022

02587DN38  247,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 25
76 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

 2.20  1,761,162.32 1,732,000.00 6,423.18 1,732,000.00  1,732,000.00Security Type Sub-Total

Certificate of Deposit

A-1 P-1 4/3/2019 4/4/2019  575,000.00  16,272.50  575,000.00  575,087.402.83CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB NY CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 04/04/2019 2.830% 04/02/2021

22535CDU2  575,000.00

A-1 P-1 2/14/2020 2/19/2020  570,000.00  1,339.50  570,000.00  576,674.701.80SOCIETE GENERALE NY CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 02/19/2020 1.800% 02/14/2022

83369XDL9  570,000.00

A A1 7/10/2020 7/14/2020  435,000.00  702.04  435,000.00  437,426.000.70SUMITOMO MITSUI BANK NY CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 07/14/2020 0.700% 07/08/2022

86565CKU2  435,000.00

AA- Aa2 12/5/2019 12/6/2019  430,000.00  2,924.00  430,000.00  442,881.512.03DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CD

DTD 12/06/2019 2.040% 12/02/2022

23341VZT1  430,000.00

A+ Aa3 3/19/2021 3/23/2021  435,000.00  64.16  435,000.00  434,929.970.59CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK CERT 

DEPOS

DTD 03/23/2021 0.590% 03/17/2023

22552G3C2  435,000.00

 1.67  2,466,999.58 2,445,000.00 21,302.20 2,445,000.00  2,445,000.00Security Type Sub-Total

Asset-Backed Security

NR Aaa 2/19/2020 2/26/2020  304,940.22  136.40  304,955.98  310,274.061.61HAROT 2020-1 A3

DTD 02/26/2020 1.610% 04/22/2024

43813RAC1  305,000.00

AAA Aaa 2/4/2020 2/12/2020  414,970.04  306.18  414,978.02  422,093.351.66TAOT 2020-A A3

DTD 02/12/2020 1.660% 05/15/2024

89232HAC9  415,000.00

AAA NR 1/14/2020 1/22/2020  184,963.70  155.40  184,972.52  189,159.561.89CARMX 2020-1 A3

DTD 01/22/2020 1.890% 12/16/2024

14315XAC2  185,000.00

NR Aaa 2/17/2021 2/24/2021  149,997.26  11.25  149,997.33  149,710.970.27HAROT 2021-1 A3

DTD 02/24/2021 0.270% 04/21/2025

43813GAC5  150,000.00

AAA NR 1/20/2021 1/27/2021  89,982.22  13.60  89,982.86  89,682.060.34CARMX 2021-1 A3

DTD 01/27/2021 0.340% 12/15/2025

14316NAC3  90,000.00

 PFM Asset Management LLC 26
77 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Portfolio Holdings

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Original 

Cost

Settle 

Date

Trade 

Date

Moody's

Rating

S&P 

Rating

Accrued

Interest

Amortized

Cost

Market

Value

  YTM 

at Cost

Security Type/Description

CUSIP ParDated Date/Coupon/Maturity

 1.41  1,160,920.00 1,144,886.71 622.83 1,145,000.00  1,144,853.44Security Type Sub-Total

 55,901,976.12 55,856,000.00  200,416.83  55,954,721.06  56,825,071.50 1.45 Managed Account  Sub Total

$200,416.83 $55,954,721.06 $56,825,071.50 Securities Sub-Total

Accrued Interest $200,416.83 

Total Investments $57,025,488.33 

 1.45%$55,856,000.00 $55,901,976.12

Bolded items are forward settling trades.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 27
78 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Appendix

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

This material is based on information obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable and available to the public; however, PFM Asset Management LLC cannot 

guarantee its accuracy, completeness or suitability. This material is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or a specific 

recommendation. All statements as to what will or may happen under certain circumstances are based on assumptions, some, but not all of which, are noted in the 

presentation. Assumptions may or may not be proven correct as actual events occur, and results may depend on events outside of your or our control. Changes in 

assumptions may have a material effect on results. Past performance does not necessarily reflect and is not a guaranty of future results. The information contained in 

this presentation is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities.

Dime

Ã Market values that include accrued interest are derived from closing bid prices as of the last business day of the month as supplied by Refinitiv, Bloomberg,  

     or Telerate. Where prices are not available from generally recognized sources, the securities are priced using a yield based matrix system to arrive at an estimated 

     market value.  

Ã In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, information is presented on a trade date basis; forward settling purchases are included in the monthly  

     balances, and forward settling sales are excluded.

Ã Performance is presented in accordance with the CFA Institute ’s Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). Unless otherwise noted, performance is shown 

     gross of fees. Quarterly returns are presented on an unannualized basis. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. Past 

     performance is not indicative of future returns.

Ã Bank of America/Merrill Lynch Indices provided by Bloomberg Financial Markets.

Ã Money market fund/cash balances are included in performance and duration computations.

Ã Standard & Poorʼs is the source of the credit ratings. Distribution of credit rating is exclusive of money market fund/LGIP holdings.

Ã Callable securities in the portfolio are included in the maturity distribution analysis to their stated maturity date, although, they may be called prior to maturity.

Ã MBS maturities are represented by expected average life.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 28
79 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã ACCRUED INTEREST: Interest that is due on a bond or other fixed income security since the last interest payment was made.

Ã AGENCIES: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored enterprises.

Ã AMORTIZED COST: The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase 

     date until the date of the report. Discount or premium with respect to short-term securities (those with less than one year to maturity at time of issuance) is amortized 

     on a straight line basis. Such discount or premium with respect to longer-term securities is amortized using the constant yield basis.

Ã BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE: A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill as well as the 

     insurer.

Ã COMMERCIAL PAPER: An unsecured obligation issued by a corporation or bank to finance its short-term credit needs, such as accounts receivable and inventory.

Ã CONTRIBUTION TO DURATION: Represents each sector or maturity range ’s relative contribution to the overall duration of the portfolio measured as a percentage

     weighting. Since duration is a key measure of interest rate sensitivity, the contribution to duration measures the relative amount or contribution of that sector or 

     maturity range to the total rate sensitivity of the portfolio.  

Ã EFFECTIVE DURATION: A measure of the sensitivity of a security’s price to a change in interest rates, stated in years.

Ã EFFECTIVE YIELD: The total yield an investor receives in relation to the nominal yield or coupon of a bond. Effective yield takes into account the power of compounding 

     on investment returns, while nominal yield does not.

Ã FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. A federal agency that insures bank deposits to a specified amount.

Ã INTEREST RATE: Interest per year divided by principal amount and expressed as a percentage.

Ã MARKET VALUE: The value that would be received or paid for an investment in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Ã MATURITY: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and payable.

Ã NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT: A CD with a very large denomination, usually $1 million or more, that can be traded in secondary markets.

Ã PAR VALUE: The nominal dollar face amount of a security.

Ã PASS THROUGH SECURITY: A security representing pooled debt obligations that passes income from debtors to its shareholders. The most common type is the 

     mortgage-backed security.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 29
80 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2021

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS: A holder of securities sells these securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.

Ã SETTLE DATE: The date on which the transaction is settled and monies/securities are exchanged. If the settle date of the transaction (i.e., coupon payments and 

     maturity proceeds) occurs on a non-business day, the funds are exchanged on the next business day.

Ã TRADE DATE: The date on which the transaction occurred; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã UNSETTLED TRADE: A trade which has been executed; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã U.S. TREASURY: The department of the U.S. government that issues Treasury securities.

Ã YIELD: The rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period remaining until maturity, stated as a 

     percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT COST: The yield to maturity at cost is the expected rate of return based on the original cost, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period from 

     purchase date to maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT MARKET: The yield to maturity at market is the rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time 

     period remaining until maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

 PFM Asset Management LLC 30
81 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 

TITLE:  Conduct  a  Public  Hearing  and  Consider  Adoption  of  Ordinance  No.  35.23 
Updating  Capacity  Charges  for  Connection  to  the  Main  Sewers  of  Union 
Sanitary District (This is a Motion Item)   

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 

Recommendation 
Consider adopting Ordinance No. 35.23, setting the capacity fees specified therein for fiscal years 
2022 through 2027. 

Discussion 
The District last evaluated the capacity charges in 2016 and the study justifying the current fee 
structure was due for an update. These studies are typically re‐evaluated approximately every 
five years.  The calculations supporting the reasonableness of USD’s proposed capacity charges 
are presented  in a study entitled “Union Sanitary District Capacity Fee Update” (“Capacity Fee 
Study”), which was made available to the public in accordance with Government Code sections 
66013 and 66016. 

Under California  law, capacity  fees cannot exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing 
capacity  to new development  in  the District’s  sanitary  sewer  system.   These  fees have been 
established based upon  this  requirement  to equitably  recover  the costs of  infrastructure and 
assets  required  to  support  new  or  renovated  development.    Since  the  costs  to  preserve  or 
increase  the  capacity  for  new  development  continue  to  increase,  the  capacity  fees must  be 
adjusted to reflect those new costs. 

82 of 401



The updated Capacity Fee Study is recommending the capacity fees increase, with the amounts 
varying depending upon the type of connection (e.g. residential, commercial, industrial).   

Although necessary to support the Districts capital program and ensure development pays  its 
proportional share,  the Board recognizes  that any  fee  increase can be concerning. Therefore, 
Board directed staff at a workshop that any fee increase proposed by the updated Capacity Fee 
study be phased in over a 5‐year period, in equal amounts and also include construction costs 
escalations.  

The capacity fee for a single‐family dwelling connection to the sanitary sewer system is proposed 
to increase to approximately $12,307 over a 5‐year period beginning in Fiscal Year 2022.  All other 
categories of capacity fees for connection to the sanitary sewer system are proposed to increase 
over the same 5‐year period and are outlined  in the updated Capacity Fee Study, dated April 
2021, and Ordinance 35.23; both of which are attached to this staff report.  The capacity fees set 
forth in Ordinance 35.23 do not exceed the actual costs to USD to provide capacity for new and 
expanded connections. 

Background 
Serving the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City, Union Sanitary District manages a large 
collection of facilities that includes over 800 miles of sewer lines, seven pump stations, and the 
buildings and equipment at the Union City Wastewater Treatment Plant.  In total, the District is 
responsible for operating, maintaining and replacing over $678M of assets.  The District’s FY2021 
operating budget is approximately $98 million, and raises revenue from two primary sources:  (1) 
Sewer service charges paid by residential customers, businesses, and other users of the systems; 
and  (2) Capacity  fees  paid  by  developers  and other  new users when  they  connect  to USD’s 
system. 

Sewer  capacity  fees are  separate  from USD’s ongoing  sewer  service  charges.   USD’s ongoing 
sewer service charges are governed by Proposition 218, and as such, are subject to Proposition 
218’s  various  notice  and  hearing  requirements.    In  contrast,  USD’s  sewer  capacity  fees  are 
governed by the Mitigation Fee Act and are one‐time fees, imposed when a user makes a new or 
expanded connection to USD’s system.  Capacity fees recover the costs for existing facilities and 
facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that are of proportional benefit to the person 
or property being charged. 

District Outreach and Proposed Fees 
Prior  to  the  regularly scheduled Board meeting of May 24, 2021, USD provided notice of  the 
proposed increase in capacity fees and made data supporting the proposed increase available to 
the public as required by  law,  including, without  limitation, Government Code sections 66013 
and 66016.  In addition, staff conducted public and stakeholder outreach to interested parties in 
an attempt to notify anyone who might be interested, or have concerns.  The outreach consisted 
of the following: 

Notice of a public meeting in the Tri‐City Voice and Bay Area News Group paper 

83 of 401



Notification to each City 
Notification to the Chamber of Commerce of each City 
Notification to developers working within the District’s service area 
Notification to the Homebuilders Association (BIA) 
Notification to the District’s Industrial Customers  

As of  the publishing of  this  staff  report  the District has not  received any  feedback  from any 
stakeholders. 

Previous Board Action 
4/25/2016 Board Meeting – Approval of Ordinance 35.22 

Attachments:  Attachment 1 – Historical Capacity Charges per Single Family Home 
Attachment 2 – Sewer Capacity Fee Survey for Single Family Homes 
Attachment 3 – Capacity Fee Fund Balance 
Ordinance 35.23 
Capacity Fee Study 

84 of 401



Attachment 1 

85 of 401



Attachment 2 

86 of 401



Attachment 3 

87 of 401



ORDINANCE NO. 35.2223 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION 
OF CAPACITY CHARGES FOR CONNECTION TO 

THE MAIN SEWERS OF UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

The District Board of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT does order and ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

REPEAL OF PREVIOUS ORDINANCE 

Ordinance No. 35.2122 is hereby repealed. 

ARTICLE II  

GENERAL 

SECTION 1  SHORT TITLE 

This Ordinance shall be known as the “CAPACITY CHARGE ORDINANCE.” 

SECTION 2  PURPOSE OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
The District allows new and existing users to buy a share of the District’s system’s capacity for 
the discharge of their wastewater. The purpose of the Capacity Charge is to provide revenue to 
recover costs for existing facilities and facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that 
are of proportional benefit to the person or property being charged. 

SECTION 3  USE OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
Current Capacity Fund Reserves and revenues collected  in the future, through the payment of 
the Capacity Charge, will be deposited in a separate Capacity Charge account and will be used for 
the purposes for which the charges were collected. 

SECTION 4  ADOPTION OF A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
The District has prepared a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which contains projects and facility 
upgrades that are required in order to increase or maintainpreserve the existing capacity of the 
system. The Capital Improvement Plan, which has been reviewed and formally adopted by the 
Board of Directors, will be revised each year, and an updated Capital Improvement Plan will be 
adopted by the Board annually. 

SECTION 5  REASONABLENESS OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
In order  to demonstrate  the  reasonableness of  the District's Capacity Charge,  the calculation 
method and the basis for determining the Capacity Charge for an equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) 
are presented in a separate report entitled “Union Sanitary District, Sewer Capacity FeeCharge 
Update,” 

88 of 401



 and  may  be  referenced  by  contacting  the  District.  The Capacity Charges set forth in this 
Ordinance do not exceed the actualDistrict’s  costs to the District  to provide capacity for new 
connections. 

SECTION 6 DEFINITIONS 
Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and terms shall have the meaning as 
follows: 

a. Accessory  Dwelling  Unit  (ADU).  An  additional  residential  dwelling  unit  located  on  a
residential property which provides complete independent living facilities for one or more 
persons and complies with the criteria established by California Government Code Section 
65852.2 and any subsequent legislation governing accessory dwelling units.  An accessory 
dwelling unit may be either a) a second unit within or attached to the  living area of an 
existing primary residence, or b) a detached residential dwelling unit located on the same 
property as a primary residence.  Consistent with California Government Code: 

 ADUs  that are constructed within  the  living area of a primary residence, or do not
expand the existing residential structure by more than 150 square feet, shall not be 
required to pay a capacity charge.   

 Detached ADUs, or ADUs that expand a primary residence in excess of 150 square feet
shall be subject to a capacity charge based upon the square footage of the ADU. 

a.b. Boarding  Establishment  Unit.  One  or  more  rooms  with  centralized  kitchen  facilities
designed  for use by transients, students, retirees, or other occupants  for  living and/or 
sleeping purposes. Each separate room which is designed for occupancy by one or more 
persons, or which serves as one housekeeping unit, shall be deemed to be one living unit. 
For facilities with only communal living space, the design occupancy shall be deemed as 
the determining factor for the Capacity Charge. 

b.c. Building Sewer. A sewer conveying wastewater from the property of the user to a main
sewer. Also referred to as a private sewer or lateral. 

c.d. Building  Sewer  Construction  Permit.  A  permit  issued  by  UNION  SANITARY  DISTRICT
allowing the construction and connection of a building sewer line to the main sewer. 

d.e. Capacity Charge. The charge to be made by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT for a sewer
connection either directly or  indirectly to a main sewer; or, for a change, alteration, or 
expansion of the use of an existing building, as  listed  in and  in accordance with all the 
provisions of Article III herein. 

e.f. Chemical  Oxygen  Demand  (COD).  The  equivalent  quantity  of  oxygen  utilized  during
oxidation of organic and inorganic matter in wastewater under the conditions of the COD 
test as described in the latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water 
and Wastewater”, expressed in milligrams per liter. 

89 of 401



f.g. Chemical  Oxygen  Demand  (COD)  loadingLoading.  The  annual  average  mg/L  COD
multiplied by the total annual industrial wastewater discharge volume in million gallons 
multiplied by the conversion factor 8.34. 

g.h. Commercial/Industrial/Office Use (C/I/O) (Domestic Use Only). A parcel of real property
designed  for  use  by  a  single  tenant  for  a  single  commercial  or  industrial  use  whose 
discharge  is  limited to domestic waste only. Examples  include retail sales, office space, 
showrooms, and other uses producing domestic waste only, which do not fall into one of 
the other specifically designated categories. Also included in this category are individual 
tenant units in the C/I/O category whose floor space exceeds 10,000 square feet and are 
located within a building or parcel within the Mixed‐Use category. 

h.i. District.  Union Sanitary District of Alameda County, California.

i.j. District Engineer. The General Manager of the District or histheir designees, including, but 
not limited to, duly authorized personnel. 

j.k. Domestic  Loading.  The  Domestic  Premise  in  terms  of  pounds/yr.  allocating  20
gallons/day/employee  to  be  used  in  the  absence  of  a  separate  approved  industrial 
wastewater or industrial process water flow meter. 

k.l. Domestic Premise.  Domestic loading equal to 500 mg/L COD and 200 mg/L SS.

l.m. Domestic Wastewater. Any wastewater which will enter into the main sewers from the
non‐industrial  operation,  preparation,  cooking,  and  handling  of  food;  or,  containing 
human  wastes  and  similar  matter  from  the  sanitary  conveniences  of  dwellings, 
commercial buildings, industrial facilities, and installations. 

m.n. Dwelling Unit. The following  living establishments shall be deemed to be one dwelling
unit: 

(i) Single family residential dwelling or mobile home designed for occupancy by one
family  and  up  to  4,500  square  feet  of  building  area.  Single  family  residential
dwelling units above 4,500 square feet will be charged an additional proportionate
charge above 4,500 square feet.

(ii) Multi‐family dwelling  is each housekeeping unit of  a: duplex,  triplex,  fourplex,
townhouse or condominium, apartment house, mobile home park, or other multi‐ 
residential establishment designed for occupancy for living purposes by more than
one family, and which is divided into separate housekeeping units, each of which
is designed for occupancy by one family only.

n.o. Groundwater. Any water found below the land surface or from saturated soil including:
potable  or  irrigation water  source wells,  injected  subsurface water,  rising  subsurface 

90 of 401



water,  underground  infiltration  to  manmade  structures,  pumped  subsurface  waters, 
foundation and  footing drainage, water  from crawl  space pumps, natural  springs, and 
subsurface flows from riparian habitats, streams, and wetlands. 

o.p. Industrial User. Any establishment engaged in producing, manufacturing, or processing
operations,  and  all  other  establishments  engaged  in  any  activity  resulting  in  the 
production of industrial wastewater which will enter into the sewer system. 

p. Industrial Wastewater. Any non‐domestic wastewater which will enter  into  the main
sewers  by  being  discharged,  permitted  to  flow,  or  escape  from  any  industrial,
manufacturing,  commercial,  or  business  establishment  or  process;,  or  from  the
development, recovery, or processing of any natural resource.  Industrial wastewater  is
directly reported from a separate approved industrial wastewater flow meter or industrial

q. process water flow meter; otherwise,  industrial wastewater  is calculated from potable
water meter sources excluding a calculated percentage of non‐industrial use.

q.r. Loadings. The equivalent weight of Chemical Oxygen Demand and/or Suspended Solids
discharged  to  the main  sewer  system  during  a  given  time  interval. Unless  otherwise 
specified, the loadings shall mean pounds per day or per year of a particular constituent 
or combination of constituents. 

r.s. Main Sewer.  An existing sanitary sewer dedicated to public use, within the public right
of way or dedicated easement. 

s.t. Mixed Use Commercial Property. A parcel of real property designed for the occupancy of
multiple tenants, such as a shopping center. Examples of acceptable uses on mixed use 
commercial  properties  include;  retail  sales  outlets,  restaurants,  offices,  service 
companies, health clubs, laundromats, theaters, and similar commercial uses. Individual 
tenant units whose floor area exceeds 10,000 square feet and whose use  is consistent 
with the C/I/O category may be included in the Commercial/Industrial/Office Use (C/I/O) 
category. 

t.u. Person. Any  individual,  firm, company, partnership, or association; private, public, and
municipal corporations; responsible corporate officer; the United States of America; the 
State  of  California;  districts  and  all  political  subdivisions;  governmental  agencies  and 
mandatories thereof. 

u.v. Private Cafeteria.  A food service facility within a school, commercial or industrial building
which  is  used  exclusively  by  the  students  or  employees  of  the  company  or  school. 
Cafeterias which are open to the public, or provide catering or off‐site  food service to 
other companies will be considered a restaurant. Capacity Charges for private cafeterias 
will be based on the area of food preparation, cooking, food storage, and food serving 
areas but shall exclude seating areas. 

v.w. Property. A parcel of real estate or portion thereof, including any improvements thereon,

91 of 401



which  is determined by the District to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using, 
and paying for service. 

x. Public  Assembly  Facilities.  Any  facility  where  the  public  may  assemble  for  social,
business, educational, or entertainment purposes,  including, but not  limited  to, movie
theaters, auditoriums, theaters, and music halls.

w. 

x.y. Suspended Solids (SS). The solids that either float on the surface of, or are in suspension
in,  wastewater  and  which  are  largely  removable  by  standard  laboratory  filtration 
procedures, expressed in milligrams per liter. 

y.z. Suspended Solids (SS) loadingLoading. The annual average mg/L SS multiplied by the total
annual industrial  wastewater  discharge  volume  in  million  gallons  multiplied  by  the 
conversion factor 8.34. 

z.aa. User. Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater into a
main sewer. 

aa.  Volume.  The  quantity  of  wastewater  discharged  during  a  specified  period  of  time, 
expressed in gallons. 

bb.  Warehouse.  A building or portion of a building used exclusively for the storage of goods. 
The following uses are NOT considered warehouse use: 

1. Storage areas for goods or finished products within a manufacturing plant or
commercial building that are not separated by a permanent partition wall, and
or

2. Storage areas that do not exceed 5,000 square feet in area.

Warehouse  buildings  that  contain  office,  industrial,  or  other  non‐warehouse  areas, 
totaling more than ten percent of the gross area of the entire building, will be segregated 
into separate uses and charged the appropriate rate for each different use. Otherwise, 
the  warehouse  rate  shall  apply  to  the  gross  area  of  the  entire  building.  Shipping, 
receiving, and packing areas serving warehouses more than 50,000 square feet  in area 
will be charged under the Warehouse category. 

Whenever  the  use  of  a  proposed  building  or  part  of  a  building  is  not  clear  or  not 
determined prior to connecting to the sanitary sewer, the Commercial/Industrial/Office 
Use  rate  will  be  used  to  calculate  the  Capacity  Charge.  If,  after  the  building  is  first 
occupied, it becomes evident that it, or part of it, is being used exclusively for warehouse 
purposes, as described herein, a refund may be issued. 

cc. Wastewater  Discharge  Permit.  A  permit  issued  by  UNION  SANITARY  DISTRICT

92 of 401



authorizing the discharge of groundwater or industrial wastewater by an industrial user, 
either directly or indirectly into a main sewer. 

SECTION 7   TERMINOLOGY 
Words, phrases, or terms not specifically defined herein and having a technical or specialized 
meaning  shall  be  defined  as  set  forth  in  the  latest  edition  of  “Standard  Methods  for  the 
Examination of Water and Wastewater,” published by the American Public Health Association, 
the American Water Works Association and  the Water Environment Federation. Reference  to 
waste constituents and characteristics shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the aforesaid 
“Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater” and measurements thereof 
shall be as set forth in said publication, or as established by Federal or State regulatory agencies. 

ARTICLE III 

BASIS FOR CAPACITY CHARGES 

SECTION 1  CAPACITY CHARGES 
The  Capacity  Charges  set  forth  in  “Exhibit A”  are  hereby  adopted  as  the  District’s  Capacity 
Charges beginning in Fiscal Year 20172022 starting July 1, 2021 and continuing thereafter. The 
Capacity Charges will increase to the amounts specified in Exhibit A for each Fiscal Year annually 
on  JulyAugust 1st of each year. The Board hereby  finds  that  the Capacity Charges set  forth  in 
Exhibit  A  do  not  exceed  the  District’s  actual  costs  for  providing  capacity  for  new  sewer 
connections in its wastewater system. Exhibit A to this Ordinance is hereby incorporated herein 
by reference to this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2  DOMESTIC WASTEWATER 
The Capacity Charge to be paid for connecting either directly or indirectly to a main sewer shall 
be determined by the District based upon the existing or proposed use of the property to be 
served, in accordance with the amounts and formulas set forth in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 3 INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER 
Properties  with  industrial  wastewater  discharges  will  be  charged  a  Domestic  Wastewater 
Capacity Charge and an Industrial Capacity Charge in accordance with the amounts and formulas 
set forth in Exhibit A, which will be divided into four annual installments. 

a. Initial  Charge.  The  initial  charge  shall  be  the  sum  of  the  Volume  Component,  COD
Component,  and  Suspended  Solids  Component  for  the  Initial  Charges  for  Industrial
connections in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A and shall be based upon the unit rates
in effect at the time the prospective user enters into an agreement with UNION SANITARY
DISTRICT. The total Capacity Charge shall be charged over a four  ‐year period with the
initial charge based upon estimates and subsequent charges based upon actual flows as
further described in section b. below.

b. Succeeding Three Annual Charges. At the time a Building Sewer Construction Permit is

93 of 401



issued, or prior to the issuance of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, the prospective user 
shall enter  into an agreement with UNION SANITARY DISTRICT which shall provide that 
there be three additional charges due and payable upon billing at the end of the  first, 
second, and third year from the date of acceptance of the building sewer or issuance of a   
Wastewater Discharge Permit.  Each of these annual charges shall be based upon the unit 
rates in effect at the time the prospective user enters into an agreement with the District 
and shall be equal to the sum of Volume Component, COD Component, and Suspended 
Solids Component for Industrial connections in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A. 

Final paid capacity is the average of 4 payments which creates a baseline represented by 
the combination of the three parameters; flow, COD, and SS, provided that any increase 
in the combined industrial flow and loadings does not exceed the initial estimate by more 
than 25%. 

c. Excess Capacity. In the event that the combined industrial flow and loadings exceed the
initial estimate by more  than 25%, an additional Capacity Charge  shall be paid over 4
years, concurrently with  the  initial payment and  succeeding annual payments,  for  the
entire increase at the present‐day rate.

d. Single Installment Amount. If the calculated charges for an industrial use total less than
d. $500 the Minimum Capacity Charge per Article III Section 5,  the  initial  charge  and  the

succeeding  annual  charges  shall  be  paid  in  a  single installment prior to the issuance of
any permit.

SECTION 4   GROUNDWATER DISCHARGE 
If a discharge permit is granted for groundwater, from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground 
storage tanks, monitoring wells or other similar sources, the duration of discharge will govern 
Capacity Charges.  If discharge  is  for  less than one year, ten percent of the minimum Capacity 
Charge will be assessed. For discharge durations of one year or greater, the Capacity Charge will 
be calculated by multiplying the actual volume of groundwater discharged by ten percent of the 
industrial wastewater volume component  in effect  that year, up  to a maximum of  ten years. 
Completion of discharge will terminate any ongoing capacity rights. 

SECTION 5  MINIMUM CAPACITY CHARGE 
In no case shall the minimum Capacity Charge for any initial connection to the District's system 
be less than the domestic wastewater Capacity Charge for a multi‐family dwelling unit. 

ARTICLE IV 

ALLOWANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL CREDITS, REVIEW OF CHARGES   
AND CHANGES IN PROPERTY USE 

SECTION 1  QUALIFICATION FOR INDUSTRIAL RELOCATION CREDIT 
This section shall apply to industrial wastewater only, not to domestic wastewater.  If the transfer 
of an industry discharging industrial wastewater to a different parcel of land does not impose any 

94 of 401



additional burden on the District's facilities, a credit, which shall be referred to as a relocation 
credit, may be allowed, provided that: 

(i) the owner of the real property, from which the  industry  is moving,  is willing to
relinquish  the  industrial  wastewater  capacity  for  the  purpose  of  a  relocating
tenant or relocating industrial process.; and

(ii) essentially the same industrial operation has been transferred from one parcel to
another and such operation was previously connected to the District's system; and

(iii) the  industrial  operation  was  owned  prior  to  the  transfer  by  the  person  now
making claim to the relocation credit; and

(iv) the  discharger  has  demonstrated  to  the  satisfaction  of  the  District  that  the
industrial operation has been abandoned from the parcel from which the transfer

(iv) has occurred, or presented a certification in writing and a performance bond of
equal or greater value than the relocation credit that such industrial operation will
be abandoned within six (6) months of the District approving an application for
connection. Should the  facility not be abandoned within the prescribed period,
the relocation credit shall be revoked and a Capacity Charge, with respect to the
parcel to which the industrial operation transferred, shall be due and payable as
of the date said parcel was connected to the District's system; and

(v) there  is  adequate  capacity  in  the  District's  system  at  the  new  location  to
accommodate connection of the industrial operation to be transferred.

SECTION 2  BASIS FOR RELOCATION CREDIT 
The relocation credit shall be based upon the amount of capacity purchased. If a record of the 
amount of capacity purchased does not exist the average of the total annual discharge of: the 
number of gallons of  industrial wastewater, number of pounds of Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(exclusive of COD domestic loading), and number of pounds of Suspended Solids (exclusive of SS 
domestic loading) for the preceding four (4) years, or years of operation if less than four (4) years, 
prior to the transfer. In no case shall there be a refund or a credit applied to any other type of 
fee  or  charge  if  the  fee  for  the  industrial  wastewater  discharge  for  the  relocated  industrial 
operation is less than the relocation credit allowed. 

SECTION 3  REVIEW OF CAPACITY CHARGE 
Capacity Charges or relocation credit determined under Article III and Article IV may be reviewed 
at the applicant's request. The review will be based on the use data provided by the applicant 
and other criteria to be established by the District for aan  initial review fee of $25360.00. Any 
requested adjustments to the Capacity Charge using this method are subject to verification by 
the District using District  sampling, monitoring, and analysis procedures. All verification costs 
must be paid by the applicant. After completion of the District's review, the questioned Capacity 
Charge may be adjusted up or down in accordance with the results of the verification study. 

95 of 401



SECTION 4  CHANGE OF PROPERTY USE 
a. Industrial Wastewater.  If  the  existing  use  of  a  building  or  property  is  changed,  an

industrial process  is altered, production  is  increased or any other change, or alteration
will increase the existing combined industrial wastewater flow and loadings by more than
25%, an additional Capacity Charge shall be paid over 4 years for the entire increase at
the present‐day rate.

b. Change in Building Size. If the existing size of a building or property is expanded, added
onto,  increased,  or  otherwise  physically  modified,  an  additional  Capacity  Charge
applicable  to  the expansion, addition, or  increase  shall be paid.  In no  instance  shall a
refund be granted if the size of a building or property is decreased.

c. Domestic Wastewater Changes  in Use. When  the use of a building or property  is modified or

changed,  such  as  a  change  in  tenants,  or  a  change  in  the  type  of  business  occupying  the

property, the District will consider this a change in use.  Each change in use

c. shall be reviewed by the District to determine if an additional Capacity Charge will apply.
An additional Capacity Charge shall apply whenever the Capacity Charge calculated for
the new use is greater than the value of Capacity Charges already paid forassociated with
the  formerexisting  approved  use.   For  the  purpose  of  this  comparison,  the  current
Capacity Charges as listed in Article III of this Ordinance, shall apply to both the new and
formerexisting use. Whenever the Capacity Charge calculated for the new use exceeds the
value of the Capacity Charges already paid forassociated with the formerexisting approved
use, the difference shall be paid to the District as an additional Capacity Charge for the
change of use.  In no  instance  shall a  refund be granted  if  the  change  in  the use of a
building or property results in the value of Capacity Charges paid forassociated with the
formerexisting approved use being greater than the cost of the Capacity Charge calculated
for the new use.

d. Credit  for  Previously  Purchased  Capacity.  If  the  existing  size  or  use  of  a  building  or
property  is expanded, added onto, or  increased, a credit maywill be allowed based on
verified previously  purchased  capacity  that  is  retained  onprovided  in  the amount of  the
Capacity Charge associated with the existing, approved building or property site. This verification
will  include review of District recordssize and any records supplied  to  the District.  If no
credible records exist then nouse. The credit will be allowed.based on the current Capacity
Charges as listed in Article III of this Ordinance. In no instance shall a refund be granted if
the     demolition  or  decreased use of a building or property results  in a  lower discharge
volume and/or loading level than that for which Capacity Charges have previously been
paid.

e. Payment  Due  Date.  If  a  Building  Sewer  Construction  Permit  or  a  new  or  revised
Wastewater Discharge Permit  is  required as a  result of an expansion of a building or
property and/or the increase in flow or loadings from the property, additional Capacity
Charges shall be paid prior to the  issuance of the permit.  If neither permit  is required,
additional Capacity Charges shall be paid upon billing by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
and be delinquent thirty (30) days thereafter.

96 of 401



ARTICLE V 

PAYMENT AND DEPOSITION OF CHARGES 

SECTION 1   PAYMENT OF INITIAL CHARGES 
No building sewer or building drain shall be constructed and connected to any main sewer until 
the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT has  issued a Building Sewer Construction Permit  in accordance 
with District  specifications and a Capacity Charge has been paid  to  the District. The Capacity 
Charge  shall  be  in  addition  to  the  annual  sewer  service  charge,  charges  for  annexation, 
inspection, permits,  reimbursements,  and  the  requirements of  any other  rule,  regulation, or 
ordinance of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT. 

SECTION 2   PAYMENT OF SUCCEEDING CHARGES 
All  charges  prescribed  under  this  Ordinance  are  payable  upon  billing  and  delinquent  at  the 
expiration of thirty  (30) days thereafter.  If  it  is necessary to  initiate  legal action to collect the 
delinquent obligation, all penalties allowed by the  law will be applied.  In addition to all other 
means  of  legal  process  available  for  the  collection  of  the  delinquent  charges,  the  UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT may elect to have the delinquent charges collected on the property tax roll 
in  the  same manner, by  the  same persons, at  the  same  time as, and  together with and not 
 separately from general taxes in accordance with the provisions of 5473 and 5474 et seq. of the 
California Health and Safety Code. Delinquent tenant Capacity Charges will be charged against 
the property of the owner of the premises occupied by the tenant. 

SECTION 3  DEPOSITION OF FUNDS 
The collected Capacity Charges shall be deposited in the Capacity Charge Fund. 

ARTICLE VI  

ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 1  APPEALS 
Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or determination 
made by the District  interpreting or  implementing the provisions of this Ordinance may  file a 
written request  for reconsideration with the District Engineer, setting  forth  in detail the  facts 
supporting the user's request. 

If  the  ruling  made  by  the  District  Engineer  is  unsatisfactory  to  the  person  requesting 
reconsideration, he may file a written appeal to the District's governing body within ten (10) days 
after notification of the District's action.  The written appeal shall be heard by the governing body 
within thirty (30) days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. The 
District's governing body shall make a  final ruling on the appeal within thirty  (30) days of the 
meeting. The District Engineer's decision, action, or determination shall remain in effect during 
the period of reconsideration. 

97 of 401



SECTION 2  FALSIFYING OF INFORMATION 
Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, plan, or 
other document  filed with  the District; or who  falsifies,  tampers with, or  knowingly  renders 
inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this Ordinance, is hereby declared 
to be in violation of this Ordinance, and subject to the Civil Penalties imposed under Section 7.05 
of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT'S Ordinance No. 36. 

SECTION 3  SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application to any person or circumstances is held invalid, 
the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of such provisions to other persons or other 
circumstances shall not be affected. 

SECTION 4   EFFECTIVE DATE 
A summary of the changes to this Ordinance shall be published once in the Tri‐City Voice and Bay Area 
News Group, a newspaperboth publications of general circulation published in the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT, and shall take effect sixty days thereafter. 

On Motion duly made and seconded, this Ordinance was adopted by the following vote on April 
25, 2016          May 24, 2021. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_______________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
President, Board of Directors  
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

98 of 401



ORDINANCE NO. 35.23 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION 
OF CAPACITY CHARGES FOR CONNECTION TO 

THE MAIN SEWERS OF UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

The District Board of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT does order and ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

REPEAL OF PREVIOUS ORDINANCE 

Ordinance No. 35.22 is hereby repealed. 

ARTICLE II  

GENERAL 

SECTION 1  SHORT TITLE 

This Ordinance shall be known as the “CAPACITY CHARGE ORDINANCE.” 

SECTION 2  PURPOSE OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
The purpose of the Capacity Charge is to provide revenue to recover costs for existing facilities 
and facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that are of proportional benefit to the 
person or property being charged. 

SECTION 3  USE OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
Current Capacity Fund Reserves and revenues collected  in the future, through the payment of 
the Capacity Charge, will be deposited in a separate Capacity Charge account and will be used for 
the purposes for which the charges were collected. 

SECTION 4  ADOPTION OF A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
The District has prepared a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which contains projects and facility 
upgrades that are required in order to increase or preserve the existing capacity of the system. 
The Capital Improvement Plan, which has been reviewed and formally adopted by the Board of 
Directors, will be revised each year and an updated Capital Improvement Plan will be adopted by 
the Board annually. 

SECTION 5  REASONABLENESS OF THE CAPACITY CHARGE 
In order  to demonstrate  the  reasonableness of  the District's Capacity Charge,  the calculation 
method and the basis for determining the Capacity Charge for an equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) 
are  presented  in  a  separate  report  entitled  “Union  Sanitary  District,  Sewer  Capacity  Charge 
Update,” and  may  be  referenced  by  contacting  the  District.  The Capacity Charges set forth 
in this Ordinance do not exceed the District’s costs to provide capacity for new connections. 

99 of 401



SECTION 6 DEFINITIONS 
Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words and terms shall have the meaning as 
follows: 

a. Accessory  Dwelling  Unit  (ADU).  An  additional  residential  dwelling  unit  located  on  a
residential property which provides complete independent living facilities for one or more
persons and complies with the criteria established by California Government Code Section
65852.2 and any subsequent legislation governing accessory dwelling units.  An accessory
dwelling unit may be either a) a second unit within or attached to the  living area of an
existing primary residence, or b) a detached residential dwelling unit located on the same
property as a primary residence.  Consistent with California Government Code:

 ADUs  that are constructed within  the  living area of a primary residence, or do not
expand the existing residential structure by more than 150 square feet, shall not be
required to pay a capacity charge.

 Detached ADUs, or ADUs that expand a primary residence in excess of 150 square feet
shall be subject to a capacity charge based upon the square footage of the ADU.

b. Boarding  Establishment  Unit.  One  or  more  rooms  with  centralized  kitchen  facilities
designed  for use by transients, students, retirees, or other occupants  for  living and/or
sleeping purposes. Each separate room which is designed for occupancy by one or more
persons, or which serves as one housekeeping unit, shall be deemed to be one living unit.
For facilities with only communal living space, the design occupancy shall be deemed as
the determining factor for the Capacity Charge.

c. Building Sewer. A sewer conveying wastewater from the property of the user to a main
sewer. Also referred to as a private sewer or lateral.

d. Building  Sewer  Construction  Permit.  A  permit  issued  by  UNION  SANITARY  DISTRICT
allowing the construction and connection of a building sewer line to the main sewer.

e. Capacity Charge. The charge to be made by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT for a sewer
connection either directly or  indirectly to a main sewer; or, for a change, alteration, or
expansion of the use of an existing building, as  listed  in and  in accordance with all the
provisions of Article III herein.

f. Chemical  Oxygen  Demand  (COD).  The  equivalent  quantity  of  oxygen  utilized  during
oxidation of organic and inorganic matter in wastewater under the conditions of the COD
test as described in the latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water
and Wastewater”, expressed in milligrams per liter.

g. Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) Loading. The annual average mg/L COD multiplied by
the total annual industrial wastewater discharge volume in million gallons multiplied by
the conversion factor 8.34.

100 of 401



h. Commercial/Industrial/Office Use (C/I/O) (Domestic Use Only). A parcel of real property
designed  for  use  by  a  single  tenant  for  a  single  commercial  or  industrial  use  whose
discharge  is  limited to domestic waste only. Examples  include retail sales, office space,
showrooms, and other uses producing domestic waste only, which do not fall into one of
the other specifically designated categories. Also included in this category are individual
tenant units in the C/I/O category whose floor space exceeds 10,000 square feet and are
located within a building or parcel within the Mixed‐Use category.

i. District.  Union Sanitary District of Alameda County, California.

j. District Engineer.  The General Manager of the District or their designees, including, but
not limited to, duly authorized personnel.

k. Domestic  Loading.  The  Domestic  Premise  in  terms  of  pounds/yr.  allocating  20
gallons/day/employee  to  be  used  in  the  absence  of  a  separate  approved  industrial
wastewater or industrial process water flow meter.

l. Domestic Premise.  Domestic loading equal to 500 mg/L COD and 200 mg/L SS.

m. Domestic Wastewater. Any wastewater which will enter into the main sewers from the
non‐industrial  operation,  preparation,  cooking,  and  handling  of  food;  or  containing
human  wastes  and  similar  matter  from  the  sanitary  conveniences  of  dwellings,
commercial buildings, industrial facilities, and installations.

n. Dwelling Unit. The following  living establishments shall be deemed to be one dwelling
unit:

(i) Single family residential dwelling or mobile home designed for occupancy by one
family  and  up  to  4,500  square  feet  of  building  area.  Single  family  residential
dwelling units above 4,500 square feet will be charged an additional proportionate
charge above 4,500 square feet.

(ii) Multi‐family dwelling  is each housekeeping unit of  a: duplex,  triplex,  fourplex,
townhouse or condominium, apartment house, mobile home park, or other multi‐ 
residential establishment designed for occupancy for living purposes by more than
one family, and which is divided into separate housekeeping units, each of which
is designed for occupancy by one family only.

o. Groundwater. Any water found below the land surface or from saturated soil including
potable  or  irrigation water  source wells,  injected  subsurface water,  rising  subsurface
water,  underground  infiltration  to  manmade  structures,  pumped  subsurface  waters,
foundation and  footing drainage, water  from crawl  space pumps, natural  springs, and
subsurface flows from riparian habitats, streams, and wetlands.

p. Industrial User. Any establishment engaged in producing, manufacturing, or processing
operations,  and  all  other  establishments  engaged  in  any  activity  resulting  in  the

101 of 401



production of industrial wastewater which will enter into the sewer system. 

q. Industrial Wastewater. Any non‐domestic wastewater which will enter  into  the main
sewers  by  being  discharged,  permitted  to  flow,  or  escape  from  any  industrial,
manufacturing,  commercial,  or  business  establishment  or  process,  or  from  the
development, recovery, or processing of any natural resource.  Industrial wastewater  is
directly reported from a separate approved industrial wastewater flow meter or industrial
process water  flow meter; otherwise,  industrial wastewater  is calculated  from potable
water meter sources excluding a calculated percentage of non‐industrial use.

r. Loadings. The equivalent weight of Chemical Oxygen Demand and/or Suspended Solids
discharged  to  the main  sewer  system  during  a  given  time  interval. Unless  otherwise
specified, the loadings shall mean pounds per day or per year of a particular constituent
or combination of constituents.

s. Main Sewer.  An existing sanitary sewer dedicated to public use, within the public right
of way or dedicated easement.

t. Mixed Use Commercial Property. A parcel of real property designed for the occupancy of
multiple tenants, such as a shopping center. Examples of acceptable uses on mixed use
commercial properties include retail sales outlets, restaurants, offices, service companies,
health clubs, laundromats, theaters, and similar commercial uses. Individual tenant units
whose floor area exceeds 10,000 square feet and whose use is consistent with the C/I/O
category may be included in the Commercial/Industrial/Office Use (C/I/O) category.

u. Person. Any  individual,  firm, company, partnership, or association; private, public, and
municipal corporations; responsible corporate officer; the United States of America; the
State  of  California;  districts  and  all  political  subdivisions;  governmental  agencies  and
mandatories thereof.

v. Private Cafeteria.  A food service facility within a school, commercial or industrial building
which  is  used  exclusively  by  the  students  or  employees  of  the  company  or  school.
Cafeterias which are open  to  the public or provide catering or off‐site  food service  to
other companies will be considered a restaurant. Capacity Charges for private cafeterias
will be based on the area of food preparation, cooking, food storage, and food serving
areas but shall exclude seating areas.

w. Property. A parcel of real estate or portion thereof, including any improvements thereon,
which  is determined by the District to be a single user for purposes of receiving, using,
and paying for service.

x. Public  Assembly  Facilities.  Any  facility  where  the  public  may  assemble  for  social,
business, educational, or entertainment purposes,  including, but not  limited  to, movie
theaters, auditoriums, theaters, and music halls.

102 of 401



y. Suspended Solids (SS). The solids that either float on the surface of, or are in suspension
in,  wastewater  and  which  are  largely  removable  by  standard  laboratory  filtration
procedures, expressed in milligrams per liter.

z. Suspended Solids (SS) Loading. The annual average mg/L SS multiplied by the total annual
industrial wastewater discharge volume  in million gallons multiplied by the conversion
factor 8.34.

aa. User. Any person that discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of wastewater into a 
main sewer. 

aa.  Volume.  The  quantity  of  wastewater  discharged  during  a  specified  period  of time, 
expressed in gallons. 

bb.  Warehouse.  A building or portion of a building used exclusively for the storage of goods. 
The following uses are NOT considered warehouse use: 

1. Storage areas for goods or finished products within a manufacturing plant or
commercial building that are not separated by a permanent partition wall, and
or

2. Storage areas that do not exceed 5,000 square feet in area.

Warehouse  buildings  that  contain  office,  industrial,  or  other  non‐warehouse  areas, 
totaling more than ten percent of the gross area of the entire building, will be segregated 
into separate uses and charged the appropriate rate for each different use. Otherwise, 
the  warehouse  rate  shall  apply  to  the  gross  area  of  the  entire  building.  Shipping, 
receiving, and packing areas serving warehouses more than 50,000 square feet  in area 
will be charged under the Warehouse category. 

Whenever  the  use  of  a  proposed  building  or  part  of  a  building  is  not  clear  or  not 
determined prior to connecting to the sanitary sewer, the Commercial/Industrial/Office 
Use  rate  will  be  used  to  calculate  the  Capacity  Charge.  If,  after  the  building  is  first 
occupied, it becomes evident that it, or part of it, is being used exclusively for warehouse 
purposes, as described herein, a refund may be issued. 

cc. Wastewater  Discharge  Permit.  A  permit  issued  by  UNION  SANITARY  DISTRICT
authorizing the discharge of groundwater or industrial wastewater by an industrial user,
either directly or indirectly into a main sewer.

SECTION 7   TERMINOLOGY 
Words, phrases, or terms not specifically defined herein and having a technical or specialized 
meaning  shall  be  defined  as  set  forth  in  the  latest  edition  of  “Standard  Methods  for  the 
Examination of Water and Wastewater,” published by the American Public Health Association, 
the American Water Works Association and  the Water Environment Federation. Reference  to 

103 of 401



waste constituents and characteristics shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the aforesaid 
“Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater” and measurements thereof 
shall be as set forth in said publication, or as established by Federal or State regulatory agencies. 

ARTICLE III 

BASIS FOR CAPACITY CHARGES 

SECTION 1  CAPACITY CHARGES 
The  Capacity  Charges  set  forth  in  “Exhibit A”  are  hereby  adopted  as  the  District’s  Capacity 
Charges  beginning  in  Fiscal  Year  2022  starting  July  1,  2021  and  continuing  thereafter.  The 
Capacity Charges will increase to the amounts specified in Exhibit A for each Fiscal Year annually 
on August 1st of each year. The Board hereby finds that the Capacity Charges set forth in Exhibit 
A  do  not  exceed  the District’s  costs  for  providing  capacity  for  new  sewer  connections  in  its 
wastewater system. Exhibit A to this Ordinance  is hereby  incorporated herein by reference to 
this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2  DOMESTIC WASTEWATER 
The Capacity Charge to be paid for connecting either directly or indirectly to a main sewer shall 
be determined by the District based upon the existing or proposed use of the property to be 
served, in accordance with the amounts and formulas set forth in Exhibit A. 

SECTION 3 INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER 
Properties  with  industrial  wastewater  discharges  will  be  charged  a  Domestic  Wastewater 
Capacity Charge and an Industrial Capacity Charge in accordance with the amounts and formulas 
set forth in Exhibit A, which will be divided into four annual installments. 

a. Initial  Charge.  The  initial  charge  shall  be  the  sum  of  the  Volume  Component,  COD
Component,  and  Suspended  Solids  Component  for  the  Initial  Charges  for  Industrial
connections in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A and shall be based upon the unit rates
in effect at the time the prospective user enters into an agreement with UNION SANITARY
DISTRICT. The  total Capacity Charge shall be charged over a  four‐year period with  the
initial charge based upon estimates and subsequent charges based upon actual flows as
further described in section b. below.

b. Succeeding Three Annual Charges. At the time a Building Sewer Construction Permit is
issued, or prior to the issuance of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, the prospective user
shall enter  into an agreement with UNION SANITARY DISTRICT which shall provide that
there be three additional charges due and payable upon billing at the end of the  first,
second, and third year from the date of acceptance of the building sewer or issuance of a   
Wastewater Discharge Permit.  Each of these annual charges shall be based upon the unit
rates in effect at the time the prospective user enters into an agreement with the District
and shall be equal to the sum of Volume Component, COD Component, and Suspended
Solids Component for Industrial connections in the amounts set forth in Exhibit A.

104 of 401



Final paid capacity is the average of 4 payments which creates a baseline represented by 
the combination of the three parameters; flow, COD, and SS, provided that any increase 
in the combined industrial flow and loadings does not exceed the initial estimate by more 
than 25%. 

c. Excess Capacity. In the event that the combined industrial flow and loadings exceed the
initial estimate by more  than 25%, an additional Capacity Charge  shall be paid over 4
years, concurrently with  the  initial payment and  succeeding annual payments,  for  the
entire increase at the present‐day rate.

d. Single Installment Amount. If the calculated charges for an industrial use total less than
the  Minimum  Capacity  Charge  per  Article  III  Section  5,  the  initial  charge  and  the
succeeding  annual  charges  shall  be  paid  in  a  single installment prior to the issuance of
any permit.

SECTION 4  GROUNDWATER DISCHARGE  
If a discharge permit is granted for groundwater, from the cleanup of spills, leaking underground 
storage tanks, monitoring wells or other similar sources, the duration of discharge will govern 
Capacity Charges.  If discharge  is  for  less than one year, ten percent of the minimum Capacity 
Charge will be assessed. For discharge durations of one year or greater, the Capacity Charge will 
be calculated by multiplying the actual volume of groundwater discharged by ten percent of the 
industrial wastewater volume component  in effect  that year, up  to a maximum of  ten years. 
Completion of discharge will terminate any ongoing capacity rights. 

SECTION 5  MINIMUM CAPACITY CHARGE 
In no case shall the minimum Capacity Charge for any initial connection to the District's system 
be less than the domestic wastewater Capacity Charge for a multi‐family dwelling unit. 

ARTICLE IV 

ALLOWANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL CREDITS, REVIEW OF CHARGES   
AND CHANGES IN PROPERTY USE 

SECTION 1  QUALIFICATION FOR INDUSTRIAL RELOCATION CREDIT 
This section shall apply to industrial wastewater only, not to domestic wastewater.  If the transfer 
of an industry discharging industrial wastewater to a different parcel of land does not impose any 
additional burden on the District's facilities, a credit, which shall be referred to as a relocation 
credit, may be allowed, provided that: 

(i) the owner of the real property, from which the  industry  is moving,  is willing to
relinquish  the  industrial  wastewater  capacity  for  the  purpose  of  a  relocating
tenant or relocating industrial process; and

(ii) essentially the same industrial operation has been transferred from one parcel to

105 of 401



another and such operation was previously connected to the District's system; and 

(iii) the  industrial  operation  was  owned  prior  to  the  transfer  by  the  person  now
making claim to the relocation credit; and

(iv) the  discharger  has  demonstrated  to  the  satisfaction  of  the  District  that  the
industrial operation has been abandoned from the parcel from which the transfer
has occurred or presented a certification  in writing and a performance bond of
equal or greater value than the relocation credit that such industrial operation will
be abandoned within six (6) months of the District approving an application for
connection. Should the  facility not be abandoned within the prescribed period,
the relocation credit shall be revoked and a Capacity Charge, with respect to the
parcel to which the industrial operation transferred, shall be due and payable as
of the date said parcel was connected to the District's system; and

(v) there  is  adequate  capacity  in  the  District's  system  at  the  new  location  to
accommodate connection of the industrial operation to be transferred.

SECTION 2  BASIS FOR RELOCATION CREDIT 
The relocation credit shall be based upon the amount of capacity purchased. If a record of the 
amount of capacity purchased does not exist the average of the total annual discharge of the 
number of gallons of  industrial wastewater, number of pounds of Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(exclusive of COD domestic loading), and number of pounds of Suspended Solids (exclusive of SS 
domestic loading) for the preceding four (4) years, or years of operation if less than four (4) years, 
prior to the transfer. In no case shall there be a refund or a credit applied to any other type of 
fee  or  charge  if  the  fee  for  the  industrial  wastewater  discharge  for  the  relocated  industrial 
operation is less than the relocation credit allowed. 

SECTION 3  REVIEW OF CAPACITY CHARGE 
Capacity Charges or relocation credit determined under Article III and Article IV may be reviewed 
at the applicant's request. The review will be based on the use data provided by the applicant 
and  other  criteria  to  be  established  by  the District  for  an  initial  review  fee  of  $360.00. Any 
requested adjustments to the Capacity Charge using this method are subject to verification by 
the District using District  sampling, monitoring, and analysis procedures. All verification costs 
must be paid by the applicant. After completion of the District's review, the questioned Capacity 
Charge may be adjusted up or down in accordance with the results of the verification study. 

SECTION 4  CHANGE OF PROPERTY USE 
a. Industrial Wastewater.  If  the  existing  use  of  a  building  or  property  is  changed,  an

industrial process  is altered, production  is  increased or any other change, or alteration
will increase the existing combined industrial wastewater flow and loadings by more than
25%, an additional Capacity Charge shall be paid over 4 years for the entire increase at
the present‐day rate.

b. Change in Building Size. If the existing size of a building or property is expanded, added
onto,  increased,  or  otherwise  physically  modified,  an  additional  Capacity  Charge

106 of 401



applicable  to  the expansion, addition, or  increase  shall be paid.  In no  instance  shall a 
refund be granted if the size of a building or property is decreased. 

c. Domestic Wastewater Changes in Use. When the use of a building or property is modified
or changed, such as a change in the type of business occupying the property, the District
will consider this a change in use.  Each change in use shall be reviewed by the District to
determine if an additional Capacity Charge will apply.  An additional Capacity Charge shall
apply whenever the Capacity Charge calculated for the new use is greater than the value
of Capacity Charges associated with the existing approved use.   For the purpose of this
comparison, the current Capacity Charges as  listed  in Article  III of this Ordinance, shall
apply to both the new and existing use. Whenever the Capacity Charge calculated for the
new use exceeds the value of the Capacity Charges associated with the existing approved
use, the difference shall be paid to the District as an additional Capacity Charge for the
change of use.  In no  instance  shall a  refund be granted  if  the  change  in  the use of a
building or property results in the value of Capacity Charges associated with the existing
approved use being greater than the cost of the Capacity Charge calculated for the new
use.

d. Credit  for  Previously  Purchased  Capacity.  If  the  existing  size  or  use  of  a  building  or
property is expanded, added onto, or increased, a credit will be provided in the amount of the
Capacity Charge associated with the existing, approved building or property size and use. The credit
will be based on the current Capacity Charges as listed in Article III of this Ordinance. In
no instance shall a refund be granted if the     demolition or decreased use of a building or
property results  in a  lower discharge volume and/or  loading  level  than  that  for which
Capacity Charges have previously been paid.

e. Payment  Due  Date.  If  a  Building  Sewer  Construction  Permit  or  a  new  or  revised
Wastewater Discharge Permit  is  required as a  result of an expansion of a building or
property and/or the increase in flow or loadings from the property, additional Capacity
Charges shall be paid prior to the  issuance of the permit.  If neither permit  is required,
additional Capacity Charges shall be paid upon billing by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
and be delinquent thirty (30) days thereafter.

ARTICLE V 

PAYMENT AND DEPOSITION OF CHARGES 

SECTION 1   PAYMENT OF INITIAL CHARGES 
No building sewer or building drain shall be constructed and connected to any main sewer until 
the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT has  issued a Building Sewer Construction Permit  in accordance 
with District  specifications and a Capacity Charge has been paid  to  the District. The Capacity 
Charge  shall  be  in  addition  to  the  annual  sewer  service  charge,  charges  for  annexation, 
inspection, permits,  reimbursements,  and  the  requirements of  any other  rule,  regulation, or 
ordinance of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT. 

107 of 401



SECTION 2   PAYMENT OF SUCCEEDING CHARGES 
All  charges  prescribed  under  this  Ordinance  are  payable  upon  billing  and  delinquent  at  the 
expiration of thirty  (30) days thereafter.  If  it  is necessary to  initiate  legal action to collect the 
delinquent obligation, all penalties allowed by the  law will be applied.  In addition to all other 
means  of  legal  process  available  for  the  collection  of  the  delinquent  charges,  the  UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT may elect to have the delinquent charges collected on the property tax roll 
in  the  same manner, by  the  same persons, at  the  same  time  as,  and  together with  and not 
separately from general taxes in accordance with the provisions of 5473 and 5474 et seq. of the 
California Health and Safety Code. Delinquent tenant Capacity Charges will be charged against 
the property of the owner of the premises occupied by the tenant. 

SECTION 3  DEPOSITION OF FUNDS 
The collected Capacity Charges shall be deposited in the Capacity Charge Fund. 

ARTICLE VI  

ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 1  APPEALS 
Any user, permit applicant, or permit holder affected by any decision, action, or determination 
made by the District  interpreting or  implementing the provisions of this Ordinance may  file a 
written request  for reconsideration with the District Engineer, setting  forth  in detail the  facts 
supporting the user's request. 

If  the  ruling  made  by  the  District  Engineer  is  unsatisfactory  to  the  person  requesting 
reconsideration, he may file a written appeal to the District's governing body within ten (10) days 
after notification of the District's action.  The written appeal shall be heard by the governing body 
within thirty (30) days from the date of filing or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. The 
District's governing body shall make a  final ruling on the appeal within thirty  (30) days of the 
meeting. The District Engineer's decision, action, or determination shall remain in effect during 
the period of reconsideration. 

SECTION 2  FALSIFYING OF INFORMATION 
Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record, report, plan, or 
other document  filed with  the District; or who  falsifies,  tampers with, or  knowingly  renders 
inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this Ordinance, is hereby declared 
to be in violation of this Ordinance, and subject to the Civil Penalties imposed under Section 7.05 
of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT'S Ordinance No. 36. 

SECTION 3  SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application to any person or circumstances is held invalid, 
the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of such provisions to other persons or other 
circumstances shall not be affected. 

108 of 401



SECTION 4   EFFECTIVE DATE 
A summary of the changes to this Ordinance shall be published once in the Tri‐City Voice and Bay Area 
News Group, both publications of general circulation published in the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, 
and shall take effect sixty days thereafter. 

On  Motion  duly  made  and  seconded,  this  Ordinance  was  adopted  by  the  following  vote  on           
May 24, 2021. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_______________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
President, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

109 of 401



ORDINANCE 35.23 
EXHIBIT A 

CONNECTION CATEGORY  UNIT DEFINITION 

CAPACITY CHARGE PER UNIT 

Effective August 1 of Each Year 

2021  2022  2023  2024  2025 

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL 

Single Family Dwelling Unit 
(less than or equal to 4,500 square feet) 

per unit (new construction only; not 

additions or repairs) 

$9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 

Single Family Dwelling Unit 
(greater than 4,500 square feet) 

per unit plus proportionate charge 

above 4,500 square feet (i.e. charge 

for 4,600 square feet = 4600/4500 x 

unit charge) 

$9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit  per unit (new construction only; not 
additions or repairs) 

$8,030  $8,661  $9,321  $10,009  $10,728 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 
Applies to detached ADUs or ADUs that expand a 

primary residence in excess of 150 square feet. 

(No capacity charges shall be levied on ADUs within 

the living area of an existing single family home or 

ADUs that do not expand the existing residential 

structure by more than 150 square feet.) 

per square foot  $4.72  $5.09  $5.48  $5.88  $6.31 

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet 

per square foot of building floor 

area 

$4.29  $4.68  $5.09  $5.52  $5.96 

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet 

per square foot of building floor 

area 

$11.25  $12.34  $13.48  $14.67  $15.92 

Boarding Establishments  per unit, or  $5,675  $6,119  $6,583  $7,068  $7,574 

Including Hotels and Motels  per capita design tenant  $3,167  $3,459  $3,764  $4,084  $4,418 

Schools and Day Care Centers  per square foot of building floor 

area 

$5.95  $6.49  $7.05  $7.64  $8.25 

(Boarding Facilities Excluded) 

110 of 401



ORDINANCE 35.23 
EXHIBIT A 

CONNECTION CATEGORY  UNIT DEFINITION 

CAPACITY CHARGE PER UNIT 

Effective August 1 of Each Year 

2021  2022  2023  2024  2025 

Churches (School & Day Care facilities 
excluded) 

per square foot of building floor 
area 

$4.24  $4.63  $5.03  $5.46  $5.90 

Public Assembly Facilities  per seat  $226.21  $247.07  $268.89  $291.71  $315.56 

Health Clubs  per square foot of building floor  $17.84  $19.46  $21.15  $22.92  $24.77 

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms  per water closet  $9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 

Coin‐operated Laundromats  per washing machine  $6,876  $7,503  $8,159  $8,845  $9,563 

Restaurants ‐ All  per square foot of building floor  $32.46  $35.84  $39.37  $43.07  $46.93 

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking  per square foot of building floor  $11.31  $12.35  $13.44  $14.58  $15.77 

Car Wash with water recycling  lump sum  $9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 

Warehouses  per square foot of building floor 
area up to 50,000 square feet 

$1.81  $1.97  $2.15  $2.33  $2.53 

per square foot of building floor 

area for that portion of each 

building above 50,000 square feet 

$0.45  $0.49  $0.54  $0.58  $0.63 

Private cafeterias  per square foot of floor area for 

food preparation, cooking, food 

storage, and food service areas 

(excluding seating areas) 

$32.46  $35.84  $39.37  $43.06  $46.93 

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor  lump sum, plus  $9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 

per square foot for any additional 

pad area above 600 square feet 

$31.67  $34.59  $37.64  $40.84  $44.18 

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station 

lump sum  $18,662  $20,055  $21,510  $23,029  $24,614 

Non‐Standard Connections  Capacity charges for users not listed in this table shall be determined by the District Engineer based upon a 

reasonable estimate of the volume and pollutant loadings of the wastewater to be discharged, subject to 

the minimum capacity charge. 

111 of 401



ORDINANCE 35.23 
EXHIBIT A 

CONNECTION CATEGORY  UNIT DEFINITION 

CAPACITY CHARGE PER UNIT 

Effective August 1 of Each Year 

2021  2022  2023  2024  2025 

INDUSTRIAL 

Volume Component  per 1,000 gallons of average annual 

discharge volume* 
(exclusive of domestic wastewater) 

$26.52  $28.84  $31.27  $33.81  $36.46 

COD Component  per 1,000 gallons of average annual 

discharge volume* 
(exclusive of domestic wastewater) 

$610.05  $676.15  $745.38  $817.85  $893.69 

SS Component  per 1,000 gallons of average annual 

discharge volume* 
(exclusive of domestic wastewater) 

$1,315.58  $1,428.83  $1,547.24  $1,671.00  $1,800.32 

* Industrial capacity charges are paid in 4 installments with the first payment due prior to permit issuance and subsequent payments due at end of each

year for 3 additional years. The initial capacity charge payment is based on estimated flow and loadings with subsequent charges based on actual flows

and loading as described in Ordinance 35.22.

MINIMUM CAPACITY CHARGE 

The minimum capacity charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for 

a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit. 

$8,030  $8,661  $9,321  $10,009  $10,728 

112 of 401



Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Charge Update

113 of 401



April 16, 2021 

Union Sanitary District 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 

Re:  Wastewater Capacity Charge Update 

Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit the attached Wastewater Capacity Charge Update.  

The study develops updated wastewater capacity charges designed to equitably recover the 

costs  of  wastewater  system  infrastructure  and  assets  benefitting  new  development.    The 

proposed  capacity  charges  are  designed  to  be  adequate,  fair,  and  comply  with  all  legal 

requirements.   

The  proposed  maximum  wastewater  capacity  charge  for  a  new  single  family  home  or 

equivalent dwelling unit  (EDU)  is calculated at $11,063  (in current dollars), which  results  in 

Union Sanitary District’s capacity charges remaining in the upper‐middle range compared to 

other  regional  wastewater  agencies.    The  updated  charges  reflect  the  cost  of  new 

development’s  share  of  capacity  in  both  the  District’s  existing  wastewater  facilities  and 

expansion‐related improvements identified in District’s 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan. 

To help minimize the annual impact of the fee increases, the District can phase in the updated 

capacity charges over five years.   In addition, proposed charges over the next five years can 

also incorporate annual inflationary adjustments to account for construction cost inflation. 

We enjoyed working with the District on this assignment and much appreciate the input and 

assistance  received  from District  staff during development of  the updated charges.   Please 

contact us anytime if you have questions about the recommendations presented in the report 

or other related issues. 

Sincerely, 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 

Alex Handlers  Erik Helgeson 
Principal/Vice‐President Senior Consultant 

2625 Alcatraz Ave, #602 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

Tel 510 653 3399 
www.bartlewells.com 

114 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Union Sanitary District 
Wastewater Capacity Charge Update 

Table of Contents   

ES.  Executive Summary ............................................................................................ ES‐1 
Background & Objectives ....................................................................................... ES‐1 
Capacity Charges & Revenues ................................................................................ ES‐1 
Updated Capacity Charges ...................................................................................... ES‐2 
5‐Year Phase‐In of Updated Maximum Charges with Cost Inflation ....................... ES‐4 
Future Fee Updates ................................................................................................ ES‐4 
Capacity Charge Survey .......................................................................................... ES‐6 

1. Background, Objectives, & Government Code ......................................................... 1 
Background .................................................................................................................. 1 
Objectives .................................................................................................................... 1 
Government Code ....................................................................................................... 2 

2. Current & Historical Capacity Charges ..................................................................... 4 
Current Capacity Charges ............................................................................................ 4 
Historical Charges ........................................................................................................ 4 
Historical Capacity Charge Revenues ........................................................................... 7 

3. Capacity Charge Methodology ................................................................................. 9 
Fee Methodology ........................................................................................................ 9 
Facility Valuation ....................................................................................................... 10 

4. Updated Capacity Charge Calculation .................................................................... 12 
Recoverable Costs ..................................................................................................... 12 
Wastewater System Capacity .................................................................................... 18 
Cost Allocation ........................................................................................................... 19 
Unit Cost Calculations ................................................................................................ 21 

5. Wastewater Flows & Loadings ............................................................................... 23 
Residential Wastewater Flows & Loadings ................................................................ 23 
Accessory Dwelling Units ........................................................................................... 24 
Commercial Wastewater Flows & Loadings ............................................................... 26 

6. Proposed Capacity Charges .................................................................................... 27 
Capacity Charge per Single Family Home or EDU ...................................................... 27 
Industrial Capacity Charges ....................................................................................... 28 
Updated Maximum Capacity Charges ........................................................................ 28 
Projected Capacity Charge Revenues ........................................................................ 28 

7. Capacity Charge Application .................................................................................. 31 
Capacity Charge Ordinance:  Purpose of Charge ....................................................... 31 
Capacity Charge Application to Projects with Unknown Uses ................................... 31 
Capacity Charge Credits for Redevelopment ............................................................. 31 
Future Fee Adjustments ............................................................................................ 32 

115 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

List of Tables & Appendices 

TABLES 

Table ES‐1 – Current & Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges 

Table ES‐2 – 5‐Year Phase‐In of Proposed Capacity Charges 
Table 1 – Current Capacity Charges 

Table 2 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

Table 3 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

Table 4 – Summary of District Fixed Assets & Valuation 

Table 5 – Pipeline Inventory & Replacement Cost per Linear Foot 

Table 6 – Summary of EBDA Fixed Assets & Valuation 

Table 7 – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan Summary 

Table 8 – Total Recoverable Costs 

Table 9 – Wastewater System Capacity 

Table 10 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

Table 11 – Wastewater System Cost Allocation 

Table 12 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

Table 13 – Wastewater Flows per Residential Dwelling Unit 

Table 14 – Wastewater Flow per Residential Dwelling Unit 

Table 15 – Current Capacity Charges 

Table 16 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

Table 17 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Capacity Charges with Low & High 20‐Year CIP Cost Estimates  

Appendix B – Union Sanitary District Fixed Asset List & Valuation  

Appendix C – East Bay Dischargers Authority Fixed Asset List & Valuation 

Appendix D – Residential Water Use & Wastewater Demand Data  

Appendix E – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan  

Appendix F – Government Code Sections Pertaining to Capacity Charges 

Appendix G –Capacity Charge Surveys 

116 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐1 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

ES.  Executive Summary 

Background & Objectives 

Union Sanitary District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and effluent disposal services 

to approximately 356,000 residents and businesses in the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union 

City.   The District  levies capacity charges on new or expanded connections to the wastewater 

system.    These  charges  are  designed  to  recover  the  costs  of  capacity  in  existing  and  future 

infrastructure benefiting new development. 

The District retained Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to update its wastewater capacity charges.  

Recommendations were developed with input from District staff and represent a comprehensive 

update based on the latest information available.  Key objectives included developing updated 

capacity  charges  based  on  a  defensible  methodology  that  will  recover  the  full  cost  of 

infrastructure and assets benefiting new development, comply with legal requirements, and are 

fair and equitable to both existing customers and new development.   

Capacity Charges & Revenues 

Over the past 25 years, the District has gradually increased it capacity charges most years.  The 

District’s capacity fees were last updated in 2016 resulting in a gradual increase of charges over 

the past four years.   The District’s capacity charge for a new single family home is currently about 

$8,898.  Multi‐family residential connections pay a lower charge per dwelling unit.  Charges for 

commercial connections vary by type of business and reflect the estimated wastewater flows and 

strength  concentrations  for  a  range  of  commercial  categories.    Industrial  connections  pay 

separate capacity charge components based on actual flow and wastewater strength loadings; 

these charges are collected in four annual installments. 

Capacity charge revenues can vary widely  from year to year based on growth.   Over the past 

decade revenues have ranged from roughly $2.5 million during lower‐growth years that followed 

the 2008  recession  to over $23 million  in 2018.   Capacity charge  revenues have  increased  in 

recent years due to a resurgence of growth. 

117 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐2 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Updated Capacity Charges 

Updated capacity charges were calculated based on a Total Cost / Total Capacity methodology 

for five categories of District assets.  Unit charges were developed separately for each of these 

asset types to more accurately reflect the cost per unit of capacity in each type of infrastructure. 

Facility valuations are based on the acquisition cost of assets  identified  in the District’s  latest 

fixed asset schedule escalated into current dollars based on the change in the ENR Construction 

Cost Index (20‐Cities Average).  To both be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities 

that  may  not  provide  benefit  to  new  wastewater  connections,  the  updated  fee  calculation 

accounts  for  90%  cost  recovery  of  the  updated  value  of  existing  wastewater  system 

infrastructure. 

Table ES‐1 on the following page shows current capacity charges and proposed new maximum 

base year charges.  Under government code, the District can charge less, but cannot exceed the 

maximum charges calculated.  The proposed maximum base year charge per new single family 

home is $11,063, which is approximately 24.3% higher than the current single family charge.  This 

increase reflects higher costs per unit of capacity based on a) an increase in expansion‐related 

improvements  identified  in  the  District’s  capital  improvement  plan,  particularly  for  the 

wastewater treatment plant, b) the addition of new facilities constructed over the past roughly 

five  years, and  c) construction  cost  inflation  since  the prior  fee update. However,  these  cost 

increases  are  partially  offset  by  a  decrease  in  the  estimated  volume  of  wastewater  flow 

generated by new residential dwelling units.  The proposed maximum charges reflect updates to 

underlying unit cost calculations for both wastewater flow and strength, as well as updates to 

estimated wastewater discharge flows and/or loadings for new residential connections and some 

commercial categories.  As such, the impacts of the proposed charges vary by customer type. 

118 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐3 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table ES‐1 – Current & Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges 

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $11,063 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,644 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU square 

footage ÷ 4,500 sq ft 

x  the Single Family 

Fee

$5.67 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

ADU

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.36 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.31 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,808 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,971 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.30 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $283.66 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.27 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,063 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,596 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $42.19 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.18 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,063 lump sum 20 150 1.00

$1.69 $2.27 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.57 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $42.19 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food 

service areas (excluding 

seating areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,063 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $39.71 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,126 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.77 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $803.35 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,618.33 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

type of connection.  

2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.42 per square foot of building 

floor area

Warehouses

119 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐4 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

5‐Year Phase‐In of Updated Maximum Charges with Cost Inflation 

To mitigate the annual impact of the increase in capacity charges, the District can phase in the 

proposed  increases  over  multiple  years,  similar  to  how  the  District  has  phased  in  prior  fee 

increases over  the past decade.    In addition,  charges  in  future years  can also  include annual 

inflationary adjustments to help keep the District’s capacity charges aligned with construction 

cost inflation.   

Table ES‐2 on the following page shows a 5‐year projection of capacity charges accounting for 

both  a)  a  5‐year  phase  in  of  capacity  charges  from  current  levels  to  the  updated  base‐year 

maximum charges and b) future annual adjustments to account for construction cost  inflation 

based  on  the  10‐year  historical  average  annual  increase  in  the  Engineering  News‐Record 

Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average) of 2.7% per year.   

Future Fee Updates 

In general, BWA recommends that capacity charges be independently reviewed and/or updated 

roughly once every  five years or when substantial  revisions are made  to  the District’s capital 

improvement programs or to future projections of wastewater demand. 

120 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐5 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table ES‐2 – 5‐Year Phase‐In of Proposed Capacity Charges 

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION

Current

Charges Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Annual Adjustment % 2.7% 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%

Escalation from Base Year 1.0000 1.0270 1.0547 1.0832 1.1125

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit1 $8,897.71  $9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $8,030 $8,661 $9,321 $10,009 $10,728 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)2

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU 

square footage ÷ 

4,500 sq ft x  the 

Single Family Fee

$4.72 $5.09 $5.48 $5.88 $6.31 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

ADU

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $4.29 $4.68 $5.09 $5.52 $5.96 per square foot of building 

floor area

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $11.25 $12.34 $13.48 $14.67 $15.92 per square foot of building 

floor area

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $5,675 $6,119 $6,583 $7,068 $7,574 per unit, or

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,167 $3,459 $3,764 $4,084 $4,418 per capita design tenant

Schools and Day Care Centers $5.95 $6.49 $7.05 $7.64

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $4.24 $4.63 $5.03 $5.46 $5.90 per square foot of building 

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $226.21 $247.07 $268.89 $291.71 $315.56 per seat

Health Clubs $16.73 $17.84 $19.46 $21.15 $22.92 $24.77 per square foot of building 

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 per water closet

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $6,876 $7,503 $8,159 $8,845 $9,563 per washing machine

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $32.46 $35.84 $39.37 $43.07 $46.93 per square foot of building 

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $11.31 $12.35 $13.44 $14.58 $15.77 per square foot of building 

  With temporary 50% fee reduction $4.16 $4.75 $5.48 $6.24 $7.05 $7.89

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 lump sum

$1.69 $1.81 $1.97 $2.15 $2.33 $2.53 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 
$0.42 $0.45 $0.49 $0.54 $0.58 $0.63 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

Private cafeterias $30.03 $32.46 $35.84 $39.37 $43.06 $46.93 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food 

service areas (excluding 

seating areas)

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 lump sum, plus

$29.66 $31.67 $34.59 $37.64 $40.84 $44.18 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $18,662 $20,055 $21,510 $23,029 $24,614 lump sum

Non‐Standard Connections3 Varies  ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐   to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $26.52 $28.84 $31.27 $33.81 $36.46 per 1,000 gallons

COD Component $561.73 $610.05 $676.15 $745.38 $817.85 $893.69 per 1,000 lbs

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,315.58 $1,428.83 $1,547.24 $1,671.00 $1,800.32 per 1,000 lbs

3 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet 

shall be calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

2 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 

square feet; capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

CAPACITY CHARGE PER UNIT

Proposed Charges with 5‐Year Phase‐In

$5.58 $8.25 per square foot of building 

floor area

121 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐6 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Capacity Charge Survey 

The following chart shows a survey of current wastewater capacity charges for a typical single 

family home.  With full implementation of the proposed charges, the District’s capacity charges 

will remain in the upper‐middle range compared to other regional wastewater agencies 

122 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 1 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

1. Background, Objectives, & Government Code

Background 

Union Sanitary District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and effluent disposal services 

to  residents and businesses  in  the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City.   The District  is 

located  in  southern Alameda  County,  roughly  halfway  between Oakland  and  San  Jose.    The 

District serves a population of approximately 356,000 within a 60‐square‐mile service area.   The 

District was founded in 1918 and is governed by a 5‐member Board of Directors.   

The  District  owns  and  operates  a  wastewater  collection  system  and  treatment  plant.    The 

collection system serves roughly 116,000 connections and includes approximately 835 miles of 

pipelines and 7 pump stations.  The wastewater treatment plant is located in Union City and has 

a permitted capacity of 33 million gallons per day (mgd) of average dry weather flow (ADWF).  

Treated wastewater effluent is conveyed from the treatment plant through facilities operated by 

the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) and disposed into the San Francisco Bay.  

Objectives 

Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) was retained to develop a comprehensive update to the District’s 

wastewater  capacity  charges.   Updated  charges were  calculated based on  the  same  general 

methodology used by BWA in the 2010 Capacity Fee Study and 2016 Capacity Fee Update.  Key 

objectives of the 2019 update include: 

 Provide independent review of the District’s current capacity charges;

 Incorporate updated information and data to ensure the District’s capacity charges reflect

the cost of providing capacity for serving new or expanded connections to the District’s

wastewater system;

 Evaluate regional water use data and update estimates of residential wastewater flow;

 Develop updated capacity fees that:

o Comply with government code

o Are based on industry‐standard methodology

o Recover the cost of infrastructure and assets benefiting new development

o Are fair and equitable to existing and future customers.

123 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 2 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

BWA met with District  staff on various occasions  to gather  information, discuss  findings and 

alternatives, and receive input.  Recommendations were developed with input from District staff 

and reflect the following updated information: 

 The District’s fixed asset schedule as of June 30, 2019;

 The  District’s  20‐Year  Capital  Improvement  Plan  (CIP)  under  a  range  of  projected  costs

including mid‐point engineering cost estimates as well as  low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost

projections;

 The East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) fixed asset schedule as of June 30, 2018;

 Updated cost estimates for District and EBDA facilities based on the Engineering News‐

Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average);

 Projected wastewater flow and strength data from the District’s Enhanced Treatment and

Site Upgrade Program dated August 2019 by Woodard & Curran;

 Updated wastewater strength information from District lab analysis of wastewater influent;

 Updated wastewater flow and/or strength concentrations for various residential and

commercial customer categories.

Government Code 

Water and sewer capacity charges are governed by California Government Code Section 66013.  

This section of  the Code  is part of  the Mitigation Fee Act which was primarily established by 

Assembly Bill 1600 (AB 1600) in 1987. 

Section  66013  specifically  governs  water  and  wastewater  capacity  charges  and  defines  a 

“capacity  charge”  to mean  “a  charge  for public  facilities  in existence at  the  time a  charge  is 

imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that are of 

proportional  benefit  to  the  person  or  property  being  charged,  including  supply  or  capacity 

contracts for rights or entitlements, real property interests, and entitlements and other rights of 

the local agency involving capital expense related to its use of existing or new public facilities.”   

124 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 3 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Section 66013 distinguishes “capacity charges” from “connection fees” which are defined as fees 

for the physical facilities necessary to make a water or sewer connection, such as costs related 

to installation of meters and pipelines from a new building to a water or sewer main. 

According to the Section 66013, a water or wastewater capacity charge “shall not exceed the 

estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fee or charge is imposed” unless 

approved by a two‐thirds vote.  As such, the updated capacity charges calculated in this report 

represent the maximum charges that the District can  levy.   Section 66013 does not detail any 

specific methodology for calculating capacity charges.  

Other sections of the Government Code that apply to water and wastewater capacity charges 

include Section 66016, 66022 and 66023.  Section 66016 of the Code identifies the procedural 

requirements for adopting or increasing water and wastewater capacity charges.  Section 66022 

summarizes the general process by which the charges can be  legally challenged.   And Section 

66023 provides individuals with a process for requesting an audit to determine if a fee or charge 

is reasonable.  The full texts of Sections 66013, 66016 and 66022 are attached in Appendix F. 

125 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 4 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

2. Current & Historical Capacity Charges

Current Capacity Charges 

Table 1 on the following page shows a schedule of the District’s current capacity charges.  The 

charge for a typical new single family home is currently about $8,898.  Multi‐family residential 

connections pay a lower charge per dwelling unit.  Charges for commercial connections vary by 

type of business and reflect the estimated wastewater flows and strength concentrations for a 

range  of  commercial  categories.    Industrial  connections  pay  separate  capacity  charge 

components  for  flow and  strength based on actual  flow and wastewater  loadings.    Industrial 

capacity charges are  typically paid  in  four annual  installments and are ultimately adjusted  to 

reflect the maximum level of wastewater discharged during the payment period to help ensure 

the charges reflect the discharge generated by each connection based on actual operations. 

Historical Charges 

The following chart shows historical capacity charges per single family home.  Over the past 25 

years, the District’s charges have increased by an average of 5.6% per year.  Over the past four 

years, capacity charges were gradually phased in to the maximum levels calculated in the 2016 

fee update in order to spread the increase over a number of years. 

126 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 5 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 1 – Current Capacity Charges 

Connection Category Unit Definition

Single Family Dwelling Unit $8,897.71  per unit (new construction only; not additions or 

repairs)

Single Family Dwelling Unit (greater than 

4,500 square feet)

$8,897.71

+ (see right)

Charge per unit plus proportionate charge above 4,500 

sq. ft. (e.g. charge for 4,600 sq. ft. = 4,600/4,500 x 

charge per unit)

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61  per unit

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) 

$4.02  per square foot of building floor area

Mixed Use Commercial Property with 

Individual Tenant Units less than 10,000 sq. ft.

$10.49  per square foot of building floor area

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81  per unit, or

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90  per capita design tenant

Schools and Day Care Centers $5.58 

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School and Day Care facilities 

excluded)

$3.98  per square foot of building floor area

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85  per seat

Health Clubs $16.73  per square foot of building floor area

Park or Recreation Site restrooms $8,897.71  per water closet

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38  per washing machine

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03  per square foot of building floor area

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking 

facilities

$10.59  per square foot of building floor area

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71  lump sum

$1.69  per square foot of building floor area up to 50,000 

square feet

$0.42  per square foot of building floor area for that portion 

of each building above 50,000 square feet

Private Cafeterias $30.03  per square foot of floor area for food preparation, 

cooking, food storage, and food service areas 

(excluding seating areas)

$8,897.71  lump sum, plus

$29.66  per square foot for any additional pad area above 600 

square feet

Mobile Home Holding Tank disposal station $17,795.42  lump sum

Non‐Standard Connections

Volume Component $24.96 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Single Family Dwelling Unit.

Source:  Ordinance No. 35.22 adopted April 25, 2016.

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

Charge Per Unit

per square foot of building floor area

Warehouses

Equipment Wash Pad in Interceptor

Capacity charges for uses not listed in the above table shall be determined by 

the District Engineer based upon the volume and pollutant loadings of the 

wastewater to be discharged.

127 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 6 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 2 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

Fiscal Year  Capacity Charge per Annual 

Ending June 30 Single Family Home % Change 

1996 $2,400.00 ‐ 

1997 2,485.00 3.5%

1998 2,572.00 3.5%

1999 2,618.00 1.8%

2000 2,618.00 0.0%

2001 2,618.00 0.0%

2002 2,618.00 0.0%

2003 2,710.00 3.5%

2004 2,845.50 5.0%

2005 2,987.78 5.0%

2006 3,137.17 5.0%

2007 3,294.03 5.0%

2008 3,458.73 5.0%

2009 3,631.67 5.0%

2010 3,813.25 5.0%

2011 4,003.91 5.0%

2012 4,404.30 10.0%

2013 4,844.73 10.0%

2014 5,329.20 10.0%

2015 5,595.66 5.0%

2016 5,595.66 0.0%

2017 6,421.17 14.8%

2018 7,246.69 12.9%

2019 8,072.20 11.4%

2020 8,897.71 10.2%

Average Annual Increase Since 1996 5.6%

128 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 7 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

The  following  table  shows  capacity  charge  revenues by  fiscal year  since 2000 along with  the 

estimated  number  of  new  single  family  residential  equivalents  connecting  each  year.    The 

average number of new single  family equivalents connecting over the period shown  is a  little 

over 1,300 per year.  The District has experienced a higher‐than‐historical level of capacity charge 

revenues  in recent years due to both a) higher than average  levels of new development, and 

b) an increase in capacity charges in recent years.

Table 3 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

Fiscal Year  Capacity Fee Capacity Fee Equivalent #

Ending June 30 Revenues Per EDU of Paid EDUs

2000 $6,285,294 $2,618 2,401

2001 9,010,445 2,618 3,442

2002 2,188,019 2,618 836

2003 1,665,970 2,710 615

2004 3,411,559 2,846 1,199

2005 3,173,183 2,988 1,062

2006 3,819,854 3,137 1,218

2007 3,503,054 3,294 1,063

2008 3,746,046 3,459 1,083

2009 2,467,083 3,632 679

2010 2,467,083 3,813 647

2011 3,381,963 4,004 845

2012 2,848,488 4,404 647

2013 3,062,836 4,845 632

2014 3,315,007 5,329 622

2015 4,820,637 5,596 861

2016 7,233,337 5,596 1,293

2017 12,595,637 6,421 1,962

2018 23,473,238 7,247 3,239

2019 16,158,027 8,072 2,002

2020 14,179,465 8,898 1,594

2000‐2020 Average 1,330

2000‐2020 Median 1,063

10‐Year Average 1,370

Annual Avg from Lowest 5‐Year Continuous Period 679

Annual Avg from Highest 5‐Year Continuous Period 2,018

EDUs = Equivalent Dwelling Units (Single Family Residential Equivalents)

129 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 8 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 130 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 9 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

3. Capacity Charge Methodology

Fee Methodology 

This  report  calculates  updated  capacity  charges  based  on  a  Total  Cost  /  Total  Capacity 

methodology  for  5  categories  of  District  assets  listed  below.    Unit  charges  were  developed 

separately for each of these asset types to more accurately reflect the cost per unit of capacity 

in each type of infrastructure. 

 Treatment Plant

 Collection System

 Pump Station & Conveyance

 General/Admin Facilities

 EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

The general approach for calculating updated fees for each asset class include: 

Capacity Charge Methodology 

Step 1 ‐ Determine Cost of Facilities & Assets for Fee Recovery 

Determine the recoverable cost of facilities and assets to be recovered by the 
capacity charge.  Charges can recover costs for existing facilities as well as 

expansion‐related capital improvements and other system upgrades and assets. 

Step 2 ‐ Identify Capacity of Facilities 

Identify the corresponding service capacity of facilities and assets accounting for 
planned capital improvements.  Separate capacities may be identified for 

different types of facilities. 

Step 3 ‐ Calculate Cost per Unit of Capacity 

Calculate the cost per unit of capacity by dividing the costs identified for fee 
recovery in Step 1 by the service capacity of those facilities identified in Step 2. 

Step  4 ‐ Apply Cost per Unit to the Capacity Needs of New Development 

Apply the unit cost for capacity to the infrastructure capacity needs of each new 
development to determine an equitable capacity charge per new connection. 

131 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 10 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Facility Valuation 

There are a range of reasonable approaches used for estimating facility costs for recovery via 

capacity charges.  The updated capacity charges proposed in this report are based on the cost of 

facilities in current dollars.  This is an industry standard approach that a) does not reduce asset 

value to account for depreciation, but also b) excludes costs incurred for maintaining expansion 

capacity in facilities designed to serve growth, and c) excludes interest on debt and/or implied 

interest on funds internally advanced to prepay for expansion capacity in infrastructure built to 

accommodate projected future demands.  Depreciation is not factored in to the calculation to 

ensure that the fee reflects the full cost, and not a reduced portion of the cost, of facilities that 

were funded and built in advance to serve future development.  

The valuation method used  in the fee calculation reflects the principle that agencies and their 

customers benefit from economies of scale by building  infrastructure sized to meet projected 

future demands, which results in a lower average cost per unit of capacity than if infrastructure 

was built on a piecemeal basis as growth occurs.  The average cost per unit of capacity in a single 

larger pipeline, for example, is substantially lower than the cost of adding pipeline capacity on a 

unit by unit basis as growth occurs.  If the recoverable costs of facilities are continually reduced 

to account for depreciation, then agencies would not be able to recover the proportionate share 

of costs of infrastructure built in advance to accommodate future growth since new connections 

would only have to pay a discounted cost  for  facilities constructed  in advance to serve them.  

With depreciation, a new connection in 20 years, for example, would only have to pay for half of 

the cost of facility with a 40‐year useful life resulting in financial subsidization of growth. 

Facility valuations used to calculate updated capacity charges are based on the following: 

 District Wastewater  Facilities:  The  recoverable  cost  of  the  District’s  wastewater  system

infrastructure is based on the acquisition cost of assets identified in the District’s latest fixed

asset schedule as of June 30, 2019 escalated into current dollars based on the change in the

ENR Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average) from acquisition date to 2020 dollars.  For

132 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 11 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

comparison,  BWA  also  calculated  costs  of  the District’s  conveyance  system  based  on  an 

updated  inventory of pipelines and cost estimates per  linear  foot which resulted a similar 

valuation of the collection system. 

 EBDA Fixed Assets: The recoverable cost for the District’s share of EBDA facilities is based on

the same, ENR‐adjustment process described above to bring the original acquisition cost into

current dollars accounting for construction cost inflation.

 90% Cost Recovery Factor:  To both be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities

that may not provide benefit to new wastewater connections, the updated fee calculation

only includes 90% cost recovery for both the District’s wastewater system infrastructure as

well as the District’s share of capacity in EBDA effluent disposal facilities.

133 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 12 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

4. Updated Capacity Charge Calculation

Recoverable Costs 

Tables 4  through 7  identify  costs  for  facilities and assets  to be  recovered  from  the District’s 

updated capacity charges. 

District Infrastructure & Assets 

Table 4 summarizes the original and  inflation‐adjusted cost of the District’s  infrastructure and 

assets.  The recoverable cost of each type of asset is based on the purchase price of each asset 

adjusted into current dollars by the change in the Engineering News‐Record (ENR) Construction 

Cost  Index  (20‐Cities Average)  from  the acquisition year  to  June 2009.   The  table presents a 

summary of a line‐by‐line analysis of the District’s fixed asset depreciation schedule as shown in 

Appendix B.   To be conservative and exclude cost recovery  for  facilities that may not provide 

benefit to new wastewater connections, the updated charges account for 90% cost recovery for 

facilities and assets included in Table 4. 

Alternative Pipeline Cost Estimates 

To help verify the reasonableness of the cost estimates shown in Table 4, BWA also estimated 

collection system value based on an alternative approach accounting for the length and size of 

District pipelines and replacement costs per linear foot as shown on Table 5.  Cost estimates per 

linear foot are based on a study conducted in 2008 by RMC Engineers with costs per linear foot 

adjusted into current costs based on the change in ENR Construction Cost Index.  As shown at 

the bottom of Table 5, this alternative pipeline valuation approach results in a higher total cost 

than  the  collection  system  valuation  used  in  the  fee  update, which  is  based  on  90%  of  the 

inflation‐adjusted  cost of  assets  identified on Table 4.   BWA proposes  to use  the  lower‐cost 

approach for collection system assets in the updated fee calculation. 

134 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 13 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 4 – Summary of District Fixed Assets & Valuation 

Acquisition ENR‐Adjusted

Asset Class & Type Cost Cost

Treatment Plant Assets

trmtplant tmntplant $128,553,722 $230,689,757

Other Treatment Plant Assets 75,646,413 129,542,511

  SUBTOTAL 204,200,135 360,232,268

Collection System Assets

collection collsys 167,515,188 356,368,326

collection contribcs 209,680,380 1,163,757,363

collection liftstat 7,060,153 8,051,125

Less Treatment Plant Assets (58,179) (103,857)

  SUBTOTAL 384,197,543 1,528,072,958

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

collection pumpstat 35,743,640 54,729,400

collection twnforce 23,583,021 89,205,988

Less Treatment Plant Assets (207,733) (295,510)

  SUBTOTAL 59,118,927 143,639,878

General/Admin Assets

equipment 7,987,625 10,871,700

fleet 7,197,713 9,336,147

intangible 6,415,898 10,827,312

land 5,395,903 94,411,513

operations 78,877,183 137,969,393

Less Treatment Plant Assets (75,380,501) (129,143,144)

  SUBTOTAL 30,493,821 134,272,921

TOTAL 678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Note:  Some assets associated with treatment plant are included in other asset categories

135 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 14 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 5 – Pipeline Inventory & Replacement Cost per Linear Foot 

Pipeline Length  % of

Diameter (feet)
1

System 2008 $/LF
2

2019 $/LF
3

Total

5" 419 0.0% $225
4

$311 $130,309

6" 175,278 4.1% 225
5

311 54,511,458

8" 2,997,748 70.0% 225
5

311 932,299,628

10" 466,407 10.9% 230
6

318 148,317,426

12" 228,482 5.3% 235
6

325 74,256,650

14" 2,706 0.1% 310
4

429 1,160,874

15" 96,051 2.2% 310 429 41,205,879

16" 152 0.0% 310
4

429 65,208

18" 65,589 1.5% 335 463 30,367,707

20" 5,954 0.1% 360
4

498 2,965,092

21" 57,607 1.3% 360 498 28,688,286

24" 31,171 0.7% 385 533 16,614,143

27" 46,326 1.1% 410 567 26,266,842

30" 14,056 0.3% 450 623 8,756,888

33" 28,387 0.7% 500 692 19,643,804

36" 33,993 0.8% 550 761 25,868,673

39" 15,250 0.4% 575 795 12,123,750

42" 1,608 0.0% 600 830 1,334,640

48" 6,105 0.1% 700 968 5,909,640

60" 6,283 0.1% 800 1,107 6,955,281

Total 4,279,572 100.0% 1,437,442,178

Comparison to Collection System Valuation from Table 4

Collection System Assets (Including Lift Stations) 1,528,072,958

Cost Adjustment Factor Used in Fee Calculation 90%

Cost Recovery Used in Fee Calculation 1,375,265,662

1 Source: RMC Engineers, Long‐Term Gravity Sewer Renewal/Replacement Projections

   Dated September 5, 2008; Page 2, Table 1.

2 Source:  Based on same document as above, Page 7, Table 5.

3 Adjusted by the change in the Engineering News‐Record Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities

   from the 2008 average index to the January 2020 index.

4 Estimated based on replacement cost of nearest size pipeline.

5 For 6" and 8" pipe, cost assumes 80% pipe bursting and 20% open‐cut replacement.

6 For 10" and 12" pipe, cost assumes 70% pipe bursting and 30% open‐cut replacement.

Replacement Cost

136 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 15 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

EBDA Fixed Assets 

Table 6 calculates the District’s share of costs for EBDA facilities based on the ENR‐adjusted cost 

of each asset  from  the acquisition price  into current dollars accounting  for construction cost 

inflation.  Detailed calculations for each asset are shown in Appendix C.  The total ENR‐adjusted 

cost of shared EBDA facilities is calculated at roughly $146 million.  The District is allocated 48.8% 

of EBDA facilities, equal to about $71 million, based on the District’s capacity allocation under 

EBDA’s joint power agreement. 

Table 6 – Summary of EBDA Fixed Assets & Valuation 

20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan 

Table 7 shows a summary of the District’s 20‐Year CIP, which is attached in Appendix E.  The table 

breaks out the share of CIP costs related to a) renewal and replacement of existing facilities and 

b) expansion and upgrade of capacity to serve new development.  The updated fee calculations

recover  the  capacity‐related CIP  costs but exclude  the  share of  costs  related  to  renewal and

replacement to ensure no double‐counting of existing assets and their replacements.

Acquisition ENR‐Adjusted

EBDA Asset Class Cost Cost

Buildings & Structures  Operations Ctr $529,917 $1,579,593

Hayward Pump Station 1,600,599 3,004,333

San Leandro Pump Station Excluded 

Marina Dechlor Facility 2,889,652 7,031,915

Oro Loma Pump Station 8,250,102 21,101,832

Alvarado Pump Station Excluded ‐

Data Acquisition System 510,856 1,017,053

Reclamation Facilities 747,707 1,897,100

Subsurface Lines 40,111,302 109,966,930

Office Furniture & Equipment 134,183 220,518

Field Equipment 71,053 171,443

Automotive Equipment 19,718 28,453___________ ___________

  Total 54,865,089 146,019,170

Union Sanitary District Share of EBDA Facilities

USD's Share of EBDA Facilities 48.8% 71,257,355

1 Source:  EBDA Fixed Asset Depreciation Schedule 06/30/18

137 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 16 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

The table summarizes projected CIP costs under a range of cost estimates including a mid‐point 

cost estimate as well as low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost estimates.  The updated capacity charges 

calculated in this report are based on the mid‐point cost estimate.  Updated charges were also 

calculated under the low and high cost estimates and are included in Appendix A.   

Table 7 – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan Summary 

 

The updated charges exclude cost‐recovery for some additional capital improvements that the 

District anticipates would likely be needed to serve customer demand through projected buildout 

but are not included in the current CIP.  As such, the updated charges account for a conservative 

estimate of future capital improvement funding needs for growth. 

20‐Year Cost Estimate Mid‐Point Low ‐15% High +25%

Administrative Facilities

Renewal & Replacement $79,900,000 $67,915,000 $99,875,000

Capacity 1,550,000 1,317,500 1,937,500

  Subtotal 81,450,000 69,232,500 101,812,500

Collection System

Renewal & Replacement 31,550,000 26,817,500 39,437,500

Capacity 1,700,000 1,445,000 2,125,000

  Subtotal 33,250,000 28,262,500 41,562,500

Transport System

Renewal & Replacement 105,925,000 90,036,250 132,406,250

Capacity 36,050,000 30,642,500 45,062,500

  Subtotal 141,975,000 120,678,750 177,468,750

Treatment

Renewal & Replacement 531,550,000 451,817,500 664,437,500

Capacity 297,975,000 253,278,750 372,468,750

  Subtotal 829,525,000 705,096,250 1,036,906,250

Total CIP

Renewal & Replacement 748,925,000 636,586,250 936,156,250

Capacity 337,275,000 286,683,750 421,593,750

  Total 1,086,200,000 923,270,000 1,357,750,000

Source:  Union Sanitary District

Note:  Additional capital improvements would be needed to serve demand through projected buildout.

138 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 17 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Total Recoverable Costs 

Table 8 summarizes the total amount of costs to be recovered from the updated capacity charges.  

To be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities that may not provide benefit to new 

wastewater connections, the updated charges account for 90% cost recovery for facilities and 

assets included in the updated fee calculations. 

Table 8 – Total Recoverable Costs 

Total  Cost Cost 

Recoverable  Adjustment For Capacity 

Cost  Factor Fee Recovery 

Treatment Plant Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$360,232,268 90% $324,209,041

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

297,975,000 90% 268,177,500

  Subtotal 658,207,268 592,386,541

Collection System Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$1,528,072,958 90% $1,375,265,662

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

1,700,000 90% 1,530,000

  Subtotal 1,529,772,958 1,376,795,662

Pump Station & Conveyance

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$143,639,878 90% $129,275,890

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

36,050,000 90% 32,445,000

  Subtotal 179,689,878 161,720,890

General/Administrative Facilities & Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$134,272,921 90% $120,845,629

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

1,550,000 90% 1,395,000

  Subtotal 135,822,921 122,240,629

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
3

$71,257,355 90% $64,131,620

TOTAL $2,574,750,380 $2,317,275,342

1 Based on ENR‐adjusted purchase price shown on Table 4.

2 Based on mid‐point constuction cost estimate shown on Table 7.

3 Based on Union Sanitary District's share of EBDA facilities shown on Table 6.

Note: Excludes CIP costs for repairs & replacements to existing assets.

139 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 18 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Wastewater System Capacity 

Table 9 lists the capacities of various types of District facilities used in the calculation of updated 

capacity charges. 

Table 9 – Wastewater System Capacity 

Treatment Plant Permit Capacity

Flow (ADWF)1 33.0 mgd NPDES Permit Capacity

Treatment Plant Design Flows & Loads at Buildout

Flow2 33.0 mgd Average Annual Flow

TSS2 99,600 lbs/day Average Annual Load

cBOD52 74,300 lbs/day Average Annual Load

BOD3 81,730 lbs/day Assumes BOD = cBOD5 x 1.10

Estimated Concentrations at Buildout

TSS 362 mg/l

cBOD5 270 mg/l

BOD 297 mg/l

Collection System Capacity (ADWF)4

Irvington Basin 17.0 mgd

Newark Basin 10.8 mgd

Alvarado Basin 11.2 mgd

Total Flow Capacity  39.0 mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

Service Capacity Flow (ADWF)5 39.0 mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Flow Capacity (ADWF) 42.9   mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

1 Source:  NPDES Permit Capacity for Average Dry Weather Flow.

2 Source: Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program, August 2019 ; Woodard & Curran, 

   Table 3.1: Design Flows and Loads.

3 Conversion factor based on Union Sanitary District lab analysis of wastewater influent.

4 Based on estimated buildout capacity from master plan updates for the District's 3 basins.

5 Assumes pump stations are adequate to handle buildout capacity of each basin.

140 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 19 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Treatment plant  flow  capacity of 33 mgd  is based on  the plant’s NPDES Permit  capacity  for 

Average Dry Weather Flow.  Capacities for the wastewater strength measures of cBOD5 and TSS 

(or SS) are based on projections developed in the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program 

dated August 2019, and assume the treatment plant operates at full flow capacity of 33 mgd.  

Capacity  for BOD  is based on an updated conversion  factor based on  the District’s recent  lab 

analysis.  

Collection  system  capacity  is estimated  at 39 mgd based on  the  combined build‐out design 

capacity (ADWF) for each of the District’s 3 sub‐basins.  This capacity estimate is likely on the high 

side considering that pipeline upgrades/expansions would likely be needed to relieve bottlenecks 

in order to handle flows through buildout. 

Pump  station  and  conveyance  system  capacity  is  also  estimated  at  39 mgd  based  on  total 

collection  system  capacity  assuming  these  facilities  are  adequately  sized  to  handle  flows  at 

buildout.  This capacity estimate is also likely on the high side as the District would likely need to 

either expand existing pump stations and force mains, or construct other facilities – such as flow 

equalization basins – to mitigate the capacity shortfalls of existing pump stations and force mains 

to handle flows through buildout. 

The District’s share of capacity of EBDA effluent disposal facilities is based on the District’s share 

of Average Dry Weather Flow capacity in EBDA infrastructure. 

Cost Allocation 

Table 10 allocates the costs of the District’s wastewater treatment  for  fee recovery based on 

wastewater  flow and strength.   The allocations are based on a)  individual cost allocations  for 

specific plant components when such information could be identified by District staff, and b) a 

general  cost  allocation  of  1/3rd  flow,  1/3rd  BOD  and  1/3rd  SS  for  other  facilities,  which  was 

determined to be a reasonable estimate based on input from District staff.   

141 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 20 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 10 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

B
ld
g

A
ss
et
 V
al
u
e 

G
e
n
er
a
l

N
o
.

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

Ju
n
e 
20
1
91

 
A
llo
ca
ti
o
n

T
SS

B
O
D

Fl
o
w

T
o
ta
l

T
SS

B
O
D

Fl
o
w

To
ta
l

00
A

lv
ar

ad
o
 T

rt
m

n
t 

P
la

n
t 

A
ss

et
s

64
,4

70
,7

4
5

   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
2

1,
49

0
,2

48
  

2
1,

49
0

,2
48

  
2

1,
49

0
,2

48
  

6
4,

47
0

,7
45

  

50
A

lv
ar

ad
o
 P

u
m

p
 S

ta
ti

o
n

5
82

,2
1

5
   

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
  

‐
   
  

58
2

,2
15

  
58

2,
21

5
  

5
1

Pr
im

ar
y 

B
u

ild
in

g 
1 
‐ 

4
11

,7
19

,3
6

2
   
 

70
%

1
0%

20
%

10
0

%
8,

20
3

,5
53

   
 

1,
17

1
,9

36
   
 

2,
34

3
,8

72
   
 

1
1,

71
9

,3
62

  

5
2

Pr
im

ar
y 

B
u

ild
in

g 
5 
‐ 

6
1,

5
45

,4
8

6
   
   

75
%

1
5%

10
%

10
0

%
1,

15
9

,1
14

   
 

23
1

,8
23

  
15

4
,5

49
  

1,
54

5,
48

6
   
 

53
A

er
at

io
n
 5
 ‐
 7

4,
8

35
,4

7
6

   
   

10
%

7
0%

20
%

10
0

%
48

3
,5

48
   
   
 

3,
38

4
,8

33
   
 

96
7

,0
95

  
4,

83
5,

47
6

   
 

54
A

er
at

io
n
 1
 ‐
 4

4,
2

21
,8

7
2

   
   

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
63

3
,2

81
   
   
 

3,
16

6
,4

04
   
 

42
2

,1
87

  
4,

22
1,

87
2

   
 

55
Pu

m
p
 R

o
o

m
 2

7,
4

21
,2

0
1

   
   

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
1,

11
3

,1
80

   
 

5,
56

5
,9

01
   
 

74
2

,1
20

  
7,

42
1,

20
1

   
 

56
Pu

m
p
 R

o
o

m
 4

2,
6

10
,5

9
8

   
   

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
39

1
,5

90
   
   
 

1,
95

7
,9

49
   
 

26
1

,0
60

  
2,

61
0,

59
8

   
 

57
R

ec
la

im
ed

 W
tr
 P

u
m

p
 R

o
o

m
1,

1
37

,4
0

8
   
   

45
%

4
5%

10
%

10
0

%
51

1
,8

34
   
   
 

51
1

,8
34

  
11

3
,7

41
  

1,
13

7,
40

8
   
 

60
O

C
B
 

9
38

,6
5

1
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
31

2
,8

84
   
   
 

31
2

,8
84

  
31

2
,8

84
  

93
8,

65
1

  

61
61

‐O
C

B
‐C

H
E

1,
0

21
,1

8
6

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
34

0
,3

95
   
   
 

34
0

,3
95

  
34

0
,3

95
  

1,
02

1,
18

6
   
 

62
Ya

rd
 P

ip
in

g
5,

2
40

,8
1

4
   
   

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
  

‐
   
  

5,
24

0
,8

14
   
 

5,
24

0,
81

4
   
 

63
A

n
ae

ro
b

ic
 D

ig
es

ti
o

n
3,

5
5

1
,9

7
7

   
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1,

77
5

,9
88

   
 

1,
77

5
,9

88
   
 

‐
   
  

3,
55

1,
97

7
   
 

64
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
3 

D
ig
 4

&
5

4,
0

11
,4

4
5

   
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
2,

00
5

,7
22

   
 

2,
00

5
,7

22
   
 

‐
   
  

4,
01

1,
44

5
   
 

65
Se

co
n

d
ar

y 
D

ig
 1

&
2

3,
0

15
,6

2
4

   
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1,

50
7

,8
12

   
 

1,
50

7
,8

12
   
 

‐
   
  

3,
01

5,
62

4
   
 

6
6

So
lid

s 
h

a
n

d
lin

g 
b

u
ild

in
g

1,
2

2
6

,7
8

1
   
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
61

3
,3

91
   
   
 

61
3

,3
91

  
‐

   
  

1,
22

6,
78

1
   
 

68
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce
 S

h
o

p
9,

1
06

,6
7

4
   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
3,

03
5

,5
58

   
 

3,
03

5
,5

58
   
 

3,
03

5
,5

58
   
 

9,
10

6,
67

4
   
 

69
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
R

m
 N

o
. 1

4
61

,9
8

7
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
15

3
,9

96
   
   
 

15
3

,9
96

  
15

3
,9

96
  

46
1,

98
7

  

70
C

o
n

tr
o

l B
u

ild
in

g
4,

3
1

2
,9

8
1

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
1,

43
7

,6
60

   
 

1,
43

7
,6

60
   
 

1,
43

7
,6

60
   
 

4,
31

2,
98

1
   
 

71
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
rm

 N
o

. 2
2

70
,2

7
8

   
X

3
3.

3%
33

.3
%

33
.3

%
10

0
%

90
,0

93
   
 

90
,0

93
   
  

90
,0

93
   
  

27
0,

27
8

  

73
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
 2
 D

ig
 3

5
15

,1
2

6
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
25

7
,5

63
   
   
 

25
7

,5
63

  
‐

   
  

51
5,

12
6

  

7
4

D
o

u
b

le
 E

n
d

e
d
 S

u
b

st
at

io
n

3,
2

44
,5

0
0

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
1,

08
1

,5
00

   
 

1,
08

1
,5

00
   
 

1,
08

1
,5

00
   
 

3,
24

4,
50

0
   
 

75
75

‐p
ai

n
t‐

s
1

87
,7

0
3

   
X

3
3.

3%
33

.3
%

33
.3

%
10

0
%

62
,5

68
   
 

62
,5

68
   
  

62
,5

68
   
  

18
7,

70
3

  

7
6

Pa
in

t 
Sh

o
p

1,
8

75
,9

6
5

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
62

5
,3

22
   
   
 

62
5

,3
22

  
62

5
,3

22
  

1,
87

5,
96

5
   
 

77
W

a
s 

T
h

ic
ke

n
er
 B

u
ild

in
g

1,
0

05
,6

1
1

   
   

20
%

8
0%

10
0

%
20

1
,1

22
   
   
 

80
4

,4
89

  
‐

   
  

1,
00

5,
61

1
   
 

78
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
R

m
 3

6
07

,8
8

7
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
20

2
,6

29
   
   
 

20
2

,6
29

  
20

2
,6

29
  

60
7,

88
7

  

79
H

e
ad

w
o

rk
s

4,
8

07
,9

0
9

   
   

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
  

‐
   
  

4,
80

7
,9

09
   
 

4,
80

7,
90

9
   
 

80
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
 4
 D

ig
 6

1,
0

74
,2

5
1

   
   

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
53

7
,1

26
   
   
 

53
7

,1
26

  
‐

   
  

1,
07

4,
25

1
   
 

81
C

en
tr

if
u

ge
 B

u
ild

in
g

2
7

,3
4

6
,1

6
1

   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1

3,
67

3
,0

80
  

1
3,

67
3

,0
80

  
‐

   
  

2
7,

34
6

,1
61

  

82
A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

21
,2

08
,8

8
1

   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
7,

06
9

,6
27

   
 

7,
06

9
,6

27
   
 

7,
06

9
,6

27
   
 

2
1,

20
8

,8
81

  

83
83

‐C
S/

A
U

TO
3

9
8

,5
7

0
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
13

2
,8

57
   
   
 

13
2

,8
57

  
13

2
,8

57
  

39
8,

57
0

  

84
84

‐C
O

V
ER

ED
12

,2
99

,6
0

3
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
4,

09
9

,8
68

   
 

4,
09

9
,8

68
   
 

4,
09

9
,8

68
   
 

1
2,

29
9

,6
03

  

86
86

‐s
o

la
r

1,
4

15
,1

9
7

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
47

1
,7

32
   
   
 

47
1

,7
32

  
47

1
,7

32
  

1,
41

5,
19

7
   
 

87
87

‐f
m

c 
m

gm
1

06
,1

7
5

   
X

3
3.

3%
33

.3
%

33
.3

%
10

0
%

35
,3

92
   
 

35
,3

92
   
  

35
,3

92
   
  

10
6,

17
5

  

88
88

‐t
rn

gc
tr

48
,9

7
6

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
16

,3
25

   
 

16
,3

25
   
  

16
,3

25
   
  

48
,9

76
   
  

90
C

o
ge

n
e

ra
ti

o
n
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

2,
6

70
,3

6
3

   
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
89

0
,1

21
   
   
 

89
0

,1
21

  
89

0
,1

21
  

2,
67

0,
36

3
   
 

99
O

th
er
 T

rt
m

en
t 

P
la

n
t 

A
ss

et
s

14
9,

7
16

,6
2

8
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
4

9,
90

5
,5

43
  

4
9,

90
5

,5
43

  
4

9,
90

5
,5

43
  

14
9,

71
6,

62
8

   

TO
TA

L
36
0,
2
32
,2
6
8

  
3
4.
6%

35
.7
%

29
.7
%

1
00
.0
%

12
4,
52
2,
22
1

  
12
8,
62
0,
16
8

  
10
7,
08
9,
87
9

  
36
0,
23
2,
26
8

  

1
 B

as
ed

 o
n
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n
 c

o
st

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 a

ss
et
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

h
an

ge
 in

 t
h

e 
EN

R
‐C

C
I (

20
‐C

it
ie

s 
A

vg
) 

fr
o

m
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n
 d

at
e 

to
 J

u
n

e 
20

1
9.

2
 S

o
u

rc
e

: A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n
 in

p
u

t 
fr

o
m
 U

n
io

n
 S

an
it

a
ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
it

h
 G

en
er

al
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ss
e

ts
 a

llo
ca

te
d
 1

/3
 t

o
 T

SS
, 1

/3
 B

O
D

, 1
/3
 F

lo
w

.

P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 U
ti
liz
at
io
n
2

C
o
st
 A
llo
ca
ti
o
n

142 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 21 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 11 shows overall wastewater system cost allocations to flow, BOD and SS for the 5 asset 

classes  used  for  updated  capacity  charges.    Treatment  plant  cost  allocations  are  based  on 

Table 10.  Costs for the collection system, the District’s pump stations and force mains, and the 

EBDA effluent disposal  infrastructure  are  all  allocated 100%  to  flow.   Costs  for  the District’s 

general and administrative facilities are allocated 50% to flow and 50% to strength split evenly 

between BOD and SS reflecting a balanced allocation for purposes of reasonably cost recovery.  

Overall, the updated capacity charges will be sized to recover approximately 79.4% from flow, 

10.4% from BOD, and 10.2% from SS. 

Table 11 – Wastewater System Cost Allocation 

Unit Cost Calculations 

Capacity charge unit costs for wastewater flow, BOD, and SS are shown on Table 12.  The District 

uses COD instead of BOD for levying capacity charges on industrial customers.  The unit cost for 

COD is based on an updated conversion factor determined by the District’s lab.  

Costs for Fee

Recovery Flow BOD SS Flow BOD SS

Treatment Plant $592,386,541 29.7% 35.7% 34.6% $176,104,720 $211,510,359 $204,771,462

Collection System 1,376,795,662 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1,376,795,662 0 0

Pump Station & Conveyance 161,720,890 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 161,720,890 0 0

General/Admin Facilities & Asset 122,240,629 50.0% 25.0% 25.0% 61,120,314 30,560,157 30,560,157

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities 64,131,620 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 64,131,620 0 0

Total 2,317,275,342 79.4% 10.4% 10.2% 1,839,873,206 242,070,516 235,331,619

Cost Allocation % Cost Allocation $

143 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 22 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 12 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

FLOW BOD SS

Treatment Plant

Cost Allocation $176,104,720 $211,510,359 $204,771,462

Capacity 33 mgd 81,730 lbs/day 99,600 lbs/day

Unit Cost $5,336,507 per mgd $2,587.92 per lb/day $2,055.94 per lb/day

5.337 per gpd

$14.62 per 1000 glns $7,090.18 per 1000 lbs $5,632.71 per 1000 lbs

Collection System

Cost Allocation $1,376,795,662

Capacity 39 mgd

Unit Cost $35,302,453 per mgd

35.302 per gpd

$96.72 per 1000 glns

Pump Station & WWTP Conveyance

Cost Allocation $161,720,890

Capacity 39 mgd

Unit Cost $4,146,689 per mgd

4.147 per gpd

$11.36 per 1000 glns

General/Admin Facilities & Assets

Cost Allocation $61,120,314 $30,560,157 $30,560,157

Capacity 39 mgd 81,730 lbs/day 99,600 lbs/day

Unit Cost $1,567,188 per mgd $373.92 per lb/day $306.83 per lb/day

1.567 per gpd

$4.29 per 1000 glns $1,024.43 per 1000 lbs $840.63 per 1000 lbs

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Cost Allocation $64,131,620

Capacity 42.9 mgd

Unit Cost $1,494,910 per mgd

1.495 per gpd

$4.10 per 1000 glns

FLOW BOD SS

Total Unit Costs $47,847,746 per mgd $2,961.83 per lb/day $2,362.77 per lb/day

$47.85 per gpd

$131.09 per 1000 gls $8,114.61 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

COD Conversion COD

Assumes BOD = COD x 0.396 $1,172.89 per lb/day

$3,213.39 per 1000 lbs

144 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 23 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

5. Wastewater Flows & Loadings

Residential Wastewater Flows & Loadings 

The  District’s  current  fees  are  based  on  the  assumption  that  a  typical  single  family  home 

discharges 210 gallons per day (gpd) of wastewater.  BWA previously analyzed 4 years of water 

use data for single family and multi‐family residential accounts provided by the Alameda County 

Water District (ACWD) from fiscal years 2005/06 through 2008/09.  ACWD’s service area mostly 

coincides with the District’s service area.   As part of the capacity charge update, BWA evaluated 

updated residential water use data  from the past 2  fiscal years 2017/18 and 2018/19 to help 

determine if the current wastewater flow assumptions remain reasonable or should be revised. 

The older data provides a reasonable estimate of residential water demand before California’s 

recent drought, which was declared over  in April 2017.   The data  from the past 2  fiscal years 

represents a period in which water demands have partially rebounded from levels experienced 

during the drought.  Water demands from the past 2 years do not reflect the full level of demand 

anticipated from future residential connections as water use is expected to continue rebounding 

in future years.  

Table  13  shows  historical  water  use  data  for  the  4  lowest  contiguous  months  of  water 

consumption.   This data  is based on wet‐weather water use which  reflects minimal outdoor 

irrigation and provides a reasonable estimate of indoor water use and wastewater discharge.   

Based on both the historical and updated data, estimated wastewater flow per dwelling unit is 

proposed  to  be  reduced  for  both  single  family  and  multi‐family  dwelling  units  as  future 

wastewater  discharge  is  anticipated  to  remain  lower  than  historical  norms.    Single  family 

residential  flow  is proposed  to be  reduced  from 210 gpd  to 195 gpd.    Flow per multi‐family 

dwelling unit is proposed to be reduced from 180 gpd to 170 gpd.  Note that typical size of a new 

multi‐family dwelling unit in the District’s service area is estimated at roughly 1,800 square feet. 

145 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 24 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 13 – Wastewater Flows per Residential Dwelling Unit 

Accessory Dwelling Units 

Accessory Dwelling Units  (ADUs) are generally defined as secondary residential dwelling units 

constructed on a residential property and may include a) second independent living units within 

or  attached  to  the  living  area  of  an  existing  primary  residence,  and  b)  detached  accessory 

dwelling units.  ADUs are governed by California Government Code Section 65852.2. 

The Code includes language governing water and sewer capacity charges for ADUs including: 

 ADUs within  the  living area of a primary  residence “shall not be considered  to be a new

residential use for the purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities,

Single Family Multi‐Family

Dwelling Unit Dwelling Unit

Lowest 4‐Month Contiguous Use per Fiscal Year (gpd)

Historical Data from Prior Study

2005/06 214 180

2006/07 238 188

2007/08 236 190

2008/09 225 181

Data from Past 2 Fiscal Years
1

2017/18 173 146

2018/19 169 142

Wastewater Flow per Dwelling Unit (gpd)

Historical Estimates 210 180

Revised Estimates
2

195 170

1 Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use 

was partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared 

state of drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017. p

wastewater discharge will remain lower than historical norms in future years, even 

after water use fully rebounds from levels experienced during California's recent 

drought.

146 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 25 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

including water and sewer service.”   Hence,  the District may not  levy capacity charges on 

ADUs that meet the requirements of the Code and are constructed within the living area of 

primary residence.  To be considered within the living area of a primary residence, the Code 

permits “an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions 

as the existing accessory structure.” 

 Detached ADUs, or ADUs that require expansion of a primary residence  in excess of 150

square feet “may require a new or separate utility connection directly between the accessory

dwelling unit and the utility. Consistent with Section 66013, the connection may be subject to

a connection fee or capacity charge that shall be proportionate to the burden of the proposed

accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its size or the number of its plumbing fixtures, upon

the water or sewer system.”

In compliance with the Code, the wastewater “burden” and capacity charges for ADUs eligible to 

pay such charges are proposed to be calculated in proportion to the square footage of each ADU.  

The wastewater  flow  per  square  foot  for  an ADU  is  conservatively  calculated  based  on  the 

estimated wastewater flow per square foot for a typical single family dwelling unit. 

As shown on Table 13, the wastewater flow per single family dwelling unit is estimated at 195 gpd 

based on historical water use data  from Alameda County Water District, whose  service area 

largely  coincides with Union  Sanitary District.    This  level  of wastewater  flow  is  divided  by  a 

conservatively‐high estimate of the size of a typical single family dwelling unit  in the District’s 

service  area  at  1,950  square  feet,  resulting  in  a  conservatively‐low  estimate  of  10 gpd  of 

wastewater flow per 100 square feet, or 0.1 gpd per square foot. This level of flow equates to 

120 gpd for the maximum size 1,200 square foot ADU.   

Wastewater capacity charges for new ADUs would be calculated based on the square footage of 

each unit multiplied by the capacity charge per square foot.  ADUs are assumed to have the same 

wastewater strength as other types of residential dwelling units. 

147 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 26 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Commercial Wastewater Flows & Loadings 

BWA  reviewed  the  wastewater  flow  and  strength  estimate  for  the  various  commercial  fee 

categories.  While no changes are recommended to most fee categories, the updated charges do 

account  for  a  few  modifications  in  wastewater  strength  estimates  for  non‐residential 

connections to better align the charges with industry‐standards and updated District estimates 

of  typical  flows  and  loadings  from  the  various  connection  charge  categories.    The  proposed 

capacity charges are based on assumptions that are consistent with industry standards and those 

used to develop and apply the District’s wastewater service charges.  

148 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 27 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

6. Proposed Capacity Charges

Capacity Charge per Single Family Home or EDU 

Table 14 calculates an updated capacity charge of $11,063 per single family home or EDU based 

on the unit costs developed for flow, BOD, and SS, and the wastewater loadings of a typical single 

family home.  The breakdown of the updated fee is shown as follows.   

Table 14 – Wastewater Flow per Residential Dwelling Unit 

The updated charge of $11,063 per single  family home or EDU  is approximately 24.3% higher 

than the District’s current fee of $8,898 per EDU.  This increase reflects a combination of factors 

including a) an  increase  in expansion‐related  improvements  identified  in  the District’s capital 

improvement  plan,  particularly  for  the  wastewater  treatment  plant,  b)  the  addition  of  new 

facilities constructed over the past roughly five years, and c) construction cost inflation since the 

prior  fee  update.    However,  these  cost  increases  are  offset  by  a  proposed  decrease  in  the 

estimated volume of wastewater flow generated by a new single family home. 

FLOW  BOD  SS  TOTAL

EDU Definition
1

195 gpd 200 mg/l 200 mg/l

0.119 1000 lbs 0.119 1000 lbs

Unit Costs
2

$47.85 per gpd $8,114.61 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

Capacity Charge $9,331 $963 $769 $11,063

1 An Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) represents the wastewater discharge from a typical single family home.

2 From Table 12.

149 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 28 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Industrial Capacity Charges 

Table 15 shows updated capacity charges for industrial customers.  Since the District recovers 

industrial capacity fees in 4 installments, the unit costs developed for flow, COD, and SS are 

divided by 4 to show the annual fee.   

Table 15 – Proposed Industrial Capacity Charges 

Updated Maximum Capacity Charges 

Table 16 shows a schedule of current and proposed maximum capacity charges, along with the 

percentage increase for each type of customer category.  The table also shows the wastewater 

flow and strength assumptions used to calculate fees for each customer type.  The proposed new 

maximum  fees  range  from  roughly 25%  to 40% higher  than  current  charges  for most of  the 

District’s connection categories. 

Projected Capacity Charge Revenues 

Table 17 projects capacity charge revenues under Slow, Moderate, and Faster Growth scenarios 

for informational purposes.  The table projects revenues under current capacity charges and the 

proposed maximum capacity charges, both assuming 2% annual fee escalation.   Based on the 

assumptions,  the  updated  maximum  charges  are  projected  to  generate  between  roughly 

$14 million and $35 million of additional  revenues over  the next decade.   Actual growth and 

capacity charge revenues may vary substantially from these projections. 

FLOW  COD  SS 

Proposed Industrial Fees

Unit Costs $131.09 per 1000 gallons $3,213.39 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

47.85 per gpd 1,172.89 per lb/day 2,362.77 per lb/day

Divided by 4 32.77 per 1000 gallons 803.35 per 1000 lbs 1,618.33 per 1000 lbs

11.96 per gpd 293.22 per lb/day 590.69 per lb/day

Note: Industrial fees are collected in 4 installments including an initial charge plus three additional 

charges for each subsequent year based on actual wastewater flow and strength from the prior annual 

period.

150 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 29 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 16 – Schedule of Updated Maximum Capacity Charges 

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1

% Change (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit
2 $8,897.71  $11,063  24% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,644  26% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU 

square footage ÷ 

4,500 sq ft x  the 

Single Family Fee

$5.67 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based 

on the square footage of 

each ADU

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual 

tenant units exceeding 10,000 square 

$4.02 $5.36 33% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.31 36% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,808 26% per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,971 34% per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.30 33% per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $283.66 34% per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.27 33% per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,063 24% per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,596 33% per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.18 34% per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum 20 150 1.00

$1.69 $2.27 34% per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.57 36% per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, 

cooking, food storage, and 

food service areas 

(excluding seating areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $39.71 34% per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,126 24% lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.77 31% per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $803.35 43% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,618.33 31% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

per square foot of building 

floor area

Warehouses

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.42 33%

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each type 

of connection.  

2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

151 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 30 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 17 – Projected Capacity Charge Revenues 

Y
e
ar

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

To
ta
l

G
ro
w
th
 P
ro
je
ct
io
n
s 
(E
q
u
iv
al
e
n
t 
D
w
e
ll
in
g 
U
n
it
s 
p
e
r 
Y
e
ar
)1

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
6,

00
0

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
10

,0
00

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

15
,0

00

R
e
ve
n
u
e
s 
B
as
e
d
 o
n
 C
u
rr
e
n
t  
C
ap
ac
it
y 
Fe
e
s 
w
it
h
 2
%
 A
n
n
u
al
 E
sc
al
at
io
n

Si
n

gl
e
 F

am
il

y 
Fe

e
 (

$ 
p

e
r 

ED
U

)
$8

,8
98

$9
,0

76
$9

,2
58

$9
,4

43
$9

,6
32

$9
,8

25
$1

0,
02

2
$1

0,
22

2
$1

0,
42

6
$1

0,
63

5

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
$5

,3
38

,6
26

$5
,4

45
,6

00
$5

,5
54

,8
00

$5
,6

65
,8

00
$5

,7
79

,2
00

$5
,8

95
,0

00
$6

,0
13

,2
00

$6
,1

33
,2

00
$6

,2
55

,6
00

$6
,3

81
,0

00
$5

8,
46

2,
02

6

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
8,

89
7,

71
0

9,
07

6,
00

0
9,

25
8,

00
0

9,
44

3,
00

0
9,

63
2,

00
0

9,
82

5,
00

0
10

,0
22

,0
00

10
,2

22
,0

00
10

,4
26

,0
00

10
,6

35
,0

00
97

,4
36

,7
10

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

13
,3

46
,5

65
13

,6
14

,0
00

13
,8

87
,0

00
14

,1
64

,5
00

14
,4

48
,0

00
14

,7
37

,5
00

15
,0

33
,0

00
15

,3
33

,0
00

15
,6

39
,0

00
15

,9
52

,5
00

14
6,

15
5,

06
5

R
e
ve
n
u
e
s 
B
as
e
d
 o
n
 P
ro
je
ct
e
d
 C
ap
ac
it
y 
Fe
e
s 
w
it
h
 2
%
 A
n
n
u
al
 E
sc
al
at
io
n

Si
n

gl
e
 F

am
il

y 
Fe

e
 (

$ 
p

e
r 

ED
U

)
$1

1,
06

3
$1

1,
28

4
$1

1,
51

0
$1

1,
74

0
$1

1,
97

5
$1

2,
21

5
$1

2,
45

9
$1

2,
70

8
$1

2,
96

2
$1

3,
22

1

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
$6

,6
37

,8
00

$6
,7

70
,4

00
$6

,9
06

,0
00

$7
,0

44
,0

00
$7

,1
85

,0
00

$7
,3

29
,0

00
$7

,4
75

,4
00

$7
,6

24
,8

00
$7

,7
77

,2
00

$7
,9

32
,6

00
$7

2,
68

2,
20

0

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
11

,0
63

,0
00

11
,2

84
,0

00
11

,5
10

,0
00

11
,7

40
,0

00
11

,9
75

,0
00

12
,2

15
,0

00
12

,4
59

,0
00

12
,7

08
,0

00
12

,9
62

,0
00

13
,2

21
,0

00
12

1,
13

7,
00

0

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

16
,5

94
,5

00
16

,9
26

,0
00

17
,2

65
,0

00
17

,6
10

,0
00

17
,9

62
,5

00
18

,3
22

,5
00

18
,6

88
,5

00
19

,0
62

,0
00

19
,4

43
,0

00
19

,8
31

,5
00

18
1,

70
5,

50
0

1 
C

o
n

se
rv

at
iv

e
ly
 e

st
im

at
e

d
 b

as
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
vi

e
w
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
ca

l c
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s 
o

ve
r 

p
as

t 
20
 y

e
ar

s.

152 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 31 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

7. Capacity Charge Application

This section highlights some key issues regarding the application and implementation of the 

updated capacity charges. 

Capacity Charge Ordinance:  Purpose of Charge 

Pursuant to Government Code, revenues derived by capacity charges can only be used for the 

purpose for which the charges are collected.  In order to maximize the District’s flexibility for use 

of  capacity  charge  revenues,  BWA  generally  recommends  that  the  resolution  or  ordinance 

adopting new charges broadly define  the purpose of  the charge, such as  to  recover costs  for 

wastewater  system  infrastructure,  wastewater  treatment  plant  capacity,  and  any  other 

wastewater utility assets benefitting new or expanded connections to the wastewater system.  

Capacity Charge Application to Projects with Unknown Uses 

Developers occasionally  seek permits  for development projects whose ultimate uses are not 

known at the time the capacity charge is paid.  In these cases, BWA recommends the District levy 

the capacity charge for the general Commercial/Industrial/Office (CIO) use as an initial payment 

that would be subject to adjustment after the development is occupied and its uses are known.  

The  future  adjustment  may  include  the  requirement  to  pay  additional  capacity  charges  or 

potentially  receive  a  partial  refund.    In  such  cases,  the  District  should  require  written 

acknowledgment from the property owner regarding the potential requirement for additional 

capacity charges to be paid based on the future use of the property. 

Capacity Charge Credits for Redevelopment 

Capacity  charges  for  redevelopment  projects  and/or  expansions  should  be  based  on  the 

incremental increase in wastewater demand generated from each project.  Under this approach, 

the  fees  for  future  redevelopment  projects  would  be  based  on  the  incremental  difference 

between  the  capacity  charges  that would  apply  to  the  current  connection  and  the  capacity 

charges applicable to the expanded connection.   

153 of 401



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 32 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Future Fee Adjustments 

In  future years, BWA recommends  that  the District review and consider updating  its capacity 

charges  when  substantial  revisions  are  made  to  anticipated  wastewater  system  capital 

improvement costs or funding, or to substantial changes in projected demand.  In general, BWA 

recommends  that  capacity  charges be  independently  reviewed and/or updated at  least once 

every five years. 

154 of 401



APPENDIX A

Capacity Charges With Low & High

CIP Cost Estimates (‐15% & +25%)

The District's 20‐Year CIP includes a range of cost estimates for future capital improvements

including a mid‐point cost estimate as well as low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost estimates.  The 

updated capacity charges calculated in this report are based on the mid‐point cost estimate.  

Updated charges were also calculated under the low and high capital cost estimates as shown on 

the following tables in this appendix.  Compared to the mid‐point cost estimate, the low cost 

estimate resulted in roughly a $200 decrease, and high cost estimate resulted in a roughly $330 

increase, to the capacity charges for a single family home.  This appendix also includes tables 

projecting capacity charge revenues with the low and high fee estimates.

155 of 401



Capacity Charges

Low CIP Engineering Cost Estimate (‐15%)

156 of 401



Table B‐1 Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)

Union Sanitary District

Proposed Maximum Capacity Fees

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $10,862 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,470 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Based on ADU 

square footage / 

4,500 sf x Single 

Family Fee

$5.57 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

Accessory Dwelling Unit

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.27 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $13.97 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,684 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,899 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.22 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $278.52 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $21.93 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $10,862 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,460 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $40.85 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $13.93 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $10,862 lump sum 20 150 1.00

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.31 per square foot of building 

floor area

157 of 401



Table B‐1 Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)

Union Sanitary District

Proposed Maximum Capacity Fees

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

CHARGE PER UNIT

$1.69 $2.23 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.56 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $40.85 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food service 

areas (excluding seating 

areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $10,862 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $38.99 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 600 

square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $21,724 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.43 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $755.51 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,522.35 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

f2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

158 of 401



Table B‐2 Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)

Union Sanitary District

Projected Capacity Fee Revenues Annual Fee Escalation 2.0%

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total

Growth Projections (Equivalent Dwelling Units per Year)1

Slow Growth 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 6,000

Moderate Growth 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 10,000

Faster Growth 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

Revenues Based on Current Capacity Fees with 2% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $8,898 $9,076 $9,258 $9,443 $9,632 $9,825 $10,022 $10,222 $10,426 $10,635

Slow Growth $5,338,626 $5,445,600 $5,554,800 $5,665,800 $5,779,200 $5,895,000 $6,013,200 $6,133,200 $6,255,600 $6,381,000 $58,462,026

Moderate Growth 8,897,710 9,076,000 9,258,000 9,443,000 9,632,000 9,825,000 10,022,000 10,222,000 10,426,000 10,635,000 97,436,710

Faster Growth 13,346,565 13,614,000 13,887,000 14,164,500 14,448,000 14,737,500 15,033,000 15,333,000 15,639,000 15,952,500 146,155,065

Revenues Based on Projected Capacity Fees with 2% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $10,862 $11,079 $11,301 $11,527 $11,758 $11,993 $12,233 $12,478 $12,728 $12,983

Slow Growth $6,517,308 $6,647,400 $6,780,600 $6,916,200 $7,054,800 $7,195,800 $7,339,800 $7,486,800 $7,636,800 $7,789,800 $71,365,308

Moderate Growth 10,862,180 11,079,000 11,301,000 11,527,000 11,758,000 11,993,000 12,233,000 12,478,000 12,728,000 12,983,000 118,942,180

Faster Growth 16,293,270 16,618,500 16,951,500 17,290,500 17,637,000 17,989,500 18,349,500 18,717,000 19,092,000 19,474,500 178,413,270

1 Conservatively estimated based on review of historical connections over past 20 years.

159 of 401



Capacity Charges

High CIP Engineering Cost Estimate (+25%)

160 of 401



Table C‐1 High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)

Union Sanitary District

Proposed Maximum Capacity Fees

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $11,394 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,933 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Based on ADU 

square footage / 

4,500 sf x Single 

Family Fee

$5.84 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

Accessory Dwelling Unit

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.50 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.86 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $7,012 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $4,090 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.44 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $292.16 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.83 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,394 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,820 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $44.41 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.61 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,394 lump sum 20 150 1.00

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.61 per square foot of building 

floor area

161 of 401



Table C‐1 High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)

Union Sanitary District

Proposed Maximum Capacity Fees

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

CHARGE PER UNIT

$1.69 $2.34 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.58 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $44.41 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food service 

areas (excluding seating 

areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,394 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $40.90 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 600 

square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,788 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $33.34 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $883.08 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,778.31 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

f2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

162 of 401



Table C‐2 High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)

Union Sanitary District

Projected Capacity Fee Revenues Annual Fee Escalation 2.0%

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total

Growth Projections (Equivalent Dwelling Units per Year)
1

Slow Growth 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 6,000

Moderate Growth 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 10,000

Faster Growth 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

Revenues Based on Current Capacity Fees with 2% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $8,898 $9,076 $9,258 $9,443 $9,632 $9,825 $10,022 $10,222 $10,426 $10,635

Slow Growth $5,338,626 $5,445,600 $5,554,800 $5,665,800 $5,779,200 $5,895,000 $6,013,200 $6,133,200 $6,255,600 $6,381,000 $58,462,026

Moderate Growth 8,897,710 9,076,000 9,258,000 9,443,000 9,632,000 9,825,000 10,022,000 10,222,000 10,426,000 10,635,000 97,436,710

Faster Growth 13,346,565 13,614,000 13,887,000 14,164,500 14,448,000 14,737,500 15,033,000 15,333,000 15,639,000 15,952,500 146,155,065

Revenues Based on Projected Capacity Fees with 2% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $11,394 $11,622 $11,854 $12,091 $12,333 $12,580 $12,832 $13,089 $13,351 $13,618

Slow Growth $6,836,466 $6,973,200 $7,112,400 $7,254,600 $7,399,800 $7,548,000 $7,699,200 $7,853,400 $8,010,600 $8,170,800 $74,858,466

Moderate Growth 11,394,110 11,622,000 11,854,000 12,091,000 12,333,000 12,580,000 12,832,000 13,089,000 13,351,000 13,618,000 124,764,110

Faster Growth 17,091,165 17,433,000 17,781,000 18,136,500 18,499,500 18,870,000 19,248,000 19,633,500 20,026,500 20,427,000 187,146,165

1 Conservatively estimated based on review of historical connections over past 20 years.

163 of 401



Union Sanitary District

APPENDIX B

Fixed Asset List & Valuation

164 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00006 06/30/09 10"SDR35 PVC Pipe in Concr20ft collection collsys $10,000 2009 8570.08 $13,414

00011 06/30/09 8" pipe 81 ft collection contribcs 19,902 2009 8570.08 26,697

00025 06/30/09 8" PVC Pipe 31ft collection collsys 41,141 2009 8570.08 55,188

00029 06/30/09 Manhole Dropped Qty2 collection collsys 28,816 2009 8570.08 38,655

00061 06/30/08 Traffic Bollards collection pumpstat 11,286 2008 8309.92 15,614

00170 06/30/08 Risers collection contribcs 23,093 2008 8309.92 31,948

00193 06/30/08 Sump Pump collection pumpstat 13,085 2008 8309.92 18,102

00196 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14017 collection collsys 16,101 2009 8570.08 21,599

00201 06/30/06 Standard Drop Manhole collection collsys 12,046 2006 7751.25 17,867

00205 06/30/06 Manholes collection contribcs 12,161 2006 7751.25 18,037

00244 06/30/09 Coupling Epoxy Coat Steel Enca collection collsys 94,213 2009 8570.08 126,382

00315 06/30/08 Gas Detector Alarm/Beacon collection pumpstat 16,322 2008 8309.92 22,580

00346 06/30/05 Pumps 5/6 Sictopm Pipe Platfor collection liftstat 15,377 2005 7446.08 23,741

00347 06/30/06 Manholes collection collsys 19,886 2006 7751.25 29,494

00351 06/30/05 Pumps 5/6 Dschg Pipe Platform collection liftstat 15,997 2005 7446.08 24,698

00355 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14014 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00356 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14020 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00357 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14021 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00358 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14026 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00359 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14029 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00364 06/30/09 Coupling, St Steel Encapsulati collection collsys 150,991 2009 8570.08 202,547

00365 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14019 collection collsys 30,278 2009 8570.08 40,616

00366 06/30/08 Surge Tower Lights collection pumpstat 15,203 2008 8309.92 21,032

00374 06/30/05 Conveyor & Centrifuge Platform collection liftstat 17,908 2005 7446.08 27,649

00385 06/30/06 Trunk Drop Manholes collection collsys 24,093 2006 7751.25 35,733

00390 06/30/05 Grit Hopper Platform collection liftstat 19,089 2005 7446.08 29,472

00395 06/30/09 33" Sewer Line Rehab 745 Ft collection collsys 178,075 2009 8570.08 238,878

00414 12/31/02 Chadbourne Swr Repair 21Ft of collection collsys 11,394 2002 6538.00 20,035

00431 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 1 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00432 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00433 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 1 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00434 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00435 06/30/05 Generator Enclosure Platform collection liftstat 21,979 2005 7446.08 33,934

00450 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 11,374 2005 7446.08 17,560

00481 06/30/07 Pipe Line 10in collection collsys 17,279 2007 7967.00 24,933

00486 06/30/05 Manholes collection collsys 19,292 2005 7446.08 29,786

00487 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,072 2005 7446.08 18,638

Page 1 of 57165 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00488 06/30/05 Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,072 2005 7446.08 18,638

00510 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,779 2005 7446.08 19,729

00511 06/30/05 Sluice Gate Bsn 2 to Ovfl collection pumpstat 12,779 2005 7446.08 19,729

00515 06/30/05 Non‐Potable Water Pump 1 collection pumpstat 13,021 2005 7446.08 20,103

00516 06/30/05 Non‐Potable Water Pump 2 collection pumpstat 13,021 2005 7446.08 20,103

00522 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 13,195 2005 7446.08 20,372

00533 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00534 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00535 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00536 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00537 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00538 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00551 06/30/08 Concrete Cap ‐ Paseo Padre collection collsys 82,600 2008 8309.92 114,273

00557 06/30/05 Pump 1 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00558 06/30/05 Pump 2 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00559 06/30/05 Pump 3 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00560 06/30/05 Pump 4 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00565 06/30/05 Bucket 1 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00566 06/30/05 Bucket 2 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00567 06/30/05 Bucket 3 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00568 06/30/05 Bucket 4 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00569 06/30/05 Bucket 5 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00570 06/30/05 Bucket 6 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00571 06/30/05 6" Underground Lines collection contribcs 28,757 2005 7446.08 44,399

00581 06/30/05 Exhaust Fans Dry Well collection pumpstat 11,709 2005 7446.08 18,077

00582 06/30/05 Exhaust Fans PS collection pumpstat 11,709 2005 7446.08 18,077

00583 06/30/05 Wet Well Drainage Pump collection pumpstat 14,649 2005 7446.08 22,617

00598 06/30/05 Actuator, Plug Valve on Booste collection pumpstat 15,172 2005 7446.08 23,425

00599 06/30/05 Plug Valve on Booster Line collection pumpstat 15,172 2005 7446.08 23,425

00633 06/30/05 Static Loop Platform collection liftstat 31,479 2005 7446.08 48,602

00640 06/30/05 Check Valve, Bypass Vault N collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00641 06/30/05 Check Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00642 06/30/05 Fill Plug Valve, North collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00643 06/30/05 Fill Plug Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00644 06/30/05 Plug Valve, North collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00645 06/30/05 Plug Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00664 06/30/05 Sluice Gate Btwn 1 & 2 collection pumpstat 13,195 2005 7446.08 20,372

Page 2 of 57166 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00679 06/30/05 Gas Monitoring System collection pumpstat 13,602 2005 7446.08 21,001

00680 06/30/05 Gas Monitoring System collection pumpstat 13,602 2005 7446.08 21,001

00682 06/30/07 Pipe Line 8in collection collsys 24,525 2007 7967.00 35,389

00685 06/30/06 #1 NPS Booster Pump VFD collection pumpstat 13,167 2006 7751.25 19,529

00699 06/30/05 Carbon Filter Platform collection liftstat 35,328 2005 7446.08 54,544

00718 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 14,968 2005 7446.08 23,110

00719 06/30/05 Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 14,968 2005 7446.08 23,110

00725 12/31/99 48 Inch Underground Lines 32 F collection contribcs 17,890 1999 6059.50 33,942

00729 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 1 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00730 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 2 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00731 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 3 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00737 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 1 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00738 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 2 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00739 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 3 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00740 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 4 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00741 06/30/05 Pump 1 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00742 06/30/05 Pump 2 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00743 06/30/05 Pump 3 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00744 06/30/05 Pump 4 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00767 06/30/05 Actuator Gate Valve Lwr Dischg collection pumpstat 16,103 2005 7446.08 24,862

00788 06/30/05 Sluice Gate, Headgate 2 collection pumpstat 17,353 2005 7446.08 26,793

00808 06/30/08 Manholes collection contribcs 135,522 2008 8309.92 187,487

00809 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 1 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00810 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 2 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00811 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 3 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00812 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 4 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00813 06/30/05 Pump 1 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00814 06/30/05 Pump 2 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00815 06/30/05 Pump 3 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00816 06/30/05 Pump 5 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00826 06/30/05 Proj187 Platform Install collection liftstat 46,662 2005 7446.08 72,044

00829 06/30/05 Pump 5 Check Valve collection pumpstat 18,861 2005 7446.08 29,120

00830 06/30/05 Pump 6 Check Valve collection pumpstat 18,861 2005 7446.08 29,120

00835 12/31/96 Risers 16 Qty collection contribcs 17,242 1996 5622.17 35,257

00860 12/31/98 6"" Underground Lines 130 Ft collection contribcs 22,433 1998 5920.42 43,561

00863 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 5 Suction collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00864 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 6 Suction collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

Page 3 of 57167 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00865 06/30/05 Pump 5 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00866 06/30/05 Pump 6 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00872 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 5 Dischg collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00873 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 6 Dischg collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00874 06/30/05 Pump 5 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00875 06/30/05 Pump 6 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00879 12/31/85 Piping collection pumpstat 10,395 1985 4195.00 28,487

00889 01/01/88 6 inch Underground Lines 88  F collection contribcs 11,802 1988 4519.00 30,024

00904 06/30/05 Actuator Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00905 06/30/05 Actuator Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00906 06/30/05 Lower Dischg Hdr E Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00907 06/30/05 Upper Dischg Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00910 06/30/05 36" Magnetic Flow Meter collection pumpstat 23,530 2005 7446.08 36,329

00911 12/31/98 Jarvis Avenue Sewer Replace PR collection collsys 15,135 1998 5920.42 29,389

00919 06/30/05 24" Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,000 2005 7446.08 27,791

00927 06/30/09 36"Sewer Line Rehab 3474 Ft collection collsys 558,682 2009 8570.08 749,442

00940 01/01/87 Risers 19 Qty collection contribcs 12,837 1987 4406.00 33,495

00943 06/30/05 24" Pipe Liner collection pumpstat 64,822 2005 7446.08 100,081

00948 06/30/06 Manhole Concrete Pads collection collsys 84,324 2006 7751.25 125,066

00950 12/31/89 Risers 14 Qty collection contribcs 15,279 1989 4615.00 38,061

00954 12/31/88 Risers 14 Qty collection contribcs 14,601 1988 4519.00 37,145

00963 06/30/06 10"PVC Pipe collection collsys 87,078 2006 7751.25 129,150

00971 06/30/05 30" Steel Pipe & Fittings collection pumpstat 34,600 2005 7446.08 53,420

00977 12/31/95 Hetch Hetchy (Phase 2) collection collsys 14,051 1995 5471.17 29,525

00981 06/30/09 8" Pipe 1170 ft collection collsys 636,506 2009 8570.08 853,838

00991 06/30/07 Pipe, 8in,cured in plc 3858LF collection collsys 131,057 2007 7967.00 189,114

00992 06/30/06 Manholes collection contribcs 93,682 2006 7751.25 138,945

01001 06/30/04 10 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 60,616 2004 7115.08 97,941

01004 06/30/06 Standard Manholes collection collsys 48,185 2006 7751.25 71,466

01010 12/31/95 Risers 21 Qty collection contribcs 25,316 1995 5471.17 53,195

01015 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe Guide Boring collection collsys 97,966 2006 7751.25 145,299

01023 06/30/08 10" Underground Pipe 757 FT collection contribcs 186,804 2008 8309.92 258,433

01027 06/30/05 6"/8" Ductile Iron Pipe collection pumpstat 47,085 2005 7446.08 72,696

01031 06/30/06 21" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 101,680 2006 7751.25 150,807

01038 06/30/05 18" Pipe Casing collection collsys 64,960 2005 7446.08 100,294

01047 01/01/88 Risers 17 Qty collection contribcs 17,459 1988 4519.00 44,416

01065 06/30/05 Proj 163 Hywd Msh Outfall Modi collection pumpstat 44,159 2005 7446.08 68,179

Page 4 of 57168 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01068 12/31/00 Hypo Tank  9000 gal collection pumpstat 18,796 2000 6221.17 34,734

01070 06/30/09 27" Sewer Line Rehab 2306Ft collection collsys 800,771 2009 8570.08 1,074,192

01086 12/31/99 21 Inch Underground Lines 187 collection contribcs 44,568 1999 6059.50 84,556

01087 06/30/05 30" Pipe Casing collection collsys 75,500 2005 7446.08 116,568

01095 12/31/02 Hunter Easement Access Road Pr collection collsys 26,613 2002 6538.00 46,795

01097 12/31/02 Newark Subbasin Upper Relief P collection collsys 40,000 2002 6538.00 70,335

01098 12/31/02 Mission Crk Swr Relocation Pro collection collsys 53,351 2002 6538.00 93,812

01103 12/31/94 Fremont & Eggers Sewer Repair collection collsys 18,377 1994 5407.58 39,069

01142 06/30/05 Hydraulic Power Unit & Accumul collection pumpstat 41,465 2005 7446.08 64,020

01146 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe collection collsys 134,825 2006 7751.25 199,966

01174 06/30/05 Proj 136 Newark PS Cpct Improv collection pumpstat 91,037 2005 7446.08 140,556

01177 06/30/05 Washdown PS Stucture collection pumpstat 114,207 2005 7446.08 176,329

01179 12/31/96 Dairy Ave Corridor Replacement collection collsys 25,110 1996 5622.17 51,345

01191 12/31/93 Alvarado P.S. Elec Valve OP collection collsys 21,182 1993 5210.42 46,736

01195 12/31/85 Influent Line collection pumpstat 23,927 1985 4195.00 65,571

01196 06/30/06 10" Underground Lines collection contribcs 161,554 2006 7751.25 239,610

01200 06/30/06 8" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 162,596 2006 7751.25 241,156

01217 12/31/99 Pine Street Sanitary Sewer Pro collection collsys 365,965 1999 6059.50 694,323

01219 06/30/05 Monorail Hoist Dry Well collection pumpstat 52,317 2005 7446.08 80,774

01221 06/30/06 Trunk Manholes collection collsys 168,648 2006 7751.25 250,132

01223 06/30/05 36" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 131,843 2005 7446.08 203,558

01225 06/30/05 Pump 1 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01226 06/30/05 Pump 2 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01227 06/30/05 Pump 3 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01228 06/30/05 Pump 4 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01231 06/30/09 33"Sewer Line Rehab 7494 Ft collection collsys 1,205,170 2009 8570.08 1,616,672

01235 06/30/05 Generator Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01236 06/30/05 Main Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01237 06/30/05 Motor Control Center collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01238 06/30/05 Motor Control Center collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01239 06/30/05 PGE Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01244 06/30/09 30" Sewer Line Rehab 3235 Ft collection collsys 1,250,629 2009 8570.08 1,677,653

01247 12/31/94 Driscoll Blvd/P.Padre Rehab collection collsys 26,115 1994 5407.58 55,519

01255 06/30/05 Cath Protec TF Main Casing 02 collection twnforce 28,706 2005 7446.08 44,320

01256 06/30/05 Cath Protec TF Main Casing 05 collection twnforce 28,706 2005 7446.08 44,320

01259 06/30/05 12" PVC Storm Drain Pipe collection pumpstat 145,440 2005 7446.08 224,551

01261 06/30/05 Pump 4 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

Page 5 of 57169 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01262 06/30/05 Pump 1 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01263 06/30/05 Pump 1 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01264 06/30/05 Pump 2 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01265 06/30/05 Pump 2 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01266 06/30/05 Pump 3 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01267 06/30/05 Pump 3 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01268 06/30/05 Pump 4 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01274 06/30/04 Manholes collection contribcs 121,204 2004 7115.08 195,837

01286 12/31/94 12 inch Underground Lines 271 collection contribcs 48,682 1994 5407.58 103,496

01291 06/30/05 Pump 6 VFD collection pumpstat 64,036 2005 7446.08 98,867

01292 06/30/05 Pump 5 VFD collection pumpstat 64,037 2005 7446.08 98,869

01294 06/30/05 24" Weld Steel Bsn to Jct Strc collection pumpstat 96,263 2005 7446.08 148,624

01297 12/31/02 12 Inch Underground Lines 547 collection contribcs 111,352 2002 6538.00 195,799

01304 12/31/00 12 Inch Underground Lines 440 collection contribcs 87,721 2000 6221.17 162,103

01306 06/30/05 Man Holes, Trunk collection collsys 168,309 2005 7446.08 259,859

01310 06/30/05 Pump 5 collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01311 06/30/05 Pump 5 Motor collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01312 06/30/05 Pump 6 collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01313 06/30/05 Pump 6 Motor collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01316 12/31/94 Mission Blvd/I‐680 collection collsys 32,368 1994 5407.58 68,813

01321 12/31/97 24"" Underground Lines 266 Ft collection contribcs 69,387 1997 5825.08 136,941

01323 12/31/02 Perrin Ave Access Proj 156 collection collsys 49,146 2002 6538.00 86,418

01332 12/31/02 Manholes 46 Qty collection contribcs 125,124 2002 6538.00 220,016

01333 06/30/05 30" Weld Steel Pipe Twr to Bsn collection pumpstat 108,819 2005 7446.08 168,009

01355 06/30/04 12 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 157,157 2004 7115.08 253,929

01359 06/30/05 24" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 195,729 2005 7446.08 302,194

01362 06/30/05 16" Weld Steel PS byps to Bsn collection pumpstat 118,236 2005 7446.08 182,549

01363 06/30/05 Bridge Crane collection pumpstat 78,860 2005 7446.08 121,755

01382 12/31/91 Fremont Blvd/Irvington collection collsys 33,140 1991 4835.08 78,797

01387 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber Contain Structur collection pumpstat 87,892 2005 7446.08 135,700

01398 12/31/98 Carmen Street Phase 2 PROJ 28‐ collection collsys 59,113 1998 5920.42 114,786

01414 12/31/02 Stevenson Blvd Imp Proj 127 collection collsys 96,346 2002 6538.00 169,414

01415 06/30/04 Proj 182 Maiden Lane Swr collection collsys 189,909 2004 7115.08 306,849

01416 06/30/05 Manholes collection contribcs 233,266 2005 7446.08 360,149

01417 12/31/00 48 Inch Underground Lines 213 collection contribcs 123,915 2000 6221.17 228,987

01433 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe Concret Cap collection collsys 320,291 2006 7751.25 475,041

01434 06/30/05 Pump Relocation collection pumpstat 49,847 2005 7446.08 76,961

Page 6 of 57170 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01435 06/30/05 Pump Relocation collection pumpstat 49,847 2005 7446.08 76,961

01437 12/31/93 Central Ave SS collection collsys 43,558 1993 5210.42 96,107

01438 12/31/92 Manholes 28 Qty collection contribcs 68,408 1992 4984.83 157,766

01442 12/31/92 Central Ave SS (Wrap up) collection collsys 41,485 1992 4984.83 95,675

01445 12/31/93 Manholes 30 Qty collection contribcs 74,437 1993 5210.42 164,238

01448 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 187,304 2007 7967.00 270,278

01449 12/31/02 Hetch Hetchy Proj 31 collection collsys 108,395 2002 6538.00 190,600

01450 12/31/92 Hickory Street Litigation collection collsys 42,913 1992 4984.83 98,968

01459 06/30/05 24" Welded Stell Pipe collection pumpstat 281,189 2005 7446.08 434,139

01461 06/30/05 Junction Structures collection collsys 282,533 2005 7446.08 436,215

01462 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 205,664 2007 7967.00 296,771

01467 06/30/05 Foot Valve, East collection pumpstat 145,496 2005 7446.08 224,637

01470 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 216,673 2007 7967.00 312,657

01475 06/30/05 Basin Odor Scrubber Fan & Duct collection pumpstat 153,602 2005 7446.08 237,152

01479 12/31/98 24"" Underground Lines 509 Ft collection contribcs 135,367 1998 5920.42 262,857

01480 12/31/95 Kato Road Sewer collection collsys 63,438 1995 5471.17 133,299

01489 12/31/98 Collect. Sys. Grit Handling PR collection collsys 86,999 1998 5920.42 168,935

01498 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe Steel Caseing collection collsys 451,033 2006 7751.25 668,951

01502 12/31/02 10 Inch Underground Lines 1276 collection contribcs 253,017 2002 6538.00 444,901

01503 12/31/89 10 inch Underground Lines 533 collection contribcs 84,385 1989 4615.00 210,209

01509 12/31/96 10 inch Underground Lines 3348 collection contribcs 137,443 1996 5622.17 281,046

01512 12/31/98 Thornton/Peralta Corr Sewer Re collection collsys 100,366 1998 5920.42 194,891

01516 06/30/05 12" Underground Lines collection contribcs 401,087 2005 7446.08 619,254

01519 06/30/05 10" Underground Lines collection contribcs 407,060 2005 7446.08 628,476

01522 12/31/00 Pump Station Influent Channel collection liftstat 131,620 2000 6221.17 243,225

01523 12/31/00 Pump Station Influent Channel collection pumpstat 131,620 2000 6221.17 243,225

01524 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe collection collsys 542,866 2006 7751.25 805,155

01528 06/30/05 33" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 445,096 2005 7446.08 687,202

01529 12/31/94 Mission & Old Canyon collection collsys 84,222 1994 5407.58 179,053

01531 12/31/96 Olive Avenue Sewer Replacement collection collsys 98,578 1996 5622.17 201,574

01532 12/31/02 Frem/Peralta/Mattos Swr Liner collection collsys 189,651 2002 6538.00 333,479

01533 06/30/06 12" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 603,684 2006 7751.25 895,357

01534 06/30/06 18" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 620,719 2006 7751.25 920,623

01535 01/06/64 Risers  3051 Qty collection collsys 47,876 1964 936.00 588,026

01537 12/31/98 16"" Underground Lines 1050 Ft collection contribcs 209,923 1998 5920.42 407,630

01546 06/30/05 48" Welded Stell Pipe collection pumpstat 503,690 2005 7446.08 777,667

01547 12/31/98 Peachtree Corridor Reach B PRO collection collsys 129,650 1998 5920.42 251,755

Page 7 of 57171 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01548 06/30/05 10" Pipe collection collsys 403,908 2005 7446.08 623,610

01562 12/31/97 18"" Underground Lines 5387 Ft collection contribcs 224,297 1997 5825.08 442,670

01563 06/30/05 36" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 575,991 2005 7446.08 889,296

01564 12/31/90 Collection Improvements FYE 6/ collection collsys 84,585 1990 4731.92 205,501

01565 12/31/00 Manholes 112 Qty collection contribcs 308,559 2000 6221.17 570,197

01567 06/30/05 30"/36" Weld Steel Bsn to Ovrf collection pumpstat 357,846 2005 7446.08 552,493

01568 06/30/05 Proj 171 Access Rd Sentinel Pl collection collsys 241,689 2005 7446.08 373,154

01570 12/31/89 12 inch Underground Lines 864 collection contribcs 140,608 1989 4615.00 350,265

01571 12/31/95 10 inch Underground Lines 1166 collection contribcs 203,906 1995 5471.17 428,458

01572 12/31/01 Manholes 80 Qty collection contribcs 220,424 2001 6342.08 399,563

01573 12/31/91 Manholes 68 Qty collection contribcs 157,514 1991 4835.08 374,519

01576 06/30/05 24" Parshall Flume at Hywd Msh collection pumpstat 187,514 2005 7446.08 289,510

01581 06/30/05 Surge Tower Structure Improv collection pumpstat 657,391 2005 7446.08 1,014,972

01586 06/30/04 Valve, 60" Hay Marsh collection contribcs 78,427 2004 7115.08 126,720

01588 06/30/05 PROJ 162 PS Force Main Repair collection pumpstat 690,924 2005 7446.08 1,066,745

01589 12/31/00 Sabercat Easement Proj 28‐103 collection collsys 222,294 2000 6221.17 410,784

01591 12/31/93 Carmen Street San Sewer Replac collection collsys 123,238 1993 5210.42 271,913

01592 12/31/95 Manholes 101 Qty collection contribcs 237,650 1995 5471.17 499,363

01594 06/30/05 Site Work ‐ Electrical collection pumpstat 289,279 2005 7446.08 446,630

01600 12/31/79 Irvington Surge Tower & Lining collection twnforce 89,235 1979 3003.00 341,616

01601 06/30/06 8" Underground Lines collection contribcs 943,414 2006 7751.25 1,399,230

01602 12/31/92 Logan High School collection collsys 121,012 1992 4984.83 279,085

01605 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber Fan & Ducting collection pumpstat 296,621 2005 7446.08 457,965

01606 06/30/05 36" Weld Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 445,364 2005 7446.08 687,616

01607 06/30/05 36" Steel Pipe, Up/Lw Dschg Hd collection pumpstat 445,853 2005 7446.08 688,370

01608 12/31/98 12"" Underground Lines 5280 Ft collection contribcs 323,982 1998 5920.42 629,111

01618 12/31/01 12 Inch Underground Lines 1515 collection contribcs 302,074 2001 6342.08 547,570

01621 12/31/99 12 Inch Underground Lines 2045 collection contribcs 400,785 1999 6059.50 760,384

01622 06/30/04 Proj 159 Canyon Hgts Swr Repla collection collsys 699,569 2004 7115.08 1,130,340

01623 12/31/91 Pump Station Improvement collection pumpstat 88,065 1991 4835.08 209,391

01625 06/30/05 Proj 158 Wshngtn/Osgood Reloca collection collsys 704,770 2005 7446.08 1,088,123

01627 06/30/08 8" Underground Pipe 9094 FT collection contribcs 2,140,236 2008 8309.92 2,960,898

01628 12/31/90 10 inch Underground Lines 1336 collection contribcs 218,473 1990 4731.92 530,786

01629 01/01/87 12 inch Underground Lines 1221 collection contribcs 179,792 1987 4406.00 469,120

01633 12/31/96 Smith & New Haven collection collsys 203,033 1996 5622.17 415,166

01636 01/06/63 30 Inch Underground Lines 1833 collection collsys 93,499 1963 901.00 1,193,001

01637 12/31/01 Newark Old Town Street Improve collection collsys 348,429 2001 6342.08 631,598

Page 8 of 57172 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01640 12/31/90 Manholes 105 Qty collection contribcs 243,221 1990 4731.92 590,912

01642 06/30/05 Flap Gate 1 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01643 06/30/05 Flap Gate 2 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01644 06/30/05 Flap Gate 3 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01645 06/30/05 Flap Gate 4 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01646 06/30/05 Flap Gate 5 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01647 06/30/05 Flap Gate 6 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01651 12/31/99 42 Inch Underground Lines 1046 collection contribcs 498,590 1999 6059.50 945,944

01652 06/30/05 Programmable Logic Controller collection pumpstat 424,325 2005 7446.08 655,132

01655 12/31/96 Manholes 242 Qty collection contribcs 359,620 1996 5622.17 735,357

01659 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe Steel Case collection collsys 1,401,952 2006 7751.25 2,079,312

01660 01/01/88 18 inch Underground Lines 1295 collection contribcs 228,350 1988 4519.00 580,921

01661 06/30/06 18" Polycrete Pipe Steel Case collection collsys 1,410,130 2006 7751.25 2,091,442

01667 01/01/88 15 inch Underground Lines 1474 collection contribcs 241,058 1988 4519.00 613,250

01668 12/31/85 Mechanical Equip collection pumpstat 103,700 1985 4195.00 284,188

01670 12/31/94 10 inch Underground Lines 2071 collection contribcs 361,924 1994 5407.58 769,436

01671 12/31/85 Mechanical/Electrical collection liftstat 105,000 1985 4195.00 287,750

01672 12/31/94 Manholes 149 Qty collection contribcs 368,845 1994 5407.58 784,150

01676 01/05/65 Other Underground Lines 3050 F collection collsys 123,210 1965 971.00 1,458,765

01677 06/30/05 1250 KW Eng Genrator & Enclosu collection pumpstat 615,871 2005 7446.08 950,868

01681 12/31/98 Manholes 233 Qty collection contribcs 553,809 1998 5920.42 1,075,391

01683 12/31/99 Manholes 228 Qty collection contribcs 617,263 1999 6059.50 1,171,094

01686 12/31/98 10"" Underground Lines 4988 Ft collection contribcs 578,608 1998 5920.42 1,123,545

01687 06/30/05 Basin Washdown System collection pumpstat 685,348 2005 7446.08 1,058,136

01689 06/30/04 8 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 1,153,057 2004 7115.08 1,863,070

01690 12/31/91 Jarvis Ave Sewer collection collsys 221,609 1991 4835.08 526,917

01699 12/31/95 Peachtree Ave Corridor Sewer collection collsys 320,501 1995 5471.17 673,454

01700 12/31/99 10 Inch Underground Lines 3982 collection contribcs 759,481 1999 6059.50 1,440,916

01701 12/31/92 8 inch Underground Lines 2695 collection contribcs 315,775 1992 4984.83 728,258

01702 12/31/97 Manholes 341 Qty collection contribcs 633,775 1997 5825.08 1,250,810

01705 01/07/60 21 Inch Underground Lines 4761 collection collsys 149,330 1960 824.00 2,083,424

01706 01/03/73 18 Inch Underground Lines 4032 collection collsys 204,426 1973 1895.00 1,240,182

01709 12/31/93 El Camino/Santa Barbara collection collsys 294,600 1993 5210.42 650,008

01711 12/31/89 Manholes 175 Qty collection contribcs 392,458 1989 4615.00 977,642

01715 12/31/88 12 inch Underground Lines 2512 collection contribcs 390,643 1988 4519.00 993,794

01716 12/31/97 12"" Underground Lines 4510 Ft collection contribcs 699,154 1997 5825.08 1,379,841

01719 12/31/90 Transport System Master Plan F collection collsys 264,220 1990 4731.92 641,929

Page 9 of 57173 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01720 01/04/69 24 Inch Underground Lines 3224 collection collsys 202,718 1969 1269.00 1,836,492

01721 12/31/01 10 Inch Underground Lines 3387 collection contribcs 657,817 2001 6342.08 1,192,426

01723 12/31/88 Manholes 189 Qty collection contribcs 351,450 1988 4519.00 894,086

01724 12/31/02 8 Inch Underground Lines 6831 collection contribcs 1,288,519 2002 6538.00 2,265,710

01726 12/31/89 D Street & Bodily Project TS‐8 collection collsys 262,339 1989 4615.00 653,506

01728 12/31/88 10 inch Underground Lines 2800 collection contribcs 423,602 1988 4519.00 1,077,641

01733 01/07/60 36 Inch Underground Lines 3496 collection collsys 186,704 1960 824.00 2,604,863

01738 12/31/95 Peachtree Ave. Corridor Study collection collsys 422,491 1995 5471.17 887,761

01741 12/31/79 Pipes  Tanks & Components collection pumpstat 333,400 1979 3003.00 1,276,347

01742 12/31/79 Mechanical Equipment collection pumpstat 198,500 1979 3003.00 759,913

01745 01/01/88 33 Inch Underground Lines 90 F collection collsys 467,224 1988 4519.00 1,188,615

01748 01/01/87 Manholes 224 Qty collection contribcs 454,530 1987 4406.00 1,185,978

01750 01/01/87 Improvements collection collsys 205,651 1987 4406.00 536,593

01753 12/31/00 Perry Rd Corridow Sewer Proj 5 collection collsys 753,507 2000 6221.17 1,392,431

01754 12/31/94 Parkson Aeration Panel Pilot collection collsys 443,652 1994 5407.58 943,187

01755 01/01/88 12 inch Underground Lines 3353 collection contribcs 513,478 1988 4519.00 1,306,285

01757 06/30/05 8" Underground Lines collection contribcs 2,488,718 2005 7446.08 3,842,433

01758 12/31/96 Whipple Road collection collsys 550,000 1996 5622.17 1,124,650

01760 12/31/90 Fremont Blvd/Irv Dist Redevelo collection collsys 628,607 1990 4731.92 1,527,216

01761 01/05/66 33 Inch Underground Lines 4096 collection collsys 269,900 1966 1019.00 3,044,999

01765 12/31/91 10 inch Underground Lines 4420 collection contribcs 722,793 1991 4835.08 1,718,575

01768 01/06/63 27 Inch Underground Lines 6233 collection collsys 280,811 1963 901.00 3,583,008

01769 12/31/91 Mowry Ave Project collection collsys 460,231 1991 4835.08 1,094,285

01770 01/06/64 Risers 18801 Qty collection contribcs 295,703 1964 936.00 3,631,937

01772 12/31/91 Mowry Ave Project collection collsys 469,238 1991 4835.08 1,115,701

01774 01/01/88 Manholes 313 Qty collection contribcs 660,529 1988 4519.00 1,680,382

01778 12/31/92 I‐880 Sewer Replacement collection collsys 560,784 1992 4984.83 1,293,312

01780 12/31/90 I‐880 Sewer Replacement collection collsys 851,864 1990 4731.92 2,069,625

01782 12/31/97 10"" Underground Lines 8838 Ft collection contribcs 1,335,718 1997 5825.08 2,636,156

01785 01/08/56 6 Inch Underground Lines 28408 collection collsys 278,022 1956 692.00 4,618,823

01787 01/05/66 15 Inch Underground Lines 1130 collection collsys 408,978 1966 1019.00 4,614,071

01789 12/31/97 Alvarado Effluent P.S. Improve collection collsys 1,422,937 1997 5825.08 2,808,290

01792 12/31/79 Electrical Equipment collection pumpstat 535,900 1979 3003.00 2,051,573

01795 12/31/99 Thornton Ave ‐ Fremont to I‐88 collection collsys 1,272,490 1999 6059.50 2,414,215

01798 01/01/88 Improvements collection collsys 418,432 1988 4519.00 1,064,489

01800 01/05/67 Manholes 1464 Qty collection collsys 505,824 1967 1074.00 5,414,444

01801 12/31/01 8 Inch Underground Lines 9464 collection contribcs 1,748,526 2001 6342.08 3,169,557

Page 10 of 57174 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01802 12/31/00 8 Inch Underground Lines 13989 collection contribcs 2,584,254 2000 6221.17 4,775,533

01803 06/30/05 Proj 117 Irv PS Improvements collection pumpstat 2,948,328 2005 7446.08 4,552,043

01804 12/31/91 Collection System Master Plan collection collsys 762,844 1991 4835.08 1,813,804

01807 12/31/96 Newark Subbasin (S&S) collection collsys 1,097,734 1996 5622.17 2,244,667

01808 12/31/96 Mission & Old Canyon collection collsys 1,119,637 1996 5622.17 2,289,454

01809 01/05/68 10 Inch Underground Lines 6379 collection collsys 259,362 1968 1155.00 2,581,562

01810 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe collection collsys 6,724,840 2006 7751.25 9,973,984

01812 12/31/91 Central Avenue C.M. collection collsys 815,198 1991 4835.08 1,938,285

01815 12/31/93 8 inch Underground Lines 9832 collection contribcs 1,636,269 1993 5210.42 3,610,279

01816 12/31/94 N/I Pump Station Improvements collection collsys 526,695 1994 5407.58 1,119,733

01817 12/31/94 Osgood‐Warm Springs Sewer collection collsys 1,071,041 1994 5407.58 2,276,991

01818 12/31/97 Jarvis Avenue Sewer Replacemen collection collsys 1,355,276 1997 5825.08 2,674,755

01820 12/31/95 Willow St. Corridor Sewer Reha collection collsys 1,172,149 1995 5471.17 2,462,983

01822 12/31/97 Central/Blacow Sewer Replaceme collection collsys 1,390,733 1997 5825.08 2,744,733

01823 01/06/63 30 inch Underground Lines 1129 collection contribcs 576,264 1963 901.00 7,352,841

01824 12/31/79 Non Structural Construction ‐ collection pumpstat 739,276 1979 3003.00 2,830,152

01826 12/31/92 Wells Avenue collection collsys 1,024,117 1992 4984.83 2,361,878

01827 12/31/89 Hickory Street Project collection collsys 901,646 1989 4615.00 2,246,068

01830 12/31/91 8 inch Underground Lines 11371 collection contribcs 1,766,663 1991 4835.08 4,200,570

01831 01/05/67 12 Inch Underground Lines 2388 collection collsys 563,567 1967 1074.00 6,032,533

01832 12/31/92 Thornton Avenue Sewer Replacem collection collsys 1,212,096 1992 4984.83 2,795,406

01833 01/05/65 Other Underground Lines 18797 collection contribcs 759,385 1965 971.00 8,990,860

01834 12/31/92 Everglades Sewer collection collsys 1,232,388 1992 4984.83 2,842,204

01836 01/01/87 10 inch Underground Lines 1179 collection contribcs 1,689,777 1987 4406.00 4,409,033

01837 12/31/98 I‐Street Corridor Sewer Replac collection collsys 2,260,892 1998 5920.42 4,390,217

01839 12/31/95 8 inch Underground Lines 19042 collection contribcs 3,005,796 1995 5471.17 6,315,940

01840 06/30/05 Pipe, Polycrete 1000MM collection collsys 9,272,774 2005 7446.08 14,316,612

01841 12/31/95 Dairy Ave Corridor Replacement collection collsys 1,859,510 1995 5471.17 3,907,303

01842 12/31/98 Newark Subbasin (inc Baine) PR collection collsys 2,442,141 1998 5920.42 4,742,168

01844 01/01/88 10 inch Underground Lines 1401 collection contribcs 2,088,402 1988 4519.00 5,312,883

01845 12/31/97 Lower Warren Avenue Sewer Proj collection collsys 2,349,781 1997 5825.08 4,637,498

01846 01/07/60 21 inch Underground Lines 2934 collection contribcs 928,362 1960 824.00 12,952,351

01848 12/31/91 Central Ave Design/CM collection collsys 1,647,703 1991 4835.08 3,917,720

01849 01/04/69 24 inch Underground Lines 1987 collection contribcs 1,249,415 1969 1269.00 11,318,883

01852 12/31/02 Mowry Corridor Phase III Proj collection collsys 4,784,742 2002 6538.00 8,413,410

01853 12/31/92 Mowry Ave D&C collection collsys 1,933,948 1992 4984.83 4,460,182

01854 12/31/92 Mowry Ave. Design  Phase 2 collection collsys 1,933,948 1992 4984.83 4,460,182

Page 11 of 57175 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01855 12/31/95 Pump Station Ventilation Impro collection collsys 2,393,445 1995 5471.17 5,029,236

01856 01/07/60 36 inch Underground Lines 2154 collection contribcs 1,150,715 1960 824.00 16,054,583

01857 12/31/95 Newark Subbasin collection collsys 2,541,937 1995 5471.17 5,341,255

01858 12/31/00 Upper Warren Ave Sewer Proj 28 collection collsys 4,154,835 2000 6221.17 7,677,864

01859 12/31/01 Newark Subbasin Upper Relief P collection collsys 4,745,053 2001 6342.08 8,601,369

01860 01/03/73 18 inch Underground Lines 2208 collection contribcs 1,718,863 1973 1895.00 10,427,748

01861 12/31/96 8 inch Underground Lines 36505 collection contribcs 5,241,648 1996 5622.17 10,718,218

01862 12/31/99 8 Inch Underground Lines 38653 collection contribcs 7,000,575 1999 6059.50 13,281,753

01866 01/05/66 33 inch Underground Lines 2515 collection contribcs 1,657,490 1966 1019.00 18,699,724

01867 12/31/98 8"" Underground Lines 42272 Ft collection contribcs 7,274,735 1998 5920.42 14,126,136

01870 12/31/90 8 inch Underground Lines 27550 collection contribcs 4,280,324 1990 4731.92 10,399,154

01871 01/06/63 27 inch Underground Lines 3841 collection contribcs 1,730,732 1963 901.00 22,083,276

01872 12/31/99 Upper Fremont Blvd Sewer Proj collection collsys 5,309,141 1999 6059.50 10,072,700

01874 12/31/94 8 inch Underground Lines 35591 collection contribcs 5,909,371 1994 5407.58 12,563,091

01876 12/31/97 8"" Underground Lines 52027 Ft collection contribcs 8,862,990 1997 5825.08 17,491,884

01880 01/08/56 6 inch Underground Lines 17508 collection contribcs 2,157,203 1956 692.00 35,837,969

01881 01/05/66 15 inch Underground Lines 6967 collection contribcs 2,520,665 1966 1019.00 28,438,024

01882 12/31/89 8 inch Underground Lines 39047 collection contribcs 5,873,361 1989 4615.00 14,630,981

01883 12/31/00 Stevenson Blvd Sanitary Sewer collection collsys 8,541,517 2000 6221.17 15,784,165

01884 12/31/79 Non Structural Costs ‐ Enginee collection twnforce 3,282,841 1979 3003.00 12,567,618

01885 12/31/96 Peralta Corridor Sewer collection collsys 5,849,825 1996 5622.17 11,961,830

01887 12/31/88 8 inch Underground Lines 43237 collection contribcs 7,311,379 1988 4519.00 18,600,106

01888 12/31/95 Newark Subbasin (S&S) collection collsys 7,121,272 1995 5471.17 14,963,600

01889 01/05/67 Manholes 9000 Qty collection contribcs 3,787,742 1967 1074.00 40,544,743

01892 01/01/87 8 inch Underground Lines 59301 collection contribcs 7,955,045 1987 4406.00 20,756,619

01893 01/05/66 8 Inch Underground Lines 31585 collection collsys 4,190,527 1966 1019.00 47,277,333

01894 01/05/67 12 inch Underground Lines 1471 collection contribcs 3,757,100 1967 1074.00 40,216,742

01895 01/01/88 8 inch Underground Lines 74719 collection contribcs 10,576,025 1988 4519.00 26,905,347

01897 12/31/79 39 Inch Force Mains 26171 Ft collection twnforce 8,615,830 1979 3003.00 32,983,767

01898 01/05/68 10 inch Underground Lines 3931 collection contribcs 6,607,196 1968 1155.00 65,764,827

01899 12/31/79 33 Inch Force Mains 40514 Ft collection twnforce 11,177,274 1979 3003.00 42,789,679

01902 01/05/66 8 inch Underground Lines 19462 collection contribcs 51,112,744 1966 1019.00 576,651,570

01944 01/01/10 DIESEL STORAGE TANK collection liftstat 59,225 2010 8798.92 77,381

01946 01/01/10 IPS OVERFLOW POND collection pumpstat 554,792 2010 8798.92 724,869

01947 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 224,172 2010 8798.92 292,894

01948 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 35,009 2010 8798.92 45,741

01949 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 207,593 2010 8798.92 271,233

Page 12 of 57176 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01950 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 45,344 2010 8798.92 59,244

01951 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 51,915 2010 8798.92 67,830

01952 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 15,876 2010 8798.92 20,743

01953 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 20,143 2010 8798.92 26,319

01954 01/01/10 UPPER DSCHG HEADER FLOW METER collection pumpstat 45,084 2010 8798.92 58,905

01976 01/01/10 CIPP LINER 27 " 7000 LF collection collsys 1,776,542 2010 8798.92 2,321,158

01977 01/01/10 CIPP LINER 30" 1184 LF collection collsys 289,100 2010 8798.92 377,727

01990 01/01/10 8" PIPE 2179 FT collection contribcs 535,395 2010 8798.92 699,526

01991 01/01/10 15" PIPE 459 FT collection contribcs 129,981 2010 8798.92 169,828

01992 01/01/10 MANHOLES 18 QTY collection contribcs 63,888 2010 8798.92 83,473

02045 01/01/11 HEADGATE collection liftstat 16,298 2011 9069.83 20,658

02076 01/01/11 PIPE, 12" 16LF collection collsys 28,174 2011 9069.83 35,712

02077 01/01/11 PIPE, 8" 769 LF collection collsys 190,773 2011 9069.83 241,811

02078 01/01/11 LATERAL CONNECTION collection collsys 11,890 2011 9069.83 15,071

02079 01/01/11 PIPE, 10" 17 LF collection collsys 44,152 2011 9069.83 55,964

02080 01/01/11 MANHOLE collection collsys 11,890 2011 9069.83 15,071

02081 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 6" 33 LF collection collsys 17,650 2011 9069.83 22,371

02082 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 8" 784 LF collection collsys 142,414 2011 9069.83 180,515

02083 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 12" 341 LF collection collsys 36,516 2011 9069.83 46,286

02084 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 14" 885 LF collection collsys 38,951 2011 9069.83 49,372

02085 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 15" 216 LF collection collsys 18,258 2011 9069.83 23,143

02086 01/01/11 LATERAL SEALING SYSTEMS collection collsys 23,127 2011 9069.83 29,314

02090 01/01/11 PIPING/CONDUIT/PAD/FENCE/PAVING collection pumpstat 425,195 2011 9069.83 538,949

02092 01/01/11 PUMP STATION LIGHTS collection pumpstat 45,552 2011 9069.83 57,738

02093 01/01/11 PS VENTILATION DUCTWORK collection pumpstat 284,697 2011 9069.83 360,863

02094 01/01/11 TRAY/CONDUIT/WIRES collection pumpstat 833,451 2011 9069.83 1,056,427

02095 01/01/11 PAD/CONDUIT/WIRE/APPURTENANCES collection pumpstat 454,092 2011 9069.83 575,577

02096 01/01/11 GENERATOR collection pumpstat 768,559 2011 9069.83 974,173

02099 01/01/11 DRY WELL EXHAUST FAN collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02100 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUPPLY FAN collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02101 01/01/11 DRY WELL ROOF FAN #1` collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02102 01/01/11 DRY WELL ROOF FAN #2 collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02103 01/01/11 MAIN SWITCFHBOARD collection pumpstat 1,015,621 2011 9069.83 1,287,332

02104 01/01/11 MOTOR CONTROL CENTER collection pumpstat 589,323 2011 9069.83 746,987

02105 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #1 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02106 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #2 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02107 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #3 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

Page 13 of 57177 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02108 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #4 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02109 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #5 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02110 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #6 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02111 01/01/11 PLC PANEL collection pumpstat 49,571 2011 9069.83 62,833

02114 01/01/11 NEWARK EFFLUENT VALVE BOX 480V collection pumpstat 122,135 2011 9069.83 154,810

02115 01/01/11 NEWARK EFFLUENT VALVE BOX LIGHTING collection pumpstat 61,068 2011 9069.83 77,405

02116 01/01/11 NEWAR INFLUENT VALVE BOX 480V collection pumpstat 122,135 2011 9069.83 154,810

02117 01/01/11 LIGHTNING collection pumpstat 61,068 2011 9069.83 77,405

02118 01/01/11 WET WELL 1/2 GATE ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 18,505 2011 9069.83 23,456

02119 01/01/11 WET WELL 2/3 GATAE ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 18,505 2011 9069.83 23,456

02120 01/01/11 HEAD GATE collection pumpstat 202,847 2011 9069.83 257,115

02121 01/01/11 WET WELL #1 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02122 01/01/11 WET WELL #2 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02123 01/01/11 WET WELL #3 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02124 01/01/11 FLOW METER # collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02125 01/01/11 FLOW METER #2 collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02126 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02127 01/01/11 SURGE TOWER LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02128 01/01/11 GROUND LEVEL DRY WELL HOIST collection pumpstat 113,879 2011 9069.83 144,345

02129 01/01/11 GROUND LEVEL WET WELL HOIST collection pumpstat 85,409 2011 9069.83 108,259

02130 01/01/11 BOTTOM LEVEL DRY WELL BRIDGECRANE collection pumpstat 85,409 2011 9069.83 108,259

02131 01/01/11 HEAD GATE HYDRAULIC POWER SUPPLY collection pumpstat 202,847 2011 9069.83 257,115

02132 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUMP PUMP #1 collection pumpstat 21,352 2011 9069.83 27,065

02133 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUMP PUMP #2 collection pumpstat 21,352 2011 9069.83 27,065

02134 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #1 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02135 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP # collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02136 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #3 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02137 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #4 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02138 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #5 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02139 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #6 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02140 01/01/11 DEWATERING PUMP collection pumpstat 92,527 2011 9069.83 117,281

02141 01/01/11 PUMP #1 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02142 01/01/11 PUMP #2 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02143 01/01/11 PUMP #3 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02144 01/01/11 PUMP #4 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02145 01/01/11 PUMP #5 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02146 01/01/11 PUMP #6 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

Page 14 of 57178 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02147 01/01/11 PUMP #1 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02149 01/01/11 PUMP #2 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02151 01/01/11 PUMP #3 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02153 01/01/11 PUMP #4 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02155 01/01/11 PUMP #5 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02157 01/01/11 PUMP #6 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02159 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #1 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02161 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #2 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02163 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #3 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02165 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #4 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02167 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER PIPING collection pumpstat 288,256 2011 9069.83 365,374

02168 01/01/11 PUMP #1 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02169 01/01/11 PUMP #2 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02170 01/01/11 PUMP #3 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02171 01/01/11 PUMP #4 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02172 01/01/11 PUMP #5 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02173 01/01/11 PUMP #6 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02174 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02175 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02176 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02177 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02178 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02179 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02188 01/01/11 NEWARK REVERSE PUMPING PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 40,712 2011 9069.83 51,603

02189 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VALUT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02190 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VALUT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02191 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VAULT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02192 01/01/11 VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02193 01/01/11 VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02194 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX FOOT VALVE #1 collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02195 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX FOOT VALVE #2 collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02196 01/01/11 BYPASS PIPING collection pumpstat 175,801 2011 9069.83 222,833

02197 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022007 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02198 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022008 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02199 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022009 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02200 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022010 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02201 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022011 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

Page 15 of 57179 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02202 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022012 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02203 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022013 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02204 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022014 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02205 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052005 collection pumpstat 61,538 2011 9069.83 78,001

02206 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052006 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 61,538 2011 9069.83 78,001

02207 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022015 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02208 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022016 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02209 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022017 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02210 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022018 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02211 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022019 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02212 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052001 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02213 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052002 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02214 01/01/11 PIPE 6" 36LF collection collsys 70,865 2011 9069.83 89,824

02215 01/01/11 PIPE 8" 50 LF collection collsys 106,582 2011 9069.83 135,096

02216 01/01/11 LATERAL, 1 QTY collection collsys 13,358 2011 9069.83 16,931

02217 01/01/11 PIPE 10" CIPP REHAB collection collsys 151,303 2011 9069.83 191,781

02218 01/01/11 PIPE 10" OPEN CUT collection collsys 394,675 2011 9069.83 500,263

02219 01/01/11 PIPE 8" OPEN CUT collection collsys 17,793 2011 9069.83 22,554

02220 01/01/11 PIPE 6" OPEN CUT collection collsys 14,633 2011 9069.83 18,547

02221 01/01/11 MANHOLE collection collsys 40,972 2011 9069.83 51,933

02222 01/01/11 MANHOLE, DROP collection collsys 33,168 2011 9069.83 42,041

02227 01/01/11 PIPE 6" UNDERGROUND 120 LF collection contribcs 30,876 2011 9069.83 39,136

02228 01/01/11 PIPE 8" UNDERGROUND 15341 LF collection contribcs 3,947,224 2011 9069.83 5,003,235

02229 01/01/11 PIPE 10" UNDERGROUND 197 LF collection contribcs 53,158 2011 9069.83 67,380

02230 01/01/11 MANHOLES 106 QTY collection contribcs 392,382 2011 9069.83 497,357

02231 01/01/11 RISERS 25 QTY collection contribcs 45,166 2011 9069.83 57,249

02241 06/30/12 VALVE ACTUATOR collection twnforce 20,429 2012 9308.17 25,232

02253 06/30/12 8" PIPE 1035 LF collection collsys 92,376 2012 9308.17 114,091

02254 06/30/12 10"PIPE  81 LF collection collsys 41,056 2012 9308.17 50,707

02256 06/30/12 8" CIPP LINER 260 LF collection collsys 105,452 2012 9308.17 130,241

02257 06/30/12 10" CIPP LINER 119 LF collection collsys 46,818 2012 9308.17 57,824

02258 06/30/12 12" CIPP LINER 335 LF collection collsys 44,815 2012 9308.17 55,350

02259 06/30/12 15" CIPP LINER 127 LF collection collsys 32,024 2012 9308.17 39,552

02260 06/30/12 8" PVC PIPE 475 LF collection collsys 224,653 2012 9308.17 277,464

02261 06/30/12 12" PVC PIPE 68 LF collection collsys 44,372 2012 9308.17 54,803

02262 06/30/12 MANHOLE STANDARD 1 QTY collection collsys 18,031 2012 9308.17 22,269

02263 06/30/12 MANHOLE DROP 1 QTY collection collsys 26,866 2012 9308.17 33,182

Page 16 of 57180 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02264 06/30/12 LATERAL CONNECTIONS 2 QTY collection collsys 20,371 2012 9308.17 25,159

02302 06/30/12 18" PVC PIPE OPEN CUT collection collsys 259,232 2012 9308.17 320,172

02303 06/30/12 MANHOLE TRUNK OUTSIDE DROP collection collsys 14,847 2012 9308.17 18,337

02304 06/30/12 8" PIPE, 3404 FT collection contribcs 908,059 2012 9308.17 1,121,524

02305 06/30/12 10" PIPE, 929 FT collection contribcs 260,129 2012 9308.17 321,280

02306 06/30/12 12" PIPE, 701 FT collection contribcs 201,802 2012 9308.17 249,241

02307 06/30/12 14" PIPE, 85 FT collection contribcs 25,289 2012 9308.17 31,234

02308 06/30/12 15" PIPE, 65 FT collection contribcs 20,005 2012 9308.17 24,708

02309 06/30/12 MANHOLES, 32 QTY collection contribcs 123,000 2012 9308.17 151,915

02320 01/01/13 8" PVC PIPE, 19 FT collection collsys 20,156 2013 9546.67 24,273

02321 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 6 QTY collection collsys 254,634 2013 9546.67 306,635

02360 01/01/13 BOX collection twnforce 20,000 2013 9546.67 24,084

02361 01/01/13 HEADER collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02362 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V17 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02363 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V15` collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02364 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V19 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02365 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V7 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02366 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V9 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02367 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V11 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02368 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V13 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02369 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V18 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02370 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V16 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02371 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V8 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02372 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V10 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02373 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V12 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02374 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V5 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02375 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V6 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02378 01/01/13 8' PIPE VCP 7630 LF collection collsys 415,853 2013 9546.67 500,779

02379 01/01/13 10" PIPE VCP 41 LF collection collsys 33,045 2013 9546.67 39,794

02380 01/01/13 12' PIPE VCP 16 LF collection collsys 14,858 2013 9546.67 17,892

02381 01/01/13 21" PIPE VCP 40 LF collection collsys 63,917 2013 9546.67 76,970

02382 01/01/13 LATERAL CONNECTION 2 QTY collection collsys 23,020 2013 9546.67 27,721

02383 01/01/13 10" PIPE PVC 510 LF collection contribcs 392,368 2013 9546.67 472,498

02384 01/01/13 10" PIPE HDPE 546.46 LF collection contribcs 1,025,140 2013 9546.67 1,234,497

02386 01/01/13 8" PIPE, 4712 LF collection contribcs 1,257,654 2013 9546.67 1,514,495

02387 01/01/13 10" PIPE, 929 LF collection contribcs 260,268 2013 9546.67 313,421

02388 01/01/13 12" PIPE, 701 LF collection contribcs 201,802 2013 9546.67 243,014

Page 17 of 57181 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02389 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 52 QTY collection contribcs 199,960 2013 9546.67 240,796

02390 01/01/13 8" PIPE, 2216 LF collection contribcs 603,445 2013 9546.67 726,682

02391 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 18 QTY collection contribcs 69,348 2013 9546.67 83,510

02475 01/01/14 SUNTECH 275 PV MODULES collection pumpstat 1,602,935 2014 9806.00 1,879,241

02476 01/01/14 SUNSEEKER SINGLE AXIS TRACKER collection pumpstat 610,323 2014 9806.00 715,528

02477 01/01/14 SOLARON INVERTER collection pumpstat 325,569 2014 9806.00 381,689

02478 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02479 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02480 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02481 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02482 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02483 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02484 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02485 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02486 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02487 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02488 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02489 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02490 01/01/14 BENTEK BIPOLAR RECOMBINER collection pumpstat 18,854 2014 9806.00 22,104

02491 01/01/14 EATON 800A BREAKER collection pumpstat 15,848 2014 9806.00 18,580

02500 01/01/14 RECTIFIER AT IPS collection pumpstat 54,087 2014 9806.00 63,410

02501 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 35,510 2014 9806.00 41,632

02502 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 35,510 2014 9806.00 41,632

02503 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 11,896 2014 9806.00 13,947

02504 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 46,555 2014 9806.00 54,580

02528 01/01/14 6" PIPE LINING, 36 LF collection collsys 34,937 2014 9806.00 40,960

02529 01/01/14 8" PIPE LINING, 796 LF collection collsys 314,815 2014 9806.00 369,082

02530 01/01/14 10" PIPE LINING, 173 LF collection collsys 16,016 2014 9806.00 18,777

02531 01/01/14 12" PIPE LINING, 924 LF collection collsys 100,266 2014 9806.00 117,549

02535 01/01/14 RIO6T collection pumpstat 62,378 2014 9806.00 73,130

02550 01/01/14 8" PIPE, 654 LF collection collsys 148,623 2014 9806.00 174,241

02551 01/01/14 10" PIPE, 907 LF collection collsys 159,725 2014 9806.00 187,258

02552 01/01/14 12" PIPE, 907 LF collection collsys 114,405 2014 9806.00 134,126

02553 01/01/14 FORCE MAIN, 30" HAYWARD MARSH collection collsys 122,818 2014 9806.00 143,989

02554 01/01/14 JACKING 990 LF collection collsys 2,214,163 2014 9806.00 2,595,830

02555 01/01/14 MANHOLE, STANDARD, 1 QTY collection collsys 21,313 2014 9806.00 24,987

02556 01/01/14 MANHOLE, DROP, 1 QTY collection collsys 99,462 2014 9806.00 116,607

Page 18 of 57182 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02559 01/01/14 6" PIPE, PVC 2032 LF collection collsys 551,266 2014 9806.00 646,290

02560 01/01/14 MANHOLES, STANDARD, 7 QTY collection collsys 71,726 2014 9806.00 84,090

02562 01/01/14 24" PVC GRAVITY SEWER, 72 LF collection liftstat 200,440 2014 9806.00 234,991

02563 01/01/14 PROCESS PIPING AND FITTINGS collection liftstat 182,167 2014 9806.00 213,568

02564 01/01/14 GENERATOR, STANDBY collection liftstat 174,234 2014 9806.00 204,268

02565 01/01/14 BRIDGE CRANE collection liftstat 107,657 2014 9806.00 126,214

02566 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 1 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02567 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 2 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02568 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 2 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02569 01/01/14 LIFT STATION CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 99,158 2014 9806.00 116,250

02570 01/01/14 HYDRAULIC POWER UNIT collection liftstat 99,158 2014 9806.00 116,250

02571 01/01/14 14" & 16" PVC/DI FORCE MAIN 150 LF collection liftstat 78,901 2014 9806.00 92,502

02572 01/01/14 30" CONCRETE SEWER W/CIP LINING 65 LF collection liftstat 67,994 2014 9806.00 79,714

02574 01/01/14 MANHOLE M17009 collection liftstat 62,611 2014 9806.00 73,404

02575 01/01/14 MANHOLE M17010 collection liftstat 62,611 2014 9806.00 73,404

02576 01/01/14 PUMP 1 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02577 01/01/14 PUMP 2 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02578 01/01/14 PUMP 2 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02579 01/01/14 TROLLEY collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02580 01/01/14 SLUICE GATE 3 collection liftstat 53,120 2014 9806.00 62,277

02581 01/01/14 LINING 30 LF collection liftstat 48,162 2014 9806.00 56,464

02582 01/01/14 MAIN SWITCHBOARD collection liftstat 30,456 2014 9806.00 35,705

02584 01/01/14 GAS DETECTION SYSTEM collection liftstat 30,314 2014 9806.00 35,539

02585 01/01/14 PRECAST VALVE VAULT STRUCTURE collection liftstat 26,489 2014 9806.00 31,055

02586 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 1 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02587 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 2 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02588 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 3 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02589 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 1 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02590 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 1 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02591 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02592 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02593 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 3 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02594 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02595 01/01/14 ELECTRICAL ROOM SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02596 01/01/14 ELECTRICAL ROOM EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02597 01/01/14 MOTOR CONTROL CENTER 1 collection liftstat 30,078 2014 9806.00 35,263

02598 01/01/14 SLUICE GATE 2 collection liftstat 21,248 2014 9806.00 24,911

Page 19 of 57183 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02599 01/01/14 HYDRAULIC ACTUATED SLUICE GATE 1 collection liftstat 21,248 2014 9806.00 24,911

02600 01/01/14 ACCUMULATOR collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02601 01/01/14 PUMP 1 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02602 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02603 01/01/14 PUMP 2 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02604 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02605 01/01/14 PUMP 3 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02606 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02607 01/01/14 AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH collection liftstat 17,565 2014 9806.00 20,593

02608 01/01/14 SLIDE GATE 1 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02609 01/01/14 WEIR GATE 1 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02610 01/01/14 WEIR GATE 2 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02611 01/01/14 WETWELL SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02612 01/01/14 WETWELL EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02613 01/01/14 DRYWELL SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02614 01/01/14 DRYWELL EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02615 01/01/14 MECHANICAL ROOM SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02616 01/01/14 MECHANICAL ROOM EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02617 01/01/14 TLS‐350 LEAK DETECTION SYSTEM collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02618 01/01/14 PUMP 1 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02619 01/01/14 PUMP 2 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02620 01/01/14 PUMP 3 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02621 01/01/14 DRAINS collection liftstat 15,157 2014 9806.00 17,770

02622 01/01/14 CONTROL PANEL HYDRAULIC POWER UNIT collection liftstat 15,157 2014 9806.00 17,770

02636 01/01/14 6" PIPE, 61 LF collection contribcs 17,094 2014 9806.00 20,041

02637 01/01/14 8" PIPE, 985 LF collection contribcs 276,320 2014 9806.00 323,951

02638 01/01/14 10" PIPE, 640 LF collection contribcs 188,128 2014 9806.00 220,557

02639 01/01/14 12" PIPE, 579 LF collection contribcs 174,759 2014 9806.00 204,883

02640 01/01/14 MANHOLES, 14 QTY collection contribcs 56,382 2014 9806.00 66,101

02727 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE SDR‐26 PVC  2456 FEET collection collsys 1,368,792 2015 10335.00 1,522,598

02728 01/01/15 MANHOLES, STANDARD 7 QTY collection collsys 114,217 2015 10335.00 127,052

02736 01/01/15 24 INCH PIPE 4070 FEET collection collsys 1,398,976 2015 10335.00 1,556,174

02737 01/01/15 27 INCH PIPE 4382 FEET collection collsys 1,624,112 2015 10335.00 1,806,608

02738 01/01/15 30 INCH PIPE 194 FEET collection collsys 207,588 2015 10335.00 230,914

02739 01/01/15 48 INCH PIPE 253 FEET collection collsys 351,634 2015 10335.00 391,146

02744 01/01/15 8 INCH PIPE 13232 FEET collection contribcs 3,796,945 2015 10335.00 4,223,595

02745 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE 126 FEET collection contribcs 37,862 2015 10335.00 42,116

Page 20 of 57184 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02746 01/01/15 12 INCH PIPE 1638 FEET collection contribcs 506,340 2015 10335.00 563,236

02747 01/01/15 MANHOLES  105 QTY collection contribcs 433,435 2015 10335.00 482,139

02749 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE W/STEEL CASING 634 LF collection collsys 138,490 2015 10335.00 154,052

02770 01/01/16 8 INCH PIPE, PVC SS MAIN, 3855 LF collection collsys 2,461,926 2016 10385.00 2,725,380

02771 01/01/16 MANHOLES, 12 QTY collection collsys 231,207 2016 10385.00 255,949

02772 01/01/16 ACTUATOR ‐ WIER GATE #1 collection liftstat 84,832 2016 10385.00 93,910

02773 01/01/16 ACTUATOR ‐ WEIR GATE #2 collection liftstat 84,832 2016 10385.00 93,910

02774 01/01/16 FORCEMAIN VALVE collection liftstat 33,509 2016 10385.00 37,094

02775 01/01/16 ACTUATOR PUMP STATION BYPASS VALVE collection liftstat 25,762 2016 10385.00 28,518

02776 01/01/16 LOAD BANK collection liftstat 67,865 2016 10385.00 75,128

02777 01/01/16 GAS DETECTION SYSTEM CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 101,798 2016 10385.00 112,692

02778 01/01/16 SUMP PUMP CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 23,753 2016 10385.00 26,295

02784 01/01/16 8 INCH PIPE, 348 LF collection collsys 103,176 2016 10385.00 114,217

02785 01/01/16 10 INCH PIPE, 2789 LF collection collsys 867,337 2016 10385.00 960,152

02786 01/01/16 12 INCH PIPE, 2484 LF collection collsys 794,555 2016 10385.00 879,581

02787 01/01/16 MANHOLES, 23 QTY collection collsys 97,967 2016 10385.00 108,451

02811 06/30/17 27" SEWER REHAB 8773 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 3,412,275 2017 10737.00 3,653,587

02812 06/30/17 30" SEWER REHAB 420 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 224,620 2017 10737.00 240,505

02813 06/30/17 8" SEWER REHAB 125 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 104,531 2017 10737.00 111,923

02846 06/30/17 8" PIPE 250 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 141,933 2017 10737.00 151,970

02847 06/30/17 8" PIPE 90 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 85,411 2017 10737.00 91,451

02848 06/30/17 10" PIPE 36 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 40,193 2017 10737.00 43,036

02849 06/30/17 8" PIPE 10 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 74,106 2017 10737.00 79,347

02856 06/30/17 27" PVC PIPELINE 190 LF ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 403,540 2017 10737.00 432,078

02857 06/30/17 27" PVC SLIP 732 LF ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 1,756,128 2017 10737.00 1,880,320

02858 06/30/17 MANHOLE 1 QTY ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 49,212 2017 10737.00 52,692

02863 06/30/17 8" PIPE 11368 LF collection collsys 3,420,039 2017 10737.00 3,661,901

02864 06/30/17 24" PIPE 412 LF collection collsys 189,592 2017 10737.00 203,000

02865 06/30/17 MANHOLES, 82 QTY collection collsys 355,384 2017 10737.00 380,516

02878 01/01/18 SEWAGE PUMP CHOPPER collection pumpstat 53,426 2018 11062.00 55,523

02905 01/01/18 HEADWORKS ACCESS MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 112,077 2018 11062.00 116,478

02906 01/01/18 ART'S RANCH ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 114,792 2018 11062.00 119,299

02907 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02908 01/01/18 TURK ISLAND ACCESS MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02909 01/01/18 TURK ISLAND ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 114,792 2018 11062.00 119,299

02910 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 145,179 2018 11062.00 150,879

02911 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

Page 21 of 57185 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02912 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 125,653 2018 11062.00 130,586

02913 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02914 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02915 01/01/18 COYOTE HILLS ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 133,597 2018 11062.00 138,842

02916 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 143,114 2018 11062.00 148,732

02917 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02918 01/01/18 HIGHWAY 84 ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 133,660 2018 11062.00 138,908

02919 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02920 01/01/18 PRJ 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02921 01/01/18 OLD JARVIS ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 128,695 2018 11062.00 133,748

02922 01/01/18 PRJ 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02923 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02924 01/01/18 8" PIPE 22,279 LF collection collsys 6,887,571 2018 11062.00 7,157,987

02925 01/01/18 MANHOLES, 186 QTY collection collsys 826,780 2018 11062.00 859,241

02940 01/01/19 PUMP collection pumpstat 85,910 2019 11268.48 87,647

02941 01/01/19 GODWIN DPC300 PUMP FOR IPS collection pumpstat 133,397 2019 11268.48 136,094

02992 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 1 FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 585,545 2019 11268.48 597,384

02993 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 2 FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 585,545 2019 11268.48 597,384

02994 01/01/19 ENGINE‐GENERATOR‐FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 58,035 2019 11268.48 59,208

02995 01/01/19 MCC‐FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 199,899 2019 11268.48 203,940

02996 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 14,509 2019 11268.48 14,802

02997 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 22,553 2019 11268.48 23,009

02998 01/01/19 SAFETY EYEWASH FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 12,897 2019 11268.48 13,157

02999 01/01/19 EFFLUENT VAVLE ACTUATOR FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 17,733 2019 11268.48 18,091

03000 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 1 PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 659,578 2019 11268.48 672,914

03001 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 2 PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 659,578 2019 11268.48 672,914

03002 01/01/19 ENGINE‐GENERATOR‐PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 58,035 2019 11268.48 59,208

03003 01/01/19 444 collection liftstat 335,314 2019 11268.48 342,093

03004 01/01/19 MCC‐PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 248,593 2019 11268.48 253,619

03005 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 19,184 2019 11268.48 19,572

03006 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 19,184 2019 11268.48 19,572

03007 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 21,586 2019 11268.48 22,022

03008 01/01/19 SAFETY EYEWASH PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 12,897 2019 11268.48 13,157

03009 01/01/19 459 collection collsys 2,106,051 2019 11268.48 2,148,632

03010 01/01/19 8" PIPE, C‐900 OPEN CUT, 100 LF ‐ PRJ 459 collection collsys 78,538 2019 11268.48 80,126

03011 01/01/19 MANHOLES, 9 QTY ‐ PRJ 459 collection collsys 315,908 2019 11268.48 322,295

03024 01/01/19 PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 210,909 2019 11268.48 215,173

Page 22 of 57186 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

03025 01/01/19 PANEL ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 31,983 2019 11268.48 32,630

03026 01/01/19 UPS ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 45,834 2019 11268.48 46,761

03027 01/01/19 EXHAUST FAN ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 323,880 2019 11268.48 330,429

03028 01/01/19 BOOST PIPE EXTENSION ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 211,590 2019 11268.48 215,868

03029 01/01/19 BOYCE LIFT STATION ‐ PRJ 506 collection collsys 36,413 2019 11268.48 37,149

03032 01/01/19 8" PIPE 4,781 LF collection collsys 1,519,144 2019 11268.48 1,549,859

03033 01/01/19 MANHOLES, 48 QTY collection collsys 219,244 2019 11268.48 223,677

Collection Total 443,582,382 1,672,112,203

00097 06/30/09 RST 1500 Mini‐Camera equipment equip‐cs 10,277 2009 8570.08 13,786

00296 06/30/09 Datalogger UPS equipment computer 15,717 2009 8570.08 21,083

00386 06/30/09 Vapor Recovery System equipment equipfmc 33,901 2009 8570.08 45,476

00394 06/30/08 Jerome H2S Meter equipment equipfmc 11,808 2008 8309.92 16,335

00631 02/01/07 Spare ARV's equipment equipfmc 16,888 2007 7967.00 24,369

00694 06/30/06 Olympus Microscope & Dig Camer equipment equiplab 13,414 2006 7751.25 19,895

00777 06/30/08 Repeater System equipment equipfmc 17,731 2008 8309.92 24,529

00841 06/30/09 Mr Manhole Casting Ringsaw equipment equip‐cs 44,548 2009 8570.08 59,759

00856 06/30/08 Novastar Camera equipment equip‐cs 15,497 2008 8309.92 21,439

00857 06/30/08 Novastar Camera equipment equip‐cs 15,497 2008 8309.92 21,439

00869 10/12/04 6" Submersible Pump equipment equipfmc 10,637 2004 7115.08 17,187

00926 01/10/07 SPM Leonova Vibration Monitor equipment equipfmc 17,865 2007 7967.00 25,779

00958 06/30/08 Readkey Pro Security System equipment computer 33,382 2008 8309.92 46,182

00961 12/31/00 Hoist Monorail System  Maint B equipment equipfmc 28,468 2000 6221.17 52,607

01078 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 1 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01079 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 2 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01080 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 3 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01081 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 4 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01082 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 5 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01108 12/31/00 Pump  Submersible  6 in ITT Fl equipment equipfmc 10,561 2000 6221.17 19,516

01139 09/15/03 Laser Alignment System equipment equipfmc 16,833 2003 6694.58 28,906

01159 06/30/09 12" HDPE By‐Pass Piping equipment equip‐cs 200,336 2009 8570.08 268,739

01218 12/31/01 Microform Scanner  Minolta MS equipment officefurn 15,687 2001 6342.08 28,435

01358 12/31/95 OFFICE TRAILER ‐ TRAINING CENTER equipment equipfmc 17,593 1995 5471.17 36,967

01364 12/31/99 Camera RST Omieye III equipment equip‐cs 17,861 1999 6059.50 33,887

01373 06/30/09 SharePoint Sofware & Serv equipment computer 228,538 2009 8570.08 306,571

01374 12/31/00 60 000 Lb Vehicle Hoist  Maint equipment equip‐cs 55,306 2000 6221.17 102,202

01418 01/28/04 Microsoft SW Assurance Ser Lic equipment computer 21,264 2004 7115.08 34,357

Page 23 of 57187 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01439 12/31/02 Man Lift  Genie S‐40  40 Ft equipment equipfmc 52,120 2002 6538.00 91,647

01455 12/31/02 Crane Proj 124 equipment equipfmc 56,829 2002 6538.00 99,926

01456 12/31/02 Crane Proj 124 equipment equipfmc 56,829 2002 6538.00 99,926

01501 06/30/09 Plant GIS Database Schema&data equipment computer 601,573 2009 8570.08 806,979

01510 06/30/06 FLexidata Software System equipment computer 49,332 2006 7751.25 73,167

01511 06/30/06 SCADA‐Hansen Interface equipment computer 35,000 2006 7751.25 51,910

01520 12/31/95 Camera Equipment equipment equip‐cs 36,681 1995 5471.17 77,076

01611 12/31/96 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 69,345 1996 5622.17 141,798

01616 12/31/99 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 74,409 1999 6059.50 141,171

01662 12/31/97 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 98,773 1997 5825.08 194,937

01673 12/31/98 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 107,272 1998 5920.42 208,302

01752 12/31/02 Furniture  Modular Proj 133 equipment officefurn 654,454 2002 6538.00 1,150,780

01843 06/30/05 Proj 36 GIS equipment computer 1,191,387 2005 7446.08 1,839,430

01905 01/01/10 FURNITURE, MODULAR equipment officefurn 10,008 2010 8798.92 13,077

01906 01/01/10 DRILL PRESS 2, MAINT SHOP equipment equipfmc 13,516 2010 8798.92 17,660

01914 01/01/10 PUMP, 6" SUBMERSIBLE equipment equip‐cs 15,150 2010 8798.92 19,795

01939 01/01/10 PERMIT TRACKING SYSTEM SOFTWARE equipment computer 153,932 2010 8798.92 201,121

01998 01/01/11 APC SYMMETRA PX SERVER ROOM UPS equipment computer 77,080 2011 9069.83 97,701

01999 01/01/11 CCTV SYSTEM equipment computer 69,600 2011 9069.83 88,220

02013 01/01/11 VERTICLE BAND SAW equipment equipfmc 11,645 2011 9069.83 14,760

02016 01/01/11 BRIDGE CRANE equipment equip‐cs 43,365 2011 9069.83 54,967

02017 01/01/11 BAND SAW, HORIZONTAL equipment equipfmc 11,030 2011 9069.83 13,981

02020 01/01/11 USD‐SQLE DELL SERVER equipment computer 13,581 2011 9069.83 17,214

02025 01/01/11 OPTIMUM HR SOFTWARE SYSTEM equipment computer 31,347 2011 9069.83 39,733

02026 01/01/11 USD‐ESX4 equipment computer 25,000 2011 9069.83 31,688

02027 01/01/11 EDEN FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SYSTEM equipment computer 405,253 2011 9069.83 513,671

02030 01/01/11 DELL DR SCADA SERVER equipment computer 24,624 2011 9069.83 31,211

02044 01/01/11 SCADA SYSTEM UPGRADE equipment computer 43,623 2011 9069.83 55,293

02235 06/30/12 HP DESIGN JET T2300 PLOTTER/SCANNER equipment computer 13,085 2012 9308.17 16,161

02239 06/30/12 RKI GAS DETECTORS equipment equipfmc 69,831 2012 9308.17 86,247

02251 06/30/12 NPS CONDUIT AND CABLE equipment computer 12,950 2012 9308.17 15,994

02252 06/30/12 NPS ALVARADO BACK UP COMM equipment computer 37,304 2012 9308.17 46,073

02311 01/01/13 VMWARE ESX 3 equipment computer 13,536 2013 9546.67 16,300

02313 01/01/13 QUANTUM HD BACKUP TARGET equipment computer 37,639 2013 9546.67 45,326

02410 01/01/14 LUMBERJACK CUTTING TOOL equipment equip‐cs 13,793 2014 9806.00 16,170

02412 01/01/14 EXHAUST GAS ANALYZER equipment equipfmc 16,283 2014 9806.00 19,090

02414 01/01/14 6" SUBMERSIBLE PUMP equipment equipfmc 16,748 2014 9806.00 19,635

Page 24 of 57188 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02557 01/01/14 MOTOROLA HANDHELD RADIOS equipment radio 77,509 2014 9806.00 90,870

02558 01/01/14 MOTOROLA RADIO SYSTEM equipment radio 13,054 2014 9806.00 15,305

02701 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5HXOFRDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02702 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5HT1QLDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02703 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5J2ODRDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02704 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DDRFHT26SDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02705 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DMPJXRTSDFHW equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02706 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DMPJXSHQDFHW equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02710 01/01/15 GAS ANALYZER GEMS DIGITAL equipment equipfmc 11,908 2015 10335.00 13,246

02720 01/01/15 PARTS WASHER equipment equipfmc 37,354 2015 10335.00 41,551

02722 01/01/15 WATER CHAMP MIXER equipment equipfmc 21,263 2015 10335.00 23,652

02724 01/01/15 USD‐PDC SERVER equipment computer 11,824 2015 10335.00 13,153

02734 01/01/15 PLANT GIS equipment computer 65,620 2015 10335.00 72,994

02735 01/01/15 PROJECT MATES SOFTWARE equipment computer 139,125 2015 10335.00 154,758

02748 01/01/15 FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM equipment computer 31,904 2015 10335.00 35,489

02752 01/01/16 ADMIN SERVER UPS BATTERIES equipment computer 24,768 2016 10385.00 27,418

02753 01/01/16 OZIII PAN & TILT CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 24,527 2016 10385.00 27,152

02754 01/01/16 EMC SAN equipment computer 23,363 2016 10385.00 25,863

02761 01/01/16 SERVER equipment computer 12,504 2016 10385.00 13,842

02766 01/01/16 SITE WASTE PUMP #3 equipment equipfmc 51,821 2016 10385.00 57,366

02767 01/01/16 ICP‐OEM equipment equiplab 81,654 2016 10385.00 90,392

02779 01/01/16 DELL R720 SERVER equipment computer 66,008 2016 10385.00 73,071

02780 01/01/16 TABLET DEVICES W/ACCESSORIES, 34 QTY equipment computer 61,092 2016 10385.00 67,629

02781 01/01/16 SOFTWARE equipment computer 106,992 2016 10385.00 118,442

02782 01/01/16 SOFTWARE equipment computer 667,428 2016 10385.00 738,851

02791 06/30/17 CONTEX IQ 4490 SCANNER equipment computer 14,768 2017 10737.00 15,812

02792 06/30/17 TOYOTA PNEUMATIC FORKLIFT equipment equipfmc 31,346 2017 10737.00 33,562

02793 06/30/17 50 TON SCOTCHMEN IRONWORKER equipment equipfmc 13,053 2017 10737.00 13,976

02794 06/30/17 DETECTION KIT equipment equipfmc 14,335 2017 10737.00 15,349

02796 06/30/17 QUANTUM NAS equipment computer 31,127 2017 10737.00 33,329

02797 06/30/17 PLANT FIREWALL equipment computer 12,115 2017 10737.00 12,972

02798 06/30/17 EMC VNXE3200 SAN FOR SCADA equipment computer 26,463 2017 10737.00 28,334

02799 06/30/17 CAMERA OZIII. PAN & TILT OPTICAL ZOOM equipment equip‐cs 24,517 2017 10737.00 26,251

02800 06/30/17 CAMERA OZIII. PAN & TILT OPTICAL ZOOM equipment equip‐cs 24,517 2017 10737.00 26,251

02801 06/30/17 CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 11,574 2017 10737.00 12,393

02802 06/30/17 CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 11,574 2017 10737.00 12,393

02803 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 14,442 2017 10737.00 15,463

Page 25 of 57189 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02804 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 13,734 2017 10737.00 14,705

02805 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 13,734 2017 10737.00 14,705

02855 06/30/17 CISCO BE 6000 PHONE SYSTEM ‐ PRJ 471 equipment telephone 268,703 2017 10737.00 287,706

02872 01/01/18 MGMT (SIEM) equipment computer 20,942 2018 11062.00 21,764

02874 01/01/18 AIR COMPRESSOR WHEELED CART equipment equip‐cs 9,219 2018 11062.00 9,581

02875 01/01/18 AMBIENT CART equipment equip‐cs 27,150 2018 11062.00 28,216

02876 01/01/18 T‐LINER ROTATIONAL DEVICE equipment equip‐cs 13,719 2018 11062.00 14,257

02879 01/01/18 BRIDGEPORT MILLING MACHINE equipment equipfmc 19,997 2018 11062.00 20,782

02881 01/01/18 COMMANDER IV UNIT equipment equip‐cs 41,030 2018 11062.00 42,641

02883 01/01/18 IPACS ‐ PRJ 396 equipment computer 188,307 2018 11062.00 195,700

02900 01/01/18 PRJ 474 equipment computer 39,178 2018 11062.00 40,716

02901 01/01/18 477 equipment computer 40,824 2018 11062.00 42,427

02930 01/01/19 PRECISION LATHE equipment equipfmc 24,818 2019 11268.48 25,320

02934 01/01/19 WALK BEHIND CONCRETE SAW equipment equip‐cs 39,902 2019 11268.48 40,709

02937 01/01/19 DELL POWEREDGE R740XD SERVER equipment computer 195,418 2019 11268.48 199,369

02938 01/01/19 EDGE FIREWALL equipment computer 31,972 2019 11268.48 32,618

02942 01/01/19 PORTABLE SCRUBBER FAN equipment equipfmc 14,683 2019 11268.48 14,980

03030 01/01/19 FENCING OLD NEWARK WTP SITE ‐ PRJ 523 equipment equipfmc 11,849 2019 11268.48 12,089

03031 01/01/19 READKEY PRO SECURITY SYSTEMS equipment computer 14,706 2019 11268.48 15,003

Equipment Total 7,987,625 10,871,700

00207 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado fleet vehicle 17,602 2009 8570.08 23,612

00292 06/30/09 2009 Dodge Grand Caravan fleet vehicle 22,104 2009 8570.08 29,652

00298 06/30/09 2009 Dodge Dakota fleet vehicle 22,931 2009 8570.08 30,761

00312 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado 4WD fleet vehicle 24,782 2009 8570.08 33,243

00330 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado fleet vehicle 27,358 2009 8570.08 36,699

00462 06/30/08 Particulate Matter Filter#99 fleet vehicle 15,149 2008 8309.92 20,958

00545 06/30/08 Scissor Lift fleet equipport 16,323 2008 8309.92 22,582

00724 06/30/08 1989 GMC Winch Truck fleet vehicle 27,188 2008 8309.92 37,612

00726 12/31/02 Welder  Portable  Miller fleet equipport 10,545 2002 6538.00 18,542

00852 06/30/09 2009 Sterling Dump Truck fleet vehicle 138,068 2009 8570.08 185,211

00868 06/30/06 Boackhoe Trailer fleet equipport 20,503 2006 7751.25 30,410

00884 06/30/06 Emergency Response Trailer fleet equipport 21,189 2006 7751.25 31,426

00896 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Silverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00897 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Siverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00898 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Siverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00924 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #305 fleet vehicle 17,637 2007 7967.00 25,450

Page 26 of 57190 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00936 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #303 fleet vehicle 18,089 2007 7967.00 26,102

00952 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #306 fleet vehicle 19,083 2007 7967.00 27,537

00959 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #309 fleet vehicle 19,350 2007 7967.00 27,921

00968 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #304 fleet vehicle 19,722 2007 7967.00 28,458

01039 12/31/00 Concrete Saw Trailer fleet equipport 12,927 2000 6221.17 23,889

01061 07/01/06 10" Gorman Rupp Pump fleet equipport 47,064 2006 7751.25 69,803

01100 06/30/08 Skid Steer Loader fleet equipport 73,566 2008 8309.92 101,774

01109 06/30/06 2006 Chev Colorado Pickup fleet vehicle 15,392 2006 7751.25 22,828

01147 05/13/04 2004 Dodge Dakota #256 fleet vehicle 13,757 2004 7115.08 22,228

01175 05/18/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Quad fleet vehicle 22,836 2005 7446.08 35,258

01176 05/18/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Quad fleet vehicle 22,836 2005 7446.08 35,258

01183 12/31/99 Trailer Eager Beaver Model 20X fleet equipport 16,994 1999 6059.50 32,242

01192 06/30/06 Vac Press Tank Stainless Steel fleet equipport 47,244 2006 7751.25 70,070

01197 05/25/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Serv Body fleet vehicle 25,164 2005 7446.08 38,852

01201 03/11/05 Forklift, Komatsu fleet equipport 25,306 2005 7446.08 39,071

01271 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01272 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01273 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01287 12/31/90 1990 GMC 3/4 Ton Chasis/Cab E2 fleet vehicle 14,189 1990 4731.92 34,473

01303 05/13/04 2004 Toyota Prius #257 fleet vehicle 21,575 2004 7115.08 34,860

01308 06/30/05 Trailer, By‐Pass Hose fleet equipport 51,028 2005 7446.08 78,785

01348 05/12/05 2005 Chev 1 Ton w Serv/Crane fleet vehicle 36,992 2005 7446.08 57,113

01381 12/31/01 2002 Chevrolet Silverado C1500 fleet vehicle 20,574 2001 6342.08 37,295

01395 12/31/98 1999 Chevy Astro Van E989528 fleet vehicle 20,419 1998 5920.42 39,650

01419 12/31/79 Pump Diesel 10 Inch 1979 Gorma fleet equipport 0 1979 3003.00 0

01425 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130279 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01427 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130280 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01428 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130281 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01430 06/07/05 2005 Sterling Tank Truck fleet vehicle 73,251 2005 7446.08 113,096

01536 12/31/00 Truck #22 Modifications fleet vehicle 43,902 2000 6221.17 81,128

01544 05/01/05 2005 Sterling National Crane fleet vehicle 149,427 2005 7446.08 230,707

01604 01/01/88 1986 GMC Winch Truck E492563 fleet vehicle 66,710 1988 4519.00 169,710

01612 12/31/92 1993 Ford Knuckle Boom Truck E fleet vehicle 69,698 1992 4984.83 160,742

01656 12/31/96 1997 Ford CF7000 Truck E036770 fleet vehicle 97,686 1996 5622.17 199,750

01685 12/31/00 2001 Ford TV Inspection Van E1 fleet vehicle 142,215 2000 6221.17 262,804

01691 09/30/03 Sewer Cleaner Combo Hydraulic fleet equipport 282,065 2003 6694.58 484,377

01913 01/01/10 1986 GMC WINCH TRUCK ‐ ADDITION fleet vehicle 32,330 2010 8798.92 42,241

Page 27 of 57191 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01915 01/01/10 INTERNATIONAL VACTOR RAMJET fleet vehicle 255,338 2010 8798.92 333,615

01916 01/01/10 VIBRATORY ROLLER fleet vehicle 38,320 2010 8798.92 50,067

01929 01/01/10 ATLAS TRAILER/AIR COMPRESSOR fleet equipport 13,165 2010 8798.92 17,200

01930 01/01/10 MULTIQUIP CONCRETE SAW fleet equipport 20,829 2010 8798.92 27,215

01937 01/01/10 PUMP, 4" GODWIN DRI‐PRIME fleet equipport 43,747 2010 8798.92 57,159

01996 01/01/11 CAT BACKHOE fleet vehicle 100,568 2011 9069.83 127,473

01997 01/01/11 TV VAN fleet vehicle 251,626 2011 9069.83 318,944

02008 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐250 fleet vehicle 44,389 2011 9069.83 56,264

02009 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐250 fleet vehicle 31,637 2011 9069.83 40,101

02014 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐350 fleet vehicle 43,228 2011 9069.83 54,793

02015 01/01/11 2011 FORD F350 fleet vehicle 43,228 2011 9069.83 54,793

02234 06/30/12 2011 CAT 420E BACKHOE fleet vehicle 106,445 2012 9308.17 131,468

02236 06/30/12 2011 DODGE GRAND CARAVAN fleet vehicle 22,756 2012 9308.17 28,106

02237 06/30/12 2011 DODGE GRAND CARAVAN fleet vehicle 20,559 2012 9308.17 25,392

02242 06/30/12 2012 CHEVY COLORADO 4WD fleet vehicle 31,271 2012 9308.17 38,622

02247 06/30/12 480E BACKHOE fleet equipport 11,993 2012 9308.17 14,812

02314 11/01/12 2012 TV VAN FORD F550 fleet vehicle 282,958 2012 9308.17 349,475

02315 11/01/12 2012 TV VAN FORD F550 fleet vehicle 282,958 2012 9308.17 349,475

02402 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02403 01/01/14 2013 TOYOTA TACOMA fleet vehicle 27,705 2014 9806.00 32,480

02404 01/01/14 6" DRI‐PRIME PUMP ON TRAILER fleet equipport 57,307 2014 9806.00 67,185

02405 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02406 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02407 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02408 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02409 01/01/14 2014 FREIGHTLINER VACTOR COMBO UNIT fleet vehicle 454,772 2014 9806.00 533,163

02411 01/01/14 2014 FORD TRANSIT CONNECT fleet vehicle 24,664 2014 9806.00 28,916

02413 01/01/14 TRAILER, TILT DECK fleet equipport 14,441 2014 9806.00 16,930

02708 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02709 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02711 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02712 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02713 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02714 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY VOLT fleet vehicle 36,198 2015 10335.00 40,266

02715 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY VOLT fleet vehicle 36,198 2015 10335.00 40,266

02716 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02717 01/01/15 2013 FORD F650 fleet vehicle 156,515 2015 10335.00 174,102

Page 28 of 57192 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02718 01/01/15 2013 FORD F650 fleet vehicle 156,515 2015 10335.00 174,102

02719 01/01/15 6"GODWIN PUMP TRAILER MOUNT fleet equipport 61,897 2015 10335.00 68,852

02721 01/01/15 SUBMERSIBLE PUMP PORTABLE fleet equipport 16,820 2015 10335.00 18,710

02723 01/01/15 2015 INTERNATIONAL DUMP TRUCK fleet vehicle 197,801 2015 10335.00 220,027

02725 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 TRUCK fleet vehicle 44,705 2015 10335.00 49,728

02755 01/01/16 2015 FORD F250 fleet vehicle 36,016 2016 10385.00 39,870

02756 01/01/16 2015 FORD F250 fleet vehicle 36,016 2016 10385.00 39,870

02757 01/01/16 2015 FORD F150 fleet vehicle 27,700 2016 10385.00 30,664

02758 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, YELLOW fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02759 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, WHITE fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02760 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, WHITER fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02762 01/01/16 2016 CHEVY SILVERADO, V2 PUS/VAN 5‐1T fleet vehicle 51,473 2016 10385.00 56,981

02763 01/01/16 2016 CHEVY SILVERADO fleet vehicle 53,878 2016 10385.00 59,644

02764 01/01/16 2016 FORD DUMP TRUCK F550 fleet vehicle 65,599 2016 10385.00 72,619

02765 01/01/16 2016 FORD DUMP TRUCK F550 fleet vehicle 65,599 2016 10385.00 72,619

02788 06/30/17 UTILITY CART ‐ COLUMBIA PARCAR fleet vehicle 18,058 2017 10737.00 19,335

02789 06/30/17 UTILITY CART ‐ COLUMBIA PARCAR fleet vehicle 18,058 2017 10737.00 19,335

02790 06/30/17 PAINTING TRAILER fleet equipport 14,945 2017 10737.00 16,001

02795 06/30/17 VAPOROOTER COMMANDER fleet vehicle 36,492 2017 10737.00 39,072

02869 01/01/18 GLS AUTOMATIC SAMPLERS fleet equipport 15,822 2018 11062.00 16,443

02873 01/01/18 SLIP LINE TRAILER (LMK) fleet vehicle 56,730 2018 11062.00 58,957

02880 01/01/18 VAC‐CON JETTER fleet vehicle 277,502 2018 11062.00 288,397

02882 01/01/18 FORD F‐550 MINI JET fleet vehicle 191,167 2018 11062.00 198,673

02931 01/01/19 VACTOR COMBO UNIT fleet vehicle 507,967 2019 11268.48 518,237

02932 01/01/19 GODWIN 4" SILENCED DRI‐PRIME PUMP fleet equipport 68,478 2019 11268.48 69,863

02933 01/01/19 WAREHOUSE fleet equipport 33,953 2019 11268.48 34,639

02935 01/01/19 2019 CHEVROLET BOLT EV fleet vehicle 37,789 2019 11268.48 38,553

02936 01/01/19 2019 CHEVROLET BOLT EV fleet vehicle 37,789 2019 11268.48 38,553

Fleet Total 7,197,713 9,336,147

02232 07/01/03 UNION CITY PERMIT intangible intangible 6,043,632 2003 6694.58 10,378,460

02385 07/17/12 EASEMENT ‐ DOCUMENT 21751137 intangible easement 198,026 2012 9308.17 244,578

02641 01/01/14 EASEMENT ‐ DOC #2014065720 intangible easement 174,240 2014 9806.00 204,275

Intangible Total 6,415,898 10,827,312

00002 09/11/52 All Land land land 4,624,417 1952 569.00 93,433,630

02021 01/01/11 LAND ‐ BOYCE ROAD, FREMONT land land 348,142 2011 9069.83 441,282

Page 29 of 57193 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02024 01/01/11 LAND ‐ HICKORY STREET, NEWARK land land 423,343 2011 9069.83 536,601

Land Total 5,395,903 94,411,513

00099 06/30/09 Fire Panel operations bldg 15,733 2009 8570.08 21,105

00115 06/30/09 Electrical operations bldg 28,283 2009 8570.08 37,941

00214 06/30/09 Tractor Loader Training Area operations bldg 36,510 2009 8570.08 48,976

00275 06/30/07 Permanent Structure operations bldg 20,528 2007 7967.00 29,622

00281 06/30/07 Permanent Structure operations bldg 21,321 2007 7967.00 30,767

00310 06/30/06 20" Steel Pipe operations bldg 10,364 2006 7751.25 15,372

00367 06/30/07 Library Cabinets operations bldg 12,205 2007 7967.00 17,612

00373 06/30/06 Maint Shop Bldg Ext Paint operations bldg 13,811 2006 7751.25 20,484

00380 06/30/06 24" Steel Pipe operations bldg 14,133 2006 7751.25 20,962

00398 06/30/09 Foundation, building operations bldg 143,994 2009 8570.08 193,160

00475 12/31/02 Paving/Grading  Mech Maint Bld operations bldg 13,219 2002 6538.00 23,244

00502 06/30/06 Comp Room HVAC Unit operations bldg 12,929 2006 7751.25 19,176

00578 06/30/06 Comp Room HVAC Unit operations bldg 15,000 2006 7751.25 22,247

00592 12/31/02 Flooring  Mech Maint Bldg Proj operations bldg 16,623 2002 6538.00 29,230

00618 06/30/07 Fire Suppression System operations bldg 27,853 2007 7967.00 40,192

00659 06/30/07 Permenent Structure operations bldg 58,950 2007 7967.00 85,065

00665 12/31/00 Ceiling Panels  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 13,986 2000 6221.17 25,845

00689 06/30/08 Control Bldg Stairs operations bldg 61,831 2008 8309.92 85,540

00704 06/30/06 Field Ops Membrain Roof operations bldg 23,016 2006 7751.25 34,136

00745 06/30/05 Fire Alarm Link Btwn Bldgs operations bldg 19,399 2005 7446.08 29,951

00766 12/31/02 Roof  Mech Maint Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 13,869 2002 6538.00 24,386

00787 06/30/06 Silencote Roof ‐ Generator Rm operations bldg 27,822 2006 7751.25 41,264

00798 06/30/07 Roof Rehab ‐ Prom Clarify1‐4 operations bldg 39,659 2007 7967.00 57,227

00799 06/30/09 Painting/Coating operations bldg 196,573 2009 8570.08 263,692

00807 06/30/06 Ctrl Bldg Patio Roof operations bldg 29,017 2006 7751.25 43,037

00832 06/30/06 Fire System operations bldg 24,602 2006 7751.25 36,489

00834 12/31/02 Fire/Security System  Mech Mai operations bldg 16,576 2002 6538.00 29,147

00877 12/31/00 Site Prep  Admin Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 22,858 2000 6221.17 42,240

00891 06/30/07 Storm Drain operations bldg 81,876 2007 7967.00 118,146

00892 06/30/06 Sidewalk/Curb Common Area operations bldg 29,371 2006 7751.25 43,561

00913 12/31/00 Flooring  Tile  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

00914 12/31/00 Fencing  Covered Storage  Proj operations bldg 15,640 2000 6221.17 28,902

00941 06/30/05 Control Bldg Ext Paint operations bldg 38,725 2005 7446.08 59,789

00949 06/30/09 Permanent Structure operations bldg 367,273 2009 8570.08 492,677

Page 30 of 57194 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00962 12/31/02 Flooring  Carpet  Control Bldg operations bldg 14,008 2002 6538.00 24,631

00973 06/30/06 4" Chemical Line operations bldg 53,714 2006 7751.25 79,666

00974 06/30/06 6" Sludge Line operations bldg 53,714 2006 7751.25 79,666

00995 06/30/05 Fire Detection System operations bldg 36,653 2005 7446.08 56,590

01016 12/31/02 Plumbing  Mech Maint Bldg Proj operations bldg 21,254 2002 6538.00 37,373

01025 06/30/06 Electrical ‐ Bldg operations bldg 40,096 2006 7751.25 59,469

01028 12/31/00 Lockers  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐4 operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

01029 12/31/00 Cabinets/Casework  Maint Bldg operations bldg 33,422 2000 6221.17 61,762

01034 06/30/06 Vent Degritted Prim Sludge operations bldg 62,053 2006 7751.25 92,034

01056 06/30/06 16" Steel Pipe operations bldg 65,955 2006 7751.25 97,822

01063 06/30/07 HVAC Unit operations bldg 63,582 2007 7967.00 91,748

01072 06/30/07 Storm Drain operations bldg 130,012 2007 7967.00 187,607

01094 12/31/02 Flooring  Control Bldg Proj 12 operations bldg 66,492 2002 6538.00 116,918

01120 06/30/06 Plumbing operations bldg 104,320 2006 7751.25 154,722

01145 12/31/00 Flooring  Tile  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 44,260 2000 6221.17 81,790

01151 06/30/09 Painting/Coating, Building operations bldg 383,756 2009 8570.08 514,788

01155 06/30/06 9 Lab Sinks & 8 Eyewashes operations bldg 56,152 2006 7751.25 83,282

01157 12/31/02 WH Portable Office Proj 133 operations bldg 30,452 2002 6538.00 53,546

01169 06/30/09 Electrical, building operations bldg 405,313 2009 8570.08 543,706

01171 06/30/06 HVAC operations bldg 58,139 2006 7751.25 86,230

01172 12/31/02 Electrical  Mech Maint Bldg Pr operations bldg 31,325 2002 6538.00 55,082

01181 12/31/02 Flooring  Tile  Control Bldg P operations bldg 24,366 2002 6538.00 42,845

01182 12/31/00 Paving/Grading  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

01185 06/30/06 8" Secondary Dig Interim Pipe operations bldg 51,822 2006 7751.25 76,860

01199 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 69,940 2002 6538.00 122,981

01202 12/31/02 Paving/Grading  Control Bldg P operations bldg 52,876 2002 6538.00 92,976

01213 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Cov Stor operations bldg 27,281 2000 6221.17 50,413

01224 06/30/07 Electrical operations bldg 94,976 2007 7967.00 137,049

01230 12/31/02 Paint/Wall Treatment  Control operations bldg 27,737 2002 6538.00 48,772

01254 12/31/00 Electrical  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 60,711 2000 6221.17 112,190

01270 12/31/00 Elevator  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 46,723 2000 6221.17 86,341

01280 12/31/94 Seismic Design ‐ Primary Bldg operations bldg 13,986 1994 5407.58 29,734

01293 12/31/02 Roof  Control Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 55,474 2002 6538.00 97,545

01298 12/31/02 Structure  Mech Maint Bldg Pro operations bldg 89,134 2002 6538.00 156,732

01302 06/30/05 Landscaping operations bldg 31,226 2005 7446.08 48,211

01315 12/31/00 Paint/Wall Trmt  Maint Bldg  P operations bldg 27,473 2000 6221.17 50,768

01317 06/30/06 Interior Wall Treatments operations bldg 111,811 2006 7751.25 165,834

Page 31 of 57195 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01346 06/30/06 Storm Drain operations bldg 189,508 2006 7751.25 281,070

01347 06/30/07 Roof Rehab ‐ Prom Clarify 5‐6 operations bldg 166,245 2007 7967.00 239,890

01350 12/31/02 Ceiling Panels  Control Bldg P operations bldg 26,085 2002 6538.00 45,867

01354 12/31/02 Fire/Security System  Control operations bldg 66,305 2002 6538.00 116,589

01370 12/31/00 CABINETS/CASEWORK  ADMIN BLDG operations bldg 86,951 2000 6221.17 160,680

01378 06/30/06 Permanent Structure operations bldg 216,482 2006 7751.25 321,077

01380 12/31/01 Control Bldg Roof Replacement operations bldg 76,502 2001 6342.08 138,675

01391 06/30/06 Painting/Coating ‐ Bldg operations bldg 144,053 2006 7751.25 213,653

01396 06/30/09 Permanent Structure, Building operations bldg 1,028,098 2009 8570.08 1,379,139

01431 12/31/60 Concrete Pump Station Structur operations bldg 21,985 1960 824.00 306,731

01440 06/30/05 Landscaping operations bldg 50,388 2005 7446.08 77,796

01447 12/31/00 Fencing operations bldg 68,555 2000 6221.17 126,685

01451 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 113,573 2000 6221.17 209,875

01452 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Maint Bl operations bldg 57,540 2000 6221.17 106,330

01465 12/31/79 Painting operations bldg 26,000 1979 3003.00 99,535

01466 12/31/91 Primary Clarifier Roof operations bldg 26,062 1991 4835.08 61,967

01468 12/31/85 Control Building & Paving operations bldg 44,625 1985 4195.00 122,294

01469 12/31/79 Fencing operations bldg 27,000 1979 3003.00 103,363

01473 12/31/02 Cabinets/Casework  Control Bld operations bldg 169,079 2002 6538.00 297,306

01474 12/31/02 Plumbing  Control Bldg Proj 12 operations bldg 85,018 2002 6538.00 149,494

01481 12/31/99 Newark PS Access Rd Improvment operations bldg 132,161 1999 6059.50 250,741

01483 12/31/00 Ceiling Panels  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 68,098 2000 6221.17 125,841

01485 06/30/05 Electrical Repairs operations bldg 128,704 2005 7446.08 198,711

01486 06/30/04 Proj 152 Paint Booth operations bldg 106,266 2004 7115.08 171,701

01488 12/31/00 Flooring  Carpet  Maint Bldg operations bldg 35,378 2000 6221.17 65,376

01490 12/31/00 Doors/Windows  Maint Bldg  Pro operations bldg 143,933 2000 6221.17 265,979

01496 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 192,329 2002 6538.00 338,188

01497 12/31/00 Design  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 147,946 2000 6221.17 273,395

01515 12/31/00 Roof  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 105,526 2000 6221.17 195,006

01518 06/30/06 6" Secondary Dig Interim Pipe operations bldg 51,822 2006 7751.25 76,860

01521 12/31/97 Alvarado Paving Repair operations bldg 48,280 1997 5825.08 95,285

01530 12/31/02 Electrical  Control Bldg Proj operations bldg 125,302 2002 6538.00 220,328

01538 12/31/00 Plumbing  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 208,230 2000 6221.17 384,796

01539 12/31/79 Excavation/Backfill/Duct Encas operations bldg 60,000 1979 3003.00 229,697

01545 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 277,895 2002 6538.00 488,646

01549 12/31/00 Flooring  Carpet  Admin Bldg operations bldg 53,485 2000 6221.17 98,837

01559 12/31/91 Plant Lighting Improvements operations bldg 51,091 1991 4835.08 121,478

Page 32 of 57196 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01560 12/31/00 Site Piping  Admin Bldg  Proj operations bldg 240,700 2000 6221.17 444,798

01561 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Admin Bl operations bldg 120,720 2000 6221.17 223,083

01580 12/31/02 Structure  Control Bldg Proj 1 operations bldg 356,538 2002 6538.00 626,930

01582 12/31/85 Major Structure &  Ground Prep operations bldg 99,310 1985 4195.00 272,157

01585 12/31/00 Plumbing operations bldg 286,091 2000 6221.17 528,677

01590 12/31/00 Sidewalk/Curb  Common Area  Pr operations bldg 148,220 2000 6221.17 273,901

01593 12/31/00 Doors/Windows  Admin Bldg  Pro operations bldg 304,214 2000 6221.17 562,168

01595 12/31/94 Walkway Improvements operations bldg 67,500 1994 5407.58 143,502

01613 06/30/06 Roof operations bldg 621,104 2006 7751.25 921,193

01617 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 352,075 2000 6221.17 650,612

01619 06/30/06 Excavation operations bldg 863,489 2006 7751.25 1,280,688

01624 06/30/07 Irvington PS Floor Replacement operations bldg 623,194 2007 7967.00 899,264

01626 06/30/06 HVAC operations bldg 458,585 2006 7751.25 680,153

01634 12/31/00 Roof  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 250,283 2000 6221.17 462,507

01635 12/31/98 Alvarado Admin & Lab Facility operations bldg 122,491 1998 5920.42 237,854

01648 12/31/01 Roof Replacement Proj 129 operations bldg 368,418 2001 6342.08 667,833

01653 12/31/00 Structure  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐4 operations bldg 454,617 2000 6221.17 840,103

01654 12/31/00 Design  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 458,634 2000 6221.17 847,526

01657 06/30/06 Electrical ‐ Bldg operations bldg 1,118,439 2006 7751.25 1,658,819

01658 12/31/00 Paint/Wall Trmt  Admin Bldg  P operations bldg 98,036 2000 6221.17 181,164

01665 06/30/07 Electrical 480 Cable Replace operations bldg 825,504 2007 7967.00 1,191,194

01666 12/31/00 Roof  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 303,561 2000 6221.17 560,962

01669 06/30/07 Newark PS Floor Replacement operations bldg 833,804 2007 7967.00 1,203,171

01674 12/31/85 Structural Items operations bldg 183,784 1985 4195.00 503,656

01679 12/31/00 Landscape/Irrigation  Common A operations bldg 198,700 2000 6221.17 367,185

01680 12/31/00 Fuel Island/Tanks  Cov Stor  P operations bldg 270,586 2000 6221.17 500,025

01692 12/31/00 Electrical  Maint Bldg  Proj 2 operations bldg 626,953 2000 6221.17 1,158,567

01693 12/31/00 HVAC  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 405,591 2000 6221.17 749,505

01696 06/30/05 Expansion of PS Bldg Structure operations bldg 1,557,214 2005 7446.08 2,404,246

01697 06/30/05 Bldg Improvements operations bldg 1,559,490 2005 7446.08 2,407,760

01698 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt and Overhead operations bldg 670,079 2000 6221.17 1,238,261

01703 06/30/06 Paving operations bldg 1,050,610 2006 7751.25 1,558,218

01704 06/30/05 Site Work ‐ Paving, Etc. operations bldg 656,025 2005 7446.08 1,012,864

01707 12/31/93 Roof Replacement operations bldg 149,959 1993 5210.42 330,871

01713 12/31/02 HVAC  Control Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 489,282 2002 6538.00 860,345

01727 12/31/00 HVAC  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 173,190 2000 6221.17 320,045

01730 12/31/00 Electrical  Admin Bldg  Proj 2 operations bldg 827,212 2000 6221.17 1,528,635

Page 33 of 57197 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01734 12/31/00 Design  Admin Bldg  proj 28‐48 operations bldg 872,884 2000 6221.17 1,613,033

01739 06/30/06 Foundation ‐ Bldg operations bldg 2,179,057 2006 7751.25 3,231,881

01759 12/31/79 Structural Items operations bldg 314,216 1979 3003.00 1,202,905

01763 12/31/79 Trench Excavation & Backfill operations bldg 330,500 1979 3003.00 1,265,245

01773 12/31/00 Structure  Maint Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 1,312,057 2000 6221.17 2,424,595

01775 12/31/95 Benson Road Improvements operations bldg 321,655 1995 5471.17 675,879

01776 12/31/00 Paving/Grading  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 686,309 2000 6221.17 1,268,254

01790 12/31/79 Roofing operations bldg 385,000 1979 3003.00 1,473,886

01791 12/31/00 Structure  Admin Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 4,006,440 2000 6221.17 7,403,640

01793 06/30/96 Capitalized Interest on Constr operations bldg 1,180,877 1996 5622.17 2,414,679

01794 12/31/79 Painting operations bldg 400,000 1979 3003.00 1,531,310

01797 12/31/79 Iron & Structural Steel ‐ Misc operations bldg 550,000 1979 3003.00 2,105,551

01799 06/30/06 Permanent Structure operations bldg 4,952,740 2006 7751.25 7,345,685

01805 12/31/91 Plant Lighting Improvements operations bldg 453,120 1991 4835.08 1,077,377

01835 12/31/79 Major Structure & Ground Prepa operations bldg 999,805 1979 3003.00 3,827,529

01869 12/31/79 Earthwork and Excavation for 1 operations bldg 2,101,100 1979 3003.00 8,043,589

01891 12/31/79 Non Structural Costs ‐ Enginee operations bldg 4,462,744 1979 3003.00 17,084,612

01945 01/01/10 BOILER CAMUS CONTROL BLDG operations bldg 46,377 2010 8798.92 60,594

01955 01/01/10 CS REMOTE STAGING TRAILER @IPS operations bldg 173,603 2010 8798.92 226,823

01956 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 126,071 2010 8798.92 164,720

01957 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 17,038 2010 8798.92 22,261

01958 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTUREQ operations bldg 27,236 2010 8798.92 35,586

01959 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 17,038 2010 8798.92 22,261

01960 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 63,796 2010 8798.92 83,353

01961 01/01/10 ELECTRICAL operations bldg 90,218 2010 8798.92 117,875

02046 01/01/11 SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 320,843 2011 9069.83 406,679

02047 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02048 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02049 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02050 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02051 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02052 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02053 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02054 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02055 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02056 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02057 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

Page 34 of 57198 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02058 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02059 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02060 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02061 01/01/11 ELECTRIAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02062 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02063 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02064 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02065 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02066 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02067 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02068 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02069 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02070 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02071 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02091 01/01/11 BUILDING operations bldg 3,402,410 2011 9069.83 4,312,666

02112 01/01/11 FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL operations bldg 76,157 2011 9069.83 96,531

02249 06/30/12 IRV PS CEMENT TREATED BASE operations bldg 335,516 2012 9308.17 414,389

02289 06/30/12 CONTROL BUILDING operations bldg 30,719 2012 9308.17 37,940

02316 01/01/13 PAINTING/COATING operations bldg 212,537 2013 9546.67 255,942

02317 01/01/13 PERMANENTE STRUCTURE operations bldg 560,397 2013 9546.67 674,843

02376 01/01/13 PROGRAM operations bldg 29,950 2013 9546.67 36,066

02561 01/01/14 BOYCE ROAD LIFT STATION STRUCTURE operations bldg 5,559,910 2014 9806.00 6,518,300

02573 01/01/14 SITE PAVEMENT operations bldg 63,744 2014 9806.00 74,732

02583 01/01/14 SECURITY FENCE AND GATES operations bldg 30,314 2014 9806.00 35,539

02631 01/01/14 ROOM 3 operations bldg 147,981 2014 9806.00 173,489

02729 01/01/15 BIRD NETTING operations bldg 37,572 2015 10335.00 41,794

02730 01/01/15 LED LIGHTING ‐COV STORAGE operations bldg 20,115 2015 10335.00 22,375

02768 01/01/16 CONTAINMENT operations bldg 16,979 2016 10385.00 18,795

02769 01/01/16 AREA operations bldg 16,979 2016 10385.00 18,795

02861 06/30/17 490 operations bldg 39,005 2017 10737.00 41,764

02862 06/30/17 PRJ 490 operations bldg 36,711 2017 10737.00 39,307

02926 01/01/18 WALKWAY IMPROVEMENTS ‐ PRJ 448 operations bldg 75,763 2018 11062.00 78,738

02928 01/01/19 TRANSPORT operations equipport 20,855 2019 11268.48 21,277

02929 01/01/19 CCTV EQUIPMENT ‐ TRAKSTAR II CAMERA operations equipport 18,383 2019 11268.48 18,755

02939 01/01/19 RECLAIM PUMP 5 operations equipplnt 15,572 2019 11268.48 15,886

02943 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 1,553,358 2019 11268.48 1,584,764

02944 01/01/19 UNDERGROUND DSN PIPING ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 123,810 2019 11268.48 126,314

Page 35 of 57199 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02952 01/01/19 THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING ‐ PRJ 394 operations bldg 5,256,176 2019 11268.48 5,362,447

02955 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02956 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 5 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02957 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 6 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02958 01/01/19 THICKENER GRINDER 3 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 39,582 2019 11268.48 40,382

02959 01/01/19 PLUG VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 22,746 2019 11268.48 23,206

02960 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02961 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02962 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02963 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02964 01/01/19 THICKENER HOIST ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,429 2019 11268.48 20,842

02965 01/01/19 394 operations bldg 1,027,321 2019 11268.48 1,048,091

02966 01/01/19 MCC 31 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 279,123 2019 11268.48 284,767

02967 01/01/19 PLC 44 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 359,099 2019 11268.48 366,359

02968 01/01/19 HEAT TRACE SYSTEM LCP ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 32,067 2019 11268.48 32,715

02970 01/01/19 ROOFTOP PACKAGED ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 26,000 2019 11268.48 26,526

02971 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 590,981 2019 11268.48 602,929

02972 01/01/19 DIGESTER 2 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,861 2019 11268.48 21,283

02973 01/01/19 DIGESTER 1 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,861 2019 11268.48 21,283

02974 01/01/19 MCC 32 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 273,992 2019 11268.48 279,532

02975 01/01/19 PLC 44 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 294,174 2019 11268.48 300,121

02976 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 13,619 2019 11268.48 13,894

02977 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 13,619 2019 11268.48 13,894

02978 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 108,334 2019 11268.48 110,524

02979 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 288,374 2019 11268.48 294,205

02980 01/01/19 DIGESTER 4 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 23,647 2019 11268.48 24,125

02981 01/01/19 PLC 20 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 194,167 2019 11268.48 198,093

02982 01/01/19 DIGESTER 5 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 493 operations equipplnt 23,647 2019 11268.48 24,125

02983 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 109,456 2019 11268.48 111,669

02984 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 109,456 2019 11268.48 111,669

02985 01/01/19 SCUM LINE OUTLET VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 14,361 2019 11268.48 14,651

02986 01/01/19 CHECK VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 29,794 2019 11268.48 30,396

02987 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 3 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 118,864 2019 11268.48 121,267

02988 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 118,864 2019 11268.48 121,267

02989 01/01/19 SCUM LINE OUTLET VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 14,361 2019 11268.48 14,651

02990 01/01/19 PLUG VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 72,350 2019 11268.48 73,813

02991 01/01/19 THICKENER GRINDER 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 39,582 2019 11268.48 40,382

Page 36 of 57200 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

03012 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03013 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03014 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 3 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03015 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 4 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03016 01/01/19 PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03017 01/01/19 PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03018 01/01/19 PUMP 3 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03019 01/01/19 PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03020 01/01/19 463 operations equipplnt 23,421 2019 11268.48 23,895

03021 01/01/19 PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 337,692 2019 11268.48 344,520

03022 01/01/19 PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 337,692 2019 11268.48 344,520

03023 01/01/19 PLC‐48 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 58,552 2019 11268.48 59,736

Operations Total 78,877,183 137,969,393

00036 06/30/09 Supply Fan trmtplant tmntplant 18,524 2009 8570.08 24,850

00042 06/30/09 Blower 10 Blow Off Valve trmtplant tmntplant 20,301 2009 8570.08 27,233

00050 06/30/09 Aeration Basin 6 Zone2&3 Isola trmtplant tmntplant 22,077 2009 8570.08 29,615

00051 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone1 Isolatio trmtplant tmntplant 22,077 2009 8570.08 29,615

00052 06/30/09 Auto Strainer Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00053 06/30/09 Auto Strainer Wash Water 2" Va trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00054 06/30/09 Auto StrainerWashWater2"V Actu trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00055 06/30/09 Manual Strainer trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00064 06/30/09 Pressure Sensor & Transducer trmtplant tmntplant 13,195 2009 8570.08 17,700

00066 06/30/09 SD #1 PDS Isolation Valve trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00067 06/30/09 SD #1 Sludge Recirculation 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00068 06/30/09 SD #2 Gas Isolation 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00069 06/30/09 SD #2 Gas Isolation 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00070 06/30/09 SD #2 Multiport PRV Isolat Val trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00071 06/30/09 SD #2 PRV #1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00072 06/30/09 SD #2 PRV #2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00073 06/30/09 SD #2 Sludge Redirection 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00074 06/30/09 SD #2 Thermal Shutoff Valve trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00076 06/30/09 Secondary/Digester #2 Crossove trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00077 06/30/09 SecondaryDigest #2 Sludge Feed trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00078 06/30/09 SecondaryDigester #2 Recircula trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00079 06/30/09 SecondayDigester #2 Gas Isolat trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00101 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin5 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

Page 37 of 57201 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00102 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin6 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

00103 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin7 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

00105 06/30/09 Manual Strainer Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 16,228 2009 8570.08 21,769

00107 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00108 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00109 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00110 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00111 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00112 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00113 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00121 06/30/09 4" PDS Return Line Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00122 06/30/09 6" SD By Pass Valve #1` trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00123 06/30/09 6" SD By Pass Valve #2 trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00124 06/30/09 Gas Meter ByPass trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00125 06/30/09 Gas Meter Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00126 06/30/09 Gas Meter Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00128 06/30/09 SD #1 Crossover Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00131 06/30/09 SD #1 Overflow Box trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00132 06/30/09 SD #1 Side Hatch Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00135 06/30/09 SD #2 Overflow Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00136 06/30/09 SD #2 Side hatch Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00137 06/30/09 SD#1 Bottom Suction Isola Valv trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00138 06/30/09 SD#1 Side Suction Isola Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00139 06/30/09 SD#2 BottomSuction Isolat Valv trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00140 06/30/09 SD#2 Side Suction Isola Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00141 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Check trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00142 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00143 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00144 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Check trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00145 06/30/09 Sds Circulation Pump #2 Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00146 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00163 06/30/09 Blower 10 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 39,840 2009 8570.08 53,443

00174 06/30/09 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 57,463 2009 8570.08 77,084

00176 06/30/09 Auto Strainer LCP trmtplant tmntplant 29,917 2009 8570.08 40,133

00179 06/30/09 Aeration Basin1 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00180 06/30/09 Aeration Basin2 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00181 06/30/09 Aeration Basin3 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

Page 38 of 57202 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00182 06/30/09 Aeration Basin4 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00183 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00184 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00185 06/30/09 Basin 1 Air Conrol Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00186 06/30/09 Basin 2 Air Conrol Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00187 06/30/09 Basin 3 Air Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00188 06/30/09 Basin 4 Air Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00216 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00217 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00218 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00219 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00220 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00221 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00223 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00224 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00225 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00226 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00227 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00228 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00229 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00231 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00232 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Motor trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00233 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00234 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Motor trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00235 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00236 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00237 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00260 06/30/09 RAS Valve Control Panel Clari4 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2009 8570.08 22,917

00270 06/30/09 Scrubber 6 Gas Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00271 06/30/09 SD #1 Level Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00272 06/30/09 SD #2 Level Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00273 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00277 06/30/08 West Mixing Sludge Fee Actuato trmtplant tmntplant 10,396 2008 8309.92 14,382

00278 06/30/08 West Mixing Sludge Feed Actuat trmtplant tmntplant 10,396 2008 8309.92 14,382

00293 06/30/09 Existing 480 VAC trmtplant tmntplant 66,485 2009 8570.08 89,186

00371 06/30/09 4160VAC Blower Starter Sec6 trmtplant tmntplant 95,668 2009 8570.08 128,333

00404 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 1 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

Page 39 of 57203 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00405 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 2 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

00406 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 3 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

00425 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Temp Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00426 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Temp Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00427 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Water ByPass Cont Valv trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00451 06/30/06 Plumbing trmtplant tmntplant 23,802 2006 7751.25 35,303

00454 06/30/07 Hot Water Circ Pump 6 trmtplant tmntplant 12,523 2007 7967.00 18,071

00455 06/30/07 Hot Water Circ Pump 7 trmtplant tmntplant 12,523 2007 7967.00 18,071

00463 06/30/09 Polymer Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 97,484 2009 8570.08 130,770

00464 06/30/09 Polymer Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 97,484 2009 8570.08 130,770

00465 06/30/06 Milliken Bottom Inlet Valves trmtplant tmntplant 15,326 2006 7751.25 22,731

00466 06/30/06 Milliken Tip Inlet Valves trmtplant tmntplant 15,326 2006 7751.25 22,731

00477 06/30/07 Digester 6A Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00478 06/30/07 Digester 6A Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00479 06/30/07 Digester 6B Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00480 06/30/07 Digester 6B Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00483 06/30/09 Auto Strainer trmtplant tmntplant 64,926 2009 8570.08 87,095

00484 06/30/09 Auto Strainer #1 trmtplant tmntplant 64,926 2009 8570.08 87,095

00514 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 4 Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 12,137 2007 7967.00 17,513

00553 06/30/05 Site Waste PS Ret Knife Gate V trmtplant tmntplant 11,170 2005 7446.08 17,246

00554 06/30/06 Basin 5 Main Air West Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 10,798 2006 7751.25 16,015

00555 06/30/06 Basin 6 Main Air East Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 10,798 2006 7751.25 16,015

00573 06/30/07 Electrical trmtplant tmntplant 20,728 2007 7967.00 29,910

00576 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 3 Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 13,595 2007 7967.00 19,617

00585 06/30/07 Temp Ctrl Valve 1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,890 2007 7967.00 22,930

00586 06/30/07 Temp Ctrl Valve 2 trmtplant tmntplant 15,890 2007 7967.00 22,930

00588 06/30/09 DO Zone1 Control Panel trmtplant tmntplant 79,935 2009 8570.08 107,228

00600 06/30/06 RAS Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00601 06/30/06 RAS Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00602 06/30/06 RAS Pump 3 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00603 06/30/06 RAS Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00604 06/30/06 RAS Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00634 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00635 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00636 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00637 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00638 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 1 Recirc Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

Page 40 of 57204 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00639 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 2 Recirc Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00654 06/30/06 Centrifuge Bldg Compressor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 16,647 2006 7751.25 24,690

00655 06/30/06 Centrifuge Bldg Compressor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 16,647 2006 7751.25 24,690

00657 06/30/07 Temp Cntrl Valve 3 trmtplant tmntplant 17,522 2007 7967.00 25,285

00686 06/30/07 Ext Ctrl Panel for Sludge Valv trmtplant tmntplant 12,309 2007 7967.00 17,762

00687 06/30/05 Sludge Transfer Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,695 2005 7446.08 21,144

00688 06/30/05 Sludge Transfer Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,695 2005 7446.08 21,144

00691 06/30/09 PLC/VFD/SCADA trmtplant tmntplant 124,261 2009 8570.08 166,689

00701 06/30/09 RIO 12 trmtplant tmntplant 95,668 2009 8570.08 128,333

00707 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00708 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00709 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00710 06/30/07 Supermatant Box 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00712 06/30/07 Actuator Grit Pit Weir Gate trmtplant tmntplant 13,190 2007 7967.00 19,033

00714 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 6 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00715 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 7 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00716 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 8 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00728 06/30/07 Digester 6 Hot Water Ctrl Valv trmtplant tmntplant 20,728 2007 7967.00 29,910

00735 06/01/07 Reclaimed Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,935 2007 7967.00 20,108

00750 06/30/07 Sec Clarifier 2 Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 14,067 2007 7967.00 20,299

00752 06/30/09 RAS Flowmeter Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2009 8570.08 85,549

00753 06/30/09 RAS Isolation Valve SecClarf 4 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2009 8570.08 85,549

00768 06/30/06 Loading Control Panel trmtplant tmntplant 20,775 2006 7751.25 30,813

00782 12/31/02 Main Breaker  Generator #4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,801 2002 6538.00 20,751

00784 06/30/02 Cogen Dollinger Gas Particle F trmtplant tmntplant 10,260 2002 6538.00 18,041

00785 12/31/01 Cogen Dollinger Gas Particle F trmtplant tmntplant 10,260 2001 6342.08 18,598

00790 06/30/05 Alv Div Structure Sluice Gate trmtplant tmntplant 17,500 2005 7446.08 27,019

00791 06/30/06 Electrical Panel Explosion Pro trmtplant tmntplant 18,844 2006 7751.25 27,949

00796 06/30/07 Sec Clarifier 2 Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 15,826 2007 7967.00 22,836

00800 12/31/01 Generator #1 Breaker Panel Pro trmtplant tmntplant 10,609 2001 6342.08 19,231

00803 06/30/07 Digester 6 Hot Water Ctrl Valv trmtplant tmntplant 24,183 2007 7967.00 34,896

00804 06/30/05 Primary 5‐6 Dewatering Pump trmtplant tmntplant 13,457 2005 7446.08 20,777

00818 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00819 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00820 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00821 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00824 06/30/07 Thickener Ctrl Bldg Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 21,596 2007 7967.00 31,163

Page 41 of 57205 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00827 04/01/07 Effluent Screen Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 16,866 2007 7967.00 24,338

00837 06/01/07 EBDA 60" Valve Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 17,514 2007 7967.00 25,272

00848 06/30/07 Hex 5 6" Dischg Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00849 06/30/07 Hex 5 6" Suction Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00850 06/30/07 Temp Control Valve 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00851 06/30/07 Temp Control Valve 5 trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00854 06/30/07 Grit Pit Weir Gate trmtplant tmntplant 18,517 2007 7967.00 26,720

00855 06/30/06 #4 Internalift Pump trmtplant tmntplant 26,528 2006 7751.25 39,345

00858 06/30/06 #3 Reclaim Pump trmtplant tmntplant 13,309 2006 7751.25 19,739

00881 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 29,475 2007 7967.00 42,532

00882 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 29,475 2007 7967.00 42,532

00885 06/30/05 Headworks Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 11,000 2005 7446.08 16,983

00886 06/30/05 Thickener Cntl Bldg Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 11,000 2005 7446.08 16,983

00887 06/30/07 Air Comp Sludge Valve Act trmtplant tmntplant 19,995 2007 7967.00 28,853

00893 06/30/05 Effluent Makeup Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 23,000 2005 7446.08 35,511

00894 06/30/05 Effluent Makeup Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 23,000 2005 7446.08 35,511

00899 12/31/01 Breaker ‐ #2 Generator trmtplant tmntplant 13,863 2001 6342.08 25,129

00900 12/31/01 Breaker ‐ #3 Generator trmtplant tmntplant 13,863 2001 6342.08 25,129

00901 03/23/05 Reclaimed Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,647 2005 7446.08 17,982

00903 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 42,054 2007 7967.00 60,683

00920 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 43,337 2007 7967.00 62,536

00923 12/31/01 Day Tank  Generators 2 3 trmtplant tmntplant 10,900 2001 6342.08 19,758

00929 12/31/01 Cogen Train Air Cooled Water C trmtplant tmntplant 15,012 2001 6342.08 27,212

00930 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Emulsion Polym trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00931 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Manich Polymer trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00932 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Water Booster trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00933 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Emulsion Polym trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00934 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Manich Polymer trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00935 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Water Booster trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00938 12/31/01 Cogen Heat Exchanger Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 11,414 2001 6342.08 20,689

00945 06/30/06 Polymer Room Sump trmtplant tmntplant 33,608 2006 7751.25 49,846

00946 09/30/03 Grinder, 2 Channel Monster trmtplant tmntplant 16,083 2003 6694.58 27,618

00947 09/30/03 Grinder, 2 Channel Monster trmtplant tmntplant 16,083 2003 6694.58 27,618

00983 06/30/09 RAS Control Valve Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 115,516 2009 8570.08 154,958

00985 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 39,004 2007 7967.00 56,282

00986 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 39,004 2007 7967.00 56,282

01002 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 1 Mixer trmtplant tmntplant 38,458 2006 7751.25 57,040

Page 42 of 57206 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01003 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 2 Mixer trmtplant tmntplant 38,458 2006 7751.25 57,040

01005 06/30/05 Dig 3 Mixing Pump trmtplant tmntplant 30,296 2005 7446.08 46,775

01011 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Hot Water Circ Pump trmtplant tmntplant 41,040 2007 7967.00 59,221

01012 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Hot Water Circ Pump trmtplant tmntplant 41,040 2007 7967.00 59,221

01022 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 112,083 2007 7967.00 161,734

01033 06/30/07 Hydraulic Pwr Unit for Headgat trmtplant tmntplant 57,145 2007 7967.00 82,460

01035 06/30/06 Fuel Air Ration Controller trmtplant tmntplant 20,812 2006 7751.25 30,868

01036 06/30/06 Fuel Air Ration Controller trmtplant tmntplant 20,812 2006 7751.25 30,868

01045 06/30/05 Sludge Pump Rm 1 Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 16,500 2005 7446.08 25,475

01046 06/30/05 Sludge PUmp Rm 3 Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 16,500 2005 7446.08 25,475

01049 12/31/01 Compressor and Tank  Generator trmtplant tmntplant 15,114 2001 6342.08 27,398

01053 10/05/01 Breaker  Main Tie trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01054 12/31/01 Breaker  A Buss Main trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01055 12/31/01 Breaker  B Buss Main trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01077 06/30/09 Blower 10 trmtplant tmntplant 547,866 2009 8570.08 734,933

01092 06/30/07 Digester Mix Pump 6A trmtplant tmntplant 51,820 2007 7967.00 74,776

01093 06/30/07 Digester Mix Pump 6b trmtplant tmntplant 51,820 2007 7967.00 74,776

01096 06/30/07 Trench B Undgnd Chem Pipe trmtplant tmntplant 173,138 2007 7967.00 249,836

01118 12/31/01 Cogen Gas Booster Blowers Proj trmtplant tmntplant 24,260 2001 6342.08 43,976

01119 12/31/01 Cogen Gas Booster Blowers Proj trmtplant tmntplant 24,260 2001 6342.08 43,976

01121 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 18 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01122 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 1 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01123 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 10 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01124 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 11 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01125 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 12 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01126 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 13 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01127 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 14 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01128 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 15 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01129 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 16 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01130 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 17 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01131 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 2 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01132 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 3 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01133 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 4 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01134 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 5 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01135 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 6 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01136 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 7 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01137 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 8 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

Page 43 of 57207 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01138 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 9 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01143 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 3 trmtplant tmntplant 56,072 2007 7967.00 80,911

01154 06/30/07 Boiler Expansion Tank trmtplant tmntplant 58,730 2007 7967.00 84,746

01160 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01161 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01162 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01163 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01164 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Heat Exchanger trmtplant tmntplant 80,665 2007 7967.00 116,400

01165 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Heat Exchanger trmtplant tmntplant 80,665 2007 7967.00 116,400

01166 06/30/06 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 115,276 2006 7751.25 170,973

01188 06/30/06 Sludge Grinder 1 trmtplant tmntplant 62,226 2006 7751.25 92,291

01189 06/30/06 Sludge Grinder 2 trmtplant tmntplant 62,226 2006 7751.25 92,291

01203 06/30/07 Digester 4/5 20" Crsvr Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01204 06/30/07 Digester 4/5 24"  Crsovr Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01205 06/30/07 Digester 5 20"  Plug Valve Low trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01206 06/30/07 Digester 5 20"  Plug Valve Upp trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01207 06/30/07 Digester 5 24" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01208 06/30/07 Digester 5 24" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01209 06/30/07 digester 5 Mix Pump trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01210 06/30/07 digester 5 Mix Pump trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01212 06/30/07 Hot Water Boiler 6 Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 69,526 2007 7967.00 100,325

01214 12/31/96 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,946 1996 5622.17 28,517

01241 12/31/01 Cogen Activated Carbon Tank Pr trmtplant tmntplant 33,040 2001 6342.08 59,892

01242 12/31/01 Cogen Activated Carbon Tank Pr trmtplant tmntplant 33,040 2001 6342.08 59,892

01246 06/30/07 Vactor Pit trmtplant tmntplant 100,723 2007 7967.00 145,342

01300 06/30/07 Main Hot Water Circ Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 88,094 2007 7967.00 127,120

01305 08/31/03 Valves, ARV Isolation on Force trmtplant tmntplant 27,461 2003 6694.58 47,157

01314 06/30/06 Wemco Hydorstal Pump trmtplant tmntplant 111,173 2006 7751.25 164,886

01320 06/30/07 Hot Water Boiler 6 Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 95,436 2007 7967.00 137,713

01325 10/14/03 Pump, Internalift #3 trmtplant tmntplant 29,120 2003 6694.58 50,007

01326 10/14/03 Pumps, Internalift #1 trmtplant tmntplant 29,120 2003 6694.58 50,007

01329 06/30/07 Main Hot Water Circ Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 96,731 2007 7967.00 139,582

01338 06/30/04 Mixing Pump, Sludge trmtplant tmntplant 60,000 2004 7115.08 96,946

01352 06/30/06 #3 GBT trmtplant tmntplant 48,816 2006 7751.25 72,402

01353 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 274,647 2007 7967.00 396,314

01357 12/31/00 Soil Scrubber & W Reclamation trmtplant tmntplant 61,403 2000 6221.17 113,469

01361 09/30/03 #1 GBT Overhaul trmtplant tmntplant 32,223 2003 6694.58 55,335

Page 44 of 57208 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01365 06/30/06 Blended Polymer Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 102,647 2006 7751.25 152,242

01366 06/30/06 Blended Polymer Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 102,647 2006 7751.25 152,242

01371 06/30/07 Digester 5 Mixing Pump trmtplant tmntplant 111,351 2007 7967.00 160,678

01375 12/31/92 Pump Div 85 (part of plant) trmtplant tmntplant 18,845 1992 4984.83 43,461

01394 12/31/97 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 26,603 1997 5825.08 52,503

01400 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01401 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01402 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01403 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01404 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Distrib Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01405 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Loading Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01406 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Loading Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01407 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Distrib Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01408 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Loading Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01409 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Loading Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01410 06/30/06 Horizontal Collec Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01411 06/30/06 Horizontal Collec Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01412 06/30/06 Inclined Collec Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01413 06/30/06 Inclined Collec Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01424 12/31/84 Concrete/Rebar Excavation Prep trmtplant tmntplant 35,192 1984 4146.00 97,583

01436 06/30/05 MMC 5 trmtplant tmntplant 125,000 2005 7446.08 192,993

01453 06/30/05 Effluent Screen Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 135,891 2005 7446.08 209,807

01454 06/30/05 Effluent Screen Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 135,891 2005 7446.08 209,807

01458 12/31/83 FECL Storage Tank Add 1983 Pro trmtplant tmntplant 25,000 1983 4066.00 70,686

01460 12/31/91 Gas Compressor Room Vent trmtplant tmntplant 25,503 1991 4835.08 60,638

01478 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 447,041 2007 7967.00 645,076

01494 12/31/89 Alvarado Plant Improvements FY trmtplant tmntplant 31,842 1989 4615.00 79,321

01513 06/30/06 Aeration Bsn 1 Diffusers trmtplant tmntplant 50,244 2006 7751.25 74,519

01525 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 304,489 2007 7967.00 439,375

01527 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 312,694 2007 7967.00 451,214

01541 06/30/05 Aeration Bsn Diffuser Tank 4 trmtplant tmntplant 59,493 2005 7446.08 91,853

01550 12/31/01 Generator #4 Rebuilt Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 61,221 2001 6342.08 110,975

01552 12/31/94 Hetch Hetchy (Phase 1) trmtplant tmntplant 48,643 1994 5407.58 103,413

01554 12/31/91 Hoist Installations trmtplant tmntplant 48,020 1991 4835.08 114,176

01556 12/31/00 Underground Diesel Tank Improv trmtplant tmntplant 173,950 2000 6221.17 321,448

01558 06/30/06 Odor Scrubber trmtplant tmntplant 364,224 2006 7751.25 540,201

01569 06/30/09 Drive & Mech Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 985,640 2009 8570.08 1,322,184

Page 45 of 57209 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01575 12/31/89 Treatment Plant Improvements F trmtplant tmntplant 56,228 1989 4615.00 140,068

01584 12/31/79 PUMPS trmtplant tmntplant 60,000 1979 3003.00 229,697

01596 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01597 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01598 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01599 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01620 06/30/06 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 867,119 2006 7751.25 1,286,072

01632 12/31/95 Secondary Containment: S Hypo trmtplant tmntplant 91,800 1995 5471.17 192,895

01638 12/31/99 WW Equalization Storage Sewer trmtplant tmntplant 278,472 1999 6059.50 528,327

01641 06/30/06 Centrifuge PLC trmtplant tmntplant 515,102 2006 7751.25 763,977

01675 12/31/92 Cathodic Protection System trmtplant tmntplant 109,169 1992 4984.83 251,772

01688 12/31/02 Hot Water Piping for Plant Pro trmtplant tmntplant 764,823 2002 6538.00 1,344,852

01695 12/31/84 Electrical Eng Generator Proj trmtplant tmntplant 140,000 1984 4146.00 388,201

01708 06/30/07 sec Clarifier 2 Tank trmtplant tmntplant 1,210,783 2007 7967.00 1,747,149

01710 12/31/93 Inka Rehab C.M. & Cons. trmtplant tmntplant 152,215 1993 5210.42 335,849

01712 12/31/01 Generator #1 Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 419,645 2001 6342.08 760,692

01718 12/31/84 Underground Piping Eng Generat trmtplant tmntplant 265,115 1984 4146.00 735,129

01736 06/30/05 Proj 169 Digester 1 & 3 Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 625,621 2005 7446.08 965,922

01743 12/31/89 Plant Improve FYE 063090 Cost trmtplant tmntplant 204,236 1989 4615.00 508,767

01744 12/31/84 Non Structural Costs  Engr.  E trmtplant tmntplant 199,542 1984 4146.00 553,304

01746 12/31/95 Reclaimed Water Pipeline trmtplant tmntplant 225,625 1995 5471.17 474,095

01749 06/30/04 Proj 164 Digester 2 Dome Repai trmtplant tmntplant 744,871 2004 7115.08 1,203,538

01756 12/31/79 Tanks ‐ Digester Insulation Co trmtplant tmntplant 300,000 1979 3003.00 1,148,483

01764 12/31/90 Hoist Installations FYE 6/30/9 trmtplant tmntplant 249,726 1990 4731.92 606,716

01766 12/31/90 Plant Improvments FYE 06/30/91 trmtplant tmntplant 280,107 1990 4731.92 680,527

01771 12/31/01 Cogen Proj 142 Mgmt & Overhead trmtplant tmntplant 721,163 2001 6342.08 1,307,255

01779 12/31/98 Generator #4 PROJ 28‐72 trmtplant tmntplant 449,856 1998 5920.42 873,534

01781 12/31/95 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐2 trmtplant tmntplant 361,837 1995 5471.17 760,311

01783 12/31/00 Alvarado WWTF Upgrade 28‐053 trmtplant tmntplant 1,411,093 2000 6221.17 2,607,607

01786 12/31/62 Plant 1962 Proj Chlorine Conta trmtplant tmntplant 355,000 1962 872.00 4,680,264

01811 12/31/90 Gravity Belt Thicken Joint Sea trmtplant tmntplant 764,209 1990 4731.92 1,856,665

01813 06/30/05 Proj 135 Plant Mech Inprovemen trmtplant tmntplant 2,136,284 2005 7446.08 3,298,296

01821 12/31/84 Cogeneration Equipment Eng Gen trmtplant tmntplant 530,000 1984 4146.00 1,469,620

01828 12/31/97 Reclaimed Water Demo trmtplant tmntplant 782,870 1997 5825.08 1,545,062

01829 06/30/05 Proj 135 Plant Mech Inprovemen trmtplant tmntplant 2,658,207 2005 7446.08 4,104,113

01847 12/31/96 Alvarado Wastewater Treatment trmtplant tmntplant 1,106,618 1996 5622.17 2,262,833

01850 12/31/90 Plant Capacity ImprovementsFYE trmtplant tmntplant 1,104,592 1990 4731.92 2,683,634

Page 46 of 57210 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01851 12/31/79 Piping‐‐All Types 50 Yr Life trmtplant tmntplant 1,401,850 1979 3003.00 5,366,667

01863 12/31/89 Engine Generator ‐ Standby trmtplant tmntplant 1,410,757 1989 4615.00 3,514,301

01868 12/31/95 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,714,082 1995 5471.17 3,601,721

01875 12/31/01 Alvarado Pump Addition & Autom trmtplant tmntplant 4,611,139 2001 6342.08 8,358,624

01886 12/31/88 Treatment Plant Expansion FYE trmtplant tmntplant 4,778,806 1988 4519.00 12,157,255

01890 12/31/92 Improvements ‐ Interim FY93 trmtplant tmntplant 3,269,040 1992 4984.83 7,539,249

01900 12/31/95 Alvarado Wastewater Treatment trmtplant tmntplant 38,728,054 1995 5471.17 81,377,472

01909 01/01/10 POLYMER BLENDING UNIT 2 trmtplant tmntplant 44,628 2010 8798.92 58,309

01910 01/01/10 ACTUATOR, E INLET SLIDE GATE trmtplant tmntplant 11,953 2010 8798.92 15,618

01919 01/01/10 SPARE BEARING ASSEMBLY trmtplant tmntplant 17,944 2010 8798.92 23,445

01941 01/01/10 PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 54,713 2010 8798.92 71,486

01942 01/01/10 PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 51,703 2010 8798.92 67,553

01943 01/01/10 DEGRITTER BUILDING trmtplant tmntplant 138,574 2010 8798.92 181,056

01963 01/01/10 MIX PUMP NO. 2 trmtplant tmntplant 201,285 2010 8798.92 262,991

01964 01/01/10 MIX PUMP NO 2 MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 78,772 2010 8798.92 102,920

01965 01/01/10 DIGESTER NO 2 RECIRCULATION PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 55,805 2010 8798.92 72,913

01966 01/01/10 MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 30,631 2010 8798.92 40,021

01967 01/01/10 VALV trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01968 01/01/10 VALV) trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01969 01/01/10 INLET trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01970 01/01/10 WEST VIEWPORT BUTTERFLY VALVE trmtplant tmntplant 15,531 2010 8798.92 20,293

01971 01/01/10 EAST VIEWPORT BUTTERFLY VALVE trmtplant tmntplant 15,531 2010 8798.92 20,293

01974 01/01/10 EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 18,233 2010 8798.92 23,822

01975 01/01/10 EXHAUST FAN MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 17,152 2010 8798.92 22,410

01978 01/01/10 RAS FLOWMETER SEC CLARIF3 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01979 01/01/10 RAS CONTROLVALVE SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 115,516 2010 8798.92 150,928

01980 01/01/10 RAS ISOLATION VALVE SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01981 01/01/10 RAS VALVE CONTROL PANEL SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2010 8798.92 22,321

01982 01/01/10 DRIVE AND MECH SED CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 985,640 2010 8798.92 1,287,797

01983 01/01/10 RAS FLOWMETER SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01984 01/01/10 RAS CONTROL VALVE SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 114,995 2010 8798.92 150,247

01985 01/01/10 RAS ISOLATION VALVE SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01986 01/01/10 RAS VALVE CONTROL PANEL SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2010 8798.92 22,321

01987 01/01/10 DRIVE AN MECH SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,286,504 2010 8798.92 1,680,894

02010 01/01/11 GENERATOR 7 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 13,557 2011 9069.83 17,184

02011 01/01/11 GBT CAKE TOTAL SOLIDS METER trmtplant tmntplant 24,365 2011 9069.83 30,883

02022 01/01/11 WEST SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 49,024 2011 9069.83 62,139

Page 47 of 57211 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02023 01/01/11 EAST SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 49,024 2011 9069.83 62,139

02031 01/01/11 ODOR DISPERSION WALL trmtplant tmntplant 720,789 2011 9069.83 913,624

02038 01/01/11 STACK 14 MODIFICATION trmtplant tmntplant 20,012 2011 9069.83 25,366

02042 01/01/11 STACK 18 MODIFICATION trmtplant tmntplant 20,012 2011 9069.83 25,366

02088 01/01/11 CLARIFIER 5 COATING trmtplant tmntplant 22,232 2011 9069.83 28,179

02089 01/01/11 CLARIFIER 6 COATING trmtplant tmntplant 22,232 2011 9069.83 28,179

02223 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 5 trmtplant tmntplant 295,866 2011 9069.83 375,020

02224 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 6 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02225 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02226 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 8 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02250 06/30/12 PRIMARY DIGESTER #1 DOME COATING trmtplant tmntplant 124,021 2012 9308.17 153,176

02276 06/30/12 MCC‐3 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 15,231 2012 9308.17 18,812

02287 06/30/12 DP‐1 MAIN PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 84,741 2012 9308.17 104,662

02288 06/30/12 DP‐1 PULL BOX trmtplant tmntplant 18,410 2012 9308.17 22,738

02319 01/01/13 GRIT HOPPER trmtplant tmntplant 122,547 2013 9546.67 147,574

02322 01/01/13 PRIMARY DIGESTER #4 DOME COATING trmtplant tmntplant 176,245 2013 9546.67 212,238

02323 01/01/13 SWGR‐1 ENCLOSURE trmtplant tmntplant 602,939 2013 9546.67 726,073

02324 01/01/13 480V SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 544,637 2013 9546.67 655,864

02325 01/01/13 208/120V LIGHTING PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02326 01/01/13 "B" BUSS TVSS DISPLAY & UPS‐SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02327 01/01/13 BUSS trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02328 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02329 01/01/13 TR‐LP‐1 FEEDER BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02330 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02331 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02332 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02333 01/01/13 SWB‐5 FEEDER BREAKER ‐ ALVARADO PS trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02334 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02335 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02336 01/01/13 4 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02337 01/01/13 ROOM 1 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02338 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02339 01/01/13 1&3 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02340 01/01/13 PLC‐SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02341 01/01/13 TIE BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02342 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02343 01/01/13 CONTROL trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

Page 48 of 57212 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02344 01/01/13 1‐4 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02345 01/01/13 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02346 01/01/13 WATER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02347 01/01/13 5&6 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02348 01/01/13 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02349 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02350 01/01/13 SPARE trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02351 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02352 01/01/13 SPARE trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02353 01/01/13 SWBD‐3 BACK‐UP FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02354 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02355 01/01/13 "A" BUSS TVSS DISPLAY & CISCO SWITCH trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02356 01/01/13 MAIN BREAKER ‐ MAIN FEEDER TO BUSS trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02357 01/01/13 12KVTO 480V TRANSFORMER (TR‐1A) trmtplant tmntplant 162,531 2013 9546.67 195,723

02358 01/01/13 12KW TO 480V TRANSFORMER (TR‐1B) trmtplant tmntplant 160,260 2013 9546.67 192,989

02359 01/01/13 SWGR‐1 HVAC UNIT trmtplant tmntplant 44,503 2013 9546.67 53,591

02415 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLRIFIER TANK #1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,931,480 2014 9806.00 2,264,419

02416 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #2 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02417 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #3 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02418 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #4 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02419 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02420 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02421 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02422 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02423 01/01/14 SCUM MIXER PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 98,591 2014 9806.00 115,586

02424 01/01/14 REMOTE INPUT/OUTPUT #9 trmtplant tmntplant 63,264 2014 9806.00 74,170

02425 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIERS #1‐4 SUPPLY FAN #1 trmtplant tmntplant 25,295 2014 9806.00 29,655

02426 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIERS #1‐4 SUPPLY FAN #2 trmtplant tmntplant 25,295 2014 9806.00 29,655

02427 01/01/14 MONTIORING trmtplant tmntplant 21,088 2014 9806.00 24,723

02428 01/01/14 MINI POWER CENTER (MPC‐1) trmtplant tmntplant 21,088 2014 9806.00 24,723

02429 01/01/14 SLUDGE PUMP ROOM #1 SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 16,908 2014 9806.00 19,823

02430 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 24,859 2014 9806.00 29,144

02431 01/01/14 SUMP PUMPS LCP trmtplant tmntplant 34,706 2014 9806.00 40,688

02432 01/01/14 PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 36,522 2014 9806.00 42,817

02433 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 40,356 2014 9806.00 47,312

02434 01/01/14 COMPACTOR trmtplant tmntplant 47,713 2014 9806.00 55,937

02435 01/01/14 #1 trmtplant tmntplant 48,576 2014 9806.00 56,949

Page 49 of 57213 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02436 01/01/14 #2 trmtplant tmntplant 48,576 2014 9806.00 56,949

02437 01/01/14 MANUAL TROLLEY HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02438 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #1 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02439 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #2 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02440 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #3 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02441 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #4 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02442 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐A trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02443 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐A trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02444 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02445 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02446 01/01/14 COMPACTORS trmtplant tmntplant 53,144 2014 9806.00 62,305

02447 01/01/14 PUMP LCP trmtplant tmntplant 53,269 2014 9806.00 62,452

02448 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 53,875 2014 9806.00 63,161

02449 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 53,875 2014 9806.00 63,161

02450 01/01/14 HYPO CONTAINMENT AREA SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02451 01/01/14 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02452 01/01/14 CONTAINMENT trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02453 01/01/14 PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02454 01/01/14 PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02455 01/01/14 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02456 01/01/14 SLIDING DOOR BAR SCREEN ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02457 01/01/14 BLOWER ROOM EXHAUSE FAN trmtplant tmntplant 107,750 2014 9806.00 126,323

02458 01/01/14 BLOWER ROOM SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 107,750 2014 9806.00 126,323

02459 01/01/14 PANEL LCP trmtplant tmntplant 116,406 2014 9806.00 136,471

02460 01/01/14 SHAFTLESS SCREW CONVEYOR #2 trmtplant tmntplant 333,953 2014 9806.00 391,518

02461 01/01/14 SHAFTLESS SCREW CONVEYOR #1 trmtplant tmntplant 333,953 2014 9806.00 391,518

02462 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1` trmtplant tmntplant 366,010 2014 9806.00 429,101

02463 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 trmtplant tmntplant 366,010 2014 9806.00 429,101

02464 01/01/14 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02465 01/01/14 SLIDING DOOR BAR SCREEN ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02466 01/01/14 HYPO CONTAINMENT AREA SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02467 01/01/14 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02468 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02469 01/01/14 PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02470 01/01/14 PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 53,269 2014 9806.00 62,452

02471 01/01/14 PUMP LCP trmtplant tmntplant 53,144 2014 9806.00 62,305

02472 01/01/14 COMPACTORS trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

Page 50 of 57214 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02473 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02474 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02492 01/01/14 PLC10 trmtplant tmntplant 113,327 2014 9806.00 132,861

02493 01/01/14 PLC13 trmtplant tmntplant 145,999 2014 9806.00 171,166

02494 01/01/14 PLC16 trmtplant tmntplant 75,065 2014 9806.00 88,005

02495 01/01/14 RIO5 trmtplant tmntplant 123,775 2014 9806.00 145,111

02496 01/01/14 RIO11 trmtplant tmntplant 137,667 2014 9806.00 161,397

02497 01/01/14 RIO15 trmtplant tmntplant 69,512 2014 9806.00 81,494

02498 01/01/14 MCC 12 trmtplant tmntplant 245,364 2014 9806.00 287,658

02499 01/01/14 R‐7 RECTIFIER, HEAT MIX 2 trmtplant tmntplant 58,521 2014 9806.00 68,608

02505 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 43,764 2014 9806.00 51,308

02506 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 1 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02507 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 2 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02508 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 3 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02509 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 4 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02510 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 5 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02511 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02512 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 2 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02513 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 3 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02514 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 4 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02515 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 5 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02516 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 1 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02517 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 2 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02518 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 3 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02519 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 4 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02520 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 5 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02521 01/01/14 FORCE MAIN, 42" RAS, PS TO CB trmtplant tmntplant 41,503 2014 9806.00 48,657

02522 01/01/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SYSTEM RAS PS trmtplant tmntplant 11,117 2014 9806.00 13,033

02523 01/01/14 FLOW METER, RAS trmtplant tmntplant 14,823 2014 9806.00 17,378

02524 01/01/14 THICKENER #3 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 472,834 2014 9806.00 554,339

02525 01/01/14 THICKENER #4 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 472,834 2014 9806.00 554,339

02526 01/01/14 THICKENER #3 TANK trmtplant tmntplant 469,918 2014 9806.00 550,920

02527 01/01/14 THICKENER #4 TANK trmtplant tmntplant 469,918 2014 9806.00 550,920

02532 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #7 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02533 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #6 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02534 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #5 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02538 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

Page 51 of 57215 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02539 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

02540 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

02541 01/01/14 PANEL 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,831 2014 9806.00 32,629

02542 01/01/14 PANEL 3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,831 2014 9806.00 32,629

02543 01/01/14 RELOCATED GRINDER 4 trmtplant tmntplant 22,088 2014 9806.00 25,896

02544 01/01/14 RELOCATED GRINDER 3 trmtplant tmntplant 22,088 2014 9806.00 25,896

02545 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02546 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02547 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02548 01/01/14 THICKENED SLDG GRINDER 4 BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02549 01/01/14 THICKENED SLDG GRINDER 3 BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02623 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02624 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02625 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02626 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 102,884 2014 9806.00 120,618

02627 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 1 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02628 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 2 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02629 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 3 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02630 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 4 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02632 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 1 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02633 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 2 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02634 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 3 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02635 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 4 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02642 01/01/14 MCC 15 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02643 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD B trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02644 01/01/14 MCC15 SUMP PUMPS trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02645 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD C trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02646 01/01/14 MCC15 DRYWELL HOIST 2ND FLOOR trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02647 01/01/14 MCC15 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02648 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD S trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02649 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE SAMPLE PUMP 6 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02650 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE SAMPLE PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02651 01/01/14 MCC15 ALVARADO PS HEADGATE trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02652 01/01/14 MCC15 AIR COMPERSSOR 1 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02653 01/01/14 MCC15 AIR COMPERSSOR 2 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02654 01/01/14 MCC15 SUPPLY FAN 1 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02655 01/01/14 MCC15 EQUIPMENT ROOM HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

Page 52 of 57216 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02656 01/01/14 MCC15 ACCESSORY HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02657 01/01/14 UNIT trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02658 01/01/14 MCC15 SCRUBBER SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02659 01/01/14 MCC15 SCRUBBER EXHAUSE FAN trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02660 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE ANALYZER SHED trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02661 01/01/14 MCC13 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02662 01/01/14 MCC13 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02663 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 1 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02664 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 2 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02665 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 3 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02666 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 4 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02667 01/01/14 MCC13 PANEL Q trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02668 01/01/14 MCC13 ROLL UP DOOR trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02669 01/01/14 MCC13 SCRUBBER EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02670 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 1 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02671 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 2 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02672 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 3 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02673 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 4 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02674 01/01/14 MCC13 VENTILATION FAN trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02675 01/01/14 MCC14 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02676 01/01/14 MCC14 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02677 01/01/14 MCC14 PANEL BOARD R trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02678 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02679 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02680 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02681 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02682 01/01/14 MCC14 SECONDARY CLARIFIER DRIVE 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02683 01/01/14 MCC14 SECONDARY CLARIFIER DRIVE 6 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02684 01/01/14 MCC14 SCUM PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02685 01/01/14 MCC14 SCUM PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02686 01/01/14 MCC14 DEWATERING PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02687 01/01/14 MCC14 EXHAUST FAN E‐18 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02688 01/01/14 MCC14 VENT FAN EF‐9 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02689 01/01/14 MCC14 PANEL AH trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02690 01/01/14 MCC14 RAS BOX GATE PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02691 01/01/14 MCC14 SCRUBBER EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02692 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

Page 53 of 57217 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02693 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02694 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02695 01/01/14 MCC14 RAS PUMP 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02696 01/01/14 MCC27 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 53,558 2014 9806.00 62,790

02697 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02698 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02699 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02700 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02707 01/01/15 SUPER SHREDDER trmtplant tmntplant 24,802 2015 10335.00 27,589

02726 01/01/15 MOYNO PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 45,999 2015 10335.00 51,168

02731 01/01/15 HYPO TANK A trmtplant tmntplant 80,804 2015 10335.00 89,883

02732 01/01/15 HYPO TANK B trmtplant tmntplant 80,804 2015 10335.00 89,883

02733 01/01/15 FERROUS CHLORIDE TANK trmtplant tmntplant 83,701 2015 10335.00 93,107

02740 01/01/15 DIGESTER 5 trmtplant tmntplant 919,829 2015 10335.00 1,023,187

02741 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02742 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02743 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02750 01/01/16 ACTUATOR trmtplant tmntplant 16,759 2016 10385.00 18,553

02751 01/01/16 ACTUATOR trmtplant tmntplant 16,759 2016 10385.00 18,553

02783 01/01/16 MAIN BREAKER POWER METER trmtplant tmntplant 17,770 2016 10385.00 19,671

02815 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 5 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02816 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 6 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02817 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 7 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02818 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 8 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02819 06/30/17 PLC 8 AERATION BASIN 5‐7 PLC ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 263,905 2017 10737.00 282,568

02820 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02821 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 2 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02822 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 3 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02823 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 4 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02824 06/30/17 PLC 46 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 63,444 2017 10737.00 67,931

02827 06/30/17 GROUND WATER PUMP NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 8,455 2017 10737.00 9,053

02828 06/30/17 PANEL 448 trmtplant tmntplant 46,548 2017 10737.00 49,840

02829 06/30/17 GROUND WATER PUMP NO. 2  ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 8,455 2017 10737.00 9,053

02830 06/30/17 PANEL 448 trmtplant tmntplant 46,548 2017 10737.00 49,840

02831 06/30/17 JIB CRANE NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 44,382 2017 10737.00 47,520

02832 06/30/17 JIB CRANE NO. 2 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 44,382 2017 10737.00 47,520

02833 06/30/17 HEAT EXCHANGER NO. 3 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,428 2017 10737.00 79,691

Page 54 of 57218 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02834 06/30/17 HEAT EXCHANGER NO. 6 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,428 2017 10737.00 79,691

02835 06/30/17 BAR SCREEN #1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 193,019 2017 10737.00 206,670

02845 06/30/17 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,514 2017 10737.00 79,783

02852 06/30/17 AB NO. 5 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02853 06/30/17 AB NO. 6 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02854 06/30/17 AB NO. 7 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02860 06/30/17 490 trmtplant tmntplant 39,005 2017 10737.00 41,764

02867 06/30/17 MCC 16 REPLACEMENT PART ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 198,901 2017 10737.00 212,967

02870 01/01/18 SITE WASTE PUMPS 1 & 2 trmtplant tmntplant 69,538 2018 11062.00 72,268

02871 01/01/18 SITE WASTE PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 55,440 2018 11062.00 57,617

02877 01/01/18 GBT POLY SKID trmtplant tmntplant 41,218 2018 11062.00 42,837

02885 01/01/18 APG‐NEUROS TURBO BLOWER ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 624,915 2018 11062.00 649,450

02886 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ CORE 1 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 199,086 2018 11062.00 206,902

02887 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ CORE 2 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 199,086 2018 11062.00 206,902

02888 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ VFD 1 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 55,333 2018 11062.00 57,505

02889 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ VFD 2 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 55,333 2018 11062.00 57,505

02890 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 4,436 2018 11062.00 4,610

02891 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 4,436 2018 11062.00 4,610

02892 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 3,754 2018 11062.00 3,902

02893 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 3,754 2018 11062.00 3,902

02894 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 6,654 2018 11062.00 6,915

02895 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 6,654 2018 11062.00 6,915

02896 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 10,071 2018 11062.00 10,467

02897 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 10,071 2018 11062.00 10,467

02898 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 17,424 2018 11062.00 18,108

02899 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 26,556 2018 11062.00 27,599

02902 01/01/18 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02903 01/01/18 PRJ 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02904 01/01/18 PRJ 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02945 01/01/19 IMPROVEMENTS ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 37,143 2019 11268.48 37,894

02946 01/01/19 PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 148,362 2019 11268.48 151,362

02947 01/01/19 3 ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 194,145 2019 11268.48 198,070

02948 01/01/19 394 trmtplant tmntplant 179,233 2019 11268.48 182,857

02949 01/01/19 BURNER ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 24,762 2019 11268.48 25,263

02950 01/01/19 DUCTBANK FROM TEB TO TCB ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 85,643 2019 11268.48 87,375

02951 01/01/19 PAVING ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 157,938 2019 11268.48 161,131

02953 01/01/19 EQUIPMENT ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 691,241 2019 11268.48 705,217

Page 55 of 57219 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02954 01/01/19 WINDWALL ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 43,334 2019 11268.48 44,210

02969 01/01/19 DEEP WELL ANODE ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 115,178 2019 11268.48 117,507

Treatment Plant Total 128,553,722 230,689,757

Total  678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Page 56 of 57220 of 401



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

Summary of Assets by Type & Class Treatment Plant Assets

tmntplant tmntplant 128,553,722 230,689,757

  SUBTOTAL 128,553,722 230,689,757

Collection System Assets

collection collsys 167,515,188 356,368,326

collection contribcs 209,680,380 1,163,757,363

collection liftstat 7,060,153 8,051,125

  SUBTOTAL 384,255,722 1,528,176,815

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

collection pumpstat 35,743,640 54,729,400

collection twnforce 23,583,021 89,205,988

  SUBTOTAL 59,326,660 143,935,388

General/Admin Assets

equipment 7,987,625 10,871,700

fleet 7,197,713 9,336,147

intangible 6,415,898 10,827,312

land 5,395,903 94,411,513

operations 78,877,183 137,969,393

  SUBTOTAL 105,874,322 263,416,065

  TOTAL 678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Page 57 of 57221 of 401



APPENDIX C

East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset List & Valuation

222 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES

     OPERATIONS CENTER

          Earthwork 4/1/81 23,256 1981 3535.00 75,632

          Structure & Misc. 4/1/81 332,155 1981 3535.00 1,080,214

          Plumbing 4/1/81 30,361 1981 3535.00 98,738

          HVAC 4/1/81 27,307 1981 3535.00 88,806

          Electrical 4/1/81 41,462 1981 3535.00 134,840

          Carpet for Admin Office (pad not replaced)  11/30/04 9,323 2004 7115.08 15,064

          Paint Inside of Admin Office 12/07/04 1,850 2004 7115.08 2,989

          Window Coverings Admin Bldg 03/07/05 1,841 2005 7446.08 2,842

          Telephone Lines 6/16/95 619 1995 5471.17 1,301

          York 3 Ton 95% Efficient Furnace  & 3 Ton 13‐Seer A/C 04/26/11 6,224 2011 9069.83 7,889

          York 4 Ton 95% Efficient Furnace  & 3 Ton 13‐Seer A/C 04/26/11 6,224 2011 9069.83 7,889

          Alarm System Panel ‐ Admin Bldg 10/25/01 476 2001 6342.08 863

          Electrical Design for Installation of Office Generator(Calcon) 01/31/11 4,800 2011 9069.83 6,084

          Re‐Roof Operations Center Roof 05/26/06 16,616 2006 7751.25 24,644

          Paint Exterior of Admin Bldg 05/15/12 4,017 2012 9308.17 4,961

          Carpet  for Admin Office (pad not replaced)  06/04/13 6,641 2013 9546.67 7,997

          Ceiling Tiles  & HVAC Grills Painted for Admin Office 05/28/13 3,112 2013 9546.67 3,748

          Conference Room/Kitchen Water damage repair/remodel 10/31/16 13,633 2016 10385.00 15,092

            Total ‐ Buildings & Structures  Operations Center 529,917 1,579,593

SEWAGE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

     HAYWARD PUMP STATION 4/1/81

          Earthwork 4/1/81 55,415 1981 3535.00 180,217

4/1/81 723 1981 3535.00 2,351

          Concrete, Paving, Misc. 4/1/81 93,667 1981 3535.00 304,618

          Mech. & Pump Equip. 4/1/81 81,448 1981 3535.00 264,880

          Piping‐Underground 4/1/81 93,939 1981 3535.00 305,503

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 85,934 1981 3535.00 279,469

          Electircal 4/1/81 30,280 1981 3535.00 98,475

Page 1 of 35223 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Motor Control Unit 4/1/81 32,479 1981 3535.00 105,626

          Equipment & Furnishings 4/1/81 510 1981 3535.00 1,659

          Elect‐Programable controller 10/30/87 6,332 1987 4406.00 16,522

          Sensor Mag Meter 6/06/90 4,366 1990 4731.92 10,607

          Submersible Level Transducer 7/18/90 3,427 1990 4731.92 8,326

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Eff Pump No.2 Valve Actuator 7/31/94 3,984 1994 5407.58 8,470

           Eff Pump No.4 Valve Actuator 7/31/94 3,983 1994 5407.58 8,468

           H.P.S. Control Upgrade Project 6/01/95 43,840 1995 5471.17 92,119

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 1/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (20%) 1/23/97 34,061 1997 5825.08 67,222

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (20%) 1/23/97 1,152 1997 5825.08 2,274

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 1,457 1997 5825.08 2,876

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 17,132 1997 5825.08 33,811

          Manual Transfer Switch 01/01/96 3,970 1996 5622.17 8,118

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 787 1998 5920.42 1,528

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          PG&E Rebate Program ‐ Ef f Pump #2 Valve Actuator 11/26/96 (1,766) 1996 5622.17 (3,611)

          PG&E Rebate Program ‐ Ef f Pump #4 Valve Actuator 11/26/96 (1,766) 1996 5622.17 (3,611)

          Flow Chart Recorder/Totalizer 03/20/97 1,974 1997 5825.08 3,896

          Roof/Building Replacement 12/19/97 4,425 1997 5825.08 8,733

          Marsh Flow Signal‐Parts & Installation 04/20/98 3,990 1998 5920.42 7,748

          Effluent Pump No. 1 (Rebuilt 99/00) 10/14/99 11,170 1999 6059.50 21,192

          Wetwell Level Probe/Transducer 06/12/00 2,093 2000 6221.17 3,868

Page 2 of 35224 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Wet Well Level Indicator Milltronics Probe 02/28/05 885 2005 7446.08 1,366

          Emergency Generator ‐ Caterpillar 3406  09/01/01 79,563 2001 6342.08 144,224

          Limitorque Actuator with Adaptor 07/06/00 3,735 2000 6221.17 6,902

            for HVBM07 Valve #7

          VFD No. 1 for HEPS ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 06/01/01 6,786 2001 6342.08 12,301

          Installation of VFD No. 1 ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 11/30/01 3,500 2001 6342.08 6,344

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2  ‐ 75 hp (Calcon) 08/01/14 5,697 2014 9806.00 6,679

          Varoab;e Freqiemcu Drove No. 3 for HEPS ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 06/01/01 6,786 2001 6342.08 12,301

          Installation of VFD No. 3 ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 11/30/01 3,500 2001 6342.08 6,344

          Effluent Pump No. 3 (Rebuilt 01/02) 08/15/01 7,388 2001 6342.08 13,392

          Effluent Pump No. 3 ‐ Remove, Inspect, Repair & Install (Pump Repair S 10/23/14 18,172 2014 9806.00 21,304

          Hayward Flow Meter ‐ Aquaprobe Flow Meter 9/15/05 5,992 2005 7446.08 9,251

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 2 ‐ Emergency Repair 11/18/05 5,286 2005 7446.08 8,161

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 3 ‐ Refurbish (Vincent Electric Motor) 07/31/14 5,561 2014 9806.00 6,519

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 4 ‐ Trim & balance 12/27/05 500 2005 7446.08 772

          VFD No. 2 ‐ 75 HP VFD (Calcon) 05/31/07 5,195 2007 7967.00 7,496

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Panel, electrical hardware & labor (Calcon) 06/25/07 1,807 2007 7967.00 2,607

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 07/31/07 1,301 2007 7967.00 1,877

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 08/31/07 1,497 2007 7967.00 2,160

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Materials & Labor (Calcon) 02/28/17 8,073 2017 10737.00 8,644

          VFD No. 4 ‐ 75 HP VFD (Calcon) 05/31/07 5,195 2007 7967.00 7,496

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Panel, electrical hardware & labor (Calcon) 06/25/07 1,807 2007 7967.00 2,607

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 07/31/07 1,301 2007 7967.00 1,877

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 08/31/07 1,497 2007 7967.00 2,160

          Alvarado North Flow Meter (Calcon) 02/07/08 8,430 2008 8309.92 11,662

          Insertion Flow Meter Calcon) 07/20/09 5,951 2009 8570.08 7,983

          HEPS Perimeter Fencing & Gates (Bailey Fence Co) 02/03/11 5,091 2011 9069.83 6,453

          MCC Upgrade w/ 2 75 HP VFDs ‐ Main Breaker 05/05/00 3,928 2000 6221.17 7,259

          HEPS Electrical Assessment Phase 1, PP #1&2 06/30/13 5,115 2013 9546.67 6,160

          HEPS Electrical Assessment Phase 1, PP #3 07/25/13 165 2013 9546.67 199

          HEPS Design of Replacement Switch Gear Phase 2 PP #1‐5 10/25/15‐06 06/30/16 8,460 2016 10385.00 9,365

          HEPS Design of Replacement Switch Gear Phase 2 PP #6‐15 06/25/16‐0 06/30/17 106,886 2017 10737.00 114,445

Page 3 of 35225 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          HEPS MCC Project 06/30/18 141,037 2018 11062.00 146,574

          HEPS MCC Project 06/30/18 375,577 2018 11062.00 390,323

          HEPS Pump #2 Motor Replacement 03/15/18 17,076 2018 11062.00 17,746

          HEPS #1 Effluent 14MF Cascade Propeller Pump Repairs 10/15/13 34,123 2013 9546.67 41,092

          HEPS #1 75HP Motor Repairs 10/15/13 3,248 2013 9546.67 3,911

          HEPS #2 Effluent Cascade Model MF Propeller Pump Repair 06/30/13 33,699 2013 9546.67 40,581

          HEPS #2 75HP Motor Repair 06/30/13 3,248 2013 9546.67 3,911

          HEPS #4 Effluent Cascade Model MF Propeller Pump Repair 11/26/13 40,514 2013 9546.67 48,788

          HEPS #4 75HP Motor Repair 11/26/13 3,307 2013 9546.67 3,982

            Total ‐ Hayward Pump Station 1,600,599 3,004,333

     SAN LEANDRO PUMP STATION

          Concrete, Paving & Misc. 4/1/81 111,062 1981 3535.00 361,189

          Mech. & Pump. Equip. 4/1/81 77,929 1981 3535.00 253,436

          Piping & Valves‐Above Ground 4/1/81 101,855 1981 3535.00 331,247

          Electrical 4/1/81 22,925 1981 3535.00 74,555

          Motor Control Unit 4/1/81 94,545 1981 3535.00 307,473

          Motor Control Unit Modification 9/93 30,378 1993 5210.42 67,026

          Replace Auto‐Con Unit 7/31/88 15,204 1988 4519.00 38,679

          Transformer 9/30/88 2,705 1988 4519.00 6,882

          Drive Motor 11/15/88 8,629 1988 4519.00 21,952

          Spacer Coupling/Iron Motor Std 2/16/89 2,574 1989 4615.00 6,412

          Isolation Transformers &

           Weather Shield 7/31/90 2,247 1990 4731.92 5,459

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

Page 4 of 35226 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 8/27/93 162 1993 5210.42 357

           Eff Pump No.4 Exercise Motor 8/15/94 364 1994 5407.58 774

           Automatic Transfer Switch 10/24/95 3,974 1995 5471.17 8,350

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 01/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (5%) 01/23/97 8,515 1997 5825.08 16,805

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (5%) 01/23/97 288 1997 5825.08 568

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 292 1997 5825.08 576

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 3,426 1997 5825.08 6,762

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          Cummins West Generator @SLPS 04/04/97 26,180 1997 5825.08 51,669

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 03/31/03 3,440 2003

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 1 ‐ 30VFD & installation 01/27/06 2,976 2006 7751.25 4,414

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 250A Main Breaker Replacement 01/31/14 4,487 2014 9806.00 5,260

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ Replace Control Board & Diodes 02/28/14 2,480 2014 9806.00 2,907

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 3 VFD Diodes 03/31/14 341 2014 9806.00 400

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 150HP (Calcon) 08/31/14 8,891 2014 9806.00 10,423

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ Remove old VFD/Install new ABB VFD (Ca 09/30/14 734 2014 9806.00 860

          Variable Frequency Drive #2 03/31/03 3,440 2003 6694.58 5,907

          Variable Frequency Drive #2 ‐ 30HP VFD & INSTALL 01/06/05 3,152 2005 7446.08 4,867

          Variable Frequency Drive #3 10/30/95 11,883 1995 5471.17 24,969

          Variable Frequency Drive #3 11/21/03 6,586 2003 6694.58 11,310

          Variable Frequency Drive #4 04/06/99 34,899 1999 6059.50 66,212

          Effluent Wet Well Control Upgrade 11/30/00 5,500 2000 6221.17 10,164

          Effluent Pump No. 1 (Rebuild) 09/14/01 8,352 2001 6342.08 15,140

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor 09/21/01 3,531 2001 6342.08 6,401

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor (Rebuild) 06/07/04 2,439 2004 7115.08 3,941

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor (Emergency Repairs) 01/11/05 4,585 2005 7446.08 7,079

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Motor 09/21/01 3,531 2001 6342.08 6,401

          Effluent Pump No. 2 (Rebuild) 11/16/01 14,314 2001 6342.08 25,947

Page 5 of 35227 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Effluent Pump No. 2  Parts (CSL) 05/31/16 440 2016 10385.00 487

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Rebuild (Pump Repair Servi ce) 07/22/16 23,498 2016 10385.00 26,012

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Motor (Emergency Repairs) 01/11/05 4,585 2005 7446.08 7,079

          Effluent Pump No. 3 Motor & Pump (Pump Repair Service & pr) 12/29/16 23,483 2016 10385.00 25,996

          Milltronic Level Controller 11/30/01 1,718 2001 6342.08 3,114

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/05 2,885 2005 7446.08 4,454

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/06 25,422 2006 7751.25 37,705

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/07 505,060 2007 7967.00 728,797

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/08 935,024 2008 8309.92 1,293,554

          San Leandro Flow Meter 9/15/05 5,816 2005 7446.08 8,980

          Auto Transfer Switch ‐ 600 Amp Breaker 01/31/06 5,997 2006 7751.25 8,894

          San Leandro Flow Meter (Calcon) 02/07/08 8,430 2008 8309.92 11,662

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 3 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 4 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Emergency Generator Kohler Model 500REOZVB (Collicutt) 11/08/07 121,458 2007 7967.00 175,263

          Bisulfite Facility Pump 520DUN/R 220RPM 04/09/09 6,500 2009 8570.08 8,719

          Electrical Layout‐New Bypass Control Valve & Signal 03/13/09 552 2009 8570.08 740

          SLEPS Containment & Dechlorination System Project 06/30/09 7,242 2009 8570.08 9,715

          SLEPS Site Containment Gate ‐ fabricated slide gate 07/09/09 10,542 2009 8570.08 14,142

          SLEPS Bypass Valve & Chemical Feed Pump System 09/01/09 10,600 2009 8570.08 14,219

          SLEPS Level Monitor 09/30/09 1,017 2009 8570.08 1,364

            Total ‐ San Leandro Pump Station 2,356,907 4,182,736

     MARINA DECHLOR. FACILITY

          Excavation & Sitework 4/1/81 39,688 1981 3535.00 129,071

          Structure & Misc. 4/1/81 378,844 1981 3535.00 1,232,053

          Concrete & Paving 4/1/81 82,589 1981 3535.00 268,591

          Landscaping 4/1/81 20,695 1981 3535.00 67,303

          Mechanical Equipment 4/1/81 464,782 1981 3535.00 1,511,535

Page 6 of 35228 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 146,224 1981 3535.00 475,541

          Electrical 4/1/81 94,393 1981 3535.00 306,979

          Control Unit 4/1/81 32,166 1981 3535.00 104,608

          Lab & Office Furnishings 4/1/81 15,871 1981 3535.00 51,615

          Lab & Office Furnishings 6/30/86 7,466 1986 4295.00 19,984

          Cathodic Protection 3/21/85 49,203 1985 4195.00 134,840

          Control Unit‐Disol. Ox. Probe 4/19/88 1,893 1988 4519.00 4,816

          Piping‐SO2 Chem. valves 6/30/88 1,405 1988 4519.00 3,574

          Valve 7/25/88 352 1988 4519.00 895

          Apco Air Relief Valves (2) 2/28/89 2,226 1989 4615.00 5,545

          Cathodic Protection System 8/31/89 2,776 1989 4615.00 6,915

          Portable Torch ‐ Airco 9/11/89 293 1989 4615.00 730

          Sampler & Equipment 12/8/89 3,080 1989 4615.00 7,673

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Platform for Access to Combin‐

           ation Air/Vacuum Valve 7/31/90 10,987 1990 4731.92 26,693

          Blind Flanges 12/04/90 2,631 1990 4731.92 6,392

          2 Kent Strip Chart Recorders 12/29/90 4,016 1990 4731.92 9,757

          PH Meter Model 108 Portable 02/04/91 297 1991 4835.08 706

          PH Meter Model M‐107 03/20/91 296 1991 4835.08 704

          Sampler 117 Vac Model 291OR 7/03/91 2,922 1991 4835.08 6,948

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Micro 2000 Analyzer 12/30/91 6,683 1991 4835.08 15,890

          Duo Phone System‐Radio Shack 5/05/92 573 1992 4984.83 1,321

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

          45 Gal Storage Cabinet 6/25/92 664 1992 4984.83 1,531

          Drill, B 1/2" Rev 6/26/92 187 1992 4984.83 431

Page 7 of 35229 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Micrometer Set 7/17/92 197 1992 4984.83 454

          Sump Pump No.1 9/14/92 3,053 1992 4984.83 7,041

          3/4 Ton Ratchet Hoist 9/16/92 267 1992 4984.83 616

          Sump Pump No.2 9/25/92 4,517 1992 4984.83 10,417

          Sink for Samplers‐2'x2' acrylic split tank 11/12/92 758 1992 4984.83 1,748

          Valves for Sulfur Dioxide Tank B 12/10/92 1,514 1992 4984.83 3,492

          Bioassay Platform 12/31/92 8,815 1992 4984.83 20,330

          Unit Heater No. 1 01/11/93 513 1993 5210.42 1,132

          Circular Saw 01/20/93 176 1993 5210.42 388

          Router 01/20/93 168 1993 5210.42 371

          Unit Heater No. 2 01/27/93 501 1993 5210.42 1,105

          Sump Pump No.2 Motor 01/29/93 287 1993 5210.42 633

          ARC/TIG Welder 02/05/93 731 1993 5210.42 1,613

          Bioassay Control Panel 02/09/93 1,537 1993 5210.42 3,391

          Portable Sander/Grinder 04/27/93 157 1993 5210.42 346

          Bioassay System 05/01/93 11,152 1993 5210.42 24,606

          Chiller, Micro‐Mini 1/3HP,Digital Thermometer

          & 2 Stainless Steel Filter Screens‐Aquatic Eco 10/27/93 907 1993 5210.42 2,001

         Bioassay Chiller 04/21/04 1,446 2004 7115.08 2,336

          MDF Transformer, 440‐208 to 110 05/27/93 1,384 1993 5210.42 3,054

          MegohmmeterRouter 06/24/93 717 1993 5210.42 1,582

          Portable Band Saw Kit ‐ Grainger 07/12/93 289 1993 5210.42 638

          Hand Tachometer ‐ Grainger 08/19/93 229 1993 5210.42 505

          Hammer Rotary 1‐1/2 Eagle TSC ‐CA Service 10/08/93 529 1993 5210.42 1,167

          Chain Hoist & Trolley, 1/2 Ton ‐ Grainger 12/06/93 231 1993 5210.42 510

          2HP Pool Motor ‐ Grainger 01/04/94 212 1994 5407.58 451

          28FT Extension Ladder ‐ Home Depot 01/21/94 291 1994 5407.58 619

          Pump #2 Repair ‐ Alfred Conhagen Inc. 01/25/94 5,883 1994 5407.58 12,507

          2Hp Auto Sewage Pump ‐ Grainger 02/18/94 978 1994 5407.58 2,079

          Pipe Vice Tristand ‐ Grainger 03/04/94 351 1994 5407.58 746

          Hand Threader ‐ Grainger 03/04/94 482 1994 5407.58 1,025

          C1 Residual Chlorine Analyzer 03/14/94 7,448 1994 5407.58 15,834

Page 8 of 35230 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          PH/Temp Meter Kit w/Printer 03/15/94 387 1994 5407.58 823

          PH/Temp Meter Kit w/Printer 03/15/94 393 1994 5407.58 836

          8" Tradesman Vise ‐ Grainger 06/13/94 341 1994 5407.58 725

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          Auto Phone Dialer for Alarms ‐Verbatim 08/16/94 3,031 1994 5407.58 6,444

          Backflow Preventer(Inside) 09/15/94 231 1994 5407.58 491

          Seismic Design & Eng Servives (20%) 01/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (10%) 01/23/97 17,031 1997 5825.08 33,612

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (10%) 01/23/97 576 1997 5825.08 1,137

          SODIUM BISULFITE CONVERSION PROJECT $725,819

              06/30/95 $ 15,270          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/96    53,542          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/97  652,375          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/98      4,632          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

          Sodium Bisulfite Building 05/15/97 497,269 1997 5825.08 981,404

          Bisulfite Pump Control Panel ‐ CP 05/15/97 5,000 1997 5825.08 9,868

          Bisulfite System Control Panel ‐ SCP 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite System Control Panel ‐ HCP 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite Alarm Panel ‐ Outside 05/15/97 2,000 1997 5825.08 3,947

          Bisulfite Facility Transformer 05/15/97 6,000 1997 5825.08 11,842

          CM Pump No. 1 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          CM Pump No. 2 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          CM Pump No. 3 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          Bisulfite Vent Gas Scrubber 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Facility Heater No. 1 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Facility Heater No. 2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Facility Roof Fan 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Facility Fire Alarm #2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Tank No. 1 Level Transmitter 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

Page 9 of 35231 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Bisulfite Tank No. 2 Level Transmitter 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

          Water Champ Chemical Induction Unit 05/15/97 22,000 1997 5825.08 43,419

          Bisulfite Tank No. 1 Site Glass 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Bisulfite Tank No. 2 Site Glass 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Hot Water Heater 05/15/97 700 1997 5825.08 1,382

          Bisulfite System Strainers 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Storage Tank No. 1 05/15/97 17,000 1997 5825.08 33,551

          Bisulfite Storage Tank No. 2 05/15/97 17,000 1997 5825.08 33,551

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,999 2015 10335.00 11,122

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 2,947 2015 10335.00 3,278

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,999 2015 10335.00 11,122

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 3,982 2015 10335.00 4,429

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,998 2015 10335.00 11,121

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 3,982 2015 10335.00 4,429

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Bisulfite Sump Pump No. 1 05/15/97 2,700 1997 5825.08 5,329

          Bisulfite Sump Pump No. 2 05/15/97 2,700 1997 5825.08 5,329

          Bisulfite Facility Emergency Lights 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Bisulfite Emergency Shower No. 1 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Emergency Shower No. 2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Fire Sprinkler System 05/15/97 7,500 1997 5825.08 14,802

          Bisulfite Facility Roof 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite Facility Smoke Detectors 05/15/97 750 1997 5825.08 1,480

Page 10 of 35232 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Bisulfite Backflow Prevention Valves 05/15/97 2,250 1997 5825.08 4,441

          Bisulfite System Check Valves (3) 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Diaphragm Valves (33) 05/15/97 15,000 1997 5825.08 29,604

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 1 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 2 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 3 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 4 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Water Champ Knife Gate Valve 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

          Bisulfite Pressure Relief Valves (3) 05/15/97 2,250 1997 5825.08 4,441

          Bisulfite System Plug Valves (4) 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Tank Thickness Gauge 07/20/94 2,639 1994 5407.58 5,610

          Meter Vault Sump Pump #2 03/24/95 5,588 1995 5471.17 11,742

          Chain Link Fence 09/14/94 6,098 1994 5407.58 12,964

          Gate Automation System (Gate Operator) 08/08/95 6,533 1995 5471.17 13,727

          Gate Automation System (Gate Operator) 07/24/15 3,945 2015 10335.00 4,388

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 291 1997 5825.08 574

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 3,426 1997 5825.08 6,762

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          2HP Auto Sewage Pump Submersible 11/30/95 833 1995 5471.17 1,750

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 442 1996 5622.17 904

          Amperometric Titrator SN BA54006 04/25/96 1,641 1996 5622.17 3,356

          Dissolved Oxygen Meter & Probe VWR 05/13/96 1,693 1996 5622.17 3,462

      Dell Pentium Computer System (originally SCADA) 08/06/96 3,407 1996 5622.17 6,967

         77 pc  Tap & Die Set 12/06/96 334 1996 5622.17 683

         2 HP Auto Sewage Pump 08/19/97 831 1997 5825.08 1,640

         3 Pen Chart Recorder 05/05/98 3,171 1998 5920.42 6,157

         Aurora Injector Pump 2.5X3Y12 06/03/98 1,600 1998 5920.42 3,107

Page 11 of 35233 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

           SN#79‐004418‐3 Inspection (not repaired,

           new pump to be purchased in 98/99)

         Injector Water Pump & Motor #1 Grundfos 06/30/99 11,029 1999 6059.50 20,925

         Injector Water Pump & Motor #1 Grundfos 06/30/99 11,030 1999 6059.50 20,927

         2 HP Sewage Pump 03/22/99 782 1999 6059.50 1,484

         Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  11/17/98 6,494 1998 5920.42 12,610

         Vent‐O‐Mat 2" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  11/17/98 2,030 1998 5920.42 3,942

         Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  01/28/99 6,503 1999 6059.50 12,338

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Seco ABB Aquaprobe  12/03/99 5,077 1999 6059.50 9,632

           Insertion Mag Meter 

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Remove old & Install new  10/30/08 892 2008 8309.92 1,234

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Sitrans Fus 1010 IP65 NEMA 4X  10/30/08 8,061 2008 8309.92 11,152

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Chemical Flowmeter x2 & Cable x2 Calcon 01/31/15 3,512 2015 10335.00 3,907

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Chemical Flowmeter x2 & Cable x2 Calcon 01/31/15 3,512 2015 10335.00 3,907

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Siemens Controllotron Flow Meter Replacement ‐ remove old & install n 03/31/14 7,658 2014 9806.00 8,978

         Marina Flow Meter No. 2 ‐ Aquaprobe Flow Meter & install 9/15/05 5,220 2005 7446.08 8,059

         MDF No 2 Flow Meter Probe  02/28/17 452 2017 10737.00 484

         MDF Aquaprobe Magnetic Flow Meter & Installation  04/28/17 13,137 2017 10737.00 14,066

         System Wide Spare Flow Meter  09/18/09 5,979 2009 8570.08 8,021

          SBS Pump Flow Meter #3 Installation ‐ Calcon 02/28/13 13,582 2013 9546.67 16,356

         Cathodic Protection System ‐ Repair/Replace‐ 12/31/99 2,600 1999 6059.50 4,933

           ment Installation of the Z1 & Z2 Reference

           Electrodes

         1 HP Effluent Pump 01/31/00 432 2000 6221.17 798

         PH/MV/Temp Meter No. 1 ‐ VWR Scientific  01/31/00 888 2000 6221.17 1,641

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 2 08/24/04 9,267 2004 7115.08 14,973

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 3 03/17/00 6,959 2000 6221.17 12,860

         New Analyzer @ MDF Installed Electrical Wiring & Conduits & Labor 05/30/17 220 2017 10737.00 235

         New Analyzer @ MDF Installed Electrical Wiring & Conduits & Labor 05/30/17 186 2017 10737.00 199

Page 12 of 35234 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

         New Test Hypo Analyzer @ MDF Install (Calcon) 06/30/17 1,215 2017 10737.00 1,301

         Work on New CL2 Analyzer @ MDF 10/17/17 616 2017 10737.00 660

         Portable Sump Pump  5 HP Self‐Priming 05/04/00 666 2000 6221.17 1,231

         2 HP Cast Iron Pump 06/20/00 458 2000 6221.17 846

         MDF Effluent Sample Manifold Parts 01/17/02 1,729 2002 6538.00 3,040

         Sample Pump & Motor (Spare) 04/26/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Sample Pump in Meter Vault‐2HP Cast Iron Pump 03/25/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Sample Pump No. 4 in Meter Vault ‐ 2HP 12/21/04 526 2004 7115.08 850

           Centrifugal Pump

         Sample Pump ‐ 2 HP Cast Iron Pump 03/04/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Stainless Steel Angle&Flat‐to install sample pump 01/09/02 239 2002 6538.00 420

         2 HP Sewage Pump 04/20/01 803 2001 6342.08 1,456

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 2 11/06/01 468 2001 6342.08 848

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 1 11/28/01 468 2001 6342.08 848

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 2 07/02/02 478 2002 6538.00 841

         Sample Pump No. 3 Motor 11/21/02 231 2002 6538.00 406

         Sample Pump No. 4 Motor 11/21/02 231 2002 6538.00 406

         Dechlor Station Roof ‐ Certainteed Landmark 50 05/07/04 6,989 2004 7115.08 11,293

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 1 07/31/05 10,086 2005 7446.08 15,572

         Automatic Sampler No. 1 02/17/06 3,724 2006 7751.25 5,523

         Automatic Sampler No. 2 02/17/06 3,724 2006 7751.25 5,523

         Auto Transfer Switch 06/30/06 7,746 2006 7751.25 11,489

         Auto Transfer Switch 07/14/06 1,004 2006 7751.25 1,489

         Auto Transfer Switch 08/22/06 3,705 2006 7751.25 5,495

         Sewage Pump No. 1 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 06/22/07 4,414 2007 7967.00 6,369

         Motor Starter & Installation (Calcon) 04/28/17 1,530 2017 10737.00 1,638

         Sewage Pump No. 2 01/12/07 103 2007 7967.00 149

         Sewage Pump No. 2 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 06/22/07 4,415 2007 7967.00 6,371

         Sewage Pump No. 2 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 07/03/07 287 2007 7967.00 414

         Motor Starter & Installation (Calcon) 04/28/17 1,530 2017 10737.00 1,638

          Bioassay System 02/13/07 43,655 2007 7967.00 62,994

          Amperometric Titrator 07/05/07 2,852 2007 7967.00 4,115

Page 13 of 35235 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 1 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 1 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 12/20/07 1,451 2007 7967.00 2,094

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 12/20/07 1,451 2007 7967.00 2,094

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 06/30/08 411 2008 8309.92 569

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 3 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 3 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Water Champ Parts @ MDF 03/05/18 4,640 2018 11062.00 4,822

          Chem Pump Backflow Valves (3) 07/03/07 879 2007 7967.00 1,268

          Chem Pump Pressure Release Valves (3) 07/03/07 879 2007 7967.00 1,268

          Bisulfite Tank No 1&2 Level Controller 04/30/08 3,141 2008 8309.92 4,345

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Caterpillar 3208 Generator Refurbished 12/15/08 21,925 2008 8309.92 30,332

          Caterpillar 3208 Generator Cylinder Heads Refurbished 12/18/08 7,289 2008 8309.92 10,084

          Replace Rectifier @ MDF 02/19/10 5,191 2010 8798.92 6,782

          Instrument Control Center 03/31/93 13,244 1993 5210.42 29,222

         Station Control, Alarm, & SCADA System 10/07/03 27,226 2003 6694.58 46,754

          Station Control, Alarm & Scada System @MDF 09/24/10 1,360 2010 8798.92 1,777

          Install 24VDC Redundant Power Supply Control System @MDF (Calcon) 01/31/14 8,359 2014 9806.00 9,800

          Automatic Compliance Valve @MDF ‐ Material only (Calcon) 04/29/14 1,451 2014 9806.00 1,701

          Automatic Compliance Valve @MDF ‐ Labor only (Calcon) 05/30/14 1,692 2014 9806.00 1,984

          Programmable Logic Controller Redundant Backup @MDF (Calcon) PP# 06/30/16 35,640 2016 10385.00 39,454

Page 14 of 35236 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Programmable Logic Controller Redundant Backup @MDF (Calcon) PP# 02/28/17 3,960 2017 10737.00 4,240

          8" Touch Screen & Installation  04/28/17 2,472 2017 10737.00 2,647

          Gas Monitoring System @MDF 01/31/12 4,203 2012 9308.17 5,191

          MDF Interior Painting 01/10/08 6,410 2008 8309.92 8,868

          MDF Exterior Building and Doors 01/15/15 6,450 2015 10335.00 7,175

          MDF Lab Flooring 01/28/08 2,076 2008 8309.92 2,872

          MDF Access Ladder & Cage Installation 02/11/09 4,324 2009 8570.08 5,800

          Replace Under Drain/Sewage Piping ‐ Pump/Vault Systems 03/31/12 17,419 2012 9308.17 21,514

          Lighting Fixture Upgrade @MDF (Calcon) 03/30/14 5,441 2014 9806.00 6,379

          Legacy Wiring Removal 04/30/15 4,683 2015 10335.00 5,210

          Concrete Island & 2 Berms to protect for Sea Level Rise 07/08/15 7,336 2015 10335.00 8,160

          Refurbish Gas Detection System for Meter Vault (Calcon) 01/31/16 436 2016 10385.00 483

          Emergency Light & Outlets Upgrade (Calcon) 01/31/16 4,997 2016 10385.00 5,532

          Back Up CL2 Analyzers (Calcon) 06/29/16 1,082 2016 10385.00 1,198

          CL2 Analyzers (Calcon) 11/30/16 4,358 2016 10385.00 4,824

          MDF Lighting Upgrade ‐ Exterior & Vault Lighting 05/17/18 1,769 2018 11062.00 1,839

          MDF Lighting Upgrade 05/01/18 3,166 2018 11062.00 3,291

          MDF Lighting Upgrade ‐ Emergency Lighting 05/17/18 353 2018 11062.00 366

          Sewage Pumps & Piping Removal & Replacement 04/26/13 32,800 2013 9546.67 39,498

          MDF Temp Generator  03/07/13 394 2013 9546.67 474

          Manual Transfer Switch Relocation  08/30/13 3,747 2013 9546.67 4,512

            Total ‐ Marina Dechlor Facility 2,889,652 7,031,915

     ORO LOMA PUMP STATION

          Earthwork 4/1/81 428,573 1981 3535.00 1,393,779

          Concrete & Paving 4/1/81 12,089 1981 3535.00 39,315

          Structure 4/1/81 1,683,078 1981 3535.00 5,473,603

          Misc. Fees & Tests 4/1/81 8,000 1981 3535.00 26,017

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 4/1/81 1,501,590 1981 3535.00 4,883,379

          Electrical 4/1/81 414,543 1981 3535.00 1,348,151

          HVAC 4/1/81 37,928 1981 3535.00 123,347

Page 15 of 35237 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Plumbing 4/1/81 5,500 1981 3535.00 17,887

          Piping‐Underground 4/1/81 670,003 1981 3535.00 2,178,943

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 209,015 1981 3535.00 679,746

          Equipment & Furnishings 4/1/81 2,426 1981 3535.00 7,890

          Piping‐Monitoring Wells 12/31/87 3,650 1987 4406.00 9,524

          Pre/Post Lube System 9/30/88 7,577 1988 4519.00 19,276

          PLC Installation  10/31/88 11,982 1988 4519.00 30,482

          Temperature Regulators  5/30/90 2,021 1990 4731.92 4,910

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Homelite Chain Saw 12/10/90 976 1990 4731.92 2,371

          Vibration Monitor Meter 12/19/90 1,611 1990 4731.92 3,914

          Limitorque for 42" Valve 06/28/91 2,978 1991 4835.08 7,081

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Sample Pump & Motor No.1 8/31/92 751 1992 4984.83 1,732

           Sample Pump & Motor No.2 8/31/92 751 1992 4984.83 1,732

           Fuel Tank Monitoring System 3/05/93 10,259 1993 5210.42 22,636

           Diesel Tank Double Containment Sensor ‐ 07/31/00 2,151 2000 6221.17 3,975

           Leak Detector 01/27/15 5,950 2015 10335.00 6,619

           Sump Pump 5/31/93 472 1993 5210.42 1,041

           Pump #1 Replacement ‐ Layne & Bowler 7/01/93 5,408 1993 5210.42 11,932

           Recl Water Pump No. 1 ‐ rebuilt 12/31/02 9,008 2002 6538.00 15,840

           Pump #2 Replacement ‐ Layne & Bowler 7/22/93 5,216 1993 5210.42 11,509

           Recl Water Pump No. 1  Motor 05/31/05 1,801 2005 7446.08 2,781

           Recl Water Pump No. 2 Motor 05/31/05 1,801 2005 7446.08 2,781

           Battery System for Emerg Diesel Engines 7/01/93 7,339 1993 5210.42 16,193

           Motor Overhaul 6/14/94 5,215 1994 5407.58 11,087

Page 16 of 35238 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor 11/19/98 16,000 1998 5920.42 31,069

          Eff Pump No. 1 Motor ‐ rebuilt 03/13/03 6,818 2003 6694.58 11,708

          Overhaul 350 Horsepower Motor &Align Motor to Gearbox 05/12/11 5,442 2011 9069.83 6,898

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor ‐ Refurbish & Laser Align 08/13/14 6,564 2014 9806.00 7,695

           Motor Overhaul 5/31/94 5,216 1994 5407.58 11,089

          Effluent Pump No. 4 Motor 11/19/98 16,000 1998 5920.42 31,069

          Pump Station Motor #4 ‐ Refurbish @ OLEPS (Vincent Electric Motor) 12/31/13 3,047 2013 9546.67 3,669

          Replace Bad Bearings in Pump Motor 10/30/15 6,563 2015 10335.00 7,300

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 1/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (30%) 1/23/97 51,092 1997 5825.08 100,835

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (30%) 1/23/97 1,728 1997 5825.08 3,410

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger & Kellco) 1/23/97 4,089 1997 5825.08 8,070

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 44,544 1997 5825.08 87,911

          Flex Coupling/Drive Shaft Engine No. 1 10/19/98 25,000 1998 5920.42 48,545

          Flex Coupling/Drive Shaft Engine No. 2 10/19/98 25,000 1998 5920.42 48,545

          Engine No. 1 (Pump 2) 10/19/98 311,738 1998 5920.42 605,335

          Engine No. 2 Retrofit @OLEPS (Calcon) 03/30/17 3,932 2017 10737.00 4,211

          Diesel Engine Control & Plc/Scada Programming Project 12/28/17 2,269 2017 10737.00 2,430

          Engine No. 2 (Pump 3) 10/19/98 311,738 1998 5920.42 605,335

          HMI for Diesel Pump Control @OLEPS (Calcon) 03/31/14 5,801 2014 9806.00 6,801

          Labor for 24 VDC  Power Isolators for Diesel Pump Control @OLEPS (Ca 06/30/14 754 2014 9806.00 884

          Install Battery Charging Unit, Control Batteries & Charger Diesel Engine 11/30/15 3,309 2015 10335.00 3,680

          Diesel Pump No. 3 Overhaul 03/31/17 60,243 2017 10737.00 64,504

          Diesel Engine Control & Plc/Scada Programming Project 12/28/17 2,269 2017 10737.00 2,430

          PR Distr DE‐PLC‐SCADA 6/30/18 350 2018 11062.00 364

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 7/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 7/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 7/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          Valve Box 1/2 HP Auto Sump Pump 5/20/96 173 1996 5622.17 354

          Variable Speed Control Unit #1 11/19/98 50,000 1998 5920.42 97,090

          Variable Speed Control Unit #1 ‐ Color HMI replacement 03/31/05 4,625 2005 7446.08 7,141

          Variable Speed Control Unit #4 11/19/98 50,000 1998 5920.42 97,090

Page 17 of 35239 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          VFD & Soft Start  #1 09/30/09 56,916 2009 8570.08 76,350

          VFD & Soft Start  #1 09/30/09 56,916 2009 8570.08 76,350

          Control System Upgrades @OLEPs 02/28/17 8,356 2017 10737.00 8,947

          Programmable Logic Control No. 1 11/19/98 3,000 1998 5920.42 5,825

          Programmable Logic Control No. 2 11/19/98 3,000 1998 5920.42 5,825

          Programmable Logic Control No. 3 11/19/98 2,000 1998 5920.42 3,884

          Fisher Porter Controll No. 1 11/19/98 11,000 1998 5920.42 21,360

          Fisher Porter Controll No. 2 11/19/98 11,000 1998 5920.42 21,360

          Flow Chart Recorder 11/19/98 4,458 1998 5920.42 8,657

          Philadelphia #1 Gear Box 6/30/97 16,700 1997 5825.08 32,959

          Bearing & Seal Replacements  #1 Gearbox 06/30/12 26,004 2012 9308.17 32,117

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Rebuild (Timken Gears & Serv 04/08/14 32,850 2014 9806.00 38,513

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Norwalk mileage & motel (DA 07/08/14 884 2014 9806.00 1,036

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Rebuild (Timken Gears & Serv 07/08/14 96,951 2014 9806.00 113,663

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Sales Tax (Timken Gears & Se 07/08/14 11,634 2014 9806.00 13,640

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Align Motor & Gear Drive (OL 08/31/14 2,580 2014 9806.00 3,025

          Diesel Engine Right Angle Gear Drive #2 10/03/97 26,531 1997 5825.08 52,361

            Rebuilt

          Diesel Engine Right Angle Gear Drive #3 12/29/97 24,442 1997 5825.08 48,238

            Rebuilt

          Diesel Transfer Pump & Motor 03/20/97 845 1997 5825.08 1,668

          Emergency Fleet Charger/Starter 03/20/97 325 1997 5825.08 641

          LEROI DRESSER Series 200 Air Compressor  06/19/98 1,859 1998 5920.42 3,610

          Two Pen Chart ABB Recorder 06/23/98 1,885 1998 5920.42 3,660

          Pump #1 Worthington 42" MC1 10/19/98 32,314 1998 5920.42 62,748

            SN#Z‐0015771‐1 ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #1 Wiring 6/30/18 788 2018 11062.00 819

          Pump #2 Worthington 48" MMC 03/18/98 65,029 1998 5920.42 126,274

            SN#77‐Z‐001478  ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #2 At OLEPS Low Output 09/15/17 8,027 2017 10737.00 8,595

          Pump #3 Worthington 48" MMC 07/29/98 45,688 1998 5920.42 88,717

            SN#77‐2‐001578‐2 ‐ Major repairs

Page 18 of 35240 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Pump #3 Labor Allocation 06/30/17 9,542 2017 10737.00 10,217

          Pump #3 Inspection At OLEPS Pump Repair Service 08/31/17 765 2017 10737.00 819

          Pump #4 Worthington 42" MC1 06/04/98 35,610 1998 5920.42 69,148

            SN#Z‐0015771‐2 ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #4 Wiring 6/30/18 788 2018 11062.00 819

          Asco Transfer Switch Kit 06/30/05 4,889 2005 7446.08 7,548

          Emergency Power Transfer Switch 12/31/98 5,143 1998 5920.42 9,987

          Engine No. 1 Heat Exchange System 10/21/99 33,614 1999 6059.50 63,774

          Engine No. 2 Heat Exchange System 10/21/99 33,614 1999 6059.50 63,774

          Repair Retaining Wall over Tank No. 1 (Pearson Equipment & Maintena 01/27/15 796 2015 10335.00 886

          Project Permit Fee Alameda County DEH 10/21/15 719 2015 10335.00 800

          Diesel Fuel Day Tank ‐ Tramont Diesel Fuel 01/11/00 4,716 2000 6221.17 8,715

          Tank, Freight & Calcon installation

          Wet Well No. 1 Level Indicator ‐ Milltronics 02/02/00 2,410 2000 6221.17 4,454

            Probe & Calcon Installation

          Wet Well No. 2 Level Indicator ‐ Milltronics 02/02/00 2,411 2000 6221.17 4,455

            Probe & Calcon Installation

            2 VSM Pre‐lube Oil Pumps 10/22/01 921 2001 6342.08 1,669

          HVAC Renewal Project @OLPS

          Main Ventilation System Not in service 14,810

          Ventilation System Motor & Fan 4,937

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 1 988

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 1 Motor 987

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 2 987

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 2 Motor 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 1 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 1 Motor 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 2 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No.2 Motor  987

          Eff Pump No. 1 Exhaust Fan 987

          Eff Pump No. 1 Exhaust Fan Motor 987

          Eff Pump No. 4 Exhaust Fan 987

Page 19 of 35241 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Eff Pump No. 4 Exhaust Fan Motor 987

          Instrumentation Flow Meter 07/18/01 4,482 2001 6342.08 8,125

          Install New Flow Meter in OLEPS Confined Space 01/31/11 1,784 2011 9069.83 2,261

          Oro Loma Flow Meter ‐ Labor 10/31/05 526 2005 7446.08 812

          Flexim Flow Meter w/ Ultrasonic Flow Transducers 01/31/11 7,971 2011 9069.83 10,104

          No. 4 Gear Box Temp Regulator 08/07/03 1,065 2003 6694.58 1,829

          Eff Pump No. 1 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 424 2004 7115.08 685

          Eff Pump No. 2 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 424 2004 7115.08 685

          Eff Pump No. 3 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 425 2004 7115.08 687

          Eff Pump No. 4 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 425 2004 7115.08 687

          Station Control, Alarm & Scada System 04/21/04 26,422 2004 7115.08 42,692

          OLPS Interior Painting 06/30/04 8,680 2004 7115.08 14,025

          Eff Pump No. 1 Gear Box Bearing Replacement 06/30/04 4,177 2004 7115.08 6,749

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades TJC & Associates PP#1‐ 06/30/15 45,462 2015 10335.00 50,571

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades TJC & Associates PP#9‐ 06/30/16 57,482 2016 10385.00 63,633

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades 1,000 Feet of Fiber Cro 02/27/15 2,000 2015 10335.00 2,225

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades Deliver Damaged Door 06/30/15 1,403 2015 10335.00 1,560

          Programmable Logic Controller Project PP #1‐6 09/15/15 89,965 2015 10335.00 100,074

          Programmable Logic Controller Project Upgrade 01/21/16 110,952 2016 10385.00 122,826

          Repair Communication System Between West Switch Gear and EBDA B 08/31/15 2,370 2015 10335.00 2,637

          Upgrade UPS & Cabinet Wiring in PLC Panel (Calcon) 01/30/16 541 2016 10385.00 599

          OLEPS DE‐PLC‐SCADA  06/30/18 10,817 2018 11062.00 11,242

          OLEPS Human Machine Interface ‐ Citect 01/20/05 1,529 2005 7446.08 2,361

              HMI 100 pt key $969.00 & installation $560.00

          Auto Transfer Switch ‐ Parts & Labor 08/31/05 3,467 2005 7446.08 5,353

          Recl Water Screen Hoist No. 1 ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Recl Water Strainer ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Recl Water Screen Hoist No. 2 ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Oro Loma Bypass Butfly Valve 42" ‐ installation 01/31/06 666 2006 7751.25 988

          PR Distr OLEPS Valve Avtuator 08/31/17 310 2017 10737.00 332

          Limitorque MXA‐20 52RPM Electric Actuator for Pump No. 2 04/21/15 5,338 2015 10335.00 5,938

          Installed I/I Current Isolator for Pump No. 2 Valve Actuator (Calcon) 06/30/15 1,352 2015 10335.00 1,504

Page 20 of 35242 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Pump No. 3 Actuator ‐ Labor (Calcon) 04/22/15 1,035 2015 10335.00 1,151

          Eimitorque MXA‐20 52RPM Electric Actuator for Pump No. 3 04/21/15 5,338 2015 10335.00 5,938

          Pump No. 3 Contact Switches  ‐ Material & Labor (Calcon) 04/28/15 321 2015 10335.00 357

          Auto Valve Operator for OVBE05 ‐ Valve & installation 01/31/06 5,614 2006 7751.25 8,326

          Master Control System Emergency Gen Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,258 2006 7751.25 1,866

          Fabricate New Portable Battery Cart with MCS Charger for Diesels 11/30/15 4,841 2015 10335.00 5,385

          Master Control System Engine No. 1 Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,248 2006 7751.25 1,851

          Master Control System Engine No. 2 Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,248 2006 7751.25 1,851

          Motor Control Center No. 1 (Siemens Energy) 10/31/07 42,364 2007 7967.00 61,131

          Motor Control Center No. 2 (Siemens Energy) 10/31/07 42,364 2007 7967.00 61,131

          Building Lighting @OLEPS (Vaden Industries) 03/10/08 16,535 2008 8309.92 22,875

          3 Ft Drain Header with 2 inch  Branches from Pump Drains, 3 inch to Su 11/15/14 10,277 2014 9806.00 12,048

          1 Inch Pipe Remove/Replace PP#1 (D.W. Nicholson) 06/30/15 4,800 2015 10335.00 5,339

          Replacement of Utility Water Line System (D.W. Nicholson) 10/29/15 42,400 2015 10335.00 47,164

          Outfall Cl2 Diffuser 06/30/17 2,714 2017 10737.00 2,905

          Exterior Painting & Mural @OLEPS 08/11/08 20,000 2008 8309.92 27,669

          Pressure Transmitter & Installation 02/13/09 1,688 2009 8570.08 2,264

          PVC Sump Pump Discharge Pipe ‐ Demo/Install 11/15/14 9,900 2014 9806.00 11,607

          Building Upgrades 06/30/17 57,728 2017 10737.00 61,811

          Concrete Slab for Overflow Weir  @OLEPS 09/17/09 14,934 2009 8570.08 20,033

          1,000 Gal Polysafe Tank for Overflow Weir @OLEPS 09/30/09 16,765 2009 8570.08 22,489

          Disinfection Control System &PLC Upgrade @OLEPS 12/31/09 44,000 2009 8570.08 59,024

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Hydro Tank & High Pressure Pump System Upgrade 11/30/11 16,200 2011 9069.83 20,534

          Replace Damaged Valve Stem 04/16/12 7,135 2012 9308.17 8,812

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 1,931 2012 9308.17 2,385

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 17,376 2012 9308.17 21,461

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 1,931 2012 9308.17 2,385

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 17,376 2012 9308.17 21,461

          Philadelphia #4 Gear Box 4/18/97 18,310 1997 5825.08 36,136

Page 21 of 35243 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Replace 4 Bearings, 2 Bevel Gears & 1 Pinion 10/21/04 26,812 2004 7115.08 43,322

            Shaft  ‐ Effluent Pump #4 Gear Box rebuild

          Bearing & Seal Replacements  #4 Gearbox  Dahl‐Beck 06/30/13 29,995 2013 9546.67 36,121

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Timken Gears & Service  50% PP#1&2 06/30/13 63,604 2013 9546.67 76,593

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Timken Gears & Service  PP#3 08/16/13 70,523 2013 9546.67 84,925

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Remove & Replace ‐ DW Nicholson 08/31/13 7,495 2013 9546.67 9,026

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ #4 Right‐Angle Drive ‐ Travel Reimb DAS 08/31/13 2,485 2013 9546.67 2,992

          Effluent Pump #4 Back Stop Clutch (OLSD) 04/30/16 11,341 2016 10385.00 12,554

          Effluent Pump #4 Rebuild & Convert to Grease ‐filled Vertical (OLSD) 06/30/16 1,589 2016 10385.00 1,759

          75KW Generator Overhaul 10/29/12 3,548 2012 9308.17 4,382

          Standby Power At OLEPS 3/29/18 195 2018 11062.00 203

          OLEPS 4" Hellan Strainer Replacement75KW Generator Overhaul (Misc 07/29/13 6,003 2013 9546.67 7,229

          Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement Phase 1 (Trihydro Corp) 06/30/16 15,396 2016 10385.00 17,043

          Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement Phase 1 (Trihydro Corp & labor 06/30/17 57,637 2017 10737.00 61,713

          AST Above Ground Diesel Storage At OLEPS 06/30/18 194,223 2018 11062.00 201,849

          UST Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement 06/30/18 52,874 2018 11062.00 54,950

          UST Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement 06/30/18 52,874 2018 11062.00 54,950

          Day Tank Upgrade @OLEPS (Calcon) 06/30/17 6,586 2017 10737.00 7,052

          Day Tank Upgrade @OLEPS (Calcon) 06/30/18 14,716 2018 11062.00 15,294

            Total ‐ Oro Loma Pump Station 8,250,102 21,101,832

     ALVARADO PUMP STATION

          Earthwork 2/25/82 110,181 1982 3825.00 331,157

          Structure 2/25/82 280,628 1982 3825.00 843,447

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 2/25/82 191,653 1982 3825.00 576,027

          Electrical 2/25/82 243,567 1982 3825.00 732,058

          HVAC 2/25/82 32,059 1982 3825.00 96,356

          Piping‐Undergound 2/25/82 280,128 1982 3825.00 841,945

          Piping‐Above Ground 2/25/82 77,119 1982 3825.00 231,787

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 2/25/82 715 1982 3825.00 2,149

          Flo Magmeter Sensor &Indicator 9/17/90 4,571 1990 4731.92 11,105

Page 22 of 35244 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Building Repair‐Earthquake damage 2/07/91 10,848 1991 4835.08 25,793

          AEPS Interior Painting 09/24/10 10,360 2010 8798.92 13,536

          AEPS Operation & Infrastructure Optimization Proj PP#1‐3 06/30/12 24,996 2012 9308.17 30,872

          AEPS Operation & Infrastructure Optimization Proj PP#4‐8 12/31/12 27,692 2012 9308.17 34,202

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐ 9/12/91 149 1991 4835.08 354

           Model #8060 (1/5cost)

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐ 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

           Model #9060 (1/5cost)

          Test Pump Calibrator & 5/06/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Gauge (1/5cost)

         MCC #4 Replacement Project 05/11 5/14/92 88,179 1992 4984.83 203,363

          DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 5/31/11 161 2011 9069.83 204

          Rebuild Pump #4 08/27/93 9,621 1993 5210.42 21,228

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 01/31/94 1,637 1994 5407.58 3,480

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (35%) 01/23/97 59,607 1997 5825.08 117,640

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (35%) 01/23/97 2,016 1997 5825.08 3,979

          Seismic Upgrade (D.W. Nicholson) 01/23/97 85,536 1997 5825.08 168,813

          Seismic Upgrade (D.W. Nicholson) 01/23/97 17,464 1997 5825.08 34,467

          ALVARADO EFFLUENT PUMP STATION UPGRADE $570,820

              06/30/95 $ 329,511 1995  329,511 1995 5471.17 692,386

              06/30/96    241,309 1996   241,309 1996 5622.17 0

          UNALLOCATED 1996  18,820 1996 5622.17 38,483

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 1 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 2 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 12/25/13‐03/24/14 PP#1‐3 (Beeche 03/24/14 7,755 2014 9806.00 9,092

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 08/24/14‐05/24/15 PP#4‐9 (Beeche 06/30/15 3,218 2015 10335.00 3,579

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 06/25/15‐06/30/16 PP#10‐18 (Beec 06/30/16 6,105 2016 10385.00 6,758

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2 replacement 150 hp (Royal Wholesale E 12/21/15 24,880 2015 10335.00 27,676

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2 replacement 150 hp (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 12,410 2016 10385.00 13,738

          Design & Installation of VFD #2 12/24/16 19,199 2016 10385.00 21,254

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 3 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

Page 23 of 35245 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 4 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 5 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 6 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 12/25/13‐03/24/14 PP#1‐3 (Beeche 03/24/14 7,755 2014 9806.00 9,092

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 08/24/14‐05/24/15 PP#4‐9 (Beeche 06/30/15 3,218 2015 10335.00 3,580

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 06/25/15‐06/30/16 PP#10‐18 (Beec 06/30/16 6,105 2016 10385.00 6,758

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 6 replacement 250 hp (Royal Wholesale E 12/21/15 52,871 2015 10335.00 58,812

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 6 replacement 250 hp (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 12,410 2016 10385.00 13,738

          Design & Installation of VFD #6 12/24/16 19,199 2016 10385.00 21,254

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 1 01/27/97 1,280 1997 5825.08 2,526

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 2 03/14/03 1,280 2003 6694.58 2,198

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 3 03/14/03 1,280 2003 6694.58 2,198

          Pump Room Vent Fan 03/14/03 3,000 2003 6694.58 5,152

          Alvarado Effluent Flow Meter 01/27/97 50,000 1997 5825.08 98,679

          PLC No. 1 01/27/97 13,000 1997 5825.08 25,657

          PLC No. 1 ‐ Programming & installation of new PLC 12/31/09 63,246 2009 8570.08 84,841

          PL Controller 4 MB (purchased from USD) 10/31/13 7,073 2013 9546.67 8,517

          PLC No. 2 01/27/97 13,000 1997 5825.08 25,657

          Trolley & Hoist Motors 01/27/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 1 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          125 HP Reliance Motor No. 1 ‐ Inspect & Repair (Vincent Electric Motor 06/30/15 4,657 2015 10335.00 5,180

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 2 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 3 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 4 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 5 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Inspect & Repair 01/27/97 5,233 1997 5825.08 10,328

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 18,015 2018 11062.00 18,722

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Testing 06/30/18 513 2018 11062.00 533

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Balance impellar, shaft & coupling 05/31/15 1,658 2015 10335.00 1,845

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Temporary Impeller Repairs  08/12/15 3,220 2015 10335.00 3,582

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Repair Cracked Impeller 10/12/15 9,426 2015 10335.00 10,485

Page 24 of 35246 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Hydraulic Profile Study @AEPS PP#1‐4 (Carollo Engineers Inc) 05/31/16 16,840 2016 10385.00 18,642

          Payroll DAS & HC ‐ Pump #1 05/31/17 471 2017 10737.00 504

          Payroll ‐ Pump #1 05/31/17 698 2017 10737.00 747

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 99,340 2018 11062.00 103,240

          Effluent Pump No. 4 ‐ rebuild 09/14/09 14,048 2009 8570.08 18,845

          Effluent Pump No. 4 ‐ rebuild 10/24/02 5,144 2002 6538.00 9,045

          Effluent Pump No. 5 ‐ rebuild 03/31/05 11,263 2005 7446.08 17,389

          Effluent Pump No. 6 11/07/02 87,000 2002 6538.00 152,979

          Effluent Pump No. 6 ‐ Impeller repair 01/27/97 6,592 1997 5825.08 13,010

          Effluent Pump Motor #6 ‐ Rebuild Fairbanks Morse pumpInspect & Rep 05/25/05 22,325 2005 7446.08 34,468

          Payroll ‐ Pump #6 05/31/17 646 2017 10737.00 692

          Effluent Pump No. 6 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 44,562 2018 11062.00 46,312

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 06/30/18 1,641 2018 11062.00 1,705

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 186 1998 5920.42 361

          Rebuild Electric Motor 07/23/98 5,488 1998 5920.42 10,657

          2 Milltronics Level Sensors & installation 07/31/95 5,632 1995 5471.17 11,834

          USD Surge Tower Level Indicator 11/21/96 2,121 1996 5622.17 4,337

          Level Transducer ‐ Removed & Installed 02/20/97 1,611 1997 5825.08 3,179

          #2 Pump Impellar Replacement 09/30/08 9,336 2008 8309.92 12,916

          Surge Tower Level Transducer 03/06/97 1,184 1997 5825.08 2,337

          Repair Surge Tower Steps‐New Handrail 05/19/97 3,402 1997 5825.08 6,714

          Pump Station Control Valve Operator 01/29/99 8,560 1999 6059.50 16,240

          Pump Station Control System Modification 01/31/02 30,000 2002 6538.00 52,751

          Pump Station Control System Modification 09/30/02 9,292 2002 6538.00 16,339

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 09/30/02 839 2002 6538.00 1,475

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 07/31/02 811 2002 6538.00 1,426

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 02/19/04 839 2004 7115.08 1,356

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 07/31/02 849 2002 6538.00 1,493

          Level Control Transducer ‐ Spare 05/20/04 559 2004 7115.08 903

          Overhead Crane & Hoist ‐ Pumps 05/20/04 5,693 2004 7115.08 9,199

          Station HMI Control 01/16/04 1,575 2004 7115.08 2,545

Page 25 of 35247 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/30/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/17/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/17/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 06/17/04 542 2004 7115.08 876

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ PLC CPU repair 08/31/05 1,953 2005 7446.08 3,015

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 01/31/06 1,458 2006 7751.25 2,162

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 09/29/06 1,459 2006 7751.25 2,164

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System 09/29/06 636 2006 7751.25 943

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System 04/30/07 1,402 2007 7967.00 2,023

          Emergency Outfall Valve ‐ Valve Renewal 02/20/08 7,555 2008 8309.92 10,452

          Bearing Replacement Effluent Pump No. 4 11/12/09 4,606 2009 8570.08 6,179

          Check Valve Dampeners 03/20/97 9,010 1997 5825.08 17,782

          Refurbish Pump No. 1 Check Valve 07/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Refurbish Pump No. 2 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Refurbish Pump No. 3 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          30" Check Valve #4 Repairs @AEPS 03/31/09 11,819 2009 8570.08 15,855

          Refurbish Pump No. 4 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Inspect damaged Pump No. 4 Check Valve 12/31/12 2,500 2012 9308.17 3,088

          30" Apco Series 6000 Swing Check Valve #4 (Frank Olsen Co) 10/03/13 48,925 2013 9546.67 58,917

          Remove & Install Check Valve #4 labor & materials (DW Nicholson) 11/30/13 15,830 2013 9546.67 19,063

          Refurbish Pump No. 5 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,666 2010 8798.92 15,242

          Refurbish Pump No. 6 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,666 2010 8798.92 15,242

          AEPS VFD Assessment 02/28/13 360 2013 9546.67 434

          Electrical Engineering Services Switchboard 4 Tech Memo (Beecher Eng 08/13/16 1,080 2016 10385.00 1,196

            Total ‐ Alvarado Pump Station 3,249,963 7,140,784

DATA ACQUISITION SYSTEM

   Old System Disposed of

      Software, Testing, Training 6/3/82 43,881 1982 3825.00 131,887

      Electrical & Hardware 6/3/82 93,212 1982 3825.00 280,155

   New system

Page 26 of 35248 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

      IBM ‐ AT  6/3/82 5,317 1982 3825.00 15,981

      Electrical & Harware 3/1/87 41,656 1987 4406.00 108,690

      Electrical & Harware‐Radios 6/30/87 2,264 1987 4406.00 5,907

      Epson Printer FX286E 10/31/87 593 1987 4406.00 1,547

      Remote 515 Board  8/2/88 1,472 1988 4519.00 3,745

      USA Telecommunications Systems  8/11/88 513 1988 4519.00 1,305

      Install of Printer Line  2/22/89 59 1989 4615.00 147

      Epson FX‐28 Printer  3/8/89 385 1989 4615.00 959

      Compaq‐Plus Computer  7/10/89 1,517 1989 4615.00 3,779

      Practical Perepherals 2400 Baud 8/31/89 246 1989 4615.00 613

       MNP5 External Modem

      Equinet Version 4.0 ‐ Calc Package 11/02/90 1,609 1990 4731.92 3,909

       and Manual

      Printer, Epson Model FX‐10 11/07/90 405 1990 4731.92 984

      Printer, Epson Model FX‐10 8/06/91 405 1991 4835.08 963

      386 Computer with Upgrade for 8/06/91 4,049 1991 4835.08 9,627

       Telemetry System

      DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 1/30/92 348 1992 4984.83 803

      4 Communications Antennas 8/27/93 646 1993 5210.42 1,425

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/96 9/16/93 24,609 1993 5210.42 54,298

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 11,795 1998 5920.42 22,904

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 2,808 1998 5920.42 5,453

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#1 03/31/08) 07/23/98 20,746 1998 5920.42 40,285

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#2 05/30/08) 03/19/09 40,372 2009 8570.08 54,157

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#3 10/07/08) 03/19/09 13,667 2009 8570.08 18,334

EBDA SCADA Polling PLC Upgrade @Admin Office 11/30/11 22,340 2011 9069.83 28,317

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#4 03/25/09) 03/19/09 23,515 2009 8570.08 31,544

     SCADA System Radios (5) 03/19/09 6,761 2009 8570.08 9,070

     Antenna and Installation for SCADA 08/31/15 4,653 2015 10335.00 5,176

     Upgrade Wireless Communications 10/30/15 6,281 2015 10335.00 6,987

     Upgrades & Corrections to SCADA Radio ‐ Refurbish Serial Wireless Comm 12/30/15 1,190 2015 10335.00 1,323

     Upgrade SCADA Software to Win911 12/31/15 1,329 2015 10335.00 1,478

Page 27 of 35249 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     Upgrade SCADA 06/30/17 5,583 2017 10737.00 5,978

     EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ Radio (Calcon) 12/18/09 4,151 2009 8570.08 5,568

     EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ Radio (Calcon) 09/08/10 722 2010 8798.92 943

     SCADA System Communication Upgrade  06/30/18 11,115 2018 11062.00 11,551

     PC for Scada (R‐Computer) & Setup of PC & Citect (Calcon) 05/31/15 4,418 2015 10335.00 4,914

     EBDA Scada Server Replacement (R‐Computer) 08/27/13 3,474 2013 9546.67 4,183

     EBDA Scada Server Software & Hardware Update 09/26/13 2,656 2013 9546.67 3,198

      Citect SCADA Software 09/24/10 1,277 2010 8798.92 1,668

     SCADA System Upgrade 06/30/18 45,002 2018 11062.00 46,769

     SCADA System Upgrade 06/30/18 14,076 2018 11062.00 14,629

      EBDA SCADA Alarm System 10/30/95 3,308 1995 5471.17 6,951

      EBDA SCADA Alarm System 03/31/03 7,113 2003 6694.58 12,215

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 (Wonderware NorCal) 02/04/14 1,909 2014 9806.00 2,238

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 ‐ Installation (Calcon) 02/28/14 2,261 2014 9806.00 2,651

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 ‐ Labor ‐ troubleshoot (Calcon) 06/30/14 1,147 2014 9806.00 1,345

      SCADA Alarm Notification Software ‐ TopView 05/17/18 3,819 2018 11062.00 3,969

      LAVWMA SCADA Connection 03/31/03 6,983 2003 6694.58 11,992

      LAVWMA SCADA Connection 07/23/98 324 1998 5920.42 629

      Smart UPS 400 Power Backup ‐  SCADA 07/23/98 327 1998 5920.42 635

     Maintenance Monitoring Standard System Software 11/06/96 2,165 1996 5622.17 4,427

     Report Printer for Citect SCADA System 02/20/97 262 1997 5825.08 517

     CMMS Program Upgrade, Davison Software 10/28/99 1,082 1999 6059.50 2,053

     DAS Dell Computer, Monitor & UPS (Scada) 08/31/00 4,271 2000 6221.17 7,893

     EBDA Network Server 05/28/02 4,769 2002 6538.00 8,386

            Total ‐ Data Acquisition System 510,856 1,017,053

RECLAMATION FACILITIES

     SKYWEST GOLF COURSE IRRIGATION

          Earthwork 4/19/84 25,962 1984 4146.00 71,989

          Structure 4/19/84 215,344 1984 4146.00 597,120

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 4/19/84 55,005 1984 4146.00 152,522

Page 28 of 35250 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Electrical 4/19/84 54,958 1984 4146.00 152,391

          Piping‐Underground 4/19/84 241,921 1984 4146.00 670,815

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/19/84 23,802 1984 4146.00 66,000

          Skywest Chlorine Analyzer 4/19/84 5,041 1984 4146.00 13,978

          Rebuild Analyzer, Parts & Labor 7/21/92 1,900 1992 4984.83 4,382

          Sky West Chlorine Analyzer 6/30/01 7,892 2001 6342.08 14,306

          Skywest Motor Control Center Modification 9/30/04 2,860 2004 7115.08 4,621

          Sky West Pump No. 1 Motor 10/28/93 3,095 1993 5210.42 6,829

          Sky West Pump No. 1 4/30/02 4,378 2002 6538.00 7,698

          Sky West Pump No. 1 (Calcon) 06/30/17 11,485 2017 10737.00 12,298

          Sky West Pump No. 2 Motor 4/30/02 3,095 2002 6538.00 5,442

          Sky West Pump No. 2 4/30/02 4,378 2002 6538.00 7,698

          Sky West Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 06/30/17 11,485 2017 10737.00 12,298

          Limitorque Valve Actuator 4/30/02 2,310 2002 6538.00 4,062

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 10/02/02 5,205 2002 6538.00 9,152

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 10/31/02 580 2002 6538.00 1,020

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 01/31/03 1,467 2003 6694.58 2,519

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 12/31/02 1,288 2002 6538.00 2,265

          Sky West Mixer Motor (North) Baldor 5hp 12/31/02 806 2002 6538.00 1,417

          Sky West Mixer Motor (South) Baldor 5hp 03/30/05 806 2005 7446.08 1,244

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) 03/30/05 1,594 2005 7446.08 2,461

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Bearing sets etc. 04/28/05 996 2005 7446.08 1,538

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Gear box & misc. 05/31/05 1,266 2005 7446.08 1,955

          Sky West Mixer Gears (South) 06/30/05 1,594 2005 7446.08 2,461

          Sky West Mixer Gears (South) ‐ Bearing sets etc. 04/28/05 995 2005 7446.08 1,536

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Gear box & misc. 05/31/05 1,266 2005 7446.08 1,955

          Sky West Hypo Control System Upgrade 05/31/13 20,995 2013 9546.67 25,283

          Sky West Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Relocation 03/31/15 7,535 2015 10335.00 8,381

          Sky West Hypo CL2 Dosing Line 08/31/15 8,912 2015 10335.00 9,914

          Gate Valve 8" at Recycle Line ‐ Furnish & Install 06/24/16 3,773 2016 10385.00 4,176

          Sky West Total Residual Analyzer 04/30/13 5,144 2013 9546.67 6,194

          Ultrasonic Level Transmitter & installation  (Calcon) 06/14/17 8,573 2017 10737.00 9,180

Page 29 of 35251 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

            Total ‐ Reclamation Facilities 747,707 1,897,100

SUBSURFACE LINES

     BAY OUTFALL 1982  19,464,081 1982 3825.00 58,500,682

     Valve for Marina Meter Box 4/1/81 1,880 1981 3535.00 6,114

     LAVWMA Valve Vault 8/8/91 134,946 1991 4835.08 320,859

     Air/Vac Valve Project 11/3/93 1,442 1993 5210.42 3,182

     Air/Vac Valve Project 05/31/94 1,443 1994 5407.58 3,068

     Air/Vac Valve Project 05/31/94 1,443 1994 5407.58 3,068

F.M. and Bay Outfall Inspection 05/31/94 25,446 1994 5407.58 54,097

Fuel (Gasoline) Transfer Pump 06/01/95 374 1995 5471.17 786

Raise Manholes H‐O ARV Key B Sta 20+05 03/20/97 2,028 1997 5825.08 4,002

Custom Clamps (3) for Outfall Pipe (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 27,768 2016 10385.00 30,739

Custom Clamps (3) for Outfall Pipe (DW Nicholson) 08/18/16 1,461 2016 10385.00 1,618

SAN LEANDRO TO MARINA FORCE MAIN 1982  3,699,150 1982 3825.00 11,118,059

Blow‐Off Valves 4/1/81 2,527 1981 3535.00 8,218

Air/Vac Valves 1/8/91 6,314 1991 4835.08 15,013

MARINA TO ORO LOMA FORCE MAIN 4/8/91 5,410,434 1991 4835.08 12,864,313

          Blow‐Off Valves 4/1/81 2,526 1981 3535.00 8,215

          Air/Vac Valves 1/8/91 6,314 1991 4835.08 15,013

          Air/Vac Release Valve M‐O A/V Valve Key 4/8/91 6,391 1991 4835.08 15,196

            Sta 60+00  01/26/00 2000 6221.17 0

          Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vacuum Release Valve 02/19/04 6,745 2004 7115.08 10,898

            Sta 71+00 

     ORO LOMA TO HAYWARD FORCE MAIN

          Piping‐Underground 1982  2,734,664 1982  3825.00 8,219,227

          Cathodic Protection 4/1/81 9,504 1981 3535.00 30,908

          Air/Vac Valves 3/21/85 4,154 1985 4195.00 11,384

     HAYWARD TO ALVARADO FORCE MAIN 11/09/93

          Piping‐Underground 11/09/93 8,363,252 1993 5210.42 18,452,754

          Cathodic Protection 04/01/81 9,504 1981 3535.00 30,908

Page 30 of 35252 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 4" Air Relaease Valve 03/21/85 2,331 1985 4195.00 6,388

          H‐A A/V Valve Key P Sta 249+19

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 4" Air Relaease Valve 04/30/05 2,331 2005 7446.08 3,599

          H‐A A/V Valve Key S Sta 268+94

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 04/30/05 6,377 2005 7446.08 9,846

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 08/11/08 6,377 2008 8309.92 8,822

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 08/11/08 6,377 2008 8309.92 8,822

New Galvanic Anodes & Replace Flush Test Station w/ 08/11/08 5,000 2008 8309.92 6,917

  Post Mounted Test Station

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 12/15/10 3,121 2010 8798.92 4,078

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,298 2011 9069.83 4,180

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,785 2011 9069.83 4,798

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,349 2011 9069.83 4,245

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 10/14/11 3,842 2011 9069.83 4,870

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 10/14/11 3,842 2011 9069.83 4,870

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,454 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,454 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,453 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,652 2012 9308.17 4,510

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,651 2012 9308.17 4,509

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 59+63 03/18/14 6,850 2014 9806.00 8,031

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 51+43 FM37 Hayward Marsh 10/01/14 8,400 2014 9806.00 9,848

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 70+85 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 21+58 11/17/14 4,712 2014 9806.00 5,524

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 70+48 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 13+56 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Vaults, Ebda & Lavwma ‐ Epoxy Coat Vault for Transport System 11/12/15 54,576 2015 10335.00 60,709

Page 31 of 35253 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     COMPLETION CONTRACTS

          Piping‐Underground 12/31/84 0 1984 4146.00 0

     SEISMIC DESIGN SBG/C&D 01/23/97 11,647 1997 5825.08 22,986

            Total ‐ Subsurface Lines 40,111,302 109,966,930

OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

      Laser Access Switch 330

      Pacific Data 2 Meg HP Laser Jet II  4/10/90 321 1990 4731.92 780

       Ram Cartridge

      Word Processing Typewriter, 11/02/90 263 1990 4731.92 639

       Smith Corona 640DLD

      Chair, Hi‐Back Executive 10/25/91 941 1991 4835.08 2,237

      Chair, Guest 10/25/91 724 1991 4835.08 1,721

      Credenza, Martin Furn Model C67‐1 10/25/91 734 1991 4835.08 1,745

      Bookcase, Orman Grubb Mod ORM C784 10/28/91 226 1991 4835.08 537

      Chairs, Desk (5) 10/28/91 541 1991 4835.08 1,286

      Chairs, Armed Swivel Tilt (2) 11/04/91 371 1991 4835.08 882

      Chair, Armed Swivel Tilt (1) 11/01/91 181 1991 4835.08 430

      Transcribing Machine 11/08/91 292 1991 4835.08 694

      Archive Storage ‐ Records Shelving 12/29/92 1,642 1992 4984.83 3,787

      Archive Storage ‐ Records Shelving 01/24/94 862 1994 5407.58 1,833

      Archive Storage ‐ Ladder 08/13/93 412 1993 5210.42 909

      2 Disc Holders ‐ Fireking 08/13/93 561 1993 5210.42 1,238

      Software Upgrades 12/20/93 630 1993 5210.42 1,390

      American Fundware Acctg Software Upgrades V7.20 07/14/94 2,232 1994 5407.58 4,745

      Canon L777 Fax 05/31/03 3,042 2003 6694.58 5,224

      Records Retention Software 08/26/94 6,490 1994 5407.58 13,797

      Records Management Software (Versatile) 09/12/94 1,754 1994 5407.58 3,729

      Active File Storage 11/15/02 1,442 2002 6538.00 2,536

      Archive File Storage 10/14/94 990 1994 5407.58 2,105

      Binding Machine ‐ 1st Impressions 10/14/94 296 1994 5407.58 629

Page 32 of 35254 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

      Bookcase ‐ Admin Asst's office 03/27/95 667 1995 5471.17 1,402

      Conference Table 09/19/95 636 1995 5471.17 1,336

      Sharp Wizard Scheduler/Calculator (replacement) 10/05/95 355 1995 5471.17 746

      Computer Equipment CCRWRP for O&M Mgr 03/31/96 2,869 1996 5622.17 5,867

      Dell ErgoBoard 108‐Key Win 95/98 Keyboard F8E208 07/11/95 24 1995 5471.17 50

      HP Laser Jet Printer 4V 04/11/01 2,045 2001 6342.08 3,707

     AFW Extended Report Writer Software 11/22/95 320 1995 5471.17 672

     HP 1600C Desk Jet Color Printer 10/03/96 1,407 1996 5622.17 2,877

     External Modem MT1932ZDX for USA 02/05/97 222 1997 5825.08 438

     Canon NP 6551 Copier 05/20/98 0 1998 5920.42 0

     Sharp MX5111N Copier/Printer/Scanner 02/28/13 12,480 2013 9546.67 15,029

     Konica Bizhub C558 Copier/Printer/Scanner 06/14/18 12,803 2018 11062.00 13,305

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Tape/Software GM 12/21/07 3,001 2007 7967.00 4,330

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Tape/Software Admin 01/15/99 2,372 1999 6059.50 4,500

     Dell Inspiron 3500/Software/Acc Scada Laptop 01/15/99 2,916 1999 6059.50 5,532

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Zip/Software Acctg 01/15/99 2,238 1999 6059.50 4,246

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  Acctg 01/15/99 127 1999 6059.50 241

     Dell Precision 340, 2.3 GHz Acctg Computer & UPS 01/15/99 2,446 1999 6059.50 4,641

        (Converted to Server 01/15/09)

     Dell XPS 420 , Q9400(2.66GHZ),DCT, 6MB  (11/14/08) 12/01/02 1,778 2002 6538.00 3,126

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  GM 01/15/09 127 2009 8570.08 170

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  Admin 01/15/99 127 1999 6059.50 241

     Dell Scada Laptop Accessories 01/15/99 86 1999 6059.50 163

     Epson FX‐2180 Dot Matrix Printer‐Acctg 01/15/99 581 1999 6059.50 1,102

     ATS Communications Telephone System 02/26/99 11,942 1999 6059.50 22,657

     Deluxe ESI Telephone System @ Admin office 09/23/99 4,603 1999 6059.50 8,733

     Multi Task Arm Chair 10/29/09 346 2009 8570.08 464

     Network Equipment ‐ Dell Office Connect 16 Port 09/25/00 529 2000 6221.17 978

       10/100 Dual Speed Hub, 3 3Com Fast Etherlink 03/27/01 2001 6342.08 0

       10/100 PCI NIC w/WOL & Cables

     Dell Jet Direct 300X Office Connect Ext, 10/100 04/04/01 265 2001 6342.08 480

       Base‐TX Single Port J4101B#ABA Switcher for printer

Page 33 of 35255 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     Dell Back‐UPS 500 BK500MC 04/04/01 164 2001 6342.08 297

     Dell Dimension 4100 Series, Pentium III, 19" 04/11/01 2,649 2001 6342.08 4,802

        Monitor & Upgrades

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ General Manager 04/23/01 103 2001 6342.08 187

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ Operations Manager 06/14/02 103 2002 6538.00 181

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ Operations Manager 06/14/02 330 2002 6538.00 580

     Label maker & adapter 02/19/04 219 2004 7115.08 354

     Dell Dimension 8300 + UPS O&M Mgr 09/19/02 2,162 2002 6538.00 3,802

     HPdx2400 PC Harddrive ‐ O&M Mgr 04/07/04 567 2004 7115.08 916

     Dell Dimension 8300 + UPS Admin Asst 06/22/09 2,162 2009 8570.08 2,900

     Dell Latitude D630 Laptop & Accessories ‐ CSL Operator 04/07/04 2,009 2004 7115.08 3,246

     HP5500C Flatbed Scanner 11/17/08 335 2008 8309.92 463

     HP4600dn Color Laser Printer 04/07/04 2,734 2004 7115.08 4,418

     Brother Intellifax‐4100 Laser 04/07/04 299 2004 7115.08 483

     Dell XPS 400 Computer System ‐ GM 08/31/05 2,860 2005 7446.08 4,416

     Computer System ‐ Create Build w/ Acer 24"LCD Monitor GM 12/07/05 1,595 2005 7446.08 2,463

     Dell Lattitude, D620 Laptop & Accessories 05/12/11 0 2011 9069.83 0

     HP 6735b Business Notebook ‐ GM 8/07/06 964 2006 7751.25 1,430

     Canon SD850 IS 8MB Digital Camera 05/30/09 304 2009 8570.08 408

     BenQ MP512 Projector 12/06/07 549 2007 7967.00 792

     Equipment to Upgrade Internet Services @ EBDA Opr & Admin Bldg 02/25/15 1,537 2015 10335.00 1,709

     Backup Generator @ Admin Office 05/28/09 19,950 2009 8570.08 26,762

            Total ‐ Office Furniture & Equipment 134,183 220,518

FIELD EQUIPMENT

      Survey Equipment 12/1/81 823 1981 3535.00 2,677

      Portable Sump Pump 12/1/81 527 1981 3535.00 1,714

      Pressure Recorders 8/16/83 2,131 1983 4066.00 6,025

      Oxygen Alarm 5/1/87 1,514 1987 4406.00 3,950

      Orion Oxygen Meter 9/7/88 980 1988 4519.00 2,493

      2‐Oki 900 Portable Cellular Phones 2/22/90 2,669 1990 4731.92 6,484

Page 34 of 35256 of 401



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

       w/ accessories

      Electronic Metering Pump 4/23/91 955 1991 4835.08 2,271

      Emergency Standby Generator‐175KW 4/23/91 57,911 1991 4835.08 137,694

       Caterpillar Genset Model 3208

      Temperature Sensor for Electrical Systems 6/11/91 693 1991 4835.08 1,648

      Spray Painting Equipment 10/23/92 362 1992 4984.83 835

      Fischer & Porter Programmer 11/09/92 1,624 1992 4984.83 3,745

      Camera & Accessories ‐ Yashica 5/31/93 206 1993 5210.42 455

      Meter Calibrator Kit 12/03/93 658 1993 5210.42 1,452

            Total ‐ Field Equipment 71,053 171,443

AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT

      Ford Ranger XL 4WD Truck 1999 06/17/99 0 1999 6059.50 0

      Ford Ranger 4WD & Tool Box 2007 08/31/07 19,718 2007 7967.00 28,453

          Total ‐ Automotive Equipment 19,718 28,453

TOTALS 60,471,959 157,342,690

Page 35 of 35257 of 401



APPENDIX D

Water Use & Estimated Wastewater Demand

Per Single Family & Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit

258 of 401



Table D‐1

Union Sanitary District 2005/06 ‐ 2008/09

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Single Family Residential

Estimated Average  Average  Estimated Average  Average 

Single Family Annual  Monthly  Single Family Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd)  Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd) 

2005/06 2006/07

Jul 31,917,962 69,636 458 Jul 32,032,430 70,091 457

Aug 28,981,378 69,636 416 Aug 31,714,390 70,091 452

Sep 26,440,793 69,636 380 Sep 26,363,887 70,091 376

Oct 24,453,641 69,636 351 Oct 21,644,122 70,091 309

Nov 18,684,974 69,636 268 Nov 17,560,983 70,091 251

Dec 15,917,410 69,636 229 Dec 16,768,230 70,091 239

Jan 16,549,794 69,636 238 Jan 16,739,586 70,091 239

Feb 13,353,399 69,636 192 Feb 15,768,051 70,091 225

Mar 13,690,339 69,636 197 Mar 18,586,703 70,091 265

Apr 18,306,106 69,636 263 Apr 20,133,252 70,091 287

May 24,499,917 69,636 352 May 26,058,618 70,091 372

Jun 28,161,814 69,636 404 Jun 29,211,011 70,091 417

Total 260,957,525 69,636 312 Total 272,581,263 70,091 324

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 214 Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 238

2007/08 2008/09

Jul 27,619,267 70,857 390 Jul 27,582,753 71,085 388

Aug 27,770,560 70,857 392 Aug 27,454,617 71,085 386

Sep 25,557,682 70,857 361 Sep 24,635,000 71,085 347

Oct 20,453,942 70,857 289 Oct 19,661,080 71,085 277

Nov 17,847,497 70,857 252 Nov 18,132,509 71,085 255

Dec 17,862,409 70,857 252 Dec 17,813,336 71,085 251

Jan 16,234,270 70,857 229 Jan 15,111,216 71,085 213

Feb 15,039,885 70,857 212 Feb 13,907,274 71,085 196

Mar 19,405,819 70,857 274 Mar 17,279,816 71,085 243

Apr 21,591,617 70,857 305 Apr 19,390,157 71,085 273

May 25,701,180 70,857 363 May 24,777,456 71,085 349
Jun 28,635,732 70,857 404 Jun 25,970,982 71,085 365

Total 263,719,860 70,857 310 Total 251,716,198 71,085 295

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 236 Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 225

4‐Year Average Use for 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 228

259 of 401



Table D‐2 2017/18 ‐ 2018/19

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Single Family Residential

Single Family Est Average Average 

Residential Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd) 

2017/18

Jul 18,853,129 73,231 257

Aug 19,630,068 73,231 268

Sep 17,922,698 73,231 245

Oct 16,329,720 73,231 223

Nov 13,867,265 73,231 189

Dec 13,017,312 73,231 178

Jan 13,690,092 73,231 187

Feb 11,686,185 73,231 160

Mar 12,399,927 73,231 169

Apr 13,366,887 73,231 183

May 16,463,492 73,231 225

Jun 18,235,504 73,231 249

Total 185,462,281 73,231 211

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 173

2018/19

Jul 19,128,308 73,530 260

Aug 19,674,781 73,530 268

Sep 17,394,444 73,530 237

Oct 16,552,168 73,530 225

Nov 14,839,729 73,530 202

Dec 12,666,909 73,530 172

Jan 12,548,351 73,530 171

Feb 11,062,141 73,530 150

Mar 11,946,304 73,530 162

Apr 12,830,435 73,530 174

May 10,746,755 73,530 146
Jun n/a 73,530 n/a

Total 159,390,327 73,530 197

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 164

2‐Year Average of 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 169

Note: Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use 

was partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared state 

of drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017.

260 of 401



Table 4 2005/06 ‐ 2008/09

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Multi‐Family Residential

Estimated Estimated Average  Estimated Estimated Average 

Multi‐Family Annual  Monthly  Multi‐Family Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts
1 
Use (gpd)  Use (gpd) Accounts

1 
Use (gpd) 

2005/06 2006/07

Jul 8,680,492 33,863 256 Jul 8,861,092 34,192 259

Aug 8,717,198 33,863 257 Aug 8,860,478 34,192 259

Sep 8,257,184 33,863 244 Sep 8,347,415 34,192 244

Oct 7,236,807 33,863 214 Oct 7,612,253 34,192 223

Nov 6,007,978 33,863 177 Nov 6,491,403 34,192 190

Dec 6,004,021 33,863 177 Dec 6,600,660 34,192 193

Jan 7,054,528 33,863 208 Jan 6,582,734 34,192 193

Feb 6,015,573 33,863 178 Feb 6,002,018 34,192 176

Mar 5,328,796 33,863 157 Mar 6,936,123 34,192 203

Apr 6,080,335 33,863 180 Apr 6,800,171 34,192 199

May 7,645,838 33,863 226 May 7,646,349 34,192 224

Jun 8,182,595 33,863 242 Jun 8,180,212 34,192 239

Total 85,211,345 33,863 210 Total 88,920,907 34,192 217

Avg Use for 4 Low Months 180 Avg Use for 4 Low Months 188

2007/08 2008/09

Jul 8,314,997 34,350 242 Jul 8,138,530 34,551 236

Aug 8,586,722 34,350 250 Aug 7,965,072 34,551 231

Sep 7,212,264 34,350 210 Sep 7,785,697 34,551 225

Oct 6,327,881 34,350 184 Oct 6,433,373 34,551 186

Nov 6,371,319 34,350 185 Nov 6,074,098 34,551 176

Dec 6,622,925 34,350 193 Dec 6,721,275 34,551 195

Jan 6,763,158 34,350 197 Jan 6,481,160 34,551 188

Feb 6,316,691 34,350 184 Feb 5,782,613 34,551 167

Mar 6,778,513 34,350 197 Mar 6,470,568 34,551 187

Apr 6,637,245 34,350 193 Apr 6,788,251 34,551 196

May 7,842,157 34,350 228 May 7,472,109 34,551 216
Jun 8,795,937 34,350 256 Jun 7,847,913 34,551 227

Total 86,569,809 34,350 210 Total 83,960,657 34,551 203

Avg Use for 4 Low Months 190 Avg Use for 4 Low Months 181

4‐Year Average Use for 4 Lowest Continguous Months (gpd) 185

1 Based on census data for total housing units less number of ACWD single family residences; 

   assumes a 100% occupancy rate.

261 of 401



Table 5 2017/18 ‐ 2018/19

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Multi‐Family Residential

Multi‐Family Estimated Average 

Residential Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd)1 Accounts2
Use (gpd) 

2017/18

Jul 7,362,353 40,842 180

Aug 7,643,045 40,842 187

Sep 7,192,913 40,842 176

Oct 6,765,772 40,842 166

Nov 6,007,598 40,842 147

Dec 5,960,595 40,842 146

Jan 6,471,322 40,842 158

Feb 5,633,821 40,842 138

Mar 5,826,160 40,842 143

Apr 6,060,260 40,842 148

May 6,877,735 40,842 168

Jun 7,044,598 40,842 172

Total 78,846,172 40,842 161

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 146

2018/19

Jul 7,194,161 41,636 173

Aug 7,420,634 41,636 178

Sep 6,835,568 41,636 164

Oct 6,686,958 41,636 161

Nov 6,268,795 41,636 151

Dec 5,795,118 41,636 139

Jan 6,048,515 41,636 145

Feb 5,393,309 41,636 130

Mar 5,647,630 41,636 136

Apr 5,969,257 41,636 143

May 6,755,705 41,636 162
Jun n/a 41,636 n/a

Total 70,015,650 41,636 153

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 137

2‐Year Average of 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 142

1 Excludes water use from Multi‐Family Irrigation meters.

2 Based on census data for total housing units less number of ACWD single family residences; 

   assumes a 100% occupancy rate.

Note: Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use was 

partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared state of 

drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017.

262 of 401



Union Sanitary District

APPENDIX E

20‐Year Capital Improvement Program

263 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage 250 250

800 1 Prog/Des Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops) 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 72,400

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repairs 200 1,500 1,600 3,300

800 3 FMC Storage 300 300

800 3 Des/Constr Plant Paving 200 250 300 200 950

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement 150 150

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700

Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550

Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities 700 10,450 42,500 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,550

Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities 0 50 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200

COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 500 500 500 500 500 2,500

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation 50 1,000 1,050

800 2 Design Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 7,500

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin) 350 3,500 3,850

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin) 300 3,000 3,300

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin) 350 3,500 3,850

900 3 Stevenson at Davis St. 200 1,500 1,700

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750

Total Priority 1 Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050
Total Priority 2 Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000
Total Priority 3 Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700

Total Fund 800 - Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 850 5,000 500 22,050
Total Fund 900 - Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700

1 of 12

264 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250

800 2 Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Transport 300 500 150 150 1,100

900 1 Design Cherry St. PS 400 1,400 1,200 3,000

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington 75 250 550 875

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark 1,500 4,600 10,800 16,900

800 1 Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3 500 500 1,000

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4 550 500 1,050

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation 0

800 3 Hayward Marsh Decommissioning 100 1,000 1,100

800 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375
900 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375

800 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 100 1,050 1,600 2,750
900 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 100 1,050 1,600 2,750

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R 2,150 3,850 1,000 200 7,200

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 2,250

800 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800
900 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025

Total Priority 1 Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

Total Priority 2 Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825

Total Priority 3 Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550

Total Fund 800 - Transport System 1,400 2,750 3,850 2,400 675 6,300 2,150 1,000 2,900 1,550 24,975

Total Fund 900 - Transport System 1,000 2,750 2,800 0 425 2,050 900 2,125 7,350 12,650 32,050

2 of 12

265 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Des/Costr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improvemen 400 1,900 2,000 4,300

800 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500
900 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200

800 2 Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 2 500 3,400 3,900

800 2 Des/Constr Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2 100 700 800

800 2 Des/Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant 75 900 500 150 150 1,775

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300

800 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250
900 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250

800 2 Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement 600 2,400 2,400 5,400

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100

800 2 Contact Tank Improvements 250 250

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements 650 4,400 1,950 7,000

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement 0

800 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650
900 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity 0

800 3 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 400 3,600 4,000

800 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 1,500 1,000 2,500

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab 0

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab 450 4,100 4,550

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab 450 4,300 4,750

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab 400 3,300 3,700

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab 0

3 of 12

266 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

900 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 7 2,000 13,000 10,000 25,000

800 3 Diffuser Replacement 0

800 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650
900 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650

800 2 Flares Replacement 700 5,300 6,000
900 2 Flares Replacement 0

800 2 Headworks Gates 0

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,680 420 2,100
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,120 280 1,400

800 2 MCC Replacement 100 900 50 500 1,550

800 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300
900 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300

800 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950
900 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950

800 1 MP - Effluent Facilities 2,000 3,000 21,400 21,400 47,800

900 1 MP - Plant Equalization Storage 550 1,650 17,300 19,500

800 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0
900 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements 850 1,700 7,500 5,700 1,500 17,250

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements 100 900 1,000

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 700 2,800 3,500
900 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 0

800 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 700 3,500 4,200
900 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 0

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100 150 2,000 500 1,000 3,750

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Projects 2,400 3,000 800 6,200

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775

800 2 Des/Constr Plant Grating Replacement 50 50

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 4,500

800 2 PLC Replacement 250 300 350 900

4 of 12

267 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 400 2,900 1,300 4,600
900 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 0

800 75 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 375 750 4,125 4,125 750 10,125
900 25 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 125 250 1,375 1,375 250 3,375

800 3 Reclaimed Water 0
900 3 Reclaimed Water 0

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 350 3,200 3,550

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 400 3,400 3,800

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures 200 300 300 300 1,100

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150

800 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175
900 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 1,500 12,500 10,000 4,000 28,000

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 3 0

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 100 800 350 1,250
900 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 0

800 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 150 1,000 500 1,650
900 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 0

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation 200 1,700 750 2,650

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 0

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners 500 3,000 4,000 500 8,000

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy 0

Total for TREATMENT PLANT 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant 9,830 33,370 44,775 29,450 72,350 64,125 14,175 17,675 23,550 7,900 317,200
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant 7,445 26,480 29,175 13,150 34,800 25,875 20,325 2,425 6,650 2,300 168,625

5 of 12

268 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

Administrative Facilities 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750
Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750
Transport System 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025
Treatment Plant 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825

GRAND TOTAL 21,925 77,350 125,050 67,900 110,050 99,400 42,850 25,775 48,750 25,300 644,350

R&R (Fund 800) Total 13,480 48,070 92,925 54,750 74,825 71,475 21,625 21,025 33,250 10,350 441,775
Capacity (Fund 900) Total 8,445 29,280 32,125 13,150 35,225 27,925 21,225 4,750 15,500 14,950 202,575

+
Priority 1

Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700
Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050
Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500
Total Priority 1 Projects 12,750 61,050 104,300 50,600 82,250 61,200 20,800 1,850 5,100 0 399,900

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550

Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000
Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825

Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975
Total Priority 2 Projects 8,975 15,550 15,650 14,150 20,750 33,650 16,000 19,425 37,400 24,800 206,350

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500

Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700
Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550

Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350
Total Priority 3 Projects 200 750 5,100 3,150 7,050 4,550 6,050 4,500 6,250 500 38,100

6 of 12

269 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage

800 1 Prog/Des Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops)

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repair

800 3 FMC Storage

800 3 Des/Constr Plant Paving

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities

Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities

Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities

Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities

COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation

800 2 Design Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin)

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin)

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin)

900 3 Stevenson at Davis St.

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM

Total Priority 1 Collection System
Total Priority 2 Collection System
Total Priority 3 Collection System

Total Fund 800 - Collection System
Total Fund 900 - Collection System

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

250

72,400

3,300

300

200 200 200 200 200 1,950

150

150 150
150 150

300 350
300 350

900 1,050
900 1,050

200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700

0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950

200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800

200 300 1,100 0 350 0 200 0 200 0 79,900

0 300 900 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 1,550

500 500 500 500 4,500

1,050

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

3,850

3,300

3,850

1,700

1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 31,550
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

7 of 12

270 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station

800 2 Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Transport

900 1 Design Cherry St. PS

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark

800 1 Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation

800 3 Hayward Marsh Decommissioning

800 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs
900 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs

800 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro
900 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects

800 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management
900 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM

Total Priority 1 Transport System

Total Priority 2 Transport System

Total Priority 3 Transport System

Total Fund 800 - Transport System

Total Fund 900 - Transport System

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

2,500 1,500 4,250
2,500 1,500 4,250

150 150 150 1,550

3,000

875

16,900

1,000

1,050

1,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 53,000

1,100

3,375
3,375

2,750
2,750

4,100
4,100

4,750 100 5,900 10,250 28,200

250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 4,750

800
800

5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650
0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275

5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050

5,000 3,900 14,750 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 105,925
0 2,500 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,050

8 of 12

271 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Des/Costr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improvemen

800 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps
900 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1

800 2 Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 2

800 2 Des/Constr Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2

800 2 Des/Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements

800 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement
900 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement

800 2 Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit

800 2 Contact Tank Improvements

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement

800 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements
900 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity

800 3 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab

800 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

4,300

1,500
1,500

4,200
4,200

3,900

800

150 150 150 150 150 2,525

3,300
3,300

8,250
8,250

5,400

650 1,200
650 1,200

600 750 1,850
600 750 1,850

1,100
1,100

250

7,000

600 3,400 1,400 5,400

8,650
8,650

0

600 5,700 10,300

600 5,300 8,400

450 4,150 4,600

4,550

4,750

600 4,300

550 5,200 5,750

9 of 12

272 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

900 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 7

800 3 Diffuser Replacement

800 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements
900 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements

800 2 Flares Replacement
900 2 Flares Replacement

800 2 Headworks Gates

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement

800 2 MCC Replacement

800 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications
900 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications

800 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers
900 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers

800 1 MP - Effluent Facilities

900 1 MP - Plant Equalization Storage

800 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round)
900 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round)

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear
900 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear

800 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear
900 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Projects

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network

800 2 Des/Constr Plant Grating Replacement

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects

800 2 PLC Replacement

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

25,000

950 750 1,700

650
650

6,000
0

500 3,500 4,000

2,100
1,400

1,550

31,300
31,300

50,950
50,950

47,800

19,500

2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750
2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750

400 3,000 1,300 7,000 4,400 7,500 3,700 3,500 800 6,300 55,150

1,000

3,500
0

4,200
0

250 2,000 2,750 5,000
250 2,000 2,750 5,000

200 300 4,500 1,150 2,650 400 200 0 400 0 13,550

3,350 3,350 3,350 16,250

775
775

50

500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 9,500

400 450 1,750

10 of 12

273 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade
900 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade

800 75 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6)
900 25 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6)

800 3 Reclaimed Water
900 3 Reclaimed Water

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements

800 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement
900 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 3

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement
900 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement

800 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement
900 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy

Total for TREATMENT PLANT

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

4,600
0

10,125
3,375

0
0

500 4,700 8,750

550 5,000 9,350

300 300 300 300 300 2,600

3,150
3,150

100 275
100 275

28,000

2,300 14,500 7,200 24,000

1,250
0

1,650
0

2,650

650 3,000 3,650

8,000

500 5,000 5,500

7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700

6,600 14,500 15,750 11,250 14,700 12,500 17,850 16,550 49,100 55,550 531,550
1,100 5,000 100 650 0 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 297,975

11 of 12

274 of 401



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

Administrative Facilities
Collection System
Transport System
Treatment Plant

GRAND TOTAL

R&R (Fund 800) Total
Capacity (Fund 900) Total

Priority 1
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 1 Projects

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 2 Projects

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 3 Projects

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250
5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975
7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

14,400 27,000 35,600 25,650 30,200 32,150 24,700 53,200 95,000 103,950 1,086,200

13,300 19,200 33,100 25,000 30,050 32,150 19,800 27,700 51,050 55,800 748,925
1,100 7,800 2,500 650 150 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 337,275

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 409,800

0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500

0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275
6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
7,500 20,300 18,000 9,550 9,650 8,900 6,350 5,100 3,650 6,800 302,150

200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050
500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700

5,700 6,700 17,600 14,200 15,250 23,250 18,350 48,100 89,850 97,150 374,250

12 of 12

275 of 401



APPENDIX F

California Government Code

Pertaining to Water & Wastewater Capacity Charges

276 of 401



California Government Code 
Key Sections Pertaining to Water & Wastewater Capacity Charges 

Sections 66013, 66016, 66022 & 66023 

66013 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, when a local agency imposes fees for

water connections or sewer connections, or  imposes capacity charges,  those  fees or

charges  shall not exceed  the estimated  reasonable  cost of providing  the  service  for

which the fee or charge is imposed, unless a question regarding the amount of the fee

or charge imposed in excess of the estimated reasonable cost of providing the services

or materials  is submitted to, and approved by, a popular vote of two‐thirds of those

electors voting on the issue.

(b) As used in this section:

(1) “Sewer connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public

sewer system.

(2) “Water connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public

water system, as defined in subdivision (f) of Section 116275 of the Health and Safety

Code.

(3) “Capacity charge” means a charge for public facilities in existence at the time a

charge is imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed

in  the  future  that  are  of  proportional  benefit  to  the  person  or  property  being

charged,  including  supply  or  capacity  contracts  for  rights  or  entitlements,  real

property interests, and entitlements and other rights of the local agency involving

capital expense  relating  to  its use of existing or new public  facilities. A “capacity

charge” does not include a commodity charge.

(4) “Local agency” means a local agency as defined in Section 66000.

(5) “Fee”  means  a  fee  for  the  physical  facilities  necessary  to  make  a  water

connection or sewer connection, including, but not limited to, meters, meter boxes,

and pipelines  from  the  structure or project  to a water distribution  line or  sewer

main, and that does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of labor and materials

for installation of those facilities.

(6) “Public facilities” means public facilities as defined in Section 66000.

277 of 401



(c) A  local  agency  receiving  payment  of  a  charge  as  specified  in  paragraph  (3)  of

subdivision  (b) shall deposit  it  in a separate capital  facilities  fund with other charges

received, and account for the charges in a manner to avoid any commingling with other

moneys of  the  local agency, except  for  investments, and shall expend  those charges

solely  for  the  purposes  for  which  the  charges  were  collected.  Any  interest  income

earned from the investment of moneys in the capital facilities fund shall be deposited in

that fund.

(d) For a fund established pursuant to subdivision (c), a local agency shall make available

to  the  public,  within  180  days  after  the  last  day  of  each  fiscal  year,  the  following

information for that fiscal year:

(1) A description of the charges deposited in the fund.

(2) The  beginning  and  ending  balance of  the  fund  and  the  interest  earned  from

investment of moneys in the fund.

(3) The amount of charges collected in that fiscal year.

(4) An identification of all of the following:

(A) Each public improvement on which charges were expended and the amount

of the expenditure for each improvement, including the percentage of the total

cost of the public improvement that was funded with those charges if more than

one source of funding was used.

(B) Each  public  improvement  on  which  charges  were  expended  that  was

completed during that fiscal year.

(C) Each  public  improvement  that  is  anticipated  to  be  undertaken  in  the

following fiscal year.

(5) A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the capital facilities

fund. The  information provided,  in the case of an  interfund transfer, shall  identify

the public improvements on which the transferred moneys are, or will be, expended.

The information, in the case of an interfund loan, shall include the date on which the

loan will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the fund will receive on the loan.

(e) The  information required pursuant to subdivision (d) may be  included  in the  local

agency’s annual financial report.

(f) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall not apply to any of the following:

278 of 401



(1) Moneys received to construct public facilities pursuant to a contract between a

local agency and a person or entity, including, but not limited to, a reimbursement

agreement pursuant to Section 66003.

(2) Charges  that  are used  to pay existing debt  service or which  are  subject  to  a

contract with a trustee for bondholders that requires a different accounting of the

charges, or charges that are used to reimburse the local agency or to reimburse a

person or entity who advanced funds under a reimbursement agreement or contract

for facilities in existence at the time the charges are collected.

(3) Charges collected on or before December 31, 1998.

(g) Any  judicial  action or  proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void,  or  annul  the

ordinance, resolution, or motion imposing a fee or capacity charge subject to this section

shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022.

(h) Fees and charges subject to this section are not subject to the provisions of Chapter

5 (commencing with Section 66000), but are subject to the provisions of Sections 66016,

66022, and 66023.

(i) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall only apply to capacity charges levied

pursuant to this section.

(Amended  by  Stats.  2007,  Ch.  94,  Sec.  1.  Effective  January  1,  2008.) 

66016 

(a) Prior to levying a new fee or service charge, or prior to approving an increase in an

existing  fee or service charge, a  local agency shall hold at  least one open and public

meeting, at which oral or written presentations  can be made, as part of a  regularly

scheduled meeting. Notice of the time and place of the meeting,  including a general

explanation of the matter to be considered, and a statement that the data required by

this section  is available, shall be mailed at  least 14 days prior  to  the meeting  to any

interested party who files a written request with the local agency for mailed notice of

the meeting on new or increased fees or service charges. Any written request for mailed

notices shall be valid for one year from the date on which  it  is filed unless a renewal

request is filed. Renewal requests for mailed notices shall be filed on or before April 1

of each year. The legislative body may establish a reasonable annual charge for sending

notices based on the estimated cost of providing the service. At least 10 days prior to

the meeting,  the  local  agency  shall make  available  to  the public data  indicating  the

amount of cost, or estimated cost, required to provide the service for which the fee or

279 of 401



service  charge  is  levied  and  the  revenue  sources  anticipated  to provide  the  service, 

including General Fund revenues. Unless there has been voter approval, as prescribed 

by Section 66013 or 66014, no  local agency shall  levy a new  fee or service charge or 

increase an existing fee or service charge to an amount which exceeds the estimated 

amount required to provide the service for which the fee or service charge is levied. If, 

however,  the  fees or  service charges create  revenues  in excess of actual cost,  those 

revenues shall be used to reduce the fee or service charge creating the excess. 

(b) Any action by a  local agency to  levy a new fee or service charge or to approve an

increase  in  an  existing  fee  or  service  charge  shall  be  taken  only  by  ordinance  or

resolution. The  legislative body of a  local agency  shall not delegate  the authority  to

adopt a new fee or service charge, or to increase a fee or service charge.

(c) Any costs incurred by a local agency in conducting the meeting or meetings required

pursuant to subdivision (a) may be recovered from fees charged for the services which

were the subject of the meeting.

(d) This  section  shall apply only  to  fees and  charges as described  in Sections 51287,

56383, 65104, 65456, 65584.1, 65863.7, 65909.5, 66013, 66014, and 66451.2 of  this

code, Sections 17951, 19132.3, and 19852 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 41901

of the Public Resources Code, and Section 21671.5 of the Public Utilities Code.

(e) Any  judicial  action or proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void, or  annul  the

ordinance, resolution, or motion levying a fee or service charge subject to this section

shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022.

(Amended  by  Stats.  2006,  Ch.  643,  Sec.  19.  Effective  January  1,  2007.) 

66022  

(a) Any  judicial  action  or  proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void,  or  annul  an

ordinance, resolution, or motion adopting a new fee or service charge, or modifying or

amending an existing  fee or service charge, adopted by a  local agency, as defined  in

Section  66000,  shall  be  commenced  within  120  days  of  the  effective  date  of  the

ordinance, resolution, or motion.

If an ordinance, resolution, or motion provides for an automatic adjustment in a fee or 

service charge, and the automatic adjustment results in an increase in the amount of a 

fee or service charge, any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul 

the increase shall be commenced within 120 days of the effective date of the increase. 

280 of 401



(b)Any action by a local agency or interested person under this section shall be brought

pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code

of Civil Procedure.

(c) This section shall apply only to fees, capacity charges, and service charges described

in and subject to Sections 66013, 66014, and 66016.

(Amended  by  Stats.  2006,  Ch.  643,  Sec.  20.  Effective  January  1,  2007.) 

66023   

(a) Any person may request an audit in order to determine whether any fee or charge

levied by a local agency exceeds the amount reasonably necessary to cover the cost of

any product, public facility, as defined in Section 66000, or service provided by the local

agency.  If a person makes  that  request,  the  legislative body of  the  local agency may

retain an  independent auditor  to conduct an audit  to determine whether  the  fee or

charge  is  reasonable, but  is not  required  to  conduct  the  audit  if  an  audit has been

performed for the same fee within the previous 12 months.

(b) To the extent that the audit determines that the amount of any fee or charge does

not  meet  the  requirements  of  this  section,  the  local  agency  shall  adjust  the  fee

accordingly. This  subdivision does not apply  to a  fee authorized pursuant  to Section

17620 of the Education Code, or Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7.

(c) The local agency shall retain an independent auditor to conduct an audit only if the

person who requests the audit deposits with the local agency the amount of the local

agency’s reasonable estimate of the cost of the independent audit. At the conclusion of

the audit, the local agency shall reimburse unused sums, if any, or the requesting person

shall pay the local agency the excess of the actual cost of the audit over the sum which

was deposited.

(d) Any  audit  conducted by  an  independent  auditor  to determine whether  a  fee or

charge levied by a local agency exceeds the amount reasonably necessary to cover the

cost of providing the product or service shall conform to generally accepted auditing

standards.

(e) The procedures specified in this section shall be alternative and in addition to those

specified in Section 54985.

281 of 401



(f) The Legislature finds and declares that oversight of local agency fees is a matter of

statewide  interest and concern.  It  is, therefore, the  intent of the Legislature that this

chapter shall supersede all conflicting local laws and shall apply in charter cities.

(g) This section shall not be construed as granting any additional authority to any local

agency to levy any fee or charge which is not otherwise authorized by another

provision of law, nor shall its provisions be construed as granting authority to any local

agency to levy a new fee or charge when other provisions of law specifically prohibit

the levy of a fee or charge.

 (Amended by Stats. 2009, Ch. 507, Sec. 3. (AB 1084) Effective January 1, 2010.) 

282 of 401



APPENDIX G

Sewer Capacity Charge Surveys

283 of 401



City of San Jose $1,497 
City of Oakland $1,498 
North San Mateo County SD $2,600 
City of Milpitas $2,788 
City of Richmond $2,950 
Stege Sanitary District $3,009 
City of San Mateo $3,060 
City of Redwood City $3,096 
City of Mountain View $3,330 
City of Berkeley $3,536 
City of Alameda $3,928 
City of San Leandro $3,988 
City of Pittsburg $4,358 
City of South San Francisco $5,011 
City of Concord $5,043 
City of Santa Clara $5,839 
City of Livermore $6,876 
Oro Loma Sanitary District $6,919 
City of Hayward $7,700 
City of Antioch $7,784 
City of San Mateo (ST Area) $8,069 
City of Brentwood $8,264 
West Bay Sanitary District $8,501 
City of Sunnyvale $8,744 
Union Sanitary District $8,898 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District $9,000 
San Rafael Sanitation District $10,307 
West County Wastewater District $10,348 
City of Palo Alto $10,500 
Cupertino Sanitary District $11,034 
Union Sanitary District $11,063 
West Valley Sanitation District $12,428 
Ross Valley Sanitary $13,348 
City of San Carlos $13,627 
City of Pleasanton $14,159 
Castro Valley Sanitation District $15,026 
Dublin San Ramon Services District $15,906 

$0 $2,500 $5,000 $7,500 $10,000 $12,500 $15,000 $17,500 $20,000

Survey of Wastewater Capacity Charges 2020/21
Single Family Home

Current

Proposed Maximum*

Criteria for Agencies Surveyed
1. Within approximately 30‐mile radius of USD
2. Having at least 100 miles of Collection System

and/or 5 MGD of Treatment

* Excludes future fee adjustments to account for
construction cost inflation.

284 of 401



1,497 

2,788 

6,919 
7,700 

8,388 8,744 8,898 

10,500 
11,063 

12,428 

14,159 

15,906 

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

$18,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Fee Survey

Single Family Home

Range of fees shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone.
Range of fees shown for Palo Alto based on 5/8" vs 1" meter size. Fees Effective November 2020

Current

Proposed

285 of 401



678 

2,096 

5,250 
5,685 

6,853 6,919 7,105 
7,627 

9,346 9,622 9,644 

10,499 

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Fee Survey
Multi-Family/Apartment Unit

Palo Alto fee assumes a 10‐unit building with a 2‐inch water meter.
Range of fees shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone. Fees Effective November 2020

Current

Proposed

286 of 401



2,404 

5,025 
5,594 5,671 

6,300 6,536 

8,040 
8,688 

10,500 10,720 

14,298 

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Fee Survey
General Commercial / Office

Range of fees shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone.
Range of fees shown for Palo Alto based on 5/8" vs 1" meter size. Fees Effective November 2020

General Commercial / Office Fee Assumptions
2,000 Square Feet, Wastewater Flow: 200 gpd
Standard Strength or Office Fee Category, or
Wastewater Strength: 140 mg/l BOD, 115 mg/l SS, 30 mg/l NH3

Current

Proposed

287 of 401



14,360 

30,030 31,620 31,965 
37,200 

42,190 

48,438 
52,500 

63,250 64,225 

84,735 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

$90,000

$100,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Fee Survey

Restaurant

Range of fees shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone.
Range of fees shown for Palo Alto based on 5/8" vs 1" meter size. Fees Effective November 2020

Restaurant Fee Assumptions
1,000 Square Feet, Wastewater Flow: 1,000 gpd
High Strength or Full Service Restaurant Fee Category, or
Wastewater Strength: 1000 mg/l BOD, 600 mg/l SS, 30 mg/l NH3

Current

Proposed

288 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 

TITLE: Scheduling Public Hearing to Consider Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the 
Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2022 (This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Mark Carlson, CFO, Business Services Work Group Manager 

Recommendation 
Set the time for holding the public hearing to consider collection of sewer service charges on 
the tax roll for fiscal year 2022, at 4 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, on 
June 28, 2021, in the Boardroom at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California. 

Discussion 

If the Board would like to consider placing the sewer service charges for fiscal year 2022 on the 
tax rolls, it should set the date for the public hearing to consider authorizing the collection. 
After the hearing is set by the Board, staff will prepare the report to be considered at the public 
hearing and will publish the attached Notice of the time and place of the hearing in the Tri-City 
voice newspaper on June 15, 2021 and June 22, 2021, and in the Argus on June 18, 2021 and 
June 25, 2021. 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF FILING REPORT AND PUBLIC HEARING IN CONNECTION WITH THE COLLECTION OF 
FISCAL YEAR 2022 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Sections 5471 and 5473, et seq. of the Health and 
Safety Code of the State of California and Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 31, the Board of 
Directors of Union Sanitary District will consider whether to collect its charges for sewer 

289 of 401



services for fiscal year 2022 on the tax roll, in the same manner as general taxes, consistent 
with past practices.  

The District has filed a written report with the Secretary of the Board of Directors describing 
each parcel of real property subject to the charges and the amount of the charges against that 
parcel for fiscal year 2022. The District’s report is on file and available for public inspection at 
the District Offices.  

For reference, the charges for a single-family homeowner (the majority of USD’s customers) 
and all other rates for individual customers can be found by contacting the District at (510) 477-
7500 or on the Districts website  www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/sewerservice.htm  

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday, the 28th day of June 2021, at the hour of 4:00 p.m. 
or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, during the virtual Board meeting to be held 
at the Union Sanitary District Boardroom, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California, in said 
District, the Board will hold a hearing to consider the report and whether to collect the sewer 
service charges for fiscal year 2022 on the property tax roll. At the hearing, the Board of 
Directors will hear and consider all objections or protests, if any, to the District’s report. Any 
questions regarding the charges may be directed to Mark Carlson, CFO, Business Services 
Manager.  

Publish dates: June 15, 2020 – Tri-City Voice 
June 22, 2020 – Tri-City Voice 
June 18, 2020 – Argus 
June 25, 2020– Argus 

By order of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District. 

Background 
The collection of the sewer service charges on the tax rolls requires an annual hearing and 
consideration of the Board. The District may authorize the sewer service charges for fiscal year 
2022 to be collected on the tax rolls, consistent with past practices, by 1) creating a report 
setting forth the amount of the sewer service charges to be assessed on each parcel in the 
District; 2) filing the report with the Secretary of the Board; 3) scheduling a public hearing for 
the Board to hear all objections and protests (if any); and 4) authorizing the collection of the 
sewer service charges on the tax rolls, if there is no majority protest. 

Previous Board Action 
None 

290 of 401

http://www.unionsanitary.ca.gov/sewerservice.htm


Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 11 

TITLE:  Consider Authorizing the Purchase of a Second Robotic Cutter for Collection 
System Repairs (This is a Motion Item)   

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
James Schofield, Work Group Manager 
Shawn Nesgis, Collection Services Coach 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the purchase of a second robotic cutter, a Schwalm Talpa 
2060 Cutter Robotic unit  (2060  cutter),  to  support and expand  the District’s  Inversion  Lining 
Process (ILP) for Collection System repairs at an estimated purchase price of $106,900.00.  

Discussion 
During  the  January 2020 Board meeting,  the Board approved  the purchase of  the Collections 
Workgroup’s first robotic cutter.   The robotic cutter was purchased to allow staff to complete 
trenchless spot repairs and reinstate laterals within the repair. At the time of approval, the Board 
raised concerns regarding the practice of covering laterals with a trenchless repair kit and only 
one robotic cutter available. Staff recommended purchasing a second robotic cutter to provide 
redundancy and expand capabilities.   

The  first  robotic  cutter  allowed  staff  to  reinstate  laterals  in  sewer  lines  up  to  15  inches  in 
diameter.   This new robotic cutter will allow staff to reinstate  laterals  in sewer  lines up to 24 
inches in diameter.  Additionally, both robotic cutters allow staff to perform cutting and grinding 
of pipe defects and abnormalities in sewer lines.  The 2060 cutter is a larger, heavier cutter that 
will  allow  staff  to  use  multiple  cutting  heads  and  attachments  that  will  expand  capabilities 
beyond  what  can  be  accomplished  with  the  District’s  current  equipment.    Some  of  these 
attachments will enable staff to chisel concrete from inside pipes, wire wheel to remove calcium 
build‐up, and grinding wheel that can remove difficult roots from inside lateral openings.    

291 of 401



This purchase dollar  amount  is over  $100,000  and  requires Board  approval per  the Districts 
purchasing policy. 

Background 
In 2005, the Collections Workgroup implemented the trenchless sewer main repair process that 
allowed  four‐foot  sections  of  pipeline  to  be  repaired  without  conventional  excavation 
techniques. The trenchless repair process made it possible to complete several repairs in one day 
compared to the traditional “open excavation” repair where a single repair could take several 
days to complete. The trenchless repair process accomplishes repairs for a fraction of the cost of 
open excavation. 

Starting in March of 2018, staff expanded their capabilities to allow for a larger range of repair 
lengths but were limited to repairs between laterals. To perform trenchless sewer main repairs 
that included laterals staff would hire a contractor to complete the work or rent a robotic cutter 
to reinstate laterals covered during the lining process.   

The Collections department  currently operates  a Talpa 1330  robotic  cutter  that  is  limited  to 
repairs in sewer mains up to 15 inches in diameter. Staff has identified a need for a second robotic 
cutter that will provide redundancy and enable staff to complete work in sewer mains up to 24 
inches in diameter.   

Previous Board Action 
January 13, 2020 Board Meeting – Board approved purchase of Talpa 1330 Robotic cutter system 

Schwalm Talpa 2060 Cutter Robotic unit 

292 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 12 

TITLE:  Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 3 with Brown and 
Caldwell  for  the Emergency Outfall  Improvements Project  (This  is a Motion 
Item) 

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 
Andrew Baile, Assistant Engineer 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 3 with 
Brown  and  Caldwell  in  the  amount  of  $69,440  to  provide  engineering  services  during 
construction of the Emergency Outfall Improvements Project (Project). 

Discussion 
The purpose of this Task Order is to authorize engineering services during construction, such as 
submittal  review,  response  to  requests  for  information,  preparation  of  design  clarification 
memoranda, and geotechnical testing. 

The  scope of  services and  fee of Task Order No. 3 with Brown and Caldwell are  summarized 
below: 

Task  Task Description  Amount 

1  Requests for Information  $8,678 

2  Submittal Review  $26,636 

3  Design Clarification Memoranda  $2,388 

4  Meetings and Site Visits  $4,816 

293 of 401



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 2 

Task  Task Description  Amount 

5  Project Management  $12,877 

6  Geotechnical Support Services  $14,045 

Total Not to Exceed Amount  $69,440 

The task order’s total not‐to‐exceed amount is 5 percent of the construction contract amount of 
$1,399,700.  For a project of this size and scope, staff expects the fee to be in the range of 3 to 5 
percent.    The  task  order  amount  is  towards  the  upper  end  of  the  fee  range  due  to  the 
geotechnical support services during the backfill operation of the Old Alameda Creek’s bank and 
levee  road  that was  requested by  the Alameda County  Flood Control & Water Conservation 
District (ACFC&WCD).  As a comparison, the table below summarizes the fees and percentages 
of engineering services during construction of past plant projects. 

Project 
Engineering Services 
During Construction 

Cost (A) 

Construction 
Cost (B) 

Percentage 
of A to B 

Thickener Nos. 3 and 4 Rehabilitation  $71,491  $1,453,461  4.9% 

Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project 

$82,038  $2,226,332  3.7% 

Emergency Outfall Improvements 
Project (Aboveground Emergency 

Outfall Pipeline Constructed in 2012) 
$49,805  $1,088,888  4.6% 

The task order amounts for the Project’s agreement with Brown and Caldwell are summarized in 
the table below: 

Task Order / Amendment  Not to Exceed Amount 

Task Order No. 1 – Predesign Services  $91,363 

Task Order No. 2 – Design Services  $225,812 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 – Additional 
Permitting Services 

$8,584 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 – Additional CEQA 
and Design Services 

$29,814 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 – Rail Surveys  $9,135 

Amendment No. 3 to Task Order No. 2 – Permitting 
Support, Revised Surveying Services, and 2020 Rail Surveys 

$32,894 

Amendment No. 4 to Task Order No. 2 – Bypass Design  $13,877 

Amendment No. 5 to Task Order No. 2 – Modification to 
New Outfall Pipeline 

$21,454 

294 of 401



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 3 

Task Order / Amendment  Not to Exceed Amount 

Task Order No. 3 – Engineering Services During 
Construction 

$69,440 

Total  $502,373 

Staff expects to issue the Notice to Proceed to Garney Pacific, Inc. in May 2021 and anticipates 
construction  to be completed by December 2021.   Staff plans  to hire a consultant  to provide 
construction management and inspection services for the Project. 

Background 
The  District’s  Alvarado  Effluent  Pump  Station  normally  pumps  the  final  effluent  from  the 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant  (WWTP)  to  the East Bay Dischargers Authority  (EBDA) 
system where the combined effluent from the EBDA agencies  is dechlorinated and discharged 
from the EBDA Common Outfall to Lower San Francisco Bay.  The District has an NPDES permit 
to discharge final effluent to Old Alameda Creek through the Emergency Outfall pipeline and flap 
gate during wet weather and when the capacity of the EBDA system is maximized.  The District 
doses calcium thiosulfate to dechlorinate the final effluent prior to discharging to the creek. 

The Emergency Outfall pipeline exits  the WWTP at  the northwest corner of  the property and 
crosses  the  levee  road  owned  by  the Alameda  County  Flood  Control & Water  Conservation 
District (ACFC&WCD) before extending into the Old Alameda Creek.  The creek is influenced by 
the  tidal  cycle, and  the Emergency Outfall  flap gate  is normally  submerged below  the water 
during high  tides and  is exposed during  low  tides.   This presents a maintenance challenge as 
water brings  in sediment that routinely buries the flap gate and promotes vegetation growth, 
which then impedes the operation of the flap gate.  The District currently inspects the flap gate 
every month and schedules staff to clear the vegetation growth.   

The purpose of the Project  is to make  improvements to the Emergency Outfall to reduce the 
maintenance  activities  associated  with  the  Emergency  Outfall  flap  gate  and  increase  the 
reliability of its operation during wet weather events. 

Brown  and  Caldwell  completed  the  Project’s  design  in  January  2021.    The  Project’s  scope 
includes: 

1. Replacement of 48‐inch diameter pipeline that extends into Old Alameda Creek.

2. Rehabilitation of the existing 48‐inch diameter pipeline under the ACFC&WCD levee road

by slip‐lining.

3. Construction of a redundant, parallel, 48‐inch diameter pipeline from the Old Alameda

Creek to inside the WWTP property line.

295 of 401



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 4 

4. Construction of a new riser pipe and cap on the new redundant pipeline to allow access

for inspection and cleaning.

5. Installation  of  a  temporary  sheet  pile  cofferdam  in  Old  Alameda  Creek  to  allow

construction of the new concrete outlet structure.

6. Construction of a concrete outlet structure consisting of a slab, headwalls, and wing walls.

7. Construction of an access vault and drainage piping system on the existing outfall pipeline

located in the WWTP property.

8. Implementation  of  all  mitigation  measures  in  the  Project’s  Mitigated  Negative

Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.

9. Bypass contingency allowance, when directed by the District, will provide a bypass piping

system to discharge final effluent to the Old Alameda Creek if construction impacts the

availability of the emergency outfall during wet weather.

Previous Board Action 
November 13, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
Brown and Caldwell to provide design services for the Project. 

June 25, 2018, the Board conducted a public hearing to receive comments regarding the Initial 
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the Project.  No comments were received 
at the public hearing. 

December 10, 2018, the Board adopted the MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan 
for the Project for the purpose of filing the Notice of Determination. 

July 22, 2019, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute a lease agreement with the 
California State Lands Commission for the use, operation, and maintenance of an existing 48‐inch 
diameter  reinforced  concrete  emergency  outfall  pipeline,  concrete  outlet  structure,  access 
stairway, riprap chute, and temporary sheet pile cofferdam located along the Old Alameda Creek 
Flood Control Channel in the City of Union City. 

April 13, 2020, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to Task 
Order No. 2 with Brown and Caldwell to provide additional design services for the Project. 

May 10, 2020, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to Ganey Pacific, Inc. 
in the amount of $1,399,700. 

PRE/SEG/RC/ACB;mb 
Attachment:   Task Order No. 3 

296 of 401



 EMERGENCY OUTFALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 

TO 

AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

AND 

BROWN AND CALDWELL 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Dated November 17, 2017 

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of Task Order No. 3 is for Brown and Caldwell (Engineer) to
provide engineering services during construction for the Emergency Outfall
Improvements Project (Project).  Engineering services to be provided during
the construction include design engineering support which includes
attendance at meetings, submittal review, responses to requests for
information (RFI), and design clarifications.

2. PROJECT COORDINATION

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the Union
Sanitary District’s (District’s) Project Manager, Andrew Baile.

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost
data presented in Exhibit A.  Engineer shall provide the following
engineering support services during the construction of the project:

Task 1.0 – Requests for Information

Engineer shall respond to Requests for Information (RFIs) on an as-
requested basis.  Engineer shall provide a written response on a response

297 of 401



Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 3 
Page 2 

sheet and return the response sheet to the Construction Manager. 
Engineer shall complete review of the RFI, provide response, and return 
response within 7 calendar days after the Engineer’s receipt of RFI.  If for 
any reason the response cannot be completed within this period, Engineer 
shall notify Construction Manager and provide reason for delay prior to the 
end of the specified period.  All RFI documentation transmitted to the 
Engineer and responses transmitted back to the Construction Manager 
shall be electronic through the District’s web-based document management 
system.   

The Construction Manager will screen all RFIs for form, completeness, and 
general content conforming to that specified in the Contract Documents 
before transmitting them to Engineer.   

Engineer’s budget allowance for this task is based on reviewing 6 RFIs at 
an average effort of 5 hours per RFI. 

Task 2.0 – Submittal Review 

Engineer shall respond to requests for submittal review on an as-requested 
basis.  Engineer shall provide written review comments on a review 
comment sheet and return the review comment sheet to the Construction 
Manager.  All submittal documentation transmitted to the Engineer and 
responses transmitted back to the Construction Manager shall be electronic 
through the District’s web-based document management system.  Submittal 
review does not include marking up or returning hard copies of submittals.  

Engineer shall complete review of submittal, provide comments, and return 
review comment sheet within 21 days for normal submittals, after 
Engineer’s receipt of submittal.  Review comments for critical path or 
expedited submittals shall be returned within 7 calendar days, after 
Engineer’s receipt of submittal.  If for any reason the review cannot be 
completed within this period, Engineer shall notify Construction Manager 
and provide reason for delay prior to the end of the specified period. 

The Construction Manager will screen all submittals for form, completeness, 
and general content conforming to that specified in the Contract Documents 
before transmitting them to Engineer.  Examples of submittals to be 
reviewed by the Engineer include technical product data, shop drawings, 
temporary construction submittals, samples, test results, and operations 
and maintenance manuals.  Engineer’s submittal review is to determine 
compliance with the Contract Documents.  Submittal review is not intended 
as acceptance of the work.  The review is not intended to relieve the 
Contractor of their full responsibility for performance as required by the 
Contract Documents.   

298 of 401



Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 3 
Page 3 

Engineer’s budget allowance for this task is based on reviewing 36 
submittals (including resubmittals, shop drawings and product data) 
requiring an average effort of 3.5 hours per submittal.   

Task 3.0 – Design Clarification Memoranda 

Engineer shall issue Design Clarification Memoranda (DCM) where 
deemed necessary by the Engineer and on an as-requested basis. 
Engineer shall provide a written clarification on a DCM (including 
specification, sketches, or other information as necessary) and issue the 
DCM to the Construction Manager. 

DCM will be issued to 1) clarify Contract Documents when necessary, 2) in 
the event that modifications to the Contract Documents are desired by the 
District, or 3) assist the Construction Manager with the preparation of 
contract change order requests. 

Engineer’s budget allowance for this task is based on preparing 1 DCM at 
an average of 10 hours per DCM.   

Task 4.0 – Meetings 

Engineer’s project manager and project engineer shall attend the 
preconstruction meeting.   

Engineer shall have personnel attend weekly recurring virtual construction 
meetings on an as-requested basis.  Budget allowance is based on 
Engineer’s Project Engineer attending 1 construction meeting a month for a 
total of 6 construction meetings.  Meetings are budgeted on an average 
effort of 1 hour per meeting. 

When directed by the District, Engineer shall periodically visit the Project 
site to monitor the progress and quality of the Contractor’s work effort, and 
for preparation of a final punchlist.  Engineer shall provide opinions and 
observations to the Construction Manager and/or District regarding general 
compliance with the Contract Documents for improvements that are 
observed by the Engineer at the time of the Engineer’s site visits. Engineer’s 
budget allowance for this task is based on two site visits at an average of 4 
hours per visit. 

299 of 401



Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 3 
Page 4 

Task 5.0 – Project Management 

This task shall include project management activities, including day-to-day 
administration, monitoring task budgets, schedules, and QA/QC, and 
managing project staff and subconsultants.  

Engineer’s cost assumes 8 hours total per month for this work. 

Task 6.0 – Geotechnical Support Services 

Engineer’s geotechnical subconsultant, Fugro USA Land, Inc. (Fugro), shall 
perform part-time observation and field density testing during fill placement, 
perform geotechnical laboratory testing, and provide geotechnical 
engineering office services during construction.   

Engineer’s budget allowance assumes that the Engineer’s geotechnical 
subconsultant, Fugro USA Land, Inc, will perform up to 2 site visits to 
observe and perform field density testing for fill placement and up to 40 
hours for geotechnical office engineering services.  

4. DELIVERABLES

All deliverables shall be provided electronically via the District’s web-based
document management system, Projectmates, in Word or PDF format.

Deliverables shall include:

 Responses to RFIs
 Responses to submittals
 DCM
 DFR
 Geotechnical final letter

5. NOT USED

6. NOT USED

7. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement.
The Multiplier for this work shall be 3.2205 which includes profit at of 13
percent, and the not-to-exceed amount shall be $69,440. A summary of the
anticipated distribution of cost and manpower between tasks is shown in
Exhibit A.

300 of 401



Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 3 
Page 5 

The following table summarizes the previously executed and proposed task 
orders and amendments under the Agreement: 

Task Order / 
Amendment 

Not to 
Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 

District Staff 
Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – 
Predesign Services 

$91,363 No Paul Eldredge

Task Order No. 2 – 
Design Services 

$225,812 Yes Paul Eldredge

Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 1 – 
Additional Permitting 
Services 

$8,584 No Sami Ghossain

Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Additional CEQA and 
Design Services 

$29,814 No Sami Ghossain

Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Rail Surveys 

$9,135 No Sami Ghossain

Amendment No. 3 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Permitting Support, 
Revised Surveying 
Services, and 2020 
Rail Surveys 

$32,894 Yes Paul Eldredge

Amendment No. 4 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Bypass Design 

$13,877 No Sami Ghossain

Amendment No. 5 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Modification to New 
Outfall Pipeline 

$21,454 No  Sami Ghossain 

Task Order No. 3 – 
Engineering Services 
During Construction 

$69,440 Yes Paul Eldredge

Total $502,373 

301 of 401



Emergency Outfall Improvements Project 
Task Order No. 3 
Page 6 

8. TIME OF COMPLETION

All work defined in this Task Order No. 3 shall be complete in 218 calendar
days after the execution of this Task Order and subject to the conditions of
Article 3 of this Agreement.  A summary of the anticipated construction
schedule milestone dates are as follows:

 Notice of Award issued to Contractor: May 2021
 Contractor Notice to Proceed: May 2021
 Substantial Completion: October 2021
 Final Completion: November 2021

9. KEY PERSONNEL

Key engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 3 are as follows:

Role Key Person to be Assigned 

 Principal-in-Charge Grace Chow 
 Project Manager  Peter Bellows 
 Project Engineer  Michael Guirguis 
 Geotechnical Support Fugro 

Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of 
the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task 

Order No. 3 as of __________________ and therewith incorporate it as part of the 

Agreement. 

DISTRICT ENGINEER

Union Sanitary District Brown and Caldwell

By: ________________________ By: 
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. Grace Chow, P.E. 

General Manager/District Engineer Vice President

Date:  Date:  

302 of 401



Exhibit A Budget 

Union Sanitary District (CA) -- Emergency Outfall OEDC

B
el

lo
w

s,
P

et
er

 H

R
ou

ha
ni

,
S

ho
uh

re
h 

G

G
ui

rg
ui

s,
M

ic
ha

el
 M

La
m

be
rt

,
T

ai
t 

R

B
ei

l,
R

ya
n

C
ho

w
,

G
ra

ce
 C

Phase Phase Description PM PA
 Project 

Engineer  Designer 
 Staff 

Engineer  PIC 

Total 
Labor 
Hours

Total 
Labor 
Effort APC Cost

Total Sub 
Cost

Total 
Expense 

Cost

Total 
Expense 

Effort Total Effort

$328.36 $118.42 $290.07 $163.79 $128.82 $339.28

001 RFI 3 0 24 3 0 0 30 8,438 240 0 0 0 240 8,678
Leave Blank and Protected

002 Submittal 18 0 36 0 72 0 126 25,628 1,008 0 0 0 1,008 26,636
Leave Blank and Protected

003 Design Clarification 1 0 4 5 0 0 10 2,308 80 0 0 0 80 2,388
Leave Blank and Protected

004 Meetings 9 0 6 0 0 0 15 4,696 120 0 0 0 120 4,816
Leave Blank and Protected

005 PM 21 35 0 0 0 4 60 12,397 480 0 0 0 480 12,877
Leave Blank and Protected

006 Geo tech 1 0 4 0 0 0 5 1,489 40 11,920 11,920 11,920 12,556 14,045
Leave Blank and Protected

GRAND TOTAL 53 35 74 8 72 4 246 54,956 1,968 11,920 11,920 11,920 14,484 69,440
Hours and Dollars are rounded to nearest whole number.  APC: $8/hour

Fugro

303 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 13 

TITLE: Election of Officers for the Board of Directors (This is a Motion Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Karen Murphy, General Counsel 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

Recommendation 

It is recommended the Board appoint and elect by motion the officers to serve as President, 
Vice President, and Secretary, in accordance with the attached policy. 

Previous Board Action 

The Board considers this item annually. 

Background 

The current policy was approved by the Board in April of 2021, and designates the offices of 
President, Vice President, and Secretary.  The policy states the Board shall annually elect by 
majority vote the President, Vice-President, and Secretary at the first regular meeting following 
certification in election years; or on such date as determined by the Board to allow for 
approximate one-year terms in non-election years.  Officers were last elected at the 
April 13, 2020, Board meeting. 

The 2022 Primary Election has been moved from March to June 7, 2022, due to census data 
delays brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic.  Therefore, pursuant to the revisions to Policy 
3070 to address election date changes, the new officers will serve until after the certification of 
the June 2022 election. 

304 of 401



Historically, the Board has followed a rotation of officers where Vice President becomes 
President, Secretary becomes Vice President, and the 4th member in rotation becomes 
Secretary.  At present, Director Kite is Vice President, Director Lathi is Secretary, and Director 
Fernandez is the 4th member in the rotation.   

In accordance with Policy 3070, Board officers in office at the beginning of the meeting shall 
retain their positions until the adjournment of the meeting and newly elected Board officers 
will assume their duties immediately following the meeting. 

Attachment:  Board Policy 3070, Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership 

305 of 401



Union Sanitary District 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

Effective: 
4/26/2021 

Boardmember Officers and  
Committee Membership 

Policy Number 3070

Page 1 of 4

Policy 
Selection  of  Board  Officers  will  be  held  annually  at  the  first  regular  meeting  following  the 
certification  of  Board  election  results  in  election  years  or  approximately  one  year  after  the 
election of Board Officers  in non‐election years.  Internal Board committee memberships and 
Board  representation  for External Committees  shall be established  following  the  selection of 
the Board Officers. 

Purpose 
To provide a written record of the procedure approved by the Board for electing its Officers and 
establishing its committee memberships. 

Procedure 

Board Officers 

1. The Officers are President, Vice President, and Secretary and  the  term of office shall be
for approximately one year, allowing for flexibility depending on the date of the election
for Boardmembers.    In election years, which occur every  two years,  the  term  shall  run
until after certification of election results.  In non‐election years, the term shall end and
begin on such date as determined by the Board to allow for approximate one‐year terms,
with  the  understanding  that  terms  may  be  either  longer  or  shorter  than  one  year
depending on the date of the next District election.

2. The Board may, by motion, amend the titles of President and Vice President to Chair and
Vice  Chair,  respectively,  provided  that  the  Chair,  regardless  of  title,  shall  act  as  the
“president” pursuant  to California Health & Safety Code Section 6486.  Throughout  this
Policy,  the  titles President  and Vice President  shall be used  interchangeably with Chair
and Vice Chair.

3. The President shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors and be responsible
for the following:

a. maintaining order and following the published agenda
b. ensuring Boardmembers are allowed to participate in discussions
c. allowing the public to speak on agenda items
d. facilitating dialog among the public, staff, and Boardmembers
e. appointment  of  members  of  the  Board  of  Directors  to  Internal  Committee

assignments
f. signing resolutions, ordinances, and construction contracts on behalf of the District

306 of 401



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership  Policy Number 3070 
Page 2 of 4 

g. representing  the Board of Directors on  issues or at events as designated by  the  full
Board

The Vice President shall fulfill the duties of the President when the President is absent or 
otherwise unavailable. 

The  Secretary  shall  ensure  the  recording  of  the  minutes  of  the  Board  of  Directors 
meetings and sign the adopted Minutes, shall sign all Resolutions and Ordinances passed 
by  the District,  and  shall  serve  as Vice  President when  the Vice  President  is  absent  or 
otherwise unavailable. If the President and Vice President are both absent, and a quorum 
is present, the Secretary shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors as the 
Board President. 

4. During election years, the newly elected Boardmembers shall be sworn in as the first item
of business on  the agenda  followed  immediately by  the selection of  the Board Officers.
During non‐election years, the selection of the Board Officers shall be considered after the
last motion  item on the agenda. The Board shall elect the President, Vice‐President, and
Secretary  for  terms  as  set  forth  in  Section  1  above.  The  election  or  removal  of  the
President,  Vice‐President,  or  Secretary  shall  require  a  majority  vote  of  the  Board.  The
Board may choose to follow a rotation of officers.

The Board officers  in office at  the beginning of  the meeting  shall  retain  their positions
until the adjournment of the meeting and the newly selected Board Officers shall assume
their duties immediately following this meeting.

Internal Board Committee Memberships 

1. Internal committees are: Budget and Finance; Engineering and  Information Technology;
Legal/Community Affairs; Legislative; Personnel; and Audit Committee. There  is no  fixed
schedule for meetings set by this policy and appointments are made by the President, as
set forth below.  Notwithstanding the above, meetings are noticed and open to the public.

2. Annually, following the election of Board officers, and at the same meeting as the election
of the officers, Directors shall be provided a list of the internal committees along with an
internal  committee  interest  form.  The  internal  committee  interest  form  shall  be
completed in order of preference and provided to the General Manager, or designee, no
later than 11 calendar days in advance of the next Board meeting.

3. The President is delegated the authority to appoint Directors to the internal committees.
The  President  shall  make  every  effort  to  rotate  committee  assignments  and  ensure  a
similar  number  of  committee  assignments  for  each  Board  member.  Notice  of  internal
committee membership  appointments will  be  contained  in  an  information  item  to  the
Board  at  the  next  regularly  scheduled  meeting  following  the  selection  of  the  Board
Officers. The determination of  the Board President on  committee  assignments  shall be

307 of 401



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership  Policy Number 3070 
Page 3 of 4 

considered final. 

4. Ad Hoc committees are called as needed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

External Commissions / Committee Representatives (CCR) 

1. External  commissions/committees  include:  the  EBDA  Commission;  the  Joint  Powers
Authority  for  Geographic  Information  Systems;  the  Alameda  County  Water  District
Finance Authority  (ACWDFA); and  the Alameda County Chapter of  the California Special
Districts Association.

2. Membership on the EBDA Commission shall be a maximum of two consecutive years, with
a possible three years in exceptional circumstances if approved by the Board.

3. The Board of Directors will elect representatives for External Committees annually. At the
same meeting  as  the  election  of  officers, Directors  shall  be  provided  a  list  of  external
committees  along  with  an  external  committee  interest  form.  The  external  committee
interest  form  shall  be  completed  in  order  of  preference  and  provided  to  the  General
Manager,  or  designee,  no  later  than  11  calendar  days  in  advance  of  the meeting.  The
external  committee  interests  shall  be  compiled  in  a  motion  item  staff  report  by  the
General Manager, or designee, and provided  to  the Board  for consideration. The Board
shall elect the external committee representatives for one‐year terms to start on July 1 of
each year, or as otherwise decided by the Board majority, unless the assignment is vacant,
in which case the term shall begin  immediately upon election. The Board may choose to
follow  a  rotation  for  representatives.  The  election  or  removal  of  external  committee
representatives shall require a majority vote of the Board.

Management Responsibility 
The General Manager will be responsible for scheduling on the Board agenda, the election or 
appointment  of  Board  officers  and  external  commissions,  pursuant  to  the  schedule  shown 
above. The General  Manager,  or  designee,  will  provide  the  following  to  the  new  President, 
with copies to the Board:  (1) a  list of the  last ten years and current committee memberships; 
(2) a copy of this policy; and (3) a list of internal committee interests. In consultation with the
Board  President,  the General Manager will  also  be  responsible  for  scheduling  on  the  Board
agenda the announcement of internal committee appointments.

Supersedes Policy Dated:  July 2004, September 2005, January 2008, September 2010, October 
2013, December 2016, December 2019 

Approved by:  Board of Directors, April 2021 
Reviewers:  General Manager, Board of Directors, District’s attorney 
 Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review frequency:  Every 3 years 
Next Review:  April 2024 

308 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 14 

TITLE: Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 (This is a Direction 
Item)  

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Mark Carlson, CFO, Business Services Manager 

Recommendation 
Review the Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for FY 2022, and direct staff to present the final 
version at the June 28th  Board meeting. 

Discussion 
Attached for your review is the Proposed Operating and CIP Budget for FY 2022. This budget 
reflects the Board’s input and information presented at the Budget Workshop on May 11, 2021. 
The budget attached to this report is the same as presented in the workshop, with the following 
exceptions: 

1. An increase to the legal expenditure line in the General Managers budget of
$75,000.

2. An increase to the OPEB expenditure line in Fund 40 Retiree Medical of $180,401.

Background 
This item is brought before the Board on an annual basis.  The Board met in a workshop on May 
11, 2021 to hear a presentation by staff on the proposed FY 2022 budget. 

Previous Board Action 
None 

Attachment: 
Proposed Operating and CIP Budget FY 2022 

309 of 401



Union Sanitary District 
Union City, California 

Proposed Operating and CIP Budget 
FY 2022 

310 of 401



1 

This page intentionally left blank

311 of 401



2 

INTRODUCTION

Rebar Layout Digester 7 Roof

312 of 401



3 

Table of Contents 
Introduction 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................. 3 

Board of Directors ............................................................................................................................ 5 

Principal Officers .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Organizational Chart ........................................................................................................................ 7 

Vision Mission Statement ................................................................................................................. 8 

General Manager Budget  Message ............................................................................................... 10 

About USD 

About USD ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

The Communities We Serve ........................................................................................................... 15 

Service Area Map ........................................................................................................................... 17 

Budget Document & Process 

Budget Process ............................................................................................................................... 19 

Budget Reporting ........................................................................................................................... 20 

Financial Statement Reporting ....................................................................................................... 20 

Financial Section 

Budget Summary All Funds ............................................................................................................ 23 

Combined Budget by Fund ............................................................................................................. 24 

Revenues ........................................................................................................................................ 25 

Expenditures ................................................................................................................................... 27 

Operating Expenses ............................................................................................................................ 28 

Internal Funds ..................................................................................................................................... 29 

Debt..................................................................................................................................................... 31 

Special Projects ................................................................................................................................... 32 

Fund Balance 

Fund Balances ................................................................................................................................. 35 

Capital Improvement Plan 

Project Descriptions ....................................................................................................................... 39 

Project Summary Chart .................................................................................................................. 43 

313 of 401



4 

Other Information 

Annual Purchases Exceeding $100,000 .......................................................................................... 47 

Fee History ...................................................................................................................................... 48 

Flow Data ........................................................................................................................................ 49 

Biosolids.......................................................................................................................................... 50 

Full Time Equivalents ...................................................................................................................... 51 

Ten Principal Industrial Ratepayers ................................................................................................ 52 

Miscellaneous Statistics ................................................................................................................. 53 

Appendix 

Detailed 20 Year CIP ....................................................................................................................... 55 

314 of 401



5 

315 of 401



6 

Board Member Position City Represented Year Elected Term Expires
Tom Handley President Fremont, Ward 3 2007 2022

Pat Kite Vice President Newark, Ward 2 1991 2020

Anjali Lathi Secretary Fremont, Ward 3 2002 2024

Manny Fernandez Director Union City, Ward 1 2011 2024

Jennifer Toy Director Fremont, Ward 3 1998 2022

Paul Eldredge General Manager/District Engineer

Armando Lopez Treatment & Disposal Services Manager

Robert Simonich Maintenance & Technology Services Manager

Mark Carlson Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer

Sami Ghossain Technical Services Manager

James Schofield Collection Services Manager

Staff

Karen W. Murphy - General Counsel

316 of 401



7 

317 of 401



8 

VISION/MISSION STATEMENT 
April 10, 2017   

To safely and responsibly collect and treat wastewater, and to recover resources from 
process waste streams, while protecting human health and improving the environment in a 

way that benefits the Tri-Cities and all USD stakeholders. 
How we continue to accomplish our Vision: 
Commitment to safety: 

• Continually reviewing our safety program for opportunities to improve
• Focusing on protecting employees and the community in all our activities
• Allocating resources to ensure safe operations (equipment, training, staff)
• Collaboratively promoting a safe work environment

Responsibility: 
• Being accountable for our actions and decisions
• Being fiscally prudent
• Maintaining and upgrading infrastructure
• Anticipating and meeting future District and stakeholder needs
• Compliance with laws and regulations (local, state, federal)
• Effective asset management
• Effective use of technology
• Looking for innovative ways to reduce or reuse our waste streams

Collect, treat, and recover/reuse wastewater: 
• Providing capacity in the collection system and plant
• Regulating connections
• Increasing efforts for resource recovery (biogas, biosolids, etc.)
• Exploring ways to maximize water reclamation and reuse potential

Human health and environmental stewardship 
• Preventing sewer spills and back-ups
• Limiting health risks through treatment of wastewater
• Responding to emergencies
• Enhancing water quality in the San Francisco Bay estuary
• Meeting or exceeding all water and air quality standards
• Promoting pollution prevention and pretreatment through outreach and educational

programs
• Maximizing use of green energy sources when feasible
• Working towards energy neutrality

318 of 401



9 

VISION/MISSION STATEMENT 
April 10, 2017   

We benefit our stakeholders by: 

• Complying with all local, state, and federal regulations, protecting the
environment and controlling odors

• Communicating with the public and bringing awareness about wastewater
issues

• Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid
• Participating in community outreach activities
• Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in

professional associations, partnering with other agencies and organizations,
and sharing best practices

• Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies

• Providing award-winning, reliable service
• Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value
• Promptly responding to customers’ needs
• Being professional and courteous
• Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs
• Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing

capacity

• Providing a safe work environment
• Recognizing employee contributions
• Encouraging cooperation and collaboration
• Demonstrating equality and fairness
• Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and

creativity
• Providing training and resources
• Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment
• Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly

Cu
sto

me
r 

Em
plo

ye
es

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

319 of 401



10 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Proposed Operating and CIP Budget 

Union Sanitary District (USD) staff is pleased to present the proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2022 to the Board of Directors.  This budget, covering the period from July 1, 2021 through June 
30, 2022, was developed based on direction provided by the Board of Directors.   

District Highlights 

The District continues to focus on the operation and maintenance of its infrastructure and assets, 
capital project construction, planning, and effective use of technology.  The District reports the 
following notable items that will be part of the budget for FY 2022: 

Updated Capacity Fees Schedule – The District retained Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to update its 
wastewater capacity charges. Recommendations were developed with input from District staff and 
represent a comprehensive update based on the latest information available. Key objectives 
included developing updated capacity charges based on a methodology that will recover the full 
cost of infrastructure and assets benefiting new development, comply with legal requirements, and 
are fair and equitable to both existing customers and new development. 

Enhanced Treatment & Site Upgrade Project – The District is implementing the $350 million ETSU 
Phase 1 Group of Projects as part of an overall Program to support the next 20 to 40 years of 
operation. The key drivers for ETSU Phase 1 projects include addressing aging infrastructure, 
improving water quality in the San Francisco Bay through nutrient removal upgrades, and hardening 
of infrastructure to support resiliency efforts to manage wet weather events and continuing to 
provide USD’s critical services without interruption. Design  of  the  first  group  of  projects  is 
underway.  These  include  improvements  to  the  aeration  basins  and  relocation  of  operations, 
maintenance,  and  administrative facilities. Construction of these first projects is planned to 

320 of 401



11 

commence during FY 2022. The design of the second group of projects is also now underway. 
Construction of all of the Phase 1 projects is expected to last through 2027.   

Project Financing – As part of the ETSU project mentioned above, the District was able to secure 
$189 million in low cost EPA Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) financing. The 
District entered into the highly competitive process in mid-2020 and was notified of its eligibility in 
early 2021.  These funds will account for 49% of the total project costs.  In addition to the WIFIA 
financing, the District is currently engaged in a $110 million bond issuance to complete the financing 
for Phase 1A of the ETSU project as well as several other District CIP projects. 

Old Alameda Creek Intermittent Wet Weather Discharge Permit - On December of 1, 2020, the 
District’s revised National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit to intermittently 
discharge to Old Alameda Creek during significant wet weather events went into effect. The revised 
NPDES permit allows the District to responsibly discharge in the adjacent Old Alameda Creek when 
flows at the District exceed the contracted capacity with the  East Bay Discharge Authority (EBDA), 
providing the District a permitted and reliable hydraulic relief of its completely treated final effluent. 
The Old Alameda Creek NPDES Permit is valid for the customary 5 year permit cycle, expiring on 
November 30th, 2025. 

Stewardship and Service - The District continued its record of outstanding stewardship and service.  
Once again, USD received the Platinum Award from the National Association of Clean Water 
Agencies for Peak Performance for operating without exceeding the limits or conditions of the 
District’s permit.  This is a tribute to the outstanding work by District Operations and Maintenance 
teams.  The District continues to average less than one spill per hundred miles of pipeline per year, 
ranking the District among the best in the State, while doing so in a very cost-effective manner.   

Financial State of the District 

The District continues to exercise fiscal prudence when considering how to best manage increasing 
expenses with the least impact possible on the rate payers.  A complex financial model is utilized to 
run a multitude of “what if” scenarios. Scenario-based modeling allows the District to analyze 
different financing plan scenarios to assist the District in making sound financial decisions on future 
operating and infrastructure needs and the long-term sustainability of prospective policies and 
programs. It is because of this cautionary approach that the District has continued to keep its rates 
as low as possible and remain financially stable. 

Revenue - Sewer Service Charges are expected to increase by $14.2 million in FY 2022 to $74.7 
million.  Of this amount, approximately $4.1 million is the result of a revenue deferral in FY 21. The 
balance can be attributed to the current year rate increase of 8%.  Capacity fees are expected to 
decrease by $762 thousand or 13.3% over FY 2021.  The entire region has experienced a slowdown 
in development largely attributed to the impacts of Covid 19.  While there is still strong activity in 
the development sector, with a number of large projects in the planning stages, the District has 
chosen to be conservative in its forecasting of capacity revenue.   

321 of 401



12 

Interest earnings are expected to increase over FY 2021 by $362 thousand, however, this is 
attributable to an anticipated $110 million bond issuance early in the year.  The overall interest yield 
on the Districts investments is expected to fall below 1% for the year. 

Expenditures - Total District expenditures for the coming fiscal year are projected to increase by 
$14.1 million or 14.4%. Operating expenses are anticipated to increase by $1.8 million or 3.9%. 
Within the operating category, Salaries and Benefits are expected to increase $1.9 million or 6.1% 
Increases are primarily due to certain positions being budgeted for a full year in FY 2022, the 
addition of a full time limited term operator as well as negotiated increases to salaries.  Continued 
increases in pension and health insurance rates are also factors.    

The balance of the operating budget is remaining relatively flat with an overall decrease of $68 
thousand.  For FY 2022 the District is seeing increases in chemical and insurance costs and decreases 
in overall utilities, supplies, and repair and maintenance.  The District continues to find ways to 
reduce costs through planning and wise stewardship. 

The Capital Improvement Program is budgeted to increase $507 thousand or 1.2% over FY 2021.  
This is the second year of higher capital costs as the District enters into an ten year $713 million 
capital program of which $350 million is for the ETSU project.  Capital project spending will continue 
to focus on rehabilitation and replacement of key elements of the wastewater treatment plant, 
transport and collections system.   

In keeping with the Districts continued efforts toward prudent fiscal planning, the creation of a 115 
Pension Trust is planned for FY 2022.  It is currently estimated that this long term fiscal planning tool 
will save the District over $24 million in interest costs over the next 27 years. 

Special Projects Fund expenditures will increase $1.2 million over FY 2021.  Some of the more 
significant special projects are the continued set aside of $1.5 million for property acquisitions as 
opportunities become available; $940 thousand for upcoming election costs; feasibility studies for 
Digester 8, energy resiliency, sea level rise and thermal dryer projects. 

Balanced Budget, Reserves and Rates 

USD has long operated with a balanced budget and FY 2022 is no exception.  District reserves 
continue to be stable, although as the District’s operating budget increases, more of the District’s 
reserves are dedicated to ensuring operating needs are met. Although funds will be taken from both 
the Sewer Service Fund and Capacity Fund reserves in FY 2022, these are planned capital activities 
and are part of the long term capital investment strategy of the District. 

Conclusion 

Given the past fiscal stewardship practiced by the District’s Board and staff, the District is well poised 
to take on the proposed 20 year capital plan that will continue to make Union Sanitary District a 
leader in wastewater management. 

322 of 401



13 

I would like to express my appreciation to all the employees of the District whose hard work is not 
taken for granted and whose dedication is reflected in the daily delivery of services to the District’s 
customers.  The District is firmly committed to meeting every challenge brought forth through 
innovative and creative problem-solving and embracing continual improvement in all that it does.   

Respectively Submitted, 

_________________________________ 
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 
General Manager, District Engineer 
Union Sanitary District 

323 of 401



14 

ABOUT USD 

Aeriation Basin Order Scrubbers

324 of 401



15 

About USD 
Union Sanitary District (USD) is a California Independent Special District. USD was formed in 1918 
to protect public health and the environment by providing the services of collecting, treating, and 
disposing of wastewater from residences, businesses and industries. We’re proud to deliver this 
very complex, highly-regulated service to the communities we serve. 

In our founding year of 1918, USD’s boundaries encompassed 3,300 acres in what was known as 
Southern Alameda County. The area was primarily farm and ranch land well into the twentieth 
century, and septic tanks were typically used for wastewater disposal.  

Today, USD’s service area covers over 60 square miles (about 38,400 acres) and serves over 350,000 
residents in the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City, with over 113,000 residential, 
commercial, and industrial connections. Total flow to our Alvarado Treatment Plant in Union City 
was over 8.4 billion gallons in 2020, and averages between 22 and 24 million gallons every day with 
a permitted capacity of up to 33 million gallons per day. 

USD is a member of the East Bay Discharge Authority (EBDA). Founded in 1974, EBDA is a five-
member Joint Powers Authority (JPA) formed to plan, design, construct, and operate regional 
facilities to collect, transport and discharge treated effluent to deep waters of San Francisco Bay. 
Treated effluent from the District’s Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant is pumped to the EBDA 
System and discharged into the Bay southwest of Oakland International Airport. Frequent testing of 
the treated wastewater confirms compliance with regional permit requirements. The other member 
agencies are Castro Valley Sanitary District, Oro Loma Sanitary District, City of Hayward, and City of 
San Leandro.  

The Communities we Serve 
The District provides wastewater collection, treatment and disposal services to the residents and 
businesses of the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City, commonly referred to as the Tri-City 
Area, with a combined population of 356,823.  Information obtained from each city is presented 
below. 

The City of Fremont 

Located on the southeast side of the San Francisco Bay, Fremont is a city of over 234,000 people 
and 76,000 households, with an area of 92-square miles. Fremont remains the fourth most populous 
city in the Bay Area and California's 15th largest city. With its moderate climate and its proximity to 
major universities, shopping areas, recreation and cultural activities, employment centers, major 
airports, and the Bay Area Rapid Transit system, Fremont captures metropolitan living at its best. 

Fremont is conveniently served by Interstates 680 and 880, as well as rail transport lines including 
Altamont Commuter Express (ACE), Amtrak Capitol Corridor, and the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) 
system. Fremont also has easy access to the San Jose Airport, Oakland Airport, San Francisco Airport, 

325 of 401



16 

and the Port of Oakland. Fremont is home to a broad variety of innovative firms including over 1,200 
high tech, life science, and clean technology firms. The city has a broad range of quality, affordable 
business locations; a superior workforce; and a wide variety of tax benefits and incentive programs 
for businesses.  

Fremont is one of the most ethnically and culturally diverse cities in the Bay Area. Residents are 
attracted to Fremont for its nationally recognized high-ranking public schools, its numerous well-
kept parks, and a variety of recreational amenities, including beautiful Lake Elizabeth, Central Park, 
and Mission San José (California's 14th mission). Fremont is described as a wonderful community to 
live, work, and play.  

The City of Newark 

Newark has an area of 13 square miles, a population of over 48,000. Newark was incorporated in 
1955 and is located 35 miles south of San Francisco and next to many high-tech hubs, including easy 
access to highways 880, 580, 680, and the Dumbarton Corridor. This makes Newark an ideal location 
to live or do business. Newark has evolved throughout the years from its days enriched in 
agriculture, manufacturing, and railroad to today’s expansion of high-tech, biotech, and the health 
sciences.  

Although Newark has grown significantly, it still manages to keep a small, hometown community 
charm which is what citizens say they love about the city. The City of Newark has a wide variety of 
programs and services to meet the community's needs.  

The City of Union City 

Union City is 18 square miles in area, boasting a diverse and unified people, excellent educational 
institutions, unsurpassed quality of life, strong economy, and world-renowned location in The San 
Francisco Bay Area. Incorporated in 1959, the city proudly maintains a small-town feel despite being 
in the center of the Bay Area, with San Francisco and Silicon Valley just minutes away. Union City 
has grown into an ethnically diverse community of over 73,000 residents, and the highly regarded 
New Haven Unified School District serves about 13,000 K-12 students. The community offers a 
variety of housing, with affordable and upscale homes available in many charming neighborhoods 
throughout the city. The transit-oriented Station District, located around the Union City BART 
station, boasts housing and business development opportunities with easy, convenient access to 
major public transit running throughout the Bay Area. Union City also offers 33 wonderful parks, 
sports fields, community centers, and a variety of recreation programs and social services for 
residents of all ages. Region-wide, the Tri-City area is experiencing significant impacts as a result of 
COVID-19. 

 Unemployment rates for the cities of Fremont, Newark and Union City on June 30, 2020 were 
10.5%, 12.8%, and 13.4% respectively, compared with 2.6%, 2.7%, and 3.0% one year earlier. 
*Information obtained from the respective city’s website

326 of 401



17 

SERVICE AREA MAP 

327 of 401



18 

BUDGET DOCUMENT & PROCESS 

Solids Thickening Pump Station 

328 of 401



19 

BUDGET PROCESS 

The fiscal year budget is one of the most important documents prepared by the District. Through 
the process of planning and preparing the budget, the District is given the opportunity to determine 
how best to utilize its resources for the coming fiscal year. The budget document also provides 
direction for management and staff on a number of fiscal issues. 

Union Sanitary District adopts an annual budget. The budget document contains information on 
revenues and expenditure appropriations for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1 and ending June 30. In 
addition to the operating budget, the Board adopts an annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), which 
is part of a larger 20 year plan.  These projects become an integral part of the proposed 
operating/capital budget. 

The budget is prepared in accordance with fiscal policies/guidelines and objectives as established 
by the Board in Policy #2015. The time frames provided in the budget calendar reflect early 
involvement of District staff and the Board in review and discussion of policy direction, goals and 
objectives concurrent with development of financial projections and service level requirements. 
With this approach, the necessary components that guide the process are incorporated into the 
proposed budget prior to formal submission to the Board. Readers may be interested to know that 
all appropriations, excluding Capital Projects, lapse at year-end. This means that this budget only 
contains new appropriations for the Fiscal Year. 

Key budget dates are shown below: 

Date Process 
Early January Budget discussions begin with all departments including FY 20/21 

midyear and year end projections 
March 9, 2021 Midyear presentation to Board with discussions on FY 21/22 budget 

drivers 
May 11, 2021 Budget workshop held with Board 

May 24, 2021 Presentation of the FY 21/22 proposed budget to the Board 
June 28, 2021 Adoption of the FY 21/22 budget by the Board 

329 of 401



20 

BUDGET REPORTING 

For budgetary reporting purposes, Union Sanitary District uses the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they 
become measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the liability is incurred. Non-cash expense items such as depreciation expense for 
fixed assets and accrued compensated absences are excluded from the budget.  Principal payments 
for District debt are included in the budget. 

The District operates under two funds for budgetary purposes. Those funds are: 

Sewer Service Fund – This fund accounts for the general operations, maintenance, and 
administration of Union Sanitary District. For purposes of internal accounting only, the 
District maintains separate funds within the Sewer Service Fund to track revenue and 
expenditures as they relate to operations; special projects; Other Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB); 115 Pension Trust contributions; vehicle, equipment, and information systems 
acquisitions; and maintenance of plant, pump, and structural components.  

Capacity Fund – This fund accounts for capacity related fees collected by the District and 
their related expenditures.  Capacity fees are charged by the District to assure that 
development customers that connect to the system pay their proportional share of the 
sewer and treatment plant required to convey and treat their wastewater.  Sewer capacity 
charges are governed by California Government Code Section 66013. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORTING 
The District operates as a proprietary fund-type and uses the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
All proprietary fund-types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds 
are included on the statement of net position. Where appropriate, net total assets (i.e. fund equity) 
are segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings. Proprietary fund-type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net position.

330 of 401



21 

This page intentionally left blank 

331 of 401



22 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Primary Effluent Pumps for the Aeriation Basin 

332 of 401



23 

Budget Summary – All Funds 

Actual * Actual * Budget Projected
Proposed 

Budget
 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 20/21 FY 21/22

Revenues
Sewer Service Charge 57,330,651$ 60,216,148$ 60,500,000$  62,250,000$  74,716,000$   14,216,000$   23.5%
Capacity Fees 16,158,027   14,179,464   5,712,200      3,927,900      4,949,820       (762,380)        -13.3%
Work Group Revenues 1,321,729     1,285,438     1,293,500      1,192,200      1,260,900       (32,600)          -2.5%
Interest 2,657,281     3,115,507     1,150,000      1,290,000      1,512,000       362,000          31.5%
Other Revenues 866,298        174,673        75,000           32,745           50,000            (25,000)          -33.3%
Net Loan Proceeds - 37,000,000   - - 110,000,000   110,000,000   -             

Total Revenues 78,333,986   115,971,230 68,730,700    68,692,845    192,488,720   123,758,020   180.1%

Expenditures by Type
Operating 37,204,183   41,518,799   45,186,355    43,756,720    46,970,403     1,784,048       3.9%
Internal Funds 3,071,521     2,091,781     2,647,022      2,463,156      5,886,401       3,239,379       122.4%
Debt Service 3,862,731     3,584,921     4,684,773      4,379,920      12,019,092     7,334,319       156.6%
Special Projects 913,255        1,288,761     2,723,000      928,993         3,960,104       1,237,104       45.4%
Capital Projects 6,593,915     12,695,833   42,682,500    39,197,003    43,189,200     506,700          1.2%

Total Expenditures 51,645,605   61,180,095   97,923,650    90,725,792    112,025,200   14,101,550     14.4%

Revenues Over (under) 
Expenditures 26,688,381$ 54,791,135$ (29,192,950)$ (22,032,947)$ 80,463,520$   109,656,470$ -375.6%

Board of Directors 142,215$      141,278$      180,354$       178,354$       187,043$        6,689$            3.7%
General Manager 800,880        919,583        1,066,753      1,058,833      1,194,988       128,235          12.0%
Business Services*** 9,187,579     9,910,103     11,155,858    10,668,365    21,905,486     10,749,628     96.4%
Collection Services 7,441,010     7,233,990     7,701,282      7,678,993      7,835,953       134,671          1.7%
Technical Services 6,104,798     6,577,565     6,815,278      6,670,324      7,208,954       393,676          5.8%
Treatment & Disposal Services 11,233,736   13,020,113   15,187,206    14,167,249    15,871,122     683,916          4.5%
Fabrication, Maint & Construction 9,228,217     9,392,869     10,411,419    10,177,678    10,672,350     260,931          2.5%
Capital Projects ** 6,593,915     12,695,833   42,682,500    39,197,003    43,189,200     506,700          1.2%
Special Projects ** 913,255        1,288,761     2,723,000      928,993         3,960,104       1,237,104       45.4%

Sub Total by Group 51,645,605$ 61,180,095$ 97,923,650$  90,725,792$  112,025,200$ 14,101,550$   14.4%
* Actual numbers based on modified accrual basis to reflect budget accounting
** Capital Projects and Special Projects are managed by multiple departments on a collaborative basis
*** Business Services handles debt payments and pension management.  The increase from FY 21 results from the anticipated 2021A
       debt pymt of $7.5m and the Pension 115 Trust contribution of $3m.

Variance to 
20/21  Budget % Change

EXPENDITURES BY OPERATING GROUP

333 of 401



24 

District Wide Revenue & Expenditures 

334 of 401



25 

Combined Budget by Fund 
Sewer Service & Capacity Funds 

Sewer Service Capacity
Fund Fund Total

Revenues
Sewer Service Charge 74,716,000$       -$  74,716,000$       
Capacity Fees - 4,949,820           4,949,820           
Work Group Revenues 1,260,900           - 1,260,900           
Interest 1,272,000           240,000              1,512,000           
Other Revenues 50,000 - 50,000 
Net Loan Proceeds 110,000,000       - 110,000,000       

Total Revenues 187,298,900       5,189,820           192,488,720       

Expenditures
Operating 46,970,403         - 46,970,403         
Internal Funds 5,886,401           - 5,886,401           
Debt Service 8,370,401           3,648,691           12,019,092         
Special Projects 3,960,104           - 3,960,104           
Capital Projects 28,240,200         14,949,000         43,189,200         

Total Expenditures 93,427,509         18,597,691         112,025,200       

Revenues Over (less than) Expenditures 93,871,391$       (13,407,871)$      80,463,520$       

Board of Directors 187,043$            -$  187,043$            
General Manager 1,194,988           - 1,194,988           
Business Services** 18,256,795         3,648,691           21,905,486         
Collection Services 7,835,953           - 7,835,953           
Technical Services 7,208,954           - 7,208,954           
Treatment & Disposal Services 15,871,122         - 15,871,122         
Fabrication, Maint & Construction 10,672,350         - 10,672,350         
Capital Projects * 28,240,200         14,949,000         43,189,200         
Special Projects * 3,960,104           - 3,960,104           

Sub Total by Group 93,427,509$       18,597,691$       112,025,200$     

* Capital Projects and Special Projects are managed by multiple departments on a collaborative basis.
**  Business Services manages all debt payments for the District.

EXPENDITURES BY OPERATING GROUP

335 of 401



26 

REVENUES 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Sewer Service Charges - The principal revenue source for the Sewer Service Fund is the annual Sewer 
Service Charges, which are projected to increase over the prior year budget by $14,216,000 or 
23.5%.  This increase is a combination of several items.  The first is the one time deferred amount 
from the prior year of $4,080,283 that’s being collected in FY 2022.  The second is the FY 2022 
scheduled rate increase of 8%.  Single Family Dwellings (SFD) will increase from $454.37 in FY 2021 
to $490.93 in FY 2022.  Similarly, the annual Multi-family Dwelling rate will increase from $400.58 
in FY 2021 to $432.63 in FY 2022.  Residential rates account for approximately 75% of total sewer 
service charge revenues. For non-residential customers, rates are calculated annually using flow 
based on water usage and sewage strength. 

The District collects 97% of the sewer service charge revenue on the Teeter plan through the 
Alameda County property tax bill.  As a result, there has been no impact to revenue collection for 
the District due to Covid-19. 

Capacity Fees -  The principal revenue source for the Capacity Fund is Capacity Fees, which are 
expected to decrease by $762,380 or 13.3% to the prior year budget.  These fees are collected in 
accordance with the provisions of California Assembly Bill (AB) 1600 and are intended to mitigate 
the impacts of new development. In the case of the District, these fees are collected from new 
development as a requirement of connecting to the sewer system. As such, they can only be used 
for capital projects that preserve or increase the system’s capacity to serve that new development. 
The entire region has experienced a slowdown in development largely attributed to the impacts of 
Covid 19.  While there is still strong activity in the development sector, with a number of large 
projects planned, the District has chosen to be conservative in its forecasting of capacity revenue. 

Work Group Revenues - These revenues consist of field inspection fees, plan check fees, permits, 
external work orders, and services provided to the City of Fremont’s Urban Runoff program. 
Because these items tend to vary based on external demands, anticipated revenues are typically 

Actual * Actual * Budget Projected
Proposed 

Budget
 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 20/21 FY 21/22

Revenues
Sewer Service Charge 57,330,651$  60,216,148$    60,500,000$   62,250,000$  74,716,000$    14,216,000$    23.5%
Capacity Fees 16,158,027    14,179,464      5,712,200        3,927,900       4,949,820         (762,380)           -13.3%
Work Group Revenues 1,321,729       1,285,438         1,293,500        1,192,200       1,260,900         (32,600)             -2.5%
Interest 2,657,281       3,115,507         1,150,000        1,290,000       1,512,000         362,000            31.5%
Other Revenues 866,298          174,673            75,000              32,745             50,000               (25,000)             -33.3%
Net Loan Proceeds - 37,000,000      - - 110,000,000    110,000,000    -                 

Total Revenues 78,333,986$  115,971,230$  68,730,700$   68,692,845$  192,488,720$  123,758,020$  180.1%

* Actual numbers based on modified accrual basis to reflect budget accounting

% Change
Variance to 

20/21  Budget

336 of 401



27 

estimated in a conservative manner. For FY 2022 these revenues are expected to have a small 
decrease of $32,600 or 2.5% compared to the prior year budget.   

Interest Revenues – Investment earnings are expected to increase by $362,000 or 31.5% to the prior 
year budget.  This increase is directly attributable to the anticipated bond issuance of $110 million 
dollars in September of 2021 and the resulting cash on hand.  These funds will be invested in the 
California LAIF pool until they are utilized for project expenditures.  Absent the bond earnings, 
interest revenue would decrease by $290,000.  Investment rates are expected to remain low for the 
budget year. 

Loan Proceeds - The District anticipates issuing $110 million in Revenue Bonds in the fall of 2021. 
These bonds will provide $80 million for the ETSU Phase 1A project and an additional $30 million 
for other CIP projects. 

EXPENDITURES 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Overall, District expenditures are expected to increase by $14.1 million or 14.4%.  The following 
pages discuss the significant change in expenditures for FY 2022. 

Actual * Actual * Budget Projected
Proposed 

Budget
 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 20/21 FY 21/22

Expenditures by Type
Operating 37,204,183$  41,518,799$    45,186,355$   43,756,720$  46,970,403$    1,784,048$      3.9%
Internal Funds 3,071,521       2,091,781         2,647,022        2,463,156       5,886,401         3,239,379         122.4%
Debt Service 3,862,731       3,584,921         4,684,773        4,379,920       12,019,092      7,334,319         156.6%
Special Projects 913,255          1,288,761         2,723,000        928,993          3,960,104         1,237,104         45.4%
Capital Projects 6,593,915       12,695,833      42,682,500     39,197,003    43,189,200      506,700            1.2%

Total Expenditures 51,645,605    61,180,095      97,923,650     90,725,792    112,025,200    14,101,550      14.4%

Board of Directors 142,215          141,278            180,354           178,354          187,043            6,689                 3.7%
General Manager 800,880          919,583            1,066,753        1,058,833       1,194,988         128,235            12.0%
Business Services 9,187,579       9,910,103         11,155,858     10,668,365    21,905,486      10,749,628      96.4%
Collection Services 7,441,010       7,233,990         7,701,282        7,678,993       7,835,953         134,671            1.7%
Technical Services 6,104,798       6,577,565         6,815,278        6,670,324       7,208,954         393,676            5.8%
Treatment & Disposal Services 11,233,736    13,020,113      15,187,206     14,167,249    15,871,122      683,916            4.5%
Fabrication, Maint & Construction 9,228,217       9,392,869         10,411,419     10,177,678    10,672,350      260,931            2.5%
Capital Projects ** 6,593,915       12,695,833      42,682,500     39,197,003    43,189,200      506,700            1.2%
Special Projects ** 913,255          1,288,761         2,723,000        928,993          3,960,104         1,237,104         45.4%

Sub Total by Group 51,645,605$  61,180,095$    97,923,650$   90,725,792$  112,025,200$  14,101,550$    14.4%
* Actual numbers based on modified accrual basis to reflect budget accounting
** Capital Projects and Special Projects are managed by multiple departments on a collaborative basis

EXPENDITURES BY OPERATING GROUP

Variance to 
20/21  Budget % Change

337 of 401



28 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Salaries and Benefits 

District wide, personnel expenses are budgeted to increase $1,852,407 or 6.1% over the prior year 
budget.   The major items are discussed below: 

• Salaries are budgeted to increase $1,015,748 or 5.3%.  The increase results from, prior year
wage agreements, classified scheduled step increases, two full time limited term ETSU
positions that were approved and budgeted for a portion of the prior year and are now
budgeted for the full year and the addition of a full time limited term operator.

• Pension expenses are budgeted to increase of $774,877 or 12.5% to the prior year budget
based upon rates provided by CalPERS.  The District prepays the annual Unfunded Liability
Payment in July of each year, rather than paying in 12 monthly installments, generating a
cost savings of $145,000.

• Health Care Benefit costs will increase by $168,676 or 4.5% over the prior year budget based
on premium information provided by the District’s health care provider.

• Workers Compensation costs will decrease $22,164 or 5.8% due to an improved experience
modification (x-mod).  Significant efforts have been undertaken by the District to not only
maintain, but to improve safety awareness.

• Training will decrease by $82,850 or 19.6% largely due to the lingering impacts of Covid 19
on travel and as well as an emphasis on remote access learning.

• Other salary and benefits costs will decrease by $1,880 to the prior year budget.  Other salary
and benefit costs consist of Medicare and unemployment taxes, membership fees and
certain safety program expenditures.

Actual * Actual * Budget Projected
Proposed 

Budget
 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 20/21 FY 21/22

Salaries & Benefits
Salaries 17,525,644$  19,019,548$  19,009,118$  19,182,936$  20,024,866$  1,015,748$    5.3%
Pension 4,275,816      5,025,687      6,198,861      6,201,861      6,973,738      774,877          12.5%
Health Care Benefits 2,912,814      2,969,243      3,751,220      3,751,220      3,919,896      168,676          4.5%
Workers Compensation 290,765          395,340          382,581          382,581          360,417          (22,164)           -5.8%
Training 272,599          174,798          423,300          168,350          340,450          (82,850)           -19.6%
Other 445,951          488,684          601,842          564,257          599,962          (1,880)             -0.3%

Sub Total Salaries and Benefits 25,723,589    28,073,300    30,366,922    30,251,205    32,219,329    1,852,407      6.1%

Utilities 2,226,132      2,138,842      2,622,050      2,626,100      2,486,050      (136,000)         -5.2%
Biosolids 771,995          910,169          1,481,000      1,011,143      1,496,000      15,000            1.0%
Supplies 2,013,480      2,256,859      2,228,720      2,059,803      2,206,940      (21,780)           -1.0%
Chemicals 2,153,023      2,582,245      2,639,500      2,508,388      2,795,252      155,752          5.9%
Repair & Maintenance 2,985,223      3,397,476      3,778,343      3,396,846      3,689,612      (88,731)           -2.3%
Other 1,330,741      2,159,908      2,069,820      1,903,235      2,077,220      7,400               0.4%

Total Operating Expenditures 37,204,183$  41,518,799$  45,186,355$  43,756,720$  46,970,403$  1,784,048$    3.9%

Variance to 
20/21  Budget % Change

Operating Expenses

338 of 401



29 

Other Operating Expenditures 

Other Operating expenses are budgeted, in total, to decrease $68,359 to the prior year budget.   The 
major items are discussed below: 

• Utilities are decreasing $136,000 or 5.2%.  In the prior year (FY 21), PGE was indicating
significant rate increases, but at budget time had not provided exact rate impacts.  In
anticipation of the increase, the District budgeted for the worst case. The actual increase
was slightly lower than anticipated leading to a reduction in the 2022 budget.

• Biosolids disposal is remaining relatively flat with a $15,000 increase.  In 2021, the District
conducted an RFP for biosolids hauling resulting in an 18 month contract with 3 one year
extensions contract.

• Supplies are decreasing $21,780 or 1.0%.  Despite price increases, the District continues to
find ways to keep supply costs down through focused purchasing and supply management.

• Chemicals are budgeted to increase $155,752 or 5.9%.  The main increases are for Hydrogen
Peroxide, Hypochlorite and Polymers.  These chemicals are used in the treatment of plant
flows and for odor controls.

• Repair and Maintenance costs are decreasing by $88,731 or 2.3% to FY 2021.  This account
varies year over year depending on the anticipated need of plant and equipment
maintenance

• Other expenditures, which consists of rents, professional fees, permits, insurance costs and
small asset purchases is budgeted to remain relatively flat in the aggregate.  A detailed
analysis shows increases in insurance and professional fees with reductions in certain
consulting costs.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) – Fund 40 

OPEB expenditures for the District are increasing $213,047 or 17.6% to the prior year.  The increase 
is largely related to a new policy, Pension and OPEB Policy 2095, adopted by the District in 2021 to 
increase and maintain the program funding percentages between 90% and 100%.  These additional 
funds will work toward achieving that policy goal. 

Actual Actual Budget Projected
Proposed 

Budget
Fund Description  FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 20/21 FY 21/22
Other Post Employment Benefits - Fund 40 1,333,416$ 1,392,371$ 1,208,354$ 1,208,354$  $1,421,401 213,047$       17.6%
115 Pension Trust - Fund 45 (New Fund) - - -                   -    3,000,000 3,000,000      100.0%
Vehicles & Equip Replacement - Fund 50 725,877      42,258        77,868        101,802      125,000      47,132           60.5%
Information Systems Replacement - Fund 60 690,885      412,483      960,800      953,000      940,000      (20,800)          -2.2%
Plant and Pump Station Replacement - Fund 70 321,343      244,669      400,000      200,000      400,000      - 0.0%

 Total 3,071,521$ 2,091,781$ 2,647,022$ 2,463,156$ 5,886,401$ 3,239,379$    122.4%

Variance to 
20/21  Budget % Change

INTERNAL FUNDS

339 of 401



30 

115 Pension Trust - Fund 45 

115 Pension Trust, fund 45, is a new fund to facilitate the policy discussed in the paragraph above. 
Similar to OPEB, the long term goal is to increase the funding percentage of the District pension 
plan.  Annually, the Board determines an amount to contribute into a qualified 115 Trust.  This Trust 
accumulates funds, along with the related investment income, to be used for paying future qualified 
pension expenses.  This strategy is expected to save the District $24 million dollars over the next 27 
years in pension costs. 

Vehicle and Equipment Replacement – Fund 50 

For FY 2022 the District is planning on purchasing an Air Release Valve Vacuum Truck to replace a 
vehicle that is being retired. 

Information Systems Replacement – Fund 60 

The following schedule details the budgeted expenditures for Information Systems. This list changes 
from year to year depending on the projects and equipment needs of the department. 

Plant and Pump Station Replacement – Fund 70 

The following schedule details the budgeted expenditures for the Plant and Pump Stations.  These 
expenditures are determined based on plant wide assessments conducted each year. 

Project/System
Small Equipment (Laptops, Switches, Routers, etc.)  $     409,000 
Non-Residential Billing Replacement Phase 2         125,000 
Permit Tracking System Replacement         125,000 
GIS            88,000 
Electronic Records Management            63,000 
IT Security            40,000 
ERP Replacement (Begin Planning)            37,500 
Portal Proficy Replacement            37,500 
Neo Gov Expansion            15,000 

Total 940,000$     

Renewal & Replacement - Information Systems

Unplanned Maint/Replacement of EBDA pump station  $     215,000 

        185,000 
Total 400,000$     

New Assets (2 polymer skids for GBT's, purchase 3 rebuild 
kits for NPS & IPS, 1 Sampler)

Renewal & Replacement - Plant and Pump Station

340 of 401



31 

2021A Revenue Bonds - During FY 2022 the District anticipates issuing bonds in the amount of $110 
million dollars.  Approximately $80 million dollars of the issuance will be used to fund Phase 1A of 
the ETSU program.  The balance of $30 million will be used to fund three CIP projects scheduled to 
begin in FY 2022. 

Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) Loan - In the fall of 2020, the District 
applied to be considered for an WIFIA loan to fund a portion of the $350 million ETSU project.  In 
January 2021, the District was invited to the second phase of the loan process and anticipates being 
awarded a $189 million dollar loan in the fall of 2021.  The District will have eight years to fully draw 
down the loan at which time the principal and any capitalized interest will begin repayment. 

The debt payment budgeted above for the 2021A bonds is an estimate.  The actual debt payment 
will be determined once the issuance is complete and final terms of the bonds are established. 

FY Payments Payment Payment Total
Debt Status Issued Maturity FY Start Sewer Srvc Capacity Payment
2020A Revenue Bonds Issued 19/20 2050 19/20 1,937,829$ 2,569,237$ 4,507,066$   
2021A Revenue Bonds Anticipated 21/22 2052 21/22 6,432,572   1,079,454   7,512,026 

8,370,401$ 3,648,691$ 12,019,092$ 

FY 21/22 Principal & Interest
Debt Service

341 of 401



32 

The special projects fund accounts for expenditures that are outside the year over year operating 
costs of the District and also do not meet the definition of a capital project.  Many of the items are 
assessments of plant and system conditions or feasibility studies for future capital projects.  A 
discussion of some of the major items follows: 

Anticipated Election Costs - These funds have been set aside for the upcoming Board Elections to 
be held at the time of the primary elections in March of 2022. 

Adopted Estimated Proposed
DESCRIPTION Budget Actual Estimated New $ Budget

FY 20/21 FY 20/21 Carryover (Provision) FY 21/22
Administrative & Regulatory
Anticipated Biosolids Coalition Membership Dues 25,000$         25,000$     -$  25,000$         25,000$         
Anticipated Election Costs (Fremont based on $8 per 
registered voters in primary - 117,513 estimated) - - - 940,104         940,104         
GIS JPA 30,000            30,000        - 30,000            30,000            
HR NEOGov Onboarding System 10,000            - - - - 
Property Acquisition 1,500,000      - 1,500,000      - 1,500,000      
Public Information Program 70,000            60,000        10,000            55,000            65,000            
Public Outreach Programs 150,000         100,000     50,000            75,000            125,000         
Sub-Total Administrative & Regulatory 1,785,000 215,000     1,560,000 1,125,104 2,685,104 

Studies & Other
ACWD/SFPUC Joint Reclaimed Water Study 75,000            12,601        - - - 
Alvarado Sub-Surface Investigation (Plant Groundwater 
Monitoring) 8,000              5,364          2,636              7,364              10,000            
Capacity Fee Study 25,000            20,000        - - - 
CIP Front End Specs Update 10,000            - 5,000              - 5,000              
Cogen Replacement and Ventilation Study - - - 125,000         125,000         
Cost of Service Analysis (COSA) - 7,098          - - - 
Digester 8 Feasibility Study - - - 100,000         100,000         
Energy Resiliency Study - - - 100,000         100,000         
Financial Master Plan 40,000            - - - - 
Fiscal Model Update 25,000            15,000        10,000            20,000            30,000            
Forcemain Condition Assessment 30,000            30,000        - 5,000              5,000              
Forcemain Geotech Investigation at Alameda Creek 100,000         100,000     - 30,000            30,000            
Headworks Degritting - - - 200,000         200,000         
Irvington Basin MP Update 270,000         210,000     60,000            20,000            80,000            
Local Limits Study - - - 70,000            70,000            
Odor Control Pilot Study 305,000         292,079     12,921            7,079              20,000            
Old Alameda Creek Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD) 50,000            21,851        - - - 
Pump Stations Asset Condition Assessment - - - 250,000         250,000         
Seal Level Rise Study Update - - - 150,000         150,000         
Thermal Dryer Feasibility Study - - - 100,000         100,000         
Sub-Total Studies & Other 938,000         713,993     90,557 1,184,443 1,275,000 
Total Special Projects 2,723,000$   928,993$   1,650,557$   2,309,547$   3,960,104$   

Special Project Expenditures

342 of 401



33 

Property Acquisition - Each year the District sets aside funds for property acquisition should one or 
more properties of interest become available.  The primary purpose of property acquisition is for 
future plant or pump station expansion. 

Digester 8 Feasibility Study- This study is to determine the feasibility of removing several of the 
current digesters and replacing them with a larger and newer digester.  This project could potentially 
save the district money for long term repair and maintenance costs on the older digesters and 
provide more capacity with a larger digester. 

Energy Resiliency Study - This study will evaluate the feasibility of different energy projects (solar, 
wind, batteries, and cogeneration) at the Plant, pump stations, lift stations, and other District 
parcels located in the service area. 

Headworks Degritting - This study will evaluate several projects at the Plant and determine site and 
system requirements, construction sequence, operational constraints, and extent of the projects' 
scope.  Projects include the Degritting at Headworks, Odor Scrubber Replacement at the East and 
West Primary Clarifier Buildings and Headworks, Primary Clarifiers 1-4 Seismic Upgrade, and Plant 
1 and 2 Water Improvements.  One key system evaluation will be the primary sludge piping system 
as a result of adding the new degritting process at the Headworks Building and eliminating the 
existing degritters in the Degritter Building. 

Pump Station Assessment - This study will conduct a condition assessment of the pump and lift 
stations' major assets and recommend the renewal and replacements of these assets based on their 
remaining useful life.  This study will be updated every five years. 

Sea Level Study Update - This study will evaluate the current sea level rise projections and the effect 
the projections will have on the District's facilities.  The study will recommend measures for the 
District to mitigate the impact. 

Thermal Dryer Feasibility Study - This study will evaluate the feasibility of USD installing and 
operating a thermal dryer. A thermal dryer uses natural or biogas to heat dewatered biosolids to 
reduce the water content and create Class A biosolids which expands the possible re-use options 
for the biosolids.  

343 of 401



34 

FUND BALANCE 

New Control Pumps and Piping for Digester 7

344 of 401



35 

Reserves listed above are discussed below: 

Operating Cash Flow – Sewer Service Charge revenues are collected by the Alameda County Tax 
Collector’s Office and remitted to the District in two major installments in December and April of 
each year. For the District to pay its ongoing expenditures throughout the year, it reserves between 
three and six months (25-50%) of gross operating expenditures at the start of each fiscal year. 

Structural Renewal & Replacement – To maintain the ability to renew and replace infrastructure, 
this reserve is funded at the average annual renewal/replacement capital costs based on the 10-
year CIP. This is a conservative approach. 

Emergency – In order to help mitigate the financial impacts of an emergency or catastrophic event, 
the District has an Emergency Reserve. The target for FY 2022 is $7.25 million. 

Short-Term Liquidity – The District maintains a minimum amount of immediately available funds, to 
cover the rolling 6-month average monthly payroll, plus a rolling 6-month average of the monthly 
accounts payable, held in a local bank account, in cash deposits. 

Parity Debt Reserve- This fund was recently established to cover debt covenants associated with the 
recent Series 2020A bond issuance.  This amount will be increased accordingly when the proposed 
2021A bond issuance is completed. 

Risk Management - The District is a member of and purchases liability insurance from the California 
Sanitation Risk Management Association (CSRMA). The deductible of $500,000 reduces the amount 
of premiums charged to the District. To account for an event that is either not covered by insurance 
or under the deductible amount, the District reserves two times the annual deductible amount, 
based on claims history. 

Industrial Customer Stabilization- The District has several Significant Industrial Users (SIUs). This 
reserve allows the District to implement appropriate responses and actions should one or more of 

Operating Cash Flow 24,068,200$   
Structural Renewal & Replacement 50,075,000     
Emergency 7,250,000       
Short Term Liquidity 5,000,000       
Parity Debt (does not include 2021A requirements) 2,887,200       
Risk Management 1,000,000       
Industrial Customer Stabilization 1,400,000       
Unspent Debt Issuance (does not include 2021A funds) 7,740,000       

Total Restricted/Allocated Balances 99,420,400$   

RESERVE/ALLOCATION BALANCES

345 of 401



36 

these SIUs significantly scale back or cease operations unexpectedly, resulting in a rapid loss of 
revenue to the District. 

Unspent Debt Issuance – These funds represent the unspent 2020A bond issuance.  They are 
maintained in a separate investment account and are being drawn down for specifically identified 
projects as they progress. 

346 of 401



37 

This page intentionally left blank 

347 of 401



38 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

Looking West Across the Aeration Basins 

348 of 401



39 

Capital Improvement Pan 
Capital improvements are construction or renovation activities that add value to the Districts fixed 
assets (pipelines, buildings, facilities, and equipment) or significantly extend their useful life.  Each 
year, the District reviews it’s 20 year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) based on factors such as 
growth, regulatory requirements, planning documents, and existing asset management needs.  The 
rehabilitation, replacement, improvement, and expansion of the District’s facilities continue to be 
the key drivers for the proposed Fiscal Year 2022 CIP. The District funds an extensive CIP plan that 
is designed to preserve, maintain, and enhance assets, meet regulatory requirements, 
accommodate the community's needs, and protect public health and the environment.  

In the next 12 to 18 months the District expects to have over 45 individual capital projects underway 
that will be completed in the next 1 to 7 years totaling in excess of $440 million dollars.  The 
following pages provide a description of those projects followed by a breakout summary of the CIP 
projects for the next five years.  The appendix contains a detailed summary of the entire 20 year CIP 
budget. 

CIP Project Descriptions 

Cathodic Protection 
Improvements 

The Cathodic Protection Improvements project will replace  the existing cathodic 
protection systems at the Plant, pump stations, and force mains.  The purpose of 
the cathodic protection systems is to prevent the corrosion of buried steel, ductile 
iron, and cast iron pipelines, fittings, and other structures.  District staff surveys 
and tests all of the cathodic protection systems annually and will hire a 
consultant to determine if any of the systems need to be replaced. 

ETSU - Campus 
Building 

This project will replace the Administration, Control, and Facilities Maintenance 
Buildings with one combined campus building. 

Field Ops Bldg. Seismic 
Upgrade and Leak 

Repairs 
This project will include seismic retrofits and leak repairs to the Field Operations 
Building. 

FMC Storage This project will provide equipment and materials storage for the FMC Work 
Group. 

Solar Panels/Inverters 
Replacement at Carport 

This project will replace the solar panels and/or power inverters of the Solar 
Carport System located at the Plant.  The schedule of replacement is based on a 
20-year useful life for the solar panels and a 10-year useful life for the power
inverters.

Solar Panels/Inverters 
Replacement at 

Irvington 

This project will replace the solar panels and power inverters for the photovoltaic 
system located at the Irvington Pump Station.  The schedule of replacement is 
based on a 20-year useful life for the solar panels and a 10-year useful life for 
the power inverters. 

Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 
This project will install cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) inside existing deteriorated 
sewer mains without trenching.  District staff will review the CCTV inspection of 
the sewer mains and identify the mains that are candidates for CIPP 
rehabilitation.  This includes budgets for multiple phases of work. 

Central Avenue 
Sanitary Sewer 

Relocation 
This project will relocate an existing sewer main on Central Avenue in the City of 
Newark to accommodate the City's plans to construct an overpass above the 
railroad crossing. 

349 of 401



40 

Gravity Sewer 
Rehab/Replacement 

This project will rehabilitate and/or replace existing deteriorated sewer mains by 
open cut trenching.  District staff will review the CCTV inspection of the sewer 
mains and identify the mains that are candidates for rehabilitation/replacement 
by the open cut trenching method.  This includes budgets for multiple phases of 
work. 

RCP Sewer Rehab 
(Alvarado Basin) 

This project will rehabilitate deteriorated sewer trunk mains located in the 
Alvarado Basin that are primarily reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) by the CIPP 
method.  The project timing will correspond with the completion of the condition 
assessment phase of the drainage basin's master plan update. 

RCP Sewer Rehab 
(Irvington Basin) 

This project will rehabilitate deteriorated sewer trunk mains located in the 
Irvington Basin that are primarily reinforced concrete pipe (RCP) by the CIPP 
method.  The project timing will correspond with the completion of the condition 
assessment phase of the drainage basin's master plan update. 

Cherry St PS This project will include electrical and mechanical improvements to the Cherry 
Street Pump Station. 

Forcemain Corrosion 
Repairs - Phase 3 

This is the third of four phases to repair or replace corroded steel fittings, pipes, 
and valves in the manholes along the east force main between Irvington Pump 
Station and Newark Pump Station. 

Forcemain Corrosion 
Repairs - Phase 4 

This is the fourth of four phases to repair or replace corroded steel fittings, pipes, 
and valves in the manholes along the west force main between Irvington Pump 
Station and Newark Pump Station. 

Irvington PS Pumps 
and VFDs 

This project will replace the wastewater pumps, variable frequency drives, 
piping, backup generator, and other equipment at the Irvington Pump Station. 

Newark and Irvington 
PS Chemical System 

Improvements 
This project will replace the odor control systems, chemical storage and pumping 
systems, and other miscellaneous work at Newark Pump Station and Irvington 
Pump Station. 

Pump Station Asset 
Condition Assessment 

R&R 

These are budget placeholders for replacing equipment at the pump and lift 
stations based on recommendations from the 2015 Pump Station Master Plan 
(which will now be called Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment Study) and 
any subsequent updates. 

Sanctuary West Pump 
Station 

This is a budget placeholder for the replacement of the Cherry Street Pump 
Station when the Sanctuary West housing development is constructed. 

Transport System Misc. 
Projects These are budget placeholders for transport system needs. 

Wet Weather Flow 
Management 

This is a budget placeholder for projects related to USD's wet weather flow 
management needs. 

Aeration Blower 11 and 
East Blower Bldg 

Improvements 
This project will install a second high speed aeration blower, upgrade the 
building ventilation system, and make structural repairs in the East Blower 
Building. 

Alvarado Influent PS 
Improvements 

This project will replace the wastewater pumps, variable frequency drives, 
piping, valves, electrical switchboard, and other miscellaneous improvements to 
the Alvarado Influent Pump Station. 

Alvarado Influent Valve 
Box Gate Valves 1-2 

This project will replace the force main knife gate valves at the Alvarado Influent 
Valve Box and the Headworks Valve Box. 

Centrifuge Building 
Improvements 

This project will replace the horizontal and inclined conveyors in the Centrifuge 
Building. 

Centrifuge 
Replacement This project will replace the centrifuges in the Centrifuge Building. 

Centrifuge System 
Equipment 

Replacement 
This project will replace pumps, conveyors, piping, and electrical equipment in 
the Centrifuge Building. 

Cogen Engine No. 1 
60K Block 

Replacement 
This project will replace the engine block after the current engine block on Cogen 
No. 1 has operated for 60,000 hours. 

350 of 401



41 

Cogen Engine No. 2 
60K Block Replacement 

This project will replace the engine block after the current engine block on Cogen 
No. 2 has operated for 60,000 hours. 

Digester No. 1 Insp & 
Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Primary 
Digester No. 1 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Digester No. 2 Insp & 
Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Primary 
Digester No. 2 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Digester No. 4 Insp & 
Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Primary 
Digester No. 4 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Digester No. 6 Insp & 
Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Primary 
Digester No. 6 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Digester No. 7 This project will construct new Primary Digester No. 7, hot water boiler, and iron 
salt chemical storage and feed system. 

Emergency Outfall 
Outlet Improvements 

This project will replace a portion of the final effluent discharge piping system at 
the Old Alameda Creek and construct a redundant pipeline and a new concrete 
apron around the final effluent discharge opening at the Creek. 

ETSU - Aeration Basin 
Modifications 

This project will modify Aeration Basins 1 through 7 to improve the plant's 
activated sludge system. 

ETSU - Aeration Basin 
No. 8 

This project will construct new Aeration Basin 8 to increase the plant's activated 
sludge system's capacity. 

ETSU - Aeration 
Internal Lift Pumps This project will replace the three carbon steel lift pumps at Lift Station 2. 
ETSU - Blower 7-10 

Replacement This project will replace Blowers 7 through 10 with high speed aeration blowers. 
ETSU - Secondary 

Clarifiers This project will construct four new secondary clarifiers. 
ETSU - Switchboard 4 

Replacement This project will replace 480-volt Switchboard 4. 
ETSU - Effluent 

Facilities 
This project will replace the chlorine contact tank, final effluent pump station, and 
reclaimed water pump station. 

ETSU - Plant 
Equalization Storage 

This project will construct primary effluent equalization storage at the existing 
Secondary Clarifiers 1 through 4 structures. 

Flares Replacement 
This project will replace the digester gas flare system when the Bay Area Air 
Quality Management District requires the flares shall meet the latest emissions 
limits. 

Headworks Screens 
Replacement 

This project will replace the two mechanical screens and one manual bar rack 
with three new mechanical screens. 

MCC Replacement This project will replace electrical motor control centers that have reached the 
end of their useful life. 

Miscellaneous 
Improvements 

This project will rehabilitate or replace miscellaneous structural and electrical 
improvements at various facilities at the plant. 

Odor Scrubber System 
Improvements 

This project will replace the odor control systems at the Headworks Building, 
Primary Clarifiers 1 through 4 Building, Alvarado Influent Pump Station, 
Centrifuge Building, WAS Thickening Building, Gravity Thickeners, and Degritter 
Building.  

Plant 1 and 2 Water 
System Improvements 

This project will construct a booster pump station to improve the capacity and 
pressure of the plant's 1 and 2 water systems. 

Plant 5kV Switchgear This project will replace the plant's 4,160-volt switchgear located in the Main 
Electrical Building. 

Plant 12kV Switchgear 
This project will construct a new 12,000-volt utility switchgear located near the 
Veasy Street entrance and replace the plant's existing 12,000-Volt utility 
switchgear located in the Main Electrical Building. 

351 of 401



42 

Plant Asset Condition 
Assessment R&R 

These are budget placeholders for replacing equipment at the plant based on 
recommendations from the 2018 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Study, and 
any subsequent updates. 

Plant Fiber Optic 
Network 

These are budget placeholders for construction of underground communication 
duct banks to provide a route for the plant's fiber optic communication 
infrastructure. 

Plant Mechanical and 
Electrical Projects 

These are budget placeholders for the mechanical and electrical assets at the 
plant. 

PLC Replacement These are budget placeholders to replace the processor modules in the plant's 
programmable logic controllers located at all process areas. 

Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) 
Seismic Upgrade 

This project will upgrade the Primary Clarifiers 1 through 4 Building’s structure to 
address seismic deficiencies identified in the 2016 Seismic Study. 

Primary Clarifier Rehab 
(5-6) 

This project will replace the clarifier mechanisms, modify the ventilation system, 
and rehabilitate the structural components of the Primary Clarifiers 5 and 6 
Building, including Sludge Pump Room 3. 

Secondary Digester No. 
1 Insp & Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Secondary 
Digester No. 1 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Secondary Digester No. 
2 Insp & Rehab 

This project will conduct a condition assessment and rehabilitate Secondary 
Digester No. 2 and its associated equipment, piping, and valves. 

Seismic Retrofit of 
Conc. Structures 

These are budget placeholders for the seismic retrofit of concrete structures at 
the plant. 

Site Drainage 
Improvements 

This project will construct additional site waste pump station and piping system 
depending on the outcome of the Plant Site Drainage Study Update. 

Sodium Hypochlorite 
Loop Improvements 

This project will replace portions of the sodium hypochlorite piping system for the 
odor control system. 

Standby Power 
Generation System 

Upgrade 
This project will replace the plant's standby generators, Substation 2, and the 
Odor Control Building's switchgear. 

Switchboard 3 
Replacement This project will replace Switchboard 3 located in the Main Electrical Building. 

Thickeners 1 and 2 
Rehabilitation 

This project will replace the thickener mechanism and rehabilitate the concrete at 
Thickeners 1 and 2. 

WAS Thickeners This project will replace the gravity belt thickeners, pumps, motor control center, 
and programmable logic controller in the WAS Thickener Building. 

352 of 401



Total Spent in
Project % Fund % Fund Project Prior FY 27 FY 32 FY 37
Name 80 90 Rank Cost Years FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 to FY 31 to FY 36 to FY 41 Total

Admin Facilities
Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage 100% -           3 250 -$               -$              -$                 -$                 -$                 -$              250$           -$                 -$                 250$               
Cathodic Protection Improvements 100% -           2 4,080              180            550           - 500              - 300           600              1,100          850              3,900              
ETSU - Campus Building 100% -           1 70,430            1,311        13,000     38,539        17,580        - - - - - 69,119           
Field Ops Bldg. Seismic Upgrade and Leak Repairs 100% -           1 3,300              - - - - 200              -                 3,100          - - 3,300              
FMC Storage 100% -           3 300 - - - 300              - - - - - 300 
Plant Paving 100% -           3 1,750              - - - - - - 950              600              200              1,750              
Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement 100% -           2 150 - - - - - - 150              - - 150 
Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 50% 50% 3 300 - - - - - - - 300              - 300 
Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50% 50% 2 900 - 100           - - - - 600              - 200              900 
Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 50% 50% 2 2,100              - 300           - - - - - 1,800          - 2,100              

83,560 1,491 13,950 38,539 18,380 200 300 5,650 3,800 1,250 82,069 
Collection System
Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 100% -           2 6,803              8                -                 530              - 560              -                 1,860          1,420          2,425          6,795              
Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation 100% -           1 1,085              35              50             1,000          - - -                 - - - 1,050              
Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement 100% -           2 20,803            136            650           - 1,698          - 1,807        3,968          6,956          5,588          20,667           
RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin) 100% -           1 4,900              - - - - 200              2,200        2,500          - - 4,900              
RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin) 100% -           1 9,678              78              2,200        2,500          - - -                 4,900          - - 9,600              
RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin) 100% -           1 4,900              - - - - - - 4,900          - - 4,900              

48,169            257            2,900        4,030          1,698          760              4,007        18,128        8,376          8,013          47,912           
Transport System
Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 50% 50% 2 10,612            - - - - - - 6,648          3,964          - 10,612           
Cherry St. PS -           100% 1 490 90              200           200              - - -                 - - - 400 
Equalization Storage @ Newark -           100% 2 24,400            - - - - - - 24,400        - - 24,400           
Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3 100% -           1 1,010              10              250           750              - - -                 - - - 1,000              
Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4 100% -           1 1,050              - - 250              800              - - - - - 1,050              
Forcemain Rehabilitation 100% -           3 50,000            - - - - - - 900              49,100        - 50,000           
Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 50% 50% 2 13,400            - 100           - 1,550          8,250          3,500        - - - 13,400           
Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Improve 45% 55% 2 7,840              140            2,500        5,200          - - -                 - - - 7,700              
Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 50% 50% 2 9,800              - - - - - - 9,800          - - 9,800              
Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100% -           3 21,086            - - 1,432          - 3,632          872           4,365          5,248          5,537          21,086           
Sanctuary West Pump Station -           100% 2 3,000              - - 1,500          1,500          - - - - - 3,000              
Transport System Misc. Projects 100% -           3 4,750              - - 250              250              250              250           1,250          1,250          1,250          4,750              
Wet Weather Flow Management 100% -           2 1,100              - - 100              1,000          - - - - - 1,100              

148,538         240            3,050        9,682          5,100          12,132        4,622        47,363        59,562        6,787          148,298         
Treatment Plant
Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improve -           100% 2 1,610              210            1,400        - - - - - - - 1,400              
Alvarado Influent PS Improvements 50% 50% 2 7,221              2,221        5,000        - - - - - - - 5,000              
Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2 100% -           2 550 - - - 50                500              -                 - - - 550 
Centrifuge Building Improvements 50% 50% 2 1,270              770            500           - - - - - - - 500 
Centrifuge Replacement 50% 50% 2 18,300            - - - - - 1,100        17,200        - - 18,300           
Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement 100% -           2 13,600            - - - - - 900           12,700        - - 13,600           
Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 50% 50% 1 2,300              - - - - 1,050          -                 - 1,250          - 2,300              
Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 50% 50% 1 3,600              - - 1,000          - - -                 1,150          - 1,450          3,600              
Cogen Retrofit 50% 50% 2 2,100              - - - - - - 2,100          - - 2,100              
Control Box No. 1 Improvements 100% -           2 6,715              - - - - - - 6,715          - - 6,715              
Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement 100% -           2 4,990              - - - - - - 3,660          1,330          - 4,990              
Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 50% 50% 2 16,510            - - - - - - 16,510        - - 16,510           
Diffuser Replacement 100% -           3 1,600              - - - - - - - 1,600          - 1,600              
Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 100% -           2 10,700            - - 200              1,400          2,800          -                 - 6,300          - 10,700           
Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 100% -           1 9,380              3,330        150           - - - - - 5,900          - 6,050              
Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 4,235              - - - - - - 413              3,822          - 4,235              
Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 4,320              - - - - 420              3,900        - - - 4,320              
Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 4,480              - - - - - - 4,480          - - 4,480              
Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 14,750            - - 200              1,000          4,650          -                 - - 8,900          14,750           
Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 5,100              - - - - - - - - 5,100          5,100              

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT CIP FISCAL YEAR 21/22 - 20 YEAR FORECAST SUMMARY

43

353 of 401



Total Spent in
Project % Fund % Fund Project Prior FY 27 FY 32 FY 37
Name 80 90 Rank Cost Years FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 to FY 31 to FY 36 to FY 41 Total

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT CIP FISCAL YEAR 21/22 - 20 YEAR FORECAST SUMMARY

Digester No. 7 -           100% 1 28,500            25,000      3,500        - - - - - - - 3,500              
Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 50% 50% 1 1,900              500            1,400        - - - - - - - 1,400              
ETSU - Aeration Basin Modifications 60% 40% 1 45,013            4,350        3,563        17,200        9,400          10,500        -                 - - - 40,663           
ETSU - Aeration Basin No. 8 40% 60% 1 15,200            - 4,000        7,500          3,700          - - - - - 15,200           
ETSU - Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 60% 40% 1 3,725              - 425           1,600          900              800              -                 - - - 3,725              
ETSU - Blower 7-10 Replacement 60% 40% 1 11,200            - 1,500        4,900          2,800          2,000          -                 - - - 11,200           
ETSU - Secondary Clarifiers 60% 40% 1 111,185         110            3,700        10,350        36,000        50,125        10,900     - - - 111,075         
ETSU - Switchboard 4 Replacement 60% 40% 1 1,650              - - 150              1,000          500              -                 - - - 1,650              
ETSU - Effluent Facilities 60% 40% 1 38,175            - 800           975              17,025        10,475        8,900        - - - 38,175           
ETSU - Plant Equalization Storage 25% 75% 1 32,000            - - - 1,000          1,500          4,249        25,251        - - 32,000           
ETSU - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 50% 50% 3 226,204         - - - - - - - 4,738          221,466      226,204         
Flares Replacement 100% -           2 6,170              - - 670              5,500          - - - - - 6,170              
Headworks Gates 100% -           2 4,000              - - - - - - 4,000          - - 4,000              
Headworks Screens Replacement 60% 40% 1 2,480              2,380        100           - - - - - - - 100 
MCC Replacement 100% -           2 965 - 50             400              - - -                 515              - - 965 
Miscellaneous Improvements 100% -           2 1,500              - 250           1,250          - - -                 - - - 1,500              
Odor Scrubber System Improvements 100% -           2 47,965            - - - - 610              1,242        14,518        22,046        9,549          47,965           
Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements 100% -           2 1,120              - - - - - 100           1,020          - - 1,120              
Plant 5kV Switchgear 100% -           2 4,113              - - - 370              2,620          1,123        - - - 4,113              
Plant 12kV Switchgear 100% -           1 14,100            - 500           3,500          - 1,000          5,100        4,000          - - 14,100           
Plant Additional Power Source 50% 50% 3 10,000            - - - - - - - - 10,000        10,000           
Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100% -           2 27,299            - - 100              150              4,086          475           6,772          10,576        5,140          27,299           
Plant Fiber Optic Network 50% 50% 2 4,898              - - - - - 110           2,788          2,000          - 4,898              
Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects 100% -           2 9,500              - - 500              500              500              500           2,500          2,500          2,500          9,500              
PLC Replacement 100% -           2 2,250              - - 250              - 300              -                 350              400              950              2,250              
Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Seismic Upgrade 100% -           1 6,050              - - 682              3,758          1,610          -                 - - - 6,050              
Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 75% 25% 2 22,575            - - - - 1,445          9,680        11,450        - - 22,575           
Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 8,136              - - 334              3,089          - - - 4,713          - 8,136              
Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 100% -           3 8,581              - - - - - 353           3,258          - 4,970          8,581              
Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures 100% -           2 2,700              - - - 300              - 300           600              900              600              2,700              
Site Drainage Improvements 50% 50% 2 6,226              - - - 400              830              2,776        2,220          - - 6,226              
Sodium Hypochlorite Loop Improvements 100% -           2 1,300              - 50             650              600              - - - - - 1,300              
Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 100% -           1 33,240            2,340        500           16,000        12,100        2,300          -                 - - - 30,900           
Standby Power Generator No. 4 -           100% 3 21,599            - - - - - - - 2,057          19,542        21,599           
Switchboard 3 Replacement 100% -           2 2,228              - 200           1,428          600              - - - - - 2,228              
Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation 100% -           2 2,513              - - - 200              1,619          694           - - - 2,513              
Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 100% -           3 3,281              - - - - - - - 3,281          - 3,281              
WAS Thickeners 100% -           1 14,860            860            500           8,000          5,500          - - - - - 14,000           
Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy -           100% 3 10,500            - - - - - - 10,500        - - 10,500           

928,232         42,071      28,088     77,839        107,342      102,240      52,402     154,670      73,413        290,167      886,161         
Grand Total 1,208,499$    44,059$    47,988$   130,090$   132,520$   115,332$   61,331$   225,811$   145,151$   306,217$   1,164,440$   

44354 of 401



Total Spent in
Project % Fund % Fund Project Prior FY 27 FY 32 FY 37
Name 80 90 Rank Cost Years FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 to FY 31 to FY 36 to FY 41 Total

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT CIP FISCAL YEAR 21/22 - 20 YEAR FORECAST SUMMARY

Total Administrative 83,560$         1,491$      13,950$   38,539$      18,380$      200$           300$         5,650$        3,800$        1,250$        82,069$         
Total Collection System 48,169            257            2,900        4,030          1,698          760              4,007        18,128        8,376          8,013          47,912           
Total Transport 148,538         240            3,050        9,682          5,100          12,132        4,622        47,363        59,562        6,787          148,298         
Total Treatment Plant 928,232         42,071      28,088     77,839        107,342      102,240      52,402     154,670      73,413        290,167      886,161         

Grand Total 1,208,499 44,059 47,988 130,090 132,520 115,332 61,331 225,811 145,151 306,217 1,164,440 

Repair & Replacement (Fund 800) Total 821,133         14,201      31,378     106,460      100,225      79,021        44,061     139,602      136,068      170,117      806,932         
Capacity (Fund 900) Totals 387,366         29,859      16,610     23,630        32,295        36,311        17,270     86,209        9,083          136,100      357,508         

1,208,499$    44,059$    47,988$   130,090$   132,520$   115,332$   61,331$   225,811$   145,151$   306,217$   1,164,440$   

28,240$   
14,949     
43,189$   

Priority 1 Administrative 73,730$         1,311$      13,000$   38,539$      17,580$      200$           -$              3,100$        -$                 -$                 72,419$         
Priority 1 Collection System 20,563            113            2,250        3,500          - 200              2,200        12,300        - - 20,450           
Priority 1 Transport 2,550              100            450           1,200          800              - -                 - 2,450              
Priority 1 Treatment & Disposal 374,558         38,870      20,638     71,857        93,183        81,860        29,149     30,401        7,150          1,450          335,688         

Total Priority 1 471,401         40,394      36,338     115,096      111,563      82,260        31,349     45,801        7,150          1,450          431,007         

Priority 2 Administrative 7,230              180            950           - 500              - 300           1,350          2,900          1,050          7,050              
Priority 2 Collection System 27,606            144            650           530              1,698          560              1,807        5,828          8,376          8,013          27,462           
Priority 2 Transport 70,152            140            2,600        6,800          4,050          8,250          3,500        40,848        3,964          - 70,012           
Priority 2 Treatment & Disposal 230,888         3,201        7,450        5,448          10,070        15,310        19,000     105,618      46,052        18,739        227,687         

Total Priority 2 335,876         3,665        11,650     12,778        16,318        24,120        24,607     153,644      61,292        27,802        332,211         

Priority 3 Administrative 2,600              - -                 - 300              - -                 1,200          900              200              2,600              
Priority 3 Collection System - - -                 - - - -                 - - - - 
Priority 3 Transport 75,836            - -                 1,682          250              3,882          1,122        6,515          55,598        6,787          75,836           
Priority 3 Treatment & Disposal 322,786         - -                 534              4,089          5,070          4,253        18,651        20,211        269,978      322,786         

Total Priority 3 401,222$       -$               -$              2,216$        4,639$        8,952$        5,375$     26,366$      76,709$      276,965$   401,222$       

Repair & Replacement (Fund 800) Total - 90% to FY 22 Budget
Capacity (Fund 900) Totals - 90% to FY 22 Budget

45355 of 401



46 

OTHER INFORMATION 

New Wastewater Pump, Piping and Gate Valve at the Alvarado Pump Station 

356 of 401



47 

Estimated  
Expenditure

Supplies:
Sodium Hypochlorite, 1-Year 720,000$       
Hydrogen Peroxide, 1-Year 597,000         

 Ferrous Chloride, 1-Year  547,000         

 Polymer, Emulsion, 2-Year Contract with 3 Optional 1-Year Renewals 503,500         
 LMK (Inversion Lining Kits) 125,000         

 Polymer, Mannich, 2-Year Contract with 3 Optional 1-Year Renewals 105,000         
Total Supplies 2,597,500$    

Services:
Series 2021A - Annual Debt Service on Bonds 7,512,026$    
CalPERS Retirement 6,913,738      
Series 2020A - Annual Debt Service on Bonds 4,507,066      
CalPERS Medical 3,919,896      
115 Pension Trust Contribution 3,000,000      
PG&E - Alvarado Site ($1,800,000) and Newark P.S. ($251,000) 2,051,000      
EBDA 1,678,912      
Biosolids Contract 1,496,000      
OPEB Retiree Medical Trust Additional Funding 910,000         
Insurance (Property & Contents, Fleet, General Liability, Bonding) 500,900         
Gas Media, 2-Year Contract with 3 Optional 1-Year Renewals 171,252         
DGS Natural Gas Service, PG&E Billed Through DGS 115,000         
Total Services 32,775,790$  

Information Systems Projects:
Non-Residential Billing (NRB) Replacement Phase 2 125,000$       
Permit Tracking System (PTS) Replacement 125,000         
Total Information Systems Projects 250,000$       

Annual Contract Purchases of Supplies, Services and Projects Renewal/Replacement
Over $100,000

for Fiscal Year 21/22

357 of 401



48 

Sewer Service Charge Rates 

Single 
Single Multi - Family Rate

Family Rate Family Rate Percentage
Change

2021 454.37$    420.12$  7.8%
2020 421.37$    365.32$  3.5%
2019 407.12$    352.97$  3.5%
2018 393.35$    341.03$  1.0%
2017 380.05$    329.50$  0.8%
2016 377.00$    326.00$  5.6%
2015 357.02$    315.25$  5.7%
2014 337.76$    298.25$  5.7%
2013 319.55$    282.17$  5.0%
2012 304.33$    268.73$  5.0%

Capacity Fee Rates 
Percentage

Change
2021 8,897.71$ 0.0%
2020 8,897.71$ 10.2%
2019 8,072.20$ 11.4%
2018 7,246.69$ 12.9%
2017 6,421.17$ 14.8%
2016 5,595.66$ 0.0%
2015 5,595.66$ 5.0%
2014 5,329.20$ 10.0%
2013 4,844.73$ 10.0%
2012 4,404.30$ 10.0%

The capacity fees shown are per dwelling unit.  Other categories such as restaurants, warehouses, and 
mixed-use commercial facilities are based on square footage and other factors as per the Capacity Fee 
Ordinance.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Current and Historical Fees

Last Ten Years

The fees above are for residential units.  A property with multiple housing units such as an apartment 
complex is charged $365.32 for each dwelling unit on the property. Fees for commercial and industrial 
customers are based on the volume and strength of the wastewater being treated.

As of June 30, 2020

$4,404 
$4,845 

$5,329 $5,596 $5,596 

$6,421 

$7,247 

$8,072 

$8,898 $8,898 

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$8,000

$9,000

$10,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Capacity Fees 

$269 $282 $298 $315 $326 $330 $341 $353 $365 
$401 

$304 $320 $338 $357 
$377 $380 $393 $407 $421 

$455 

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

$500

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Multi Family Rate Single Family Rate

358 of 401



49 

Flows have decreased mainly due to conservation efforts.

Source:  USD Treatment and Disposal Work Group

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Average Daily Flow

26.00
24.79 24.20

23.03 22.35
23.27

24.36
23.29 23.73 22.90

10.0

14.0

18.0

22.0

26.0

30.0

34.0

38.0

42.0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Plant Flow Data (12-Month Average)
Million Gallons per Day (MGD)

Maximum Plant Capacity 
(ADWF) 38 mg/d

Permitted Treatment Capacity 

359 of 401



50 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Operating Indicators - Biosolids
Last Ten Calendar Years

Function/Program

Biosolids
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Land Application 16,160 14,770 17,597 12,212 13,212 13,395 11,784 13,733 14,529 14,451
Landfill 571 1,187 501 545 2,450 563 1,624 0 72 0
Compost 2,585 4,501 1,642 7,414 3,470 6,399 6,584 6,615 6,103 6,342

Total (in Wet Tons) 19,315 20,458 19,741 20,171 19,132 20,357 19,992 20,347 20,704 20,793

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Biosolids Production - by Calendar Year

Land Application Landfill Compost

W
et

 T
on

s

360 of 401



51 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Function/Program

System Ops & Maint (CS Supt, FMC, TPO, RST, Warehouse) 55.00 53.45 54.45 55.45 52.45 53.45 53.45 50.45 51.45 13.45
Engineering and construction (CIP, ETSU) 11.00 11.00 9.00 8.00 9.00 10.00 8.00 8.00 7.00 8.00
Collections System Maintenance (CS) 25.50 26.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 23.00 23.00 24.00 22.00
Office of the General Manager (GM) 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 1.00 2.00 3.00
Finance (FIST) 5.00 5.00 6.00 5.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Information systems (IT) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Admin (Adm Specialist, MMT, non-HR OST) 15.00 15.00 12.00 13.00 13.00 14.00 13.00 14.00 15.00 14.00
Customer and community services (Rest of TS) 20.00 20.00 21.00 21.00 20.00 20.00 18.00 19.00 19.00 19.00
Human resources (HR) 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Total # of Employees 140.50 139.45 136.45 136.45 131.45 136.45 131.45 128.45 131.45 92.45

Average years of service of employees as of June 30, 2020 10.63 10.20 10.20 10.41 10.60 10.54 11.25 11.97 11.70 17.28

CIP = Capital Improvements Projects Team
ETSU = Enhanced Treatment & Site Upgrade
FIST = Finance & Internal Support Team
FMC = Fabrication, Maintenace and Construction
MMT = Materials Management Team
OST = Organizational Support Team
RST = Research and Support Team
TPO = Total Productive Operations Team
TS = Technical Services Work Group

              Last 10 Fiscal Years
         Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program

         UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

361 of 401



52 

2019-20 2018-19
Total % of Total % of

Annual Total Annual Annual Total Annual
Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings

Tesla $1,381,023 1 2.29% Tesla $1,228,862 1 2.14%
Washington Hospital 314,394 2 0.52% Washington Hospital 221,799 2 0.39%
U S Pipe 244,663 3 0.41% U S Pipe 216,296 3 0.38%
Western Digital 187,814 4 0.31% Western Digital 174,219 4 0.30%
Ranch 99/Warm Springs Shopping Center 161,740 5 0.27% Ranch 99/Warm Springs Shopping Center 157,421 5 0.27%
Union Square Shopping Center/ Market Place 161,271 6 0.27% Ranch 99/Newark 152,401 6 0.27%
Lam Research 160,087 7 0.27% Marriott Hotel 141,572 7 0.25%
Ranch 99/Newark 148,835 8 0.25% Union Square Shopping Center 138,482 8 0.24%
Marriott Hotel 133,716 9 0.22% Lam Research 125,330 9 0.22%
Sterling Foods 127,508 10 0.21% Gateway Plaza Shopping Center 125,202 10 0.22%

Total annual billing largest ten: $3,021,050 5.02% Total annual billing largest ten: $2,681,584 4.68%

Total ALL annual billings $60,216,149 Total ALL annual billings $57,330,651

2017-18 2016-17
Total % of Total % of

Annual Total Annual Annual Total Annual
Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings

Tesla $817,848 1 1.51% Tesla $1,141,868 1 2.18%
Western Digital 141,806 2 0.26% Washington Hospital 206,132 2 0.39%
Solar City 172,276 3 0.32% Western Digital 176,435 3 0.34%
U S Pipe 135,774 4 0.25% Ranch 99/Warm Springs Shopping Center 161,772 4 0.31%
Seagate Magnetics 156,718 5 0.29% Marriott Hotel 142,229 5 0.27%
Lam Research 122,934 6 0.23% Ranch 99/Newark 133,807 6 0.26%
Washington Hospital 173,057 7 0.32% U S Pipe 130,685 7 0.25%
Kaiser Hospital 106,337 8 0.20% Kaiser Hospital 125,907 8 0.24%
Boehringer Ingeheim 87,678 9 0.16% Gateway Plaza 124,269 9 0.24%
Seagate Technology #3 69,384 10 0.13% Pacific Commons (Area 4-Asian Pearl, Kinders, etc.) 119,920 10 0.23%

Total annual billing largest ten: $1,983,813 3.66% Total annual billing largest ten: $2,463,022 4.70%

Total ALL annual billings $54,260,096 Total ALL annual billings $52,384,709

2015-16 2014-15
Total % of Total % of

Annual Total Annual Annual Total Annual
Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings Rate Payer Billing Rank Billings

Tesla $469,466 1 0.94% Tesla $324,934 1 0.67%
Western Digital 218,616 2 0.44% Western Digital 235,844 2 0.49%
Seagate Technology #3 152,100 3 0.30% Washington Hospital 153,645 3 0.32%
Washington Hospital 147,910 4 0.30% Seagate Technology 116,332 4 0.24%
U S Pipe 123,218 5 0.25% Lido Faire Shopping Center 114,536 5 0.24%
Marriott Hotel 119,716 6 0.24% Pacific Commons (Kohls/Old Navy Area) 113,472 6 0.23%
Kaiser Hospital 118,369 7 0.24% Pacific Commons (Area 4-Asian Pearl, Kinders, etc.) 108,292 7 0.22%
Ranch 99/Warm Springs Shopping Center 115,458 8 0.23% Ranch 99/Warm Springs Shopping Center 108,163 8 0.22%
Pacific Commons (Area 4-Asian Pearl, Kinders, etc 112,498 9 0.22% Full Bloom 105,805 9 0.22%
Pacific Commons (Kohls/Old Navy Area) 108,358 10 0.22% Kaiser Hospital 102,771 10 0.21%

Total annual billing largest ten: $1,685,708 3.36% Total annual billing largest ten: $1,483,794 3.07%

Total ALL annual billings $50,112,564 Total ALL annual billings $48,379,254

  UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
    Ten Principal Industrial Rate Payers by Levy

   June 30, 2020

362 of 401



53 

Governing Body: Elected 5-Member Board of Directors
     Fremont - 3 Members
     Newark - 1 Member
     Union City - 1 Member

Governmental Structure: Established in 1918 and reorganized in 1923 under the Sanitary District Act

Staff: 144.50 full-time equivalent employees

CEO: General Manager

CFO: Business Services Manager

Authority: California Health and Safety Code Section 4700 et.  Seq.

Services: Wastewater collection, treatment and disposal

Service Area: 60.2 square miles (Annexed areas - Fremont, Newark and Union City)

Total Population Served: 356,823

Number of Parcels 101,056  (90,132 Residential; 3,117 Non-Residential; 7,807 Other (vacant land))

Operations: Total miles of pipeline - 834, including the force main and all gravity sewers 
(including trunk mains)

Number of pumping stations - 7
     Larger:  Irvington, Newark, Alvarado
     Smaller:  Fremont, Boyce, Paseo Padre, Cherry Street

Permitted Plant Treatment
Capacity (ADWF) 33 million gallons per day (mgd)

Type of Treatment: Secondary

Sewer Service Charge: $454.37 annually per single family residential dwelling unit (beginning 07/01/21)

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Miscellaneous Statistics
30-Jun-21

363 of 401



54 

APPENDIX 

Digester 7 Wall Construction

364 of 401



Union Sanitary District 20-Year CIP
FY 2022 - FY2041

(All Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage 250 250 250

800 2 Cathodic Protection Improvements 550 500 300 300 300 1,950 350 350 400 400 450 3,900

800 1 Prog/Des ETSU - Campus Building 13,000 38,539 17,580 69,119 69,119

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repairs 200 1,500 1,600 3,300 3,300

800 3 FMC Storage 300 300 300

800 3 Plant Paving 750 200 950 200 200 200 200 1,750

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement 150 150 150

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0 150 150
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0 150 150

800 50 2 Des/Constr Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 300 350 100 450
900 50 2 Des/Constr Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 300 350 100 450

800 50 2 Des/Constr Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150 900 1,050
900 50 2 Des/Constr Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150 900 1,050

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES 13,950 38,539 18,380 200 300 1,500 2,650 400 500 600 77,019 2,350 0 850 0 600 0 600 0 450 200 82,069

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities 13,000 38,539 17,580 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 0 0 72,419 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,419
Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities 950 0 500 0 300 0 300 150 300 600 3,100 2,150 0 350 0 400 0 400 0 450 200 7,050
Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities 0 0 300 0 0 0 750 250 200 0 1,500 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 0 0 2,600

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities 13,750 38,539 18,380 200 300 1,500 2,650 400 500 300 76,519 1,450 0 700 0 600 0 600 0 450 100 80,419
Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300 500 900 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 1,650

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Design Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 530 560 590 620 650 2,950 690 730 765 810 850 6,795

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation 50 1,000 1,050 1,050

800 2 Constr Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement 650 1,698 1,807 1,922 2,046 8,123 2,176 2,316 2,464 2,622 2,966 20,667

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin) 200 2,200 2,500 4,900 4,900

800 1 Des/Constr RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin) 2,200 2,500 200 2,200 2,500 9,600 9,600

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin) 200 2,200 2,500 4,900 4,900

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM 2,900 4,030 1,698 760 4,007 3,290 4,122 3,320 4,246 3,150 31,523 2,176 690 2,316 730 2,464 765 2,622 810 2,966 850 47,912

Total Priority 1 Collection System 2,250 3,500 0 200 2,200 2,700 2,200 2,700 2,200 2,500 20,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,450
Total Priority 2 Collection System 650 530 1,698 560 1,807 590 1,922 620 2,046 650 11,073 2,176 690 2,316 730 2,464 765 2,622 810 2,966 850 27,462
Total Priority 3 Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Fund 800 - Collection System 2,900 4,030 1,698 760 4,007 3,290 4,122 3,320 4,246 3,150 31,523 2,176 690 2,316 730 2,464 765 2,622 810 2,966 850 47,912
Total Fund 900 - Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 350 2,974 3,324 1,982 5,306
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 350 2,974 3,324 1,982 5,306

900 1 Des/Constr Cherry St. PS 200 200 400 400

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington 0 0

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark 2,200 6,700 15,500 24,400 24,400

800 1 Des/Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3 250 750 1,000 1,000

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4 250 800 1,050 1,050

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation 900 900 12,275 12,275 12,275 12,275 50,000

800 50 2 Des/Constr Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 50 775 4,125 1,750 6,700 6,700
900 50 2 Des/Constr Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 50 775 4,125 1,750 6,700 6,700

800 45 2 Des/Constr Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 1,125 2,340 3,465 3,465
900 55 2 Des/Constr Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 1,375 2,860 4,235 4,235

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 650 2,100 2,150 4,900 4,900
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 650 2,100 2,150 4,900 4,900

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R 1,432 3,632 872 197 4,168 10,301 87 5,161 4,719 818 21,086

900 2 Sanctuary West Pump Station 1,500 1,500 3,000 3,000

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 2,250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 4,750

800 2 Wet Weather Flow Management 100 1,000 1,100 1,100

55365 of 401



Union Sanitary District 20-Year CIP
FY 2022 - FY2041

(All Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM 3,050 9,682 5,100 12,132 4,622 3,947 11,150 20,750 4,418 7,098 81,949 16,489 12,525 12,612 17,686 250 4,969 250 250 1,068 250 148,298

Total Priority 1 Transport System 450 1,200 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,450
Total Priority 2 Transport System 2,600 6,800 4,050 8,250 3,500 3,500 10,900 20,500 0 5,948 66,048 3,964 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70,012
Total Priority 3 Transport System 0 1,682 250 3,882 1,122 447 250 250 4,418 1,150 13,451 12,525 12,525 12,612 17,686 250 4,969 250 250 1,068 250 75,836

Total Fund 800 - Transport System 1,425 5,122 2,825 8,007 2,872 1,097 2,350 2,750 4,418 4,124 34,990 14,507 12,525 12,612 17,686 250 4,969 250 250 1,068 250 99,357
Total Fund 900 - Transport System 1,625 4,560 2,275 4,125 1,750 2,850 8,800 18,000 0 2,974 46,959 1,982 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,941

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Constr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improvemen 1,400 1,400 1,400

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements 2,500 2,500 2,500
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements 2,500 2,500 2,500

800 2 Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2 50 500 550 550

800 50 2 Constr Centrifuge Building Improvements 250 250 250
900 50 2 Constr Centrifuge Building Improvements 250 250 250

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Replacement 550 1,250 4,900 2,450 9,150 9,150
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Replacement 550 1,250 4,900 2,450 9,150 9,150

800 2 Design Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement 900 1,200 7,300 4,200 13,600 13,600

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 525 525 625 1,150
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 525 525 625 1,150

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 575 1,075 725 1,800
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 575 1,075 725 1,800

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 950 1,050 1,050
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 950 1,050 1,050

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements 615 4,300 1,800 6,715 6,715

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement 560 3,100 3,660 1,330 4,990

800 50 2 Predesign Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 905 5,150 2,200 8,255 8,255
900 50 2 Predesign Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 905 5,150 2,200 8,255 8,255

800 3 Diffuser Replacement 0 900 700 1,600

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity 0 0

800 2 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 200 1,400 2,800 4,400 600 5,700 10,700

800 1 Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 150 150 600 5,300 6,050

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab 413 413 3,822 4,235

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab 420 3,900 4,320 4,320

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab 440 4,040 4,480 4,480

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab 200 1,000 4,650 5,850 1,000 7,900 14,750

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab 0 500 4,600 5,100

900 1 Constr Digester No. 7 3,500 3,500 3,500

800 50 1 Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 700 700 700
900 50 1 Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 700 700 700

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Basin Modifications 2,138 10,320 5,640 6,300 24,398 24,398
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,425 6,880 3,760 4,200 16,265 16,265

800 40 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Basin No. 8 1,600 3,000 1,480 6,080 6,080
900 60 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Basin No. 8 2,400 4,500 2,220 9,120 9,120

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 255 960 540 480 2,235 2,235
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 170 640 360 320 1,490 1,490

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Blower 7-10 Replacement 900 2,940 1,680 1,200 6,720 6,720
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Blower 7-10 Replacement 600 1,960 1,120 800 4,480 4,480

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Secondary Clarifiers 2,220 6,210 21,600 30,075 6,540 66,645 66,645
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Secondary Clarifiers 1,480 4,140 14,400 20,050 4,360 44,430 44,430

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Switchboard 4 Replacement 90 600 300 990 990
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Switchboard 4 Replacement 60 400 200 660 660

800 60 1 Design ETSU - Effluent Facilities 480 585 10,215 6,285 5,340 22,905 22,905
900 40 1 Design ETSU - Effluent Facilities 320 390 6,810 4,190 3,560 15,270 15,270

800 25 1 Design ETSU - Plant Equalization Storage 250 375 1,062 6,313 8,000 8,000
900 75 1 Design ETSU - Plant Equalization Storage 750 1,125 3,187 18,938 24,000 24,000

800 50 3 ETSU - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0 2,369 9,730 30,301 40,401 30,301 113,102

56
366 of 401



Union Sanitary District 20-Year CIP
FY 2022 - FY2041

(All Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

900 50 3 ETSU - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0 2,369 9,730 30,301 40,401 30,301 113,102

800 2 Flares Replacement 670 5,500 6,170 6,170

800 2 Headworks Gates 500 3,500 4,000 4,000

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 60 60 60
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 40 40 40

800 2 Design MCC Replacement 50 400 50 465 965 965

800 2 Des/Constr Miscellaneous Improvements 250 1,250 1,500 1,500

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements 610 1,242 5,430 4,603 1,408 347 2,730 16,370 1,187 6,541 4,055 6,899 3,364 3,203 715 5,631 47,965

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements 100 1,020 1,120 1,120

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 370 2,620 1,123 4,113 4,113

800 1 Plant 12kV Switchgear 500 3,500 1,000 5,100 4,000 14,100 14,100

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0 250 2,000 2,750 5,000
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0 250 2,000 2,750 5,000

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100 150 4,086 475 924 597 2,586 2,665 11,583 6,561 1,037 2,410 368 200 355 935 3,850 27,299

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 55 113 454 227 300 300 1,449 300 300 400 2,449
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 55 113 454 227 300 300 1,449 300 300 400 2,449

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 4,500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 9,500

800 2 Des/Constr PLC Replacement 250 300 350 900 400 450 500 2,250

800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Seismic Upgrade 682 3,758 1,610 6,050 6,050

800 75 2 Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 1,084 7,260 7,260 1,328 16,932 16,932
900 25 2 Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 361 2,420 2,420 442 5,643 5,643

800 3 Reclaimed Water 0 0
900 3 Reclaimed Water 0 0

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 334 3,089 3,423 460 4,253 8,136

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 353 3,258 3,611 485 4,485 8,581

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures 300 300 300 300 1,200 300 300 300 300 300 2,700

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 415 1,388 1,110 3,113 3,113
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 415 1,388 1,110 3,113 3,113

800 2 Sodium Hypochlorite Loop Improvements 50 650 600 1,300 1,300

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 500 16,000 12,100 2,300 30,900 30,900

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 4 0 2,057 13,028 6,514 21,599

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 200 1,428 600 2,228 2,228

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation 200 1,619 694 2,513 2,513

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 0 564 2,717 3,281

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners 500 8,000 5,500 14,000 14,000

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy 1,500 9,000 10,500 10,500

Total for TREATMENT PLANT 28,088 77,839 107,342 102,240 52,402 58,350 46,695 19,074 8,043 22,508 522,581 14,300 11,828 14,629 11,544 21,112 38,126 83,521 93,433 70,237 4,850 886,161

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant 20,638 71,857 93,183 81,860 29,149 29,251 0 0 1,150 0 327,088 0 1,850 5,300 0 0 0 1,450 0 0 0 335,688
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant 7,450 5,448 10,070 15,310 19,000 25,401 42,655 19,074 5,393 13,095 162,896 10,478 9,078 8,065 8,367 10,064 4,153 1,870 6,131 1,735 4,850 227,687
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant 0 534 4,089 5,070 4,253 3,698 4,040 0 1,500 9,413 32,597 3,822 900 1,264 3,177 11,048 33,973 80,201 87,302 68,502 0 322,786

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant 13,303 58,769 77,322 70,054 36,882 33,514 34,799 14,197 5,668 13,208 357,716 14,000 10,903 14,229 11,544 16,686 15,118 43,981 50,282 39,936 4,850 579,245
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant 14,785 19,070 30,020 32,186 15,520 24,836 11,896 4,877 2,375 9,300 164,865 300 925 400 0 4,426 23,008 39,540 43,151 30,301 0 306,916

Project Type FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

Administrative Facilities 13,950 38,539 18,380 200 300 1,500 2,650 400 500 600 77,019 2,350 0 850 0 600 0 600 0 450 200 82,069
Collection System 2,900 4,030 1,698 760 4,007 3,290 4,122 3,320 4,246 3,150 31,523 2,176 690 2,316 730 2,464 765 2,622 810 2,966 850 47,912
Transport System 3,050 9,682 5,100 12,132 4,622 3,947 11,150 20,750 4,418 7,098 81,949 16,489 12,525 12,612 17,686 250 4,969 250 250 1,068 250 148,298
Treatment Plant 28,088 77,839 107,342 102,240 52,402 58,350 46,695 19,074 8,043 22,508 522,581 14,300 11,828 14,629 11,544 21,112 38,126 83,521 93,433 70,237 4,850 886,161

GRAND TOTAL 47,988 130,090 132,520 115,332 61,331 67,087 64,617 43,544 17,207 33,356 713,072 35,315 25,043 30,407 29,960 24,426 43,860 86,993 94,493 74,721 6,150 1,164,440

R&R (Fund 800) Total 31,378 106,460 100,225 79,021 44,061 39,401 43,921 20,667 14,832 20,782 500,748 32,133 24,118 29,857 29,960 20,000 20,852 47,453 51,342 44,420 6,050 806,933
Capacity (Fund 900) Total 16,610 23,630 32,295 36,311 17,270 27,686 20,696 22,877 2,375 12,574 212,324 3,182 925 550 0 4,426 23,008 39,540 43,151 30,301 100 357,507

Priority 1
Administrative Facilities 13,000 38,539 17,580 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 0 0 72,419 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,419

Collection System 2,250 3,500 0 200 2,200 2,700 2,200 2,700 2,200 2,500 20,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,450
Transport System 450 1,200 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,450 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,450

Treatment Plant 20,638 71,857 93,183 81,860 29,149 29,251 0 0 1,150 0 327,088 0 1,850 5,300 0 0 0 1,450 0 0 0 335,688
Total Priority 1 Projects 36,338 115,096 111,563 82,260 31,349 33,451 3,800 2,700 3,350 2,500 422,407 0 1,850 5,300 0 0 0 1,450 0 0 0 431,007

57367 of 401



Union Sanitary District 20-Year CIP
FY 2022 - FY2041

(All Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY 22 FY 23 FY 24 FY 25 FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30 FY 31 10-Year
Total

FY 32 FY 33 FY 34 FY 35 FY 36 FY 37 FY 38 FY 39 FY 40 FY 41 20-Year Total

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities 950 0 500 0 300 0 300 150 300 600 3,100 2,150 0 350 0 400 0 400 0 450 200 7,050

Collection System 650 530 1,698 560 1,807 590 1,922 620 2,046 650 11,073 2,176 690 2,316 730 2,464 765 2,622 810 2,966 850 27,462
Transport System 2,600 6,800 4,050 8,250 3,500 3,500 10,900 20,500 0 5,948 66,048 3,964 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70,012

Treatment Plant 7,450 5,448 10,070 15,310 19,000 25,401 42,655 19,074 5,393 13,095 162,896 10,478 9,078 8,065 8,367 10,064 4,153 1,870 6,131 1,735 4,850 227,687
Total Priority 2 Projects 11,650 12,778 16,318 24,120 24,607 29,491 55,777 40,344 7,739 20,293 243,117 18,768 9,768 10,731 9,097 12,928 4,918 4,892 6,941 5,151 5,900 332,211

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities 0 0 300 0 0 0 750 250 200 0 1,500 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 0 0 2,600

Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transport System 0 1,682 250 3,882 1,122 447 250 250 4,418 1,150 13,451 12,525 12,525 12,612 17,686 250 4,969 250 250 1,068 250 75,836

Treatment Plant 0 534 4,089 5,070 4,253 3,698 4,040 0 1,500 9,413 32,597 3,822 900 1,264 3,177 11,048 33,973 80,201 87,302 68,502 0 322,786
Total Priority 3 Projects 0 2,216 4,639 8,952 5,375 4,145 5,040 500 6,118 10,563 47,548 16,547 13,425 14,376 20,863 11,498 38,942 80,651 87,552 69,570 250 401,222

58
368 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 

TITLE:  Status  of  Priority  1  Capital  Improvement  Program  Projects  (This  is  an 
Information Item)   

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 

Recommendation 
Information only. 

Discussion 
None. 

Background 
In June 2020, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for FY21 in the 
amount of $42.68 million for the design and construction of 27 CIP projects. 

These 27 projects are ranked as Priority 1, 2, or 3 projects based on criteria prepared by staff and 
approved by the Executive Team.  A copy of the criteria used to prioritize the projects is attached 
for your reference. 

The status of the Priority 1 CIP projects  is reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of each 
quarter and a copy of the status report is attached for the Board’s review.  For FY21, 17 projects 
are  ranked as Priority 1 projects  and  the  remaining 10 are  ranked  as Priority 2 or Priority 3 
projects. 

Also attached is a tabular summary of the number and nature of the ongoing CIP projects at the 
District during FY21. 

369 of 401



Agenda Item No. 15 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 2 

Previous Board Action 
None. 

PRE/SEG:mb 

Attachments:  Priority 1 CIP Projects for FY21 ‐ Status Report 
Summary of CIP Projects for FY21  
Priority 1 CIP Project Criteria 
Priority 2 & 3 CIP Project Criteria 

370 of 401



Priority 1 CIP Projects for FY 21 – Status Report 

Page 1 of 3 

CIP Project Planned Milestones 
Status after 1st 

Quarter 
Status after 2nd 

Quarter 
Status after 3rd 
Quarter 

Status after 4th 
Quarter 

1 

Central 
Avenue 
Sanitary 
Sewer 

Relocation 

Complete the design 6 
months after the City of 
Newark makes a 
determination on whether the 
sewer relocation design and 
construction can be done as 
part of the bridge design and 
construction. 

Awaiting the City’s 
response and their 
consultant’s fee 
proposal for 
including sewer 
relocation in their 
bridge design. 

Awaiting the City’s 
response and their 
consultant’s fee 
proposal for 
including sewer 
relocation in their 
bridge design. 

Awaiting the City’s 
response and their 
consultant’s fee 
proposal for 
including sewer 
relocation in their 
bridge design. 

2 

RCP Sewer 
Rehab 

(Irvington 
Basin) 

1. Complete predesign by
March 2021.

2. Execute Task Order for
design services by April
2021.

Kickoff meeting for 
predesign was 
conducted in 
August.  Consultant 
began review of 
CCTV of sewers. 

Draft condition 
assessment report 
received in Dec.  
Commenced with 
development of 
scope and fee for 
final design. 

Predesign 
completed in 
January 2021. 
Task Order for 
design services 
executed in 
February 2021. 

3 

Cherry St. PS 

1. Complete PG&E
application review and
approval process for
electrical service upgrade
by December 2020.

2. Complete design for PS
upgrade by March 2021.

3. Award construction
contract for PS upgrade by
June 2021.

Design task order 
was negotiated with 
consultant.  Design 
task order should 
be executed in 
October. 

Submitted 
application to 
PG&E for 
electrical service 
upgrade.  
Received 50% 
design submittal in 
December. 

PG&E initiated 
engineering review 
of application for 
electrical service 
upgrade. 

50% design 
submittal review 
completed. 

4 

Digester No. 1 
Insp. and 

Rehab 

1. Complete condition
assessment by April 2021.

2. Complete design by June
2021.

RFPs for condition 
assessment and 
design services 
were issued.  
Consultant 
proposals are due 
in October. 

Consultants were 
selected. 
Contracts on hold 
pending 
completion of the 
Dig 2 construction 
project. 

Project scope and 
schedule has been 
revised.  Tentatively 
scheduled to be 
completed in FY22 
and FY23.  

5 
Digester No. 2 

Insp. and 
Rehab. 

Achieve Substantial 
Completion by November 
2020. 

Completed final 
effluent screen and 
secondary effluent 
pipeline repairs. 

Main construction 
completed in Dec. 
However, Digester 
operational test 
has failed. 

Digester operational 
test will resume in 
fourth quarter. 

371 of 401



Priority 1 CIP Projects for FY 21 – Status Report 

Page 2 of 3 

CIP Project Planned Milestones 
Status after 1st 

Quarter 
Status after 2nd 

Quarter 
Status after 3rd 
Quarter 

Status after 4th 
Quarter 

6 

Digester No. 7 

1. Complete the construction
of the ferrous salt facility
by January 2021.

2. Complete digester
concrete installation by
June 2021.

Completed digester 
slab concrete 
pours.  Began rebar 
installation for the 
digester walls. 

Seven of eight 
digester walls 
completed.  
Construction of 
the ferrous salt 
facility continued. 

Concrete placement 
of the digester walls 
and roof completed. 
Construction of the 
ferrous salt facility 
continued. 

7 ETSU – 
Aeration 

Basin 
Modifications 

Complete design by June 
2021. 

30% Design 
submittal received 
in September. 

Final 30% Design 
Report completed 
November 2020 

50% Design 
Submittal Received 
in January  

8 ETSU – 
Aeration 

Basin No. 8 

Complete design by June 
2021. 

30% Design 
submittal received 
in September.  

Final 30% Design 
Report completed 
November 2020 

50% Design 
Submittal Received 
in January  

9 ETSU – 
Blower 7-10 

Replacement 

Complete design by June 
2021. 

30% Design 
submittal received 
in September. 

Final 30% Design 
Report completed 
November 2020 

50% Design 
Submittal Received 
in January  

10 ETSU – 
Campus 
Buildings 

(Admin, FMC, 
Ops) 

Complete 90% design by 
June 2021. 

Preliminary 
Campus Building 
layout received in 
September. 

Draft Schematic 
Design Package 
Received 
December 2020 

Schematic Design 
Package review by 
staff completed in 
February 

11 
ETSU – 
Effluent 
Facilities 

1. Complete 30% design by
December 2020.

2. Begin final design by June
2021.

30% Design 
submittal received 
in September. 

Final 30% Design 
Report completed 
November 2020 

Agreement for Final 
Design executed in 
January 

12 
ETSU – 

Secondary 
Clarifiers 

1. Complete 30% design by
December 31, 2020.

2. Begin final design by June
2021.

30% Design 
submittal received 
in September. 

Final 30% Design 
Report completed 
November 2020 

Agreement for Final 
Design executed in 
January 

13 
Force Main 
Corrosion 
Repairs – 
Phase 3 

Award of the construction 
contract of this project is 
dependent on the construction 
of the Twin Force Mains 
Relocation - Phase 2 project. 

Project on hold 
pending the 
completion of the 
Force Main 
Relocation – Phase 
2 Project. 

Project on hold 
pending the 
completion of the 
Force Main 
Relocation – 
Phase 2 Project. 

Project on hold 
pending the 
completion of the 
Force Main 
Relocation – Phase 
2 Project. 

372 of 401



Priority 1 CIP Projects for FY 21 – Status Report 

Page 3 of 3 

CIP Project Planned Milestones 
Status after 1st 

Quarter 
Status after 2nd 

Quarter 
Status after 3rd 
Quarter 

Status after 4th 
Quarter 

14 
Headworks 

Screens 
Replacement 

Achieve Substantial 
Completion by December 
2020. 

Completed 
installation and 
testing of three new 
mechanical 
screens.   

Main construction 
completed in Oct.  
Additional work to 
be completed in 
4th Quarter. 

Main construction 
completed in Oct.  
Additional work to 
be completed in 4th 
Quarter. 

15 

Standby 
Power 

Generation 
System 
Upgrade 

1. Award the Equipment Pre-
selection supply contract
by November 2020.

2. Complete design by April
2021.

3. Award construction
contract by June 2021.

Board rejected the 
bids received for 
the equipment pre-
selection supply 
contract and 
authorized staff to 
negotiate with the 
apparent low 
bidder. 

Supply contract 
was awarded in 
November. 

Generator 
equipment submittal 
received and under 
review. 

Several potential 
design changes 
under consideration. 

16 

WAS 
Thickeners 

Complete design by June 
2021. 

Conducted design 
kickoff meeting in 
August. 50 percent 
design submittal is 
due in November. 

Received 50% 
design submittal 
and conducted 
design workshop 
in December. 

90% design 
submittal expected 
in 4th Quarter. 

17 
Wet Weather 

Flow 
Management 

– Calcium
Thiosulfate
Chemical

Feed System 

1. Complete design by
September 2020.

2. Award construction
contract by December
2020.

Design was 
completed and 
project was 
advertised for bids 
in September.  Bid 
opening is 
scheduled in 
October. 

Construction 
contract was 
awarded in 
November. 

Installation of 
underground 
electrical and water 
lines and concrete 
placement for new 
light pole completed. 

373 of 401



SUMMARY OF CIP PROJECTS FOR FY21 

Type of Project Number of Projects Names of Projects 

Administrative Facilities One 1. ETSU - Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops)

Collection System Four 1. Cast Iron/Pipe Lining
2. Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation
3. Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement
4. RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin)

Transport System Six 1. Cathodic Protection Improvements – Transport
2. Cherry St. PS
3. Equalization Storage @ Irvington
4. Force Main Corrosion Repairs – Phase 3
5. Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System

Improvements
6. Wet Weather Flow Management

Treatment System Sixteen 1. Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg.
Improvements

2. Alvarado Influent PS Improvements
3. Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2
4. Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant
5. Centrifuge Building Improvements
6. Digester No. 1 Inspection and Rehab
7. Digester No. 2 Inspection and Rehab
8. Digester No. 7
9. ETSU - Aeration Basin Modifications
10. ETSU – Blower 7-10 Replacement

374 of 401



Treatment System (continued) 

11. ETSU – Aeration Basin No. 8
12. ETSU – Secondary Clarifiers
13. ETSU – Effluent Facilities
14. Headworks Screens Replacement
15. Standby Power Generation System Upgrade
16. WAS Thickeners

Total: 27 

375 of 401



PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA 

Priority 1 Projects: 

1. Project to repair or prevent an imminent critical infrastructure failure that could
result in a threat to the public, or result in permit non-compliance.

2. A project designed to address public health and safety or employee health
and safety.

3. Project to provide additional capacity in order to allow connection to the
District system or to prevent a potential wet weather overflow from occurring.

4. Projects that have a deadline tied to receiving a loan or grant funding.

5. Projects where we have made a timeline commitment to a customer or other
outside stakeholder.

6. A project in which the District may suffer financial losses or claims should the
project be delayed.

7. A project which is part of a sequence of projects whose delay could result in
delays to other projects at USD or other agencies.

8. A project in which an internal commitment has been made to provide a facility
that significantly impacts another group from efficiently and effectively
carrying out their core work.  (Not a “nice to have” type project)

These criteria can apply to a study, design, or construction project. 

376 of 401



PRIORITY 2 & 3 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA 

Priority 2 Projects 

1. These are planned projects related to the replacement of electrical and
mechanical equipment identified by the Plant Master Plan – this
equipment is not in imminent danger of failure but needs to be replaced at
a future date.

2. These are planned pipeline rehab/replacement projects that are identified
either by the Master Plan or by the Maintenance staff and need to be
completed to improve the condition of existing sewers to safeguard
against potential maintenance problems – these pipelines are not in
imminent danger of failure.

3. These projects do not have any immediate negative impacts on either
other agencies or other projects.

4. Examples: Blacow Road Sewer Replacement, Cast Iron Pipe
Replacement, Thickener Mechanism 3&4 Replacement, Rehab of
Clarifiers 5&6.

Priority 3 Projects 

1. These are capacity projects identified by the master plans that will address
future capacity needs of the District.

2. These projects are place holders and need to be defined at a future date
3. The District will not suffer any financial loss or claim, if these projects are

delayed.
4. Examples: Cedar Relief Sewer, Hetch Hetchy Relief Sewer, Digester

No. 7, Secondary Clarifiers 7 & 8.

377 of 401



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

MAY 24, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM # 16 

TITLE:  Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for FY21 
 (This is an Information Item)

SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 

Recommendation 
Information only. 

Discussion 
None. 

Background 
In June 2020, the Board approved the Capital  Improvement Program  (CIP) budget  for FY21  in 
the  amount  of  $42.68  million  for  the  design  and  construction  of  27  CIP  projects.  The  third 
quarter  expenditures  for  FY21  are  shown  on  the  attached  budget  projection  graphs.  These 
graphs  depict  actual  expenditures  versus  approved  budget  for  the  Capacity  Fund  900,  the 
Renewal and Replacement  Fund 800 as well  as  for both  funds,  combined.   And  starting  this 
fiscal year, additional graphs showing the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade (ETSU) project 
expenditures are added to the budget graphs. 

The total CIP expenditures up to March 31, 2021, were under the projections for the third 
quarter by approximately $4,348,000. The main projects that had significant variances from the 
projected expenditures are listed in the table below.  

These primary variances are tabulated as follows: 

378 of 401



Agenda Item No. 16 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 2 

Project  Approximate 
Variance at the 

end of 3rd Quarter 
(x $1000) 

Comments 

Campus Bldg. ‐800  The Covid Pandemic impacts on 
the ability to collaborate with 
the Designer has resulted in 
delays to the Project design. 

Aeration Blower 11 and East 
Blower Bldg. Improvements 

‐500  Due to the Covid Pandemic, 
equipment lead time has been 
longer than anticipated, and 
Change Order No. 1 has 
extended the contract time. 

Alvarado Influent PS ‐650  Due to the Covid Pandemic, 
equipment lead time has been 
longer than anticipated, and 
Plant shutdown restrictions 
delayed early milestones. 

ETSU Phase 1A –  

 Aeration Basin
Modifications,

 Aeration Basin No. 8, and

 Blower 7‐10 Replacement

‐648  Project expenses are running 
under budget due to the 
innovations put in place to 
manage the pandemic impact 
on the design process. 

ETSU Phase 1B –  

 Secondary Clarifiers and

 Effluent Facilities

‐450  The design contract amount is 
substantially less than the 
preliminary budget estimate; 
ETSU staffing challenges have 
slowed the start of the design. 

Headworks Screens Replacement ‐500  Project made significant 
progress towards the end of 
FY20 but is now behind 
schedule.  Additional work to 
be completed in 4th Quarter. 

Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade 

‐800  Project is behind schedule.  
Bids for the equipment supply 
contract were rejected and 
contract had to be re‐bid.  
Several potential design 
changes under consideration. 

Total Variance for the 3rd Qtr. ‐4,348 

379 of 401



Agenda Item No. 16 
Meeting of May 24, 2021 
Page 2 

In addition to the ten (10) projects listed above, the following high‐priority projects were either 
in design or in construction during FY21: 

1. Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation
2. RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin)
3. Cherry St. PS Improvements
4. Digester No. 1 Inspection and Rehab
5. Digester No. 2 Inspection. and Rehab
6. Digester No. 7
7. Force Main Corrosion Repairs – Phase 3
8. WAS Thickeners Improvements
9. Wet Weather Flow Management ‐ Calcium Thiosulfate Chemical Feed System

Also,  there are eight  (8) other  smaller projects  that were either  in design or  in  construction 
during FY21. 

Previous Board Action 
None. 

PRE/SEG:mb 

Attachment:  Budget Graphs 

380 of 401



Budget Graphs 
381 of 401



Budget Graphs 
382 of 401



Budget Graphs 
383 of 401



Budget Graphs 
384 of 401



Budget Graphs 
385 of 401



Budget Graphs 
386 of 401



Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, April 15, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. 

 Commissioners Cutter, Duncan, Johnson, Lamnin, and Toy were present.  This meeting was conducted
telephonically and the dial‐in information for the meeting was provided in the agenda.

 Commissioner Toy moved  to approve  the Commission Meeting Minutes of March 18, 2021;  List of
Disbursements for March 2021; and Treasurer’s Report for March 2021.  The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Duncan and carried 5‐0.

 The  Commission  unanimously  approved  the  reports  from  the  Managers  Advisory,  Financial
Management,  Operations  &  Maintenance,  and  Personnel  Committees.  The  following  items  were
discussed:

 General Managers Report
The General Manager (GM) advised that negotiations with LAVWMA are concluding, and staff expects
to  bring  the  LAVWMA  Master  Agreement  to  the  Commission  in  May  for  consideration.  HASPA  is
considering expanding  their  JPA, which  is  coming up  for  renewal.  Specifically,  they are  considering
adding  EBDA,  OLSD  and  Alameda  County  Flood  Control  as  additional  stakeholders.  The  Hayward
Shoreline Master Plan can be found at https://www.hayward‐ca.gov/shoreline‐master‐plan.

 Managers Advisory Committee (MAC)
The GM reported on a presentation and discussion between the MAC and Carollo Engineers on EBDA’s
Disinfection Master Plan. Carollo Engineers will consider the EBDA system as a whole to determine the
most efficient and effective chlorine dosing required to achieve permit compliance.

 Financial Management Committee
The GM reported on the Financial Management Committee, which met on April 13, 2021, noting the
Committee’s review of the List of Disbursements and Treasurer’s Report. The Committee reviewed the
status of EBDA’s pension fund and recommends applying the FY 2020/2021 CERBT fund disbursement
as an additional discretionary payment towards the pension liability. The GM reviewed changes to the
draft  FY  2021/2022  Budget  including  the  MAC’s  recommendation  to  add  two  Special  Studies:  1)
Biosolids Collaboration at $100,000 and 2) Solar Feasibility at $20,000. The Committee discussed the
development of a Reserve Policy  for  the Authority. The Committee  recommended a hybrid  funding
option to allow flexibility for the member agencies. Staff will provide a table outlining recommended
reserves and existing surplus funds, as well as how much each Member Agency would be expected to
contribute to bring the reserve level up to the recommendation. The cash flow diagram will be updated
to include more detail as to the timing of expenses.

 Operations and Maintenance Committee
The O&M Manager reported on the Operations and Maintenance Committee, which met on April 13,
2021, and discussed the status of EBDA facilities. The O&M Manager reviewed NPDES compliance data

387 of 401



and  provided  an  overview  of  current  projects.  The  new  OLEPS  Wet  Well  Hypo  System  automatic 
programming is operational. A shutdown is scheduled in June for the OLEPS Electrical System upgrade 
project. The OLEPS bypass system was tested successfully.  

The GM provided an update on COVID‐19 vaccine  status and wastewater‐based epidemiology. The 
Sonoma County Water Agency has calendared the key AQPI agreements for adoption on April 20. Lastly, 
the  GM  reported  on  the  Cargill  Brine  Project  and  proposed  contract  amendment  for  Brown  and 
Caldwell. The GM advised that Item 12 is Amendment No. 3 to the Brown and Caldwell contract, not 
No. 2 as noted in the agenda. 

 Motion Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with Brown
and Caldwell for Field Work Related to Acceptance of Cargill Mixed Sea Salt Brine for Discharge at the
EBDA Outfall in the Amount of $123,478 for a Total Not to Exceed Amount of $249,589
Commissioner Cutter moved the item, noting that it is Amendment No. 3 to the Brown and Caldwell
contract. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Lamnin and carried unanimously, 5‐0 by roll call
vote.

Ayes:   Commissioners Toy, Duncan, Cutter, Lamnin, Chair Johnson
Noes:   None
Absent:   None  
Abstain:   None 

 Personnel Committee
The GM reported on the Personnel Committee, which met on April 12, 2021, and discussed the Brown
Act,  the  GM’s  performance  plan,  the  State  Controller’s  Office  (SCO)’s  Government  Compensation
report, and Compensation plans. The Committee recommends approval of the revised FY 2020/2021
Compensation Plan with a 2% decrease to the Administrative Support Specialist salary. The updated FY
2020/2021 and FY 2021/2022 Compensation Plans provided to the Commission on April 12, 2021 as
part of the amended agenda included the recommended changes.

 Resolution to Approve Revisions to the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Compensation Plan
Commissioner Lamnin moved to adopt the resolution, with the salary for the Administrative Support
Specialist  adjusted  downward  by  2%  from  the  originally  distributed  version.  The  resolution  was
seconded by Commissioner Duncan and carried unanimously, 5‐0 by roll call vote.

Ayes:   Commissioners Toy, Duncan, Cutter, Lamnin, Chair Johnson
Noes:   None
Absent:   None  
Abstain:   None 

 Items from Commission and Staff
The  Commission  directed  staff  to  research memorial  possibilities  to  honor  former  Regional Water
Quality Control Board Executive Officer Mr. Bruce Wolfe for his service to EBDA and the San Francisco
Bay  water  quality  community  over  the  years.  Castro  Valley  Sanitary  District  is  in  the  process  of
appointing a board member to the recently vacated seat held by Melody Appleton.

388 of 401



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
MAY 24, 2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
TITLE:  COVID‐19 Update (This is an Information Item) 
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
     
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
 
Discussion 
None. 
 
 
Background 
General  Manager  Eldredge  will  provide  an  update  on  the  District’s  COVID‐19  response  and 
staffing levels. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 
 

389 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

MP - AERATION BASIN MODIFICATIONS2011800215177449 $473,166.78 $846,833.95HAZEN AND SAWYER5/6/2021 114

ETSU PHASE 1B PROJECT201180042 $80,142.245/6/2021 114

CAMPUS BUILDINGS (ADMIN, FMC, OPS)2011800311 $293,524.935/6/2021 114

MARCH 2021 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL21061177471 $140,252.66 $140,252.66SYNAGRO WEST LLC5/6/2021 110

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS221093177473 $52,340.00 $54,680.00TANNER PACIFIC INC5/6/2021 143

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 2 REHABILITATION221094 $2,340.005/6/2021 143

PUMP STATIONS CHEMICAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTSW8Y07900004177505 $39,433.32 $39,433.32JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP, INC5/13/2021 143

2020 CHEVROLET BOLT EV3561177497 $33,918.55 $33,918.55ELK GROVE DODGE, CHRYLSER, JEE5/13/2021 122

MONTHLY CAL-CARD REPORT - APR 2021533620210422177533 $19,285.74 $19,285.74US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM5/13/2021

SERV TO 04/26/21 NEWARK PS761520210427177459 $18,520.17 $18,520.17PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC5/6/2021 170

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 711405466177439 $18,437.15 $18,437.15BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS5/6/2021 143

EMPLOYMENT LEGAL - MAR 2021267684177489 $5,724.16 $18,270.72BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSON LLP5/13/2021 132

GENERAL LEGAL - MAR 2021267658 $6,689.285/13/2021 150

CIP - MAR 2021267653 $3,660.805/13/2021

FORCE MAIN RELOCATION - MAR 2021267654 $232.965/13/2021 150

ETSU - MAR 2021267660 $1,963.525/13/2021 150

Page 1 of 10390 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

FUEL ISLAND VAPOR SYSTEM REPAIRS AND ANNUAL TESTING6618177528 $1,128.00 $17,563.15THORNTON ENVIRONMENTAL CONST5/13/2021 122

SPILL BUCKET REPAIR BUILDING 696603 $3,337.005/13/2021 170

TLS 350 ANNUAL CERTIFICATIONS 20206595 $6,717.155/13/2021 170

FUEL ISLAND VAPOR TESTING6621 $1,546.005/13/2021 122

FUEL ISLAND AND TLS 350 REPAIRS6602 $2,324.005/13/2021 170

TLS 350 REPAIR6632 $2,511.005/13/2021 122

MAY 2021 VSP STMT40350177517 $3,204.60 $16,413.50PREFERRED BENEFIT INSUR ADMINS5/13/2021

MAY 2021 DELTA DENTAL STMT40349 $13,208.905/13/2021

16 LMK TRAILER PIPE KITS949218177509 $14,610.24 $14,610.24LMK TECHNOLOGIES LLC5/13/2021 123

4797.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49079597177475 $3,465.89 $10,256.02UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC5/6/2021 110

4499.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49092033 $3,250.635/6/2021 110

4899.8 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49082395 $3,539.505/6/2021 110

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - MAY 202137432220210501177508 $9,569.44 $9,569.44LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP5/13/2021

ROLL UP DOOR REPLACEMENT - CENTRIFUGE SOUTH42746177462 $9,284.00 $9,284.00R & S ERECTION OF S ALAMEDA5/6/2021 170

TV CABLE REPAIR/INSTALL47418177534 $8,911.92 $8,911.92WECO INDUSTRIES LLC5/13/2021 121

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS697969177463 $8,801.95 $8,801.95R&B COMPANY5/6/2021 170

4898 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49095177177531 $3,538.21 $7,076.42UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC5/13/2021 110

4898 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE49098084 $3,538.215/13/2021 110

GRAVITY SEWER REHAB/REPLACEMENT2044505177535 $7,060.58 $7,060.58WEST YOST ASSOCIATES5/13/2021 143

Page 2 of 10391 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

48,300 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017709066177452 $7,032.76 $7,032.76KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC5/6/2021 110

COGEN EMISSION TESTING 202121040177438 $6,510.00 $6,510.00BLUE SKY ENVIRONMENTAL INC5/6/2021 170

AERATION BLOWER 11 & CENTRIFUGE BLDG IMPROV221096177527 $6,432.50 $6,432.50TANNER PACIFIC INC5/13/2021 143

ODOR CONTROL PILOT STUDY - TRAILER MOUNTED SKID21947177495 $6,417.00 $6,417.00DANIEL MECHANICAL SERVICE CO5/13/2021 143

CENTRIFUGE REBUILD KIT8480105238177483 $6,005.89 $6,005.89ANDRITZ SEPARATION INC5/13/2021 170

2021 HAZ MAT FEES, PERMIT FEES265083177474 $5,905.00 $5,905.00CITY OF UNION CITY5/6/2021 170

PORTAL MIGRATION TO SHAREPOINT ONLINE2540177469 $5,873.75 $5,873.75SHARESQUARED INC5/6/2021 173

VISUALSP ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION FOR PORTAL 06/02/21 - 06/02/222552177522 $1,763.60 $5,658.60SHARESQUARED INC5/13/2021 173

SHAREGATE ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION 06/16/21 - 6/16/222551 $3,895.005/13/2021 173

GOLD - FULL MAINTENANCE MAY 2021-APRIL 20223005923596177529 $5,040.23 $5,040.23THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP5/13/2021 122

1 SIT/STAND STATION446365468348177433 $263.39 $4,528.89AMAZON.COM LLC5/6/2021 113

04/21 - ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES20210410 $4,265.505/6/2021

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT / ADVISORY SERVICES32123217177461 $4,188.00 $4,188.00PFM ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC5/6/2021 130

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104643177510 $306.00 $3,904.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL5/13/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104804 $1,306.005/13/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104954 $1,217.005/13/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104804A $53.005/13/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104419 $1,022.005/13/2021 113

Page 3 of 10392 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV: 03/20/21 - 04/19/2116356788177486 $241.17 $3,804.10AT&T5/13/2021

SERV: 03/20/21 - 04/19/2116356764 $23.715/13/2021

SERV: 03/20/21 - 04/19/2116356766 $3,539.225/13/2021

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - MAY 2021916004535842177518 $3,682.75 $3,682.75REPUBLIC SERVICES #9165/13/2021 120

2 DISCHARGE BOOTS770642177506 $3,439.12 $3,439.12KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES5/13/2021 170

1 AB CONTROLLER323233700177488 $3,362.01 $3,362.01BUCKLES SMITH ELECTRIC5/13/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9841578595177446 $825.24 $3,332.81GRAINGER INC5/6/2021

20 PACKS DISPOSABLE GLOVES9853093145 $575.095/6/2021

5 PLUG COVERS9854104313 $152.285/6/2021 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9851750605 $109.325/6/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9855484243 $94.415/6/2021 172

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9850454324 $873.625/6/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9847807683 $226.495/6/2021

1 DIGITAL SCALE9854104305 $310.935/6/2021 111

4 BULBS9853360460 $44.605/6/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9854043941 $40.285/6/2021 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9849817789 $80.555/6/2021

REFUND # 3758310406177451 $3,300.00 $3,300.00JOHN SUTTI & ASSOCIATES INC5/6/2021

1 CISCO SWITCH - ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS175716177492 $3,287.01 $3,287.01CDW GOVERNMENT LLC5/13/2021 143

Page 4 of 10393 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

BULK OIL540721177477 $3,245.17 $3,245.17VALLEY OIL COMPANY5/6/2021

WIRELESS SERV & TABLETS 03/21/21-04/20/219878094487177478 $3,147.28 $3,147.28VERIZON WIRELESS5/6/2021

FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES25967177442 $2,929.43 $2,929.43FIELDMAN ROLAPP & ASSOCIATES5/6/2021

ONBOARD LICENSE 04/12/21 - 04/11/2220862177516 $2,914.00 $2,914.00NEOGOV5/13/2021 132

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104419A177453 $131.00 $2,801.00MCCAMPBELL ANALYTICAL5/6/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104570 $108.005/6/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2103H85A $35.005/6/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104572 $313.005/6/2021 113

LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS2104242 $2,214.005/6/2021 113

FILING FEE-NOTICE OF EXEMPTION MP - AERATION BASIN MOD20210510177481 $2,530.25 $2,530.25ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER5/13/2021 114

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - FMC - APR 2021133512177457 $2,385.68 $2,385.68NEW IMAGE LANDSCAPING CO5/6/2021 170

SERV: 03/13/21 - 04/12/2116327655177435 $751.30 $1,956.67AT&T5/6/2021

SERV: 03/13/21 - 04/12/2116327658 $66.465/6/2021

SERV: 03/13/21 - 04/12/2116327659 $88.145/6/2021

SERV:  03/10/21 - 04/09/2116290194 $1,007.575/6/2021

SERV: 03/13/21 - 04/12/2116327657 $43.205/6/2021

TEMP LABOR-PERRY, R. WK END 04/11/202126487837177460 $1,707.84 $1,707.84PEOPLEREADY INC5/6/2021 120

SERVICE 03/20/2021 - 04/20/2185340220210422177466 $1,657.98 $1,657.98SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT5/6/2021 170

9 FILTERS2629177519 $1,622.85 $1,622.85ROCKWELL SOLUTIONS INC5/13/2021 170

Page 5 of 10394 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SOFTWARE ANNUAL SUPPORT RENEWAL4232101177502 $1,595.00 $1,595.00INDUSTRIAL VIDEO & CONTROL5/13/2021 173

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES732822223401177525 $474.72 $1,493.82STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL5/13/2021

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES732841081101 $444.735/13/2021

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES732822223402 $120.705/13/2021

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES732920159801 $279.205/13/2021

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES732920159802 $174.475/13/2021

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - MAY 20212139405177513 $1,245.43 $1,245.43MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP5/13/2021 170

GRIT HAULING 04/08/202121041310177465 $1,103.07 $1,103.07S&S TRUCKING5/6/2021 110

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57745425177511 $17.61 $894.94MCMASTER SUPPLY INC5/13/2021 170

1 PRESSURE REGULATING VALVE57013995 $319.745/13/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS58058332 $455.595/13/2021

1 RESPIRATOR56684150 $72.905/13/2021 171

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS57828850 $29.105/13/2021 170

SERV:  03/11/21 - 04/10/212489030608177436 $882.85 $882.85AT&T5/6/2021

ENCHROACHMENT PERMIT FEE318964177444 $827.37 $827.37CITY OF FREMONT5/6/2021 143

ANNUAL CALIBRATION SERVICE FOR LAB EQUIPMENT654943572177512 $826.89 $826.89METTLER-TOLEDO INC5/13/2021 170

MAR 2021 SERVICE FEES2522374314177437 $823.56 $823.56BANK OF NEW YORK5/6/2021 136

ANNUAL TABLET MEDIA SUPPORT395866177472 $810.00 $810.00TABLETMEDIA INC5/6/2021 173

ASST JANITORIAL SUPPLIES604305426177500 $796.49 $796.49HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO5/13/2021

Page 6 of 10395 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

BAY AREA CHEMICAL CONSORTIUM BIDDING PARTICIPATION FEE1476177496 $771.62 $771.62EAST BAY MUNI UTILITY DISTRICT5/13/2021 110

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9860269738177499 $558.09 $717.31GRAINGER INC5/13/2021 122

36 PR COATED GLOVES9860976720 $159.225/13/2021

METROSCAN ONLINE SERVICE82070821177494 $339.90 $679.80CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTION5/13/2021 173

METROSCAN ONLINE SERVICE82065612 $339.905/13/2021 173

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102524596177434 $269.00 $676.21ARAMARK5/6/2021

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102524611 $359.895/6/2021

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY1102524646 $47.325/6/2021

1 ANALYZER12414065177447 $635.40 $635.40HACH COMPANY5/6/2021 170

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102528263177484 $260.50 $624.14ARAMARK5/13/2021

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102528282 $363.645/13/2021

SAFETY SHOES: B. MEDEIROS820192996177464 $204.27 $608.15RED WING BUS ADVANTAGE ACCT5/6/2021 123

SAFETY SHOES: J. BARTON820193299 $208.005/6/2021 111

SAFETY SHOES: R. PERRY169193676 $195.885/6/2021 122

LAB SUPPLIES1515847177498 $524.59 $524.59FISHER SCIENTIFIC5/13/2021 113

FILING FEE: CAMPUS BUILDINGS (ADMIN, FMC, OPS)20210511177530 $515.00 $515.00CITY OF UNION CITY5/13/2021 114

LAB SUPPLIES8804450190177479 $513.96 $513.96VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC5/6/2021 113

REFUND # 375999730177520 $500.00 $500.00SANDIS CIVIL ENGINEERS5/13/2021

REFUND # 3758924057177523 $500.00 $500.00SAMIR SHARMA5/13/2021

Page 7 of 10396 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ANNUAL FIRE PAINT BOOTH SERVICE 202156301177430 $467.80 $467.80ABC FIRE PROTECTION INC5/6/2021 170

2021 HEARING AND RESPIRATOR TESTS321325177441 $450.00 $450.00EXAMINETICS5/6/2021 132

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS2617598001177480 $428.34 $428.34WHCI PLUMBING SUPPLY CO5/6/2021 122

5.03 TONS 1/2 MAX HMA TYPE A-R2234487177448 $422.80 $422.80HANSON AGGREGATES INC5/6/2021 123

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS56370477177454 $173.82 $370.09MCMASTER SUPPLY INC5/6/2021 170

4 LAMP SOCKETS56675363 $196.275/6/2021 170

OPTIMUM ANNUAL SUPPORT FEE2101696177458 $352.00 $352.00OPTIMUM TECHNOLOGIES LLC5/6/2021 132

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS39689177482 $334.50 $334.50ALLIED FLUID PRODUCTS CORP5/13/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24109765177456 $101.15 $279.29MOTION INDUSTRIES INC5/6/2021 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24109359 $178.145/6/2021

1.84 FILL SAND32698177440 $131.70 $263.40CLARK'S HOME AND GARDEN INC5/6/2021 123

1.84 FILL SAND32311 $131.705/6/2021 123

E911 CLOUD SERVICE6048864177503 $250.00 $250.00INTRADO LIFE & SAFETY INC5/13/2021 173

LAB SUPPLIES709853177443 $234.62 $234.62FISHER SCIENTIFIC5/6/2021 113

ANNUAL MANHOLE MONITOR SERVICE PACKAGE RNWL1050914177455 $227.40 $227.40MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC5/6/2021 120

120 7-LB BAGS OF ICE4091109903177445 $225.21 $225.21GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC5/6/2021 144

3 MANDRELS5053044001177490 $218.48 $218.48CALIFORNIA SERVICE TOOL INC5/13/2021 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24109590177514 $186.23 $186.23MOTION INDUSTRIES INC5/13/2021 170

MAY 2021 PAGER SERVICE20210430177524 $173.70 $173.70SPOK INC5/13/2021 141

Page 8 of 10397 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

3 CS COMPOSTABLE UTENSILS301950177470 $147.34 $147.34STARLINE SUPPLY COMPANY5/6/2021

1 PLOTTING GEL2002914177450 $147.19 $147.19JENSEN INSTRUMENT COMPANY5/6/2021 170

GENERAL LEGAL - MAR 20217759026177504 $114.00 $114.00JACKSON LEWIS PC5/13/2021 132

2 CS COMPOSTABLE UTENSILS302125177526 $98.23 $98.23STARLINE SUPPLY COMPANY5/13/2021

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9112185897177431 $90.08 $90.08AIRGAS NCN5/6/2021 122

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - APR 2021768520210427177501 $87.73 $87.73HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES5/13/2021 170

SERV TO: 04/23/21 - BOYCE ROAD4088644120210426177432 $70.40 $70.40ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT5/6/2021 170

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/17/2198XW53161177532 $64.50 $64.50UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/13/2021 136

1 DOT PHYSICAL71109955177493 $63.00 $63.00CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTERS5/13/2021 132

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES2012893003177467 $53.73 $53.73SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY5/6/2021

REPAIR: CUTOFF SAW45886177521 $51.33 $51.33SCHAA'S LAWNMOWER SALES & SERV5/13/2021 123

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45824177468 $51.00 $51.00SCHAA'S LAWNMOWER SALES & SERV5/6/2021 123

BLASTING MATERIALS371495177507 $43.90 $43.90KLEEN BLAST ABRASIVES5/13/2021 170

EXP REIMB: LIVESCAN FEE PRE-EMPLOYMENT20210511177491 $25.00 $25.00GUSTAVO CARRILLO5/13/2021 132

EXP REIMB: RECOGNITION - E. PEREZ20210430177485 $24.50 $24.50ROLLIE ARBOLANTE5/13/2021 141

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM222723177515 $19.29 $19.29NAYLOR STEEL INC5/13/2021 122

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 04/10/2198XW53151177476 $16.50 $16.50UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE5/6/2021 136

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16064280177487 $66.86 $10.48BLAISDELL'S5/13/2021 144

CREDIT ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES16018010C $-56.385/13/2021 120

Page 9 of 10398 of 401



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

05/01/2021-05/14/2021

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

 9

 57

 3

 97

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 1

 167 

 906,944.37

 289,896.31

 218,895.73

 26,729.68

-56.38

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 1,442,409.71

 19,190.34

 174,744.20

 261,388.56

 987,086.61

 1,442,409.71

 53

 40

 11

 2

 106

Page 10 of 10399 of 401



This space for filing stamp only 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
OR#:        
 

 

O  R  A  N  G  E     C  O  U  N  T  Y     R  E  P  O  R  T  E  R 
 

~ SINCE 1921 ~ 
 

600 W. Santa Ana Blvd., Suite 205, Santa Ana, California 92701-4542 
Telephone  (714) 543-2027 / Fax  (714) 542-6841 

  
 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 

(2015.5 C.C.P.) 
 

State of California       ) 
County of Orange       ) ss 

Notice Type:             

Ad Description:       

I am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of California; I am 
over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to or interested in the above 
entitled matter.  I am the principal clerk of the printer and publisher of the 
ORANGE COUNTY REPORTER, a newspaper published in the English 
language in the City of Santa Ana, and adjudged a newspaper of general 
circulation as defined by the laws of the State of California by the Superior 
Court of the County of Orange, State of California, under date of June 2, 1922, 
Case No. 13,421.  That the notice, of which the annexed is a printed copy, has 
been published in each regular and entire issue of said newspaper and not in 
any supplement thereof on the following dates, to-wit: 

 

Executed on: 10/10/2004 
At Los Angeles, California 

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
Signature 

 

WHATS HAPPENINGS TRI CITY VOICE

39737 PASEO PADRE PKWY, FREMONT, CA 94538
(510) 494-1999 (510) 796-2462

CNS 3468690
MAY BAUTISTA                    
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT/CIP
5072 BENSON ROAD
UNION CITY, CA - 94587

HRG - NOTICE OF HEARING

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON CAPACITY FEES

I am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of California; I am
over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to or interested in the above
entitled matter. I am the principal clerk of the printer and publisher of the
WHATS HAPPENINGS TRI CITY VOICE, a newspaper of general circulation in
the city of Fremont, county of Alameda as defined by the laws of the State of
California by the Superior Court of the County of Alameda, State of California
under date 05/08/2015, case no. HG14716669. That the notice, of which the
annexed is a printed copy, has been published in each regular and entire issue
of said newspaper and not in any supplement thereof on the following dates,
to-wit:

05/11/2021, 05/18/2021

05/18/2021

ALAMEDA                  

!A000005722828!
Email

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON CAPACITY

FEES
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to
Section 5474 of the Health and Safety Code and
Sections 66013 et seq. of the Government Code
of the State of California and Union Sanitary
District Ordinance No. 35, the Board of Directors
of the Union Sanitary District ("Board") will
consider adopting the Capacity Fee Ordinance
No. 35.23. Ordinance No. 35.23 would set the
Capacity Fees to be charged for Fiscal Years
2022-2026. All categories of capacity fees for
connection to the sanitary sewer system are
proposed to increase over the same 5-year
period and are outlined in the updated Capacity
Fee Study, dated April 2021. The Capacity Fee
for a single-family dwelling connection to the
sanitary sewer system is proposed to increase to
approximately $9,331 beginning in FY 2022.
Copies of the proposed Capacity Fee Study and
Ordinance No. 35.23 will be available for review
at the office of the Union Sanitary District, 5072
Benson Road, Union City, California. The April
2021 Capacity Fee Study can be reviewed online
at unionsanitary.ca.gov/capacity-fees
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday
the 24th day of May 2021, at the hour of 4:00 p.m.
the Board will hear and consider all oral or written
presentations regarding the proposed Ordinance
No. 35.23. To maximize public safety while still
maintaining transparency and public access,
members of the public may provide public
comment by sending comments to the Board
Clerk by email through the public comment
portion of the meeting at
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via
voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 before 3:00
p.m. on the date of the meeting. The agenda for
this meeting, which will include remote access
information, will be posted on the District Board
Meetings web page 72 hours before the meeting
at unionsanitary.ca.gov/meetings
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday,
the 24th day of May 2021, at the hour of 4:00 p.m.
the Board will also consider increasing its fee for
processing applicant's requests to review
capacity charges from $25 to $360. Members of
the public may access the meeting and provide
public comment as specified above.
5/11, 5/18/21

CNS-3468690#

400 of 401



In accordance with the provisions of Business
& Professions Code Section 21706, there being
unpaid charges for the rental of mini-storage
spaces at Diamond Mine Mini-Storage Union
City, 4400 Horner Street, Union City, CA 94587
(510) 489-4747, notice is hereby given that the
property stored therein will be sold on May 28,
2021 starting at 10:00AM at Diamond Mine
Mini-Storage, 4400 Horner St., Union City, CA
94587. Any sum over and above costs of stor-
age, advertising and expenses of this sale will
be refunded when Diamond Mine Mini-Storage
is contacted by the owner(s) of the stored
property, otherwise the money will be turned
over to the Treasurer of Alameda County.

NAME
BRIAN MAKANA AKAMA
DENISE JACKSON
JOSEPH FRANK WEATHERAL

ITEMS FOUND IN SPACES ARE: Air cleaner,
chain saw, chop saw, fishing net, hover board,
paint, vending machine, washer/dryer, etc.

Auctioneer: Forrest O’Brien Ca Bond
#00104533207 and/or Donna Wilson Ca Bond
#0562039 (408)712-8019

AR #6575567; May 14, 21, 2021

Notice of Public Auction
Pursuant to the California Self-Service Storage
Facility Act (B&P Code 21700 et. Seq) the
undersigned will sell online public auction
on May 28th at 10:15am. Personal Property
including: misc totes, misc boxes, misc
bags and suitcases. Auction website is
StorageTreasures.com for Industrial Blvd Self
Storage 27911 Industrial Blvd, Hayward, CA
94545. (510) 887-1474 Call via Mitel
Indselfstorage@gmail.com

Stored By: Joe Gomes #32

All property will be sold as is. Must be paid
by cash. Sell maybe cancelled without prior
notice.

DR #6574342; May 7, 14, 2021

T.S. No. 20-61618 APN: 507-0584-048

NOTICE OF TRUSTEE’S SALE

YOU ARE IN DEFAULT UNDER A DEED OF TRUST
DATED 7/5/2007. UNLESS YOU TAKE ACTION
TO PROTECT YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE
SOLD AT A PUBLIC SALE. IF YOU NEED AN EX-
PLANATION OF THE NATURE OF THE PROCEED-
ING AGAINST YOU, YOU SHOULD CONTACT A
LAWYER.
A public auction sale to the highest bidder for
cash, cashier’s check drawn on a state or na-
tional bank, check drawn by a state or federal
credit union, or a check drawn by a state or
federal savings and loan association, or sav-
ings association, or savings bank specified in
Section 5102 of the Financial Code and author-
ized to do business in this state will be held by
the duly appointed trustee as shown below, of
all right, title, and interest conveyed to and
now held by the trustee in the hereinafter de-
scribed property under and pursuant to a Deed
of Trust described below. The sale will be
made, but without covenant or warranty, ex-
pressed or implied, regarding title, possession,
or encumbrances, to pay the remaining princi-
pal sum of the note(s) secured by the Deed of
Trust, with interest and late charges thereon,
as provided in the note(s), advances, under
the terms of the Deed of Trust, interest there-
on, fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee
for the total amount (at the time of the initial
publication of the Notice of Sale) reasonably
estimated to be set forth below. The amount
may be greater on the day of sale.

Trustor: OZRA SALIMEI A MARRIED WOMAN,
AS HER SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY
Duly Appointed Trustee: ZBS Law, LLP Deed of
Trust recorded 7/11/2007, as Instrument No.
2007254658, of Official Records in the office of
the Recorder of Alameda County, California,
Date of Sale: 5/21/2021 at 12:00 PM
Place of Sale: At the front Fallon St emergen-
cy exit to the Alameda County Courthouse
1225 Fallon Street Oakland, CA
Estimated amount of unpaid balance and other
charges: $531,960.13
Note: Because the Beneficiary reserves the
right to bid less than the total debt owed, it is
possible that at the time of the sale the open-
ing bid may be less than the total debt owed.

Street Address or other common designation
of real property: 38754 ALMADEN PLACE
FREMONT, California 94536

,

Described as follows:
As more fully described in said Deed of Trust

A.P.N #.: 507-0584-048
The undersigned Trustee disclaims any liabili-
ty for any incorrectness of the street address
or other common designation, if any, shown
above. If no street address or other common
designation is shown, directions to the loca-
tion of the property may be obtained by send-
ing a written request to the beneficiary within
10 days of the date of first publication of this
Notice of Sale.

NOTICE TO POTENTIAL BIDDERS: If you are con-
sidering bidding on this property lien, you
should understand that there are risks in-
volved in bidding at a trustee auction. You will
be bidding on a lien, not on the property itself.
Placing the highest bid at a trustee auction
does not automatically entitle you to free and
clear ownership of the property. You should al-
so be aware that the lien being auctioned off
may be a junior lien. If you are the highest bid-
der at the auction, you are or may be responsi-
ble for paying off all liens senior to the lien be-
ing auctioned off, before you can receive clear
title to the property. You are encouraged to in-
vestigate the existence, priority, and size of
outstanding liens that may exist on this prop-
erty by contacting the county recorder’s office
or a title insurance company, either of which
may charge you a fee for this information. If
you consult either of these resources, you
should be aware that the same lender may
hold more than one mortgage or deed of trust
on the property.

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER: The sale date
shown on this notice of sale may be postponed
one or more times by the mortgagee, benefi-
ciary, trustee, or a court, pursuant to Section
2924g of the California Civil Code. The law re-
quires that information about trustee sale
postponements be made available to you and
to the public, as a courtesy to those not pres-
ent at the sale. If you wish to learn whether
your sale date has been postponed, and, if ap-
plicable, the rescheduled time and date for the
sale of this property, you may call (866) 266-
7512 or visit this Internet Web site www.elitep
ostandpub.com, using the file number as-
signed to this case 20-61618. Information
about postponements that are very short in
duration or that occur close in time to the
scheduled sale may not immediately be re-
flected in the telephone information or on the
Internet Web site. The best way to verify post-
ponement information is to attend the sched-
uled sale.

NOTICE TO TENANT: You may have a right to
purchase this property after the trustee auc-
tion pursuant to Section 2924m of the Califor-
nia Civil Code. If you are an “eligible tenant
buyer,” you can purchase the property if you
match the last and highest bid placed at the
trustee auction. If you are an “eligible bidder,”
you may be able to purchase the property if
you exceed the last and highest bid placed at
the trustee auction. There are three steps to
exercising this right of purchase. First, 48
hours after the date of the trustee sale, you
can call (866) 266-7512, or visit this internet
website www.elitepostandpub.com, using the
file number assigned to this case 20-61618 to
find the date on which the trustee’s sale was
held, the amount of the last and highest bid,
and the address of the trustee. Second, you
must send a written notice of intent to place a
bid so that the trustee receives it no more than
15 days after the trustee’s sale. Third, you
must submit a bid so that the trustee receives
it no more than 45 days after the trustee’s
sale. If you think you may qualify as an “eligi-
ble tenant buyer” or “eligible bidder,” you
should consider contacting an attorney or ap-
propriate real estate professional immediately
for advice regarding this potential right to pur-
chase.

Dated: 4/20/2021
ZBS Law, LLP, as Trustee

30 Corporate Park, Suite 450
Irvine, CA 92606

For Non-Automated Sale Information,
call: (714) 848-7920

For Sale Information: (866) 266-7512
www.elitepostandpub.com

Michael Busby, Trustee Sale Officer

This office is enforcing a security interest of
your creditor. To the extent that your obliga-

y y g
tion has been discharged by a bankruptcy
court or is subject to an automatic stay of
bankruptcy, this notice is for informational
purposes only and does not constitute a de-
mand for payment or any attempt to collect
such obligation. EPP 32693 4/30, 5/7, 5/14/2021

AR 6571391; Apr 30; May 7, 14, 2021

UNION SANITARY
DISTRICT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON
CAPACITY FEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Sec-
tion 5474 of the Health and Safety Code and
Sections 66013 et seq. of the Government Code
of the State of California and Union Sanitary
District Ordinance No. 35, the Board of Direc-
tors of the Union Sanitary District ("Board")
will consider adopting the Capacity Fee Ordi-
nance No. 35.23. Ordinance No. 35.23 would set
the Capacity Fees to be charged for Fiscal
Years 2022-2026. All categories of capacity fees
for connection to the sanitary sewer system
are proposed to increase over the same 5-year
period and are outlined in the updated Capaci-
ty Fee Study, dated April 2021. The Capacity
Fee for a single-family dwelling connection to
the sanitary sewer system is proposed to in-
crease to approximately $9,331 beginning in FY
2022. Copies of the proposed Capacity Fee
Study and Ordinance No. 35.23 will be available
for review at the office of the Union Sanitary
District, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, Califor-
nia. The April 2021 Capacity Fee Study can be
reviewed online at
unionsanitary.ca.gov/capacity-fees
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday the
24th day of May 2021, at the hour of 4:00 p.m.
the Board will hear and consider all oral or
written presentations regarding the proposed
Ordinance No. 35.23. To maximize public safety
while still maintaining transparency and public
access, members of the public may provide
public comment by sending comments to the
Board Clerk by email through the public com-
ment portion of the meeting at assistanttogm
@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by call-
ing 510-477-7599 before 3:00 p.m. on the date of
the meeting. The agenda for this meeting,
which will include remote access information,
will be posted on the District Board Meetings
web page 72 hours before the meeting at
unionsanitary.ca.gov/meetings
NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Monday, the
24th day of May 2021, at the hour of 4:00 p.m.
the Board will also consider increasing its fee
for processing applicant’s requests to review
capacity charges from $25 to $360. Members of
the public may access the meeting and pro-
vide public comment as specified above.
5/14, 5/21/21
CNS-3468689#
THE ARGUS

AR 6574440 May 14, 21, 2021

NOTICE OF PETITION
TO ADMINISTER ESTATE OF:

WILLIAM L. JAMISON
CASE NUMBER:
RP21096745

To all heirs, beneficiaries, creditors, contingent
creditors, and persons who may otherwise be
interested in the will or estate, or both, of:
WILLIAM L. JAMISON .

A Petition for Probate has been filed by:
KATHLEEN R. JAMISON in the Superior Court of
California, County of ALAMEDA.

The Petition for Probate requests that
KATHLEEN R. JAMISON be appointed as per-
sonal representative to administer the estate
of the decedent.

The Petition requests authority to administer
the estate under the Independent Administra-
tion of Estates Act. (This authority will allow
the personal representative to take many ac-
tions without obtaining court approval. Before
taking certain very important actions, howev-
er, the personal representative will be re-
quired to give notice to interested persons un-
less they have waived notice or consented to
the proposed action.) The independent admin-
istration authority will be granted unless an in-
terested person files an objection to the peti-
tion and shows good cause why the court
should not grant the authority.

A hearing on the petition will be held in this
court as follows:
Date: 06/23/2021 Time: 2:00 PM Dept.: 201
Address of court:

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF
ALAMEDA, 2120 Martin Luther King Jr. Wy.,
Berkeley, CA 94704 .

MANDATORY REMOTE APPEARANCE.
LCR 7.180
THE COURT REQUIRES ALL PARTIES WHO
WISH TO ATTEND THE HEARING ON THE
ABOVE DATE AND TIME, INCLUDING THOSE
WHO WISH TO STATE OBJECTIONS, TO AP-
PEAR BY AUDIO OR VIDEO TECHNOLOGY. THE
PARTIES SHOULD CONSULT THE COURT’S
WEBSITE FOR THE SPECIFIC TELEPHONIC AND
VIDEO APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE. THE PAR-
TIES MAY ALSO CONTACT THE PROBATE
CLERK IN THE RESPECTIVE DEPARTMENT FOR
INFORMATION CONCERNING REMOTE APPEAR-
ANCES. PARTIES MUST BE PRESENT AT LEAST
FIVE (5) MINUTES BEFORE THE SCHEDULED
HEARING TIME.

If you object to the granting of the petition,
you should appear at the hearing and state
your objections or file written objections with
the court before the hearing. Your appearance
may be in person or by your attorney.

If you are a creditor or a contingent creditor
of the decedent , you must file your claim with
the court and mail a copy to the personal rep-
resentative appointed by the court within the
later of either (1) four months from the date of
first issuance of letters to a general personal
representative, as defined in section 58(b) of
the California Probate Code, or (2) 60 days
from the date of mailing or personal delivery
to you of a notice under section 9052 of the
California Probate Code.
Other California statutes and legal authority
may affect your rights as a creditor. You may
want to consult with an attorney knowledge-
able in California law.

You may examine the file kept by the court. If
you are a person interested in the estate, you
may file with the court a Request for Special
Notice (form DE-154) of the filing of an invento-
ry and appraisal of estate assets or of any pe-
tition or account as provided in Probate Code
section 1250. A Request for Special Notice
form is available from the court clerk.

Attorney For Petitioner:
Denise Eaton-May, Esq. (SBN: 116780)
Law Offices of Denise Eaton-May, P.C.
1290 B St., Ste. 316
Hayward, CA 94541
(510) 888-1345

OT 6575890; May 14, 21, 28, 2021

FILED
APRIL 20, 2021
MELISSA WILK,

County Clerk
ALAMEDA COUNTY
By ----------, Deputy

FILE NO. 578255
FICTITIOUS BUSINESS NAME STATEMENT

Pursuant To Business and
Professions Code Sections 17900-17930

The name of the business:
1) HEINOLD’S FIRST & LAST CHANCE
2) HEINOLD’S FIRST & LAST CHANCE SALOON
located at 48 Webster St., Oakland, CA 94607 in
Alameda County is hereby registered by the
following owner(s):
1) Carol R. Bookman

333 Louisburg St.
San Francisco, CA 94112

2) Elliott A. Myles
333 Louisburg St.
San Francisco, CA 94112

This business is conducted by: a General Part-
nership
Business commenced on August 16, 2016.
/s/ Elliott A. Myles, Partner

(Managing Partner)
This statement was filed with the County Clerk
of Alameda County on date indicated by file
stamp above.
Expires APRIL 20, 2026.

OT 6575889; May 14, 21, 28; Jun 4, 2021

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The Peralta Community College District (PCCD)
is seeking proposals from qualified Artists to
provide art designs for College of Alameda
New Center for Liberal Arts, Art Curation (RFP
No. 20-21/13) . Proposals are to be submitted
electronically (via Vendor Registry), until 3:00
P.M. on June 25, 2021 .

The project involves providing professional art
design, development, project delivery and in-
stallation services for the New Center for Lib-

eral Arts located at the College of Alameda,
555 Ralph Appezzato Memorial Parkway, Ala-
meda, CA 94501.

A Mandatory Pre-proposal video conference
meeting will be held on May 25th, 2021 at
10:00A.M. via Zoom: Conference Meeting ID
970 4521 8046. Register in advance for this
meeting:
https://cccconfer.zoom.us/meeting/register/
tJYqd-ugpjIpHtU60-gcVHfkmGWQwodl9Ukp
After registering, you will receive a confirma-
tion email containing information about join-
ing the meeting.

A Mandatory Site visit will be held on Wed-
nesday May 26th, 2021 at 10:00am, outside
Building H at College of Alameda, 555 Ralph
Appezzato Memorial Parkway, Alameda, CA
94501.

Copies of the pre-proposal documents may
be obtained by clicking on the following link:
https://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/Bids/View/
BidsList?BuyerId=4d041f6c-7568-4c8a-8878-
c82684292a3c or, by contacting the Peralta
Community College District, Purchasing De-
partment, 501 5th Avenue, Oakland, Califor-
nia, 94606, Phone (510) 466-7225, Office Hours:
8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Governing Codes:
GC 53068
EC 81641

OT 6576017; May 14, 21, 2021

OAKLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT ANNOUNCES
MEASURES G, G1 AND N PARCEL TAX LOW

INCOME AND SENIOR
CITIZEN EXEMPTION APPLICATIONS FOR

2021-22 ARE NOW AVAILABLE

PARCEL TAX MEASURES

Measure G, passed by Oakland voters on
2/5/08, is a special tax of $195 per year on each
parcel of taxable real-property in the City.
Measure N, passed by Oakland voters on
11/4/14 for 10 years, is a $120 per parcel spe-
cial tax on each taxable parcel in the City.
Measure G1, passed by Oakland voters on
11/8/16 for 12 years, is a $120 per parcel spe-
cial tax on each taxable parcel in the City.

EXEMPTIONS

Low Income Exemption is available for Meas-
ures G, G1 and N. An exemption is authorized
for owner-occupied single-family residential
units if the combined family income (from all
sources from 1/1/20- 12/31/20) is at or below
the income level qualifying as “very low in-
come” for a family of such size under section 8
of the U.S. Housing Act (42 U.S.C.A, 1437 et
seq.). Eligible owners must apply for the ex-
emption each year.

Senior Citizen Exemption is available for
single-family residential unit owned and occu-
pied by senior citizens for Measures G1 and N.
Eligible senior citizens do not need to renew
the exemption each year.

RENEW OR APPLY FOR YOUR EXEMPTION

Applications are available via District’s web-
site at www.ousd.org/parceltax. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, our office is closed to in-
person visits. For assistance, contact the Dis-
trict’s Parcel Tax Help Desk at (510) 879-8884
(Monday-Friday, 8 am to 4 pm).

Submit applications via mail to: Oakland Uni-
fied School District, Parcel Tax Exemption, 1000
Broadway, Suite 450, Oakland, CA 94607, or via
email to ousdparceltax@ousd.org. It is the ap-
plicant’s responsibility to complete the appli-
cation in its entirety and ensure that required
documentation is submitted along with the ap-
plication.

Deadline for submitting Exemption Application
is July 7, 2021. Late applications cannot be
processed for exemption.

Questions? Visit www.ousd.org/parceltax, call
510.879.8884, or email ousdparceltax@ousd.org

OT 6576102 May 14, 21, 2021

Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice Legal Notice

Legal Notice Legal Notice

Legal Advertising and Public Notices
FRIDAY, MAY 14, 2021 511 BAY AREA NEWS GROUP A29

 Newspaper : Fremont Argus  Advertiser : CALIF. NEWSPAPER SVC.
 Issue Date : 05/14/2021  Ad Number : 6574440

401 of 401



April 16, 2021 

Union Sanitary District 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 

Re:  Wastewater Capacity Charge Update 

Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit the attached Wastewater Capacity Charge Update.  

The study develops updated wastewater capacity charges designed to equitably recover the 

costs  of  wastewater  system  infrastructure  and  assets  benefitting  new  development.    The 

proposed  capacity  charges  are  designed  to  be  adequate,  fair,  and  comply  with  all  legal 

requirements.   

The  proposed  maximum  wastewater  capacity  charge  for  a  new  single  family  home  or 

equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) is calculated at $11,06312,307 (accounting for (in current dollars 

projected  construction  cost  inflation)),  which  results  in  Union  Sanitary  District’s  capacity 

charges remaining in the upper‐middle range compared to other regional wastewater agencies.  

The  updated  charges  reflect  the  cost  of  new  development’s  share  of  capacity  in  both  the 

District’s  existing  wastewater  facilities  and  expansion‐related  improvements  identified  in 

District’s 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan. 

To help minimize the annual impact of the fee increases, the District can phase in the updated 

capacity charges over five years.   In addition, proposed charges over the next five years can 

also incorporate annual inflationary adjustments to account for construction cost inflation. 

We enjoyed working with the District on this assignment and much appreciate the input and 

assistance  received  from District  staff during development of  the updated charges.   Please 

contact us anytime if you have questions about the recommendations presented in the report 

or other related issues. 

Sincerely, 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 

Alex Handlers  Erik Helgeson 
Principal/Vice‐President Senior Consultant 

2625 Alcatraz Ave, #602 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

Tel 510 653 3399 
www.bartlewells.com 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/24/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐2 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Updated Capacity Charges 

Updated capacity charges were calculated based on a Total Cost / Total Capacity methodology 

for five categories of District assets.  Unit charges were developed separately for each of these 

asset types to more accurately reflect the cost per unit of capacity in each type of infrastructure. 

Facility valuations are based on the acquisition cost of assets  identified  in the District’s  latest 

fixed asset schedule escalated into current dollars based on the change in the ENR Construction 

Cost Index (20‐Cities Average).  To both be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities 

that  may  not  provide  benefit  to  new  wastewater  connections,  the  updated  fee  calculation 

accounts  for  90%  cost  recovery  of  the  updated  value  of  existing  wastewater  system 

infrastructure. 

Table ES‐1 on the following page shows current capacity charges and proposed new maximum 

base year charges.  Under government code, the District can charge less, but cannot exceed the 

maximum charges calculated.  The proposed maximum base year charge per new single family 

home is calculated at $11,063 in current dollars, which is approximately 24.3% higher than the 

current single  family charge.   With projected construction cost  inflation of 2.7% per year, the 

proposed maximum charge is $12,307 effective July 1, 2025.  Compared to current charges, This 

the proposed increasecharges reflects higher costs per unit of capacity based on a) an increase 

in  expansion‐related  improvements  identified  in  the  District’s  capital  improvement  plan, 

particularly for the wastewater treatment plant, b) the addition of new facilities constructed over 

the past roughly five years, and c) construction cost inflation since the prior fee update. However, 

these cost  increases are partially offset by a decrease  in the estimated volume of wastewater 

flow  generated  by  new  residential  dwelling  units.    The  proposed  maximum  charges  reflect 

updates to underlying unit cost calculations for both wastewater flow and strength, as well as 

updates  to  estimated  wastewater  discharge  flows  and/or  loadings  for  new  residential 

connections and some commercial categories.  As such, the impacts of the proposed charges vary 

by customer type. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/24/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐6 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

5‐Year Phase‐In of Updated Maximum Charges with Cost Inflation 

To mitigate the annual impact of the increase in capacity charges, the District can phase in the 

proposed  increases  over  multiple  years,  similar  to  how  the  District  has  phased  in  prior  fee 

increases over  the past decade.    In addition,  charges  in  future years  can also  include annual 

inflationary adjustments to help keep the District’s capacity charges aligned with construction 

cost inflation.   

Table ES‐2 on the following page shows a 5‐year projection of capacity charges accounting for 

both  a)  a  5‐year  phase  in  of  capacity  charges  from  current  levels  to  the  updated  base‐year 

maximum charges and b) future annual adjustments to account for construction cost  inflation 

based  on  the  10‐year  historical  average  annual  increase  in  the  Engineering  News‐Record 

Construction  Cost  Index  (20‐Cities  Average)  of  2.7%  per  year.    Accounting  for  projected 

construction  cost  inflation,  the proposed  charge per  single  family home would escalate  to  a 

maximum of $12,307 effective July 1, 2025.  

Future Fee Updates 

In general, BWA recommends that capacity charges be independently reviewed and/or updated 

roughly once every  five years or when substantial  revisions are made  to  the District’s capital 

improvement programs or to future projections of wastewater demand. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/24/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    32 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Industrial Capacity Charges 

Table 15 shows updated capacity charges for industrial customers.  Since the District recovers 

industrial capacity fees in 4 installments, the unit costs developed for flow, COD, and SS are 

divided by 4 to show the annual fee.   
 

Table 15 – Proposed Industrial Capacity Charges 

  
 

Updated Maximum Capacity Charges 

Table  16  shows  a  schedule  of  current  and  proposed  maximum  base  year  capacity  charges 

(excluding any adjustments  for  future  construction cost  inflation), along with  the percentage 

increase  for each  type of customer category.   The  table also shows  the wastewater  flow and 

strength  assumptions  used  to  calculate  fees  for  each  customer  type.    The  proposed  new 

maximum  fees  range  from  roughly 25%  to 40% higher  than  current  charges  for most of  the 

District’s connection categories. 

 

Projected Capacity Charge Revenues 

Table 17 projects capacity charge revenues under Slow, Moderate, and Faster Growth scenarios 

for informational purposes.  The table projects revenues under current capacity charges and the 

proposed maximum capacity charges, both assuming 2.7% annual fee escalation.  Based on the 

assumptions,  the  updated  maximum  proposed  charges  are  projected  to  generate  between 

roughly $14 12 million and $35 30 million of additional revenues over the next decade.  Actual 

growth and capacity charge revenues may vary substantially from these projections. 

FLOW  COD  SS 

Proposed Industrial Fees

Unit Costs $131.09 per 1000 gallons $3,213.39 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

47.85 per gpd 1,172.89 per lb/day 2,362.77 per lb/day

Divided by 4 32.77 per 1000 gallons 803.35 per 1000 lbs 1,618.33 per 1000 lbs

11.96 per gpd 293.22 per lb/day 590.69 per lb/day

Note: Industrial fees are collected in 4 installments including an initial charge plus three additional 

charges for each subsequent year based on actual wastewater flow and strength from the prior annual 

period.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/24/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    35 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 16 – Schedule of Updated Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges 

  

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1

% Change (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit
2 $8,897.71  $11,063  24% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,644  26% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU 

square footage ÷ 

4,500 sq ft x  the 

Single Family Fee

$5.67 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based 

on the square footage of 

each ADU

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual 

tenant units exceeding 10,000 square 

$4.02 $5.36 33% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.31 36% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,808 26% per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,971 34% per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.30 33% per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $283.66 34% per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.27 33% per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,063 24% per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,596 33% per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.18 34% per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum 20 150 1.00

$1.69 $2.27 34% per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.57 36% per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, 

cooking, food storage, and 

food service areas 

(excluding seating areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $39.71 34% per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,126 24% lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.77 31% per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $803.35 43% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,618.33 31% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

per square foot of building 

floor area

Warehouses

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.42 33%

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each type 

of connection.  

2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/24/2021



City of San Jose $1,497 
City of Oakland $1,498 
North San Mateo County SD $2,600 
City of Milpitas $2,788 
City of Richmond $2,950 
Stege Sanitary District $3,009 
City of San Mateo $3,060 
City of Redwood City $3,096 
City of Mountain View $3,330 
City of Berkeley $3,536 
City of Alameda $3,928 
City of San Leandro $3,988 
City of Pittsburg $4,358 
City of South San Francisco $5,011 
City of Concord $5,043 
City of Santa Clara $5,839 
City of Livermore $6,876 
Oro Loma Sanitary District $6,919 
City of Hayward $7,700 
City of Antioch $7,784 
City of San Mateo (ST Area) $8,069 
City of Brentwood $8,264 
West Bay Sanitary District $8,501 
City of Sunnyvale $8,744 
Union Sanitary District $8,898 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District $9,000 
San Rafael Sanitation District $10,307 
West County Wastewater District $10,348 
City of Palo Alto $10,500 
Cupertino Sanitary District $11,034 
Union Sanitary District $12,307 
West Valley Sanitation District $12,428 
Ross Valley Sanitary $13,348 
City of San Carlos $13,627 
City of Pleasanton $14,159 
Castro Valley Sanitation District $15,026 
Dublin San Ramon Services District $15,906 

$0 $2,500 $5,000 $7,500 $10,000 $12,500 $15,000 $17,500 $20,000

Survey of Wastewater Capacity Charges 2020/21
Single Family Home

Current

Proposed Maximum*

Criteria for Agencies Surveyed
1. Within approximately 30‐mile radius of USD
2. Having at least 100 miles of Collection System

and/or 5 MGD of Treatment

* With projected construction cost inflation
through July 1, 2025.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Charge Update

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



April 16, 2021 

Union Sanitary District 
5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 

Re:  Wastewater Capacity Charge Update 

Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit the attached Wastewater Capacity Charge Update.  

The study develops updated wastewater capacity charges designed to equitably recover the 

costs  of  wastewater  system  infrastructure  and  assets  benefitting  new  development.    The 

proposed  capacity  charges  are  designed  to  be  adequate,  fair,  and  comply  with  all  legal 

requirements.   

The  proposed  maximum  wastewater  capacity  charge  for  a  new  single  family  home  or 

equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) is calculated at $12,307 (accounting for projected construction 

cost  inflation), which  results  in Union Sanitary District’s  capacity charges  remaining  in  the 

upper‐middle range compared to other regional wastewater agencies.  The updated charges 

reflect  the  cost  of  new  development’s  share  of  capacity  in  both  the  District’s  existing 

wastewater  facilities  and  expansion‐related  improvements  identified  in  District’s  20‐Year 

Capital Improvement Plan. 

To help minimize the annual impact of the fee increases, the District can phase in the updated 

capacity charges over five years.   In addition, proposed charges over the next five years can 

also incorporate annual inflationary adjustments to account for construction cost inflation. 

We enjoyed working with the District on this assignment and much appreciate the input and 

assistance  received  from District  staff during development of  the updated charges.   Please 

contact us anytime if you have questions about the recommendations presented in the report 

or other related issues. 

Sincerely, 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 

Alex Handlers  Erik Helgeson 
Principal/Vice‐President Senior Consultant 

2625 Alcatraz Ave, #602 
Berkeley, CA 94705 

Tel 510 653 3399 
www.bartlewells.com 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Union Sanitary District 
Wastewater Capacity Charge Update 

Table of Contents   

ES.  Executive Summary ............................................................................................ ES‐1 
Background & Objectives ....................................................................................... ES‐1 
Capacity Charges & Revenues ................................................................................ ES‐1 
Updated Capacity Charges ...................................................................................... ES‐2 
5‐Year Phase‐In of Updated Maximum Charges with Cost Inflation ....................... ES‐4 
Future Fee Updates ................................................................................................ ES‐4 
Capacity Charge Survey .......................................................................................... ES‐6 

1. Background, Objectives, & Government Code ......................................................... 1 
Background .................................................................................................................. 1 
Objectives .................................................................................................................... 1 
Government Code ....................................................................................................... 2 

2. Current & Historical Capacity Charges ..................................................................... 4 
Current Capacity Charges ............................................................................................ 4 
Historical Charges ........................................................................................................ 4 
Historical Capacity Charge Revenues ........................................................................... 7 

3. Capacity Charge Methodology ................................................................................. 9 
Fee Methodology ........................................................................................................ 9 
Facility Valuation ....................................................................................................... 10 

4. Updated Capacity Charge Calculation .................................................................... 12 
Recoverable Costs ..................................................................................................... 12 
Wastewater System Capacity .................................................................................... 18 
Cost Allocation ........................................................................................................... 19 
Unit Cost Calculations ................................................................................................ 21 

5. Wastewater Flows & Loadings ............................................................................... 23 
Residential Wastewater Flows & Loadings ................................................................ 23 
Accessory Dwelling Units ........................................................................................... 24 
Commercial Wastewater Flows & Loadings ............................................................... 26 

6. Proposed Capacity Charges .................................................................................... 27 
Capacity Charge per Single Family Home or EDU ...................................................... 27 
Industrial Capacity Charges ....................................................................................... 28 
Updated Maximum Capacity Charges ........................................................................ 28 
Projected Capacity Charge Revenues ........................................................................ 28 

7. Capacity Charge Application .................................................................................. 31 
Capacity Charge Ordinance:  Purpose of Charge ....................................................... 31 
Capacity Charge Application to Projects with Unknown Uses ................................... 31 
Capacity Charge Credits for Redevelopment ............................................................. 31 
Future Fee Adjustments ............................................................................................ 32 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

List of Tables & Appendices 

TABLES 

Table ES‐1 – Current & Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges 

Table ES‐2 – 5‐Year Phase‐In of Proposed Capacity Charges 
Table 1 – Current Capacity Charges 

Table 2 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

Table 3 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

Table 4 – Summary of District Fixed Assets & Valuation 

Table 5 – Pipeline Inventory & Replacement Cost per Linear Foot 

Table 6 – Summary of EBDA Fixed Assets & Valuation 

Table 7 – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan Summary 

Table 8 – Total Recoverable Costs 

Table 9 – Wastewater System Capacity 

Table 10 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

Table 11 – Wastewater System Cost Allocation 

Table 12 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

Table 13 – Wastewater Flows per Residential Dwelling Unit 

Table 14 – Wastewater Flow per Residential Dwelling Unit 

Table 15 – Current Capacity Charges 

Table 16 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

Table 17 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Capacity Charges with Low & High 20‐Year CIP Cost Estimates  

Appendix B – Union Sanitary District Fixed Asset List & Valuation  

Appendix C – East Bay Dischargers Authority Fixed Asset List & Valuation 

Appendix D – Residential Water Use & Wastewater Demand Data  

Appendix E – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan  

Appendix F – Government Code Sections Pertaining to Capacity Charges 

Appendix G –Capacity Charge Surveys 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    ES‐1 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

ES.  Executive Summary 

Background & Objectives 

Union Sanitary District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and effluent disposal services 

to approximately 356,000 residents and businesses in the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union 

City.   The District  levies capacity charges on new or expanded connections to the wastewater 

system.    These  charges  are  designed  to  recover  the  costs  of  capacity  in  existing  and  future 

infrastructure benefiting new development. 

 

The District retained Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) to update its wastewater capacity charges.  

Recommendations were developed with input from District staff and represent a comprehensive 

update based on the latest information available.  Key objectives included developing updated 

capacity  charges  based  on  a  defensible  methodology  that  will  recover  the  full  cost  of 

infrastructure and assets benefiting new development, comply with legal requirements, and are 

fair and equitable to both existing customers and new development.   

 

Capacity Charges & Revenues 

Over the past 25 years, the District has gradually increased it capacity charges most years.  The 

District’s capacity fees were last updated in 2016 resulting in a gradual increase of charges over 

the past four years.   The District’s capacity charge for a new single family home is currently about 

$8,898.  Multi‐family residential connections pay a lower charge per dwelling unit.  Charges for 

commercial connections vary by type of business and reflect the estimated wastewater flows and 

strength  concentrations  for  a  range  of  commercial  categories.    Industrial  connections  pay 

separate capacity charge components based on actual flow and wastewater strength loadings; 

these charges are collected in four annual installments. 

 

Capacity charge revenues can vary widely  from year to year based on growth.   Over the past 

decade revenues have ranged from roughly $2.5 million during lower‐growth years that followed 

the 2008  recession  to over $23 million  in 2018.   Capacity charge  revenues have  increased  in 

recent years due to a resurgence of growth. 

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    ES‐2 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Updated Capacity Charges 

Updated capacity charges were calculated based on a Total Cost / Total Capacity methodology 

for five categories of District assets.  Unit charges were developed separately for each of these 

asset types to more accurately reflect the cost per unit of capacity in each type of infrastructure. 

 

Facility valuations are based on the acquisition cost of assets  identified  in the District’s  latest 

fixed asset schedule escalated into current dollars based on the change in the ENR Construction 

Cost Index (20‐Cities Average).  To both be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities 

that  may  not  provide  benefit  to  new  wastewater  connections,  the  updated  fee  calculation 

accounts  for  90%  cost  recovery  of  the  updated  value  of  existing  wastewater  system 

infrastructure. 

 

Table ES‐1 on the following page shows current capacity charges and proposed new maximum 

base year charges.  Under government code, the District can charge less, but cannot exceed the 

maximum charges calculated.  The proposed maximum base year charge per new single family 

home is calculated at $11,063 in current dollars, which is approximately 24.3% higher than the 

current single  family charge.   With projected construction cost  inflation of 2.7% per year, the 

proposed maximum charge is $12,307 effective July 1, 2025.  Compared to current charges, the 

proposed charges reflect higher costs per unit of capacity based on a) an increase in expansion‐

related improvements identified in the District’s capital improvement plan, particularly for the 

wastewater treatment plant, b) the addition of new facilities constructed over the past roughly 

five  years, and  c) construction  cost  inflation  since  the prior  fee update. However,  these  cost 

increases  are  partially  offset  by  a  decrease  in  the  estimated  volume  of  wastewater  flow 

generated by new residential dwelling units.  The proposed maximum charges reflect updates to 

underlying unit cost calculations for both wastewater flow and strength, as well as updates to 

estimated wastewater discharge flows and/or loadings for new residential connections and some 

commercial categories.  As such, the impacts of the proposed charges vary by customer type. 

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐3 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table ES‐1 – Current & Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges 

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $11,063 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,644 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU square 

footage ÷ 4,500 sq ft 

x  the Single Family 

Fee

$5.67 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

ADU

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.36 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.31 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,808 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,971 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.30 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $283.66 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.27 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,063 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,596 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $42.19 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.18 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,063 lump sum 20 150 1.00

$1.69 $2.27 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.57 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $42.19 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food 

service areas (excluding 

seating areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,063 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $39.71 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,126 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.77 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $803.35 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,618.33 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

type of connection.  

2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.42 per square foot of building 

floor area

Warehouses

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐4 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

5‐Year Phase‐In of Updated Maximum Charges with Cost Inflation 

To mitigate the annual impact of the increase in capacity charges, the District can phase in the 

proposed  increases  over  multiple  years,  similar  to  how  the  District  has  phased  in  prior  fee 

increases over  the past decade.    In addition,  charges  in  future years  can also  include annual 

inflationary adjustments to help keep the District’s capacity charges aligned with construction 

cost inflation.   

Table ES‐2 on the following page shows a 5‐year projection of capacity charges accounting for 

both  a)  a  5‐year  phase  in  of  capacity  charges  from  current  levels  to  the  updated  base‐year 

maximum charges and b) future annual adjustments to account for construction cost  inflation 

based  on  the  10‐year  historical  average  annual  increase  in  the  Engineering  News‐Record 

Construction  Cost  Index  (20‐Cities  Average)  of  2.7%  per  year.    Accounting  for  projected 

construction  cost  inflation,  the proposed  charge per  single  family home would escalate  to  a 

maximum of $12,307 effective July 1, 2025.  

Future Fee Updates 

In general, BWA recommends that capacity charges be independently reviewed and/or updated 

roughly once every  five years or when substantial  revisions are made  to  the District’s capital 

improvement programs or to future projections of wastewater demand. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ES‐5 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table ES‐2 – 5‐Year Phase‐In of Proposed Capacity Charges 

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION

Current

Charges Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Annual Adjustment % 2.7% 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%

Escalation from Base Year 1.0000 1.0270 1.0547 1.0832 1.1125

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit1 $8,897.71  $9,331  $10,027  $10,755  $11,514  $12,307 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $8,030 $8,661 $9,321 $10,009 $10,728 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)2

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU 

square footage ÷ 

4,500 sq ft x  the 

Single Family Fee

$4.72 $5.09 $5.48 $5.88 $6.31 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

ADU

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $4.29 $4.68 $5.09 $5.52 $5.96 per square foot of building 

floor area

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $11.25 $12.34 $13.48 $14.67 $15.92 per square foot of building 

floor area

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $5,675 $6,119 $6,583 $7,068 $7,574 per unit, or

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,167 $3,459 $3,764 $4,084 $4,418 per capita design tenant

Schools and Day Care Centers $5.95 $6.49 $7.05 $7.64

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $4.24 $4.63 $5.03 $5.46 $5.90 per square foot of building 

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $226.21 $247.07 $268.89 $291.71 $315.56 per seat

Health Clubs $16.73 $17.84 $19.46 $21.15 $22.92 $24.77 per square foot of building 

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 per water closet

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $6,876 $7,503 $8,159 $8,845 $9,563 per washing machine

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $32.46 $35.84 $39.37 $43.07 $46.93 per square foot of building 

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $11.31 $12.35 $13.44 $14.58 $15.77 per square foot of building 

  With temporary 50% fee reduction $4.16 $4.75 $5.48 $6.24 $7.05 $7.89

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 lump sum

$1.69 $1.81 $1.97 $2.15 $2.33 $2.53 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 
$0.42 $0.45 $0.49 $0.54 $0.58 $0.63 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

Private cafeterias $30.03 $32.46 $35.84 $39.37 $43.06 $46.93 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food 

service areas (excluding 

seating areas)

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $9,331 $10,027 $10,755 $11,514 $12,307 lump sum, plus

$29.66 $31.67 $34.59 $37.64 $40.84 $44.18 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $18,662 $20,055 $21,510 $23,029 $24,614 lump sum

Non‐Standard Connections3 Varies  ‐    ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐   to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $26.52 $28.84 $31.27 $33.81 $36.46 per 1,000 gallons

COD Component $561.73 $610.05 $676.15 $745.38 $817.85 $893.69 per 1,000 lbs

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,315.58 $1,428.83 $1,547.24 $1,671.00 $1,800.32 per 1,000 lbs

3 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet 

shall be calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

2 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 

square feet; capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

CAPACITY CHARGE PER UNIT

Proposed Charges with 5‐Year Phase‐In

$5.58 $8.25 per square foot of building 

floor area

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    ES‐6 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

 

Capacity Charge Survey 

The following chart shows a survey of current wastewater capacity charges for a typical single 

family home.  With full implementation of the proposed charges, the District’s capacity charges 

will remain in the upper‐middle range compared to other regional wastewater agencies 

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    1 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

1. Background, Objectives, & Government Code 

Background 

Union Sanitary District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and effluent disposal services 

to  residents and businesses  in  the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City.   The District  is 

located  in  southern Alameda  County,  roughly  halfway  between Oakland  and  San  Jose.    The 

District serves a population of approximately 356,000 within a 60‐square‐mile service area.   The 

District was founded in 1918 and is governed by a 5‐member Board of Directors.   

 

The  District  owns  and  operates  a  wastewater  collection  system  and  treatment  plant.    The 

collection system serves roughly 116,000 connections and includes approximately 835 miles of 

pipelines and 7 pump stations.  The wastewater treatment plant is located in Union City and has 

a permitted capacity of 33 million gallons per day (mgd) of average dry weather flow (ADWF).  

Treated wastewater effluent is conveyed from the treatment plant through facilities operated by 

the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) and disposed into the San Francisco Bay.  

 

Objectives 

Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) was retained to develop a comprehensive update to the District’s 

wastewater  capacity  charges.   Updated  charges were  calculated based on  the  same  general 

methodology used by BWA in the 2010 Capacity Fee Study and 2016 Capacity Fee Update.  Key 

objectives of the 2019 update include: 

 
 Provide independent review of the District’s current capacity charges; 

 Incorporate updated information and data to ensure the District’s capacity charges reflect 

the cost of providing capacity for serving new or expanded connections to the District’s 

wastewater system; 

 Evaluate regional water use data and update estimates of residential wastewater flow; 

 Develop updated capacity fees that: 

o Comply with government code 

o Are based on industry‐standard methodology 

o Recover the cost of infrastructure and assets benefiting new development 

o Are fair and equitable to existing and future customers. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    2 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

BWA met with District  staff on various occasions  to gather  information, discuss  findings and 

alternatives, and receive input.  Recommendations were developed with input from District staff 

and reflect the following updated information: 

 The District’s fixed asset schedule as of June 30, 2019; 

 The  District’s  20‐Year  Capital  Improvement  Plan  (CIP)  under  a  range  of  projected  costs 

including mid‐point engineering cost estimates as well as  low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost 

projections; 

 The East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) fixed asset schedule as of June 30, 2018; 

 Updated cost estimates for District and EBDA facilities based on the Engineering News‐

Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average); 

 Projected wastewater flow and strength data from the District’s Enhanced Treatment and 

Site Upgrade Program dated August 2019 by Woodard & Curran; 

 Updated wastewater strength information from District lab analysis of wastewater influent; 

 Updated wastewater flow and/or strength concentrations for various residential and 

commercial customer categories. 

 

Government Code 

Water and sewer capacity charges are governed by California Government Code Section 66013.  

This section of  the Code  is part of  the Mitigation Fee Act which was primarily established by 

Assembly Bill 1600 (AB 1600) in 1987. 

 

Section  66013  specifically  governs  water  and  wastewater  capacity  charges  and  defines  a 

“capacity  charge”  to mean  “a  charge  for public  facilities  in existence at  the  time a  charge  is 

imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future that are of 

proportional  benefit  to  the  person  or  property  being  charged,  including  supply  or  capacity 

contracts for rights or entitlements, real property interests, and entitlements and other rights of 

the local agency involving capital expense related to its use of existing or new public facilities.”   

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 3 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Section 66013 distinguishes “capacity charges” from “connection fees” which are defined as fees 

for the physical facilities necessary to make a water or sewer connection, such as costs related 

to installation of meters and pipelines from a new building to a water or sewer main. 

According to the Section 66013, a water or wastewater capacity charge “shall not exceed the 

estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fee or charge is imposed” unless 

approved by a two‐thirds vote.  As such, the updated capacity charges calculated in this report 

represent the maximum charges that the District can  levy.   Section 66013 does not detail any 

specific methodology for calculating capacity charges.  

Other sections of the Government Code that apply to water and wastewater capacity charges 

include Section 66016, 66022 and 66023.  Section 66016 of the Code identifies the procedural 

requirements for adopting or increasing water and wastewater capacity charges.  Section 66022 

summarizes the general process by which the charges can be  legally challenged.   And Section 

66023 provides individuals with a process for requesting an audit to determine if a fee or charge 

is reasonable.  The full texts of Sections 66013, 66016 and 66022 are attached in Appendix F. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    4 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

2. Current & Historical Capacity Charges 

Current Capacity Charges 

Table 1 on the following page shows a schedule of the District’s current capacity charges.  The 

charge for a typical new single family home is currently about $8,898.  Multi‐family residential 

connections pay a lower charge per dwelling unit.  Charges for commercial connections vary by 

type of business and reflect the estimated wastewater flows and strength concentrations for a 

range  of  commercial  categories.    Industrial  connections  pay  separate  capacity  charge 

components  for  flow and  strength based on actual  flow and wastewater  loadings.    Industrial 

capacity charges are  typically paid  in  four annual  installments and are ultimately adjusted  to 

reflect the maximum level of wastewater discharged during the payment period to help ensure 

the charges reflect the discharge generated by each connection based on actual operations. 
 

Historical Charges 

The following chart shows historical capacity charges per single family home.  Over the past 25 

years, the District’s charges have increased by an average of 5.6% per year.  Over the past four 

years, capacity charges were gradually phased in to the maximum levels calculated in the 2016 

fee update in order to spread the increase over a number of years. 
 

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 5 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 1 – Current Capacity Charges 

Connection Category Unit Definition

Single Family Dwelling Unit $8,897.71  per unit (new construction only; not additions or 

repairs)

Single Family Dwelling Unit (greater than 

4,500 square feet)

$8,897.71

+ (see right)

Charge per unit plus proportionate charge above 4,500 

sq. ft. (e.g. charge for 4,600 sq. ft. = 4,600/4,500 x 

charge per unit)

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61  per unit

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) 

$4.02  per square foot of building floor area

Mixed Use Commercial Property with 

Individual Tenant Units less than 10,000 sq. ft.

$10.49  per square foot of building floor area

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81  per unit, or

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90  per capita design tenant

Schools and Day Care Centers $5.58 

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School and Day Care facilities 

excluded)

$3.98  per square foot of building floor area

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85  per seat

Health Clubs $16.73  per square foot of building floor area

Park or Recreation Site restrooms $8,897.71  per water closet

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38  per washing machine

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03  per square foot of building floor area

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking 

facilities

$10.59  per square foot of building floor area

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71  lump sum

$1.69  per square foot of building floor area up to 50,000 

square feet

$0.42  per square foot of building floor area for that portion 

of each building above 50,000 square feet

Private Cafeterias $30.03  per square foot of floor area for food preparation, 

cooking, food storage, and food service areas 

(excluding seating areas)

$8,897.71  lump sum, plus

$29.66  per square foot for any additional pad area above 600 

square feet

Mobile Home Holding Tank disposal station $17,795.42  lump sum

Non‐Standard Connections

Volume Component $24.96 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Single Family Dwelling Unit.

Source:  Ordinance No. 35.22 adopted April 25, 2016.

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

Charge Per Unit

per square foot of building floor area

Warehouses

Equipment Wash Pad in Interceptor

Capacity charges for uses not listed in the above table shall be determined by 

the District Engineer based upon the volume and pollutant loadings of the 

wastewater to be discharged.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    6 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

 

Table 2 – Historical Capacity Charge per Single Family Home 

 
 

   

Fiscal Year  Capacity Charge per Annual 

Ending June 30 Single Family Home % Change 

1996 $2,400.00 ‐ 

1997 2,485.00 3.5%

1998 2,572.00 3.5%

1999 2,618.00 1.8%

2000 2,618.00 0.0%

2001 2,618.00 0.0%

2002 2,618.00 0.0%

2003 2,710.00 3.5%

2004 2,845.50 5.0%

2005 2,987.78 5.0%

2006 3,137.17 5.0%

2007 3,294.03 5.0%

2008 3,458.73 5.0%

2009 3,631.67 5.0%

2010 3,813.25 5.0%

2011 4,003.91 5.0%

2012 4,404.30 10.0%

2013 4,844.73 10.0%

2014 5,329.20 10.0%

2015 5,595.66 5.0%

2016 5,595.66 0.0%

2017 6,421.17 14.8%

2018 7,246.69 12.9%

2019 8,072.20 11.4%

2020 8,897.71 10.2%

Average Annual Increase Since 1996 5.6%

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    7 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

 

Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

The  following  table  shows  capacity  charge  revenues by  fiscal year  since 2000 along with  the 

estimated  number  of  new  single  family  residential  equivalents  connecting  each  year.    The 

average number of new single  family equivalents connecting over the period shown  is a  little 

over 1,300 per year.  The District has experienced a higher‐than‐historical level of capacity charge 

revenues  in recent years due to both a) higher than average  levels of new development, and 

b) an increase in capacity charges in recent years. 

 

Table 3 – Historical Capacity Charge Revenues 

 

Fiscal Year  Capacity Fee Capacity Fee Equivalent #

Ending June 30 Revenues Per EDU of Paid EDUs

2000 $6,285,294 $2,618 2,401

2001 9,010,445 2,618 3,442

2002 2,188,019 2,618 836

2003 1,665,970 2,710 615

2004 3,411,559 2,846 1,199

2005 3,173,183 2,988 1,062

2006 3,819,854 3,137 1,218

2007 3,503,054 3,294 1,063

2008 3,746,046 3,459 1,083

2009 2,467,083 3,632 679

2010 2,467,083 3,813 647

2011 3,381,963 4,004 845

2012 2,848,488 4,404 647

2013 3,062,836 4,845 632

2014 3,315,007 5,329 622

2015 4,820,637 5,596 861

2016 7,233,337 5,596 1,293

2017 12,595,637 6,421 1,962

2018 23,473,238 7,247 3,239

2019 16,158,027 8,072 2,002

2020 14,179,465 8,898 1,594

2000‐2020 Average 1,330

2000‐2020 Median 1,063

10‐Year Average 1,370

Annual Avg from Lowest 5‐Year Continuous Period 679

Annual Avg from Highest 5‐Year Continuous Period 2,018

EDUs = Equivalent Dwelling Units (Single Family Residential Equivalents)

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    8 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

 

 
 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    9 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

3. Capacity Charge Methodology 

Fee Methodology 

This  report  calculates  updated  capacity  charges  based  on  a  Total  Cost  /  Total  Capacity 

methodology  for  5  categories  of  District  assets  listed  below.    Unit  charges  were  developed 

separately for each of these asset types to more accurately reflect the cost per unit of capacity 

in each type of infrastructure. 

 Treatment Plant 

 Collection System 

 Pump Station & Conveyance 

 General/Admin Facilities 

 EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities 

 

The general approach for calculating updated fees for each asset class include: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Capacity Charge Methodology 

Step 1 ‐ Determine Cost of Facilities & Assets for Fee Recovery 

Determine the recoverable cost of facilities and assets to be recovered by the 
capacity charge.  Charges can recover costs for existing facilities as well as 

expansion‐related capital improvements and other system upgrades and assets. 

Step 2 ‐ Identify Capacity of Facilities 

Identify the corresponding service capacity of facilities and assets accounting for 
planned capital improvements.  Separate capacities may be identified for 

different types of facilities. 

Step 3 ‐ Calculate Cost per Unit of Capacity 

Calculate the cost per unit of capacity by dividing the costs identified for fee 
recovery in Step 1 by the service capacity of those facilities identified in Step 2. 

Step  4 ‐ Apply Cost per Unit to the Capacity Needs of New Development 

Apply the unit cost for capacity to the infrastructure capacity needs of each new 
development to determine an equitable capacity charge per new connection. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    10 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Facility Valuation 

There are a range of reasonable approaches used for estimating facility costs for recovery via 

capacity charges.  The updated capacity charges proposed in this report are based on the cost of 

facilities in current dollars.  This is an industry standard approach that a) does not reduce asset 

value to account for depreciation, but also b) excludes costs incurred for maintaining expansion 

capacity in facilities designed to serve growth, and c) excludes interest on debt and/or implied 

interest on funds internally advanced to prepay for expansion capacity in infrastructure built to 

accommodate projected future demands.  Depreciation is not factored in to the calculation to 

ensure that the fee reflects the full cost, and not a reduced portion of the cost, of facilities that 

were funded and built in advance to serve future development.  

 

The valuation method used  in the fee calculation reflects the principle that agencies and their 

customers benefit from economies of scale by building  infrastructure sized to meet projected 

future demands, which results in a lower average cost per unit of capacity than if infrastructure 

was built on a piecemeal basis as growth occurs.  The average cost per unit of capacity in a single 

larger pipeline, for example, is substantially lower than the cost of adding pipeline capacity on a 

unit by unit basis as growth occurs.  If the recoverable costs of facilities are continually reduced 

to account for depreciation, then agencies would not be able to recover the proportionate share 

of costs of infrastructure built in advance to accommodate future growth since new connections 

would only have to pay a discounted cost  for  facilities constructed  in advance to serve them.  

With depreciation, a new connection in 20 years, for example, would only have to pay for half of 

the cost of facility with a 40‐year useful life resulting in financial subsidization of growth. 

 

Facility valuations used to calculate updated capacity charges are based on the following: 

 District Wastewater  Facilities:  The  recoverable  cost  of  the  District’s  wastewater  system 

infrastructure is based on the acquisition cost of assets identified in the District’s latest fixed 

asset schedule as of June 30, 2019 escalated into current dollars based on the change in the 

ENR Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Average) from acquisition date to 2020 dollars.  For 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 11 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

comparison,  BWA  also  calculated  costs  of  the District’s  conveyance  system  based  on  an 

updated  inventory of pipelines and cost estimates per  linear  foot which resulted a similar 

valuation of the collection system. 

 EBDA Fixed Assets: The recoverable cost for the District’s share of EBDA facilities is based on

the same, ENR‐adjustment process described above to bring the original acquisition cost into

current dollars accounting for construction cost inflation.

 90% Cost Recovery Factor:  To both be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities

that may not provide benefit to new wastewater connections, the updated fee calculation

only includes 90% cost recovery for both the District’s wastewater system infrastructure as

well as the District’s share of capacity in EBDA effluent disposal facilities.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    12 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

4. Updated Capacity Charge Calculation 

Recoverable Costs 

Tables 4  through 7  identify  costs  for  facilities and assets  to be  recovered  from  the District’s 

updated capacity charges. 

District Infrastructure & Assets 

Table 4 summarizes the original and  inflation‐adjusted cost of the District’s  infrastructure and 

assets.  The recoverable cost of each type of asset is based on the purchase price of each asset 

adjusted into current dollars by the change in the Engineering News‐Record (ENR) Construction 

Cost  Index  (20‐Cities Average)  from  the acquisition year  to  June 2009.   The  table presents a 

summary of a line‐by‐line analysis of the District’s fixed asset depreciation schedule as shown in 

Appendix B.   To be conservative and exclude cost recovery  for  facilities that may not provide 

benefit to new wastewater connections, the updated charges account for 90% cost recovery for 

facilities and assets included in Table 4. 

Alternative Pipeline Cost Estimates 

To help verify the reasonableness of the cost estimates shown in Table 4, BWA also estimated 

collection system value based on an alternative approach accounting for the length and size of 

District pipelines and replacement costs per linear foot as shown on Table 5.  Cost estimates per 

linear foot are based on a study conducted in 2008 by RMC Engineers with costs per linear foot 

adjusted into current costs based on the change in ENR Construction Cost Index.  As shown at 

the bottom of Table 5, this alternative pipeline valuation approach results in a higher total cost 

than  the  collection  system  valuation  used  in  the  fee  update, which  is  based  on  90%  of  the 

inflation‐adjusted  cost of  assets  identified on Table 4.   BWA proposes  to use  the  lower‐cost 

approach for collection system assets in the updated fee calculation. 

   

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    13 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 4 – Summary of District Fixed Assets & Valuation 

 

 

   

Acquisition ENR‐Adjusted

Asset Class & Type Cost Cost

Treatment Plant Assets

trmtplant tmntplant $128,553,722 $230,689,757

Other Treatment Plant Assets 75,646,413 129,542,511

  SUBTOTAL 204,200,135 360,232,268

Collection System Assets

collection collsys 167,515,188 356,368,326

collection contribcs 209,680,380 1,163,757,363

collection liftstat 7,060,153 8,051,125

Less Treatment Plant Assets (58,179) (103,857)

  SUBTOTAL 384,197,543 1,528,072,958

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

collection pumpstat 35,743,640 54,729,400

collection twnforce 23,583,021 89,205,988

Less Treatment Plant Assets (207,733) (295,510)

  SUBTOTAL 59,118,927 143,639,878

General/Admin Assets

equipment 7,987,625 10,871,700

fleet 7,197,713 9,336,147

intangible 6,415,898 10,827,312

land 5,395,903 94,411,513

operations 78,877,183 137,969,393

Less Treatment Plant Assets (75,380,501) (129,143,144)

  SUBTOTAL 30,493,821 134,272,921

TOTAL 678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Note:  Some assets associated with treatment plant are included in other asset categories

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    14 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 5 – Pipeline Inventory & Replacement Cost per Linear Foot 

  

Pipeline Length  % of

Diameter (feet)
1

System 2008 $/LF
2

2019 $/LF
3

Total

5" 419 0.0% $225
4

$311 $130,309

6" 175,278 4.1% 225
5

311 54,511,458

8" 2,997,748 70.0% 225
5

311 932,299,628

10" 466,407 10.9% 230
6

318 148,317,426

12" 228,482 5.3% 235
6

325 74,256,650

14" 2,706 0.1% 310
4

429 1,160,874

15" 96,051 2.2% 310 429 41,205,879

16" 152 0.0% 310
4

429 65,208

18" 65,589 1.5% 335 463 30,367,707

20" 5,954 0.1% 360
4

498 2,965,092

21" 57,607 1.3% 360 498 28,688,286

24" 31,171 0.7% 385 533 16,614,143

27" 46,326 1.1% 410 567 26,266,842

30" 14,056 0.3% 450 623 8,756,888

33" 28,387 0.7% 500 692 19,643,804

36" 33,993 0.8% 550 761 25,868,673

39" 15,250 0.4% 575 795 12,123,750

42" 1,608 0.0% 600 830 1,334,640

48" 6,105 0.1% 700 968 5,909,640

60" 6,283 0.1% 800 1,107 6,955,281

Total 4,279,572 100.0% 1,437,442,178

Comparison to Collection System Valuation from Table 4

Collection System Assets (Including Lift Stations) 1,528,072,958

Cost Adjustment Factor Used in Fee Calculation 90%

Cost Recovery Used in Fee Calculation 1,375,265,662

1 Source: RMC Engineers, Long‐Term Gravity Sewer Renewal/Replacement Projections

   Dated September 5, 2008; Page 2, Table 1.

2 Source:  Based on same document as above, Page 7, Table 5.

3 Adjusted by the change in the Engineering News‐Record Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities

   from the 2008 average index to the January 2020 index.

4 Estimated based on replacement cost of nearest size pipeline.

5 For 6" and 8" pipe, cost assumes 80% pipe bursting and 20% open‐cut replacement.

6 For 10" and 12" pipe, cost assumes 70% pipe bursting and 30% open‐cut replacement.

Replacement Cost

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    15 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

EBDA Fixed Assets 

Table 6 calculates the District’s share of costs for EBDA facilities based on the ENR‐adjusted cost 

of each asset  from  the acquisition price  into current dollars accounting  for construction cost 

inflation.  Detailed calculations for each asset are shown in Appendix C.  The total ENR‐adjusted 

cost of shared EBDA facilities is calculated at roughly $146 million.  The District is allocated 48.8% 

of EBDA facilities, equal to about $71 million, based on the District’s capacity allocation under 

EBDA’s joint power agreement. 

 

Table 6 – Summary of EBDA Fixed Assets & Valuation 

 

20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan 

Table 7 shows a summary of the District’s 20‐Year CIP, which is attached in Appendix E.  The table 

breaks out the share of CIP costs related to a) renewal and replacement of existing facilities and 

b) expansion and upgrade of capacity to serve new development.  The updated fee calculations 

recover  the  capacity‐related CIP  costs but exclude  the  share of  costs  related  to  renewal and 

replacement to ensure no double‐counting of existing assets and their replacements.   

Acquisition ENR‐Adjusted

EBDA Asset Class Cost Cost

Buildings & Structures  Operations Ctr $529,917 $1,579,593

Hayward Pump Station 1,600,599 3,004,333

San Leandro Pump Station Excluded 

Marina Dechlor Facility 2,889,652 7,031,915

Oro Loma Pump Station 8,250,102 21,101,832

Alvarado Pump Station Excluded  ‐ 

Data Acquisition System 510,856 1,017,053

Reclamation Facilities 747,707 1,897,100

Subsurface Lines 40,111,302 109,966,930

Office Furniture & Equipment 134,183 220,518

Field Equipment 71,053 171,443

Automotive Equipment 19,718 28,453___________ ___________

  Total 54,865,089 146,019,170

Union Sanitary District Share of EBDA Facilities

USD's Share of EBDA Facilities 48.8% 71,257,355

1 Source:  EBDA Fixed Asset Depreciation Schedule 06/30/18

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    16 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

The table summarizes projected CIP costs under a range of cost estimates including a mid‐point 

cost estimate as well as low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost estimates.  The updated capacity charges 

calculated in this report are based on the mid‐point cost estimate.  Updated charges were also 

calculated under the low and high cost estimates and are included in Appendix A.   

Table 7 – 20‐Year Capital Improvement Plan Summary 

 
 

The updated charges exclude cost‐recovery for some additional capital improvements that the 

District anticipates would likely be needed to serve customer demand through projected buildout 

but are not included in the current CIP.  As such, the updated charges account for a conservative 

estimate of future capital improvement funding needs for growth. 

20‐Year Cost Estimate Mid‐Point Low ‐15% High +25%

Administrative Facilities

Renewal & Replacement $79,900,000 $67,915,000 $99,875,000

Capacity 1,550,000 1,317,500 1,937,500

  Subtotal 81,450,000 69,232,500 101,812,500

Collection System

Renewal & Replacement 31,550,000 26,817,500 39,437,500

Capacity 1,700,000 1,445,000 2,125,000

  Subtotal 33,250,000 28,262,500 41,562,500

Transport System

Renewal & Replacement 105,925,000 90,036,250 132,406,250

Capacity 36,050,000 30,642,500 45,062,500

  Subtotal 141,975,000 120,678,750 177,468,750

Treatment

Renewal & Replacement 531,550,000 451,817,500 664,437,500

Capacity 297,975,000 253,278,750 372,468,750

  Subtotal 829,525,000 705,096,250 1,036,906,250

Total CIP

Renewal & Replacement 748,925,000 636,586,250 936,156,250

Capacity 337,275,000 286,683,750 421,593,750

  Total 1,086,200,000 923,270,000 1,357,750,000

Source:  Union Sanitary District

Note:  Additional capital improvements would be needed to serve demand through projected buildout.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    17 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Total Recoverable Costs 

Table 8 summarizes the total amount of costs to be recovered from the updated capacity charges.  

To be conservative and exclude cost recovery for facilities that may not provide benefit to new 

wastewater connections, the updated charges account for 90% cost recovery for facilities and 

assets included in the updated fee calculations. 

Table 8 – Total Recoverable Costs 

 

Total  Cost Cost 

Recoverable  Adjustment For Capacity 

Cost  Factor Fee Recovery 

Treatment Plant Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$360,232,268 90% $324,209,041

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

297,975,000 90% 268,177,500

  Subtotal 658,207,268 592,386,541

Collection System Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$1,528,072,958 90% $1,375,265,662

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

1,700,000 90% 1,530,000

  Subtotal 1,529,772,958 1,376,795,662

Pump Station & Conveyance

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$143,639,878 90% $129,275,890

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

36,050,000 90% 32,445,000

  Subtotal 179,689,878 161,720,890

General/Administrative Facilities & Assets

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
1

$134,272,921 90% $120,845,629

Expansion‐Related CIP Projects
2

1,550,000 90% 1,395,000

  Subtotal 135,822,921 122,240,629

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Cost of Existing Assets (Jan‐2020 $)
3

$71,257,355 90% $64,131,620

TOTAL $2,574,750,380 $2,317,275,342

1 Based on ENR‐adjusted purchase price shown on Table 4.

2 Based on mid‐point constuction cost estimate shown on Table 7.

3 Based on Union Sanitary District's share of EBDA facilities shown on Table 6.

Note: Excludes CIP costs for repairs & replacements to existing assets.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    18 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Wastewater System Capacity 

Table 9 lists the capacities of various types of District facilities used in the calculation of updated 

capacity charges. 

 
Table 9 – Wastewater System Capacity 

 
   

Treatment Plant Permit Capacity

Flow (ADWF)1 33.0 mgd NPDES Permit Capacity

Treatment Plant Design Flows & Loads at Buildout

Flow2 33.0 mgd Average Annual Flow

TSS2 99,600 lbs/day Average Annual Load

cBOD52 74,300 lbs/day Average Annual Load

BOD3 81,730 lbs/day Assumes BOD = cBOD5 x 1.10

Estimated Concentrations at Buildout

TSS 362 mg/l

cBOD5 270 mg/l

BOD 297 mg/l

Collection System Capacity (ADWF)4

Irvington Basin 17.0 mgd

Newark Basin 10.8 mgd

Alvarado Basin 11.2 mgd

Total Flow Capacity  39.0 mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

Service Capacity Flow (ADWF)5 39.0 mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Flow Capacity (ADWF) 42.9              mgd Average Dry Weather Flow

1 Source:  NPDES Permit Capacity for Average Dry Weather Flow.

2 Source: Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program, August 2019 ; Woodard & Curran, 

   Table 3.1: Design Flows and Loads.

3 Conversion factor based on Union Sanitary District lab analysis of wastewater influent.

4 Based on estimated buildout capacity from master plan updates for the District's 3 basins.

5 Assumes pump stations are adequate to handle buildout capacity of each basin.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    19 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Treatment plant  flow  capacity of 33 mgd  is based on  the plant’s NPDES Permit  capacity  for 

Average Dry Weather Flow.  Capacities for the wastewater strength measures of cBOD5 and TSS 

(or SS) are based on projections developed in the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade Program 

dated August 2019, and assume the treatment plant operates at full flow capacity of 33 mgd.  

Capacity  for BOD  is based on an updated conversion  factor based on  the District’s recent  lab 

analysis.  

Collection  system  capacity  is estimated  at 39 mgd based on  the  combined build‐out design 

capacity (ADWF) for each of the District’s 3 sub‐basins.  This capacity estimate is likely on the high 

side considering that pipeline upgrades/expansions would likely be needed to relieve bottlenecks 

in order to handle flows through buildout. 

Pump  station  and  conveyance  system  capacity  is  also  estimated  at  39 mgd  based  on  total 

collection  system  capacity  assuming  these  facilities  are  adequately  sized  to  handle  flows  at 

buildout.  This capacity estimate is also likely on the high side as the District would likely need to 

either expand existing pump stations and force mains, or construct other facilities – such as flow 

equalization basins – to mitigate the capacity shortfalls of existing pump stations and force mains 

to handle flows through buildout. 

The District’s share of capacity of EBDA effluent disposal facilities is based on the District’s share 

of Average Dry Weather Flow capacity in EBDA infrastructure. 

 

Cost Allocation 

Table 10 allocates the costs of the District’s wastewater treatment  for  fee recovery based on 

wastewater  flow and strength.   The allocations are based on a)  individual cost allocations  for 

specific plant components when such information could be identified by District staff, and b) a 

general  cost  allocation  of  1/3rd  flow,  1/3rd  BOD  and  1/3rd  SS  for  other  facilities,  which  was 

determined to be a reasonable estimate based on input from District staff.   

 

   

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    20 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 10 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

 
   

B
ld
g

A
ss
et
 V
al
u
e 

G
e
n
er
a
l

N
o
.

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

Ju
n
e 
20
1
91

 
A
llo
ca
ti
o
n

T
SS

B
O
D

Fl
o
w

T
o
ta
l

T
SS

B
O
D

Fl
o
w

To
ta
l

00
A

lv
ar

ad
o
 T

rt
m

n
t 

P
la

n
t 

A
ss

et
s

64
,4

70
,7

4
5

   
  

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
2

1,
49

0
,2

48
   
  

2
1,

49
0

,2
48

   
  

2
1,

49
0

,2
48

   
  

6
4,

47
0

,7
45

   
  

50
A

lv
ar

ad
o
 P

u
m

p
 S

ta
ti

o
n

5
82

,2
1

5
   
   
   
 

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

58
2

,2
15

   
   
   
 

58
2,

21
5

   
   
   
 

5
1

Pr
im

ar
y 

B
u

ild
in

g 
1 
‐ 

4
11

,7
19

,3
6

2
   
  

70
%

1
0%

20
%

10
0

%
8,

20
3

,5
53

   
   
 

1,
17

1
,9

36
   
   
 

2,
34

3
,8

72
   
   
 

1
1,

71
9

,3
62

   
  

5
2

Pr
im

ar
y 

B
u

ild
in

g 
5 
‐ 

6
1,

5
45

,4
8

6
   
   
 

75
%

1
5%

10
%

10
0

%
1,

15
9

,1
14

   
   
 

23
1

,8
23

   
   
   
 

15
4

,5
49

   
   
   
 

1,
54

5,
48

6
   
   
 

53
A

er
at

io
n
 5
 ‐
 7

4,
8

35
,4

7
6

   
   
 

10
%

7
0%

20
%

10
0

%
48

3
,5

48
   
   
   
 

3,
38

4
,8

33
   
   
 

96
7

,0
95

   
   
   
 

4,
83

5,
47

6
   
   
 

54
A

er
at

io
n
 1
 ‐
 4

4,
2

21
,8

7
2

   
   
 

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
63

3
,2

81
   
   
   
 

3,
16

6
,4

04
   
   
 

42
2

,1
87

   
   
   
 

4,
22

1,
87

2
   
   
 

55
Pu

m
p
 R

o
o

m
 2

7,
4

21
,2

0
1

   
   
 

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
1,

11
3

,1
80

   
   
 

5,
56

5
,9

01
   
   
 

74
2

,1
20

   
   
   
 

7,
42

1,
20

1
   
   
 

56
Pu

m
p
 R

o
o

m
 4

2,
6

10
,5

9
8

   
   
 

15
%

7
5%

10
%

10
0

%
39

1
,5

90
   
   
   
 

1,
95

7
,9

49
   
   
 

26
1

,0
60

   
   
   
 

2,
61

0,
59

8
   
   
 

57
R

ec
la

im
ed

 W
tr
 P

u
m

p
 R

o
o

m
1,

1
37

,4
0

8
   
   
 

45
%

4
5%

10
%

10
0

%
51

1
,8

34
   
   
   
 

51
1

,8
34

   
   
   
 

11
3

,7
41

   
   
   
 

1,
13

7,
40

8
   
   
 

60
O

C
B
 

9
38

,6
5

1
   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
31

2
,8

84
   
   
   
 

31
2

,8
84

   
   
   
 

31
2

,8
84

   
   
   
 

93
8,

65
1

   
   
   
 

61
61

‐O
C

B
‐C

H
E

1,
0

21
,1

8
6

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
34

0
,3

95
   
   
   
 

34
0

,3
95

   
   
   
 

34
0

,3
95

   
   
   
 

1,
02

1,
18

6
   
   
 

62
Ya

rd
 P

ip
in

g
5,

2
40

,8
1

4
   
   
 

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

5,
24

0
,8

14
   
   
 

5,
24

0,
81

4
   
   
 

63
A

n
ae

ro
b

ic
 D

ig
es

ti
o

n
3,

5
5

1
,9

7
7

   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1,

77
5

,9
88

   
   
 

1,
77

5
,9

88
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

3,
55

1,
97

7
   
   
 

64
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
3 

D
ig
 4

&
5

4,
0

11
,4

4
5

   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
2,

00
5

,7
22

   
   
 

2,
00

5
,7

22
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

4,
01

1,
44

5
   
   
 

65
Se

co
n

d
ar

y 
D

ig
 1

&
2

3,
0

15
,6

2
4

   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1,

50
7

,8
12

   
   
 

1,
50

7
,8

12
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

3,
01

5,
62

4
   
   
 

6
6

So
lid

s 
h

a
n

d
lin

g 
b

u
ild

in
g

1,
2

2
6

,7
8

1
   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
61

3
,3

91
   
   
   
 

61
3

,3
91

   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

1,
22

6,
78

1
   
   
 

68
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce
 S

h
o

p
9,

1
06

,6
7

4
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
3,

03
5

,5
58

   
   
 

3,
03

5
,5

58
   
   
 

3,
03

5
,5

58
   
   
 

9,
10

6,
67

4
   
   
 

69
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
R

m
 N

o
. 1

4
61

,9
8

7
   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
15

3
,9

96
   
   
   
 

15
3

,9
96

   
   
   
 

15
3

,9
96

   
   
   
 

46
1,

98
7

   
   
   
 

70
C

o
n

tr
o

l B
u

ild
in

g
4,

3
1

2
,9

8
1

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
1,

43
7

,6
60

   
   
 

1,
43

7
,6

60
   
   
 

1,
43

7
,6

60
   
   
 

4,
31

2,
98

1
   
   
 

71
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
rm

 N
o

. 2
2

70
,2

7
8

   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
90

,0
93

   
   
   
   
 

90
,0

93
   
   
   
   
 

90
,0

93
   
   
   
   
 

27
0,

27
8

   
   
   
 

73
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
 2
 D

ig
 3

5
15

,1
2

6
   
   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
25

7
,5

63
   
   
   
 

25
7

,5
63

   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

51
5,

12
6

   
   
   
 

7
4

D
o

u
b

le
 E

n
d

e
d
 S

u
b

st
at

io
n

3,
2

44
,5

0
0

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
1,

08
1

,5
00

   
   
 

1,
08

1
,5

00
   
   
 

1,
08

1
,5

00
   
   
 

3,
24

4,
50

0
   
   
 

75
75

‐p
ai

n
t‐

s
1

87
,7

0
3

   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
62

,5
68

   
   
   
   
 

62
,5

68
   
   
   
   
 

62
,5

68
   
   
   
   
 

18
7,

70
3

   
   
   
 

7
6

Pa
in

t 
Sh

o
p

1,
8

75
,9

6
5

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
62

5
,3

22
   
   
   
 

62
5

,3
22

   
   
   
 

62
5

,3
22

   
   
   
 

1,
87

5,
96

5
   
   
 

77
W

a
s 

T
h

ic
ke

n
er
 B

u
ild

in
g

1,
0

05
,6

1
1

   
   
 

20
%

8
0%

10
0

%
20

1
,1

22
   
   
   
 

80
4

,4
89

   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

1,
00

5,
61

1
   
   
 

78
En

gi
n

e 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
R

m
 3

6
07

,8
8

7
   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
20

2
,6

29
   
   
   
 

20
2

,6
29

   
   
   
 

20
2

,6
29

   
   
   
 

60
7,

88
7

   
   
   
 

79
H

e
ad

w
o

rk
s

4,
8

07
,9

0
9

   
   
 

10
0%

10
0

%
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

4,
80

7
,9

09
   
   
 

4,
80

7,
90

9
   
   
 

80
H

e
at
 &
 M

ix
 4
 D

ig
 6

1,
0

74
,2

5
1

   
   
 

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
53

7
,1

26
   
   
   
 

53
7

,1
26

   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

1,
07

4,
25

1
   
   
 

81
C

en
tr

if
u

ge
 B

u
ild

in
g

2
7

,3
4

6
,1

6
1

   
  

50
%

5
0%

10
0

%
1

3,
67

3
,0

80
   
  

1
3,

67
3

,0
80

   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

2
7,

34
6

,1
61

   
  

82
A

d
m

in
 B

u
ild

in
g

21
,2

08
,8

8
1

   
  

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
7,

06
9

,6
27

   
   
 

7,
06

9
,6

27
   
   
 

7,
06

9
,6

27
   
   
 

2
1,

20
8

,8
81

   
  

83
83

‐C
S/

A
U

TO
3

9
8

,5
7

0
   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
13

2
,8

57
   
   
   
 

13
2

,8
57

   
   
   
 

13
2

,8
57

   
   
   
 

39
8,

57
0

   
   
   
 

84
84

‐C
O

V
ER

ED
12

,2
99

,6
0

3
   
  

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
4,

09
9

,8
68

   
   
 

4,
09

9
,8

68
   
   
 

4,
09

9
,8

68
   
   
 

1
2,

29
9

,6
03

   
  

86
86

‐s
o

la
r

1,
4

15
,1

9
7

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
47

1
,7

32
   
   
   
 

47
1

,7
32

   
   
   
 

47
1

,7
32

   
   
   
 

1,
41

5,
19

7
   
   
 

87
87

‐f
m

c 
m

gm
1

06
,1

7
5

   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
35

,3
92

   
   
   
   
 

35
,3

92
   
   
   
   
 

35
,3

92
   
   
   
   
 

10
6,

17
5

   
   
   
 

88
88

‐t
rn

gc
tr

48
,9

7
6

   
   
   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
16

,3
25

   
   
   
   
 

16
,3

25
   
   
   
   
 

16
,3

25
   
   
   
   
 

48
,9

76
   
   
   
   
 

90
C

o
ge

n
e

ra
ti

o
n
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

2,
6

70
,3

6
3

   
   
 

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
89

0
,1

21
   
   
   
 

89
0

,1
21

   
   
   
 

89
0

,1
21

   
   
   
 

2,
67

0,
36

3
   
   
 

99
O

th
er
 T

rt
m

en
t 

P
la

n
t 

A
ss

et
s

14
9,

7
16

,6
2

8
   

X
3

3.
3%

33
.3

%
33

.3
%

10
0

%
4

9,
90

5
,5

43
   
  

4
9,

90
5

,5
43

   
  

4
9,

90
5

,5
43

   
  

14
9,

71
6,

62
8

   

TO
TA

L
36
0,
2
32
,2
6
8

  
3
4.
6%

35
.7
%

29
.7
%

1
00
.0
%

12
4,
52
2,
22
1

  
12
8,
62
0,
16
8

  
10
7,
08
9,
87
9

  
36
0,
23
2,
26
8

  

1
 B

as
ed

 o
n
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n
 c

o
st

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 a

ss
et
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

h
an

ge
 in

 t
h

e 
EN

R
‐C

C
I (

20
‐C

it
ie

s 
A

vg
) 

fr
o

m
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n
 d

at
e 

to
 J

u
n

e 
20

1
9.

2
 S

o
u

rc
e

: A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n
 in

p
u

t 
fr

o
m
 U

n
io

n
 S

an
it

a
ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
it

h
 G

en
er

al
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ss
e

ts
 a

llo
ca

te
d
 1

/3
 t

o
 T

SS
, 1

/3
 B

O
D

, 1
/3
 F

lo
w

.

P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 U
ti
liz
at
io
n
2

C
o
st
 A
llo
ca
ti
o
n

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    21 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 11 shows overall wastewater system cost allocations to flow, BOD and SS for the 5 asset 

classes  used  for  updated  capacity  charges.    Treatment  plant  cost  allocations  are  based  on 

Table 10.  Costs for the collection system, the District’s pump stations and force mains, and the 

EBDA effluent disposal  infrastructure  are  all  allocated 100%  to  flow.   Costs  for  the District’s 

general and administrative facilities are allocated 50% to flow and 50% to strength split evenly 

between BOD and SS reflecting a balanced allocation for purposes of reasonably cost recovery.  

Overall, the updated capacity charges will be sized to recover approximately 79.4% from flow, 

10.4% from BOD, and 10.2% from SS. 

 
Table 11 – Wastewater System Cost Allocation 

 
 
 

Unit Cost Calculations 

Capacity charge unit costs for wastewater flow, BOD, and SS are shown on Table 12.  The District 

uses COD instead of BOD for levying capacity charges on industrial customers.  The unit cost for 

COD is based on an updated conversion factor determined by the District’s lab.  

   

Costs for Fee

Recovery Flow BOD SS Flow BOD SS

Treatment Plant $592,386,541 29.7% 35.7% 34.6% $176,104,720 $211,510,359 $204,771,462

Collection System 1,376,795,662 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1,376,795,662 0 0

Pump Station & Conveyance 161,720,890 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 161,720,890 0 0

General/Admin Facilities & Asset 122,240,629 50.0% 25.0% 25.0% 61,120,314 30,560,157 30,560,157

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities 64,131,620 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 64,131,620 0 0

Total 2,317,275,342 79.4% 10.4% 10.2% 1,839,873,206 242,070,516 235,331,619

Cost Allocation % Cost Allocation $

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    22 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 12 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Cost Allocation 

 

FLOW BOD SS

Treatment Plant

Cost Allocation $176,104,720 $211,510,359 $204,771,462

Capacity 33 mgd 81,730 lbs/day 99,600 lbs/day

Unit Cost $5,336,507 per mgd $2,587.92 per lb/day $2,055.94 per lb/day

5.337 per gpd

$14.62 per 1000 glns $7,090.18 per 1000 lbs $5,632.71 per 1000 lbs

Collection System

Cost Allocation $1,376,795,662

Capacity 39 mgd

Unit Cost $35,302,453 per mgd

35.302 per gpd

$96.72 per 1000 glns

Pump Station & WWTP Conveyance

Cost Allocation $161,720,890

Capacity 39 mgd

Unit Cost $4,146,689 per mgd

4.147 per gpd

$11.36 per 1000 glns

General/Admin Facilities & Assets

Cost Allocation $61,120,314 $30,560,157 $30,560,157

Capacity 39 mgd 81,730 lbs/day 99,600 lbs/day

Unit Cost $1,567,188 per mgd $373.92 per lb/day $306.83 per lb/day

1.567 per gpd

$4.29 per 1000 glns $1,024.43 per 1000 lbs $840.63 per 1000 lbs

EBDA Effluent Disposal Facilities

Cost Allocation $64,131,620

Capacity 42.9 mgd

Unit Cost $1,494,910 per mgd

1.495 per gpd

$4.10 per 1000 glns

FLOW BOD SS

Total Unit Costs $47,847,746 per mgd $2,961.83 per lb/day $2,362.77 per lb/day

$47.85 per gpd

$131.09 per 1000 gls $8,114.61 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

COD Conversion COD

Assumes BOD = COD x 0.396 $1,172.89 per lb/day

$3,213.39 per 1000 lbs

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    23 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

5. Wastewater Flows & Loadings 

Residential Wastewater Flows & Loadings 

The  District’s  current  fees  are  based  on  the  assumption  that  a  typical  single  family  home 

discharges 210 gallons per day (gpd) of wastewater.  BWA previously analyzed 4 years of water 

use data for single family and multi‐family residential accounts provided by the Alameda County 

Water District (ACWD) from fiscal years 2005/06 through 2008/09.  ACWD’s service area mostly 

coincides with the District’s service area.   As part of the capacity charge update, BWA evaluated 

updated residential water use data  from the past 2  fiscal years 2017/18 and 2018/19 to help 

determine if the current wastewater flow assumptions remain reasonable or should be revised. 

 

The older data provides a reasonable estimate of residential water demand before California’s 

recent drought, which was declared over  in April 2017.   The data  from the past 2  fiscal years 

represents a period in which water demands have partially rebounded from levels experienced 

during the drought.  Water demands from the past 2 years do not reflect the full level of demand 

anticipated from future residential connections as water use is expected to continue rebounding 

in future years.  

 

Table  13  shows  historical  water  use  data  for  the  4  lowest  contiguous  months  of  water 

consumption.   This data  is based on wet‐weather water use which  reflects minimal outdoor 

irrigation and provides a reasonable estimate of indoor water use and wastewater discharge.   

 

Based on both the historical and updated data, estimated wastewater flow per dwelling unit is 

proposed  to  be  reduced  for  both  single  family  and  multi‐family  dwelling  units  as  future 

wastewater  discharge  is  anticipated  to  remain  lower  than  historical  norms.    Single  family 

residential  flow  is proposed  to be  reduced  from 210 gpd  to 195 gpd.    Flow per multi‐family 

dwelling unit is proposed to be reduced from 180 gpd to 170 gpd.  Note that typical size of a new 

multi‐family dwelling unit in the District’s service area is estimated at roughly 1,800 square feet. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    24 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 13 – Wastewater Flows per Residential Dwelling Unit 

  

 

Accessory Dwelling Units 

Accessory Dwelling Units  (ADUs) are generally defined as secondary residential dwelling units 

constructed on a residential property and may include a) second independent living units within 

or  attached  to  the  living  area  of  an  existing  primary  residence,  and  b)  detached  accessory 

dwelling units.  ADUs are governed by California Government Code Section 65852.2. 

 

The Code includes language governing water and sewer capacity charges for ADUs including: 

 ADUs within  the  living area of a primary  residence “shall not be considered  to be a new 

residential use for the purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, 

Single Family Multi‐Family

Dwelling Unit Dwelling Unit

Lowest 4‐Month Contiguous Use per Fiscal Year (gpd)

Historical Data from Prior Study

2005/06 214 180

2006/07 238 188

2007/08 236 190

2008/09 225 181

Data from Past 2 Fiscal Years
1

2017/18 173 146

2018/19 169 142

Wastewater Flow per Dwelling Unit (gpd)

Historical Estimates 210 180

Revised Estimates
2

195 170

1 Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use 

was partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared 

state of drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017. p

wastewater discharge will remain lower than historical norms in future years, even 

after water use fully rebounds from levels experienced during California's recent 

drought.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    25 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

including water and sewer service.”   Hence,  the District may not  levy capacity charges on 

ADUs that meet the requirements of the Code and are constructed within the living area of 

primary residence.  To be considered within the living area of a primary residence, the Code 

permits “an expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions 

as the existing accessory structure.” 

 Detached ADUs, or ADUs that require expansion of a primary residence  in excess of 150 

square feet “may require a new or separate utility connection directly between the accessory 

dwelling unit and the utility. Consistent with Section 66013, the connection may be subject to 

a connection fee or capacity charge that shall be proportionate to the burden of the proposed 

accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its size or the number of its plumbing fixtures, upon 

the water or sewer system.”   

 

In compliance with the Code, the wastewater “burden” and capacity charges for ADUs eligible to 

pay such charges are proposed to be calculated in proportion to the square footage of each ADU.  

The wastewater  flow  per  square  foot  for  an ADU  is  conservatively  calculated  based  on  the 

estimated wastewater flow per square foot for a typical single family dwelling unit. 

 

As shown on Table 13, the wastewater flow per single family dwelling unit is estimated at 195 gpd 

based on historical water use data  from Alameda County Water District, whose  service area 

largely  coincides with Union  Sanitary District.    This  level  of wastewater  flow  is  divided  by  a 

conservatively‐high estimate of the size of a typical single family dwelling unit  in the District’s 

service  area  at  1,950  square  feet,  resulting  in  a  conservatively‐low  estimate  of  10 gpd  of 

wastewater flow per 100 square feet, or 0.1 gpd per square foot. This level of flow equates to 

120 gpd for the maximum size 1,200 square foot ADU.   

Wastewater capacity charges for new ADUs would be calculated based on the square footage of 

each unit multiplied by the capacity charge per square foot.  ADUs are assumed to have the same 

wastewater strength as other types of residential dwelling units. 

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    26 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Commercial Wastewater Flows & Loadings 

BWA  reviewed  the  wastewater  flow  and  strength  estimate  for  the  various  commercial  fee 

categories.  While no changes are recommended to most fee categories, the updated charges do 

account  for  a  few  modifications  in  wastewater  strength  estimates  for  non‐residential 

connections to better align the charges with industry‐standards and updated District estimates 

of  typical  flows  and  loadings  from  the  various  connection  charge  categories.    The  proposed 

capacity charges are based on assumptions that are consistent with industry standards and those 

used to develop and apply the District’s wastewater service charges.  

 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    27 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

6. Proposed Capacity Charges 

Capacity Charge per Single Family Home or EDU 

Table 14 calculates an updated capacity charge of $11,063 per single family home or EDU based 

on the unit costs developed for flow, BOD, and SS, and the wastewater loadings of a typical single 

family home.  The breakdown of the updated fee is shown as follows.   

 

Table 14 – Wastewater Flow per Residential Dwelling Unit 

  

 

The updated charge of $11,063 per single  family home or EDU  is approximately 24.3% higher 

than the District’s current fee of $8,898 per EDU.  This increase reflects a combination of factors 

including a) an  increase  in expansion‐related  improvements  identified  in  the District’s capital 

improvement  plan,  particularly  for  the  wastewater  treatment  plant,  b)  the  addition  of  new 

facilities constructed over the past roughly five years, and c) construction cost inflation since the 

prior  fee  update.    However,  these  cost  increases  are  offset  by  a  proposed  decrease  in  the 

estimated volume of wastewater flow generated by a new single family home. 

   

FLOW  BOD  SS  TOTAL

EDU Definition
1

195 gpd 200 mg/l 200 mg/l

0.119 1000 lbs 0.119 1000 lbs

Unit Costs
2

$47.85 per gpd $8,114.61 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

Capacity Charge $9,331 $963 $769 $11,063

1 An Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) represents the wastewater discharge from a typical single family home.

2 From Table 12.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    28 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Industrial Capacity Charges 

Table 15 shows updated capacity charges for industrial customers.  Since the District recovers 

industrial capacity fees in 4 installments, the unit costs developed for flow, COD, and SS are 

divided by 4 to show the annual fee.   

 

Table 15 – Proposed Industrial Capacity Charges 

  

 

Updated Maximum Capacity Charges 

Table 16 shows a schedule of current and proposed maximum capacity charges, along with the 

percentage increase for each type of customer category.  The table also shows the wastewater 

flow and strength assumptions used to calculate fees for each customer type.  The proposed new 

maximum  fees  range  from  roughly 25%  to 40% higher  than  current  charges  for most of  the 

District’s connection categories. 

 

Projected Capacity Charge Revenues 

Table 17 projects capacity charge revenues under Slow, Moderate, and Faster Growth scenarios 

for informational purposes.  The table projects revenues under current capacity charges and the 

proposed maximum capacity charges, both assuming 2% annual fee escalation.   Based on the 

assumptions,  the  updated  maximum  charges  are  projected  to  generate  between  roughly 

$14 million and $35 million of additional  revenues over  the next decade.   Actual growth and 

capacity charge revenues may vary substantially from these projections. 

FLOW  COD  SS 

Proposed Industrial Fees

Unit Costs $131.09 per 1000 gallons $3,213.39 per 1000 lbs $6,473.33 per 1000 lbs

47.85 per gpd 1,172.89 per lb/day 2,362.77 per lb/day

Divided by 4 32.77 per 1000 gallons 803.35 per 1000 lbs 1,618.33 per 1000 lbs

11.96 per gpd 293.22 per lb/day 590.69 per lb/day

Note: Industrial fees are collected in 4 installments including an initial charge plus three additional 

charges for each subsequent year based on actual wastewater flow and strength from the prior annual 

period.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    29 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 16 – Schedule of Updated Maximum Capacity Charges 

  

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1

% Change (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit
2 $8,897.71  $11,063  24% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,644  26% per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or 

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Current fee 

based on ADU 

square footage ÷ 

4,500 sq ft x  the 

Single Family Fee

$5.67 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based 

on the square footage of 

each ADU

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual 

tenant units exceeding 10,000 square 

$4.02 $5.36 33% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.31 36% per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,808 26% per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,971 34% per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.30 33% per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $283.66 34% per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.27 33% per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,063 24% per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,596 33% per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.18 34% per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum 20 150 1.00

$1.69 $2.27 34% per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.57 36% per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $42.19 40% per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, 

cooking, food storage, and 

food service areas 

(excluding seating areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,063 24% lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $39.71 34% per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 

600 square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,126 24% lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.77 31% per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $803.35 43% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,618.33 31% per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

per square foot of building 

floor area

Warehouses

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.42 33%

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each type 

of connection.  

2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 30 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Table 17 – Projected Capacity Charge Revenues 

Y
e
ar

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

T
o
ta
l

G
ro
w
th
 P
ro
je
ct
io
n
s 
(E
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
D
w
e
lli
n
g 
U
n
it
s 
p
er
 Y
e
ar
)1

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
60

0
60

0
60

0
6

00
6

00
6

00
6

0
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

6
,0

00

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1

,0
0

0
1

,0
00

1
,0

00
1

,0
00

1,
0

0
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1
,0

0
0

10
,0

00

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

00
1

,5
00

1
,5

00
1,

5
0

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
1

,5
0

0
15

,0
00

R
ev
e
n
u
e
s 
B
a
se
d
 o
n
 C
u
rr
en

t 
C
ap

a
ci
ty
 C
h
ar
ge
s 
w
it
h
 2
.7
%
 A
n
n
u
a
l E
sc
al
at
io
n

Si
n

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
 F

ee
 (

$
 p

er
 E

D
U

)
$

8,
89

8
$

9,
13

8
$

9
,3

8
5

$9
,6

38
$9

,8
98

$
10

,1
65

$1
0,

4
3

9
$1

0,
72

1
$1

1,
01

0
$

11
,3

0
7

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
$

5,
33

8,
62

6
$

5,
48

2,
80

0
$5

,6
3

1
,0

0
0

$5
,7

82
,8

00
$5

,9
38

,8
00

$
6,

0
99

,0
00

$
6,

26
3,

4
0

0
$

6,
43

2,
60

0
$

6,
60

6,
00

0
$6

,7
84

,2
0

0
$

60
,3

59
,2

26

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
8,

89
7,

71
0

9
,1

3
8,

00
0

9
,3

8
5

,0
0

0
9

,6
38

,0
00

9
,8

98
,0

00
1

0,
1

65
,0

00
1

0,
43

9,
0

0
0

1
0,

72
1,

00
0

1
1,

01
0,

00
0

11
,3

07
,0

0
0

1
00

,5
98

,7
10

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

1
3,

34
6,

56
5

1
3,

70
7,

00
0

14
,0

7
7

,5
0

0
14

,4
57

,0
00

14
,8

47
,0

00
1

5,
2

47
,5

00
1

5,
65

8,
5

0
0

1
6,

08
1,

50
0

1
6,

51
5,

00
0

16
,9

60
,5

0
0

1
50

,8
98

,0
65

R
ev
e
n
u
e
s 
B
a
se
d
 o
n
 P
ro
je
ct
e
d
 C
a
p
a
ci
ty
 C
h
a
rg
es
 w
it
h
 2
.7
%
 A
n
n
u
a
l C
o
st
 E
sc
a
la
ti
o
n

Si
n

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
 F

ee
 (

$
 p

er
 E

D
U

)
$

9,
33

1
$1

0,
02

7
$

10
,7

5
5

$
11

,5
14

$
12

,3
07

$
12

,6
39

$1
2,

9
8

0
$1

3,
33

0
$1

3,
69

0
$

14
,0

6
0

Sl
o

w
 G

ro
w

th
$

5,
59

8,
60

0
$

6,
01

6,
20

0
$6

,4
5

3
,0

0
0

$6
,9

08
,4

00
$7

,3
84

,2
00

$
7,

5
83

,4
00

$
7,

78
8,

0
0

0
$

7,
99

8,
00

0
$

8,
21

4,
00

0
$8

,4
36

,0
0

0
$

72
,3

79
,8

00

M
o

d
e

ra
te
 G

ro
w

th
9,

33
1,

00
0

1
0,

02
7,

00
0

10
,7

5
5

,0
0

0
11

,5
14

,0
00

12
,3

07
,0

00
1

2,
6

39
,0

00
1

2,
98

0,
0

0
0

1
3,

33
0,

00
0

1
3,

69
0,

00
0

14
,0

60
,0

0
0

1
20

,6
33

,0
00

Fa
st

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

1
3,

99
6,

50
0

1
5,

04
0,

50
0

16
,1

3
2

,5
0

0
17

,2
71

,0
00

18
,4

60
,5

00
1

8,
9

58
,5

00
1

9,
47

0,
0

0
0

1
9,

99
5,

00
0

2
0,

53
5,

00
0

21
,0

90
,0

0
0

1
80

,9
49

,5
00

1
 C

o
n

se
rv

a
ti

ve
ly
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 b

as
ed

 o
n
 r

e
vi

ew
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
ca

l c
o

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s 
o

ve
r 

p
as

t 
2

0 
ye

ar
s.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES    31 
  Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

7. Capacity Charge Application 

This section highlights some key issues regarding the application and implementation of the 

updated capacity charges. 

 

Capacity Charge Ordinance:  Purpose of Charge 

Pursuant to Government Code, revenues derived by capacity charges can only be used for the 

purpose for which the charges are collected.  In order to maximize the District’s flexibility for use 

of  capacity  charge  revenues,  BWA  generally  recommends  that  the  resolution  or  ordinance 

adopting new charges broadly define  the purpose of  the charge, such as  to  recover costs  for 

wastewater  system  infrastructure,  wastewater  treatment  plant  capacity,  and  any  other 

wastewater utility assets benefitting new or expanded connections to the wastewater system.  

 

Capacity Charge Application to Projects with Unknown Uses 

Developers occasionally  seek permits  for development projects whose ultimate uses are not 

known at the time the capacity charge is paid.  In these cases, BWA recommends the District levy 

the capacity charge for the general Commercial/Industrial/Office (CIO) use as an initial payment 

that would be subject to adjustment after the development is occupied and its uses are known.  

The  future  adjustment  may  include  the  requirement  to  pay  additional  capacity  charges  or 

potentially  receive  a  partial  refund.    In  such  cases,  the  District  should  require  written 

acknowledgment from the property owner regarding the potential requirement for additional 

capacity charges to be paid based on the future use of the property. 

 

Capacity Charge Credits for Redevelopment 

Capacity  charges  for  redevelopment  projects  and/or  expansions  should  be  based  on  the 

incremental increase in wastewater demand generated from each project.  Under this approach, 

the  fees  for  future  redevelopment  projects  would  be  based  on  the  incremental  difference 

between  the  capacity  charges  that would  apply  to  the  current  connection  and  the  capacity 

charges applicable to the expanded connection.   
   

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 32 
Union Sanitary District Capacity Charge Update 

Future Fee Adjustments 

In  future years, BWA recommends  that  the District review and consider updating  its capacity 

charges  when  substantial  revisions  are  made  to  anticipated  wastewater  system  capital 

improvement costs or funding, or to substantial changes in projected demand.  In general, BWA 

recommends  that  capacity  charges be  independently  reviewed and/or updated at  least once 

every five years. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



APPENDIX A

Capacity Charges With Low & High

CIP Cost Estimates (‐15% & +25%)

The District's 20‐Year CIP includes a range of cost estimates for future capital improvements 

including a mid‐point cost estimate as well as low (‐15%) and high (+25%) cost estimates.  The 

updated capacity charges calculated in this report are based on the mid‐point cost estimate.  

Updated charges were also calculated under the low and high capital cost estimates as shown on 

the following tables in this appendix.  Compared to the mid‐point cost estimate, the low cost  

estimate resulted in roughly a $200 decrease, and high cost estimate resulted in a roughly $330 

increase, to the base year capacity charges for a single family home.  This appendix also includes 

tables projecting capacity charge revenues with the low and high fee estimates.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Capacity Charges

Low CIP Engineering Cost Estimate (‐15%)

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)Table B‐1

Union Sanitary District 

Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $10,862 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,470 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Based on ADU 

square footage / 

4,500 sf x Single 

Family Fee

$5.57 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

Accessory Dwelling Unit

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.27 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $13.97 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $6,684 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $3,899 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.22 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $278.52 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $21.93 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $10,862 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,460 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $40.85 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $13.93 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $10,862 lump sum 20 150 1.00

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.31 per square foot of building 

floor area

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)Table B‐1

Union Sanitary District 

Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

CHARGE PER UNIT

$1.69 $2.23 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.56 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $40.85 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food service 

areas (excluding seating 

areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $10,862 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $38.99 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 600 

square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $21,724 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $32.43 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $755.51 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,522.35 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

f2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table B‐2 Low CIP Cost Estimate (‐15%)

Union Sanitary District

Projected Capacity Charge Revenues Annual Fee Escalation 2.7%

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total

Growth Projections (Equivalent Dwelling Units per Year)1

Slow Growth 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 6,000

Moderate Growth 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 10,000

Faster Growth 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

Revenues Based on Current Capacity Charges with 2.7% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $8,898 $9,138 $9,385 $9,638 $9,898 $10,165 $10,439 $10,721 $11,010 $11,307

Slow Growth $5,338,626 $5,482,800 $5,631,000 $5,782,800 $5,938,800 $6,099,000 $6,263,400 $6,432,600 $6,606,000 $6,784,200 $60,359,226

Moderate Growth 8,897,710 9,138,000 9,385,000 9,638,000 9,898,000 10,165,000 10,439,000 10,721,000 11,010,000 11,307,000 100,598,710

Faster Growth 13,346,565 13,707,000 14,077,500 14,457,000 14,847,000 15,247,500 15,658,500 16,081,500 16,515,000 16,960,500 150,898,065

Revenues Based on Projected Capacity Charges with 2.7% Annual Cost Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $10,862 $11,155 $11,456 $11,765 $12,083 $12,409 $12,744 $13,088 $13,441 $13,804

Slow Growth $6,517,308 $6,693,000 $6,873,600 $7,059,000 $7,249,800 $7,445,400 $7,646,400 $7,852,800 $8,064,600 $8,282,400 $73,684,308

Moderate Growth 10,862,180 11,155,000 11,456,000 11,765,000 12,083,000 12,409,000 12,744,000 13,088,000 13,441,000 13,804,000 122,807,180

Faster Growth 16,293,270 16,732,500 17,184,000 17,647,500 18,124,500 18,613,500 19,116,000 19,632,000 20,161,500 20,706,000 184,210,770

1 Conservatively estimated based on review of historical connections over past 20 years.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Capacity Charges

High CIP Engineering Cost Estimate (+25%)

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)Table C‐1

Union Sanitary District 

Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL

Single Family Dwelling Unit2 $8,897.71  $11,394 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

195 200 200 1.00

Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit $7,626.61 $9,933 per unit (new construction 

only; not additions or repairs)

170 200 200 0.87

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
3

 Applies to new or expanded structures
    No charges apply to ADUs within the living 

   area of an existing single family home

Based on ADU 

square footage / 

4,500 sf x Single 

Family Fee

$5.84 per square foot;

fees shall be applied based on 

the square footage of each 

Accessory Dwelling Unit

0.10 200 200 0.00

Commercial/Industrial/Office use (C/I/O) 

(Domestic Use Only) and Mixed Use 

Commercial Property with individual tenant 

units exceeding 10,000 square feet

$4.02 $5.50 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.10 140 115

Mixed‐use Commercial property with 

individual tenant units less than 10,000 

square feet

$10.49 $14.86 per square foot of building 

floor area

0.22 440 320

Boarding Establishments $5,391.81 $7,012 per unit, or 120 200 200 0.62

Including Hotels and Motels $2,965.90 $4,090 per capita design tenant 70 200 200 0.36

Schools and Day Care Centers 0.14 130 100

(Boarding Facilities Excluded)

Churches (School & Day Care facilities  $3.98 $5.44 per square foot of building  0.10 130 100

Public Assembly Facilities $211.85 $292.16 per seat 5 200 200

Health Clubs $16.73 $22.83 per square foot of building  0.42 130 100

Park or Recreation Site Restrooms $8,897.71 $11,394 per water closet 1.00

Coin‐operated Laundromats $6,445.38 $8,820 per washing machine 160 150 110

Restaurants ‐ All $30.03 $44.41 per square foot of building  0.50 1000 600

Eating/Drinking facilities without cooking $10.59 $14.61 per square foot of building  0.25 200 200

Car Wash with water recycling $8,897.71 $11,394 lump sum 20 150 1.00

CHARGE PER UNIT

$5.58 $7.61 per square foot of building 

floor area

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)Table C‐1

Union Sanitary District 

Proposed Maximum Base Year Capacity Charges

CONNECTION CATEGORY UNIT DEFINITION FLOW BOD SS EDUs

Current 2020 Update
1 (gpd per Unit) (mg/l) (mg/l) if applicable

CHARGE PER UNIT

$1.69 $2.34 per square foot of building 

floor area up to 50,000 square 

0.04 200 200

$0.42 $0.58 per square foot of building 

floor area for that portion of 

each building above 50,000 

square feet

0.01 200 200

Private cafeterias $30.03 $44.41 per square foot of floor area 

for food preparation, cooking, 

food storage, and food service 

areas (excluding seating 

areas)

0.50 1000 600

Equipment Wash Pad with Interceptor $8,897.71 $11,394 lump sum, plus 1.00

$29.66 $40.90 per square foot for any 

additional pad area above 600 

square feet

0.70 200 200

Mobile Home/RV Holding Tank disposal 

station

$17,795.42 $22,788 lump sum 2.00

Non‐Standard Connections
4 Varies Varies to be determined by District

INDUSTRIAL

Volume Component $24.96 $33.34 per 1,000 gallons of est. avg. annual discharge volume

COD Component $561.73 $883.08 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual COD demand loading

SS Component $1,239.89 $1,778.31 per 1,000 lbs of est. avg. annual SS demand loading

Industrial charges listed must be paid 4 times: once prior to permit issuance and at end of each year for 3 additional years.

If charges total less than $500, all charges shall be paid in one installment prior to permit issuance.

Note:  The minimum charge per any initial connection shall equal the charge for a Multi‐Family Residential Dwelling Unit.

1 Maximum fees are calculated based on the updated unit costs for flow, BOD, and SS applied to the estimated wastewater flow and strength characteristics of each 

f2 Single Family Dwelling Unit fee applies to homes with up to 4,500 square feet of building area; additional capacity fees for area in excess of 4,500 square feet shall be 

calculated on a pro‐rata basis based on the additional square footage divided by 4,500 square feet.

3 Accessory Dwelling Units shall meet the criteria of California Government Code Section 65852.2, which includes a maximum allowable floorspace of 1,200 square feet; 

capacity fees for ADUs shall be calculated based on the square footage of each ADU.

4 Capacity fees for other types of uses shall be determined by District staff based on estimated wastewater flow and strength.

Warehouses

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table C‐2 High CIP Cost Estimate (+25%)

Union Sanitary District

Projected Capacity Charge Revenues Annual Fee Escalation 2.7%

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Total

Growth Projections (Equivalent Dwelling Units per Year)1

Slow Growth 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 6,000

Moderate Growth 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 10,000

Faster Growth 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

Revenues Based on Current Capacity Charges with 2.7% Annual Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $8,898 $9,138 $9,385 $9,638 $9,898 $10,165 $10,439 $10,721 $11,010 $11,307

Slow Growth $5,338,626 $5,482,800 $5,631,000 $5,782,800 $5,938,800 $6,099,000 $6,263,400 $6,432,600 $6,606,000 $6,784,200 $60,359,226

Moderate Growth 8,897,710 9,138,000 9,385,000 9,638,000 9,898,000 10,165,000 10,439,000 10,721,000 11,010,000 11,307,000 100,598,710

Faster Growth 13,346,565 13,707,000 14,077,500 14,457,000 14,847,000 15,247,500 15,658,500 16,081,500 16,515,000 16,960,500 150,898,065

Revenues Based on Projected Capacity Charges with 2.7% Annual Cost Escalation

Single Family Fee ($ per EDU) $11,394 $11,702 $12,018 $12,342 $12,675 $13,017 $13,368 $13,729 $14,100 $14,481

Slow Growth $6,836,466 $7,021,200 $7,210,800 $7,405,200 $7,605,000 $7,810,200 $8,020,800 $8,237,400 $8,460,000 $8,688,600 $77,295,666

Moderate Growth 11,394,110 11,702,000 12,018,000 12,342,000 12,675,000 13,017,000 13,368,000 13,729,000 14,100,000 14,481,000 128,826,110

Faster Growth 17,091,165 17,553,000 18,027,000 18,513,000 19,012,500 19,525,500 20,052,000 20,593,500 21,150,000 21,721,500 193,239,165

1 Conservatively estimated based on review of historical connections over past 20 years.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

APPENDIX B

Fixed Asset List & Valuation

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00006 06/30/09 10"SDR35 PVC Pipe in Concr20ft collection collsys $10,000 2009 8570.08 $13,414

00011 06/30/09 8" pipe 81 ft collection contribcs 19,902 2009 8570.08 26,697

00025 06/30/09 8" PVC Pipe 31ft collection collsys 41,141 2009 8570.08 55,188

00029 06/30/09 Manhole Dropped Qty2 collection collsys 28,816 2009 8570.08 38,655

00061 06/30/08 Traffic Bollards collection pumpstat 11,286 2008 8309.92 15,614

00170 06/30/08 Risers collection contribcs 23,093 2008 8309.92 31,948

00193 06/30/08 Sump Pump collection pumpstat 13,085 2008 8309.92 18,102

00196 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14017 collection collsys 16,101 2009 8570.08 21,599

00201 06/30/06 Standard Drop Manhole collection collsys 12,046 2006 7751.25 17,867

00205 06/30/06 Manholes collection contribcs 12,161 2006 7751.25 18,037

00244 06/30/09 Coupling Epoxy Coat Steel Enca collection collsys 94,213 2009 8570.08 126,382

00315 06/30/08 Gas Detector Alarm/Beacon collection pumpstat 16,322 2008 8309.92 22,580

00346 06/30/05 Pumps 5/6 Sictopm Pipe Platfor collection liftstat 15,377 2005 7446.08 23,741

00347 06/30/06 Manholes collection collsys 19,886 2006 7751.25 29,494

00351 06/30/05 Pumps 5/6 Dschg Pipe Platform collection liftstat 15,997 2005 7446.08 24,698

00355 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14014 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00356 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14020 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00357 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14021 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00358 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14026 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00359 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14029 collection collsys 29,603 2009 8570.08 39,711

00364 06/30/09 Coupling, St Steel Encapsulati collection collsys 150,991 2009 8570.08 202,547

00365 06/30/09 Rehab MN S14019 collection collsys 30,278 2009 8570.08 40,616

00366 06/30/08 Surge Tower Lights collection pumpstat 15,203 2008 8309.92 21,032

00374 06/30/05 Conveyor & Centrifuge Platform collection liftstat 17,908 2005 7446.08 27,649

00385 06/30/06 Trunk Drop Manholes collection collsys 24,093 2006 7751.25 35,733

00390 06/30/05 Grit Hopper Platform collection liftstat 19,089 2005 7446.08 29,472

00395 06/30/09 33" Sewer Line Rehab 745 Ft collection collsys 178,075 2009 8570.08 238,878

00414 12/31/02 Chadbourne Swr Repair 21Ft of collection collsys 11,394 2002 6538.00 20,035

00431 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 1 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00432 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00433 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 1 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00434 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 10,757 2005 7446.08 16,607

00435 06/30/05 Generator Enclosure Platform collection liftstat 21,979 2005 7446.08 33,934

00450 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 11,374 2005 7446.08 17,560

00481 06/30/07 Pipe Line 10in collection collsys 17,279 2007 7967.00 24,933

00486 06/30/05 Manholes collection collsys 19,292 2005 7446.08 29,786

00487 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,072 2005 7446.08 18,638

Page 1 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00488 06/30/05 Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,072 2005 7446.08 18,638

00510 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 12,779 2005 7446.08 19,729

00511 06/30/05 Sluice Gate Bsn 2 to Ovfl collection pumpstat 12,779 2005 7446.08 19,729

00515 06/30/05 Non‐Potable Water Pump 1 collection pumpstat 13,021 2005 7446.08 20,103

00516 06/30/05 Non‐Potable Water Pump 2 collection pumpstat 13,021 2005 7446.08 20,103

00522 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 13,195 2005 7446.08 20,372

00533 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00534 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00535 06/30/05 Actuator at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00536 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 2 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00537 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00538 06/30/05 Slide Gate at Wet Well 3 collection pumpstat 13,433 2005 7446.08 20,739

00551 06/30/08 Concrete Cap ‐ Paseo Padre collection collsys 82,600 2008 8309.92 114,273

00557 06/30/05 Pump 1 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00558 06/30/05 Pump 2 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00559 06/30/05 Pump 3 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00560 06/30/05 Pump 4 Check Valve collection pumpstat 11,301 2005 7446.08 17,447

00565 06/30/05 Bucket 1 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00566 06/30/05 Bucket 2 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00567 06/30/05 Bucket 3 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00568 06/30/05 Bucket 4 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00569 06/30/05 Bucket 5 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00570 06/30/05 Bucket 6 Basin Flush Tank collection pumpstat 17,063 2005 7446.08 26,344

00571 06/30/05 6" Underground Lines collection contribcs 28,757 2005 7446.08 44,399

00581 06/30/05 Exhaust Fans Dry Well collection pumpstat 11,709 2005 7446.08 18,077

00582 06/30/05 Exhaust Fans PS collection pumpstat 11,709 2005 7446.08 18,077

00583 06/30/05 Wet Well Drainage Pump collection pumpstat 14,649 2005 7446.08 22,617

00598 06/30/05 Actuator, Plug Valve on Booste collection pumpstat 15,172 2005 7446.08 23,425

00599 06/30/05 Plug Valve on Booster Line collection pumpstat 15,172 2005 7446.08 23,425

00633 06/30/05 Static Loop Platform collection liftstat 31,479 2005 7446.08 48,602

00640 06/30/05 Check Valve, Bypass Vault N collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00641 06/30/05 Check Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00642 06/30/05 Fill Plug Valve, North collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00643 06/30/05 Fill Plug Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00644 06/30/05 Plug Valve, North collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00645 06/30/05 Plug Valve, South collection pumpstat 15,964 2005 7446.08 24,647

00664 06/30/05 Sluice Gate Btwn 1 & 2 collection pumpstat 13,195 2005 7446.08 20,372

Page 2 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00679 06/30/05 Gas Monitoring System collection pumpstat 13,602 2005 7446.08 21,001

00680 06/30/05 Gas Monitoring System collection pumpstat 13,602 2005 7446.08 21,001

00682 06/30/07 Pipe Line 8in collection collsys 24,525 2007 7967.00 35,389

00685 06/30/06 #1 NPS Booster Pump VFD collection pumpstat 13,167 2006 7751.25 19,529

00699 06/30/05 Carbon Filter Platform collection liftstat 35,328 2005 7446.08 54,544

00718 06/30/05 Actuator, Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 14,968 2005 7446.08 23,110

00719 06/30/05 Sluice Gate collection pumpstat 14,968 2005 7446.08 23,110

00725 12/31/99 48 Inch Underground Lines 32 F collection contribcs 17,890 1999 6059.50 33,942

00729 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 1 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00730 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 2 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00731 06/30/05 Washdown Pump 3 collection pumpstat 19,253 2005 7446.08 29,725

00737 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 1 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00738 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 2 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00739 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 3 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00740 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 4 collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00741 06/30/05 Pump 1 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00742 06/30/05 Pump 2 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00743 06/30/05 Pump 3 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00744 06/30/05 Pump 4 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 15,514 2005 7446.08 23,953

00767 06/30/05 Actuator Gate Valve Lwr Dischg collection pumpstat 16,103 2005 7446.08 24,862

00788 06/30/05 Sluice Gate, Headgate 2 collection pumpstat 17,353 2005 7446.08 26,793

00808 06/30/08 Manholes collection contribcs 135,522 2008 8309.92 187,487

00809 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 1 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00810 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 2 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00811 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 3 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00812 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 4 Suction collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00813 06/30/05 Pump 1 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00814 06/30/05 Pump 2 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00815 06/30/05 Pump 3 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00816 06/30/05 Pump 5 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,165 2005 7446.08 28,046

00826 06/30/05 Proj187 Platform Install collection liftstat 46,662 2005 7446.08 72,044

00829 06/30/05 Pump 5 Check Valve collection pumpstat 18,861 2005 7446.08 29,120

00830 06/30/05 Pump 6 Check Valve collection pumpstat 18,861 2005 7446.08 29,120

00835 12/31/96 Risers 16 Qty collection contribcs 17,242 1996 5622.17 35,257

00860 12/31/98 6"" Underground Lines 130 Ft collection contribcs 22,433 1998 5920.42 43,561

00863 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 5 Suction collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00864 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 6 Suction collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

Page 3 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00865 06/30/05 Pump 5 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00866 06/30/05 Pump 6 Suction Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,177 2005 7446.08 32,696

00872 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 5 Dischg collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00873 06/30/05 Actuator, Pump 6 Dischg collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00874 06/30/05 Pump 5 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00875 06/30/05 Pump 6 Dischg Gate Valve collection pumpstat 21,381 2005 7446.08 33,010

00879 12/31/85 Piping collection pumpstat 10,395 1985 4195.00 28,487

00889 01/01/88 6 inch Underground Lines 88  F collection contribcs 11,802 1988 4519.00 30,024

00904 06/30/05 Actuator Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00905 06/30/05 Actuator Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00906 06/30/05 Lower Dischg Hdr E Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00907 06/30/05 Upper Dischg Hdr Gate Valve collection pumpstat 23,411 2005 7446.08 36,145

00910 06/30/05 36" Magnetic Flow Meter collection pumpstat 23,530 2005 7446.08 36,329

00911 12/31/98 Jarvis Avenue Sewer Replace PR collection collsys 15,135 1998 5920.42 29,389

00919 06/30/05 24" Gate Valve collection pumpstat 18,000 2005 7446.08 27,791

00927 06/30/09 36"Sewer Line Rehab 3474 Ft collection collsys 558,682 2009 8570.08 749,442

00940 01/01/87 Risers 19 Qty collection contribcs 12,837 1987 4406.00 33,495

00943 06/30/05 24" Pipe Liner collection pumpstat 64,822 2005 7446.08 100,081

00948 06/30/06 Manhole Concrete Pads collection collsys 84,324 2006 7751.25 125,066

00950 12/31/89 Risers 14 Qty collection contribcs 15,279 1989 4615.00 38,061

00954 12/31/88 Risers 14 Qty collection contribcs 14,601 1988 4519.00 37,145

00963 06/30/06 10"PVC Pipe collection collsys 87,078 2006 7751.25 129,150

00971 06/30/05 30" Steel Pipe & Fittings collection pumpstat 34,600 2005 7446.08 53,420

00977 12/31/95 Hetch Hetchy (Phase 2) collection collsys 14,051 1995 5471.17 29,525

00981 06/30/09 8" Pipe 1170 ft collection collsys 636,506 2009 8570.08 853,838

00991 06/30/07 Pipe, 8in,cured in plc 3858LF collection collsys 131,057 2007 7967.00 189,114

00992 06/30/06 Manholes collection contribcs 93,682 2006 7751.25 138,945

01001 06/30/04 10 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 60,616 2004 7115.08 97,941

01004 06/30/06 Standard Manholes collection collsys 48,185 2006 7751.25 71,466

01010 12/31/95 Risers 21 Qty collection contribcs 25,316 1995 5471.17 53,195

01015 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe Guide Boring collection collsys 97,966 2006 7751.25 145,299

01023 06/30/08 10" Underground Pipe 757 FT collection contribcs 186,804 2008 8309.92 258,433

01027 06/30/05 6"/8" Ductile Iron Pipe collection pumpstat 47,085 2005 7446.08 72,696

01031 06/30/06 21" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 101,680 2006 7751.25 150,807

01038 06/30/05 18" Pipe Casing collection collsys 64,960 2005 7446.08 100,294

01047 01/01/88 Risers 17 Qty collection contribcs 17,459 1988 4519.00 44,416

01065 06/30/05 Proj 163 Hywd Msh Outfall Modi collection pumpstat 44,159 2005 7446.08 68,179

Page 4 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01068 12/31/00 Hypo Tank  9000 gal collection pumpstat 18,796 2000 6221.17 34,734

01070 06/30/09 27" Sewer Line Rehab 2306Ft collection collsys 800,771 2009 8570.08 1,074,192

01086 12/31/99 21 Inch Underground Lines 187 collection contribcs 44,568 1999 6059.50 84,556

01087 06/30/05 30" Pipe Casing collection collsys 75,500 2005 7446.08 116,568

01095 12/31/02 Hunter Easement Access Road Pr collection collsys 26,613 2002 6538.00 46,795

01097 12/31/02 Newark Subbasin Upper Relief P collection collsys 40,000 2002 6538.00 70,335

01098 12/31/02 Mission Crk Swr Relocation Pro collection collsys 53,351 2002 6538.00 93,812

01103 12/31/94 Fremont & Eggers Sewer Repair collection collsys 18,377 1994 5407.58 39,069

01142 06/30/05 Hydraulic Power Unit & Accumul collection pumpstat 41,465 2005 7446.08 64,020

01146 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe collection collsys 134,825 2006 7751.25 199,966

01174 06/30/05 Proj 136 Newark PS Cpct Improv collection pumpstat 91,037 2005 7446.08 140,556

01177 06/30/05 Washdown PS Stucture collection pumpstat 114,207 2005 7446.08 176,329

01179 12/31/96 Dairy Ave Corridor Replacement collection collsys 25,110 1996 5622.17 51,345

01191 12/31/93 Alvarado P.S. Elec Valve OP collection collsys 21,182 1993 5210.42 46,736

01195 12/31/85 Influent Line collection pumpstat 23,927 1985 4195.00 65,571

01196 06/30/06 10" Underground Lines collection contribcs 161,554 2006 7751.25 239,610

01200 06/30/06 8" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 162,596 2006 7751.25 241,156

01217 12/31/99 Pine Street Sanitary Sewer Pro collection collsys 365,965 1999 6059.50 694,323

01219 06/30/05 Monorail Hoist Dry Well collection pumpstat 52,317 2005 7446.08 80,774

01221 06/30/06 Trunk Manholes collection collsys 168,648 2006 7751.25 250,132

01223 06/30/05 36" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 131,843 2005 7446.08 203,558

01225 06/30/05 Pump 1 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01226 06/30/05 Pump 2 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01227 06/30/05 Pump 3 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01228 06/30/05 Pump 4 VFD collection pumpstat 52,852 2005 7446.08 81,601

01231 06/30/09 33"Sewer Line Rehab 7494 Ft collection collsys 1,205,170 2009 8570.08 1,616,672

01235 06/30/05 Generator Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01236 06/30/05 Main Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01237 06/30/05 Motor Control Center collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01238 06/30/05 Motor Control Center collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01239 06/30/05 PGE Switchboard collection pumpstat 54,734 2005 7446.08 84,507

01244 06/30/09 30" Sewer Line Rehab 3235 Ft collection collsys 1,250,629 2009 8570.08 1,677,653

01247 12/31/94 Driscoll Blvd/P.Padre Rehab collection collsys 26,115 1994 5407.58 55,519

01255 06/30/05 Cath Protec TF Main Casing 02 collection twnforce 28,706 2005 7446.08 44,320

01256 06/30/05 Cath Protec TF Main Casing 05 collection twnforce 28,706 2005 7446.08 44,320

01259 06/30/05 12" PVC Storm Drain Pipe collection pumpstat 145,440 2005 7446.08 224,551

01261 06/30/05 Pump 4 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

Page 5 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01262 06/30/05 Pump 1 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01263 06/30/05 Pump 1 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01264 06/30/05 Pump 2 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01265 06/30/05 Pump 2 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01266 06/30/05 Pump 3 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01267 06/30/05 Pump 3 Motor collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01268 06/30/05 Pump 4 collection pumpstat 73,015 2005 7446.08 112,730

01274 06/30/04 Manholes collection contribcs 121,204 2004 7115.08 195,837

01286 12/31/94 12 inch Underground Lines 271 collection contribcs 48,682 1994 5407.58 103,496

01291 06/30/05 Pump 6 VFD collection pumpstat 64,036 2005 7446.08 98,867

01292 06/30/05 Pump 5 VFD collection pumpstat 64,037 2005 7446.08 98,869

01294 06/30/05 24" Weld Steel Bsn to Jct Strc collection pumpstat 96,263 2005 7446.08 148,624

01297 12/31/02 12 Inch Underground Lines 547 collection contribcs 111,352 2002 6538.00 195,799

01304 12/31/00 12 Inch Underground Lines 440 collection contribcs 87,721 2000 6221.17 162,103

01306 06/30/05 Man Holes, Trunk collection collsys 168,309 2005 7446.08 259,859

01310 06/30/05 Pump 5 collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01311 06/30/05 Pump 5 Motor collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01312 06/30/05 Pump 6 collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01313 06/30/05 Pump 6 Motor collection pumpstat 85,378 2005 7446.08 131,819

01316 12/31/94 Mission Blvd/I‐680 collection collsys 32,368 1994 5407.58 68,813

01321 12/31/97 24"" Underground Lines 266 Ft collection contribcs 69,387 1997 5825.08 136,941

01323 12/31/02 Perrin Ave Access Proj 156 collection collsys 49,146 2002 6538.00 86,418

01332 12/31/02 Manholes 46 Qty collection contribcs 125,124 2002 6538.00 220,016

01333 06/30/05 30" Weld Steel Pipe Twr to Bsn collection pumpstat 108,819 2005 7446.08 168,009

01355 06/30/04 12 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 157,157 2004 7115.08 253,929

01359 06/30/05 24" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 195,729 2005 7446.08 302,194

01362 06/30/05 16" Weld Steel PS byps to Bsn collection pumpstat 118,236 2005 7446.08 182,549

01363 06/30/05 Bridge Crane collection pumpstat 78,860 2005 7446.08 121,755

01382 12/31/91 Fremont Blvd/Irvington collection collsys 33,140 1991 4835.08 78,797

01387 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber Contain Structur collection pumpstat 87,892 2005 7446.08 135,700

01398 12/31/98 Carmen Street Phase 2 PROJ 28‐ collection collsys 59,113 1998 5920.42 114,786

01414 12/31/02 Stevenson Blvd Imp Proj 127 collection collsys 96,346 2002 6538.00 169,414

01415 06/30/04 Proj 182 Maiden Lane Swr collection collsys 189,909 2004 7115.08 306,849

01416 06/30/05 Manholes collection contribcs 233,266 2005 7446.08 360,149

01417 12/31/00 48 Inch Underground Lines 213 collection contribcs 123,915 2000 6221.17 228,987

01433 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe Concret Cap collection collsys 320,291 2006 7751.25 475,041

01434 06/30/05 Pump Relocation collection pumpstat 49,847 2005 7446.08 76,961

Page 6 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01435 06/30/05 Pump Relocation collection pumpstat 49,847 2005 7446.08 76,961

01437 12/31/93 Central Ave SS collection collsys 43,558 1993 5210.42 96,107

01438 12/31/92 Manholes 28 Qty collection contribcs 68,408 1992 4984.83 157,766

01442 12/31/92 Central Ave SS (Wrap up) collection collsys 41,485 1992 4984.83 95,675

01445 12/31/93 Manholes 30 Qty collection contribcs 74,437 1993 5210.42 164,238

01448 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 187,304 2007 7967.00 270,278

01449 12/31/02 Hetch Hetchy Proj 31 collection collsys 108,395 2002 6538.00 190,600

01450 12/31/92 Hickory Street Litigation collection collsys 42,913 1992 4984.83 98,968

01459 06/30/05 24" Welded Stell Pipe collection pumpstat 281,189 2005 7446.08 434,139

01461 06/30/05 Junction Structures collection collsys 282,533 2005 7446.08 436,215

01462 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 205,664 2007 7967.00 296,771

01467 06/30/05 Foot Valve, East collection pumpstat 145,496 2005 7446.08 224,637

01470 06/30/07 Diesel Tank, Above Ground collection pumpstat 216,673 2007 7967.00 312,657

01475 06/30/05 Basin Odor Scrubber Fan & Duct collection pumpstat 153,602 2005 7446.08 237,152

01479 12/31/98 24"" Underground Lines 509 Ft collection contribcs 135,367 1998 5920.42 262,857

01480 12/31/95 Kato Road Sewer collection collsys 63,438 1995 5471.17 133,299

01489 12/31/98 Collect. Sys. Grit Handling PR collection collsys 86,999 1998 5920.42 168,935

01498 06/30/06 12" PVC Pipe Steel Caseing collection collsys 451,033 2006 7751.25 668,951

01502 12/31/02 10 Inch Underground Lines 1276 collection contribcs 253,017 2002 6538.00 444,901

01503 12/31/89 10 inch Underground Lines 533 collection contribcs 84,385 1989 4615.00 210,209

01509 12/31/96 10 inch Underground Lines 3348 collection contribcs 137,443 1996 5622.17 281,046

01512 12/31/98 Thornton/Peralta Corr Sewer Re collection collsys 100,366 1998 5920.42 194,891

01516 06/30/05 12" Underground Lines collection contribcs 401,087 2005 7446.08 619,254

01519 06/30/05 10" Underground Lines collection contribcs 407,060 2005 7446.08 628,476

01522 12/31/00 Pump Station Influent Channel collection liftstat 131,620 2000 6221.17 243,225

01523 12/31/00 Pump Station Influent Channel collection pumpstat 131,620 2000 6221.17 243,225

01524 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe collection collsys 542,866 2006 7751.25 805,155

01528 06/30/05 33" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 445,096 2005 7446.08 687,202

01529 12/31/94 Mission & Old Canyon collection collsys 84,222 1994 5407.58 179,053

01531 12/31/96 Olive Avenue Sewer Replacement collection collsys 98,578 1996 5622.17 201,574

01532 12/31/02 Frem/Peralta/Mattos Swr Liner collection collsys 189,651 2002 6538.00 333,479

01533 06/30/06 12" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 603,684 2006 7751.25 895,357

01534 06/30/06 18" Underground Pipe collection contribcs 620,719 2006 7751.25 920,623

01535 01/06/64 Risers  3051 Qty collection collsys 47,876 1964 936.00 588,026

01537 12/31/98 16"" Underground Lines 1050 Ft collection contribcs 209,923 1998 5920.42 407,630

01546 06/30/05 48" Welded Stell Pipe collection pumpstat 503,690 2005 7446.08 777,667

01547 12/31/98 Peachtree Corridor Reach B PRO collection collsys 129,650 1998 5920.42 251,755

Page 7 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01548 06/30/05 10" Pipe collection collsys 403,908 2005 7446.08 623,610

01562 12/31/97 18"" Underground Lines 5387 Ft collection contribcs 224,297 1997 5825.08 442,670

01563 06/30/05 36" Welded Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 575,991 2005 7446.08 889,296

01564 12/31/90 Collection Improvements FYE 6/ collection collsys 84,585 1990 4731.92 205,501

01565 12/31/00 Manholes 112 Qty collection contribcs 308,559 2000 6221.17 570,197

01567 06/30/05 30"/36" Weld Steel Bsn to Ovrf collection pumpstat 357,846 2005 7446.08 552,493

01568 06/30/05 Proj 171 Access Rd Sentinel Pl collection collsys 241,689 2005 7446.08 373,154

01570 12/31/89 12 inch Underground Lines 864 collection contribcs 140,608 1989 4615.00 350,265

01571 12/31/95 10 inch Underground Lines 1166 collection contribcs 203,906 1995 5471.17 428,458

01572 12/31/01 Manholes 80 Qty collection contribcs 220,424 2001 6342.08 399,563

01573 12/31/91 Manholes 68 Qty collection contribcs 157,514 1991 4835.08 374,519

01576 06/30/05 24" Parshall Flume at Hywd Msh collection pumpstat 187,514 2005 7446.08 289,510

01581 06/30/05 Surge Tower Structure Improv collection pumpstat 657,391 2005 7446.08 1,014,972

01586 06/30/04 Valve, 60" Hay Marsh collection contribcs 78,427 2004 7115.08 126,720

01588 06/30/05 PROJ 162 PS Force Main Repair collection pumpstat 690,924 2005 7446.08 1,066,745

01589 12/31/00 Sabercat Easement Proj 28‐103 collection collsys 222,294 2000 6221.17 410,784

01591 12/31/93 Carmen Street San Sewer Replac collection collsys 123,238 1993 5210.42 271,913

01592 12/31/95 Manholes 101 Qty collection contribcs 237,650 1995 5471.17 499,363

01594 06/30/05 Site Work ‐ Electrical collection pumpstat 289,279 2005 7446.08 446,630

01600 12/31/79 Irvington Surge Tower & Lining collection twnforce 89,235 1979 3003.00 341,616

01601 06/30/06 8" Underground Lines collection contribcs 943,414 2006 7751.25 1,399,230

01602 12/31/92 Logan High School collection collsys 121,012 1992 4984.83 279,085

01605 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber Fan & Ducting collection pumpstat 296,621 2005 7446.08 457,965

01606 06/30/05 36" Weld Steel Pipe collection pumpstat 445,364 2005 7446.08 687,616

01607 06/30/05 36" Steel Pipe, Up/Lw Dschg Hd collection pumpstat 445,853 2005 7446.08 688,370

01608 12/31/98 12"" Underground Lines 5280 Ft collection contribcs 323,982 1998 5920.42 629,111

01618 12/31/01 12 Inch Underground Lines 1515 collection contribcs 302,074 2001 6342.08 547,570

01621 12/31/99 12 Inch Underground Lines 2045 collection contribcs 400,785 1999 6059.50 760,384

01622 06/30/04 Proj 159 Canyon Hgts Swr Repla collection collsys 699,569 2004 7115.08 1,130,340

01623 12/31/91 Pump Station Improvement collection pumpstat 88,065 1991 4835.08 209,391

01625 06/30/05 Proj 158 Wshngtn/Osgood Reloca collection collsys 704,770 2005 7446.08 1,088,123

01627 06/30/08 8" Underground Pipe 9094 FT collection contribcs 2,140,236 2008 8309.92 2,960,898

01628 12/31/90 10 inch Underground Lines 1336 collection contribcs 218,473 1990 4731.92 530,786

01629 01/01/87 12 inch Underground Lines 1221 collection contribcs 179,792 1987 4406.00 469,120

01633 12/31/96 Smith & New Haven collection collsys 203,033 1996 5622.17 415,166

01636 01/06/63 30 Inch Underground Lines 1833 collection collsys 93,499 1963 901.00 1,193,001

01637 12/31/01 Newark Old Town Street Improve collection collsys 348,429 2001 6342.08 631,598

Page 8 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01640 12/31/90 Manholes 105 Qty collection contribcs 243,221 1990 4731.92 590,912

01642 06/30/05 Flap Gate 1 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01643 06/30/05 Flap Gate 2 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01644 06/30/05 Flap Gate 3 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01645 06/30/05 Flap Gate 4 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01646 06/30/05 Flap Gate 5 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01647 06/30/05 Flap Gate 6 collection pumpstat 505,652 2005 7446.08 780,696

01651 12/31/99 42 Inch Underground Lines 1046 collection contribcs 498,590 1999 6059.50 945,944

01652 06/30/05 Programmable Logic Controller collection pumpstat 424,325 2005 7446.08 655,132

01655 12/31/96 Manholes 242 Qty collection contribcs 359,620 1996 5622.17 735,357

01659 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe Steel Case collection collsys 1,401,952 2006 7751.25 2,079,312

01660 01/01/88 18 inch Underground Lines 1295 collection contribcs 228,350 1988 4519.00 580,921

01661 06/30/06 18" Polycrete Pipe Steel Case collection collsys 1,410,130 2006 7751.25 2,091,442

01667 01/01/88 15 inch Underground Lines 1474 collection contribcs 241,058 1988 4519.00 613,250

01668 12/31/85 Mechanical Equip collection pumpstat 103,700 1985 4195.00 284,188

01670 12/31/94 10 inch Underground Lines 2071 collection contribcs 361,924 1994 5407.58 769,436

01671 12/31/85 Mechanical/Electrical collection liftstat 105,000 1985 4195.00 287,750

01672 12/31/94 Manholes 149 Qty collection contribcs 368,845 1994 5407.58 784,150

01676 01/05/65 Other Underground Lines 3050 F collection collsys 123,210 1965 971.00 1,458,765

01677 06/30/05 1250 KW Eng Genrator & Enclosu collection pumpstat 615,871 2005 7446.08 950,868

01681 12/31/98 Manholes 233 Qty collection contribcs 553,809 1998 5920.42 1,075,391

01683 12/31/99 Manholes 228 Qty collection contribcs 617,263 1999 6059.50 1,171,094

01686 12/31/98 10"" Underground Lines 4988 Ft collection contribcs 578,608 1998 5920.42 1,123,545

01687 06/30/05 Basin Washdown System collection pumpstat 685,348 2005 7446.08 1,058,136

01689 06/30/04 8 In Underground Pipe collection contribcs 1,153,057 2004 7115.08 1,863,070

01690 12/31/91 Jarvis Ave Sewer collection collsys 221,609 1991 4835.08 526,917

01699 12/31/95 Peachtree Ave Corridor Sewer collection collsys 320,501 1995 5471.17 673,454

01700 12/31/99 10 Inch Underground Lines 3982 collection contribcs 759,481 1999 6059.50 1,440,916

01701 12/31/92 8 inch Underground Lines 2695 collection contribcs 315,775 1992 4984.83 728,258

01702 12/31/97 Manholes 341 Qty collection contribcs 633,775 1997 5825.08 1,250,810

01705 01/07/60 21 Inch Underground Lines 4761 collection collsys 149,330 1960 824.00 2,083,424

01706 01/03/73 18 Inch Underground Lines 4032 collection collsys 204,426 1973 1895.00 1,240,182

01709 12/31/93 El Camino/Santa Barbara collection collsys 294,600 1993 5210.42 650,008

01711 12/31/89 Manholes 175 Qty collection contribcs 392,458 1989 4615.00 977,642

01715 12/31/88 12 inch Underground Lines 2512 collection contribcs 390,643 1988 4519.00 993,794

01716 12/31/97 12"" Underground Lines 4510 Ft collection contribcs 699,154 1997 5825.08 1,379,841

01719 12/31/90 Transport System Master Plan F collection collsys 264,220 1990 4731.92 641,929

Page 9 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01720 01/04/69 24 Inch Underground Lines 3224 collection collsys 202,718 1969 1269.00 1,836,492

01721 12/31/01 10 Inch Underground Lines 3387 collection contribcs 657,817 2001 6342.08 1,192,426

01723 12/31/88 Manholes 189 Qty collection contribcs 351,450 1988 4519.00 894,086

01724 12/31/02 8 Inch Underground Lines 6831 collection contribcs 1,288,519 2002 6538.00 2,265,710

01726 12/31/89 D Street & Bodily Project TS‐8 collection collsys 262,339 1989 4615.00 653,506

01728 12/31/88 10 inch Underground Lines 2800 collection contribcs 423,602 1988 4519.00 1,077,641

01733 01/07/60 36 Inch Underground Lines 3496 collection collsys 186,704 1960 824.00 2,604,863

01738 12/31/95 Peachtree Ave. Corridor Study collection collsys 422,491 1995 5471.17 887,761

01741 12/31/79 Pipes  Tanks & Components collection pumpstat 333,400 1979 3003.00 1,276,347

01742 12/31/79 Mechanical Equipment collection pumpstat 198,500 1979 3003.00 759,913

01745 01/01/88 33 Inch Underground Lines 90 F collection collsys 467,224 1988 4519.00 1,188,615

01748 01/01/87 Manholes 224 Qty collection contribcs 454,530 1987 4406.00 1,185,978

01750 01/01/87 Improvements collection collsys 205,651 1987 4406.00 536,593

01753 12/31/00 Perry Rd Corridow Sewer Proj 5 collection collsys 753,507 2000 6221.17 1,392,431

01754 12/31/94 Parkson Aeration Panel Pilot collection collsys 443,652 1994 5407.58 943,187

01755 01/01/88 12 inch Underground Lines 3353 collection contribcs 513,478 1988 4519.00 1,306,285

01757 06/30/05 8" Underground Lines collection contribcs 2,488,718 2005 7446.08 3,842,433

01758 12/31/96 Whipple Road collection collsys 550,000 1996 5622.17 1,124,650

01760 12/31/90 Fremont Blvd/Irv Dist Redevelo collection collsys 628,607 1990 4731.92 1,527,216

01761 01/05/66 33 Inch Underground Lines 4096 collection collsys 269,900 1966 1019.00 3,044,999

01765 12/31/91 10 inch Underground Lines 4420 collection contribcs 722,793 1991 4835.08 1,718,575

01768 01/06/63 27 Inch Underground Lines 6233 collection collsys 280,811 1963 901.00 3,583,008

01769 12/31/91 Mowry Ave Project collection collsys 460,231 1991 4835.08 1,094,285

01770 01/06/64 Risers 18801 Qty collection contribcs 295,703 1964 936.00 3,631,937

01772 12/31/91 Mowry Ave Project collection collsys 469,238 1991 4835.08 1,115,701

01774 01/01/88 Manholes 313 Qty collection contribcs 660,529 1988 4519.00 1,680,382

01778 12/31/92 I‐880 Sewer Replacement collection collsys 560,784 1992 4984.83 1,293,312

01780 12/31/90 I‐880 Sewer Replacement collection collsys 851,864 1990 4731.92 2,069,625

01782 12/31/97 10"" Underground Lines 8838 Ft collection contribcs 1,335,718 1997 5825.08 2,636,156

01785 01/08/56 6 Inch Underground Lines 28408 collection collsys 278,022 1956 692.00 4,618,823

01787 01/05/66 15 Inch Underground Lines 1130 collection collsys 408,978 1966 1019.00 4,614,071

01789 12/31/97 Alvarado Effluent P.S. Improve collection collsys 1,422,937 1997 5825.08 2,808,290

01792 12/31/79 Electrical Equipment collection pumpstat 535,900 1979 3003.00 2,051,573

01795 12/31/99 Thornton Ave ‐ Fremont to I‐88 collection collsys 1,272,490 1999 6059.50 2,414,215

01798 01/01/88 Improvements collection collsys 418,432 1988 4519.00 1,064,489

01800 01/05/67 Manholes 1464 Qty collection collsys 505,824 1967 1074.00 5,414,444

01801 12/31/01 8 Inch Underground Lines 9464 collection contribcs 1,748,526 2001 6342.08 3,169,557

Page 10 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01802 12/31/00 8 Inch Underground Lines 13989 collection contribcs 2,584,254 2000 6221.17 4,775,533

01803 06/30/05 Proj 117 Irv PS Improvements collection pumpstat 2,948,328 2005 7446.08 4,552,043

01804 12/31/91 Collection System Master Plan collection collsys 762,844 1991 4835.08 1,813,804

01807 12/31/96 Newark Subbasin (S&S) collection collsys 1,097,734 1996 5622.17 2,244,667

01808 12/31/96 Mission & Old Canyon collection collsys 1,119,637 1996 5622.17 2,289,454

01809 01/05/68 10 Inch Underground Lines 6379 collection collsys 259,362 1968 1155.00 2,581,562

01810 06/30/06 24" Polycrete Pipe collection collsys 6,724,840 2006 7751.25 9,973,984

01812 12/31/91 Central Avenue C.M. collection collsys 815,198 1991 4835.08 1,938,285

01815 12/31/93 8 inch Underground Lines 9832 collection contribcs 1,636,269 1993 5210.42 3,610,279

01816 12/31/94 N/I Pump Station Improvements collection collsys 526,695 1994 5407.58 1,119,733

01817 12/31/94 Osgood‐Warm Springs Sewer collection collsys 1,071,041 1994 5407.58 2,276,991

01818 12/31/97 Jarvis Avenue Sewer Replacemen collection collsys 1,355,276 1997 5825.08 2,674,755

01820 12/31/95 Willow St. Corridor Sewer Reha collection collsys 1,172,149 1995 5471.17 2,462,983

01822 12/31/97 Central/Blacow Sewer Replaceme collection collsys 1,390,733 1997 5825.08 2,744,733

01823 01/06/63 30 inch Underground Lines 1129 collection contribcs 576,264 1963 901.00 7,352,841

01824 12/31/79 Non Structural Construction ‐ collection pumpstat 739,276 1979 3003.00 2,830,152

01826 12/31/92 Wells Avenue collection collsys 1,024,117 1992 4984.83 2,361,878

01827 12/31/89 Hickory Street Project collection collsys 901,646 1989 4615.00 2,246,068

01830 12/31/91 8 inch Underground Lines 11371 collection contribcs 1,766,663 1991 4835.08 4,200,570

01831 01/05/67 12 Inch Underground Lines 2388 collection collsys 563,567 1967 1074.00 6,032,533

01832 12/31/92 Thornton Avenue Sewer Replacem collection collsys 1,212,096 1992 4984.83 2,795,406

01833 01/05/65 Other Underground Lines 18797 collection contribcs 759,385 1965 971.00 8,990,860

01834 12/31/92 Everglades Sewer collection collsys 1,232,388 1992 4984.83 2,842,204

01836 01/01/87 10 inch Underground Lines 1179 collection contribcs 1,689,777 1987 4406.00 4,409,033

01837 12/31/98 I‐Street Corridor Sewer Replac collection collsys 2,260,892 1998 5920.42 4,390,217

01839 12/31/95 8 inch Underground Lines 19042 collection contribcs 3,005,796 1995 5471.17 6,315,940

01840 06/30/05 Pipe, Polycrete 1000MM collection collsys 9,272,774 2005 7446.08 14,316,612

01841 12/31/95 Dairy Ave Corridor Replacement collection collsys 1,859,510 1995 5471.17 3,907,303

01842 12/31/98 Newark Subbasin (inc Baine) PR collection collsys 2,442,141 1998 5920.42 4,742,168

01844 01/01/88 10 inch Underground Lines 1401 collection contribcs 2,088,402 1988 4519.00 5,312,883

01845 12/31/97 Lower Warren Avenue Sewer Proj collection collsys 2,349,781 1997 5825.08 4,637,498

01846 01/07/60 21 inch Underground Lines 2934 collection contribcs 928,362 1960 824.00 12,952,351

01848 12/31/91 Central Ave Design/CM collection collsys 1,647,703 1991 4835.08 3,917,720

01849 01/04/69 24 inch Underground Lines 1987 collection contribcs 1,249,415 1969 1269.00 11,318,883

01852 12/31/02 Mowry Corridor Phase III Proj collection collsys 4,784,742 2002 6538.00 8,413,410

01853 12/31/92 Mowry Ave D&C collection collsys 1,933,948 1992 4984.83 4,460,182

01854 12/31/92 Mowry Ave. Design  Phase 2 collection collsys 1,933,948 1992 4984.83 4,460,182

Page 11 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01855 12/31/95 Pump Station Ventilation Impro collection collsys 2,393,445 1995 5471.17 5,029,236

01856 01/07/60 36 inch Underground Lines 2154 collection contribcs 1,150,715 1960 824.00 16,054,583

01857 12/31/95 Newark Subbasin collection collsys 2,541,937 1995 5471.17 5,341,255

01858 12/31/00 Upper Warren Ave Sewer Proj 28 collection collsys 4,154,835 2000 6221.17 7,677,864

01859 12/31/01 Newark Subbasin Upper Relief P collection collsys 4,745,053 2001 6342.08 8,601,369

01860 01/03/73 18 inch Underground Lines 2208 collection contribcs 1,718,863 1973 1895.00 10,427,748

01861 12/31/96 8 inch Underground Lines 36505 collection contribcs 5,241,648 1996 5622.17 10,718,218

01862 12/31/99 8 Inch Underground Lines 38653 collection contribcs 7,000,575 1999 6059.50 13,281,753

01866 01/05/66 33 inch Underground Lines 2515 collection contribcs 1,657,490 1966 1019.00 18,699,724

01867 12/31/98 8"" Underground Lines 42272 Ft collection contribcs 7,274,735 1998 5920.42 14,126,136

01870 12/31/90 8 inch Underground Lines 27550 collection contribcs 4,280,324 1990 4731.92 10,399,154

01871 01/06/63 27 inch Underground Lines 3841 collection contribcs 1,730,732 1963 901.00 22,083,276

01872 12/31/99 Upper Fremont Blvd Sewer Proj collection collsys 5,309,141 1999 6059.50 10,072,700

01874 12/31/94 8 inch Underground Lines 35591 collection contribcs 5,909,371 1994 5407.58 12,563,091

01876 12/31/97 8"" Underground Lines 52027 Ft collection contribcs 8,862,990 1997 5825.08 17,491,884

01880 01/08/56 6 inch Underground Lines 17508 collection contribcs 2,157,203 1956 692.00 35,837,969

01881 01/05/66 15 inch Underground Lines 6967 collection contribcs 2,520,665 1966 1019.00 28,438,024

01882 12/31/89 8 inch Underground Lines 39047 collection contribcs 5,873,361 1989 4615.00 14,630,981

01883 12/31/00 Stevenson Blvd Sanitary Sewer collection collsys 8,541,517 2000 6221.17 15,784,165

01884 12/31/79 Non Structural Costs ‐ Enginee collection twnforce 3,282,841 1979 3003.00 12,567,618

01885 12/31/96 Peralta Corridor Sewer collection collsys 5,849,825 1996 5622.17 11,961,830

01887 12/31/88 8 inch Underground Lines 43237 collection contribcs 7,311,379 1988 4519.00 18,600,106

01888 12/31/95 Newark Subbasin (S&S) collection collsys 7,121,272 1995 5471.17 14,963,600

01889 01/05/67 Manholes 9000 Qty collection contribcs 3,787,742 1967 1074.00 40,544,743

01892 01/01/87 8 inch Underground Lines 59301 collection contribcs 7,955,045 1987 4406.00 20,756,619

01893 01/05/66 8 Inch Underground Lines 31585 collection collsys 4,190,527 1966 1019.00 47,277,333

01894 01/05/67 12 inch Underground Lines 1471 collection contribcs 3,757,100 1967 1074.00 40,216,742

01895 01/01/88 8 inch Underground Lines 74719 collection contribcs 10,576,025 1988 4519.00 26,905,347

01897 12/31/79 39 Inch Force Mains 26171 Ft collection twnforce 8,615,830 1979 3003.00 32,983,767

01898 01/05/68 10 inch Underground Lines 3931 collection contribcs 6,607,196 1968 1155.00 65,764,827

01899 12/31/79 33 Inch Force Mains 40514 Ft collection twnforce 11,177,274 1979 3003.00 42,789,679

01902 01/05/66 8 inch Underground Lines 19462 collection contribcs 51,112,744 1966 1019.00 576,651,570

01944 01/01/10 DIESEL STORAGE TANK collection liftstat 59,225 2010 8798.92 77,381

01946 01/01/10 IPS OVERFLOW POND collection pumpstat 554,792 2010 8798.92 724,869

01947 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 224,172 2010 8798.92 292,894

01948 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 35,009 2010 8798.92 45,741

01949 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 207,593 2010 8798.92 271,233

Page 12 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01950 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 45,344 2010 8798.92 59,244

01951 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 51,915 2010 8798.92 67,830

01952 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 15,876 2010 8798.92 20,743

01953 01/01/10 MANHOLES collection collsys 20,143 2010 8798.92 26,319

01954 01/01/10 UPPER DSCHG HEADER FLOW METER collection pumpstat 45,084 2010 8798.92 58,905

01976 01/01/10 CIPP LINER 27 " 7000 LF collection collsys 1,776,542 2010 8798.92 2,321,158

01977 01/01/10 CIPP LINER 30" 1184 LF collection collsys 289,100 2010 8798.92 377,727

01990 01/01/10 8" PIPE 2179 FT collection contribcs 535,395 2010 8798.92 699,526

01991 01/01/10 15" PIPE 459 FT collection contribcs 129,981 2010 8798.92 169,828

01992 01/01/10 MANHOLES 18 QTY collection contribcs 63,888 2010 8798.92 83,473

02045 01/01/11 HEADGATE collection liftstat 16,298 2011 9069.83 20,658

02076 01/01/11 PIPE, 12" 16LF collection collsys 28,174 2011 9069.83 35,712

02077 01/01/11 PIPE, 8" 769 LF collection collsys 190,773 2011 9069.83 241,811

02078 01/01/11 LATERAL CONNECTION collection collsys 11,890 2011 9069.83 15,071

02079 01/01/11 PIPE, 10" 17 LF collection collsys 44,152 2011 9069.83 55,964

02080 01/01/11 MANHOLE collection collsys 11,890 2011 9069.83 15,071

02081 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 6" 33 LF collection collsys 17,650 2011 9069.83 22,371

02082 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 8" 784 LF collection collsys 142,414 2011 9069.83 180,515

02083 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 12" 341 LF collection collsys 36,516 2011 9069.83 46,286

02084 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 14" 885 LF collection collsys 38,951 2011 9069.83 49,372

02085 01/01/11 CIPP LINER 15" 216 LF collection collsys 18,258 2011 9069.83 23,143

02086 01/01/11 LATERAL SEALING SYSTEMS collection collsys 23,127 2011 9069.83 29,314

02090 01/01/11 PIPING/CONDUIT/PAD/FENCE/PAVING collection pumpstat 425,195 2011 9069.83 538,949

02092 01/01/11 PUMP STATION LIGHTS collection pumpstat 45,552 2011 9069.83 57,738

02093 01/01/11 PS VENTILATION DUCTWORK collection pumpstat 284,697 2011 9069.83 360,863

02094 01/01/11 TRAY/CONDUIT/WIRES collection pumpstat 833,451 2011 9069.83 1,056,427

02095 01/01/11 PAD/CONDUIT/WIRE/APPURTENANCES collection pumpstat 454,092 2011 9069.83 575,577

02096 01/01/11 GENERATOR collection pumpstat 768,559 2011 9069.83 974,173

02099 01/01/11 DRY WELL EXHAUST FAN collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02100 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUPPLY FAN collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02101 01/01/11 DRY WELL ROOF FAN #1` collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02102 01/01/11 DRY WELL ROOF FAN #2 collection pumpstat 62,278 2011 9069.83 78,939

02103 01/01/11 MAIN SWITCFHBOARD collection pumpstat 1,015,621 2011 9069.83 1,287,332

02104 01/01/11 MOTOR CONTROL CENTER collection pumpstat 589,323 2011 9069.83 746,987

02105 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #1 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02106 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #2 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02107 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #3 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

Page 13 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02108 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #4 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02109 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #5 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02110 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #6 VFD collection pumpstat 91,499 2011 9069.83 115,978

02111 01/01/11 PLC PANEL collection pumpstat 49,571 2011 9069.83 62,833

02114 01/01/11 NEWARK EFFLUENT VALVE BOX 480V collection pumpstat 122,135 2011 9069.83 154,810

02115 01/01/11 NEWARK EFFLUENT VALVE BOX LIGHTING collection pumpstat 61,068 2011 9069.83 77,405

02116 01/01/11 NEWAR INFLUENT VALVE BOX 480V collection pumpstat 122,135 2011 9069.83 154,810

02117 01/01/11 LIGHTNING collection pumpstat 61,068 2011 9069.83 77,405

02118 01/01/11 WET WELL 1/2 GATE ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 18,505 2011 9069.83 23,456

02119 01/01/11 WET WELL 2/3 GATAE ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 18,505 2011 9069.83 23,456

02120 01/01/11 HEAD GATE collection pumpstat 202,847 2011 9069.83 257,115

02121 01/01/11 WET WELL #1 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02122 01/01/11 WET WELL #2 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02123 01/01/11 WET WELL #3 LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02124 01/01/11 FLOW METER # collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02125 01/01/11 FLOW METER #2 collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02126 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02127 01/01/11 SURGE TOWER LEVEL INDICATOR collection pumpstat 14,235 2011 9069.83 18,043

02128 01/01/11 GROUND LEVEL DRY WELL HOIST collection pumpstat 113,879 2011 9069.83 144,345

02129 01/01/11 GROUND LEVEL WET WELL HOIST collection pumpstat 85,409 2011 9069.83 108,259

02130 01/01/11 BOTTOM LEVEL DRY WELL BRIDGECRANE collection pumpstat 85,409 2011 9069.83 108,259

02131 01/01/11 HEAD GATE HYDRAULIC POWER SUPPLY collection pumpstat 202,847 2011 9069.83 257,115

02132 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUMP PUMP #1 collection pumpstat 21,352 2011 9069.83 27,065

02133 01/01/11 DRY WELL SUMP PUMP #2 collection pumpstat 21,352 2011 9069.83 27,065

02134 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #1 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02135 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP # collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02136 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #3 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02137 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #4 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02138 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #5 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02139 01/01/11 RAW SEWAGE PUMP #6 collection pumpstat 197,613 2011 9069.83 250,481

02140 01/01/11 DEWATERING PUMP collection pumpstat 92,527 2011 9069.83 117,281

02141 01/01/11 PUMP #1 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02142 01/01/11 PUMP #2 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02143 01/01/11 PUMP #3 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02144 01/01/11 PUMP #4 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02145 01/01/11 PUMP #5 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

02146 01/01/11 PUMP #6 CHECK VALVE collection pumpstat 56,939 2011 9069.83 72,173

Page 14 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02147 01/01/11 PUMP #1 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02149 01/01/11 PUMP #2 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02151 01/01/11 PUMP #3 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02153 01/01/11 PUMP #4 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02155 01/01/11 PUMP #5 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02157 01/01/11 PUMP #6 DISCHARGE GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 26,097 2011 9069.83 33,079

02159 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #1 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02161 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #2 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02163 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #3 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02165 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER GATE VALVE #4 collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02167 01/01/11 DISCHARGE HEADER PIPING collection pumpstat 288,256 2011 9069.83 365,374

02168 01/01/11 PUMP #1 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02169 01/01/11 PUMP #2 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02170 01/01/11 PUMP #3 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02171 01/01/11 PUMP #4 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02172 01/01/11 PUMP #5 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02173 01/01/11 PUMP #6 SUCTION GATE VALVE collection pumpstat 35,587 2011 9069.83 45,108

02174 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02175 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02176 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02177 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02178 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02179 01/01/11 PIPING collection pumpstat 37,544 2011 9069.83 47,589

02188 01/01/11 NEWARK REVERSE PUMPING PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 40,712 2011 9069.83 51,603

02189 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VALUT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02190 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VALUT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02191 01/01/11 BYPASS CONNECTION VAULT PLUG VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02192 01/01/11 VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02193 01/01/11 VALVE collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02194 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX FOOT VALVE #1 collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02195 01/01/11 INFLUENT BOX FOOT VALVE #2 collection pumpstat 27,758 2011 9069.83 35,184

02196 01/01/11 BYPASS PIPING collection pumpstat 175,801 2011 9069.83 222,833

02197 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022007 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02198 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022008 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02199 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022009 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02200 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022010 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02201 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022011 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

Page 15 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02202 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022012 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02203 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022013 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02204 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022014 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 21,502 2011 9069.83 27,255

02205 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052005 collection pumpstat 61,538 2011 9069.83 78,001

02206 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052006 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 61,538 2011 9069.83 78,001

02207 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022015 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02208 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022016 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02209 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022017 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02210 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022018 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02211 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V022019 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 31,601 2011 9069.83 40,056

02212 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052001 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02213 01/01/11 KNIFE GATE VALVE V052002 ACTUATOR collection pumpstat 42,705 2011 9069.83 54,129

02214 01/01/11 PIPE 6" 36LF collection collsys 70,865 2011 9069.83 89,824

02215 01/01/11 PIPE 8" 50 LF collection collsys 106,582 2011 9069.83 135,096

02216 01/01/11 LATERAL, 1 QTY collection collsys 13,358 2011 9069.83 16,931

02217 01/01/11 PIPE 10" CIPP REHAB collection collsys 151,303 2011 9069.83 191,781

02218 01/01/11 PIPE 10" OPEN CUT collection collsys 394,675 2011 9069.83 500,263

02219 01/01/11 PIPE 8" OPEN CUT collection collsys 17,793 2011 9069.83 22,554

02220 01/01/11 PIPE 6" OPEN CUT collection collsys 14,633 2011 9069.83 18,547

02221 01/01/11 MANHOLE collection collsys 40,972 2011 9069.83 51,933

02222 01/01/11 MANHOLE, DROP collection collsys 33,168 2011 9069.83 42,041

02227 01/01/11 PIPE 6" UNDERGROUND 120 LF collection contribcs 30,876 2011 9069.83 39,136

02228 01/01/11 PIPE 8" UNDERGROUND 15341 LF collection contribcs 3,947,224 2011 9069.83 5,003,235

02229 01/01/11 PIPE 10" UNDERGROUND 197 LF collection contribcs 53,158 2011 9069.83 67,380

02230 01/01/11 MANHOLES 106 QTY collection contribcs 392,382 2011 9069.83 497,357

02231 01/01/11 RISERS 25 QTY collection contribcs 45,166 2011 9069.83 57,249

02241 06/30/12 VALVE ACTUATOR collection twnforce 20,429 2012 9308.17 25,232

02253 06/30/12 8" PIPE 1035 LF collection collsys 92,376 2012 9308.17 114,091

02254 06/30/12 10"PIPE  81 LF collection collsys 41,056 2012 9308.17 50,707

02256 06/30/12 8" CIPP LINER 260 LF collection collsys 105,452 2012 9308.17 130,241

02257 06/30/12 10" CIPP LINER 119 LF collection collsys 46,818 2012 9308.17 57,824

02258 06/30/12 12" CIPP LINER 335 LF collection collsys 44,815 2012 9308.17 55,350

02259 06/30/12 15" CIPP LINER 127 LF collection collsys 32,024 2012 9308.17 39,552

02260 06/30/12 8" PVC PIPE 475 LF collection collsys 224,653 2012 9308.17 277,464

02261 06/30/12 12" PVC PIPE 68 LF collection collsys 44,372 2012 9308.17 54,803

02262 06/30/12 MANHOLE STANDARD 1 QTY collection collsys 18,031 2012 9308.17 22,269

02263 06/30/12 MANHOLE DROP 1 QTY collection collsys 26,866 2012 9308.17 33,182

Page 16 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02264 06/30/12 LATERAL CONNECTIONS 2 QTY collection collsys 20,371 2012 9308.17 25,159

02302 06/30/12 18" PVC PIPE OPEN CUT collection collsys 259,232 2012 9308.17 320,172

02303 06/30/12 MANHOLE TRUNK OUTSIDE DROP collection collsys 14,847 2012 9308.17 18,337

02304 06/30/12 8" PIPE, 3404 FT collection contribcs 908,059 2012 9308.17 1,121,524

02305 06/30/12 10" PIPE, 929 FT collection contribcs 260,129 2012 9308.17 321,280

02306 06/30/12 12" PIPE, 701 FT collection contribcs 201,802 2012 9308.17 249,241

02307 06/30/12 14" PIPE, 85 FT collection contribcs 25,289 2012 9308.17 31,234

02308 06/30/12 15" PIPE, 65 FT collection contribcs 20,005 2012 9308.17 24,708

02309 06/30/12 MANHOLES, 32 QTY collection contribcs 123,000 2012 9308.17 151,915

02320 01/01/13 8" PVC PIPE, 19 FT collection collsys 20,156 2013 9546.67 24,273

02321 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 6 QTY collection collsys 254,634 2013 9546.67 306,635

02360 01/01/13 BOX collection twnforce 20,000 2013 9546.67 24,084

02361 01/01/13 HEADER collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02362 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V17 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02363 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V15` collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02364 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V19 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02365 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V7 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02366 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V9 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02367 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V11 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02368 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V13 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02369 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V18 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02370 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V16 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02371 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V8 collection twnforce 10,000 2013 9546.67 12,042

02372 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V10 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02373 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V12 collection twnforce 15,000 2013 9546.67 18,063

02374 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V5 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02375 01/01/13 FORCE MAIN VALVE V6 collection twnforce 40,000 2013 9546.67 48,169

02378 01/01/13 8' PIPE VCP 7630 LF collection collsys 415,853 2013 9546.67 500,779

02379 01/01/13 10" PIPE VCP 41 LF collection collsys 33,045 2013 9546.67 39,794

02380 01/01/13 12' PIPE VCP 16 LF collection collsys 14,858 2013 9546.67 17,892

02381 01/01/13 21" PIPE VCP 40 LF collection collsys 63,917 2013 9546.67 76,970

02382 01/01/13 LATERAL CONNECTION 2 QTY collection collsys 23,020 2013 9546.67 27,721

02383 01/01/13 10" PIPE PVC 510 LF collection contribcs 392,368 2013 9546.67 472,498

02384 01/01/13 10" PIPE HDPE 546.46 LF collection contribcs 1,025,140 2013 9546.67 1,234,497

02386 01/01/13 8" PIPE, 4712 LF collection contribcs 1,257,654 2013 9546.67 1,514,495

02387 01/01/13 10" PIPE, 929 LF collection contribcs 260,268 2013 9546.67 313,421

02388 01/01/13 12" PIPE, 701 LF collection contribcs 201,802 2013 9546.67 243,014

Page 17 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02389 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 52 QTY collection contribcs 199,960 2013 9546.67 240,796

02390 01/01/13 8" PIPE, 2216 LF collection contribcs 603,445 2013 9546.67 726,682

02391 01/01/13 MANHOLES, 18 QTY collection contribcs 69,348 2013 9546.67 83,510

02475 01/01/14 SUNTECH 275 PV MODULES collection pumpstat 1,602,935 2014 9806.00 1,879,241

02476 01/01/14 SUNSEEKER SINGLE AXIS TRACKER collection pumpstat 610,323 2014 9806.00 715,528

02477 01/01/14 SOLARON INVERTER collection pumpstat 325,569 2014 9806.00 381,689

02478 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02479 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02480 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02481 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02482 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02483 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02484 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02485 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02486 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02487 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02488 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02489 01/01/14 SOLAR BOS CONBINER BOXES collection pumpstat 47,586 2014 9806.00 55,789

02490 01/01/14 BENTEK BIPOLAR RECOMBINER collection pumpstat 18,854 2014 9806.00 22,104

02491 01/01/14 EATON 800A BREAKER collection pumpstat 15,848 2014 9806.00 18,580

02500 01/01/14 RECTIFIER AT IPS collection pumpstat 54,087 2014 9806.00 63,410

02501 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 35,510 2014 9806.00 41,632

02502 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 35,510 2014 9806.00 41,632

02503 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 11,896 2014 9806.00 13,947

02504 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION collection pumpstat 46,555 2014 9806.00 54,580

02528 01/01/14 6" PIPE LINING, 36 LF collection collsys 34,937 2014 9806.00 40,960

02529 01/01/14 8" PIPE LINING, 796 LF collection collsys 314,815 2014 9806.00 369,082

02530 01/01/14 10" PIPE LINING, 173 LF collection collsys 16,016 2014 9806.00 18,777

02531 01/01/14 12" PIPE LINING, 924 LF collection collsys 100,266 2014 9806.00 117,549

02535 01/01/14 RIO6T collection pumpstat 62,378 2014 9806.00 73,130

02550 01/01/14 8" PIPE, 654 LF collection collsys 148,623 2014 9806.00 174,241

02551 01/01/14 10" PIPE, 907 LF collection collsys 159,725 2014 9806.00 187,258

02552 01/01/14 12" PIPE, 907 LF collection collsys 114,405 2014 9806.00 134,126

02553 01/01/14 FORCE MAIN, 30" HAYWARD MARSH collection collsys 122,818 2014 9806.00 143,989

02554 01/01/14 JACKING 990 LF collection collsys 2,214,163 2014 9806.00 2,595,830

02555 01/01/14 MANHOLE, STANDARD, 1 QTY collection collsys 21,313 2014 9806.00 24,987

02556 01/01/14 MANHOLE, DROP, 1 QTY collection collsys 99,462 2014 9806.00 116,607

Page 18 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02559 01/01/14 6" PIPE, PVC 2032 LF collection collsys 551,266 2014 9806.00 646,290

02560 01/01/14 MANHOLES, STANDARD, 7 QTY collection collsys 71,726 2014 9806.00 84,090

02562 01/01/14 24" PVC GRAVITY SEWER, 72 LF collection liftstat 200,440 2014 9806.00 234,991

02563 01/01/14 PROCESS PIPING AND FITTINGS collection liftstat 182,167 2014 9806.00 213,568

02564 01/01/14 GENERATOR, STANDBY collection liftstat 174,234 2014 9806.00 204,268

02565 01/01/14 BRIDGE CRANE collection liftstat 107,657 2014 9806.00 126,214

02566 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 1 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02567 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 2 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02568 01/01/14 SEWAGE PUMP 2 collection liftstat 106,240 2014 9806.00 124,554

02569 01/01/14 LIFT STATION CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 99,158 2014 9806.00 116,250

02570 01/01/14 HYDRAULIC POWER UNIT collection liftstat 99,158 2014 9806.00 116,250

02571 01/01/14 14" & 16" PVC/DI FORCE MAIN 150 LF collection liftstat 78,901 2014 9806.00 92,502

02572 01/01/14 30" CONCRETE SEWER W/CIP LINING 65 LF collection liftstat 67,994 2014 9806.00 79,714

02574 01/01/14 MANHOLE M17009 collection liftstat 62,611 2014 9806.00 73,404

02575 01/01/14 MANHOLE M17010 collection liftstat 62,611 2014 9806.00 73,404

02576 01/01/14 PUMP 1 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02577 01/01/14 PUMP 2 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02578 01/01/14 PUMP 2 ‐ VARIABLE FREQ DRIVE collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02579 01/01/14 TROLLEY collection liftstat 60,911 2014 9806.00 71,411

02580 01/01/14 SLUICE GATE 3 collection liftstat 53,120 2014 9806.00 62,277

02581 01/01/14 LINING 30 LF collection liftstat 48,162 2014 9806.00 56,464

02582 01/01/14 MAIN SWITCHBOARD collection liftstat 30,456 2014 9806.00 35,705

02584 01/01/14 GAS DETECTION SYSTEM collection liftstat 30,314 2014 9806.00 35,539

02585 01/01/14 PRECAST VALVE VAULT STRUCTURE collection liftstat 26,489 2014 9806.00 31,055

02586 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 1 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02587 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 2 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02588 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ SLUICE GATE 3 collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02589 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 1 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02590 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 1 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02591 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02592 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02593 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 3 SUCTION VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02594 01/01/14 ACTUATOR ‐ PUMP 2 DISCHARGE VALVE collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02595 01/01/14 ELECTRICAL ROOM SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02596 01/01/14 ELECTRICAL ROOM EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 22,806 2014 9806.00 26,737

02597 01/01/14 MOTOR CONTROL CENTER 1 collection liftstat 30,078 2014 9806.00 35,263

02598 01/01/14 SLUICE GATE 2 collection liftstat 21,248 2014 9806.00 24,911

Page 19 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02599 01/01/14 HYDRAULIC ACTUATED SLUICE GATE 1 collection liftstat 21,248 2014 9806.00 24,911

02600 01/01/14 ACCUMULATOR collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02601 01/01/14 PUMP 1 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02602 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02603 01/01/14 PUMP 2 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02604 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02605 01/01/14 PUMP 3 SUCTION VALVE ‐ 12" PLUG VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02606 01/01/14 VALVE collection liftstat 18,273 2014 9806.00 21,423

02607 01/01/14 AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH collection liftstat 17,565 2014 9806.00 20,593

02608 01/01/14 SLIDE GATE 1 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02609 01/01/14 WEIR GATE 1 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02610 01/01/14 WEIR GATE 2 collection liftstat 17,140 2014 9806.00 20,095

02611 01/01/14 WETWELL SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02612 01/01/14 WETWELL EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02613 01/01/14 DRYWELL SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02614 01/01/14 DRYWELL EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02615 01/01/14 MECHANICAL ROOM SUPPLY FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02616 01/01/14 MECHANICAL ROOM EXHAUST FAN collection liftstat 15,582 2014 9806.00 18,268

02617 01/01/14 TLS‐350 LEAK DETECTION SYSTEM collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02618 01/01/14 PUMP 1 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02619 01/01/14 PUMP 2 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02620 01/01/14 PUMP 3 DISCHARGE CK VALVE 12" SWING collection liftstat 15,299 2014 9806.00 17,936

02621 01/01/14 DRAINS collection liftstat 15,157 2014 9806.00 17,770

02622 01/01/14 CONTROL PANEL HYDRAULIC POWER UNIT collection liftstat 15,157 2014 9806.00 17,770

02636 01/01/14 6" PIPE, 61 LF collection contribcs 17,094 2014 9806.00 20,041

02637 01/01/14 8" PIPE, 985 LF collection contribcs 276,320 2014 9806.00 323,951

02638 01/01/14 10" PIPE, 640 LF collection contribcs 188,128 2014 9806.00 220,557

02639 01/01/14 12" PIPE, 579 LF collection contribcs 174,759 2014 9806.00 204,883

02640 01/01/14 MANHOLES, 14 QTY collection contribcs 56,382 2014 9806.00 66,101

02727 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE SDR‐26 PVC  2456 FEET collection collsys 1,368,792 2015 10335.00 1,522,598

02728 01/01/15 MANHOLES, STANDARD 7 QTY collection collsys 114,217 2015 10335.00 127,052

02736 01/01/15 24 INCH PIPE 4070 FEET collection collsys 1,398,976 2015 10335.00 1,556,174

02737 01/01/15 27 INCH PIPE 4382 FEET collection collsys 1,624,112 2015 10335.00 1,806,608

02738 01/01/15 30 INCH PIPE 194 FEET collection collsys 207,588 2015 10335.00 230,914

02739 01/01/15 48 INCH PIPE 253 FEET collection collsys 351,634 2015 10335.00 391,146

02744 01/01/15 8 INCH PIPE 13232 FEET collection contribcs 3,796,945 2015 10335.00 4,223,595

02745 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE 126 FEET collection contribcs 37,862 2015 10335.00 42,116

Page 20 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02746 01/01/15 12 INCH PIPE 1638 FEET collection contribcs 506,340 2015 10335.00 563,236

02747 01/01/15 MANHOLES  105 QTY collection contribcs 433,435 2015 10335.00 482,139

02749 01/01/15 10 INCH PIPE W/STEEL CASING 634 LF collection collsys 138,490 2015 10335.00 154,052

02770 01/01/16 8 INCH PIPE, PVC SS MAIN, 3855 LF collection collsys 2,461,926 2016 10385.00 2,725,380

02771 01/01/16 MANHOLES, 12 QTY collection collsys 231,207 2016 10385.00 255,949

02772 01/01/16 ACTUATOR ‐ WIER GATE #1 collection liftstat 84,832 2016 10385.00 93,910

02773 01/01/16 ACTUATOR ‐ WEIR GATE #2 collection liftstat 84,832 2016 10385.00 93,910

02774 01/01/16 FORCEMAIN VALVE collection liftstat 33,509 2016 10385.00 37,094

02775 01/01/16 ACTUATOR PUMP STATION BYPASS VALVE collection liftstat 25,762 2016 10385.00 28,518

02776 01/01/16 LOAD BANK collection liftstat 67,865 2016 10385.00 75,128

02777 01/01/16 GAS DETECTION SYSTEM CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 101,798 2016 10385.00 112,692

02778 01/01/16 SUMP PUMP CONTROL PANEL collection liftstat 23,753 2016 10385.00 26,295

02784 01/01/16 8 INCH PIPE, 348 LF collection collsys 103,176 2016 10385.00 114,217

02785 01/01/16 10 INCH PIPE, 2789 LF collection collsys 867,337 2016 10385.00 960,152

02786 01/01/16 12 INCH PIPE, 2484 LF collection collsys 794,555 2016 10385.00 879,581

02787 01/01/16 MANHOLES, 23 QTY collection collsys 97,967 2016 10385.00 108,451

02811 06/30/17 27" SEWER REHAB 8773 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 3,412,275 2017 10737.00 3,653,587

02812 06/30/17 30" SEWER REHAB 420 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 224,620 2017 10737.00 240,505

02813 06/30/17 8" SEWER REHAB 125 LF ‐ PRJ 437 collection collsys 104,531 2017 10737.00 111,923

02846 06/30/17 8" PIPE 250 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 141,933 2017 10737.00 151,970

02847 06/30/17 8" PIPE 90 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 85,411 2017 10737.00 91,451

02848 06/30/17 10" PIPE 36 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 40,193 2017 10737.00 43,036

02849 06/30/17 8" PIPE 10 LF ‐ PRJ 451 collection collsys 74,106 2017 10737.00 79,347

02856 06/30/17 27" PVC PIPELINE 190 LF ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 403,540 2017 10737.00 432,078

02857 06/30/17 27" PVC SLIP 732 LF ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 1,756,128 2017 10737.00 1,880,320

02858 06/30/17 MANHOLE 1 QTY ‐ PRJ 475 collection collsys 49,212 2017 10737.00 52,692

02863 06/30/17 8" PIPE 11368 LF collection collsys 3,420,039 2017 10737.00 3,661,901

02864 06/30/17 24" PIPE 412 LF collection collsys 189,592 2017 10737.00 203,000

02865 06/30/17 MANHOLES, 82 QTY collection collsys 355,384 2017 10737.00 380,516

02878 01/01/18 SEWAGE PUMP CHOPPER collection pumpstat 53,426 2018 11062.00 55,523

02905 01/01/18 HEADWORKS ACCESS MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 112,077 2018 11062.00 116,478

02906 01/01/18 ART'S RANCH ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 114,792 2018 11062.00 119,299

02907 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02908 01/01/18 TURK ISLAND ACCESS MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02909 01/01/18 TURK ISLAND ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 114,792 2018 11062.00 119,299

02910 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 145,179 2018 11062.00 150,879

02911 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

Page 21 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02912 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 125,653 2018 11062.00 130,586

02913 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02914 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02915 01/01/18 COYOTE HILLS ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 133,597 2018 11062.00 138,842

02916 01/01/18 491 collection collsys 143,114 2018 11062.00 148,732

02917 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02918 01/01/18 HIGHWAY 84 ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 133,660 2018 11062.00 138,908

02919 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02920 01/01/18 PRJ 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02921 01/01/18 OLD JARVIS ARV MANHOLES ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 128,695 2018 11062.00 133,748

02922 01/01/18 PRJ 491 collection collsys 71,353 2018 11062.00 74,154

02923 01/01/18 MANWAYS ‐ PRJ 491 collection collsys 98,502 2018 11062.00 102,369

02924 01/01/18 8" PIPE 22,279 LF collection collsys 6,887,571 2018 11062.00 7,157,987

02925 01/01/18 MANHOLES, 186 QTY collection collsys 826,780 2018 11062.00 859,241

02940 01/01/19 PUMP collection pumpstat 85,910 2019 11268.48 87,647

02941 01/01/19 GODWIN DPC300 PUMP FOR IPS collection pumpstat 133,397 2019 11268.48 136,094

02992 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 1 FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 585,545 2019 11268.48 597,384

02993 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 2 FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 585,545 2019 11268.48 597,384

02994 01/01/19 ENGINE‐GENERATOR‐FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 58,035 2019 11268.48 59,208

02995 01/01/19 MCC‐FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 199,899 2019 11268.48 203,940

02996 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 14,509 2019 11268.48 14,802

02997 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 22,553 2019 11268.48 23,009

02998 01/01/19 SAFETY EYEWASH FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 12,897 2019 11268.48 13,157

02999 01/01/19 EFFLUENT VAVLE ACTUATOR FLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 17,733 2019 11268.48 18,091

03000 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 1 PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 659,578 2019 11268.48 672,914

03001 01/01/19 SEWAGE PUMP 2 PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 659,578 2019 11268.48 672,914

03002 01/01/19 ENGINE‐GENERATOR‐PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 58,035 2019 11268.48 59,208

03003 01/01/19 444 collection liftstat 335,314 2019 11268.48 342,093

03004 01/01/19 MCC‐PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 248,593 2019 11268.48 253,619

03005 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 19,184 2019 11268.48 19,572

03006 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 19,184 2019 11268.48 19,572

03007 01/01/19 PRJ 444 collection liftstat 21,586 2019 11268.48 22,022

03008 01/01/19 SAFETY EYEWASH PPLS ‐ PRJ 444 collection liftstat 12,897 2019 11268.48 13,157

03009 01/01/19 459 collection collsys 2,106,051 2019 11268.48 2,148,632

03010 01/01/19 8" PIPE, C‐900 OPEN CUT, 100 LF ‐ PRJ 459 collection collsys 78,538 2019 11268.48 80,126

03011 01/01/19 MANHOLES, 9 QTY ‐ PRJ 459 collection collsys 315,908 2019 11268.48 322,295

03024 01/01/19 PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 210,909 2019 11268.48 215,173

Page 22 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

03025 01/01/19 PANEL ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 31,983 2019 11268.48 32,630

03026 01/01/19 UPS ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 45,834 2019 11268.48 46,761

03027 01/01/19 EXHAUST FAN ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 323,880 2019 11268.48 330,429

03028 01/01/19 BOOST PIPE EXTENSION ‐ PRJ 492 collection pumpstat 211,590 2019 11268.48 215,868

03029 01/01/19 BOYCE LIFT STATION ‐ PRJ 506 collection collsys 36,413 2019 11268.48 37,149

03032 01/01/19 8" PIPE 4,781 LF collection collsys 1,519,144 2019 11268.48 1,549,859

03033 01/01/19 MANHOLES, 48 QTY collection collsys 219,244 2019 11268.48 223,677

Collection Total 443,582,382 1,672,112,203

00097 06/30/09 RST 1500 Mini‐Camera equipment equip‐cs 10,277 2009 8570.08 13,786

00296 06/30/09 Datalogger UPS equipment computer 15,717 2009 8570.08 21,083

00386 06/30/09 Vapor Recovery System equipment equipfmc 33,901 2009 8570.08 45,476

00394 06/30/08 Jerome H2S Meter equipment equipfmc 11,808 2008 8309.92 16,335

00631 02/01/07 Spare ARV's equipment equipfmc 16,888 2007 7967.00 24,369

00694 06/30/06 Olympus Microscope & Dig Camer equipment equiplab 13,414 2006 7751.25 19,895

00777 06/30/08 Repeater System equipment equipfmc 17,731 2008 8309.92 24,529

00841 06/30/09 Mr Manhole Casting Ringsaw equipment equip‐cs 44,548 2009 8570.08 59,759

00856 06/30/08 Novastar Camera equipment equip‐cs 15,497 2008 8309.92 21,439

00857 06/30/08 Novastar Camera equipment equip‐cs 15,497 2008 8309.92 21,439

00869 10/12/04 6" Submersible Pump equipment equipfmc 10,637 2004 7115.08 17,187

00926 01/10/07 SPM Leonova Vibration Monitor equipment equipfmc 17,865 2007 7967.00 25,779

00958 06/30/08 Readkey Pro Security System equipment computer 33,382 2008 8309.92 46,182

00961 12/31/00 Hoist Monorail System  Maint B equipment equipfmc 28,468 2000 6221.17 52,607

01078 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 1 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01079 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 2 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01080 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 3 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01081 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 4 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01082 12/31/02 Fume Hood Lab 5 Proj 124 equipment equiplab 12,932 2002 6538.00 22,739

01108 12/31/00 Pump  Submersible  6 in ITT Fl equipment equipfmc 10,561 2000 6221.17 19,516

01139 09/15/03 Laser Alignment System equipment equipfmc 16,833 2003 6694.58 28,906

01159 06/30/09 12" HDPE By‐Pass Piping equipment equip‐cs 200,336 2009 8570.08 268,739

01218 12/31/01 Microform Scanner  Minolta MS equipment officefurn 15,687 2001 6342.08 28,435

01358 12/31/95 OFFICE TRAILER ‐ TRAINING CENTER equipment equipfmc 17,593 1995 5471.17 36,967

01364 12/31/99 Camera RST Omieye III equipment equip‐cs 17,861 1999 6059.50 33,887

01373 06/30/09 SharePoint Sofware & Serv equipment computer 228,538 2009 8570.08 306,571

01374 12/31/00 60 000 Lb Vehicle Hoist  Maint equipment equip‐cs 55,306 2000 6221.17 102,202

01418 01/28/04 Microsoft SW Assurance Ser Lic equipment computer 21,264 2004 7115.08 34,357

Page 23 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01439 12/31/02 Man Lift  Genie S‐40  40 Ft equipment equipfmc 52,120 2002 6538.00 91,647

01455 12/31/02 Crane Proj 124 equipment equipfmc 56,829 2002 6538.00 99,926

01456 12/31/02 Crane Proj 124 equipment equipfmc 56,829 2002 6538.00 99,926

01501 06/30/09 Plant GIS Database Schema&data equipment computer 601,573 2009 8570.08 806,979

01510 06/30/06 FLexidata Software System equipment computer 49,332 2006 7751.25 73,167

01511 06/30/06 SCADA‐Hansen Interface equipment computer 35,000 2006 7751.25 51,910

01520 12/31/95 Camera Equipment equipment equip‐cs 36,681 1995 5471.17 77,076

01611 12/31/96 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 69,345 1996 5622.17 141,798

01616 12/31/99 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 74,409 1999 6059.50 141,171

01662 12/31/97 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 98,773 1997 5825.08 194,937

01673 12/31/98 Records Mgmt ‐ NECB equipment computer 107,272 1998 5920.42 208,302

01752 12/31/02 Furniture  Modular Proj 133 equipment officefurn 654,454 2002 6538.00 1,150,780

01843 06/30/05 Proj 36 GIS equipment computer 1,191,387 2005 7446.08 1,839,430

01905 01/01/10 FURNITURE, MODULAR equipment officefurn 10,008 2010 8798.92 13,077

01906 01/01/10 DRILL PRESS 2, MAINT SHOP equipment equipfmc 13,516 2010 8798.92 17,660

01914 01/01/10 PUMP, 6" SUBMERSIBLE equipment equip‐cs 15,150 2010 8798.92 19,795

01939 01/01/10 PERMIT TRACKING SYSTEM SOFTWARE equipment computer 153,932 2010 8798.92 201,121

01998 01/01/11 APC SYMMETRA PX SERVER ROOM UPS equipment computer 77,080 2011 9069.83 97,701

01999 01/01/11 CCTV SYSTEM equipment computer 69,600 2011 9069.83 88,220

02013 01/01/11 VERTICLE BAND SAW equipment equipfmc 11,645 2011 9069.83 14,760

02016 01/01/11 BRIDGE CRANE equipment equip‐cs 43,365 2011 9069.83 54,967

02017 01/01/11 BAND SAW, HORIZONTAL equipment equipfmc 11,030 2011 9069.83 13,981

02020 01/01/11 USD‐SQLE DELL SERVER equipment computer 13,581 2011 9069.83 17,214

02025 01/01/11 OPTIMUM HR SOFTWARE SYSTEM equipment computer 31,347 2011 9069.83 39,733

02026 01/01/11 USD‐ESX4 equipment computer 25,000 2011 9069.83 31,688

02027 01/01/11 EDEN FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SYSTEM equipment computer 405,253 2011 9069.83 513,671

02030 01/01/11 DELL DR SCADA SERVER equipment computer 24,624 2011 9069.83 31,211

02044 01/01/11 SCADA SYSTEM UPGRADE equipment computer 43,623 2011 9069.83 55,293

02235 06/30/12 HP DESIGN JET T2300 PLOTTER/SCANNER equipment computer 13,085 2012 9308.17 16,161

02239 06/30/12 RKI GAS DETECTORS equipment equipfmc 69,831 2012 9308.17 86,247

02251 06/30/12 NPS CONDUIT AND CABLE equipment computer 12,950 2012 9308.17 15,994

02252 06/30/12 NPS ALVARADO BACK UP COMM equipment computer 37,304 2012 9308.17 46,073

02311 01/01/13 VMWARE ESX 3 equipment computer 13,536 2013 9546.67 16,300

02313 01/01/13 QUANTUM HD BACKUP TARGET equipment computer 37,639 2013 9546.67 45,326

02410 01/01/14 LUMBERJACK CUTTING TOOL equipment equip‐cs 13,793 2014 9806.00 16,170

02412 01/01/14 EXHAUST GAS ANALYZER equipment equipfmc 16,283 2014 9806.00 19,090

02414 01/01/14 6" SUBMERSIBLE PUMP equipment equipfmc 16,748 2014 9806.00 19,635

Page 24 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02557 01/01/14 MOTOROLA HANDHELD RADIOS equipment radio 77,509 2014 9806.00 90,870

02558 01/01/14 MOTOROLA RADIO SYSTEM equipment radio 13,054 2014 9806.00 15,305

02701 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5HXOFRDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02702 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5HT1QLDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02703 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DR5J2ODRDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02704 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DDRFHT26SDJHF equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02705 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DMPJXRTSDFHW equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02706 06/30/14 APPLE I PAD DMPJXSHQDFHW equipment computer 0 2014 9806.00 0

02710 01/01/15 GAS ANALYZER GEMS DIGITAL equipment equipfmc 11,908 2015 10335.00 13,246

02720 01/01/15 PARTS WASHER equipment equipfmc 37,354 2015 10335.00 41,551

02722 01/01/15 WATER CHAMP MIXER equipment equipfmc 21,263 2015 10335.00 23,652

02724 01/01/15 USD‐PDC SERVER equipment computer 11,824 2015 10335.00 13,153

02734 01/01/15 PLANT GIS equipment computer 65,620 2015 10335.00 72,994

02735 01/01/15 PROJECT MATES SOFTWARE equipment computer 139,125 2015 10335.00 154,758

02748 01/01/15 FUEL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM equipment computer 31,904 2015 10335.00 35,489

02752 01/01/16 ADMIN SERVER UPS BATTERIES equipment computer 24,768 2016 10385.00 27,418

02753 01/01/16 OZIII PAN & TILT CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 24,527 2016 10385.00 27,152

02754 01/01/16 EMC SAN equipment computer 23,363 2016 10385.00 25,863

02761 01/01/16 SERVER equipment computer 12,504 2016 10385.00 13,842

02766 01/01/16 SITE WASTE PUMP #3 equipment equipfmc 51,821 2016 10385.00 57,366

02767 01/01/16 ICP‐OEM equipment equiplab 81,654 2016 10385.00 90,392

02779 01/01/16 DELL R720 SERVER equipment computer 66,008 2016 10385.00 73,071

02780 01/01/16 TABLET DEVICES W/ACCESSORIES, 34 QTY equipment computer 61,092 2016 10385.00 67,629

02781 01/01/16 SOFTWARE equipment computer 106,992 2016 10385.00 118,442

02782 01/01/16 SOFTWARE equipment computer 667,428 2016 10385.00 738,851

02791 06/30/17 CONTEX IQ 4490 SCANNER equipment computer 14,768 2017 10737.00 15,812

02792 06/30/17 TOYOTA PNEUMATIC FORKLIFT equipment equipfmc 31,346 2017 10737.00 33,562

02793 06/30/17 50 TON SCOTCHMEN IRONWORKER equipment equipfmc 13,053 2017 10737.00 13,976

02794 06/30/17 DETECTION KIT equipment equipfmc 14,335 2017 10737.00 15,349

02796 06/30/17 QUANTUM NAS equipment computer 31,127 2017 10737.00 33,329

02797 06/30/17 PLANT FIREWALL equipment computer 12,115 2017 10737.00 12,972

02798 06/30/17 EMC VNXE3200 SAN FOR SCADA equipment computer 26,463 2017 10737.00 28,334

02799 06/30/17 CAMERA OZIII. PAN & TILT OPTICAL ZOOM equipment equip‐cs 24,517 2017 10737.00 26,251

02800 06/30/17 CAMERA OZIII. PAN & TILT OPTICAL ZOOM equipment equip‐cs 24,517 2017 10737.00 26,251

02801 06/30/17 CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 11,574 2017 10737.00 12,393

02802 06/30/17 CAMERA equipment equip‐cs 11,574 2017 10737.00 12,393

02803 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 14,442 2017 10737.00 15,463

Page 25 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02804 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 13,734 2017 10737.00 14,705

02805 06/30/17 DELL POWER EDGE SERVER ‐ R730 equipment computer 13,734 2017 10737.00 14,705

02855 06/30/17 CISCO BE 6000 PHONE SYSTEM ‐ PRJ 471 equipment telephone 268,703 2017 10737.00 287,706

02872 01/01/18 MGMT (SIEM) equipment computer 20,942 2018 11062.00 21,764

02874 01/01/18 AIR COMPRESSOR WHEELED CART equipment equip‐cs 9,219 2018 11062.00 9,581

02875 01/01/18 AMBIENT CART equipment equip‐cs 27,150 2018 11062.00 28,216

02876 01/01/18 T‐LINER ROTATIONAL DEVICE equipment equip‐cs 13,719 2018 11062.00 14,257

02879 01/01/18 BRIDGEPORT MILLING MACHINE equipment equipfmc 19,997 2018 11062.00 20,782

02881 01/01/18 COMMANDER IV UNIT equipment equip‐cs 41,030 2018 11062.00 42,641

02883 01/01/18 IPACS ‐ PRJ 396 equipment computer 188,307 2018 11062.00 195,700

02900 01/01/18 PRJ 474 equipment computer 39,178 2018 11062.00 40,716

02901 01/01/18 477 equipment computer 40,824 2018 11062.00 42,427

02930 01/01/19 PRECISION LATHE equipment equipfmc 24,818 2019 11268.48 25,320

02934 01/01/19 WALK BEHIND CONCRETE SAW equipment equip‐cs 39,902 2019 11268.48 40,709

02937 01/01/19 DELL POWEREDGE R740XD SERVER equipment computer 195,418 2019 11268.48 199,369

02938 01/01/19 EDGE FIREWALL equipment computer 31,972 2019 11268.48 32,618

02942 01/01/19 PORTABLE SCRUBBER FAN equipment equipfmc 14,683 2019 11268.48 14,980

03030 01/01/19 FENCING OLD NEWARK WTP SITE ‐ PRJ 523 equipment equipfmc 11,849 2019 11268.48 12,089

03031 01/01/19 READKEY PRO SECURITY SYSTEMS equipment computer 14,706 2019 11268.48 15,003

Equipment Total 7,987,625 10,871,700

00207 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado fleet vehicle 17,602 2009 8570.08 23,612

00292 06/30/09 2009 Dodge Grand Caravan fleet vehicle 22,104 2009 8570.08 29,652

00298 06/30/09 2009 Dodge Dakota fleet vehicle 22,931 2009 8570.08 30,761

00312 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado 4WD fleet vehicle 24,782 2009 8570.08 33,243

00330 06/30/09 2009 Chevy Colorado fleet vehicle 27,358 2009 8570.08 36,699

00462 06/30/08 Particulate Matter Filter#99 fleet vehicle 15,149 2008 8309.92 20,958

00545 06/30/08 Scissor Lift fleet equipport 16,323 2008 8309.92 22,582

00724 06/30/08 1989 GMC Winch Truck fleet vehicle 27,188 2008 8309.92 37,612

00726 12/31/02 Welder  Portable  Miller fleet equipport 10,545 2002 6538.00 18,542

00852 06/30/09 2009 Sterling Dump Truck fleet vehicle 138,068 2009 8570.08 185,211

00868 06/30/06 Boackhoe Trailer fleet equipport 20,503 2006 7751.25 30,410

00884 06/30/06 Emergency Response Trailer fleet equipport 21,189 2006 7751.25 31,426

00896 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Silverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00897 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Siverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00898 06/30/08 2008 Chevy Siverado 3500 fleet vehicle 34,884 2008 8309.92 48,260

00924 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #305 fleet vehicle 17,637 2007 7967.00 25,450

Page 26 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00936 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #303 fleet vehicle 18,089 2007 7967.00 26,102

00952 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #306 fleet vehicle 19,083 2007 7967.00 27,537

00959 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #309 fleet vehicle 19,350 2007 7967.00 27,921

00968 05/01/07 2007 Chevy Colorado #304 fleet vehicle 19,722 2007 7967.00 28,458

01039 12/31/00 Concrete Saw Trailer fleet equipport 12,927 2000 6221.17 23,889

01061 07/01/06 10" Gorman Rupp Pump fleet equipport 47,064 2006 7751.25 69,803

01100 06/30/08 Skid Steer Loader fleet equipport 73,566 2008 8309.92 101,774

01109 06/30/06 2006 Chev Colorado Pickup fleet vehicle 15,392 2006 7751.25 22,828

01147 05/13/04 2004 Dodge Dakota #256 fleet vehicle 13,757 2004 7115.08 22,228

01175 05/18/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Quad fleet vehicle 22,836 2005 7446.08 35,258

01176 05/18/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Quad fleet vehicle 22,836 2005 7446.08 35,258

01183 12/31/99 Trailer Eager Beaver Model 20X fleet equipport 16,994 1999 6059.50 32,242

01192 06/30/06 Vac Press Tank Stainless Steel fleet equipport 47,244 2006 7751.25 70,070

01197 05/25/05 2005 Dodge 3/4 Ton Serv Body fleet vehicle 25,164 2005 7446.08 38,852

01201 03/11/05 Forklift, Komatsu fleet equipport 25,306 2005 7446.08 39,071

01271 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01272 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01273 06/01/05 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid fleet vehicle 23,564 2005 7446.08 36,382

01287 12/31/90 1990 GMC 3/4 Ton Chasis/Cab E2 fleet vehicle 14,189 1990 4731.92 34,473

01303 05/13/04 2004 Toyota Prius #257 fleet vehicle 21,575 2004 7115.08 34,860

01308 06/30/05 Trailer, By‐Pass Hose fleet equipport 51,028 2005 7446.08 78,785

01348 05/12/05 2005 Chev 1 Ton w Serv/Crane fleet vehicle 36,992 2005 7446.08 57,113

01381 12/31/01 2002 Chevrolet Silverado C1500 fleet vehicle 20,574 2001 6342.08 37,295

01395 12/31/98 1999 Chevy Astro Van E989528 fleet vehicle 20,419 1998 5920.42 39,650

01419 12/31/79 Pump Diesel 10 Inch 1979 Gorma fleet equipport 0 1979 3003.00 0

01425 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130279 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01427 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130280 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01428 12/31/01 2002 Toyota Prius E1130281 fleet vehicle 23,087 2001 6342.08 41,850

01430 06/07/05 2005 Sterling Tank Truck fleet vehicle 73,251 2005 7446.08 113,096

01536 12/31/00 Truck #22 Modifications fleet vehicle 43,902 2000 6221.17 81,128

01544 05/01/05 2005 Sterling National Crane fleet vehicle 149,427 2005 7446.08 230,707

01604 01/01/88 1986 GMC Winch Truck E492563 fleet vehicle 66,710 1988 4519.00 169,710

01612 12/31/92 1993 Ford Knuckle Boom Truck E fleet vehicle 69,698 1992 4984.83 160,742

01656 12/31/96 1997 Ford CF7000 Truck E036770 fleet vehicle 97,686 1996 5622.17 199,750

01685 12/31/00 2001 Ford TV Inspection Van E1 fleet vehicle 142,215 2000 6221.17 262,804

01691 09/30/03 Sewer Cleaner Combo Hydraulic fleet equipport 282,065 2003 6694.58 484,377

01913 01/01/10 1986 GMC WINCH TRUCK ‐ ADDITION fleet vehicle 32,330 2010 8798.92 42,241

Page 27 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01915 01/01/10 INTERNATIONAL VACTOR RAMJET fleet vehicle 255,338 2010 8798.92 333,615

01916 01/01/10 VIBRATORY ROLLER fleet vehicle 38,320 2010 8798.92 50,067

01929 01/01/10 ATLAS TRAILER/AIR COMPRESSOR fleet equipport 13,165 2010 8798.92 17,200

01930 01/01/10 MULTIQUIP CONCRETE SAW fleet equipport 20,829 2010 8798.92 27,215

01937 01/01/10 PUMP, 4" GODWIN DRI‐PRIME fleet equipport 43,747 2010 8798.92 57,159

01996 01/01/11 CAT BACKHOE fleet vehicle 100,568 2011 9069.83 127,473

01997 01/01/11 TV VAN fleet vehicle 251,626 2011 9069.83 318,944

02008 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐250 fleet vehicle 44,389 2011 9069.83 56,264

02009 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐250 fleet vehicle 31,637 2011 9069.83 40,101

02014 01/01/11 2011 FORD F‐350 fleet vehicle 43,228 2011 9069.83 54,793

02015 01/01/11 2011 FORD F350 fleet vehicle 43,228 2011 9069.83 54,793

02234 06/30/12 2011 CAT 420E BACKHOE fleet vehicle 106,445 2012 9308.17 131,468

02236 06/30/12 2011 DODGE GRAND CARAVAN fleet vehicle 22,756 2012 9308.17 28,106

02237 06/30/12 2011 DODGE GRAND CARAVAN fleet vehicle 20,559 2012 9308.17 25,392

02242 06/30/12 2012 CHEVY COLORADO 4WD fleet vehicle 31,271 2012 9308.17 38,622

02247 06/30/12 480E BACKHOE fleet equipport 11,993 2012 9308.17 14,812

02314 11/01/12 2012 TV VAN FORD F550 fleet vehicle 282,958 2012 9308.17 349,475

02315 11/01/12 2012 TV VAN FORD F550 fleet vehicle 282,958 2012 9308.17 349,475

02402 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02403 01/01/14 2013 TOYOTA TACOMA fleet vehicle 27,705 2014 9806.00 32,480

02404 01/01/14 6" DRI‐PRIME PUMP ON TRAILER fleet equipport 57,307 2014 9806.00 67,185

02405 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02406 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02407 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02408 01/01/14 2013 CHEVY SILVERADO 1T fleet vehicle 44,386 2014 9806.00 52,037

02409 01/01/14 2014 FREIGHTLINER VACTOR COMBO UNIT fleet vehicle 454,772 2014 9806.00 533,163

02411 01/01/14 2014 FORD TRANSIT CONNECT fleet vehicle 24,664 2014 9806.00 28,916

02413 01/01/14 TRAILER, TILT DECK fleet equipport 14,441 2014 9806.00 16,930

02708 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02709 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02711 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02712 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02713 01/01/15 COLUMBIA ELECTRIC CART fleet vehicle 14,698 2015 10335.00 16,350

02714 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY VOLT fleet vehicle 36,198 2015 10335.00 40,266

02715 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY VOLT fleet vehicle 36,198 2015 10335.00 40,266

02716 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 VAN fleet vehicle 50,156 2015 10335.00 55,792

02717 01/01/15 2013 FORD F650 fleet vehicle 156,515 2015 10335.00 174,102

Page 28 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02718 01/01/15 2013 FORD F650 fleet vehicle 156,515 2015 10335.00 174,102

02719 01/01/15 6"GODWIN PUMP TRAILER MOUNT fleet equipport 61,897 2015 10335.00 68,852

02721 01/01/15 SUBMERSIBLE PUMP PORTABLE fleet equipport 16,820 2015 10335.00 18,710

02723 01/01/15 2015 INTERNATIONAL DUMP TRUCK fleet vehicle 197,801 2015 10335.00 220,027

02725 01/01/15 2015 CHEVY SILVERADO 3500 TRUCK fleet vehicle 44,705 2015 10335.00 49,728

02755 01/01/16 2015 FORD F250 fleet vehicle 36,016 2016 10385.00 39,870

02756 01/01/16 2015 FORD F250 fleet vehicle 36,016 2016 10385.00 39,870

02757 01/01/16 2015 FORD F150 fleet vehicle 27,700 2016 10385.00 30,664

02758 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, YELLOW fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02759 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, WHITE fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02760 01/01/16 COLUMBIA CAR, WHITER fleet vehicle 17,421 2016 10385.00 19,285

02762 01/01/16 2016 CHEVY SILVERADO, V2 PUS/VAN 5‐1T fleet vehicle 51,473 2016 10385.00 56,981

02763 01/01/16 2016 CHEVY SILVERADO fleet vehicle 53,878 2016 10385.00 59,644

02764 01/01/16 2016 FORD DUMP TRUCK F550 fleet vehicle 65,599 2016 10385.00 72,619

02765 01/01/16 2016 FORD DUMP TRUCK F550 fleet vehicle 65,599 2016 10385.00 72,619

02788 06/30/17 UTILITY CART ‐ COLUMBIA PARCAR fleet vehicle 18,058 2017 10737.00 19,335

02789 06/30/17 UTILITY CART ‐ COLUMBIA PARCAR fleet vehicle 18,058 2017 10737.00 19,335

02790 06/30/17 PAINTING TRAILER fleet equipport 14,945 2017 10737.00 16,001

02795 06/30/17 VAPOROOTER COMMANDER fleet vehicle 36,492 2017 10737.00 39,072

02869 01/01/18 GLS AUTOMATIC SAMPLERS fleet equipport 15,822 2018 11062.00 16,443

02873 01/01/18 SLIP LINE TRAILER (LMK) fleet vehicle 56,730 2018 11062.00 58,957

02880 01/01/18 VAC‐CON JETTER fleet vehicle 277,502 2018 11062.00 288,397

02882 01/01/18 FORD F‐550 MINI JET fleet vehicle 191,167 2018 11062.00 198,673

02931 01/01/19 VACTOR COMBO UNIT fleet vehicle 507,967 2019 11268.48 518,237

02932 01/01/19 GODWIN 4" SILENCED DRI‐PRIME PUMP fleet equipport 68,478 2019 11268.48 69,863

02933 01/01/19 WAREHOUSE fleet equipport 33,953 2019 11268.48 34,639

02935 01/01/19 2019 CHEVROLET BOLT EV fleet vehicle 37,789 2019 11268.48 38,553

02936 01/01/19 2019 CHEVROLET BOLT EV fleet vehicle 37,789 2019 11268.48 38,553

Fleet Total 7,197,713 9,336,147

02232 07/01/03 UNION CITY PERMIT intangible intangible 6,043,632 2003 6694.58 10,378,460

02385 07/17/12 EASEMENT ‐ DOCUMENT 21751137 intangible easement 198,026 2012 9308.17 244,578

02641 01/01/14 EASEMENT ‐ DOC #2014065720 intangible easement 174,240 2014 9806.00 204,275

Intangible Total 6,415,898 10,827,312

00002 09/11/52 All Land land land 4,624,417 1952 569.00 93,433,630

02021 01/01/11 LAND ‐ BOYCE ROAD, FREMONT land land 348,142 2011 9069.83 441,282

Page 29 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02024 01/01/11 LAND ‐ HICKORY STREET, NEWARK land land 423,343 2011 9069.83 536,601

Land Total 5,395,903 94,411,513

00099 06/30/09 Fire Panel operations bldg 15,733 2009 8570.08 21,105

00115 06/30/09 Electrical operations bldg 28,283 2009 8570.08 37,941

00214 06/30/09 Tractor Loader Training Area operations bldg 36,510 2009 8570.08 48,976

00275 06/30/07 Permanent Structure operations bldg 20,528 2007 7967.00 29,622

00281 06/30/07 Permanent Structure operations bldg 21,321 2007 7967.00 30,767

00310 06/30/06 20" Steel Pipe operations bldg 10,364 2006 7751.25 15,372

00367 06/30/07 Library Cabinets operations bldg 12,205 2007 7967.00 17,612

00373 06/30/06 Maint Shop Bldg Ext Paint operations bldg 13,811 2006 7751.25 20,484

00380 06/30/06 24" Steel Pipe operations bldg 14,133 2006 7751.25 20,962

00398 06/30/09 Foundation, building operations bldg 143,994 2009 8570.08 193,160

00475 12/31/02 Paving/Grading  Mech Maint Bld operations bldg 13,219 2002 6538.00 23,244

00502 06/30/06 Comp Room HVAC Unit operations bldg 12,929 2006 7751.25 19,176

00578 06/30/06 Comp Room HVAC Unit operations bldg 15,000 2006 7751.25 22,247

00592 12/31/02 Flooring  Mech Maint Bldg Proj operations bldg 16,623 2002 6538.00 29,230

00618 06/30/07 Fire Suppression System operations bldg 27,853 2007 7967.00 40,192

00659 06/30/07 Permenent Structure operations bldg 58,950 2007 7967.00 85,065

00665 12/31/00 Ceiling Panels  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 13,986 2000 6221.17 25,845

00689 06/30/08 Control Bldg Stairs operations bldg 61,831 2008 8309.92 85,540

00704 06/30/06 Field Ops Membrain Roof operations bldg 23,016 2006 7751.25 34,136

00745 06/30/05 Fire Alarm Link Btwn Bldgs operations bldg 19,399 2005 7446.08 29,951

00766 12/31/02 Roof  Mech Maint Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 13,869 2002 6538.00 24,386

00787 06/30/06 Silencote Roof ‐ Generator Rm operations bldg 27,822 2006 7751.25 41,264

00798 06/30/07 Roof Rehab ‐ Prom Clarify1‐4 operations bldg 39,659 2007 7967.00 57,227

00799 06/30/09 Painting/Coating operations bldg 196,573 2009 8570.08 263,692

00807 06/30/06 Ctrl Bldg Patio Roof operations bldg 29,017 2006 7751.25 43,037

00832 06/30/06 Fire System operations bldg 24,602 2006 7751.25 36,489

00834 12/31/02 Fire/Security System  Mech Mai operations bldg 16,576 2002 6538.00 29,147

00877 12/31/00 Site Prep  Admin Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 22,858 2000 6221.17 42,240

00891 06/30/07 Storm Drain operations bldg 81,876 2007 7967.00 118,146

00892 06/30/06 Sidewalk/Curb Common Area operations bldg 29,371 2006 7751.25 43,561

00913 12/31/00 Flooring  Tile  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

00914 12/31/00 Fencing  Covered Storage  Proj operations bldg 15,640 2000 6221.17 28,902

00941 06/30/05 Control Bldg Ext Paint operations bldg 38,725 2005 7446.08 59,789

00949 06/30/09 Permanent Structure operations bldg 367,273 2009 8570.08 492,677

Page 30 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00962 12/31/02 Flooring  Carpet  Control Bldg operations bldg 14,008 2002 6538.00 24,631

00973 06/30/06 4" Chemical Line operations bldg 53,714 2006 7751.25 79,666

00974 06/30/06 6" Sludge Line operations bldg 53,714 2006 7751.25 79,666

00995 06/30/05 Fire Detection System operations bldg 36,653 2005 7446.08 56,590

01016 12/31/02 Plumbing  Mech Maint Bldg Proj operations bldg 21,254 2002 6538.00 37,373

01025 06/30/06 Electrical ‐ Bldg operations bldg 40,096 2006 7751.25 59,469

01028 12/31/00 Lockers  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐4 operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

01029 12/31/00 Cabinets/Casework  Maint Bldg operations bldg 33,422 2000 6221.17 61,762

01034 06/30/06 Vent Degritted Prim Sludge operations bldg 62,053 2006 7751.25 92,034

01056 06/30/06 16" Steel Pipe operations bldg 65,955 2006 7751.25 97,822

01063 06/30/07 HVAC Unit operations bldg 63,582 2007 7967.00 91,748

01072 06/30/07 Storm Drain operations bldg 130,012 2007 7967.00 187,607

01094 12/31/02 Flooring  Control Bldg Proj 12 operations bldg 66,492 2002 6538.00 116,918

01120 06/30/06 Plumbing operations bldg 104,320 2006 7751.25 154,722

01145 12/31/00 Flooring  Tile  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 44,260 2000 6221.17 81,790

01151 06/30/09 Painting/Coating, Building operations bldg 383,756 2009 8570.08 514,788

01155 06/30/06 9 Lab Sinks & 8 Eyewashes operations bldg 56,152 2006 7751.25 83,282

01157 12/31/02 WH Portable Office Proj 133 operations bldg 30,452 2002 6538.00 53,546

01169 06/30/09 Electrical, building operations bldg 405,313 2009 8570.08 543,706

01171 06/30/06 HVAC operations bldg 58,139 2006 7751.25 86,230

01172 12/31/02 Electrical  Mech Maint Bldg Pr operations bldg 31,325 2002 6538.00 55,082

01181 12/31/02 Flooring  Tile  Control Bldg P operations bldg 24,366 2002 6538.00 42,845

01182 12/31/00 Paving/Grading  Maint Bldg  Pr operations bldg 25,000 2000 6221.17 46,198

01185 06/30/06 8" Secondary Dig Interim Pipe operations bldg 51,822 2006 7751.25 76,860

01199 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 69,940 2002 6538.00 122,981

01202 12/31/02 Paving/Grading  Control Bldg P operations bldg 52,876 2002 6538.00 92,976

01213 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Cov Stor operations bldg 27,281 2000 6221.17 50,413

01224 06/30/07 Electrical operations bldg 94,976 2007 7967.00 137,049

01230 12/31/02 Paint/Wall Treatment  Control operations bldg 27,737 2002 6538.00 48,772

01254 12/31/00 Electrical  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 60,711 2000 6221.17 112,190

01270 12/31/00 Elevator  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 46,723 2000 6221.17 86,341

01280 12/31/94 Seismic Design ‐ Primary Bldg operations bldg 13,986 1994 5407.58 29,734

01293 12/31/02 Roof  Control Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 55,474 2002 6538.00 97,545

01298 12/31/02 Structure  Mech Maint Bldg Pro operations bldg 89,134 2002 6538.00 156,732

01302 06/30/05 Landscaping operations bldg 31,226 2005 7446.08 48,211

01315 12/31/00 Paint/Wall Trmt  Maint Bldg  P operations bldg 27,473 2000 6221.17 50,768

01317 06/30/06 Interior Wall Treatments operations bldg 111,811 2006 7751.25 165,834

Page 31 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01346 06/30/06 Storm Drain operations bldg 189,508 2006 7751.25 281,070

01347 06/30/07 Roof Rehab ‐ Prom Clarify 5‐6 operations bldg 166,245 2007 7967.00 239,890

01350 12/31/02 Ceiling Panels  Control Bldg P operations bldg 26,085 2002 6538.00 45,867

01354 12/31/02 Fire/Security System  Control operations bldg 66,305 2002 6538.00 116,589

01370 12/31/00 CABINETS/CASEWORK  ADMIN BLDG operations bldg 86,951 2000 6221.17 160,680

01378 06/30/06 Permanent Structure operations bldg 216,482 2006 7751.25 321,077

01380 12/31/01 Control Bldg Roof Replacement operations bldg 76,502 2001 6342.08 138,675

01391 06/30/06 Painting/Coating ‐ Bldg operations bldg 144,053 2006 7751.25 213,653

01396 06/30/09 Permanent Structure, Building operations bldg 1,028,098 2009 8570.08 1,379,139

01431 12/31/60 Concrete Pump Station Structur operations bldg 21,985 1960 824.00 306,731

01440 06/30/05 Landscaping operations bldg 50,388 2005 7446.08 77,796

01447 12/31/00 Fencing operations bldg 68,555 2000 6221.17 126,685

01451 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 113,573 2000 6221.17 209,875

01452 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Maint Bl operations bldg 57,540 2000 6221.17 106,330

01465 12/31/79 Painting operations bldg 26,000 1979 3003.00 99,535

01466 12/31/91 Primary Clarifier Roof operations bldg 26,062 1991 4835.08 61,967

01468 12/31/85 Control Building & Paving operations bldg 44,625 1985 4195.00 122,294

01469 12/31/79 Fencing operations bldg 27,000 1979 3003.00 103,363

01473 12/31/02 Cabinets/Casework  Control Bld operations bldg 169,079 2002 6538.00 297,306

01474 12/31/02 Plumbing  Control Bldg Proj 12 operations bldg 85,018 2002 6538.00 149,494

01481 12/31/99 Newark PS Access Rd Improvment operations bldg 132,161 1999 6059.50 250,741

01483 12/31/00 Ceiling Panels  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 68,098 2000 6221.17 125,841

01485 06/30/05 Electrical Repairs operations bldg 128,704 2005 7446.08 198,711

01486 06/30/04 Proj 152 Paint Booth operations bldg 106,266 2004 7115.08 171,701

01488 12/31/00 Flooring  Carpet  Maint Bldg operations bldg 35,378 2000 6221.17 65,376

01490 12/31/00 Doors/Windows  Maint Bldg  Pro operations bldg 143,933 2000 6221.17 265,979

01496 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 192,329 2002 6538.00 338,188

01497 12/31/00 Design  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 147,946 2000 6221.17 273,395

01515 12/31/00 Roof  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 105,526 2000 6221.17 195,006

01518 06/30/06 6" Secondary Dig Interim Pipe operations bldg 51,822 2006 7751.25 76,860

01521 12/31/97 Alvarado Paving Repair operations bldg 48,280 1997 5825.08 95,285

01530 12/31/02 Electrical  Control Bldg Proj operations bldg 125,302 2002 6538.00 220,328

01538 12/31/00 Plumbing  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐ operations bldg 208,230 2000 6221.17 384,796

01539 12/31/79 Excavation/Backfill/Duct Encas operations bldg 60,000 1979 3003.00 229,697

01545 12/31/02 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 277,895 2002 6538.00 488,646

01549 12/31/00 Flooring  Carpet  Admin Bldg operations bldg 53,485 2000 6221.17 98,837

01559 12/31/91 Plant Lighting Improvements operations bldg 51,091 1991 4835.08 121,478

Page 32 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01560 12/31/00 Site Piping  Admin Bldg  Proj operations bldg 240,700 2000 6221.17 444,798

01561 12/31/00 Fire/Security System  Admin Bl operations bldg 120,720 2000 6221.17 223,083

01580 12/31/02 Structure  Control Bldg Proj 1 operations bldg 356,538 2002 6538.00 626,930

01582 12/31/85 Major Structure &  Ground Prep operations bldg 99,310 1985 4195.00 272,157

01585 12/31/00 Plumbing operations bldg 286,091 2000 6221.17 528,677

01590 12/31/00 Sidewalk/Curb  Common Area  Pr operations bldg 148,220 2000 6221.17 273,901

01593 12/31/00 Doors/Windows  Admin Bldg  Pro operations bldg 304,214 2000 6221.17 562,168

01595 12/31/94 Walkway Improvements operations bldg 67,500 1994 5407.58 143,502

01613 06/30/06 Roof operations bldg 621,104 2006 7751.25 921,193

01617 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt & Overhead operations bldg 352,075 2000 6221.17 650,612

01619 06/30/06 Excavation operations bldg 863,489 2006 7751.25 1,280,688

01624 06/30/07 Irvington PS Floor Replacement operations bldg 623,194 2007 7967.00 899,264

01626 06/30/06 HVAC operations bldg 458,585 2006 7751.25 680,153

01634 12/31/00 Roof  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 250,283 2000 6221.17 462,507

01635 12/31/98 Alvarado Admin & Lab Facility operations bldg 122,491 1998 5920.42 237,854

01648 12/31/01 Roof Replacement Proj 129 operations bldg 368,418 2001 6342.08 667,833

01653 12/31/00 Structure  Cov Stor  Proj 28‐4 operations bldg 454,617 2000 6221.17 840,103

01654 12/31/00 Design  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 458,634 2000 6221.17 847,526

01657 06/30/06 Electrical ‐ Bldg operations bldg 1,118,439 2006 7751.25 1,658,819

01658 12/31/00 Paint/Wall Trmt  Admin Bldg  P operations bldg 98,036 2000 6221.17 181,164

01665 06/30/07 Electrical 480 Cable Replace operations bldg 825,504 2007 7967.00 1,191,194

01666 12/31/00 Roof  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 303,561 2000 6221.17 560,962

01669 06/30/07 Newark PS Floor Replacement operations bldg 833,804 2007 7967.00 1,203,171

01674 12/31/85 Structural Items operations bldg 183,784 1985 4195.00 503,656

01679 12/31/00 Landscape/Irrigation  Common A operations bldg 198,700 2000 6221.17 367,185

01680 12/31/00 Fuel Island/Tanks  Cov Stor  P operations bldg 270,586 2000 6221.17 500,025

01692 12/31/00 Electrical  Maint Bldg  Proj 2 operations bldg 626,953 2000 6221.17 1,158,567

01693 12/31/00 HVAC  Admin Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 405,591 2000 6221.17 749,505

01696 06/30/05 Expansion of PS Bldg Structure operations bldg 1,557,214 2005 7446.08 2,404,246

01697 06/30/05 Bldg Improvements operations bldg 1,559,490 2005 7446.08 2,407,760

01698 12/31/00 Construction Mgmt and Overhead operations bldg 670,079 2000 6221.17 1,238,261

01703 06/30/06 Paving operations bldg 1,050,610 2006 7751.25 1,558,218

01704 06/30/05 Site Work ‐ Paving, Etc. operations bldg 656,025 2005 7446.08 1,012,864

01707 12/31/93 Roof Replacement operations bldg 149,959 1993 5210.42 330,871

01713 12/31/02 HVAC  Control Bldg Proj 124 operations bldg 489,282 2002 6538.00 860,345

01727 12/31/00 HVAC  Maint Bldg  Proj 28‐48 operations bldg 173,190 2000 6221.17 320,045

01730 12/31/00 Electrical  Admin Bldg  Proj 2 operations bldg 827,212 2000 6221.17 1,528,635

Page 33 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01734 12/31/00 Design  Admin Bldg  proj 28‐48 operations bldg 872,884 2000 6221.17 1,613,033

01739 06/30/06 Foundation ‐ Bldg operations bldg 2,179,057 2006 7751.25 3,231,881

01759 12/31/79 Structural Items operations bldg 314,216 1979 3003.00 1,202,905

01763 12/31/79 Trench Excavation & Backfill operations bldg 330,500 1979 3003.00 1,265,245

01773 12/31/00 Structure  Maint Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 1,312,057 2000 6221.17 2,424,595

01775 12/31/95 Benson Road Improvements operations bldg 321,655 1995 5471.17 675,879

01776 12/31/00 Paving/Grading  Admin Bldg  Pr operations bldg 686,309 2000 6221.17 1,268,254

01790 12/31/79 Roofing operations bldg 385,000 1979 3003.00 1,473,886

01791 12/31/00 Structure  Admin Bldg  Proj 28 operations bldg 4,006,440 2000 6221.17 7,403,640

01793 06/30/96 Capitalized Interest on Constr operations bldg 1,180,877 1996 5622.17 2,414,679

01794 12/31/79 Painting operations bldg 400,000 1979 3003.00 1,531,310

01797 12/31/79 Iron & Structural Steel ‐ Misc operations bldg 550,000 1979 3003.00 2,105,551

01799 06/30/06 Permanent Structure operations bldg 4,952,740 2006 7751.25 7,345,685

01805 12/31/91 Plant Lighting Improvements operations bldg 453,120 1991 4835.08 1,077,377

01835 12/31/79 Major Structure & Ground Prepa operations bldg 999,805 1979 3003.00 3,827,529

01869 12/31/79 Earthwork and Excavation for 1 operations bldg 2,101,100 1979 3003.00 8,043,589

01891 12/31/79 Non Structural Costs ‐ Enginee operations bldg 4,462,744 1979 3003.00 17,084,612

01945 01/01/10 BOILER CAMUS CONTROL BLDG operations bldg 46,377 2010 8798.92 60,594

01955 01/01/10 CS REMOTE STAGING TRAILER @IPS operations bldg 173,603 2010 8798.92 226,823

01956 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 126,071 2010 8798.92 164,720

01957 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 17,038 2010 8798.92 22,261

01958 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTUREQ operations bldg 27,236 2010 8798.92 35,586

01959 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 17,038 2010 8798.92 22,261

01960 01/01/10 PERMANENT STRUCTURE operations bldg 63,796 2010 8798.92 83,353

01961 01/01/10 ELECTRICAL operations bldg 90,218 2010 8798.92 117,875

02046 01/01/11 SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 320,843 2011 9069.83 406,679

02047 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02048 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02049 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 30,379 2011 9069.83 38,506

02050 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02051 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02052 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02053 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02054 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02055 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02056 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02057 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

Page 34 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02058 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02059 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02060 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02061 01/01/11 ELECTRIAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02062 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02063 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02064 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02065 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02066 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02067 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 33,178 2011 9069.83 42,054

02068 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02069 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02070 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02071 01/01/11 ELECTRICAL ‐ SOLAR CARPORT operations bldg 17,785 2011 9069.83 22,543

02091 01/01/11 BUILDING operations bldg 3,402,410 2011 9069.83 4,312,666

02112 01/01/11 FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL operations bldg 76,157 2011 9069.83 96,531

02249 06/30/12 IRV PS CEMENT TREATED BASE operations bldg 335,516 2012 9308.17 414,389

02289 06/30/12 CONTROL BUILDING operations bldg 30,719 2012 9308.17 37,940

02316 01/01/13 PAINTING/COATING operations bldg 212,537 2013 9546.67 255,942

02317 01/01/13 PERMANENTE STRUCTURE operations bldg 560,397 2013 9546.67 674,843

02376 01/01/13 PROGRAM operations bldg 29,950 2013 9546.67 36,066

02561 01/01/14 BOYCE ROAD LIFT STATION STRUCTURE operations bldg 5,559,910 2014 9806.00 6,518,300

02573 01/01/14 SITE PAVEMENT operations bldg 63,744 2014 9806.00 74,732

02583 01/01/14 SECURITY FENCE AND GATES operations bldg 30,314 2014 9806.00 35,539

02631 01/01/14 ROOM 3 operations bldg 147,981 2014 9806.00 173,489

02729 01/01/15 BIRD NETTING operations bldg 37,572 2015 10335.00 41,794

02730 01/01/15 LED LIGHTING ‐COV STORAGE operations bldg 20,115 2015 10335.00 22,375

02768 01/01/16 CONTAINMENT operations bldg 16,979 2016 10385.00 18,795

02769 01/01/16 AREA operations bldg 16,979 2016 10385.00 18,795

02861 06/30/17 490 operations bldg 39,005 2017 10737.00 41,764

02862 06/30/17 PRJ 490 operations bldg 36,711 2017 10737.00 39,307

02926 01/01/18 WALKWAY IMPROVEMENTS ‐ PRJ 448 operations bldg 75,763 2018 11062.00 78,738

02928 01/01/19 TRANSPORT operations equipport 20,855 2019 11268.48 21,277

02929 01/01/19 CCTV EQUIPMENT ‐ TRAKSTAR II CAMERA operations equipport 18,383 2019 11268.48 18,755

02939 01/01/19 RECLAIM PUMP 5 operations equipplnt 15,572 2019 11268.48 15,886

02943 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 1,553,358 2019 11268.48 1,584,764

02944 01/01/19 UNDERGROUND DSN PIPING ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 123,810 2019 11268.48 126,314

Page 35 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02952 01/01/19 THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING ‐ PRJ 394 operations bldg 5,256,176 2019 11268.48 5,362,447

02955 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02956 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 5 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02957 01/01/19 SLUDGE PUMP 6 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 58,455 2019 11268.48 59,636

02958 01/01/19 THICKENER GRINDER 3 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 39,582 2019 11268.48 40,382

02959 01/01/19 PLUG VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 22,746 2019 11268.48 23,206

02960 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02961 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02962 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02963 01/01/19 PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 27,486 2019 11268.48 28,042

02964 01/01/19 THICKENER HOIST ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,429 2019 11268.48 20,842

02965 01/01/19 394 operations bldg 1,027,321 2019 11268.48 1,048,091

02966 01/01/19 MCC 31 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 279,123 2019 11268.48 284,767

02967 01/01/19 PLC 44 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 359,099 2019 11268.48 366,359

02968 01/01/19 HEAT TRACE SYSTEM LCP ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 32,067 2019 11268.48 32,715

02970 01/01/19 ROOFTOP PACKAGED ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 26,000 2019 11268.48 26,526

02971 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 590,981 2019 11268.48 602,929

02972 01/01/19 DIGESTER 2 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,861 2019 11268.48 21,283

02973 01/01/19 DIGESTER 1 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 20,861 2019 11268.48 21,283

02974 01/01/19 MCC 32 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 273,992 2019 11268.48 279,532

02975 01/01/19 PLC 44 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 294,174 2019 11268.48 300,121

02976 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 13,619 2019 11268.48 13,894

02977 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 13,619 2019 11268.48 13,894

02978 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 108,334 2019 11268.48 110,524

02979 01/01/19 394 operations equipplnt 288,374 2019 11268.48 294,205

02980 01/01/19 DIGESTER 4 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 23,647 2019 11268.48 24,125

02981 01/01/19 PLC 20 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 194,167 2019 11268.48 198,093

02982 01/01/19 DIGESTER 5 TPS FEED VALVE ‐ PRJ 493 operations equipplnt 23,647 2019 11268.48 24,125

02983 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 109,456 2019 11268.48 111,669

02984 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 109,456 2019 11268.48 111,669

02985 01/01/19 SCUM LINE OUTLET VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 14,361 2019 11268.48 14,651

02986 01/01/19 CHECK VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 29,794 2019 11268.48 30,396

02987 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 3 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 118,864 2019 11268.48 121,267

02988 01/01/19 SCUM PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 118,864 2019 11268.48 121,267

02989 01/01/19 SCUM LINE OUTLET VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 14,361 2019 11268.48 14,651

02990 01/01/19 PLUG VALVE ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 72,350 2019 11268.48 73,813

02991 01/01/19 THICKENER GRINDER 4 ‐ PRJ 394 operations equipplnt 39,582 2019 11268.48 40,382

Page 36 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

03012 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03013 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03014 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 3 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03015 01/01/19 OCB HYPO TANK 4 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 243,462 2019 11268.48 248,384

03016 01/01/19 PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03017 01/01/19 PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03018 01/01/19 PUMP 3 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03019 01/01/19 PUMP 4 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 202,592 2019 11268.48 206,688

03020 01/01/19 463 operations equipplnt 23,421 2019 11268.48 23,895

03021 01/01/19 PUMP 1 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 337,692 2019 11268.48 344,520

03022 01/01/19 PUMP 2 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 337,692 2019 11268.48 344,520

03023 01/01/19 PLC‐48 ‐ PRJ 463 operations equipplnt 58,552 2019 11268.48 59,736

Operations Total 78,877,183 137,969,393

00036 06/30/09 Supply Fan trmtplant tmntplant 18,524 2009 8570.08 24,850

00042 06/30/09 Blower 10 Blow Off Valve trmtplant tmntplant 20,301 2009 8570.08 27,233

00050 06/30/09 Aeration Basin 6 Zone2&3 Isola trmtplant tmntplant 22,077 2009 8570.08 29,615

00051 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone1 Isolatio trmtplant tmntplant 22,077 2009 8570.08 29,615

00052 06/30/09 Auto Strainer Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00053 06/30/09 Auto Strainer Wash Water 2" Va trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00054 06/30/09 Auto StrainerWashWater2"V Actu trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00055 06/30/09 Manual Strainer trmtplant tmntplant 11,458 2009 8570.08 15,370

00064 06/30/09 Pressure Sensor & Transducer trmtplant tmntplant 13,195 2009 8570.08 17,700

00066 06/30/09 SD #1 PDS Isolation Valve trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00067 06/30/09 SD #1 Sludge Recirculation 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00068 06/30/09 SD #2 Gas Isolation 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00069 06/30/09 SD #2 Gas Isolation 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00070 06/30/09 SD #2 Multiport PRV Isolat Val trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00071 06/30/09 SD #2 PRV #1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00072 06/30/09 SD #2 PRV #2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00073 06/30/09 SD #2 Sludge Redirection 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00074 06/30/09 SD #2 Thermal Shutoff Valve trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00076 06/30/09 Secondary/Digester #2 Crossove trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00077 06/30/09 SecondaryDigest #2 Sludge Feed trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00078 06/30/09 SecondaryDigester #2 Recircula trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00079 06/30/09 SecondayDigester #2 Gas Isolat trmtplant tmntplant 13,492 2009 8570.08 18,099

00101 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin5 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

Page 37 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00102 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin6 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

00103 06/30/09 DO Probe Aeration Basin7 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,987 2009 8570.08 21,446

00105 06/30/09 Manual Strainer Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 16,228 2009 8570.08 21,769

00107 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00108 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00109 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00110 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00111 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00112 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone2 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00113 06/30/09 Aeration Basin7 Zone3 Control trmtplant tmntplant 33,496 2009 8570.08 44,933

00121 06/30/09 4" PDS Return Line Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00122 06/30/09 6" SD By Pass Valve #1` trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00123 06/30/09 6" SD By Pass Valve #2 trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00124 06/30/09 Gas Meter ByPass trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00125 06/30/09 Gas Meter Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00126 06/30/09 Gas Meter Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00128 06/30/09 SD #1 Crossover Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00131 06/30/09 SD #1 Overflow Box trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00132 06/30/09 SD #1 Side Hatch Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00135 06/30/09 SD #2 Overflow Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00136 06/30/09 SD #2 Side hatch Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00137 06/30/09 SD#1 Bottom Suction Isola Valv trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00138 06/30/09 SD#1 Side Suction Isola Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00139 06/30/09 SD#2 BottomSuction Isolat Valv trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00140 06/30/09 SD#2 Side Suction Isola Valve trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00141 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Check trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00142 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00143 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00144 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Check trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00145 06/30/09 Sds Circulation Pump #2 Inlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00146 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Outlet trmtplant tmntplant 17,633 2009 8570.08 23,654

00163 06/30/09 Blower 10 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 39,840 2009 8570.08 53,443

00174 06/30/09 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 57,463 2009 8570.08 77,084

00176 06/30/09 Auto Strainer LCP trmtplant tmntplant 29,917 2009 8570.08 40,133

00179 06/30/09 Aeration Basin1 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00180 06/30/09 Aeration Basin2 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00181 06/30/09 Aeration Basin3 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

Page 38 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00182 06/30/09 Aeration Basin4 Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00183 06/30/09 Aeration Basin5 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00184 06/30/09 Aeration Basin6 Zone1 Control trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00185 06/30/09 Basin 1 Air Conrol Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00186 06/30/09 Basin 2 Air Conrol Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00187 06/30/09 Basin 3 Air Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00188 06/30/09 Basin 4 Air Control Valve trmtplant tmntplant 45,169 2009 8570.08 60,592

00216 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00217 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00218 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00219 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00220 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00221 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,660 2009 8570.08 37,105

00223 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 2 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00224 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00225 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00226 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00227 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00228 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00229 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Zone1 trmtplant tmntplant 27,914 2009 8570.08 37,445

00231 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00232 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #1 Motor trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00233 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00234 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Pump #2 Motor trmtplant tmntplant 37,410 2009 8570.08 50,184

00235 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin5 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00236 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin6 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00237 06/30/09 Air Flow Meter Basin7 Chan Air trmtplant tmntplant 28,167 2009 8570.08 37,784

00260 06/30/09 RAS Valve Control Panel Clari4 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2009 8570.08 22,917

00270 06/30/09 Scrubber 6 Gas Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00271 06/30/09 SD #1 Level Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00272 06/30/09 SD #2 Level Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00273 06/30/09 SDS Circulation Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 30,462 2009 8570.08 40,864

00277 06/30/08 West Mixing Sludge Fee Actuato trmtplant tmntplant 10,396 2008 8309.92 14,382

00278 06/30/08 West Mixing Sludge Feed Actuat trmtplant tmntplant 10,396 2008 8309.92 14,382

00293 06/30/09 Existing 480 VAC trmtplant tmntplant 66,485 2009 8570.08 89,186

00371 06/30/09 4160VAC Blower Starter Sec6 trmtplant tmntplant 95,668 2009 8570.08 128,333

00404 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 1 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

Page 39 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00405 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 2 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

00406 06/30/09 Polymer Mixer 3 trmtplant tmntplant 61,916 2009 8570.08 83,058

00425 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Temp Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00426 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Temp Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00427 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Water ByPass Cont Valv trmtplant tmntplant 11,321 2007 7967.00 16,337

00451 06/30/06 Plumbing trmtplant tmntplant 23,802 2006 7751.25 35,303

00454 06/30/07 Hot Water Circ Pump 6 trmtplant tmntplant 12,523 2007 7967.00 18,071

00455 06/30/07 Hot Water Circ Pump 7 trmtplant tmntplant 12,523 2007 7967.00 18,071

00463 06/30/09 Polymer Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 97,484 2009 8570.08 130,770

00464 06/30/09 Polymer Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 97,484 2009 8570.08 130,770

00465 06/30/06 Milliken Bottom Inlet Valves trmtplant tmntplant 15,326 2006 7751.25 22,731

00466 06/30/06 Milliken Tip Inlet Valves trmtplant tmntplant 15,326 2006 7751.25 22,731

00477 06/30/07 Digester 6A Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00478 06/30/07 Digester 6A Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00479 06/30/07 Digester 6B Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00480 06/30/07 Digester 6B Mix Pump Valve trmtplant tmntplant 12,955 2007 7967.00 18,694

00483 06/30/09 Auto Strainer trmtplant tmntplant 64,926 2009 8570.08 87,095

00484 06/30/09 Auto Strainer #1 trmtplant tmntplant 64,926 2009 8570.08 87,095

00514 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 4 Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 12,137 2007 7967.00 17,513

00553 06/30/05 Site Waste PS Ret Knife Gate V trmtplant tmntplant 11,170 2005 7446.08 17,246

00554 06/30/06 Basin 5 Main Air West Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 10,798 2006 7751.25 16,015

00555 06/30/06 Basin 6 Main Air East Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 10,798 2006 7751.25 16,015

00573 06/30/07 Electrical trmtplant tmntplant 20,728 2007 7967.00 29,910

00576 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 3 Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 13,595 2007 7967.00 19,617

00585 06/30/07 Temp Ctrl Valve 1 trmtplant tmntplant 15,890 2007 7967.00 22,930

00586 06/30/07 Temp Ctrl Valve 2 trmtplant tmntplant 15,890 2007 7967.00 22,930

00588 06/30/09 DO Zone1 Control Panel trmtplant tmntplant 79,935 2009 8570.08 107,228

00600 06/30/06 RAS Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00601 06/30/06 RAS Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00602 06/30/06 RAS Pump 3 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00603 06/30/06 RAS Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00604 06/30/06 RAS Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 11,780 2006 7751.25 17,471

00634 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00635 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00636 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00637 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Polymer Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00638 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 1 Recirc Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

Page 40 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00639 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 2 Recirc Pump trmtplant tmntplant 16,395 2006 7751.25 24,317

00654 06/30/06 Centrifuge Bldg Compressor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 16,647 2006 7751.25 24,690

00655 06/30/06 Centrifuge Bldg Compressor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 16,647 2006 7751.25 24,690

00657 06/30/07 Temp Cntrl Valve 3 trmtplant tmntplant 17,522 2007 7967.00 25,285

00686 06/30/07 Ext Ctrl Panel for Sludge Valv trmtplant tmntplant 12,309 2007 7967.00 17,762

00687 06/30/05 Sludge Transfer Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,695 2005 7446.08 21,144

00688 06/30/05 Sludge Transfer Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,695 2005 7446.08 21,144

00691 06/30/09 PLC/VFD/SCADA trmtplant tmntplant 124,261 2009 8570.08 166,689

00701 06/30/09 RIO 12 trmtplant tmntplant 95,668 2009 8570.08 128,333

00707 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00708 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00709 06/30/07 Meter Vault 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00710 06/30/07 Supermatant Box 6" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 19,650 2007 7967.00 28,355

00712 06/30/07 Actuator Grit Pit Weir Gate trmtplant tmntplant 13,190 2007 7967.00 19,033

00714 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 6 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00715 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 7 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00716 02/01/07 Internalift Pump 8 Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 13,299 2007 7967.00 19,190

00728 06/30/07 Digester 6 Hot Water Ctrl Valv trmtplant tmntplant 20,728 2007 7967.00 29,910

00735 06/01/07 Reclaimed Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,935 2007 7967.00 20,108

00750 06/30/07 Sec Clarifier 2 Flow Meter trmtplant tmntplant 14,067 2007 7967.00 20,299

00752 06/30/09 RAS Flowmeter Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2009 8570.08 85,549

00753 06/30/09 RAS Isolation Valve SecClarf 4 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2009 8570.08 85,549

00768 06/30/06 Loading Control Panel trmtplant tmntplant 20,775 2006 7751.25 30,813

00782 12/31/02 Main Breaker  Generator #4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,801 2002 6538.00 20,751

00784 06/30/02 Cogen Dollinger Gas Particle F trmtplant tmntplant 10,260 2002 6538.00 18,041

00785 12/31/01 Cogen Dollinger Gas Particle F trmtplant tmntplant 10,260 2001 6342.08 18,598

00790 06/30/05 Alv Div Structure Sluice Gate trmtplant tmntplant 17,500 2005 7446.08 27,019

00791 06/30/06 Electrical Panel Explosion Pro trmtplant tmntplant 18,844 2006 7751.25 27,949

00796 06/30/07 Sec Clarifier 2 Ctrl Valve trmtplant tmntplant 15,826 2007 7967.00 22,836

00800 12/31/01 Generator #1 Breaker Panel Pro trmtplant tmntplant 10,609 2001 6342.08 19,231

00803 06/30/07 Digester 6 Hot Water Ctrl Valv trmtplant tmntplant 24,183 2007 7967.00 34,896

00804 06/30/05 Primary 5‐6 Dewatering Pump trmtplant tmntplant 13,457 2005 7446.08 20,777

00818 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00819 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00820 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00821 06/30/06 Rotork Valve Operator trmtplant tmntplant 11,778 2006 7751.25 17,468

00824 06/30/07 Thickener Ctrl Bldg Hatches trmtplant tmntplant 21,596 2007 7967.00 31,163

Page 41 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

00827 04/01/07 Effluent Screen Gear Box trmtplant tmntplant 16,866 2007 7967.00 24,338

00837 06/01/07 EBDA 60" Valve Actuator trmtplant tmntplant 17,514 2007 7967.00 25,272

00848 06/30/07 Hex 5 6" Dischg Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00849 06/30/07 Hex 5 6" Suction Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00850 06/30/07 Temp Control Valve 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00851 06/30/07 Temp Control Valve 5 trmtplant tmntplant 27,565 2007 7967.00 39,776

00854 06/30/07 Grit Pit Weir Gate trmtplant tmntplant 18,517 2007 7967.00 26,720

00855 06/30/06 #4 Internalift Pump trmtplant tmntplant 26,528 2006 7751.25 39,345

00858 06/30/06 #3 Reclaim Pump trmtplant tmntplant 13,309 2006 7751.25 19,739

00881 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 29,475 2007 7967.00 42,532

00882 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 5 trmtplant tmntplant 29,475 2007 7967.00 42,532

00885 06/30/05 Headworks Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 11,000 2005 7446.08 16,983

00886 06/30/05 Thickener Cntl Bldg Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 11,000 2005 7446.08 16,983

00887 06/30/07 Air Comp Sludge Valve Act trmtplant tmntplant 19,995 2007 7967.00 28,853

00893 06/30/05 Effluent Makeup Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 23,000 2005 7446.08 35,511

00894 06/30/05 Effluent Makeup Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 23,000 2005 7446.08 35,511

00899 12/31/01 Breaker ‐ #2 Generator trmtplant tmntplant 13,863 2001 6342.08 25,129

00900 12/31/01 Breaker ‐ #3 Generator trmtplant tmntplant 13,863 2001 6342.08 25,129

00901 03/23/05 Reclaimed Pump 4 trmtplant tmntplant 11,647 2005 7446.08 17,982

00903 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 42,054 2007 7967.00 60,683

00920 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 43,337 2007 7967.00 62,536

00923 12/31/01 Day Tank  Generators 2 3 trmtplant tmntplant 10,900 2001 6342.08 19,758

00929 12/31/01 Cogen Train Air Cooled Water C trmtplant tmntplant 15,012 2001 6342.08 27,212

00930 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Emulsion Polym trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00931 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Manich Polymer trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00932 06/30/06 Blending Unit 1 Water Booster trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00933 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Emulsion Polym trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00934 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Manich Polymer trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00935 06/30/06 Blending Unit 2 Water Booster trmtplant tmntplant 32,216 2006 7751.25 47,782

00938 12/31/01 Cogen Heat Exchanger Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 11,414 2001 6342.08 20,689

00945 06/30/06 Polymer Room Sump trmtplant tmntplant 33,608 2006 7751.25 49,846

00946 09/30/03 Grinder, 2 Channel Monster trmtplant tmntplant 16,083 2003 6694.58 27,618

00947 09/30/03 Grinder, 2 Channel Monster trmtplant tmntplant 16,083 2003 6694.58 27,618

00983 06/30/09 RAS Control Valve Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 115,516 2009 8570.08 154,958

00985 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 39,004 2007 7967.00 56,282

00986 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 39,004 2007 7967.00 56,282

01002 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 1 Mixer trmtplant tmntplant 38,458 2006 7751.25 57,040

Page 42 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01003 06/30/06 Polymer Tank 2 Mixer trmtplant tmntplant 38,458 2006 7751.25 57,040

01005 06/30/05 Dig 3 Mixing Pump trmtplant tmntplant 30,296 2005 7446.08 46,775

01011 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Hot Water Circ Pump trmtplant tmntplant 41,040 2007 7967.00 59,221

01012 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Hot Water Circ Pump trmtplant tmntplant 41,040 2007 7967.00 59,221

01022 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 112,083 2007 7967.00 161,734

01033 06/30/07 Hydraulic Pwr Unit for Headgat trmtplant tmntplant 57,145 2007 7967.00 82,460

01035 06/30/06 Fuel Air Ration Controller trmtplant tmntplant 20,812 2006 7751.25 30,868

01036 06/30/06 Fuel Air Ration Controller trmtplant tmntplant 20,812 2006 7751.25 30,868

01045 06/30/05 Sludge Pump Rm 1 Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 16,500 2005 7446.08 25,475

01046 06/30/05 Sludge PUmp Rm 3 Gas LACP trmtplant tmntplant 16,500 2005 7446.08 25,475

01049 12/31/01 Compressor and Tank  Generator trmtplant tmntplant 15,114 2001 6342.08 27,398

01053 10/05/01 Breaker  Main Tie trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01054 12/31/01 Breaker  A Buss Main trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01055 12/31/01 Breaker  B Buss Main trmtplant tmntplant 20,493 2001 6342.08 37,147

01077 06/30/09 Blower 10 trmtplant tmntplant 547,866 2009 8570.08 734,933

01092 06/30/07 Digester Mix Pump 6A trmtplant tmntplant 51,820 2007 7967.00 74,776

01093 06/30/07 Digester Mix Pump 6b trmtplant tmntplant 51,820 2007 7967.00 74,776

01096 06/30/07 Trench B Undgnd Chem Pipe trmtplant tmntplant 173,138 2007 7967.00 249,836

01118 12/31/01 Cogen Gas Booster Blowers Proj trmtplant tmntplant 24,260 2001 6342.08 43,976

01119 12/31/01 Cogen Gas Booster Blowers Proj trmtplant tmntplant 24,260 2001 6342.08 43,976

01121 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 18 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01122 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 1 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01123 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 10 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01124 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 11 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01125 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 12 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01126 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 13 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01127 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 14 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01128 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 15 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01129 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 16 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01130 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 17 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01131 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 2 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01132 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 3 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01133 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 4 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01134 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 5 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01135 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 6 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01136 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 7 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01137 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 8 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

Page 43 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01138 06/30/05 Odor Scrubber 9 Upgrade trmtplant tmntplant 41,015 2005 7446.08 63,324

01143 06/30/07 Hot Water Pump 3 trmtplant tmntplant 56,072 2007 7967.00 80,911

01154 06/30/07 Boiler Expansion Tank trmtplant tmntplant 58,730 2007 7967.00 84,746

01160 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01161 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01162 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01163 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Sludge Feed Pump trmtplant tmntplant 57,446 2006 7751.25 85,201

01164 06/30/07 Cogen 1 Heat Exchanger trmtplant tmntplant 80,665 2007 7967.00 116,400

01165 06/30/07 Cogen 4 Heat Exchanger trmtplant tmntplant 80,665 2007 7967.00 116,400

01166 06/30/06 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 115,276 2006 7751.25 170,973

01188 06/30/06 Sludge Grinder 1 trmtplant tmntplant 62,226 2006 7751.25 92,291

01189 06/30/06 Sludge Grinder 2 trmtplant tmntplant 62,226 2006 7751.25 92,291

01203 06/30/07 Digester 4/5 20" Crsvr Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01204 06/30/07 Digester 4/5 24"  Crsovr Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01205 06/30/07 Digester 5 20"  Plug Valve Low trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01206 06/30/07 Digester 5 20"  Plug Valve Upp trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01207 06/30/07 Digester 5 24" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01208 06/30/07 Digester 5 24" Plug Valve trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01209 06/30/07 digester 5 Mix Pump trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01210 06/30/07 digester 5 Mix Pump trmtplant tmntplant 68,912 2007 7967.00 99,439

01212 06/30/07 Hot Water Boiler 6 Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 69,526 2007 7967.00 100,325

01214 12/31/96 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,946 1996 5622.17 28,517

01241 12/31/01 Cogen Activated Carbon Tank Pr trmtplant tmntplant 33,040 2001 6342.08 59,892

01242 12/31/01 Cogen Activated Carbon Tank Pr trmtplant tmntplant 33,040 2001 6342.08 59,892

01246 06/30/07 Vactor Pit trmtplant tmntplant 100,723 2007 7967.00 145,342

01300 06/30/07 Main Hot Water Circ Pump 2 trmtplant tmntplant 88,094 2007 7967.00 127,120

01305 08/31/03 Valves, ARV Isolation on Force trmtplant tmntplant 27,461 2003 6694.58 47,157

01314 06/30/06 Wemco Hydorstal Pump trmtplant tmntplant 111,173 2006 7751.25 164,886

01320 06/30/07 Hot Water Boiler 6 Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 95,436 2007 7967.00 137,713

01325 10/14/03 Pump, Internalift #3 trmtplant tmntplant 29,120 2003 6694.58 50,007

01326 10/14/03 Pumps, Internalift #1 trmtplant tmntplant 29,120 2003 6694.58 50,007

01329 06/30/07 Main Hot Water Circ Pump 1 trmtplant tmntplant 96,731 2007 7967.00 139,582

01338 06/30/04 Mixing Pump, Sludge trmtplant tmntplant 60,000 2004 7115.08 96,946

01352 06/30/06 #3 GBT trmtplant tmntplant 48,816 2006 7751.25 72,402

01353 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 274,647 2007 7967.00 396,314

01357 12/31/00 Soil Scrubber & W Reclamation trmtplant tmntplant 61,403 2000 6221.17 113,469

01361 09/30/03 #1 GBT Overhaul trmtplant tmntplant 32,223 2003 6694.58 55,335

Page 44 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01365 06/30/06 Blended Polymer Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 102,647 2006 7751.25 152,242

01366 06/30/06 Blended Polymer Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 102,647 2006 7751.25 152,242

01371 06/30/07 Digester 5 Mixing Pump trmtplant tmntplant 111,351 2007 7967.00 160,678

01375 12/31/92 Pump Div 85 (part of plant) trmtplant tmntplant 18,845 1992 4984.83 43,461

01394 12/31/97 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 26,603 1997 5825.08 52,503

01400 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01401 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01402 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01403 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 Clsfy Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01404 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Distrib Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01405 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Loading Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01406 06/30/06 Hopper 1 Loading Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01407 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Distrib Conveyor trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01408 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Loading Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01409 06/30/06 Hopper 2 Loading Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01410 06/30/06 Horizontal Collec Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01411 06/30/06 Horizontal Collec Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01412 06/30/06 Inclined Collec Conveyor 1 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01413 06/30/06 Inclined Collec Conveyor 2 trmtplant tmntplant 119,175 2006 7751.25 176,755

01424 12/31/84 Concrete/Rebar Excavation Prep trmtplant tmntplant 35,192 1984 4146.00 97,583

01436 06/30/05 MMC 5 trmtplant tmntplant 125,000 2005 7446.08 192,993

01453 06/30/05 Effluent Screen Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 135,891 2005 7446.08 209,807

01454 06/30/05 Effluent Screen Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 135,891 2005 7446.08 209,807

01458 12/31/83 FECL Storage Tank Add 1983 Pro trmtplant tmntplant 25,000 1983 4066.00 70,686

01460 12/31/91 Gas Compressor Room Vent trmtplant tmntplant 25,503 1991 4835.08 60,638

01478 06/30/07 Piping trmtplant tmntplant 447,041 2007 7967.00 645,076

01494 12/31/89 Alvarado Plant Improvements FY trmtplant tmntplant 31,842 1989 4615.00 79,321

01513 06/30/06 Aeration Bsn 1 Diffusers trmtplant tmntplant 50,244 2006 7751.25 74,519

01525 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 1 trmtplant tmntplant 304,489 2007 7967.00 439,375

01527 06/30/07 Thickener Tank 2 trmtplant tmntplant 312,694 2007 7967.00 451,214

01541 06/30/05 Aeration Bsn Diffuser Tank 4 trmtplant tmntplant 59,493 2005 7446.08 91,853

01550 12/31/01 Generator #4 Rebuilt Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 61,221 2001 6342.08 110,975

01552 12/31/94 Hetch Hetchy (Phase 1) trmtplant tmntplant 48,643 1994 5407.58 103,413

01554 12/31/91 Hoist Installations trmtplant tmntplant 48,020 1991 4835.08 114,176

01556 12/31/00 Underground Diesel Tank Improv trmtplant tmntplant 173,950 2000 6221.17 321,448

01558 06/30/06 Odor Scrubber trmtplant tmntplant 364,224 2006 7751.25 540,201

01569 06/30/09 Drive & Mech Sec Clarif 4 trmtplant tmntplant 985,640 2009 8570.08 1,322,184

Page 45 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01575 12/31/89 Treatment Plant Improvements F trmtplant tmntplant 56,228 1989 4615.00 140,068

01584 12/31/79 PUMPS trmtplant tmntplant 60,000 1979 3003.00 229,697

01596 06/30/06 Centrifuge 1 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01597 06/30/06 Centrifuge 2 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01598 06/30/06 Centrifuge 3 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01599 06/30/06 Centrifuge 4 trmtplant tmntplant 374,017 2006 7751.25 554,726

01620 06/30/06 Process Piping trmtplant tmntplant 867,119 2006 7751.25 1,286,072

01632 12/31/95 Secondary Containment: S Hypo trmtplant tmntplant 91,800 1995 5471.17 192,895

01638 12/31/99 WW Equalization Storage Sewer trmtplant tmntplant 278,472 1999 6059.50 528,327

01641 06/30/06 Centrifuge PLC trmtplant tmntplant 515,102 2006 7751.25 763,977

01675 12/31/92 Cathodic Protection System trmtplant tmntplant 109,169 1992 4984.83 251,772

01688 12/31/02 Hot Water Piping for Plant Pro trmtplant tmntplant 764,823 2002 6538.00 1,344,852

01695 12/31/84 Electrical Eng Generator Proj trmtplant tmntplant 140,000 1984 4146.00 388,201

01708 06/30/07 sec Clarifier 2 Tank trmtplant tmntplant 1,210,783 2007 7967.00 1,747,149

01710 12/31/93 Inka Rehab C.M. & Cons. trmtplant tmntplant 152,215 1993 5210.42 335,849

01712 12/31/01 Generator #1 Proj 142 trmtplant tmntplant 419,645 2001 6342.08 760,692

01718 12/31/84 Underground Piping Eng Generat trmtplant tmntplant 265,115 1984 4146.00 735,129

01736 06/30/05 Proj 169 Digester 1 & 3 Rehab trmtplant tmntplant 625,621 2005 7446.08 965,922

01743 12/31/89 Plant Improve FYE 063090 Cost trmtplant tmntplant 204,236 1989 4615.00 508,767

01744 12/31/84 Non Structural Costs  Engr.  E trmtplant tmntplant 199,542 1984 4146.00 553,304

01746 12/31/95 Reclaimed Water Pipeline trmtplant tmntplant 225,625 1995 5471.17 474,095

01749 06/30/04 Proj 164 Digester 2 Dome Repai trmtplant tmntplant 744,871 2004 7115.08 1,203,538

01756 12/31/79 Tanks ‐ Digester Insulation Co trmtplant tmntplant 300,000 1979 3003.00 1,148,483

01764 12/31/90 Hoist Installations FYE 6/30/9 trmtplant tmntplant 249,726 1990 4731.92 606,716

01766 12/31/90 Plant Improvments FYE 06/30/91 trmtplant tmntplant 280,107 1990 4731.92 680,527

01771 12/31/01 Cogen Proj 142 Mgmt & Overhead trmtplant tmntplant 721,163 2001 6342.08 1,307,255

01779 12/31/98 Generator #4 PROJ 28‐72 trmtplant tmntplant 449,856 1998 5920.42 873,534

01781 12/31/95 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐2 trmtplant tmntplant 361,837 1995 5471.17 760,311

01783 12/31/00 Alvarado WWTF Upgrade 28‐053 trmtplant tmntplant 1,411,093 2000 6221.17 2,607,607

01786 12/31/62 Plant 1962 Proj Chlorine Conta trmtplant tmntplant 355,000 1962 872.00 4,680,264

01811 12/31/90 Gravity Belt Thicken Joint Sea trmtplant tmntplant 764,209 1990 4731.92 1,856,665

01813 06/30/05 Proj 135 Plant Mech Inprovemen trmtplant tmntplant 2,136,284 2005 7446.08 3,298,296

01821 12/31/84 Cogeneration Equipment Eng Gen trmtplant tmntplant 530,000 1984 4146.00 1,469,620

01828 12/31/97 Reclaimed Water Demo trmtplant tmntplant 782,870 1997 5825.08 1,545,062

01829 06/30/05 Proj 135 Plant Mech Inprovemen trmtplant tmntplant 2,658,207 2005 7446.08 4,104,113

01847 12/31/96 Alvarado Wastewater Treatment trmtplant tmntplant 1,106,618 1996 5622.17 2,262,833

01850 12/31/90 Plant Capacity ImprovementsFYE trmtplant tmntplant 1,104,592 1990 4731.92 2,683,634

Page 46 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

01851 12/31/79 Piping‐‐All Types 50 Yr Life trmtplant tmntplant 1,401,850 1979 3003.00 5,366,667

01863 12/31/89 Engine Generator ‐ Standby trmtplant tmntplant 1,410,757 1989 4615.00 3,514,301

01868 12/31/95 Hayward Marsh Improvements B‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,714,082 1995 5471.17 3,601,721

01875 12/31/01 Alvarado Pump Addition & Autom trmtplant tmntplant 4,611,139 2001 6342.08 8,358,624

01886 12/31/88 Treatment Plant Expansion FYE trmtplant tmntplant 4,778,806 1988 4519.00 12,157,255

01890 12/31/92 Improvements ‐ Interim FY93 trmtplant tmntplant 3,269,040 1992 4984.83 7,539,249

01900 12/31/95 Alvarado Wastewater Treatment trmtplant tmntplant 38,728,054 1995 5471.17 81,377,472

01909 01/01/10 POLYMER BLENDING UNIT 2 trmtplant tmntplant 44,628 2010 8798.92 58,309

01910 01/01/10 ACTUATOR, E INLET SLIDE GATE trmtplant tmntplant 11,953 2010 8798.92 15,618

01919 01/01/10 SPARE BEARING ASSEMBLY trmtplant tmntplant 17,944 2010 8798.92 23,445

01941 01/01/10 PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 54,713 2010 8798.92 71,486

01942 01/01/10 PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 51,703 2010 8798.92 67,553

01943 01/01/10 DEGRITTER BUILDING trmtplant tmntplant 138,574 2010 8798.92 181,056

01963 01/01/10 MIX PUMP NO. 2 trmtplant tmntplant 201,285 2010 8798.92 262,991

01964 01/01/10 MIX PUMP NO 2 MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 78,772 2010 8798.92 102,920

01965 01/01/10 DIGESTER NO 2 RECIRCULATION PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 55,805 2010 8798.92 72,913

01966 01/01/10 MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 30,631 2010 8798.92 40,021

01967 01/01/10 VALV trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01968 01/01/10 VALV) trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01969 01/01/10 INLET trmtplant tmntplant 22,419 2010 8798.92 29,292

01970 01/01/10 WEST VIEWPORT BUTTERFLY VALVE trmtplant tmntplant 15,531 2010 8798.92 20,293

01971 01/01/10 EAST VIEWPORT BUTTERFLY VALVE trmtplant tmntplant 15,531 2010 8798.92 20,293

01974 01/01/10 EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 18,233 2010 8798.92 23,822

01975 01/01/10 EXHAUST FAN MOTOR trmtplant tmntplant 17,152 2010 8798.92 22,410

01978 01/01/10 RAS FLOWMETER SEC CLARIF3 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01979 01/01/10 RAS CONTROLVALVE SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 115,516 2010 8798.92 150,928

01980 01/01/10 RAS ISOLATION VALVE SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01981 01/01/10 RAS VALVE CONTROL PANEL SEC CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2010 8798.92 22,321

01982 01/01/10 DRIVE AND MECH SED CLARIF 3 trmtplant tmntplant 985,640 2010 8798.92 1,287,797

01983 01/01/10 RAS FLOWMETER SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01984 01/01/10 RAS CONTROL VALVE SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 114,995 2010 8798.92 150,247

01985 01/01/10 RAS ISOLATION VALVE SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 63,774 2010 8798.92 83,324

01986 01/01/10 RAS VALVE CONTROL PANEL SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 17,084 2010 8798.92 22,321

01987 01/01/10 DRIVE AN MECH SEC CLARIF 1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,286,504 2010 8798.92 1,680,894

02010 01/01/11 GENERATOR 7 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 13,557 2011 9069.83 17,184

02011 01/01/11 GBT CAKE TOTAL SOLIDS METER trmtplant tmntplant 24,365 2011 9069.83 30,883

02022 01/01/11 WEST SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 49,024 2011 9069.83 62,139

Page 47 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02023 01/01/11 EAST SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 49,024 2011 9069.83 62,139

02031 01/01/11 ODOR DISPERSION WALL trmtplant tmntplant 720,789 2011 9069.83 913,624

02038 01/01/11 STACK 14 MODIFICATION trmtplant tmntplant 20,012 2011 9069.83 25,366

02042 01/01/11 STACK 18 MODIFICATION trmtplant tmntplant 20,012 2011 9069.83 25,366

02088 01/01/11 CLARIFIER 5 COATING trmtplant tmntplant 22,232 2011 9069.83 28,179

02089 01/01/11 CLARIFIER 6 COATING trmtplant tmntplant 22,232 2011 9069.83 28,179

02223 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 5 trmtplant tmntplant 295,866 2011 9069.83 375,020

02224 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 6 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02225 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02226 01/01/11 LIFT PUMP 8 trmtplant tmntplant 295,854 2011 9069.83 375,004

02250 06/30/12 PRIMARY DIGESTER #1 DOME COATING trmtplant tmntplant 124,021 2012 9308.17 153,176

02276 06/30/12 MCC‐3 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 15,231 2012 9308.17 18,812

02287 06/30/12 DP‐1 MAIN PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 84,741 2012 9308.17 104,662

02288 06/30/12 DP‐1 PULL BOX trmtplant tmntplant 18,410 2012 9308.17 22,738

02319 01/01/13 GRIT HOPPER trmtplant tmntplant 122,547 2013 9546.67 147,574

02322 01/01/13 PRIMARY DIGESTER #4 DOME COATING trmtplant tmntplant 176,245 2013 9546.67 212,238

02323 01/01/13 SWGR‐1 ENCLOSURE trmtplant tmntplant 602,939 2013 9546.67 726,073

02324 01/01/13 480V SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 544,637 2013 9546.67 655,864

02325 01/01/13 208/120V LIGHTING PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02326 01/01/13 "B" BUSS TVSS DISPLAY & UPS‐SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02327 01/01/13 BUSS trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02328 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02329 01/01/13 TR‐LP‐1 FEEDER BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02330 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02331 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02332 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02333 01/01/13 SWB‐5 FEEDER BREAKER ‐ ALVARADO PS trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02334 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02335 01/01/13 GENERATOR trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02336 01/01/13 4 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02337 01/01/13 ROOM 1 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02338 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02339 01/01/13 1&3 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02340 01/01/13 PLC‐SWGR‐1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02341 01/01/13 TIE BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02342 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02343 01/01/13 CONTROL trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

Page 48 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02344 01/01/13 1‐4 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02345 01/01/13 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02346 01/01/13 WATER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02347 01/01/13 5&6 trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02348 01/01/13 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02349 01/01/13 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 46,145 2013 9546.67 55,569

02350 01/01/13 SPARE trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02351 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02352 01/01/13 SPARE trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02353 01/01/13 SWBD‐3 BACK‐UP FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02354 01/01/13 AUXILIARY trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02355 01/01/13 "A" BUSS TVSS DISPLAY & CISCO SWITCH trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02356 01/01/13 MAIN BREAKER ‐ MAIN FEEDER TO BUSS trmtplant tmntplant 22,806 2013 9546.67 27,463

02357 01/01/13 12KVTO 480V TRANSFORMER (TR‐1A) trmtplant tmntplant 162,531 2013 9546.67 195,723

02358 01/01/13 12KW TO 480V TRANSFORMER (TR‐1B) trmtplant tmntplant 160,260 2013 9546.67 192,989

02359 01/01/13 SWGR‐1 HVAC UNIT trmtplant tmntplant 44,503 2013 9546.67 53,591

02415 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLRIFIER TANK #1 trmtplant tmntplant 1,931,480 2014 9806.00 2,264,419

02416 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #2 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02417 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #3 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02418 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIER #4 trmtplant tmntplant 1,930,248 2014 9806.00 2,262,975

02419 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02420 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02421 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02422 01/01/14 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 397,093 2014 9806.00 465,542

02423 01/01/14 SCUM MIXER PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 98,591 2014 9806.00 115,586

02424 01/01/14 REMOTE INPUT/OUTPUT #9 trmtplant tmntplant 63,264 2014 9806.00 74,170

02425 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIERS #1‐4 SUPPLY FAN #1 trmtplant tmntplant 25,295 2014 9806.00 29,655

02426 01/01/14 PRIMARY CLARIFIERS #1‐4 SUPPLY FAN #2 trmtplant tmntplant 25,295 2014 9806.00 29,655

02427 01/01/14 MONTIORING trmtplant tmntplant 21,088 2014 9806.00 24,723

02428 01/01/14 MINI POWER CENTER (MPC‐1) trmtplant tmntplant 21,088 2014 9806.00 24,723

02429 01/01/14 SLUDGE PUMP ROOM #1 SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 16,908 2014 9806.00 19,823

02430 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 24,859 2014 9806.00 29,144

02431 01/01/14 SUMP PUMPS LCP trmtplant tmntplant 34,706 2014 9806.00 40,688

02432 01/01/14 PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 36,522 2014 9806.00 42,817

02433 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 40,356 2014 9806.00 47,312

02434 01/01/14 COMPACTOR trmtplant tmntplant 47,713 2014 9806.00 55,937

02435 01/01/14 #1 trmtplant tmntplant 48,576 2014 9806.00 56,949

Page 49 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02436 01/01/14 #2 trmtplant tmntplant 48,576 2014 9806.00 56,949

02437 01/01/14 MANUAL TROLLEY HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02438 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #1 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02439 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #2 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02440 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #3 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02441 01/01/14 MANUAL HOIST #4 trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02442 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐A trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02443 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐A trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02444 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02445 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02446 01/01/14 COMPACTORS trmtplant tmntplant 53,144 2014 9806.00 62,305

02447 01/01/14 PUMP LCP trmtplant tmntplant 53,269 2014 9806.00 62,452

02448 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 53,875 2014 9806.00 63,161

02449 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 53,875 2014 9806.00 63,161

02450 01/01/14 HYPO CONTAINMENT AREA SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02451 01/01/14 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02452 01/01/14 CONTAINMENT trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02453 01/01/14 PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02454 01/01/14 PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02455 01/01/14 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02456 01/01/14 SLIDING DOOR BAR SCREEN ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02457 01/01/14 BLOWER ROOM EXHAUSE FAN trmtplant tmntplant 107,750 2014 9806.00 126,323

02458 01/01/14 BLOWER ROOM SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 107,750 2014 9806.00 126,323

02459 01/01/14 PANEL LCP trmtplant tmntplant 116,406 2014 9806.00 136,471

02460 01/01/14 SHAFTLESS SCREW CONVEYOR #2 trmtplant tmntplant 333,953 2014 9806.00 391,518

02461 01/01/14 SHAFTLESS SCREW CONVEYOR #1 trmtplant tmntplant 333,953 2014 9806.00 391,518

02462 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1` trmtplant tmntplant 366,010 2014 9806.00 429,101

02463 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 trmtplant tmntplant 366,010 2014 9806.00 429,101

02464 01/01/14 ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 97,632 2014 9806.00 114,462

02465 01/01/14 SLIDING DOOR BAR SCREEN ROOM trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02466 01/01/14 HYPO CONTAINMENT AREA SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02467 01/01/14 LCP trmtplant tmntplant 57,843 2014 9806.00 67,814

02468 01/01/14 SUMP PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02469 01/01/14 PUMP #1 trmtplant tmntplant 77,160 2014 9806.00 90,460

02470 01/01/14 PUMP #2 trmtplant tmntplant 53,269 2014 9806.00 62,452

02471 01/01/14 PUMP LCP trmtplant tmntplant 53,144 2014 9806.00 62,305

02472 01/01/14 COMPACTORS trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

Page 50 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02473 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #1 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,899 2014 9806.00 59,672

02474 01/01/14 WASHER COMPACTOR #2 LCP‐B trmtplant tmntplant 50,041 2014 9806.00 58,667

02492 01/01/14 PLC10 trmtplant tmntplant 113,327 2014 9806.00 132,861

02493 01/01/14 PLC13 trmtplant tmntplant 145,999 2014 9806.00 171,166

02494 01/01/14 PLC16 trmtplant tmntplant 75,065 2014 9806.00 88,005

02495 01/01/14 RIO5 trmtplant tmntplant 123,775 2014 9806.00 145,111

02496 01/01/14 RIO11 trmtplant tmntplant 137,667 2014 9806.00 161,397

02497 01/01/14 RIO15 trmtplant tmntplant 69,512 2014 9806.00 81,494

02498 01/01/14 MCC 12 trmtplant tmntplant 245,364 2014 9806.00 287,658

02499 01/01/14 R‐7 RECTIFIER, HEAT MIX 2 trmtplant tmntplant 58,521 2014 9806.00 68,608

02505 01/01/14 CATHODIC PROTECTION trmtplant tmntplant 43,764 2014 9806.00 51,308

02506 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 1 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02507 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 2 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02508 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 3 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02509 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 4 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02510 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" KNIFE GATE 5 trmtplant tmntplant 25,198 2014 9806.00 29,542

02511 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 1 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02512 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 2 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02513 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 3 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02514 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 4 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02515 01/01/14 VALVE, 16" SWING CHECK 5 trmtplant tmntplant 22,234 2014 9806.00 26,066

02516 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 1 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02517 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 2 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02518 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 3 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02519 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 4 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02520 01/01/14 PIPING, 16" RAS PUMP 5 DISCHARGE trmtplant tmntplant 74,113 2014 9806.00 86,888

02521 01/01/14 FORCE MAIN, 42" RAS, PS TO CB trmtplant tmntplant 41,503 2014 9806.00 48,657

02522 01/01/14 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SYSTEM RAS PS trmtplant tmntplant 11,117 2014 9806.00 13,033

02523 01/01/14 FLOW METER, RAS trmtplant tmntplant 14,823 2014 9806.00 17,378

02524 01/01/14 THICKENER #3 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 472,834 2014 9806.00 554,339

02525 01/01/14 THICKENER #4 MECHANISM trmtplant tmntplant 472,834 2014 9806.00 554,339

02526 01/01/14 THICKENER #3 TANK trmtplant tmntplant 469,918 2014 9806.00 550,920

02527 01/01/14 THICKENER #4 TANK trmtplant tmntplant 469,918 2014 9806.00 550,920

02532 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #7 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02533 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #6 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02534 01/01/14 THICKENED PRIMARY SLUDGE PUMP #5 trmtplant tmntplant 157,533 2014 9806.00 184,688

02538 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

Page 51 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02539 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

02540 01/01/14 VFD trmtplant tmntplant 28,273 2014 9806.00 33,147

02541 01/01/14 PANEL 4 trmtplant tmntplant 27,831 2014 9806.00 32,629

02542 01/01/14 PANEL 3 trmtplant tmntplant 27,831 2014 9806.00 32,629

02543 01/01/14 RELOCATED GRINDER 4 trmtplant tmntplant 22,088 2014 9806.00 25,896

02544 01/01/14 RELOCATED GRINDER 3 trmtplant tmntplant 22,088 2014 9806.00 25,896

02545 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02546 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02547 01/01/14 FEEDER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02548 01/01/14 THICKENED SLDG GRINDER 4 BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02549 01/01/14 THICKENED SLDG GRINDER 3 BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,843 2014 9806.00 17,402

02623 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02624 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02625 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 95,673 2014 9806.00 112,165

02626 01/01/14 LIFT PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 102,884 2014 9806.00 120,618

02627 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 1 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02628 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 2 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02629 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 3 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02630 01/01/14 GEAR BOX 4 trmtplant tmntplant 84,586 2014 9806.00 99,166

02632 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 1 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02633 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 2 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02634 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 3 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02635 01/01/14 AERATION BASIN 4 trmtplant tmntplant 112,829 2014 9806.00 132,278

02642 01/01/14 MCC 15 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02643 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD B trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02644 01/01/14 MCC15 SUMP PUMPS trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02645 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD C trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02646 01/01/14 MCC15 DRYWELL HOIST 2ND FLOOR trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02647 01/01/14 MCC15 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02648 01/01/14 MCC15 PANEL BOARD S trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02649 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE SAMPLE PUMP 6 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02650 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE SAMPLE PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02651 01/01/14 MCC15 ALVARADO PS HEADGATE trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02652 01/01/14 MCC15 AIR COMPERSSOR 1 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02653 01/01/14 MCC15 AIR COMPERSSOR 2 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02654 01/01/14 MCC15 SUPPLY FAN 1 trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02655 01/01/14 MCC15 EQUIPMENT ROOM HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

Page 52 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02656 01/01/14 MCC15 ACCESSORY HOIST trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02657 01/01/14 UNIT trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02658 01/01/14 MCC15 SCRUBBER SUPPLY FAN trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02659 01/01/14 MCC15 SCRUBBER EXHAUSE FAN trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02660 01/01/14 MCC15 CHLORINE ANALYZER SHED trmtplant tmntplant 12,113 2014 9806.00 14,201

02661 01/01/14 MCC13 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02662 01/01/14 MCC13 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02663 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 1 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02664 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 2 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02665 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 3 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02666 01/01/14 MCC13 CHANNEL MIXING BLOWER 4 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02667 01/01/14 MCC13 PANEL Q trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02668 01/01/14 MCC13 ROLL UP DOOR trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02669 01/01/14 MCC13 SCRUBBER EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02670 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 1 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02671 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 2 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02672 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 3 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02673 01/01/14 MCC13 AERATION TANK ACTUATOR 4 trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02674 01/01/14 MCC13 VENTILATION FAN trmtplant tmntplant 14,878 2014 9806.00 17,442

02675 01/01/14 MCC14 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02676 01/01/14 MCC14 WELDING RECEPTACLE trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02677 01/01/14 MCC14 PANEL BOARD R trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02678 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02679 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02680 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02681 01/01/14 MCC14 LIFT PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02682 01/01/14 MCC14 SECONDARY CLARIFIER DRIVE 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02683 01/01/14 MCC14 SECONDARY CLARIFIER DRIVE 6 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02684 01/01/14 MCC14 SCUM PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02685 01/01/14 MCC14 SCUM PUMP 7 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02686 01/01/14 MCC14 DEWATERING PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02687 01/01/14 MCC14 EXHAUST FAN E‐18 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02688 01/01/14 MCC14 VENT FAN EF‐9 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02689 01/01/14 MCC14 PANEL AH trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02690 01/01/14 MCC14 RAS BOX GATE PANEL trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02691 01/01/14 MCC14 SCRUBBER EXHAUST FAN trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02692 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

Page 53 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02693 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02694 01/01/14 MCC14 WAS PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02695 01/01/14 MCC14 RAS PUMP 5 trmtplant tmntplant 13,113 2014 9806.00 15,374

02696 01/01/14 MCC27 MAIN BREAKER trmtplant tmntplant 53,558 2014 9806.00 62,790

02697 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 1 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02698 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 2 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02699 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 3 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02700 01/01/14 MCC27 RAS PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 47,400 2014 9806.00 55,570

02707 01/01/15 SUPER SHREDDER trmtplant tmntplant 24,802 2015 10335.00 27,589

02726 01/01/15 MOYNO PUMP trmtplant tmntplant 45,999 2015 10335.00 51,168

02731 01/01/15 HYPO TANK A trmtplant tmntplant 80,804 2015 10335.00 89,883

02732 01/01/15 HYPO TANK B trmtplant tmntplant 80,804 2015 10335.00 89,883

02733 01/01/15 FERROUS CHLORIDE TANK trmtplant tmntplant 83,701 2015 10335.00 93,107

02740 01/01/15 DIGESTER 5 trmtplant tmntplant 919,829 2015 10335.00 1,023,187

02741 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02742 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02743 01/01/15 ISOLATION trmtplant tmntplant 11,594 2015 10335.00 12,897

02750 01/01/16 ACTUATOR trmtplant tmntplant 16,759 2016 10385.00 18,553

02751 01/01/16 ACTUATOR trmtplant tmntplant 16,759 2016 10385.00 18,553

02783 01/01/16 MAIN BREAKER POWER METER trmtplant tmntplant 17,770 2016 10385.00 19,671

02815 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 5 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02816 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 6 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02817 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 7 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02818 06/30/17 VFD: LIFT PUMP NO . 8 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 54,768 2017 10737.00 58,641

02819 06/30/17 PLC 8 AERATION BASIN 5‐7 PLC ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 263,905 2017 10737.00 282,568

02820 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02821 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 2 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02822 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 3 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02823 06/30/17 VFD: SITE WASTE NO. 4 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 60,086 2017 10737.00 64,335

02824 06/30/17 PLC 46 ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 63,444 2017 10737.00 67,931

02827 06/30/17 GROUND WATER PUMP NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 8,455 2017 10737.00 9,053

02828 06/30/17 PANEL 448 trmtplant tmntplant 46,548 2017 10737.00 49,840

02829 06/30/17 GROUND WATER PUMP NO. 2  ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 8,455 2017 10737.00 9,053

02830 06/30/17 PANEL 448 trmtplant tmntplant 46,548 2017 10737.00 49,840

02831 06/30/17 JIB CRANE NO. 1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 44,382 2017 10737.00 47,520

02832 06/30/17 JIB CRANE NO. 2 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 44,382 2017 10737.00 47,520

02833 06/30/17 HEAT EXCHANGER NO. 3 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,428 2017 10737.00 79,691

Page 54 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02834 06/30/17 HEAT EXCHANGER NO. 6 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,428 2017 10737.00 79,691

02835 06/30/17 BAR SCREEN #1 ‐ PRJ 448 trmtplant tmntplant 193,019 2017 10737.00 206,670

02845 06/30/17 448 trmtplant tmntplant 74,514 2017 10737.00 79,783

02852 06/30/17 AB NO. 5 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02853 06/30/17 AB NO. 6 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02854 06/30/17 AB NO. 7 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES ‐ PRJ 466 trmtplant tmntplant 103,586 2017 10737.00 110,911

02860 06/30/17 490 trmtplant tmntplant 39,005 2017 10737.00 41,764

02867 06/30/17 MCC 16 REPLACEMENT PART ‐ PRJ 441 trmtplant tmntplant 198,901 2017 10737.00 212,967

02870 01/01/18 SITE WASTE PUMPS 1 & 2 trmtplant tmntplant 69,538 2018 11062.00 72,268

02871 01/01/18 SITE WASTE PUMP 4 trmtplant tmntplant 55,440 2018 11062.00 57,617

02877 01/01/18 GBT POLY SKID trmtplant tmntplant 41,218 2018 11062.00 42,837

02885 01/01/18 APG‐NEUROS TURBO BLOWER ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 624,915 2018 11062.00 649,450

02886 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ CORE 1 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 199,086 2018 11062.00 206,902

02887 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ CORE 2 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 199,086 2018 11062.00 206,902

02888 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ VFD 1 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 55,333 2018 11062.00 57,505

02889 01/01/18 TURBO BLOWER ‐ VFD 2 ‐ PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 55,333 2018 11062.00 57,505

02890 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 4,436 2018 11062.00 4,610

02891 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 4,436 2018 11062.00 4,610

02892 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 3,754 2018 11062.00 3,902

02893 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 3,754 2018 11062.00 3,902

02894 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 6,654 2018 11062.00 6,915

02895 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 6,654 2018 11062.00 6,915

02896 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 10,071 2018 11062.00 10,467

02897 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 10,071 2018 11062.00 10,467

02898 01/01/18 PRJ 457 trmtplant tmntplant 17,424 2018 11062.00 18,108

02899 01/01/18 457 trmtplant tmntplant 26,556 2018 11062.00 27,599

02902 01/01/18 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02903 01/01/18 PRJ 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02904 01/01/18 PRJ 480 trmtplant tmntplant 172,073 2018 11062.00 178,829

02945 01/01/19 IMPROVEMENTS ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 37,143 2019 11268.48 37,894

02946 01/01/19 PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 148,362 2019 11268.48 151,362

02947 01/01/19 3 ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 194,145 2019 11268.48 198,070

02948 01/01/19 394 trmtplant tmntplant 179,233 2019 11268.48 182,857

02949 01/01/19 BURNER ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 24,762 2019 11268.48 25,263

02950 01/01/19 DUCTBANK FROM TEB TO TCB ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 85,643 2019 11268.48 87,375

02951 01/01/19 PAVING ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 157,938 2019 11268.48 161,131

02953 01/01/19 EQUIPMENT ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 691,241 2019 11268.48 705,217

Page 55 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

02954 01/01/19 WINDWALL ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 43,334 2019 11268.48 44,210

02969 01/01/19 DEEP WELL ANODE ‐ PRJ 394 trmtplant tmntplant 115,178 2019 11268.48 117,507

Treatment Plant Total 128,553,722 230,689,757

Total  678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Page 56 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/19

Acquisition Asset Asset Asset Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Asset # Date Description Type Class Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

Summary of Assets by Type & Class Treatment Plant Assets

tmntplant tmntplant 128,553,722 230,689,757

  SUBTOTAL 128,553,722 230,689,757

Collection System Assets

collection collsys 167,515,188 356,368,326

collection contribcs 209,680,380 1,163,757,363

collection liftstat 7,060,153 8,051,125

  SUBTOTAL 384,255,722 1,528,176,815

Pump Station & Conveyance to Treatment Plant

collection pumpstat 35,743,640 54,729,400

collection twnforce 23,583,021 89,205,988

  SUBTOTAL 59,326,660 143,935,388

General/Admin Assets

equipment 7,987,625 10,871,700

fleet 7,197,713 9,336,147

intangible 6,415,898 10,827,312

land 5,395,903 94,411,513

operations 78,877,183 137,969,393

  SUBTOTAL 105,874,322 263,416,065

  TOTAL 678,010,426 2,166,218,024

Page 57 of 57DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



APPENDIX C

East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset List & Valuation

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES

     OPERATIONS CENTER

          Earthwork 4/1/81 23,256 1981 3535.00 75,632

          Structure & Misc. 4/1/81 332,155 1981 3535.00 1,080,214

          Plumbing 4/1/81 30,361 1981 3535.00 98,738

          HVAC 4/1/81 27,307 1981 3535.00 88,806

          Electrical 4/1/81 41,462 1981 3535.00 134,840

          Carpet for Admin Office (pad not replaced)  11/30/04 9,323 2004 7115.08 15,064

          Paint Inside of Admin Office 12/07/04 1,850 2004 7115.08 2,989

          Window Coverings Admin Bldg 03/07/05 1,841 2005 7446.08 2,842

          Telephone Lines 6/16/95 619 1995 5471.17 1,301

          York 3 Ton 95% Efficient Furnace  & 3 Ton 13‐Seer A/C 04/26/11 6,224 2011 9069.83 7,889

          York 4 Ton 95% Efficient Furnace  & 3 Ton 13‐Seer A/C 04/26/11 6,224 2011 9069.83 7,889

          Alarm System Panel ‐ Admin Bldg 10/25/01 476 2001 6342.08 863

          Electrical Design for Installation of Office Generator(Calcon) 01/31/11 4,800 2011 9069.83 6,084

          Re‐Roof Operations Center Roof 05/26/06 16,616 2006 7751.25 24,644

          Paint Exterior of Admin Bldg 05/15/12 4,017 2012 9308.17 4,961

          Carpet  for Admin Office (pad not replaced)  06/04/13 6,641 2013 9546.67 7,997

          Ceiling Tiles  & HVAC Grills Painted for Admin Office 05/28/13 3,112 2013 9546.67 3,748

          Conference Room/Kitchen Water damage repair/remodel 10/31/16 13,633 2016 10385.00 15,092

            Total ‐ Buildings & Structures  Operations Center 529,917 1,579,593

SEWAGE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

     HAYWARD PUMP STATION 4/1/81

          Earthwork 4/1/81 55,415 1981 3535.00 180,217

4/1/81 723 1981 3535.00 2,351

          Concrete, Paving, Misc. 4/1/81 93,667 1981 3535.00 304,618

          Mech. & Pump Equip. 4/1/81 81,448 1981 3535.00 264,880

          Piping‐Underground 4/1/81 93,939 1981 3535.00 305,503

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 85,934 1981 3535.00 279,469

          Electircal 4/1/81 30,280 1981 3535.00 98,475

Page 1 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Motor Control Unit 4/1/81 32,479 1981 3535.00 105,626

          Equipment & Furnishings 4/1/81 510 1981 3535.00 1,659

          Elect‐Programable controller 10/30/87 6,332 1987 4406.00 16,522

          Sensor Mag Meter 6/06/90 4,366 1990 4731.92 10,607

          Submersible Level Transducer 7/18/90 3,427 1990 4731.92 8,326

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Eff Pump No.2 Valve Actuator 7/31/94 3,984 1994 5407.58 8,470

           Eff Pump No.4 Valve Actuator 7/31/94 3,983 1994 5407.58 8,468

           H.P.S. Control Upgrade Project 6/01/95 43,840 1995 5471.17 92,119

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 1/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (20%) 1/23/97 34,061 1997 5825.08 67,222

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (20%) 1/23/97 1,152 1997 5825.08 2,274

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 1,457 1997 5825.08 2,876

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 17,132 1997 5825.08 33,811

          Manual Transfer Switch 01/01/96 3,970 1996 5622.17 8,118

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 787 1998 5920.42 1,528

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          PG&E Rebate Program ‐ Ef f Pump #2 Valve Actuator 11/26/96 (1,766) 1996 5622.17 (3,611)

          PG&E Rebate Program ‐ Ef f Pump #4 Valve Actuator 11/26/96 (1,766) 1996 5622.17 (3,611)

          Flow Chart Recorder/Totalizer 03/20/97 1,974 1997 5825.08 3,896

          Roof/Building Replacement 12/19/97 4,425 1997 5825.08 8,733

          Marsh Flow Signal‐Parts & Installation 04/20/98 3,990 1998 5920.42 7,748

          Effluent Pump No. 1 (Rebuilt 99/00) 10/14/99 11,170 1999 6059.50 21,192

          Wetwell Level Probe/Transducer 06/12/00 2,093 2000 6221.17 3,868

Page 2 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Wet Well Level Indicator Milltronics Probe 02/28/05 885 2005 7446.08 1,366

          Emergency Generator ‐ Caterpillar 3406  09/01/01 79,563 2001 6342.08 144,224

          Limitorque Actuator with Adaptor 07/06/00 3,735 2000 6221.17 6,902

            for HVBM07 Valve #7

          VFD No. 1 for HEPS ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 06/01/01 6,786 2001 6342.08 12,301

          Installation of VFD No. 1 ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 11/30/01 3,500 2001 6342.08 6,344

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2  ‐ 75 hp (Calcon) 08/01/14 5,697 2014 9806.00 6,679

          Varoab;e Freqiemcu Drove No. 3 for HEPS ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 06/01/01 6,786 2001 6342.08 12,301

          Installation of VFD No. 3 ‐ 75 hp ABB Drive 11/30/01 3,500 2001 6342.08 6,344

          Effluent Pump No. 3 (Rebuilt 01/02) 08/15/01 7,388 2001 6342.08 13,392

          Effluent Pump No. 3 ‐ Remove, Inspect, Repair & Install (Pump Repair S 10/23/14 18,172 2014 9806.00 21,304

          Hayward Flow Meter ‐ Aquaprobe Flow Meter 9/15/05 5,992 2005 7446.08 9,251

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 2 ‐ Emergency Repair 11/18/05 5,286 2005 7446.08 8,161

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 3 ‐ Refurbish (Vincent Electric Motor) 07/31/14 5,561 2014 9806.00 6,519

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 4 ‐ Trim & balance 12/27/05 500 2005 7446.08 772

          VFD No. 2 ‐ 75 HP VFD (Calcon) 05/31/07 5,195 2007 7967.00 7,496

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Panel, electrical hardware & labor (Calcon) 06/25/07 1,807 2007 7967.00 2,607

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 07/31/07 1,301 2007 7967.00 1,877

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 08/31/07 1,497 2007 7967.00 2,160

          VFD No. 2 ‐ Materials & Labor (Calcon) 02/28/17 8,073 2017 10737.00 8,644

          VFD No. 4 ‐ 75 HP VFD (Calcon) 05/31/07 5,195 2007 7967.00 7,496

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Panel, electrical hardware & labor (Calcon) 06/25/07 1,807 2007 7967.00 2,607

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 07/31/07 1,301 2007 7967.00 1,877

          VFD No. 4 ‐ Labor (Calcon) 08/31/07 1,497 2007 7967.00 2,160

          Alvarado North Flow Meter (Calcon) 02/07/08 8,430 2008 8309.92 11,662

          Insertion Flow Meter Calcon) 07/20/09 5,951 2009 8570.08 7,983

          HEPS Perimeter Fencing & Gates (Bailey Fence Co) 02/03/11 5,091 2011 9069.83 6,453

          MCC Upgrade w/ 2 75 HP VFDs ‐ Main Breaker 05/05/00 3,928 2000 6221.17 7,259

          HEPS Electrical Assessment Phase 1, PP #1&2 06/30/13 5,115 2013 9546.67 6,160

          HEPS Electrical Assessment Phase 1, PP #3 07/25/13 165 2013 9546.67 199

          HEPS Design of Replacement Switch Gear Phase 2 PP #1‐5 10/25/15‐06 06/30/16 8,460 2016 10385.00 9,365

          HEPS Design of Replacement Switch Gear Phase 2 PP #6‐15 06/25/16‐0 06/30/17 106,886 2017 10737.00 114,445

Page 3 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          HEPS MCC Project 06/30/18 141,037 2018 11062.00 146,574

          HEPS MCC Project 06/30/18 375,577 2018 11062.00 390,323

          HEPS Pump #2 Motor Replacement 03/15/18 17,076 2018 11062.00 17,746

          HEPS #1 Effluent 14MF Cascade Propeller Pump Repairs 10/15/13 34,123 2013 9546.67 41,092

          HEPS #1 75HP Motor Repairs 10/15/13 3,248 2013 9546.67 3,911

          HEPS #2 Effluent Cascade Model MF Propeller Pump Repair 06/30/13 33,699 2013 9546.67 40,581

          HEPS #2 75HP Motor Repair 06/30/13 3,248 2013 9546.67 3,911

          HEPS #4 Effluent Cascade Model MF Propeller Pump Repair 11/26/13 40,514 2013 9546.67 48,788

          HEPS #4 75HP Motor Repair 11/26/13 3,307 2013 9546.67 3,982

            Total ‐ Hayward Pump Station 1,600,599 3,004,333

     SAN LEANDRO PUMP STATION

          Concrete, Paving & Misc. 4/1/81 111,062 1981 3535.00 361,189

          Mech. & Pump. Equip. 4/1/81 77,929 1981 3535.00 253,436

          Piping & Valves‐Above Ground 4/1/81 101,855 1981 3535.00 331,247

          Electrical 4/1/81 22,925 1981 3535.00 74,555

          Motor Control Unit 4/1/81 94,545 1981 3535.00 307,473

          Motor Control Unit Modification 9/93 30,378 1993 5210.42 67,026

          Replace Auto‐Con Unit 7/31/88 15,204 1988 4519.00 38,679

          Transformer 9/30/88 2,705 1988 4519.00 6,882

          Drive Motor 11/15/88 8,629 1988 4519.00 21,952

          Spacer Coupling/Iron Motor Std 2/16/89 2,574 1989 4615.00 6,412

          Isolation Transformers &

           Weather Shield 7/31/90 2,247 1990 4731.92 5,459

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

Page 4 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 8/27/93 162 1993 5210.42 357

           Eff Pump No.4 Exercise Motor 8/15/94 364 1994 5407.58 774

           Automatic Transfer Switch 10/24/95 3,974 1995 5471.17 8,350

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 01/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (5%) 01/23/97 8,515 1997 5825.08 16,805

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (5%) 01/23/97 288 1997 5825.08 568

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 292 1997 5825.08 576

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 3,426 1997 5825.08 6,762

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          Cummins West Generator @SLPS 04/04/97 26,180 1997 5825.08 51,669

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 03/31/03 3,440 2003

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 1 ‐ 30VFD & installation 01/27/06 2,976 2006 7751.25 4,414

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 250A Main Breaker Replacement 01/31/14 4,487 2014 9806.00 5,260

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ Replace Control Board & Diodes 02/28/14 2,480 2014 9806.00 2,907

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 3 VFD Diodes 03/31/14 341 2014 9806.00 400

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ 150HP (Calcon) 08/31/14 8,891 2014 9806.00 10,423

          Variable Frequency Drive #1 ‐ Remove old VFD/Install new ABB VFD (Ca 09/30/14 734 2014 9806.00 860

          Variable Frequency Drive #2 03/31/03 3,440 2003 6694.58 5,907

          Variable Frequency Drive #2 ‐ 30HP VFD & INSTALL 01/06/05 3,152 2005 7446.08 4,867

          Variable Frequency Drive #3 10/30/95 11,883 1995 5471.17 24,969

          Variable Frequency Drive #3 11/21/03 6,586 2003 6694.58 11,310

          Variable Frequency Drive #4 04/06/99 34,899 1999 6059.50 66,212

          Effluent Wet Well Control Upgrade 11/30/00 5,500 2000 6221.17 10,164

          Effluent Pump No. 1 (Rebuild) 09/14/01 8,352 2001 6342.08 15,140

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor 09/21/01 3,531 2001 6342.08 6,401

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor (Rebuild) 06/07/04 2,439 2004 7115.08 3,941

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor (Emergency Repairs) 01/11/05 4,585 2005 7446.08 7,079

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Motor 09/21/01 3,531 2001 6342.08 6,401

          Effluent Pump No. 2 (Rebuild) 11/16/01 14,314 2001 6342.08 25,947

Page 5 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Effluent Pump No. 2  Parts (CSL) 05/31/16 440 2016 10385.00 487

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Rebuild (Pump Repair Servi ce) 07/22/16 23,498 2016 10385.00 26,012

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Motor (Emergency Repairs) 01/11/05 4,585 2005 7446.08 7,079

          Effluent Pump No. 3 Motor & Pump (Pump Repair Service & pr) 12/29/16 23,483 2016 10385.00 25,996

          Milltronic Level Controller 11/30/01 1,718 2001 6342.08 3,114

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/05 2,885 2005 7446.08 4,454

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/06 25,422 2006 7751.25 37,705

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/07 505,060 2007 7967.00 728,797

          SL Pump Station Upgrade 06/30/08 935,024 2008 8309.92 1,293,554

          San Leandro Flow Meter 9/15/05 5,816 2005 7446.08 8,980

          Auto Transfer Switch ‐ 600 Amp Breaker 01/31/06 5,997 2006 7751.25 8,894

          San Leandro Flow Meter (Calcon) 02/07/08 8,430 2008 8309.92 11,662

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 2 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 3 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Effluent Pump No. 4 Check Valve 07/13/07 3,081 2007 7967.00 4,446

          Emergency Generator Kohler Model 500REOZVB (Collicutt) 11/08/07 121,458 2007 7967.00 175,263

          Bisulfite Facility Pump 520DUN/R 220RPM 04/09/09 6,500 2009 8570.08 8,719

          Electrical Layout‐New Bypass Control Valve & Signal 03/13/09 552 2009 8570.08 740

          SLEPS Containment & Dechlorination System Project 06/30/09 7,242 2009 8570.08 9,715

          SLEPS Site Containment Gate ‐ fabricated slide gate 07/09/09 10,542 2009 8570.08 14,142

          SLEPS Bypass Valve & Chemical Feed Pump System 09/01/09 10,600 2009 8570.08 14,219

          SLEPS Level Monitor 09/30/09 1,017 2009 8570.08 1,364

            Total ‐ San Leandro Pump Station 2,356,907 4,182,736

     MARINA DECHLOR. FACILITY

          Excavation & Sitework 4/1/81 39,688 1981 3535.00 129,071

          Structure & Misc. 4/1/81 378,844 1981 3535.00 1,232,053

          Concrete & Paving 4/1/81 82,589 1981 3535.00 268,591

          Landscaping 4/1/81 20,695 1981 3535.00 67,303

          Mechanical Equipment 4/1/81 464,782 1981 3535.00 1,511,535

Page 6 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 146,224 1981 3535.00 475,541

          Electrical 4/1/81 94,393 1981 3535.00 306,979

          Control Unit 4/1/81 32,166 1981 3535.00 104,608

          Lab & Office Furnishings 4/1/81 15,871 1981 3535.00 51,615

          Lab & Office Furnishings 6/30/86 7,466 1986 4295.00 19,984

          Cathodic Protection 3/21/85 49,203 1985 4195.00 134,840

          Control Unit‐Disol. Ox. Probe 4/19/88 1,893 1988 4519.00 4,816

          Piping‐SO2 Chem. valves 6/30/88 1,405 1988 4519.00 3,574

          Valve 7/25/88 352 1988 4519.00 895

          Apco Air Relief Valves (2) 2/28/89 2,226 1989 4615.00 5,545

          Cathodic Protection System 8/31/89 2,776 1989 4615.00 6,915

          Portable Torch ‐ Airco 9/11/89 293 1989 4615.00 730

          Sampler & Equipment 12/8/89 3,080 1989 4615.00 7,673

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Platform for Access to Combin‐

           ation Air/Vacuum Valve 7/31/90 10,987 1990 4731.92 26,693

          Blind Flanges 12/04/90 2,631 1990 4731.92 6,392

          2 Kent Strip Chart Recorders 12/29/90 4,016 1990 4731.92 9,757

          PH Meter Model 108 Portable 02/04/91 297 1991 4835.08 706

          PH Meter Model M‐107 03/20/91 296 1991 4835.08 704

          Sampler 117 Vac Model 291OR 7/03/91 2,922 1991 4835.08 6,948

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Micro 2000 Analyzer 12/30/91 6,683 1991 4835.08 15,890

          Duo Phone System‐Radio Shack 5/05/92 573 1992 4984.83 1,321

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

          45 Gal Storage Cabinet 6/25/92 664 1992 4984.83 1,531

          Drill, B 1/2" Rev 6/26/92 187 1992 4984.83 431

Page 7 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Micrometer Set 7/17/92 197 1992 4984.83 454

          Sump Pump No.1 9/14/92 3,053 1992 4984.83 7,041

          3/4 Ton Ratchet Hoist 9/16/92 267 1992 4984.83 616

          Sump Pump No.2 9/25/92 4,517 1992 4984.83 10,417

          Sink for Samplers‐2'x2' acrylic split tank 11/12/92 758 1992 4984.83 1,748

          Valves for Sulfur Dioxide Tank B 12/10/92 1,514 1992 4984.83 3,492

          Bioassay Platform 12/31/92 8,815 1992 4984.83 20,330

          Unit Heater No. 1 01/11/93 513 1993 5210.42 1,132

          Circular Saw 01/20/93 176 1993 5210.42 388

          Router 01/20/93 168 1993 5210.42 371

          Unit Heater No. 2 01/27/93 501 1993 5210.42 1,105

          Sump Pump No.2 Motor 01/29/93 287 1993 5210.42 633

          ARC/TIG Welder 02/05/93 731 1993 5210.42 1,613

          Bioassay Control Panel 02/09/93 1,537 1993 5210.42 3,391

          Portable Sander/Grinder 04/27/93 157 1993 5210.42 346

          Bioassay System 05/01/93 11,152 1993 5210.42 24,606

          Chiller, Micro‐Mini 1/3HP,Digital Thermometer

          & 2 Stainless Steel Filter Screens‐Aquatic Eco 10/27/93 907 1993 5210.42 2,001

         Bioassay Chiller 04/21/04 1,446 2004 7115.08 2,336

          MDF Transformer, 440‐208 to 110 05/27/93 1,384 1993 5210.42 3,054

          MegohmmeterRouter 06/24/93 717 1993 5210.42 1,582

          Portable Band Saw Kit ‐ Grainger 07/12/93 289 1993 5210.42 638

          Hand Tachometer ‐ Grainger 08/19/93 229 1993 5210.42 505

          Hammer Rotary 1‐1/2 Eagle TSC ‐CA Service 10/08/93 529 1993 5210.42 1,167

          Chain Hoist & Trolley, 1/2 Ton ‐ Grainger 12/06/93 231 1993 5210.42 510

          2HP Pool Motor ‐ Grainger 01/04/94 212 1994 5407.58 451

          28FT Extension Ladder ‐ Home Depot 01/21/94 291 1994 5407.58 619

          Pump #2 Repair ‐ Alfred Conhagen Inc. 01/25/94 5,883 1994 5407.58 12,507

          2Hp Auto Sewage Pump ‐ Grainger 02/18/94 978 1994 5407.58 2,079

          Pipe Vice Tristand ‐ Grainger 03/04/94 351 1994 5407.58 746

          Hand Threader ‐ Grainger 03/04/94 482 1994 5407.58 1,025

          C1 Residual Chlorine Analyzer 03/14/94 7,448 1994 5407.58 15,834

Page 8 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          PH/Temp Meter Kit w/Printer 03/15/94 387 1994 5407.58 823

          PH/Temp Meter Kit w/Printer 03/15/94 393 1994 5407.58 836

          8" Tradesman Vise ‐ Grainger 06/13/94 341 1994 5407.58 725

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          25Hp, 1800RPM, 3 Phase Electric Motor  09/29/94 2,144 1994 5407.58 4,558

          Auto Phone Dialer for Alarms ‐Verbatim 08/16/94 3,031 1994 5407.58 6,444

          Backflow Preventer(Inside) 09/15/94 231 1994 5407.58 491

          Seismic Design & Eng Servives (20%) 01/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (10%) 01/23/97 17,031 1997 5825.08 33,612

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (10%) 01/23/97 576 1997 5825.08 1,137

          SODIUM BISULFITE CONVERSION PROJECT $725,819

              06/30/95 $ 15,270          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/96    53,542          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/97  652,375          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

              06/30/98      4,632          06/30/95  15,270 2005 7446.08 23,576

          Sodium Bisulfite Building 05/15/97 497,269 1997 5825.08 981,404

          Bisulfite Pump Control Panel ‐ CP 05/15/97 5,000 1997 5825.08 9,868

          Bisulfite System Control Panel ‐ SCP 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite System Control Panel ‐ HCP 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite Alarm Panel ‐ Outside 05/15/97 2,000 1997 5825.08 3,947

          Bisulfite Facility Transformer 05/15/97 6,000 1997 5825.08 11,842

          CM Pump No. 1 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          CM Pump No. 2 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          CM Pump No. 3 SPD/STRK Controller 05/15/97 12,000 1997 5825.08 23,683

          Bisulfite Vent Gas Scrubber 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Facility Heater No. 1 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Facility Heater No. 2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Facility Roof Fan 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Facility Fire Alarm #2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Tank No. 1 Level Transmitter 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

Page 9 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Bisulfite Tank No. 2 Level Transmitter 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

          Water Champ Chemical Induction Unit 05/15/97 22,000 1997 5825.08 43,419

          Bisulfite Tank No. 1 Site Glass 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Bisulfite Tank No. 2 Site Glass 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Hot Water Heater 05/15/97 700 1997 5825.08 1,382

          Bisulfite System Strainers 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Storage Tank No. 1 05/15/97 17,000 1997 5825.08 33,551

          Bisulfite Storage Tank No. 2 05/15/97 17,000 1997 5825.08 33,551

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,999 2015 10335.00 11,122

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 2,947 2015 10335.00 3,278

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,999 2015 10335.00 11,122

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 3,982 2015 10335.00 4,429

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install (Watson Marlow) 03/31/15 9,998 2015 10335.00 11,121

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Remove & Install Calcon 03/31/15 2,846 2015 10335.00 3,166

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Flow Meter Upgrade & Programming 03/31/15 3,982 2015 10335.00 4,429

          Chemical Injection Pump ‐ UPS 04/30/15 733 2015 10335.00 815

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 05/15/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Bisulfite Sump Pump No. 1 05/15/97 2,700 1997 5825.08 5,329

          Bisulfite Sump Pump No. 2 05/15/97 2,700 1997 5825.08 5,329

          Bisulfite Facility Emergency Lights 05/15/97 3,000 1997 5825.08 5,921

          Bisulfite Emergency Shower No. 1 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Emergency Shower No. 2 05/15/97 1,200 1997 5825.08 2,368

          Bisulfite Fire Sprinkler System 05/15/97 7,500 1997 5825.08 14,802

          Bisulfite Facility Roof 05/15/97 10,000 1997 5825.08 19,736

          Bisulfite Facility Smoke Detectors 05/15/97 750 1997 5825.08 1,480

Page 10 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Bisulfite Backflow Prevention Valves 05/15/97 2,250 1997 5825.08 4,441

          Bisulfite System Check Valves (3) 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Diaphragm Valves (33) 05/15/97 15,000 1997 5825.08 29,604

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 1 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 2 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 3 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Bisulfite Elec Diaphragm Valve No. 4 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Water Champ Knife Gate Valve 05/15/97 2,500 1997 5825.08 4,934

          Bisulfite Pressure Relief Valves (3) 05/15/97 2,250 1997 5825.08 4,441

          Bisulfite System Plug Valves (4) 05/15/97 1,500 1997 5825.08 2,960

          Tank Thickness Gauge 07/20/94 2,639 1994 5407.58 5,610

          Meter Vault Sump Pump #2 03/24/95 5,588 1995 5471.17 11,742

          Chain Link Fence 09/14/94 6,098 1994 5407.58 12,964

          Gate Automation System (Gate Operator) 08/08/95 6,533 1995 5471.17 13,727

          Gate Automation System (Gate Operator) 07/24/15 3,945 2015 10335.00 4,388

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 291 1997 5825.08 574

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 01/23/97 3,426 1997 5825.08 6,762

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 07/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          2HP Auto Sewage Pump Submersible 11/30/95 833 1995 5471.17 1,750

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 441 1996 5622.17 902

          Sample Pump 2HP Cast Iron 03/22/96 442 1996 5622.17 904

          Amperometric Titrator SN BA54006 04/25/96 1,641 1996 5622.17 3,356

          Dissolved Oxygen Meter & Probe VWR 05/13/96 1,693 1996 5622.17 3,462

      Dell Pentium Computer System (originally SCADA) 08/06/96 3,407 1996 5622.17 6,967

         77 pc  Tap & Die Set 12/06/96 334 1996 5622.17 683

         2 HP Auto Sewage Pump 08/19/97 831 1997 5825.08 1,640

         3 Pen Chart Recorder 05/05/98 3,171 1998 5920.42 6,157

         Aurora Injector Pump 2.5X3Y12 06/03/98 1,600 1998 5920.42 3,107

Page 11 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

           SN#79‐004418‐3 Inspection (not repaired,

           new pump to be purchased in 98/99)

         Injector Water Pump & Motor #1 Grundfos 06/30/99 11,029 1999 6059.50 20,925

         Injector Water Pump & Motor #1 Grundfos 06/30/99 11,030 1999 6059.50 20,927

         2 HP Sewage Pump 03/22/99 782 1999 6059.50 1,484

         Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  11/17/98 6,494 1998 5920.42 12,610

         Vent‐O‐Mat 2" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  11/17/98 2,030 1998 5920.42 3,942

         Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vac Release Valve Aquadyne  01/28/99 6,503 1999 6059.50 12,338

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Seco ABB Aquaprobe  12/03/99 5,077 1999 6059.50 9,632

           Insertion Mag Meter 

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Remove old & Install new  10/30/08 892 2008 8309.92 1,234

         Marina Flow meter No. 1 ‐ Sitrans Fus 1010 IP65 NEMA 4X  10/30/08 8,061 2008 8309.92 11,152

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Chemical Flowmeter x2 & Cable x2 Calcon 01/31/15 3,512 2015 10335.00 3,907

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Chemical Flowmeter x2 & Cable x2 Calcon 01/31/15 3,512 2015 10335.00 3,907

         Chemical Pump ‐ Pulled Cable Calcon 01/31/15 536 2015 10335.00 596

         Siemens Controllotron Flow Meter Replacement ‐ remove old & install n 03/31/14 7,658 2014 9806.00 8,978

         Marina Flow Meter No. 2 ‐ Aquaprobe Flow Meter & install 9/15/05 5,220 2005 7446.08 8,059

         MDF No 2 Flow Meter Probe  02/28/17 452 2017 10737.00 484

         MDF Aquaprobe Magnetic Flow Meter & Installation  04/28/17 13,137 2017 10737.00 14,066

         System Wide Spare Flow Meter  09/18/09 5,979 2009 8570.08 8,021

          SBS Pump Flow Meter #3 Installation ‐ Calcon 02/28/13 13,582 2013 9546.67 16,356

         Cathodic Protection System ‐ Repair/Replace‐ 12/31/99 2,600 1999 6059.50 4,933

           ment Installation of the Z1 & Z2 Reference

           Electrodes

         1 HP Effluent Pump 01/31/00 432 2000 6221.17 798

         PH/MV/Temp Meter No. 1 ‐ VWR Scientific  01/31/00 888 2000 6221.17 1,641

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 2 08/24/04 9,267 2004 7115.08 14,973

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 3 03/17/00 6,959 2000 6221.17 12,860

         New Analyzer @ MDF Installed Electrical Wiring & Conduits & Labor 05/30/17 220 2017 10737.00 235

         New Analyzer @ MDF Installed Electrical Wiring & Conduits & Labor 05/30/17 186 2017 10737.00 199

Page 12 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

         New Test Hypo Analyzer @ MDF Install (Calcon) 06/30/17 1,215 2017 10737.00 1,301

         Work on New CL2 Analyzer @ MDF 10/17/17 616 2017 10737.00 660

         Portable Sump Pump  5 HP Self‐Priming 05/04/00 666 2000 6221.17 1,231

         2 HP Cast Iron Pump 06/20/00 458 2000 6221.17 846

         MDF Effluent Sample Manifold Parts 01/17/02 1,729 2002 6538.00 3,040

         Sample Pump & Motor (Spare) 04/26/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Sample Pump in Meter Vault‐2HP Cast Iron Pump 03/25/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Sample Pump No. 4 in Meter Vault ‐ 2HP 12/21/04 526 2004 7115.08 850

           Centrifugal Pump

         Sample Pump ‐ 2 HP Cast Iron Pump 03/04/02 479 2002 6538.00 842

         Stainless Steel Angle&Flat‐to install sample pump 01/09/02 239 2002 6538.00 420

         2 HP Sewage Pump 04/20/01 803 2001 6342.08 1,456

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 2 11/06/01 468 2001 6342.08 848

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 1 11/28/01 468 2001 6342.08 848

         Sample Pump & Motor No. 2 07/02/02 478 2002 6538.00 841

         Sample Pump No. 3 Motor 11/21/02 231 2002 6538.00 406

         Sample Pump No. 4 Motor 11/21/02 231 2002 6538.00 406

         Dechlor Station Roof ‐ Certainteed Landmark 50 05/07/04 6,989 2004 7115.08 11,293

         Chlorine Residual Analyzer No. 1 07/31/05 10,086 2005 7446.08 15,572

         Automatic Sampler No. 1 02/17/06 3,724 2006 7751.25 5,523

         Automatic Sampler No. 2 02/17/06 3,724 2006 7751.25 5,523

         Auto Transfer Switch 06/30/06 7,746 2006 7751.25 11,489

         Auto Transfer Switch 07/14/06 1,004 2006 7751.25 1,489

         Auto Transfer Switch 08/22/06 3,705 2006 7751.25 5,495

         Sewage Pump No. 1 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 06/22/07 4,414 2007 7967.00 6,369

         Motor Starter & Installation (Calcon) 04/28/17 1,530 2017 10737.00 1,638

         Sewage Pump No. 2 01/12/07 103 2007 7967.00 149

         Sewage Pump No. 2 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 06/22/07 4,415 2007 7967.00 6,371

         Sewage Pump No. 2 ‐ rebuild submersible pump 07/03/07 287 2007 7967.00 414

         Motor Starter & Installation (Calcon) 04/28/17 1,530 2017 10737.00 1,638

          Bioassay System 02/13/07 43,655 2007 7967.00 62,994

          Amperometric Titrator 07/05/07 2,852 2007 7967.00 4,115

Page 13 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 1 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 1 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 1 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 12/20/07 1,451 2007 7967.00 2,094

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 2 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 12/20/07 1,451 2007 7967.00 2,094

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 06/30/08 411 2008 8309.92 569

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 3 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 1,554 2007 7967.00 2,242

          Chemical Metering Pump Motor No. 3 (Calcon) 01/31/08 942 2008 8309.92 1,303

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 (ABP Engineering) 07/03/07 4,230 2007 7967.00 6,104

          Chemical Metering Pump No. 3 (Calcon) 01/31/08 943 2008 8309.92 1,305

          Water Champ Parts @ MDF 03/05/18 4,640 2018 11062.00 4,822

          Chem Pump Backflow Valves (3) 07/03/07 879 2007 7967.00 1,268

          Chem Pump Pressure Release Valves (3) 07/03/07 879 2007 7967.00 1,268

          Bisulfite Tank No 1&2 Level Controller 04/30/08 3,141 2008 8309.92 4,345

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Full Retrofit of Motor Control Center (MCC) @MDF 09/30/08 11,640 2008 8309.92 16,103

          Caterpillar 3208 Generator Refurbished 12/15/08 21,925 2008 8309.92 30,332

          Caterpillar 3208 Generator Cylinder Heads Refurbished 12/18/08 7,289 2008 8309.92 10,084

          Replace Rectifier @ MDF 02/19/10 5,191 2010 8798.92 6,782

          Instrument Control Center 03/31/93 13,244 1993 5210.42 29,222

         Station Control, Alarm, & SCADA System 10/07/03 27,226 2003 6694.58 46,754

          Station Control, Alarm & Scada System @MDF 09/24/10 1,360 2010 8798.92 1,777

          Install 24VDC Redundant Power Supply Control System @MDF (Calcon) 01/31/14 8,359 2014 9806.00 9,800

          Automatic Compliance Valve @MDF ‐ Material only (Calcon) 04/29/14 1,451 2014 9806.00 1,701

          Automatic Compliance Valve @MDF ‐ Labor only (Calcon) 05/30/14 1,692 2014 9806.00 1,984

          Programmable Logic Controller Redundant Backup @MDF (Calcon) PP# 06/30/16 35,640 2016 10385.00 39,454

Page 14 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Programmable Logic Controller Redundant Backup @MDF (Calcon) PP# 02/28/17 3,960 2017 10737.00 4,240

          8" Touch Screen & Installation  04/28/17 2,472 2017 10737.00 2,647

          Gas Monitoring System @MDF 01/31/12 4,203 2012 9308.17 5,191

          MDF Interior Painting 01/10/08 6,410 2008 8309.92 8,868

          MDF Exterior Building and Doors 01/15/15 6,450 2015 10335.00 7,175

          MDF Lab Flooring 01/28/08 2,076 2008 8309.92 2,872

          MDF Access Ladder & Cage Installation 02/11/09 4,324 2009 8570.08 5,800

          Replace Under Drain/Sewage Piping ‐ Pump/Vault Systems 03/31/12 17,419 2012 9308.17 21,514

          Lighting Fixture Upgrade @MDF (Calcon) 03/30/14 5,441 2014 9806.00 6,379

          Legacy Wiring Removal 04/30/15 4,683 2015 10335.00 5,210

          Concrete Island & 2 Berms to protect for Sea Level Rise 07/08/15 7,336 2015 10335.00 8,160

          Refurbish Gas Detection System for Meter Vault (Calcon) 01/31/16 436 2016 10385.00 483

          Emergency Light & Outlets Upgrade (Calcon) 01/31/16 4,997 2016 10385.00 5,532

          Back Up CL2 Analyzers (Calcon) 06/29/16 1,082 2016 10385.00 1,198

          CL2 Analyzers (Calcon) 11/30/16 4,358 2016 10385.00 4,824

          MDF Lighting Upgrade ‐ Exterior & Vault Lighting 05/17/18 1,769 2018 11062.00 1,839

          MDF Lighting Upgrade 05/01/18 3,166 2018 11062.00 3,291

          MDF Lighting Upgrade ‐ Emergency Lighting 05/17/18 353 2018 11062.00 366

          Sewage Pumps & Piping Removal & Replacement 04/26/13 32,800 2013 9546.67 39,498

          MDF Temp Generator  03/07/13 394 2013 9546.67 474

          Manual Transfer Switch Relocation  08/30/13 3,747 2013 9546.67 4,512

            Total ‐ Marina Dechlor Facility 2,889,652 7,031,915

     ORO LOMA PUMP STATION

          Earthwork 4/1/81 428,573 1981 3535.00 1,393,779

          Concrete & Paving 4/1/81 12,089 1981 3535.00 39,315

          Structure 4/1/81 1,683,078 1981 3535.00 5,473,603

          Misc. Fees & Tests 4/1/81 8,000 1981 3535.00 26,017

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 4/1/81 1,501,590 1981 3535.00 4,883,379

          Electrical 4/1/81 414,543 1981 3535.00 1,348,151

          HVAC 4/1/81 37,928 1981 3535.00 123,347

Page 15 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Plumbing 4/1/81 5,500 1981 3535.00 17,887

          Piping‐Underground 4/1/81 670,003 1981 3535.00 2,178,943

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/1/81 209,015 1981 3535.00 679,746

          Equipment & Furnishings 4/1/81 2,426 1981 3535.00 7,890

          Piping‐Monitoring Wells 12/31/87 3,650 1987 4406.00 9,524

          Pre/Post Lube System 9/30/88 7,577 1988 4519.00 19,276

          PLC Installation  10/31/88 11,982 1988 4519.00 30,482

          Temperature Regulators  5/30/90 2,021 1990 4731.92 4,910

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 9/17/90 715 1990 4731.92 1,737

          Homelite Chain Saw 12/10/90 976 1990 4731.92 2,371

          Vibration Monitor Meter 12/19/90 1,611 1990 4731.92 3,914

          Limitorque for 42" Valve 06/28/91 2,978 1991 4835.08 7,081

          Lockout Devices (1/4cost) 7/31/91 103 1991 4835.08 245

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐

           Model #8060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 149 1992 4984.83 344

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐

           Model #9060 (1/5cost) 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

          Test Pump Calibrator &

           Gauge (1/5cost) 5/14/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Sample Pump & Motor No.1 8/31/92 751 1992 4984.83 1,732

           Sample Pump & Motor No.2 8/31/92 751 1992 4984.83 1,732

           Fuel Tank Monitoring System 3/05/93 10,259 1993 5210.42 22,636

           Diesel Tank Double Containment Sensor ‐ 07/31/00 2,151 2000 6221.17 3,975

           Leak Detector 01/27/15 5,950 2015 10335.00 6,619

           Sump Pump 5/31/93 472 1993 5210.42 1,041

           Pump #1 Replacement ‐ Layne & Bowler 7/01/93 5,408 1993 5210.42 11,932

           Recl Water Pump No. 1 ‐ rebuilt 12/31/02 9,008 2002 6538.00 15,840

           Pump #2 Replacement ‐ Layne & Bowler 7/22/93 5,216 1993 5210.42 11,509

           Recl Water Pump No. 1  Motor 05/31/05 1,801 2005 7446.08 2,781

           Recl Water Pump No. 2 Motor 05/31/05 1,801 2005 7446.08 2,781

           Battery System for Emerg Diesel Engines 7/01/93 7,339 1993 5210.42 16,193

           Motor Overhaul 6/14/94 5,215 1994 5407.58 11,087

Page 16 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor 11/19/98 16,000 1998 5920.42 31,069

          Eff Pump No. 1 Motor ‐ rebuilt 03/13/03 6,818 2003 6694.58 11,708

          Overhaul 350 Horsepower Motor &Align Motor to Gearbox 05/12/11 5,442 2011 9069.83 6,898

          Effluent Pump No. 1 Motor ‐ Refurbish & Laser Align 08/13/14 6,564 2014 9806.00 7,695

           Motor Overhaul 5/31/94 5,216 1994 5407.58 11,089

          Effluent Pump No. 4 Motor 11/19/98 16,000 1998 5920.42 31,069

          Pump Station Motor #4 ‐ Refurbish @ OLEPS (Vincent Electric Motor) 12/31/13 3,047 2013 9546.67 3,669

          Replace Bad Bearings in Pump Motor 10/30/15 6,563 2015 10335.00 7,300

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 1/23/97 1,637 1997 5825.08 3,231

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (30%) 1/23/97 51,092 1997 5825.08 100,835

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (30%) 1/23/97 1,728 1997 5825.08 3,410

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger & Kellco) 1/23/97 4,089 1997 5825.08 8,070

          Seismic Upgrade (Encinger) 1/23/97 44,544 1997 5825.08 87,911

          Flex Coupling/Drive Shaft Engine No. 1 10/19/98 25,000 1998 5920.42 48,545

          Flex Coupling/Drive Shaft Engine No. 2 10/19/98 25,000 1998 5920.42 48,545

          Engine No. 1 (Pump 2) 10/19/98 311,738 1998 5920.42 605,335

          Engine No. 2 Retrofit @OLEPS (Calcon) 03/30/17 3,932 2017 10737.00 4,211

          Diesel Engine Control & Plc/Scada Programming Project 12/28/17 2,269 2017 10737.00 2,430

          Engine No. 2 (Pump 3) 10/19/98 311,738 1998 5920.42 605,335

          HMI for Diesel Pump Control @OLEPS (Calcon) 03/31/14 5,801 2014 9806.00 6,801

          Labor for 24 VDC  Power Isolators for Diesel Pump Control @OLEPS (Ca 06/30/14 754 2014 9806.00 884

          Install Battery Charging Unit, Control Batteries & Charger Diesel Engine 11/30/15 3,309 2015 10335.00 3,680

          Diesel Pump No. 3 Overhaul 03/31/17 60,243 2017 10737.00 64,504

          Diesel Engine Control & Plc/Scada Programming Project 12/28/17 2,269 2017 10737.00 2,430

          PR Distr DE‐PLC‐SCADA 6/30/18 350 2018 11062.00 364

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 7/23/98 1,641 1998 5920.42 3,187

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 7/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 7/23/98 187 1998 5920.42 363

          Valve Box 1/2 HP Auto Sump Pump 5/20/96 173 1996 5622.17 354

          Variable Speed Control Unit #1 11/19/98 50,000 1998 5920.42 97,090

          Variable Speed Control Unit #1 ‐ Color HMI replacement 03/31/05 4,625 2005 7446.08 7,141

          Variable Speed Control Unit #4 11/19/98 50,000 1998 5920.42 97,090

Page 17 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          VFD & Soft Start  #1 09/30/09 56,916 2009 8570.08 76,350

          VFD & Soft Start  #1 09/30/09 56,916 2009 8570.08 76,350

          Control System Upgrades @OLEPs 02/28/17 8,356 2017 10737.00 8,947

          Programmable Logic Control No. 1 11/19/98 3,000 1998 5920.42 5,825

          Programmable Logic Control No. 2 11/19/98 3,000 1998 5920.42 5,825

          Programmable Logic Control No. 3 11/19/98 2,000 1998 5920.42 3,884

          Fisher Porter Controll No. 1 11/19/98 11,000 1998 5920.42 21,360

          Fisher Porter Controll No. 2 11/19/98 11,000 1998 5920.42 21,360

          Flow Chart Recorder 11/19/98 4,458 1998 5920.42 8,657

          Philadelphia #1 Gear Box 6/30/97 16,700 1997 5825.08 32,959

          Bearing & Seal Replacements  #1 Gearbox 06/30/12 26,004 2012 9308.17 32,117

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Rebuild (Timken Gears & Serv 04/08/14 32,850 2014 9806.00 38,513

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Norwalk mileage & motel (DA 07/08/14 884 2014 9806.00 1,036

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Rebuild (Timken Gears & Serv 07/08/14 96,951 2014 9806.00 113,663

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Sales Tax (Timken Gears & Se 07/08/14 11,634 2014 9806.00 13,640

          OLEPS No. 1 Right Angle Drive Overhaul ‐ Align Motor & Gear Drive (OL 08/31/14 2,580 2014 9806.00 3,025

          Diesel Engine Right Angle Gear Drive #2 10/03/97 26,531 1997 5825.08 52,361

            Rebuilt

          Diesel Engine Right Angle Gear Drive #3 12/29/97 24,442 1997 5825.08 48,238

            Rebuilt

          Diesel Transfer Pump & Motor 03/20/97 845 1997 5825.08 1,668

          Emergency Fleet Charger/Starter 03/20/97 325 1997 5825.08 641

          LEROI DRESSER Series 200 Air Compressor  06/19/98 1,859 1998 5920.42 3,610

          Two Pen Chart ABB Recorder 06/23/98 1,885 1998 5920.42 3,660

          Pump #1 Worthington 42" MC1 10/19/98 32,314 1998 5920.42 62,748

            SN#Z‐0015771‐1 ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #1 Wiring 6/30/18 788 2018 11062.00 819

          Pump #2 Worthington 48" MMC 03/18/98 65,029 1998 5920.42 126,274

            SN#77‐Z‐001478  ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #2 At OLEPS Low Output 09/15/17 8,027 2017 10737.00 8,595

          Pump #3 Worthington 48" MMC 07/29/98 45,688 1998 5920.42 88,717

            SN#77‐2‐001578‐2 ‐ Major repairs

Page 18 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Pump #3 Labor Allocation 06/30/17 9,542 2017 10737.00 10,217

          Pump #3 Inspection At OLEPS Pump Repair Service 08/31/17 765 2017 10737.00 819

          Pump #4 Worthington 42" MC1 06/04/98 35,610 1998 5920.42 69,148

            SN#Z‐0015771‐2 ‐ Major repairs

          Pump #4 Wiring 6/30/18 788 2018 11062.00 819

          Asco Transfer Switch Kit 06/30/05 4,889 2005 7446.08 7,548

          Emergency Power Transfer Switch 12/31/98 5,143 1998 5920.42 9,987

          Engine No. 1 Heat Exchange System 10/21/99 33,614 1999 6059.50 63,774

          Engine No. 2 Heat Exchange System 10/21/99 33,614 1999 6059.50 63,774

          Repair Retaining Wall over Tank No. 1 (Pearson Equipment & Maintena 01/27/15 796 2015 10335.00 886

          Project Permit Fee Alameda County DEH 10/21/15 719 2015 10335.00 800

          Diesel Fuel Day Tank ‐ Tramont Diesel Fuel 01/11/00 4,716 2000 6221.17 8,715

          Tank, Freight & Calcon installation

          Wet Well No. 1 Level Indicator ‐ Milltronics 02/02/00 2,410 2000 6221.17 4,454

            Probe & Calcon Installation

          Wet Well No. 2 Level Indicator ‐ Milltronics 02/02/00 2,411 2000 6221.17 4,455

            Probe & Calcon Installation

            2 VSM Pre‐lube Oil Pumps 10/22/01 921 2001 6342.08 1,669

          HVAC Renewal Project @OLPS

          Main Ventilation System Not in service 14,810

          Ventilation System Motor & Fan 4,937

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 1 988

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 1 Motor 987

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 2 987

          Engine No. 1 Fan No. 2 Motor 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 1 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 1 Motor 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No. 2 987

          Engine No. 2 Fan No.2 Motor  987

          Eff Pump No. 1 Exhaust Fan 987

          Eff Pump No. 1 Exhaust Fan Motor 987

          Eff Pump No. 4 Exhaust Fan 987

Page 19 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Eff Pump No. 4 Exhaust Fan Motor 987

          Instrumentation Flow Meter 07/18/01 4,482 2001 6342.08 8,125

          Install New Flow Meter in OLEPS Confined Space 01/31/11 1,784 2011 9069.83 2,261

          Oro Loma Flow Meter ‐ Labor 10/31/05 526 2005 7446.08 812

          Flexim Flow Meter w/ Ultrasonic Flow Transducers 01/31/11 7,971 2011 9069.83 10,104

          No. 4 Gear Box Temp Regulator 08/07/03 1,065 2003 6694.58 1,829

          Eff Pump No. 1 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 424 2004 7115.08 685

          Eff Pump No. 2 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 424 2004 7115.08 685

          Eff Pump No. 3 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 425 2004 7115.08 687

          Eff Pump No. 4 Oil Lube System 03/19/04 425 2004 7115.08 687

          Station Control, Alarm & Scada System 04/21/04 26,422 2004 7115.08 42,692

          OLPS Interior Painting 06/30/04 8,680 2004 7115.08 14,025

          Eff Pump No. 1 Gear Box Bearing Replacement 06/30/04 4,177 2004 7115.08 6,749

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades TJC & Associates PP#1‐ 06/30/15 45,462 2015 10335.00 50,571

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades TJC & Associates PP#9‐ 06/30/16 57,482 2016 10385.00 63,633

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades 1,000 Feet of Fiber Cro 02/27/15 2,000 2015 10335.00 2,225

          Effluent Pump Station Control System Upgrades Deliver Damaged Door 06/30/15 1,403 2015 10335.00 1,560

          Programmable Logic Controller Project PP #1‐6 09/15/15 89,965 2015 10335.00 100,074

          Programmable Logic Controller Project Upgrade 01/21/16 110,952 2016 10385.00 122,826

          Repair Communication System Between West Switch Gear and EBDA B 08/31/15 2,370 2015 10335.00 2,637

          Upgrade UPS & Cabinet Wiring in PLC Panel (Calcon) 01/30/16 541 2016 10385.00 599

          OLEPS DE‐PLC‐SCADA  06/30/18 10,817 2018 11062.00 11,242

          OLEPS Human Machine Interface ‐ Citect 01/20/05 1,529 2005 7446.08 2,361

              HMI 100 pt key $969.00 & installation $560.00

          Auto Transfer Switch ‐ Parts & Labor 08/31/05 3,467 2005 7446.08 5,353

          Recl Water Screen Hoist No. 1 ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Recl Water Strainer ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Recl Water Screen Hoist No. 2 ‐ Elect repair 11/30/05 812 2005 7446.08 1,254

          Oro Loma Bypass Butfly Valve 42" ‐ installation 01/31/06 666 2006 7751.25 988

          PR Distr OLEPS Valve Avtuator 08/31/17 310 2017 10737.00 332

          Limitorque MXA‐20 52RPM Electric Actuator for Pump No. 2 04/21/15 5,338 2015 10335.00 5,938

          Installed I/I Current Isolator for Pump No. 2 Valve Actuator (Calcon) 06/30/15 1,352 2015 10335.00 1,504

Page 20 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Pump No. 3 Actuator ‐ Labor (Calcon) 04/22/15 1,035 2015 10335.00 1,151

          Eimitorque MXA‐20 52RPM Electric Actuator for Pump No. 3 04/21/15 5,338 2015 10335.00 5,938

          Pump No. 3 Contact Switches  ‐ Material & Labor (Calcon) 04/28/15 321 2015 10335.00 357

          Auto Valve Operator for OVBE05 ‐ Valve & installation 01/31/06 5,614 2006 7751.25 8,326

          Master Control System Emergency Gen Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,258 2006 7751.25 1,866

          Fabricate New Portable Battery Cart with MCS Charger for Diesels 11/30/15 4,841 2015 10335.00 5,385

          Master Control System Engine No. 1 Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,248 2006 7751.25 1,851

          Master Control System Engine No. 2 Battery Charger 06/29/06 1,248 2006 7751.25 1,851

          Motor Control Center No. 1 (Siemens Energy) 10/31/07 42,364 2007 7967.00 61,131

          Motor Control Center No. 2 (Siemens Energy) 10/31/07 42,364 2007 7967.00 61,131

          Building Lighting @OLEPS (Vaden Industries) 03/10/08 16,535 2008 8309.92 22,875

          3 Ft Drain Header with 2 inch  Branches from Pump Drains, 3 inch to Su 11/15/14 10,277 2014 9806.00 12,048

          1 Inch Pipe Remove/Replace PP#1 (D.W. Nicholson) 06/30/15 4,800 2015 10335.00 5,339

          Replacement of Utility Water Line System (D.W. Nicholson) 10/29/15 42,400 2015 10335.00 47,164

          Outfall Cl2 Diffuser 06/30/17 2,714 2017 10737.00 2,905

          Exterior Painting & Mural @OLEPS 08/11/08 20,000 2008 8309.92 27,669

          Pressure Transmitter & Installation 02/13/09 1,688 2009 8570.08 2,264

          PVC Sump Pump Discharge Pipe ‐ Demo/Install 11/15/14 9,900 2014 9806.00 11,607

          Building Upgrades 06/30/17 57,728 2017 10737.00 61,811

          Concrete Slab for Overflow Weir  @OLEPS 09/17/09 14,934 2009 8570.08 20,033

          1,000 Gal Polysafe Tank for Overflow Weir @OLEPS 09/30/09 16,765 2009 8570.08 22,489

          Disinfection Control System &PLC Upgrade @OLEPS 12/31/09 44,000 2009 8570.08 59,024

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Sluice Gate & Valve Inspections @OLEPS 11/15/11 900 2011 9069.83 1,141

          Hydro Tank & High Pressure Pump System Upgrade 11/30/11 16,200 2011 9069.83 20,534

          Replace Damaged Valve Stem 04/16/12 7,135 2012 9308.17 8,812

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 1,931 2012 9308.17 2,385

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 17,376 2012 9308.17 21,461

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 1,931 2012 9308.17 2,385

          High Pressure Water Pump Replacement 06/30/12 17,376 2012 9308.17 21,461

          Philadelphia #4 Gear Box 4/18/97 18,310 1997 5825.08 36,136

Page 21 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Replace 4 Bearings, 2 Bevel Gears & 1 Pinion 10/21/04 26,812 2004 7115.08 43,322

            Shaft  ‐ Effluent Pump #4 Gear Box rebuild

          Bearing & Seal Replacements  #4 Gearbox  Dahl‐Beck 06/30/13 29,995 2013 9546.67 36,121

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Timken Gears & Service  50% PP#1&2 06/30/13 63,604 2013 9546.67 76,593

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Timken Gears & Service  PP#3 08/16/13 70,523 2013 9546.67 84,925

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ Remove & Replace ‐ DW Nicholson 08/31/13 7,495 2013 9546.67 9,026

          Effluent Pump #4 Gearbox ‐ #4 Right‐Angle Drive ‐ Travel Reimb DAS 08/31/13 2,485 2013 9546.67 2,992

          Effluent Pump #4 Back Stop Clutch (OLSD) 04/30/16 11,341 2016 10385.00 12,554

          Effluent Pump #4 Rebuild & Convert to Grease ‐filled Vertical (OLSD) 06/30/16 1,589 2016 10385.00 1,759

          75KW Generator Overhaul 10/29/12 3,548 2012 9308.17 4,382

          Standby Power At OLEPS 3/29/18 195 2018 11062.00 203

          OLEPS 4" Hellan Strainer Replacement75KW Generator Overhaul (Misc 07/29/13 6,003 2013 9546.67 7,229

          Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement Phase 1 (Trihydro Corp) 06/30/16 15,396 2016 10385.00 17,043

          Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement Phase 1 (Trihydro Corp & labor 06/30/17 57,637 2017 10737.00 61,713

          AST Above Ground Diesel Storage At OLEPS 06/30/18 194,223 2018 11062.00 201,849

          UST Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement 06/30/18 52,874 2018 11062.00 54,950

          UST Fuel Storage System Tank Replacement 06/30/18 52,874 2018 11062.00 54,950

          Day Tank Upgrade @OLEPS (Calcon) 06/30/17 6,586 2017 10737.00 7,052

          Day Tank Upgrade @OLEPS (Calcon) 06/30/18 14,716 2018 11062.00 15,294

            Total ‐ Oro Loma Pump Station 8,250,102 21,101,832

     ALVARADO PUMP STATION

          Earthwork 2/25/82 110,181 1982 3825.00 331,157

          Structure 2/25/82 280,628 1982 3825.00 843,447

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 2/25/82 191,653 1982 3825.00 576,027

          Electrical 2/25/82 243,567 1982 3825.00 732,058

          HVAC 2/25/82 32,059 1982 3825.00 96,356

          Piping‐Undergound 2/25/82 280,128 1982 3825.00 841,945

          Piping‐Above Ground 2/25/82 77,119 1982 3825.00 231,787

          OM SA1 Alignment Sys (1/5cost) 2/25/82 715 1982 3825.00 2,149

          Flo Magmeter Sensor &Indicator 9/17/90 4,571 1990 4731.92 11,105

Page 22 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Building Repair‐Earthquake damage 2/07/91 10,848 1991 4835.08 25,793

          AEPS Interior Painting 09/24/10 10,360 2010 8798.92 13,536

          AEPS Operation & Infrastructure Optimization Proj PP#1‐3 06/30/12 24,996 2012 9308.17 30,872

          AEPS Operation & Infrastructure Optimization Proj PP#4‐8 12/31/12 27,692 2012 9308.17 34,202

          Auto MA Calibrator ‐ 9/12/91 149 1991 4835.08 354

           Model #8060 (1/5cost)

          Auto Volt Calibrator ‐ 5/06/92 150 1992 4984.83 346

           Model #9060 (1/5cost)

          Test Pump Calibrator & 5/06/92 132 1992 4984.83 304

           Gauge (1/5cost)

         MCC #4 Replacement Project 05/11 5/14/92 88,179 1992 4984.83 203,363

          DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 5/31/11 161 2011 9069.83 204

          Rebuild Pump #4 08/27/93 9,621 1993 5210.42 21,228

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG (20%) 01/31/94 1,637 1994 5407.58 3,480

          Seismic Design & Eng SBG/C&G (35%) 01/23/97 59,607 1997 5825.08 117,640

          Seismic Design & Eng C&D (35%) 01/23/97 2,016 1997 5825.08 3,979

          Seismic Upgrade (D.W. Nicholson) 01/23/97 85,536 1997 5825.08 168,813

          Seismic Upgrade (D.W. Nicholson) 01/23/97 17,464 1997 5825.08 34,467

          ALVARADO EFFLUENT PUMP STATION UPGRADE $570,820

              06/30/95 $ 329,511 1995  329,511 1995 5471.17 692,386

              06/30/96    241,309 1996   241,309 1996 5622.17 0

          UNALLOCATED 1996  18,820 1996 5622.17 38,483

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 1 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 2 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 12/25/13‐03/24/14 PP#1‐3 (Beeche 03/24/14 7,755 2014 9806.00 9,092

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 08/24/14‐05/24/15 PP#4‐9 (Beeche 06/30/15 3,218 2015 10335.00 3,579

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 06/25/15‐06/30/16 PP#10‐18 (Beec 06/30/16 6,105 2016 10385.00 6,758

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2 replacement 150 hp (Royal Wholesale E 12/21/15 24,880 2015 10335.00 27,676

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 2 replacement 150 hp (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 12,410 2016 10385.00 13,738

          Design & Installation of VFD #2 12/24/16 19,199 2016 10385.00 21,254

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 3 01/27/97 33,000 1997 5825.08 65,128

Page 23 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 4 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 5 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Variable Frequency Drive & H.F. No. 6 01/27/97 38,000 1997 5825.08 74,996

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 12/25/13‐03/24/14 PP#1‐3 (Beeche 03/24/14 7,755 2014 9806.00 9,092

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 08/24/14‐05/24/15 PP#4‐9 (Beeche 06/30/15 3,218 2015 10335.00 3,580

          Prof Electrical Engineering Services 06/25/15‐06/30/16 PP#10‐18 (Beec 06/30/16 6,105 2016 10385.00 6,758

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 6 replacement 250 hp (Royal Wholesale E 12/21/15 52,871 2015 10335.00 58,812

          Variable Frequency Drive No. 6 replacement 250 hp (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 12,410 2016 10385.00 13,738

          Design & Installation of VFD #6 12/24/16 19,199 2016 10385.00 21,254

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 1 01/27/97 1,280 1997 5825.08 2,526

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 2 03/14/03 1,280 2003 6694.58 2,198

          Roof Fan & Motor No. 3 03/14/03 1,280 2003 6694.58 2,198

          Pump Room Vent Fan 03/14/03 3,000 2003 6694.58 5,152

          Alvarado Effluent Flow Meter 01/27/97 50,000 1997 5825.08 98,679

          PLC No. 1 01/27/97 13,000 1997 5825.08 25,657

          PLC No. 1 ‐ Programming & installation of new PLC 12/31/09 63,246 2009 8570.08 84,841

          PL Controller 4 MB (purchased from USD) 10/31/13 7,073 2013 9546.67 8,517

          PLC No. 2 01/27/97 13,000 1997 5825.08 25,657

          Trolley & Hoist Motors 01/27/97 8,000 1997 5825.08 15,789

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 1 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          125 HP Reliance Motor No. 1 ‐ Inspect & Repair (Vincent Electric Motor 06/30/15 4,657 2015 10335.00 5,180

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 2 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 3 01/27/97 25,000 1997 5825.08 49,340

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 4 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 5 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 01/27/97 30,000 1997 5825.08 59,208

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Inspect & Repair 01/27/97 5,233 1997 5825.08 10,328

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 18,015 2018 11062.00 18,722

          Effluent Pump Motor No. 6 ‐ Testing 06/30/18 513 2018 11062.00 533

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Balance impellar, shaft & coupling 05/31/15 1,658 2015 10335.00 1,845

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Temporary Impeller Repairs  08/12/15 3,220 2015 10335.00 3,582

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Repair Cracked Impeller 10/12/15 9,426 2015 10335.00 10,485

Page 24 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Hydraulic Profile Study @AEPS PP#1‐4 (Carollo Engineers Inc) 05/31/16 16,840 2016 10385.00 18,642

          Payroll DAS & HC ‐ Pump #1 05/31/17 471 2017 10737.00 504

          Payroll ‐ Pump #1 05/31/17 698 2017 10737.00 747

          Effluent Pump No. 1 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 99,340 2018 11062.00 103,240

          Effluent Pump No. 4 ‐ rebuild 09/14/09 14,048 2009 8570.08 18,845

          Effluent Pump No. 4 ‐ rebuild 10/24/02 5,144 2002 6538.00 9,045

          Effluent Pump No. 5 ‐ rebuild 03/31/05 11,263 2005 7446.08 17,389

          Effluent Pump No. 6 11/07/02 87,000 2002 6538.00 152,979

          Effluent Pump No. 6 ‐ Impeller repair 01/27/97 6,592 1997 5825.08 13,010

          Effluent Pump Motor #6 ‐ Rebuild Fairbanks Morse pumpInspect & Rep 05/25/05 22,325 2005 7446.08 34,468

          Payroll ‐ Pump #6 05/31/17 646 2017 10737.00 692

          Effluent Pump No. 6 ‐ Rebuild 06/30/18 44,562 2018 11062.00 46,312

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/96 06/30/18 1,641 2018 11062.00 1,705

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 786 1998 5920.42 1,526

          EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (5%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 186 1998 5920.42 361

          Rebuild Electric Motor 07/23/98 5,488 1998 5920.42 10,657

          2 Milltronics Level Sensors & installation 07/31/95 5,632 1995 5471.17 11,834

          USD Surge Tower Level Indicator 11/21/96 2,121 1996 5622.17 4,337

          Level Transducer ‐ Removed & Installed 02/20/97 1,611 1997 5825.08 3,179

          #2 Pump Impellar Replacement 09/30/08 9,336 2008 8309.92 12,916

          Surge Tower Level Transducer 03/06/97 1,184 1997 5825.08 2,337

          Repair Surge Tower Steps‐New Handrail 05/19/97 3,402 1997 5825.08 6,714

          Pump Station Control Valve Operator 01/29/99 8,560 1999 6059.50 16,240

          Pump Station Control System Modification 01/31/02 30,000 2002 6538.00 52,751

          Pump Station Control System Modification 09/30/02 9,292 2002 6538.00 16,339

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 09/30/02 839 2002 6538.00 1,475

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 07/31/02 811 2002 6538.00 1,426

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 02/19/04 839 2004 7115.08 1,356

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 07/31/02 849 2002 6538.00 1,493

          Level Control Transducer ‐ Spare 05/20/04 559 2004 7115.08 903

          Overhead Crane & Hoist ‐ Pumps 05/20/04 5,693 2004 7115.08 9,199

          Station HMI Control 01/16/04 1,575 2004 7115.08 2,545

Page 25 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/30/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/17/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Exhaust Fan Replacement  06/17/04 2,330 2004 7115.08 3,765

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 06/17/04 542 2004 7115.08 876

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ PLC CPU repair 08/31/05 1,953 2005 7446.08 3,015

          Level Control Transducer No. 1 01/31/06 1,458 2006 7751.25 2,162

          Level Control Transducer No. 2 09/29/06 1,459 2006 7751.25 2,164

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System 09/29/06 636 2006 7751.25 943

          EBDA Scada/Telemetry System 04/30/07 1,402 2007 7967.00 2,023

          Emergency Outfall Valve ‐ Valve Renewal 02/20/08 7,555 2008 8309.92 10,452

          Bearing Replacement Effluent Pump No. 4 11/12/09 4,606 2009 8570.08 6,179

          Check Valve Dampeners 03/20/97 9,010 1997 5825.08 17,782

          Refurbish Pump No. 1 Check Valve 07/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Refurbish Pump No. 2 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Refurbish Pump No. 3 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          30" Check Valve #4 Repairs @AEPS 03/31/09 11,819 2009 8570.08 15,855

          Refurbish Pump No. 4 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,667 2010 8798.92 15,244

          Inspect damaged Pump No. 4 Check Valve 12/31/12 2,500 2012 9308.17 3,088

          30" Apco Series 6000 Swing Check Valve #4 (Frank Olsen Co) 10/03/13 48,925 2013 9546.67 58,917

          Remove & Install Check Valve #4 labor & materials (DW Nicholson) 11/30/13 15,830 2013 9546.67 19,063

          Refurbish Pump No. 5 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,666 2010 8798.92 15,242

          Refurbish Pump No. 6 Check Valve 10/31/10 11,666 2010 8798.92 15,242

          AEPS VFD Assessment 02/28/13 360 2013 9546.67 434

          Electrical Engineering Services Switchboard 4 Tech Memo (Beecher Eng 08/13/16 1,080 2016 10385.00 1,196

            Total ‐ Alvarado Pump Station 3,249,963 7,140,784

DATA ACQUISITION SYSTEM

   Old System Disposed of

      Software, Testing, Training 6/3/82 43,881 1982 3825.00 131,887

      Electrical & Hardware 6/3/82 93,212 1982 3825.00 280,155

   New system

Page 26 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

      IBM ‐ AT  6/3/82 5,317 1982 3825.00 15,981

      Electrical & Harware 3/1/87 41,656 1987 4406.00 108,690

      Electrical & Harware‐Radios 6/30/87 2,264 1987 4406.00 5,907

      Epson Printer FX286E 10/31/87 593 1987 4406.00 1,547

      Remote 515 Board  8/2/88 1,472 1988 4519.00 3,745

      USA Telecommunications Systems  8/11/88 513 1988 4519.00 1,305

      Install of Printer Line  2/22/89 59 1989 4615.00 147

      Epson FX‐28 Printer  3/8/89 385 1989 4615.00 959

      Compaq‐Plus Computer  7/10/89 1,517 1989 4615.00 3,779

      Practical Perepherals 2400 Baud 8/31/89 246 1989 4615.00 613

       MNP5 External Modem

      Equinet Version 4.0 ‐ Calc Package 11/02/90 1,609 1990 4731.92 3,909

       and Manual

      Printer, Epson Model FX‐10 11/07/90 405 1990 4731.92 984

      Printer, Epson Model FX‐10 8/06/91 405 1991 4835.08 963

      386 Computer with Upgrade for 8/06/91 4,049 1991 4835.08 9,627

       Telemetry System

      DAS Antenna ‐ SCADA 1/30/92 348 1992 4984.83 803

      4 Communications Antennas 8/27/93 646 1993 5210.42 1,425

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/96 9/16/93 24,609 1993 5210.42 54,298

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/97 07/23/98 11,795 1998 5920.42 22,904

      EBDA SCADA Telemetry System (75%) 6/30/98 07/23/98 2,808 1998 5920.42 5,453

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#1 03/31/08) 07/23/98 20,746 1998 5920.42 40,285

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#2 05/30/08) 03/19/09 40,372 2009 8570.08 54,157

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#3 10/07/08) 03/19/09 13,667 2009 8570.08 18,334

EBDA SCADA Polling PLC Upgrade @Admin Office 11/30/11 22,340 2011 9069.83 28,317

     EBDA/LAVWMA SCADA System (Calcon Inv PP#4 03/25/09) 03/19/09 23,515 2009 8570.08 31,544

     SCADA System Radios (5) 03/19/09 6,761 2009 8570.08 9,070

     Antenna and Installation for SCADA 08/31/15 4,653 2015 10335.00 5,176

     Upgrade Wireless Communications 10/30/15 6,281 2015 10335.00 6,987

     Upgrades & Corrections to SCADA Radio ‐ Refurbish Serial Wireless Comm 12/30/15 1,190 2015 10335.00 1,323

     Upgrade SCADA Software to Win911 12/31/15 1,329 2015 10335.00 1,478

Page 27 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     Upgrade SCADA 06/30/17 5,583 2017 10737.00 5,978

     EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ Radio (Calcon) 12/18/09 4,151 2009 8570.08 5,568

     EBDA Scada/Telemetry System ‐ Radio (Calcon) 09/08/10 722 2010 8798.92 943

     SCADA System Communication Upgrade  06/30/18 11,115 2018 11062.00 11,551

     PC for Scada (R‐Computer) & Setup of PC & Citect (Calcon) 05/31/15 4,418 2015 10335.00 4,914

     EBDA Scada Server Replacement (R‐Computer) 08/27/13 3,474 2013 9546.67 4,183

     EBDA Scada Server Software & Hardware Update 09/26/13 2,656 2013 9546.67 3,198

      Citect SCADA Software 09/24/10 1,277 2010 8798.92 1,668

     SCADA System Upgrade 06/30/18 45,002 2018 11062.00 46,769

     SCADA System Upgrade 06/30/18 14,076 2018 11062.00 14,629

      EBDA SCADA Alarm System 10/30/95 3,308 1995 5471.17 6,951

      EBDA SCADA Alarm System 03/31/03 7,113 2003 6694.58 12,215

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 (Wonderware NorCal) 02/04/14 1,909 2014 9806.00 2,238

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 ‐ Installation (Calcon) 02/28/14 2,261 2014 9806.00 2,651

      EBDA SCADA Alarm Software WIN‐911 ‐ Labor ‐ troubleshoot (Calcon) 06/30/14 1,147 2014 9806.00 1,345

      SCADA Alarm Notification Software ‐ TopView 05/17/18 3,819 2018 11062.00 3,969

      LAVWMA SCADA Connection 03/31/03 6,983 2003 6694.58 11,992

      LAVWMA SCADA Connection 07/23/98 324 1998 5920.42 629

      Smart UPS 400 Power Backup ‐  SCADA 07/23/98 327 1998 5920.42 635

     Maintenance Monitoring Standard System Software 11/06/96 2,165 1996 5622.17 4,427

     Report Printer for Citect SCADA System 02/20/97 262 1997 5825.08 517

     CMMS Program Upgrade, Davison Software 10/28/99 1,082 1999 6059.50 2,053

     DAS Dell Computer, Monitor & UPS (Scada) 08/31/00 4,271 2000 6221.17 7,893

     EBDA Network Server 05/28/02 4,769 2002 6538.00 8,386

            Total ‐ Data Acquisition System 510,856 1,017,053

RECLAMATION FACILITIES

     SKYWEST GOLF COURSE IRRIGATION

          Earthwork 4/19/84 25,962 1984 4146.00 71,989

          Structure 4/19/84 215,344 1984 4146.00 597,120

          Mechanical & Pump. Equip. 4/19/84 55,005 1984 4146.00 152,522

Page 28 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

          Electrical 4/19/84 54,958 1984 4146.00 152,391

          Piping‐Underground 4/19/84 241,921 1984 4146.00 670,815

          Piping‐Above Ground 4/19/84 23,802 1984 4146.00 66,000

          Skywest Chlorine Analyzer 4/19/84 5,041 1984 4146.00 13,978

          Rebuild Analyzer, Parts & Labor 7/21/92 1,900 1992 4984.83 4,382

          Sky West Chlorine Analyzer 6/30/01 7,892 2001 6342.08 14,306

          Skywest Motor Control Center Modification 9/30/04 2,860 2004 7115.08 4,621

          Sky West Pump No. 1 Motor 10/28/93 3,095 1993 5210.42 6,829

          Sky West Pump No. 1 4/30/02 4,378 2002 6538.00 7,698

          Sky West Pump No. 1 (Calcon) 06/30/17 11,485 2017 10737.00 12,298

          Sky West Pump No. 2 Motor 4/30/02 3,095 2002 6538.00 5,442

          Sky West Pump No. 2 4/30/02 4,378 2002 6538.00 7,698

          Sky West Pump No. 2 (Calcon) 06/30/17 11,485 2017 10737.00 12,298

          Limitorque Valve Actuator 4/30/02 2,310 2002 6538.00 4,062

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 10/02/02 5,205 2002 6538.00 9,152

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 10/31/02 580 2002 6538.00 1,020

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 01/31/03 1,467 2003 6694.58 2,519

          Sky West Instrument Control Center 12/31/02 1,288 2002 6538.00 2,265

          Sky West Mixer Motor (North) Baldor 5hp 12/31/02 806 2002 6538.00 1,417

          Sky West Mixer Motor (South) Baldor 5hp 03/30/05 806 2005 7446.08 1,244

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) 03/30/05 1,594 2005 7446.08 2,461

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Bearing sets etc. 04/28/05 996 2005 7446.08 1,538

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Gear box & misc. 05/31/05 1,266 2005 7446.08 1,955

          Sky West Mixer Gears (South) 06/30/05 1,594 2005 7446.08 2,461

          Sky West Mixer Gears (South) ‐ Bearing sets etc. 04/28/05 995 2005 7446.08 1,536

          Sky West Mixer Gears (North) ‐ Gear box & misc. 05/31/05 1,266 2005 7446.08 1,955

          Sky West Hypo Control System Upgrade 05/31/13 20,995 2013 9546.67 25,283

          Sky West Chemical Injection Pump ‐ Relocation 03/31/15 7,535 2015 10335.00 8,381

          Sky West Hypo CL2 Dosing Line 08/31/15 8,912 2015 10335.00 9,914

          Gate Valve 8" at Recycle Line ‐ Furnish & Install 06/24/16 3,773 2016 10385.00 4,176

          Sky West Total Residual Analyzer 04/30/13 5,144 2013 9546.67 6,194

          Ultrasonic Level Transmitter & installation  (Calcon) 06/14/17 8,573 2017 10737.00 9,180

Page 29 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

            Total ‐ Reclamation Facilities 747,707 1,897,100

SUBSURFACE LINES

     BAY OUTFALL 1982  19,464,081 1982 3825.00 58,500,682

     Valve for Marina Meter Box 4/1/81 1,880 1981 3535.00 6,114

     LAVWMA Valve Vault 8/8/91 134,946 1991 4835.08 320,859

     Air/Vac Valve Project 11/3/93 1,442 1993 5210.42 3,182

     Air/Vac Valve Project 05/31/94 1,443 1994 5407.58 3,068

     Air/Vac Valve Project 05/31/94 1,443 1994 5407.58 3,068

     F.M. and Bay Outfall Inspection 05/31/94 25,446 1994 5407.58 54,097

     Fuel (Gasoline) Transfer Pump 06/01/95 374 1995 5471.17 786

     Raise Manholes H‐O ARV Key B Sta 20+05 03/20/97 2,028 1997 5825.08 4,002

     Custom Clamps (3) for Outfall Pipe (DW Nicholson) 06/30/16 27,768 2016 10385.00 30,739

     Custom Clamps (3) for Outfall Pipe (DW Nicholson) 08/18/16 1,461 2016 10385.00 1,618

     SAN LEANDRO TO MARINA FORCE MAIN 1982  3,699,150 1982 3825.00 11,118,059

     Blow‐Off Valves 4/1/81 2,527 1981 3535.00 8,218

     Air/Vac Valves 1/8/91 6,314 1991 4835.08 15,013

     MARINA TO ORO LOMA FORCE MAIN 4/8/91 5,410,434 1991 4835.08 12,864,313

          Blow‐Off Valves 4/1/81 2,526 1981 3535.00 8,215

          Air/Vac Valves 1/8/91 6,314 1991 4835.08 15,013

          Air/Vac Release Valve M‐O A/V Valve Key 4/8/91 6,391 1991 4835.08 15,196

            Sta 60+00  01/26/00 2000 6221.17 0

          Vent‐O‐Mat 8" Air/Vacuum Release Valve 02/19/04 6,745 2004 7115.08 10,898

            Sta 71+00 

     ORO LOMA TO HAYWARD FORCE MAIN

          Piping‐Underground 1982  2,734,664 1982  3825.00 8,219,227

          Cathodic Protection 4/1/81 9,504 1981 3535.00 30,908

          Air/Vac Valves 3/21/85 4,154 1985 4195.00 11,384

     HAYWARD TO ALVARADO FORCE MAIN 11/09/93

          Piping‐Underground 11/09/93 8,363,252 1993 5210.42 18,452,754

          Cathodic Protection 04/01/81 9,504 1981 3535.00 30,908

Page 30 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 4" Air Relaease Valve 03/21/85 2,331 1985 4195.00 6,388

          H‐A A/V Valve Key P Sta 249+19

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 4" Air Relaease Valve 04/30/05 2,331 2005 7446.08 3,599

          H‐A A/V Valve Key S Sta 268+94

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 04/30/05 6,377 2005 7446.08 9,846

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 08/11/08 6,377 2008 8309.92 8,822

Aquadyne Vent‐O‐Mat 6" RGX Combination Air Valve 08/11/08 6,377 2008 8309.92 8,822

New Galvanic Anodes & Replace Flush Test Station w/ 08/11/08 5,000 2008 8309.92 6,917

  Post Mounted Test Station

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 12/15/10 3,121 2010 8798.92 4,078

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,298 2011 9069.83 4,180

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,785 2011 9069.83 4,798

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 06/29/11 3,349 2011 9069.83 4,245

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 10/14/11 3,842 2011 9069.83 4,870

Force Main Air Valves 8"  T&T Valve & Instrument 10/14/11 3,842 2011 9069.83 4,870

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,454 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,454 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 4"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,453 2012 9308.17 4,265

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,652 2012 9308.17 4,510

Force Main Air Valves 6"  T&T Valve & Instrument 09/07/12 3,651 2012 9308.17 4,509

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 59+63 03/18/14 6,850 2014 9806.00 8,031

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 51+43 FM37 Hayward Marsh 10/01/14 8,400 2014 9806.00 9,848

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 70+85 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 21+58 11/17/14 4,712 2014 9806.00 5,524

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 70+48 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements for Force Main Station 13+56 11/17/14 4,711 2014 9806.00 5,523

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Manhole Improvements ‐ Epoxy Coat Manhole for Transport System Station  11/12/15 3,900 2015 10335.00 4,338

Vaults, Ebda & Lavwma ‐ Epoxy Coat Vault for Transport System 11/12/15 54,576 2015 10335.00 60,709

Page 31 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     COMPLETION CONTRACTS

          Piping‐Underground 12/31/84 0 1984 4146.00 0

     SEISMIC DESIGN SBG/C&D 01/23/97 11,647 1997 5825.08 22,986

            Total ‐ Subsurface Lines 40,111,302 109,966,930

OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

      Laser Access Switch 330

      Pacific Data 2 Meg HP Laser Jet II  4/10/90 321 1990 4731.92 780

       Ram Cartridge

      Word Processing Typewriter, 11/02/90 263 1990 4731.92 639

       Smith Corona 640DLD

      Chair, Hi‐Back Executive 10/25/91 941 1991 4835.08 2,237

      Chair, Guest 10/25/91 724 1991 4835.08 1,721

      Credenza, Martin Furn Model C67‐1 10/25/91 734 1991 4835.08 1,745

      Bookcase, Orman Grubb Mod ORM C784 10/28/91 226 1991 4835.08 537

      Chairs, Desk (5) 10/28/91 541 1991 4835.08 1,286

      Chairs, Armed Swivel Tilt (2) 11/04/91 371 1991 4835.08 882

      Chair, Armed Swivel Tilt (1) 11/01/91 181 1991 4835.08 430

      Transcribing Machine 11/08/91 292 1991 4835.08 694

      Archive Storage ‐ Records Shelving 12/29/92 1,642 1992 4984.83 3,787

      Archive Storage ‐ Records Shelving 01/24/94 862 1994 5407.58 1,833

      Archive Storage ‐ Ladder 08/13/93 412 1993 5210.42 909

      2 Disc Holders ‐ Fireking 08/13/93 561 1993 5210.42 1,238

      Software Upgrades 12/20/93 630 1993 5210.42 1,390

      American Fundware Acctg Software Upgrades V7.20 07/14/94 2,232 1994 5407.58 4,745

      Canon L777 Fax 05/31/03 3,042 2003 6694.58 5,224

      Records Retention Software 08/26/94 6,490 1994 5407.58 13,797

      Records Management Software (Versatile) 09/12/94 1,754 1994 5407.58 3,729

      Active File Storage 11/15/02 1,442 2002 6538.00 2,536

      Archive File Storage 10/14/94 990 1994 5407.58 2,105

      Binding Machine ‐ 1st Impressions 10/14/94 296 1994 5407.58 629

Page 32 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

      Bookcase ‐ Admin Asst's office 03/27/95 667 1995 5471.17 1,402

      Conference Table 09/19/95 636 1995 5471.17 1,336

      Sharp Wizard Scheduler/Calculator (replacement) 10/05/95 355 1995 5471.17 746

      Computer Equipment CCRWRP for O&M Mgr 03/31/96 2,869 1996 5622.17 5,867

      Dell ErgoBoard 108‐Key Win 95/98 Keyboard F8E208 07/11/95 24 1995 5471.17 50

      HP Laser Jet Printer 4V 04/11/01 2,045 2001 6342.08 3,707

     AFW Extended Report Writer Software 11/22/95 320 1995 5471.17 672

     HP 1600C Desk Jet Color Printer 10/03/96 1,407 1996 5622.17 2,877

     External Modem MT1932ZDX for USA 02/05/97 222 1997 5825.08 438

     Canon NP 6551 Copier 05/20/98 0 1998 5920.42 0

     Sharp MX5111N Copier/Printer/Scanner 02/28/13 12,480 2013 9546.67 15,029

     Konica Bizhub C558 Copier/Printer/Scanner 06/14/18 12,803 2018 11062.00 13,305

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Tape/Software GM 12/21/07 3,001 2007 7967.00 4,330

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Tape/Software Admin 01/15/99 2,372 1999 6059.50 4,500

     Dell Inspiron 3500/Software/Acc Scada Laptop 01/15/99 2,916 1999 6059.50 5,532

     Dell XPS R450/Monitor/Zip/Software Acctg 01/15/99 2,238 1999 6059.50 4,246

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  Acctg 01/15/99 127 1999 6059.50 241

     Dell Precision 340, 2.3 GHz Acctg Computer & UPS 01/15/99 2,446 1999 6059.50 4,641

        (Converted to Server 01/15/09)

     Dell XPS 420 , Q9400(2.66GHZ),DCT, 6MB  (11/14/08) 12/01/02 1,778 2002 6538.00 3,126

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  GM 01/15/09 127 2009 8570.08 170

     Dell Back‐Ups 500VA Accs  Admin 01/15/99 127 1999 6059.50 241

     Dell Scada Laptop Accessories 01/15/99 86 1999 6059.50 163

     Epson FX‐2180 Dot Matrix Printer‐Acctg 01/15/99 581 1999 6059.50 1,102

     ATS Communications Telephone System 02/26/99 11,942 1999 6059.50 22,657

     Deluxe ESI Telephone System @ Admin office 09/23/99 4,603 1999 6059.50 8,733

     Multi Task Arm Chair 10/29/09 346 2009 8570.08 464

     Network Equipment ‐ Dell Office Connect 16 Port 09/25/00 529 2000 6221.17 978

       10/100 Dual Speed Hub, 3 3Com Fast Etherlink 03/27/01 2001 6342.08 0

       10/100 PCI NIC w/WOL & Cables

     Dell Jet Direct 300X Office Connect Ext, 10/100 04/04/01 265 2001 6342.08 480

       Base‐TX Single Port J4101B#ABA Switcher for printer

Page 33 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

     Dell Back‐UPS 500 BK500MC 04/04/01 164 2001 6342.08 297

     Dell Dimension 4100 Series, Pentium III, 19" 04/11/01 2,649 2001 6342.08 4,802

        Monitor & Upgrades

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ General Manager 04/23/01 103 2001 6342.08 187

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ Operations Manager 06/14/02 103 2002 6538.00 181

     Verizon Cellular Phone ‐ Operations Manager 06/14/02 330 2002 6538.00 580

     Label maker & adapter 02/19/04 219 2004 7115.08 354

     Dell Dimension 8300 + UPS O&M Mgr 09/19/02 2,162 2002 6538.00 3,802

     HPdx2400 PC Harddrive ‐ O&M Mgr 04/07/04 567 2004 7115.08 916

     Dell Dimension 8300 + UPS Admin Asst 06/22/09 2,162 2009 8570.08 2,900

     Dell Latitude D630 Laptop & Accessories ‐ CSL Operator 04/07/04 2,009 2004 7115.08 3,246

     HP5500C Flatbed Scanner 11/17/08 335 2008 8309.92 463

     HP4600dn Color Laser Printer 04/07/04 2,734 2004 7115.08 4,418

     Brother Intellifax‐4100 Laser 04/07/04 299 2004 7115.08 483

     Dell XPS 400 Computer System ‐ GM 08/31/05 2,860 2005 7446.08 4,416

     Computer System ‐ Create Build w/ Acer 24"LCD Monitor GM 12/07/05 1,595 2005 7446.08 2,463

     Dell Lattitude, D620 Laptop & Accessories 05/12/11 0 2011 9069.83 0

     HP 6735b Business Notebook ‐ GM 8/07/06 964 2006 7751.25 1,430

     Canon SD850 IS 8MB Digital Camera 05/30/09 304 2009 8570.08 408

     BenQ MP512 Projector 12/06/07 549 2007 7967.00 792

     Equipment to Upgrade Internet Services @ EBDA Opr & Admin Bldg 02/25/15 1,537 2015 10335.00 1,709

     Backup Generator @ Admin Office 05/28/09 19,950 2009 8570.08 26,762

            Total ‐ Office Furniture & Equipment 134,183 220,518

FIELD EQUIPMENT

      Survey Equipment 12/1/81 823 1981 3535.00 2,677

      Portable Sump Pump 12/1/81 527 1981 3535.00 1,714

      Pressure Recorders 8/16/83 2,131 1983 4066.00 6,025

      Oxygen Alarm 5/1/87 1,514 1987 4406.00 3,950

      Orion Oxygen Meter 9/7/88 980 1988 4519.00 2,493

      2‐Oki 900 Portable Cellular Phones 2/22/90 2,669 1990 4731.92 6,484

Page 34 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



East Bay Dischargers Authority

Fixed Asset Valuation  ENR‐Construction Cost Index (20‐Cities Avg), January 2020: 11,496.31

Based on Fixed Asset Schedule 06/30/18

Asset Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition ENR CCI ENR‐Adjusted

Description Date Cost Year Acquisition Yr Cost

       w/ accessories

      Electronic Metering Pump 4/23/91 955 1991 4835.08 2,271

      Emergency Standby Generator‐175KW 4/23/91 57,911 1991 4835.08 137,694

       Caterpillar Genset Model 3208

      Temperature Sensor for Electrical Systems 6/11/91 693 1991 4835.08 1,648

      Spray Painting Equipment 10/23/92 362 1992 4984.83 835

      Fischer & Porter Programmer 11/09/92 1,624 1992 4984.83 3,745

      Camera & Accessories ‐ Yashica 5/31/93 206 1993 5210.42 455

      Meter Calibrator Kit 12/03/93 658 1993 5210.42 1,452

            Total ‐ Field Equipment 71,053 171,443

AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT

      Ford Ranger XL 4WD Truck 1999 06/17/99 0 1999 6059.50 0

      Ford Ranger 4WD & Tool Box 2007 08/31/07 19,718 2007 7967.00 28,453

          Total ‐ Automotive Equipment 19,718 28,453

TOTALS 60,471,959 157,342,690

Page 35 of 35DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



APPENDIX D

Water Use & Estimated Wastewater Demand

Per Single Family & Multi‐Family Dwelling Unit

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table D‐1

Union Sanitary District 2005/06 ‐ 2008/09

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Single Family Residential

Estimated Average  Average  Estimated Average  Average 

Single Family Annual  Monthly  Single Family Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd)  Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd) 

2005/06 2006/07

Jul 31,917,962 69,636 458 Jul 32,032,430 70,091 457

Aug 28,981,378 69,636 416 Aug 31,714,390 70,091 452

Sep 26,440,793 69,636 380 Sep 26,363,887 70,091 376

Oct 24,453,641 69,636 351 Oct 21,644,122 70,091 309

Nov 18,684,974 69,636 268 Nov 17,560,983 70,091 251

Dec 15,917,410 69,636 229 Dec 16,768,230 70,091 239

Jan 16,549,794 69,636 238 Jan 16,739,586 70,091 239

Feb 13,353,399 69,636 192 Feb 15,768,051 70,091 225

Mar 13,690,339 69,636 197 Mar 18,586,703 70,091 265

Apr 18,306,106 69,636 263 Apr 20,133,252 70,091 287

May 24,499,917 69,636 352 May 26,058,618 70,091 372

Jun 28,161,814 69,636 404 Jun 29,211,011 70,091 417

Total 260,957,525 69,636 312 Total 272,581,263 70,091 324

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 214 Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 238

2007/08 2008/09

Jul 27,619,267 70,857 390 Jul 27,582,753 71,085 388

Aug 27,770,560 70,857 392 Aug 27,454,617 71,085 386

Sep 25,557,682 70,857 361 Sep 24,635,000 71,085 347

Oct 20,453,942 70,857 289 Oct 19,661,080 71,085 277

Nov 17,847,497 70,857 252 Nov 18,132,509 71,085 255

Dec 17,862,409 70,857 252 Dec 17,813,336 71,085 251

Jan 16,234,270 70,857 229 Jan 15,111,216 71,085 213

Feb 15,039,885 70,857 212 Feb 13,907,274 71,085 196

Mar 19,405,819 70,857 274 Mar 17,279,816 71,085 243

Apr 21,591,617 70,857 305 Apr 19,390,157 71,085 273

May 25,701,180 70,857 363 May 24,777,456 71,085 349
Jun 28,635,732 70,857 404 Jun 25,970,982 71,085 365

Total 263,719,860 70,857 310 Total 251,716,198 71,085 295

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 236 Avg Use for Lowest 4 Months 225

4‐Year Average Use for 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 228

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table D‐2 2017/18 ‐ 2018/19

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Single Family Residential

Single Family Est Average Average 

Residential Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts  Use (gpd) 

2017/18

Jul 18,853,129 73,231 257

Aug 19,630,068 73,231 268

Sep 17,922,698 73,231 245

Oct 16,329,720 73,231 223

Nov 13,867,265 73,231 189

Dec 13,017,312 73,231 178

Jan 13,690,092 73,231 187

Feb 11,686,185 73,231 160

Mar 12,399,927 73,231 169

Apr 13,366,887 73,231 183

May 16,463,492 73,231 225

Jun 18,235,504 73,231 249

Total 185,462,281 73,231 211

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 173

2018/19

Jul 19,128,308 73,530 260

Aug 19,674,781 73,530 268

Sep 17,394,444 73,530 237

Oct 16,552,168 73,530 225

Nov 14,839,729 73,530 202

Dec 12,666,909 73,530 172

Jan 12,548,351 73,530 171

Feb 11,062,141 73,530 150

Mar 11,946,304 73,530 162

Apr 12,830,435 73,530 174

May 10,746,755 73,530 146
Jun n/a 73,530 n/a

Total 159,390,327 73,530 197

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 164

2‐Year Average of 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 169

Note: Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use 

was partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared state 

of drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table 4 2005/06 ‐ 2008/09

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Multi‐Family Residential

Estimated Estimated Average  Estimated Estimated Average 

Multi‐Family Annual  Monthly  Multi‐Family Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd) Accounts
1 
Use (gpd)  Use (gpd) Accounts

1 
Use (gpd) 

2005/06 2006/07

Jul 8,680,492 33,863 256 Jul 8,861,092 34,192 259

Aug 8,717,198 33,863 257 Aug 8,860,478 34,192 259

Sep 8,257,184 33,863 244 Sep 8,347,415 34,192 244

Oct 7,236,807 33,863 214 Oct 7,612,253 34,192 223

Nov 6,007,978 33,863 177 Nov 6,491,403 34,192 190

Dec 6,004,021 33,863 177 Dec 6,600,660 34,192 193

Jan 7,054,528 33,863 208 Jan 6,582,734 34,192 193

Feb 6,015,573 33,863 178 Feb 6,002,018 34,192 176

Mar 5,328,796 33,863 157 Mar 6,936,123 34,192 203

Apr 6,080,335 33,863 180 Apr 6,800,171 34,192 199

May 7,645,838 33,863 226 May 7,646,349 34,192 224

Jun 8,182,595 33,863 242 Jun 8,180,212 34,192 239

Total 85,211,345 33,863 210 Total 88,920,907 34,192 217

Avg Use for 4 Low Months 180 Avg Use for 4 Low Months 188

2007/08 2008/09

Jul 8,314,997 34,350 242 Jul 8,138,530 34,551 236

Aug 8,586,722 34,350 250 Aug 7,965,072 34,551 231

Sep 7,212,264 34,350 210 Sep 7,785,697 34,551 225

Oct 6,327,881 34,350 184 Oct 6,433,373 34,551 186

Nov 6,371,319 34,350 185 Nov 6,074,098 34,551 176

Dec 6,622,925 34,350 193 Dec 6,721,275 34,551 195

Jan 6,763,158 34,350 197 Jan 6,481,160 34,551 188

Feb 6,316,691 34,350 184 Feb 5,782,613 34,551 167

Mar 6,778,513 34,350 197 Mar 6,470,568 34,551 187

Apr 6,637,245 34,350 193 Apr 6,788,251 34,551 196

May 7,842,157 34,350 228 May 7,472,109 34,551 216
Jun 8,795,937 34,350 256 Jun 7,847,913 34,551 227

Total 86,569,809 34,350 210 Total 83,960,657 34,551 203

Avg Use for 4 Low Months 190 Avg Use for 4 Low Months 181

4‐Year Average Use for 4 Lowest Continguous Months (gpd) 185

1 Based on census data for total housing units less number of ACWD single family residences; 

   assumes a 100% occupancy rate.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Table 5 2017/18 ‐ 2018/19

Union Sanitary District

ACWD Average Monthly Water Use

Multi‐Family Residential

Multi‐Family Estimated Average 

Residential Annual  Monthly 

Use (gpd)1 Accounts2
Use (gpd) 

2017/18

Jul 7,362,353 40,842 180

Aug 7,643,045 40,842 187

Sep 7,192,913 40,842 176

Oct 6,765,772 40,842 166

Nov 6,007,598 40,842 147

Dec 5,960,595 40,842 146

Jan 6,471,322 40,842 158

Feb 5,633,821 40,842 138

Mar 5,826,160 40,842 143

Apr 6,060,260 40,842 148

May 6,877,735 40,842 168

Jun 7,044,598 40,842 172

Total 78,846,172 40,842 161

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 146

2018/19

Jul 7,194,161 41,636 173

Aug 7,420,634 41,636 178

Sep 6,835,568 41,636 164

Oct 6,686,958 41,636 161

Nov 6,268,795 41,636 151

Dec 5,795,118 41,636 139

Jan 6,048,515 41,636 145

Feb 5,393,309 41,636 130

Mar 5,647,630 41,636 136

Apr 5,969,257 41,636 143

May 6,755,705 41,636 162
Jun n/a 41,636 n/a

Total 70,015,650 41,636 153

Avg Use for Lowest 4 Continguous Months 137

2‐Year Average of 4 Lowest Contiguous Months (gpd) 142

1 Excludes water use from Multi‐Family Irrigation meters.

2 Based on census data for total housing units less number of ACWD single family residences; 

   assumes a 100% occupancy rate.

Note: Water demand from the past two fiscal years represents a period in which water use was 

partially rebounding from reduced levels experienced during California's declared state of 

drought emergency from Jan‐2014 through Apr‐2017.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



Union Sanitary District

APPENDIX E

20‐Year Capital Improvement Program

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage 250 250

800 1 Prog/Des Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops) 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 72,400

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repairs 200 1,500 1,600 3,300

800 3 FMC Storage 300 300

800 3 Des/Constr Plant Paving 200 250 300 200 950

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement 150 150

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado 0

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport 50 50

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington 150 150

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700

Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550

Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities 700 10,450 42,500 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,550

Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities 0 50 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200

COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 500 500 500 500 500 2,500

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation 50 1,000 1,050

800 2 Design Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 7,500

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin) 350 3,500 3,850

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin) 300 3,000 3,300

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin) 350 3,500 3,850

900 3 Stevenson at Davis St. 200 1,500 1,700

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750

Total Priority 1 Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050
Total Priority 2 Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000
Total Priority 3 Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700

Total Fund 800 - Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 850 5,000 500 22,050
Total Fund 900 - Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700

1 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station 250 250

800 2 Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Transport 300 500 150 150 1,100

900 1 Design Cherry St. PS 400 1,400 1,200 3,000

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington 75 250 550 875

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark 1,500 4,600 10,800 16,900

800 1 Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3 500 500 1,000

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4 550 500 1,050

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation 0

800 3 Hayward Marsh Decommissioning 100 1,000 1,100

800 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375
900 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs 425 2,050 900 3,375

800 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 100 1,050 1,600 2,750
900 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro 100 1,050 1,600 2,750

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs 550 2,500 1,050 4,100

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R 2,150 3,850 1,000 200 7,200

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 2,250

800 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800
900 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management 500 300 800

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025

Total Priority 1 Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

Total Priority 2 Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825

Total Priority 3 Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550

Total Fund 800 - Transport System 1,400 2,750 3,850 2,400 675 6,300 2,150 1,000 2,900 1,550 24,975

Total Fund 900 - Transport System 1,000 2,750 2,800 0 425 2,050 900 2,125 7,350 12,650 32,050

2 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Des/Costr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improvemen 400 1,900 2,000 4,300

800 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500
900 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps 250 1,250 1,500

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1 2,100 2,100 4,200

800 2 Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 2 500 3,400 3,900

800 2 Des/Constr Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2 100 700 800

800 2 Des/Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant 75 900 500 150 150 1,775

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements 200 1,900 1,200 3,300

800 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250
900 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement 350 500 3,700 3,700 8,250

800 2 Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement 600 2,400 2,400 5,400

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement 550 550

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement 500 500

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit 100 1,000 1,100

800 2 Contact Tank Improvements 250 250

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements 650 4,400 1,950 7,000

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement 0

800 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650
900 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements 950 5,400 2,300 8,650

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity 0

800 3 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 400 3,600 4,000

800 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 1,500 1,000 2,500

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab 0

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab 450 4,100 4,550

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab 450 4,300 4,750

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab 400 3,300 3,700

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab 0

3 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

900 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 7 2,000 13,000 10,000 25,000

800 3 Diffuser Replacement 0

800 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650
900 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements 500 150 650

800 2 Flares Replacement 700 5,300 6,000
900 2 Flares Replacement 0

800 2 Headworks Gates 0

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,680 420 2,100
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement 1,120 280 1,400

800 2 MCC Replacement 100 900 50 500 1,550

800 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300
900 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications 1,000 5,100 11,200 11,200 2,800 31,300

800 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950
900 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers 1,900 3,450 27,350 18,250 50,950

800 1 MP - Effluent Facilities 2,000 3,000 21,400 21,400 47,800

900 1 MP - Plant Equalization Storage 550 1,650 17,300 19,500

800 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0
900 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round) 0

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements 850 1,700 7,500 5,700 1,500 17,250

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements 100 900 1,000

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 700 2,800 3,500
900 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear 0

800 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 700 3,500 4,200
900 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear 0

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source 0

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R 100 150 2,000 500 1,000 3,750

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Projects 2,400 3,000 800 6,200

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network 50 150 75 500 775

800 2 Des/Constr Plant Grating Replacement 50 50

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 4,500

800 2 PLC Replacement 250 300 350 900

4 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 400 2,900 1,300 4,600
900 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade 0

800 75 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 375 750 4,125 4,125 750 10,125
900 25 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6) 125 250 1,375 1,375 250 3,375

800 3 Reclaimed Water 0
900 3 Reclaimed Water 0

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab 350 3,200 3,550

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab 400 3,400 3,800

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures 200 300 300 300 1,100

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements 200 400 1,400 1,150 3,150

800 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175
900 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement 100 75 175

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 1,500 12,500 10,000 4,000 28,000

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 3 0

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 100 800 350 1,250
900 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement 0

800 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 150 1,000 500 1,650
900 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement 0

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation 200 1,700 750 2,650

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 0

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners 500 3,000 4,000 500 8,000

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy 0

Total for TREATMENT PLANT 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant 9,830 33,370 44,775 29,450 72,350 64,125 14,175 17,675 23,550 7,900 317,200
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant 7,445 26,480 29,175 13,150 34,800 25,875 20,325 2,425 6,650 2,300 168,625

5 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 10-Year Total

Administrative Facilities 700 10,500 42,650 19,400 300 200 300 1,500 1,800 400 77,750
Collection System 1,550 1,500 1,800 3,500 1,500 850 5,000 1,050 6,500 500 23,750
Transport System 2,400 5,500 6,650 2,400 1,100 8,350 3,050 3,125 10,250 14,200 57,025
Treatment Plant 17,275 59,850 73,950 42,600 107,150 90,000 34,500 20,100 30,200 10,200 485,825

GRAND TOTAL 21,925 77,350 125,050 67,900 110,050 99,400 42,850 25,775 48,750 25,300 644,350

R&R (Fund 800) Total 13,480 48,070 92,925 54,750 74,825 71,475 21,625 21,025 33,250 10,350 441,775
Capacity (Fund 900) Total 8,445 29,280 32,125 13,150 35,225 27,925 21,225 4,750 15,500 14,950 202,575

+
Priority 1

Administrative Facilities 500 10,400 42,100 19,400 0 200 0 1,500 1,600 0 75,700
Collection System 50 1,000 300 3,000 0 350 3,500 350 3,500 0 12,050
Transport System 1,900 3,050 1,700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

Treatment Plant 10,300 46,600 60,200 28,200 82,250 60,650 17,300 0 0 0 305,500
Total Priority 1 Projects 12,750 61,050 104,300 50,600 82,250 61,200 20,800 1,850 5,100 0 399,900

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities 0 100 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 550

Collection System 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 10,000
Transport System 500 2,100 3,700 0 850 4,250 1,800 2,675 10,000 13,950 39,825

Treatment Plant 6,975 12,850 10,150 13,650 18,400 28,900 12,700 16,250 25,900 10,200 155,975
Total Priority 2 Projects 8,975 15,550 15,650 14,150 20,750 33,650 16,000 19,425 37,400 24,800 206,350

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities 200 0 250 0 300 0 300 0 200 250 1,500

Collection System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 1,500 0 1,700
Transport System 0 350 1,250 2,400 250 4,100 1,250 450 250 250 10,550

Treatment Plant 0 400 3,600 750 6,500 450 4,500 3,850 4,300 0 24,350
Total Priority 3 Projects 200 750 5,100 3,150 7,050 4,550 6,050 4,500 6,250 500 38,100

6 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

800 3 Additional CS (Vehicle) Storage

800 1 Prog/Des Campus Buildings (Admin, FMC, Ops)

800 1 Field Ops Bldg. Sesmic Upgrade and Leak Repair

800 3 FMC Storage

800 3 Des/Constr Plant Paving

800 2 Radio Repeater Antenna Replacement

800 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado
900 50 3 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Alvarado

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Carport

800 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington
900 50 2 Solar Panels/Inverters Replacement at Irvington

Total for ADMINISTRATIVE FACILITIES

Total Priority 1 Administrative Facilities

Total Priority 2 Administrative Facilities

Total Priority 3 Administrative Facilities

Total Fund 800 - Administrative Facilities

Total Fund 900 - Administrative Facilities

COLLECTION  SYSTEM

800 2 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining

800 1 Design Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation

800 2 Design Gravity Sewer Rehab/Replacement

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Alvarado Basin)

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Irvington Basin)

800 1 RCP Sewer Rehab (Newark Basin)

900 3 Stevenson at Davis St.

 Total for COLLECTION SYSTEM

Total Priority 1 Collection System
Total Priority 2 Collection System
Total Priority 3 Collection System

Total Fund 800 - Collection System
Total Fund 900 - Collection System

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

250

72,400

3,300

300

200 200 200 200 200 1,950

150

150 150
150 150

300 350
300 350

900 1,050
900 1,050

200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700

0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950

200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800

200 300 1,100 0 350 0 200 0 200 0 79,900

0 300 900 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 1,550

500 500 500 500 4,500

1,050

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 15,000

3,850

3,300

3,850

1,700

1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 31,550
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

7 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

TRANSPORT SYSTEM

800 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station
900 50 2 Alameda Creek Crossing Lift Station

800 2 Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Transport

900 1 Design Cherry St. PS

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Irvington

900 2 Equalization Storage @ Newark

800 1 Constr Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 3

800 1 Forcemain Corrosion Repairs - Phase 4

800 3 Forcemain Rehabilitation

800 3 Hayward Marsh Decommissioning

800 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs
900 50 2 Irvington PS Pumps and VFDs

800 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro
900 50 2 Newark and Irvington PS Chemical System Impro

800 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs
900 50 2 Newark PS Pumps and VFDs

800 3 Pump Station Asset Condition Assessment R&R

800 3 Transport System Misc. Projects

800 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management
900 50 1 Planning Wet Weather Flow Management

Total for TRANSPORT SYSTEM

Total Priority 1 Transport System

Total Priority 2 Transport System

Total Priority 3 Transport System

Total Fund 800 - Transport System

Total Fund 900 - Transport System

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

2,500 1,500 4,250
2,500 1,500 4,250

150 150 150 1,550

3,000

875

16,900

1,000

1,050

1,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 53,000

1,100

3,375
3,375

2,750
2,750

4,100
4,100

4,750 100 5,900 10,250 28,200

250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 4,750

800
800

5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650
0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275

5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050

5,000 3,900 14,750 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 105,925
0 2,500 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,050

8 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

TREATMENT PLANT

900 2 Des/Costr Aeration Blower 11 and East Blower Bldg Improvemen

800 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps
900 50 2 Aeration Internal Lift Pumps

800 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1
900 50 2 Constr Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 1

800 2 Alvarado Influent PS Improvements-Phase 2

800 2 Des/Constr Alvarado Influent Valve Box Gate Valves 1-2

800 2 Des/Constr Cathodic Protection Improvements - Plant

800 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements
900 50 2 Design Centrifuge Building Improvements

800 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement
900 50 2 Centrifuge Replacement

800 2 Centrifuge System Equipment Replacement

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 1 60K Block Replacement

800 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement
900 50 1 Cogen Engine No. 2 60K Block Replacement

800 50 2 Cogen Retrofit
900 50 2 Cogen Retrofit

800 2 Contact Tank Improvements

800 2 Control Box No. 1 Improvements

800 2 Degritter Building Roof (Seismic) Replacement

800 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements
900 50 2 Degritting at Headworks and Improvements

900 3 Digester Additional Capacity

800 3 Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab

800 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 3 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 4 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 5 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 6 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Digester No. 7 Insp & Rehab

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

4,300

1,500
1,500

4,200
4,200

3,900

800

150 150 150 150 150 2,525

3,300
3,300

8,250
8,250

5,400

650 1,200
650 1,200

600 750 1,850
600 750 1,850

1,100
1,100

250

7,000

600 3,400 1,400 5,400

8,650
8,650

0

600 5,700 10,300

600 5,300 8,400

450 4,150 4,600

4,550

4,750

600 4,300

550 5,200 5,750

9 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

900 1 Des/Constr Digester No. 7

800 3 Diffuser Replacement

800 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements
900 50 2 Des/Constr Emergency Outfall Outlet Improvements

800 2 Flares Replacement
900 2 Flares Replacement

800 2 Headworks Gates

800 60 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement
900 40 1 Constr Headworks Screens Replacement

800 2 MCC Replacement

800 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications
900 50 1 Design MP - Aeration Basin Modifications

800 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers
900 50 1 MP - Secondary Clarifiers

800 1 MP - Effluent Facilities

900 1 MP - Plant Equalization Storage

800 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round)
900 50 3 MP - Nutrient Removal (Level 2 Year-round)

800 2 Odor Scrubber System Improvements

800 2 Plant 1 and 2 Water System Improvements

800 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear
900 2 Plant 5kV Switchgear

800 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear
900 2 Plant 12kV Switchgear

800 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source
900 50 3 Plant Additional Power Source

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment R&R

800 2 Plant Asset Condition Assessment Projects

800 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network
900 50 2 Plant Fiber Optic Network

800 2 Des/Constr Plant Grating Replacement

800 2 Plant Mechanical and Electrical Projects

800 2 PLC Replacement

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

25,000

950 750 1,700

650
650

6,000
0

500 3,500 4,000

2,100
1,400

1,550

31,300
31,300

50,950
50,950

47,800

19,500

2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750
2,600 10,750 34,000 45,400 92,750

400 3,000 1,300 7,000 4,400 7,500 3,700 3,500 800 6,300 55,150

1,000

3,500
0

4,200
0

250 2,000 2,750 5,000
250 2,000 2,750 5,000

200 300 4,500 1,150 2,650 400 200 0 400 0 13,550

3,350 3,350 3,350 16,250

775
775

50

500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 9,500

400 450 1,750

10 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

800 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade
900 1 Primary Clarifier (1 - 4) Sesmic Upgrade

800 75 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6)
900 25 2 Des/Constr Primary Clarifier Rehab (5-6)

800 3 Reclaimed Water
900 3 Reclaimed Water

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 1 Insp & Rehab

800 3 Secondary Digester No. 2 Insp & Rehab

800 2 Seismic Retrofit of Conc. Structures

800 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements
900 50 2 Site Drainage Improvements

800 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement
900 50 2 Sludge Recirculation Pump Replacement

800 1 Des/Constr Standby Power Generation System Upgrade

900 3 Standby Power Generator No. 3

800 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement
900 2 Switchboard 3 Replacement

800 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement
900 2 Switchboard 4 Replacement

800 2 Thickeners 1 and 2 Rehabilitation

800 3 Thickeners 3 and 4 Rehabilitation

800 1 Design WAS Thickeners

900 3 Waste Recycling and Alternative Energy

Total for TREATMENT PLANT

Total Priority 1 Treatment Plant
Total Priority 2 Treatment Plant
Total Priority 3 Treatment Plant

Total Fund 800 - Treatment Plant
Total Fund 900 - Treatment Plant

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

4,600
0

10,125
3,375

0
0

500 4,700 8,750

550 5,000 9,350

300 300 300 300 300 2,600

3,150
3,150

100 275
100 275

28,000

2,300 14,500 7,200 24,000

1,250
0

1,650
0

2,650

650 3,000 3,650

8,000

500 5,000 5,500

7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700

6,600 14,500 15,750 11,250 14,700 12,500 17,850 16,550 49,100 55,550 531,550
1,100 5,000 100 650 0 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 297,975

11 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 20-Year CIP
FISCAL YEARS 2020-2039 (Figures x $1,000)

Fund % Rank Status Project Name

Administrative Facilities
Collection System
Transport System
Treatment Plant

GRAND TOTAL

R&R (Fund 800) Total
Capacity (Fund 900) Total

Priority 1
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 1 Projects

Priority 2
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 2 Projects

Priority 3
Administrative Facilities

Collection System
Transport System

Treatment Plant
Total Priority 3 Projects

FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35 FY36 FY37 FY38 FY39 20-Year Total

200 600 2,000 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 81,450
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 33,250
5,000 6,400 16,250 13,250 13,500 19,150 250 10,650 250 250 141,975
7,700 19,500 15,850 11,900 14,700 12,500 22,750 42,050 93,050 103,700 829,525

14,400 27,000 35,600 25,650 30,200 32,150 24,700 53,200 95,000 103,950 1,086,200

13,300 19,200 33,100 25,000 30,050 32,150 19,800 27,700 51,050 55,800 748,925
1,100 7,800 2,500 650 150 0 4,900 25,500 43,950 48,150 337,275

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,700
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,050
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,650

1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 315,400
1,200 0 0 1,900 5,300 0 0 0 1,500 0 409,800

0 600 1,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,950
1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 500 1,500 0 19,500

0 5,150 3,000 0 150 0 0 150 0 0 48,275
6,000 14,050 11,700 9,050 8,000 8,400 4,850 4,450 2,150 6,800 231,425
7,500 20,300 18,000 9,550 9,650 8,900 6,350 5,100 3,650 6,800 302,150

200 0 200 0 500 0 200 0 200 0 2,800
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,700

5,000 1,250 13,250 13,250 13,350 19,150 250 10,500 250 250 87,050
500 5,450 4,150 950 1,400 4,100 17,900 37,600 89,400 96,900 282,700

5,700 6,700 17,600 14,200 15,250 23,250 18,350 48,100 89,850 97,150 374,250

12 of 12

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



APPENDIX F

California Government Code

Pertaining to Water & Wastewater Capacity Charges

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



California Government Code 
Key Sections Pertaining to Water & Wastewater Capacity Charges 

Sections 66013, 66016, 66022 & 66023 

 
66013 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, when a local agency imposes fees for 

water connections or sewer connections, or  imposes capacity charges,  those  fees or 

charges  shall not exceed  the estimated  reasonable  cost of providing  the  service  for 

which the fee or charge is imposed, unless a question regarding the amount of the fee 

or charge imposed in excess of the estimated reasonable cost of providing the services 

or materials  is submitted to, and approved by, a popular vote of two‐thirds of those 

electors voting on the issue. 

(b) As used in this section: 

(1) “Sewer connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public 

sewer system. 

(2) “Water connection” means the connection of a structure or project to a public 

water system, as defined in subdivision (f) of Section 116275 of the Health and Safety 

Code. 

(3) “Capacity charge” means a charge for public facilities in existence at the time a 

charge is imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed 

in  the  future  that  are  of  proportional  benefit  to  the  person  or  property  being 

charged,  including  supply  or  capacity  contracts  for  rights  or  entitlements,  real 

property interests, and entitlements and other rights of the local agency involving 

capital expense  relating  to  its use of existing or new public  facilities. A “capacity 

charge” does not include a commodity charge. 

(4) “Local agency” means a local agency as defined in Section 66000. 

(5) “Fee”  means  a  fee  for  the  physical  facilities  necessary  to  make  a  water 

connection or sewer connection, including, but not limited to, meters, meter boxes, 

and pipelines  from  the  structure or project  to a water distribution  line or  sewer 

main, and that does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of labor and materials 

for installation of those facilities. 

(6) “Public facilities” means public facilities as defined in Section 66000. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



(c) A  local  agency  receiving  payment  of  a  charge  as  specified  in  paragraph  (3)  of 

subdivision  (b) shall deposit  it  in a separate capital  facilities  fund with other charges 

received, and account for the charges in a manner to avoid any commingling with other 

moneys of  the  local agency, except  for  investments, and shall expend  those charges 

solely  for  the  purposes  for  which  the  charges  were  collected.  Any  interest  income 

earned from the investment of moneys in the capital facilities fund shall be deposited in 

that fund. 

(d) For a fund established pursuant to subdivision (c), a local agency shall make available 

to  the  public,  within  180  days  after  the  last  day  of  each  fiscal  year,  the  following 

information for that fiscal year: 

(1) A description of the charges deposited in the fund. 

(2) The  beginning  and  ending  balance of  the  fund  and  the  interest  earned  from 

investment of moneys in the fund. 

(3) The amount of charges collected in that fiscal year. 

(4) An identification of all of the following: 

(A) Each public improvement on which charges were expended and the amount 

of the expenditure for each improvement, including the percentage of the total 

cost of the public improvement that was funded with those charges if more than 

one source of funding was used. 

(B) Each  public  improvement  on  which  charges  were  expended  that  was 

completed during that fiscal year. 

(C) Each  public  improvement  that  is  anticipated  to  be  undertaken  in  the 

following fiscal year. 

(5) A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the capital facilities 

fund. The  information provided,  in the case of an  interfund transfer, shall  identify 

the public improvements on which the transferred moneys are, or will be, expended. 

The information, in the case of an interfund loan, shall include the date on which the 

loan will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the fund will receive on the loan. 

(e) The  information required pursuant to subdivision (d) may be  included  in the  local 

agency’s annual financial report. 

(f) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall not apply to any of the following: 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



(1) Moneys received to construct public facilities pursuant to a contract between a 

local agency and a person or entity, including, but not limited to, a reimbursement 

agreement pursuant to Section 66003. 

(2) Charges  that  are used  to pay existing debt  service or which  are  subject  to  a 

contract with a trustee for bondholders that requires a different accounting of the 

charges, or charges that are used to reimburse the local agency or to reimburse a 

person or entity who advanced funds under a reimbursement agreement or contract 

for facilities in existence at the time the charges are collected. 

(3) Charges collected on or before December 31, 1998. 

(g) Any  judicial  action or  proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void,  or  annul  the 

ordinance, resolution, or motion imposing a fee or capacity charge subject to this section 

shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022. 

(h) Fees and charges subject to this section are not subject to the provisions of Chapter 

5 (commencing with Section 66000), but are subject to the provisions of Sections 66016, 

66022, and 66023. 

(i) The provisions of subdivisions (c) and (d) shall only apply to capacity charges levied 

pursuant to this section. 

(Amended  by  Stats.  2007,  Ch.  94,  Sec.  1.  Effective  January  1,  2008.) 
 

66016 

(a) Prior to levying a new fee or service charge, or prior to approving an increase in an 

existing  fee or service charge, a  local agency shall hold at  least one open and public 

meeting, at which oral or written presentations  can be made, as part of a  regularly 

scheduled meeting. Notice of the time and place of the meeting,  including a general 

explanation of the matter to be considered, and a statement that the data required by 

this section  is available, shall be mailed at  least 14 days prior  to  the meeting  to any 

interested party who files a written request with the local agency for mailed notice of 

the meeting on new or increased fees or service charges. Any written request for mailed 

notices shall be valid for one year from the date on which  it  is filed unless a renewal 

request is filed. Renewal requests for mailed notices shall be filed on or before April 1 

of each year. The legislative body may establish a reasonable annual charge for sending 

notices based on the estimated cost of providing the service. At least 10 days prior to 

the meeting,  the  local  agency  shall make  available  to  the public data  indicating  the 

amount of cost, or estimated cost, required to provide the service for which the fee or 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



service  charge  is  levied  and  the  revenue  sources  anticipated  to provide  the  service, 

including General Fund revenues. Unless there has been voter approval, as prescribed 

by Section 66013 or 66014, no  local agency shall  levy a new  fee or service charge or 

increase an existing fee or service charge to an amount which exceeds the estimated 

amount required to provide the service for which the fee or service charge is levied. If, 

however,  the  fees or  service charges create  revenues  in excess of actual cost,  those 

revenues shall be used to reduce the fee or service charge creating the excess. 

(b) Any action by a  local agency to  levy a new fee or service charge or to approve an

increase  in  an  existing  fee  or  service  charge  shall  be  taken  only  by  ordinance  or

resolution. The  legislative body of a  local agency  shall not delegate  the authority  to

adopt a new fee or service charge, or to increase a fee or service charge.

(c) Any costs incurred by a local agency in conducting the meeting or meetings required

pursuant to subdivision (a) may be recovered from fees charged for the services which

were the subject of the meeting.

(d) This  section  shall apply only  to  fees and  charges as described  in Sections 51287,

56383, 65104, 65456, 65584.1, 65863.7, 65909.5, 66013, 66014, and 66451.2 of  this

code, Sections 17951, 19132.3, and 19852 of the Health and Safety Code, Section 41901

of the Public Resources Code, and Section 21671.5 of the Public Utilities Code.

(e) Any  judicial  action or proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void, or  annul  the

ordinance, resolution, or motion levying a fee or service charge subject to this section

shall be brought pursuant to Section 66022.

(Amended  by  Stats.  2006,  Ch.  643,  Sec.  19.  Effective  January  1,  2007.) 

66022  

(a) Any  judicial  action  or  proceeding  to  attack,  review,  set  aside,  void,  or  annul  an

ordinance, resolution, or motion adopting a new fee or service charge, or modifying or

amending an existing  fee or service charge, adopted by a  local agency, as defined  in

Section  66000,  shall  be  commenced  within  120  days  of  the  effective  date  of  the

ordinance, resolution, or motion.

If an ordinance, resolution, or motion provides for an automatic adjustment in a fee or 

service charge, and the automatic adjustment results in an increase in the amount of a 

fee or service charge, any action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void, or annul 

the increase shall be commenced within 120 days of the effective date of the increase. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



(b)Any action by a local agency or interested person under this section shall be brought 

pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 860) of Title 10 of Part 2 of the Code 

of Civil Procedure. 

(c) This section shall apply only to fees, capacity charges, and service charges described 

in and subject to Sections 66013, 66014, and 66016. 

(Amended  by  Stats.  2006,  Ch.  643,  Sec.  20.  Effective  January  1,  2007.) 

 

66023   

(a) Any person may request an audit in order to determine whether any fee or charge 

levied by a local agency exceeds the amount reasonably necessary to cover the cost of 

any product, public facility, as defined in Section 66000, or service provided by the local 

agency.  If a person makes  that  request,  the  legislative body of  the  local agency may 

retain an  independent auditor  to conduct an audit  to determine whether  the  fee or 

charge  is  reasonable, but  is not  required  to  conduct  the  audit  if  an  audit has been 

performed for the same fee within the previous 12 months. 

(b) To the extent that the audit determines that the amount of any fee or charge does 

not  meet  the  requirements  of  this  section,  the  local  agency  shall  adjust  the  fee 

accordingly. This  subdivision does not apply  to a  fee authorized pursuant  to Section 

17620 of the Education Code, or Sections 65995.5 and 65995.7. 

(c) The local agency shall retain an independent auditor to conduct an audit only if the 

person who requests the audit deposits with the local agency the amount of the local 

agency’s reasonable estimate of the cost of the independent audit. At the conclusion of 

the audit, the local agency shall reimburse unused sums, if any, or the requesting person 

shall pay the local agency the excess of the actual cost of the audit over the sum which 

was deposited. 

(d) Any  audit  conducted by  an  independent  auditor  to determine whether  a  fee or 

charge levied by a local agency exceeds the amount reasonably necessary to cover the 

cost of providing the product or service shall conform to generally accepted auditing 

standards. 

(e) The procedures specified in this section shall be alternative and in addition to those 

specified in Section 54985. 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



(f) The Legislature finds and declares that oversight of local agency fees is a matter of

statewide  interest and concern.  It  is, therefore, the  intent of the Legislature that this

chapter shall supersede all conflicting local laws and shall apply in charter cities.

(g) This section shall not be construed as granting any additional authority to any local

agency to levy any fee or charge which is not otherwise authorized by another

provision of law, nor shall its provisions be construed as granting authority to any local

agency to levy a new fee or charge when other provisions of law specifically prohibit

the levy of a fee or charge.

 (Amended by Stats. 2009, Ch. 507, Sec. 3. (AB 1084) Effective January 1, 2010.) 

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



APPENDIX G

Sewer Capacity Charge Surveys

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



City of San Jose $1,497 
City of Oakland $1,498 
North San Mateo County SD $2,600 
City of Milpitas $2,788 
City of Richmond $2,950 
Stege Sanitary District $3,009 
City of San Mateo $3,060 
City of Redwood City $3,096 
City of Mountain View $3,330 
City of Berkeley $3,536 
City of Alameda $3,928 
City of San Leandro $3,988 
City of Pittsburg $4,358 
City of South San Francisco $5,011 
City of Concord $5,043 
City of Santa Clara $5,839 
City of Livermore $6,876 
Oro Loma Sanitary District $6,919 
City of Hayward $7,700 
City of Antioch $7,784 
City of San Mateo (ST Area) $8,069 
City of Brentwood $8,264 
West Bay Sanitary District $8,501 
City of Sunnyvale $8,744 
Union Sanitary District $8,898 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District $9,000 
San Rafael Sanitation District $10,307 
West County Wastewater District $10,348 
Cupertino Sanitary District $11,034 
Union Sanitary District $12,307 
West Valley Sanitation District $12,428 
Ross Valley Sanitary $13,348 
City of San Carlos $13,627 
City of Pleasanton $14,159 
Castro Valley Sanitation District $15,026 
City of Palo Alto $15,750 
Dublin San Ramon Services District $15,906 

$0 $2,500 $5,000 $7,500 $10,000 $12,500 $15,000 $17,500 $20,000

Survey of Wastewater Capacity Charges 2020/21
Single Family Home

Current

Proposed Maximum*

Criteria for Agencies Surveyed
1. Within approximately 30‐mile radius of USD
2. Having at least 100 miles of Collection System 

and/or 5 MGD of Treatment

* With projected construction cost inflation 
through July 1, 2025.

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



678 

2,096 

5,685 

6,853 6,919 7,105 
7,627 

9,346 9,450 9,622 
10,499 10,728 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Charge Survey

Multi-Family/Apartment Unit

Charges effective November 2020.
Palo Alto charge assumes a 10‐unit building with a 2‐inch water meter.
Range of charges shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone. * Proposed maximum charges effective July 1, 2025.

Current

Proposed*

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



2,404 

5,025 
5,594 5,671 

6,300 6,536 

8,040 
8,688 

11,920 

14,298 

15,750 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Charge Survey

General Commercial / Office

Charges effective November 2020.
Range of charges shown for CCCSD based on Gravity Zone or Pumped Zone.

General Commercial / Office Fee Assumptions
2,000 Square Feet, Wastewater Flow: 200 gpd
Standard Strength or Office Fee Category, or
Wastewater Strength: 140 mg/l BOD, 115 mg/l SS, 30 mg/l NH3

* Proposed maximum charges effective July 1, 2025.

Current

Proposed*

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021



14,360 

30,030 31,620 31,668 31,965 
37,200 

46,930 48,438 

63,250 64,225 

84,735 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

Union Sanitary District
Sewer Capacity Charge Survey

Restaurant

Charges effective November 2020.
* Proposed maximum charges effective July 1, 2025.

Restaurant Fee Assumptions
1,000 Square Feet, Wastewater Flow: 1,000 gpd
High Strength or Full Service Restaurant Fee Category, or
Wastewater Strength: 1000 mg/l BOD, 600 mg/l SS, 30 mg/l NH3, or
1‐1/2 Inch Water Meter

Current

Proposed*

DESK ITEM 
Item 9 

5/21/2021


	1 05242021_Agenda
	2 05242021 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags
	05202021 Legal Community Affairs Cmte Ag
	05212021 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag
	05212021 EIT Cmte Ag

	4 05102021 Minutes
	5 05112021 Board Workshop Minutes
	6.a.1 April 2021 Monthly Ops Summary
	6.a.2 Odor Report Map April 2021
	6.a.3 April 2021 Odor Report
	6.a.4 BS Monthly Ops
	1. Hours Worked
	Charts042821
	Report042821

	2. Budget & Finance
	Dist Summary

	3. Revenues and Expenses
	Charts

	4. Business Services Group Activities Report
	5. Portfolio Holdings Charts
	6. Portfolio Holdings Report
	7. Portfolio Activity Report

	6.a.5 TS04-2021_MOR_Apr
	Construction Projects
	Aeration Blower No. 11 Project - Derek
	Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Thomas
	Centrifuge Building Improvements Project – Somporn
	FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining Project – Andrew
	Headworks Screens Replacement Project – Thomas
	Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project – Derek
	Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Curtis
	Wet Weather Flow Management – Calcium Thiosulfate Chemical Feed System – Kevin/Blake
	Design/Study Projects
	Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project - Thomas
	Cherry Street Pump Station Improvements Project – Derek
	Emergency Outfall Improvements Project – Andrew 
	Force Main Condition Assessment – Andrew
	Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 3 – Andrew
	Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation / Replacement Project – Phase VII – Andrew
	Irvington Basin Masterplan Update - Andrew
	Irvington Basin Reinforced Concrete Pipe Rehabilitation Project - Andrew
	Odor Control Alternatives Study – Kevin
	Odor Control Pilot Study - Somporn
	Pump Stations Chemical System Improvements Project - Thomas
	Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project – Kevin
	WAS Thickener Replacement Project – Derek

	6.a.6 CS April 2021 Ops Rpt
	6.a.7 FMC April2021_MonthlyOps
	6.a.8_TD_Ops_April_2021
	6.b USD Investments Quarter 3 2021
	3rd Qtr 2021 Investment Report by PFM 05-24-21
	USD Invest Report 3rd Qtr March 31, 2021
	ADP3919.tmp
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	ADP6C3A.tmp
	CLIENT NAME
	CLIENT NAME
	CLIENT NAME
	CLIENT NAME
	CLIENT NAME

	ADPC942.tmp
	CLIENT NAME

	ADP792E.tmp
	Slide Number 1



	9 PH and Adopt Ordinance 35.23
	10 Scheduling of PH for SSC to the Tax Roles June-14-21
	11 Schwalm Talpa 2060  Robotic Cutter
	12 EOIP_ESDC_Final
	13 Election of Board Officers
	13.1 Election of Officers for the Board of Directors
	13.2 3070 Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership

	14 FY 22 Budget Presentation May-24-21
	Proposed FY 22 Budget Presentation
	Budget Book FY 22 05-18-21
	FY 21-22 Budget Book
	Summary of CIP Schedules FY 22
	Copy of CIP FY 2022-2041_Final
	CIP 22-41 Final-2.7% MC Copy



	15 Priority I Projects-3rd qtr FY21
	16 CIP Variance-3rd qtr FY21
	17 EBDA Meeting of April 15, 2021
	18 COVID-19 Update
	19 Bd Ck Reg Rpt05142021
	05242021 BOD Mtg Articles
	0511and182021 TVC_proofofpub
	05142021 BANG for Ord 35.23 PH

	DESK ITEMS - Item 9.pdf
	Item 9 - Desk Item 1 of 3
	Item 9 - Desk Item 2 of 3 Single Family Capacity Charge Survey Revised 5-21-21
	Item 9 - Desk Item 3 of 3 Union SD Capacity Charge Report - Updated 05212021




